
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




the length of this country, often while herding their cattle and sheep as 
they went.  These young people were great trekkers.  
 
Two great trekkers of the last century were Roald Amundsen of Norway 
and Robert F. Scott of Great Britain.  Both men set out on a race to 
reach the South Pole.  Both set out with sled and dogs, but Amundsen’s 
team of six traveled on cross country skis and arrived at the pole 35 
days ahead of Scott’s team.  Traveling light, they made their return to 
their base camp with a trek that was smooth and uneventful.  Scott, who 
traveled much heavier with additional gear, made it to the pole only to 
find Amundsen’s tent and flag pole, and perished on his attempt to 
return. 
 
One of the great treks of the world happened midway through the last 
century, the trek up Mount Everest.  With attempts starting in 1921, 
many tried to ascend the world’s highest peak, with many lives being 
lost through out the years.  Finally, in May of 1953, Edmund Hillary of 
New Zealand became the first man to set foot on the summit.  
 
Through out time people have made treks, many of them treks of 
discovery.  Tonight we have a young man who has made such a trek, 
one of discovery through his journey of the Cub Scout program.  He has 
traveled through the Bobcat, Wolf, Bear and Webelos ranks, discovering 
treasures of knowledge, skill, and personal achievement.  And yes, 
there has been some hiking along the path.  But now this trek must end, 
one that has reached a summit, the highest summit of Cub Scouting, the 
peak that is the Arrow of Light.  This is the pinnacle, the highest award 
given in Cub Scouting.  His journey has been interesting, challenging, 
and sometimes even difficult, but the growth has been well worth the 
struggle. 
 
Is this his last trek?  Not at all.  Ahead is a series of new summits to 
reach in Boy Scouting, with its Everest being the rank of Eagle Scout.  
And along the way there will be a lot more real hiking, including the 
chance to do a 50 miler, a trek that truly is high adventure. 


    By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 







Arrow of Light Ceremony—Trekking  
 


Have you ever been on a long hike?  Long hikes, or treks, are much 
more than a long walk, they are expeditions that encompass multiple 
days and cover long distances.   
 
Who are some of the great trekkers of history?  In our own Southwest is 
an example of culture involved in great travel.  In what is now 
northwestern New Mexico lays the ruins of a great city at Chaco 
Canyon.  This great complex was inhabited by the early Native 
Americans known as the Anasazi.  Chaco Canyon was a great center of 
commerce, with series of roads emanating from it in all directions.  
Among the artifacts found at the site are shells used for ornamental 
beads that came from far away in the Pacific Ocean, the gulf coast of 
Mexico, and the gulf coast of the South.  Surely, there were great 
travelers among the Anasazi that trekked great distances to in order to 
trade.  
 
Another great trekker lived in the early days of our country.  Born John 
Chapman just two years before the Revolutionary War, you would 
recognize him as Johnny Appleseed.  As a young man growing up in 
Massachusetts, he apprenticed as an orchard cultivator.  His love of 
apples, and a restless spirit led him to travel the frontier to spread 
orchards.  He would collect his seeds for free from the cider mills, and 
then plant nurseries as he traveled west.  Many of the old orchards 
throughout Ohio, Indiana and Illinois came from Johnny’s nursery stock.  
As a pioneer, missionary and planter, Johnny walked the frontier of our 
young country, making friends and creating legends with his acts of 
kindness. 
 
The west was opened after the Lewis and Clark expedition, know as the 
Corp of Discovery, with frontiersmen following.  Within a few years, they 
were followed by pioneers who set out along the Santa Fe Trail, the 
Mormon Trail and the Oregon Trail with dreams of a new life.  Families 
often had children your age, and they found it more comfortable to walk 
than to ride in bouncing, jostling wagons.  These young people walked 








Our founding fathers left us a legacy of examples for us to follow.  
As Webelos we have a chance to follow in their footsteps.  We 
spend much of our time working on activity badges.  Some are in 
the mental skills group such as scholar and traveler, much like 
many of our founding fathers.  Others are in the physical skills 
group such as fitness and athlete, just like George Washington.  
The outdoor group includes such badges as forester and 
naturalist following Thomas Jefferson, while the technology group 
encompasses engineer and scientist, following the example of 
both Jefferson and Benjamin Franklin.  In the community group 
we learn first aid through the readyman badge after Dr. Benjamin 
Rush, communicator such as Franklin, and of course, the citizen 
badge following the example of all the founding fathers. 
 
Truly, this young man on his journey to his Arrow of Light has 
followed in the footsteps of our founding fathers. 
 
 
 


By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 
 







Thomas Jefferson was one of the great intellectuals of our 
founding fathers.  He is the one who penned the Declaration of 
Independence.  He was a designer and architect who built his 
beautiful home, Monticello, and designed the buildings for the 
University of Virginia.  He was also an inventor, holding the patent 
on a plow and redesigning many devises and objects. 
 
He was a naturalist, sending Lewis and Clark on an expedition to 
explore and map the Louisiana Purchase.  Part of their job was to 
catalog and retrieve new plant and animal species.  Jefferson was 
planter and a traveler.  While ambassador to France he traveled 
to Italy and was influence by both their architecture and their 
agriculture.  At Monticello he surrounded the grounds with 
gardens, vineyards and orchards.  Jefferson was a scholar, 
engineer, naturalist, traveler and a great citizen. 
 
There were four physicians among the signers of the Declaration 
of Independence, with Benjamin Rush being the most prominent.  
He was a scholar and writer having published books on medical 
practices.   
 
One of our country’s best known and most colorful founding 
fathers was Benjamin Franklin.  He was a printer, a writer, a 
scientist, a political theorist and an inventor.  He gave us such 
items as bifocal glasses, the lightning rod and the Franklin stove.  
His scientific discoveries included the proof lightning being 
electrically charged and a study of the Atlantic Ocean Gulf 
Stream.  He was granted honorary doctorate degrees from both 
Harvard and Yale Universities and was considered one of the 
great minds of his time.   
 
Franklin developed the first lending library where one could check 
out books such as we have today.  He was also the first 
Postmaster General developing our national postal service.  Thus, 
he was leader in communications. 
 







IN THE FOOTSTEPS OF OUR FOUNDING FATHERS 
ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY 


 
Our founding fathers are the ones who created our form of 
government and set the direction of our country.  The freedoms 
and liberties we enjoy are because of their wisdom and foresight 
in protecting them through the foundations or our laws. 
 
What kind of men were these patriots?  What were they like and 
what made them special?  How are we like them? 
 
Lets start with George Washington.  He was tall and athletic, 
standing at 6’ 3 ½ “.  Benjamin Franklin, himself 6’ tall, stated, 
“We always choose him to lead us because he was always the 
tallest man in the room”.  As the first president of the United 
States he was a great traveler, visiting every state in the union.  
Although he rode in a coach much of the time, he preferred to 
travel on horseback, and would enter the cities and villages on his 
beautiful white horse, much to the delight of the crowds. 
 
As president he set the example and policies for the presidents 
who followed.  Upon his death Washington was hailed as "first in 
war, first in peace, and first in the hearts of his countrymen”.  
George Washington was a great citizen.   
 
John Adams was the first vice president and the second president 
of the United States.  He loved to read and had an extensive 
library.  He attended Harvard University and became an attorney.  
He had a significant voice in preparing Declaration of 
Independence and the constitution.  He was truly a scholar, and 
even came from Braintree, Massachusetts.   
 
Adams was also a traveler, being an American ambassador to 
both England and France.  He lived the life of a patriot and great 
citizen. 
 








CITIZENSHIP FLAG CEREMONY 
 


1.  As a member of the Boy Scouts of America, I am learning what it 
means to be a good citizen of my country.  These are some of the 
things I can do to help keep my country great. 
 
2.  I love the beauty of my country.  I will help keep it that way by 
never littering.  I will follow the outdoor code and always leave the 
paths I walk as clean as or cleaner than before I came. 
 
3.  I will respect the laws of the land.  I will do my part to be a law 
abiding citizen. 
 
4.  I will help my neighbors and all those around me, for service to 
others is one of the things that make this country great. 
 
5.  I know that freedom is not free.  I will always do my part to make 
sure that our freedom is protected.  When old enough I will vote in all 
elections and always study the issues and candidates so I can make 
informed decisions.   
 
6.  I will learn leadership skills through the scouting program.  Our 
country needs leaders who have moral and ethical values, the ones 
that I learn through the Boy Scouts of America. 
 
7.  I will respect and worship my God, for I know that the founding 
fathers of our country both relied on and gave thanks to our maker as 
they drafted the documents that created our form of government.   
 
8.  I will respect and honor the flag that is the symbol of our country.  I 
will try to teach others what the flag stands for as well as the meaning 
of the Pledge of Allegiance.  As we think about all the things involved 
in citizenship, let us now stand and repeat the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 








COMPASSION FLAG CEREMONY 
 


1.  The Character Connection for this month is 
Compassion.  One of the greatest human traits is that 
we care about one and another.  This is one of the 
things that separates us form most of the animal 
kingdom.   
 
2.  As Cub Scouts we have a special duty to show 
compassion.  In both the Cub Scout and The Boy 
Scout Oath we promise to help other people. 
 
3.  Webelos learn the 12 points of the Scout Law.  
Four of those points deal with compassion.  We state 
that a Scout is “Helpful, Friendly, Courteous, and 
Kind”.  Can you imagine how much greater the world 
would be if all people followed the example of the 
Scouts? 
 
4.  As part of the Boy Scouts of America, we can have 
a profound impact on those around us in our 
community.  Through service, and individual kindness 
we can enrich the lives of all we touch.  This is one of 
the ways we can help to keep our country great.  Let 
us all rise and repeat the Pledge of Allegiance after 
me. 
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








COMPASSION FLAG CEREMONY 
 


1.  The Character Connection for this month is 
Compassion.  One of the greatest human traits is that 
we care about one and another.  This is one of the 
things that separates us form most of the animal 
kingdom.   
 
2.  As Cub Scouts, we have a special duty to show 
compassion.  In both the Cub Scout and The Boy 
Scout Oath we promise to help other people. 
 
3.  Webelos learn the 12 points of the Scout Law.  
Four of those points deal with compassion.  We state 
that a Scout is “Helpful, Friendly, Courteous, and 
Kind”.  Can you imagine how much greater the world 
would be if all people followed the example of the 
Scouts? 
 
4.  As part of the Boy Scouts of America, we can have 
a profound impact on those around us in our 
community.  Through service, and individual 
kindness, we can enrich the lives of all we touch.  
This is one of the ways we can help to keep our 
country great.  Let us all rise and repeat the Pledge of 
Allegiance after me. 
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








COMPASSION FLAG CEREMONY 
 


1.  The Character Connection for this month is 
Compassion.  One of the greatest human traits is that 
we care about one and another.  This is one of the 
things that separates us from most of the animal 
kingdom.   
 
2.  As Cub Scouts, we have a special duty to show 
compassion.  In both the Cub Scout and The Boy 
Scout Oath we promise to help other people. 
 
3.  Webelos learn the 12 points of the Scout Law.  
Four of those points deal with compassion.  We state 
that a Scout is “Helpful, Friendly, Courteous, and 
Kind”.  Can you imagine how much greater the world 
would be if all people followed the example of the 
Scouts? 
 
4.  As part of the Boy Scouts of America, we can have 
a profound impact on those around us in our 
community.  Through service, and individual 
kindness, we can enrich the lives of all we touch.  
This is one of the ways we can help to keep our 
country great.  Let us all rise and repeat the Pledge of 
Allegiance after me. 
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








across the country and the Pony Express riders would then 
carry the message the rest of the way.  It was difficult work, 
for the riders had to be tough and lightweight.  One famous 
advertisement reportedly read, “Wanted: Young, skinny, wiry 
fellows not over eighteen.  Must be expert riders, willing to 
risk death daily.  Orphans preferred.” 
 
The Pony Express only ran for 18 months from 1860 to 1861 
when the Pacific Telegraph Company from the east met up 
with the Overland Telegraph Company from the west in Salt 
Lake City.  The Pony Express had held the country together.   
 
Now the Central Pacific and Union Pacific Railroads built the 
first transcontinental railroad, coming together in 
Promontory, Utah in 1869. 







From Sea to Shining Sea 
Arrow of Light Ceremony  


 
In the patriotic song,”America” we speak of our country being 
from “sea to shining sea”.  But it wasn’t always that way.  At 
the turn of the century at 1800 our country went form the 
Atlantic Ocean to the Mississippi River.   
 
In the early 1800’s the United States were offered the 
French holdings to the west.  President Thomas Jefferson 
authorized what was to become known as the Louisiana 
Purchase for the sum of 15 million dollars, or about three 
cents per acre.  
 
Congress authorized an expedition call the Corp of 
Discovery to explore, map and document the newly acquired 
region.  President Jefferson chose Meriwether Lewis to lead 
the expedition and Lewis chose his friend William Clark to be 
the co-leader.  From 1804 to1806 Captains Lewis and Clark 
led a company of 33 men from St. Louis up the Mississippi 
and then up the Missouri Rivers, across the Rocky 
Mountains and the Great Divide and down to the mouth oft 
the Columbia River.  The expedition was both military and 
scientific in nature as the country now did stretch from sea to 
sea. 
 
With the conclusion of the Mexican War the United States 
extended clear through to California, but with the Civil War 
looming the government needed to make sure the west did 
not follow the South into rebellion.  To keep California loyal 
to the Union a communications link was created between 
Washington, D.C. and Sacramento where messages could 
be exchanged in just 10 days, and that was accomplished by 
the use of the telegraph and the newly organized Pony 
Express.  The telegraph would carry the message half way 








GETTYSBURG FLAG CEREMONY 
 


SCOUT 1:  150 years ago on July first our country fought a terrible 
and bloody battle at a little crossroads town in Pennsylvania.  For 
three days the armies of the Union north and the Confederate south 
battled at Gettysburg.  It was the turning point of the American Civil 
War.   
 
SCOUT 2:  Later that year during November President Lincoln 
traveled to Gettysburg for the dedication of the new Union cemetery.  
The first speaker spoke for nearly two hours, and then the president 
arose.  He spoke only 269 words with his speech lasting most likely 
under two minutes.  The first speaker wrote to the president, “I 
should be glad if I could flatter myself that I came as near to the 
central idea of the occasion, in two hours, as you did in two 
minutes.” 
 
SCOUT 3:  President Lincoln reminded us first that we were a young 
nation, only 87 years old.  Then he stated that the nation was built 
on liberty with the idea that we are all equal, and this war was to test 
that idea, since not all of us were free and equal under the law.   
 
SCOUT 4:  He praised the men, living and dead who had fought on 
that battlefield for such a noble cause, for they had made the ground 
hallowed.  It was up to the rest of the nation to complete this work so 
that these men would not have died in vain. 
 
SCOUT 5:  He finished by stating that this nation, under God, should 
have a new birth of freedom--, “and that government of the people, 
by the people, for the people, shall not perish from the earth.” 
 
SCOUT 6:  We are a country now united and with all races and 
creeds free under the law.  Let us honor those brave men who gave 
their lives that all may be free.  Would the audience please rise and 
repeat the Pledge of Allegiance after me.  
 


       Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 








GETTYSBURG FLAG CEREMONY 
 


SCOUT 1:  150 years ago on July 1 our country fought a terrible and 
bloody battle at a little crossroads town in Pennsylvania.  For three 
days, the armies of the Union north and the Confederate south 
battled at Gettysburg.  It was the turning point of the American Civil 
War.   
 
SCOUT 2:  Later that year during November, President Lincoln 
traveled to Gettysburg for the dedication of the new Union cemetery.  
The first speaker spoke for nearly two hours, and then the president 
arose.  He spoke only 269 words with his speech lasting most likely 
under two minutes.  The first speaker wrote to the president, “I 
should be glad if I could flatter myself that I came as near to the 
central idea of the occasion, in two hours, as you did in two 
minutes.” 
 
SCOUT 3:  President Lincoln reminded us first that we were a young 
nation, only 87 years old.  Then he stated that the nation was built 
on liberty with the idea that we are all equal, and this war was to test 
that idea, since not all of us were free and equal under the law.   
 
SCOUT 4:  He praised the men, living and dead who had fought on 
that battlefield for such a noble cause, for they had made the ground 
hallowed.  It was up to the rest of the nation to complete this work so 
that these men would not have died in vain. 
 
SCOUT 5:  He finished by stating that this nation, under God, should 
have a new birth of freedom--, “and that government of the people, 
by the people, for the people, shall not perish from the earth.” 
 
SCOUT 6:  We are a country now united and with all races and 
creeds free under the law.  Let us honor those brave men who gave 
their lives that all may be free.  Would the audience please rise and 
repeat the Pledge of Allegiance after me.  
 


       Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 








HEALTH & FITNESS FLAG CEREMONY 
 


SCOUT 1:  A scout is healthy.  This means we take care of 
our body by eating good healthy foods and getting the 
proper amount of sleep.   
 
SCOUT 2:  A scout is fit.  We pledge to keep ourselves 
physically strong.  This means we are active and play 
outside.  We hike, ride bikes, and play sports and games 
with our friends and neighbors.  Sitting in front of a television 
all afternoon is not for us. 
 
SCOUT 3:  A scout is clean.  We wash our hands, brush our 
teeth and bathe regularly.  We take care of our clothes to 
make sure they are neat and we look our best. 
 
SCOUT 4:  A scout is preparing to be a leader.  We know 
that strong leaders is what makes this country strong, and 
we want to grow up to help our country stay strong.  We 
learn about leadership and citizenship in scouting, and as we 
grow in these skills our country stays healthy and strong. 
 
SCOUT 5:  Let us all stand and honor our country by 
repeating the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag that represents 
our nation.  Please rise and repeat after me.   
 


       Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








HEALTH & FITNESS FLAG CEREMONY 
 


SCOUT 1:  A scout is healthy.  This means we take care of 
our body by eating good, healthy foods and getting the 
proper amount of sleep.   
 
SCOUT 2:  A scout is fit.  We pledge to keep ourselves 
physically strong.  This means we are active and play 
outside.  We hike, ride bikes, and play sports and games 
with our friends and neighbors.  Sitting in front of a television 
all afternoon is not for us. 
 
SCOUT 3:  A scout is clean.  We wash our hands, brush our 
teeth and bathe regularly.  We take care of our clothes to 
make sure they are neat and we look our best. 
 
SCOUT 4:  A scout is preparing to be a leader.  We know 
that strong leaders is what makes this country strong, and 
we want to grow up to help our country stay strong.  We 
learn about leadership and citizenship in scouting, and as we 
grow in these skills our country stays healthy and strong. 
 
SCOUT 5:  Let us all stand and honor our country by 
repeating the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag that represents 
our nation.  Please rise and repeat after me.   
 


       Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








MAGICAL FLAG CEREMONY 
 


Cub 1:  As a magician I can make things disappear and reappear with 
the snap of a finger. 
 
Cub 2:  I can pull a rabbit out of an empty hat. 
 
Cub 3:  I can saw a person in half and put them back together again. 
 
Cub 4:  When it comes to freedom, there is nothing magical about it.  
It takes work.  Citizens must vote; we need to let our voices be heard. 
Many will serve in the military.  As we say the Pledge of Allegiance let 
us think about what we can do to protect our freedom.  Would the 
audience please rise.  
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








MAGICAL FLAG CEREMONY 
 


Cub 1:  As a magician, I can make things disappear and reappear 
with the snap of a finger. 
 
Cub 2:  I can pull a rabbit out of an empty hat. 
 
Cub 3:  I can saw a person in half and put them back together again. 
 
Cub 4:  When it comes to freedom, there is nothing magical about it.  
It takes work.  Citizens must vote; we need to let our voices be heard. 
Many will serve in the military.  As we say the Pledge of Allegiance let 
us think about what we can do to protect our freedom.  Would the 
audience please rise.  
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








RAILROAD  FLAG  CEREMONY  
 
May 10, 1869, an era ended and a new one began.  
Gone was the pioneer period as the golden spike was 
driven in the rails at Promontory Point, Utah, marking 
the completion of the Transcontinental Railroad.  No 
longer would people and goods need to take the long 
and hazardous route by horse or ox drawn wagon.  
Goods could now be exchanged from coast to coast, 
making it unnecessary to produce everything needed 
in every rural district.  The Central Pacific Railroad 
started in Sacramento, California and laid 690 miles of 
track over the Sierra Mountains and across the desert 
to Utah, where it met the Union Pacific Railroad.  The 
Union Pacific started laying rails at Council Bluffs, 
Iowa, and continued laying 1,087 miles of track as it 
followed the Mormon trail on its way westward.  The 
Transcontinental Railroad is considered the greatest 
technical and engineering feat of the nineteenth 
century, but more important, it helped unite our country 
truly into one nation from sea to shining sea. 
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 








Respect Flag Ceremony 
 


1. Respect is the core value for the month of December.  
Respect is something that everyone deserves and 
each person values.  We cannot expect other to show 
us respect if we do not show it to others. 


 
2. Respect means that we listen to others and are polite 


while we give them a chance to express their views. 
 


3. Respect means that we pay attention to parents, 
teaches and leaders do what is asked or required of 
us.  Respect means that we fulfill our obligations.   


 
4. Respect means that we take care of nature and leave 


the outdoors better than when we entered it.  We 
respect the earth when we take care of it. 


 
5. Respect for our country means that we obey its laws 


and do our duty when called upon.  We encourage 
those around us to study candidates and issues and 
vote in all elections.  We respect the flag, not for its 
design and fabric, but for the values it stands for.  Let 
us think about those values now as we repeat the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  Would the audience please 
stand and repeat after me.    
 


              Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
                   








Respect Flag Ceremony 
 


1. Respect is the core value for the month of December.  
Respect is something that everyone deserves and 
each person values.  We cannot expect others to show 
us respect if we do not show it to others. 


 
2. Respect means that we listen to others and are polite 


while we give them a chance to express their views. 
 


3. Respect means that we pay attention to parents, 
teachers and leaders. Do what is asked or required of 
us.  Respect means that we fulfill our obligations.   


 
4. Respect means that we take care of nature and leave 


the outdoors better than when we entered it.  We 
respect the earth when we take care of it. 


 
5. Respect for our country means that we obey its laws 


and do our duty when called upon.  We encourage 
those around us to study candidates and issues and 
vote in all elections.  We respect the flag, not for its 
design and fabric, but for the values it stands for.  Let 
us think about those values now as we repeat the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  Would the audience please 
stand and repeat after me.    
 


              Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
                   








RESPONSIBILITY FLAG CEREMONY 
 


SCOUT 1:  As a Scout I am responsible for the things that I 
can control and that I can contribute to.  Responsibility in 
the outdoors means that I respect the habitat of creatures 
that live in nature.  I leave no trace when I venture out and 
make sure that others will have the same experience. 


 
SCOUT 2:  Responsibility to my God means that I keep 


myself spiritual clean and morally straight.  I will always 
give thanks for my blessing and make service to others a 
part of my life.   


 
SCOUT 3:  Responsibility to my fellow Scouts means that I 


will help the den and pack go.  I will be a friend to my fellow 
Scouts and participate in all activities.  I will help to make it 
fun.  I will be responsible and always do my part and do 
what I say I will.  Responsibility means I always keep my 
word. 


 
SCOUT 4:  Responsibility to myself means I will keep myself 


physically strong by taking care of my body.  I will eat 
health foods and be active in play and sports.  I will learn in 
school, scouts, home and all other place where I can 
increase my knowledge.  I know that learning can be fun. 


 
SCOUT 5:  Responsibility to my country means that I will take 


pride in being a good citizen.  I will obey the laws and learn 
of its history.  I will prepare myself to one day be a voter 
and participate in electing my leaders.  As we think about 
these things we are responsible for, let us stand and repeat 
the Pledge of Allegiance.  


 
          Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 








Veterans Day Ceremony 
 
1.  In a few days we will recognize a very special group of 
people. 
 
 
2.  The First World War ended on the eleventh hour of the 
eleventh day of the eleventh month in the year 1918.  
  
 
3.  The day was called Armistice Day to celebrate the end of 
hostilities and the beginning of peace. 
 
 
4.  When the Second World War began, peace was gone, so 
Armistice Day was changed to Veterans Day to honor the 
men and women who gave their time, their energy, and 
sometimes even their lives to keep us free and safe from 
those who would destroy our liberty. 
 
 
5.  On November 11 let us remember all those past and 
present who have served our nation in the armed forces.  
When we see the flag wave on that day, we know they have 
made it possible for it to continue to fly.  
 


      Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08 
 






Tiger

		Name						B-Day										Phone



		Parent



				Bobcat Trail

						1.  Cub Scout Promise								5.  Cub Scout Handshake

						2.  Law of the Pack								6.  Cub Scout Motto

						3.  Webelos								7.  Cub Scout Salute

						4.  Cub Scout Sign								8.  Child Protection



				Tiger totem								Tiger Trail

						1. Tiger Cub Motto								1. Making my family special		F		D		G

						2. Cub Scout Sign								2. Where I live		F		D		G

						3. Cub Scout Salute								3. Keeping myself healthly & safe		Fa		Fb		D		G

														4. How I tell it		F		D		G

														5. Let's go outdoors		F		D		G



				Electives

						1. How do you celebrate?								19. Magic fun										37. Take a bicycle ride

						2. Making decorations								20. Get the word out										38. Bicycle repair

						3. Fun and games								21. The show must go on										39. Go to work

						4. Display a picture								22. Picnic fun										40. Fun in the water

						5. Family mobile								23. What kind of milk?										41. Transportation

						6. Song time								24. Help in the kitchen										42. Fun at the zoo

						7. Play along								25. Snack time										43. Pet care

						8.Your religious leader								26. Phone manners										44. Dairy products

						9. A new friend								27. Emergency!										45. Fresh baking

						10 Helping hands								28. Smoke detectors										46. Healthy teeth and gums

						11. Helping the needy								29. Safety in the sun										47. Reduce, reuse, recycle

						12. A friendly greeting								30. Plant a seed										48. Go for a ride

						13. Making change								31. Learn about animals										49. Your government

						14. Reading fun								32. Feed the birds										50. Banking

						15. Our colorful world								33. Cleanup treasure hunt

						16. Collecting & other hobbies								34. Conservation

						17. Make a model								35. Fun outdoors

						18. Sew a button								36. See a performance















Wolf

		Name						B-Day																				Phone



				Bobcat Trail

						1.  Cub Scout Promise																						5.  Cub Scout Handshake

						2.  Law of the Pack																						6.  Cub Scout Motto

						3.  Webelos																						7.  Cub Scout Salute

						4.  Cub Scout Sign																						8.  Child Protection



																												Immediate Recognition Bead		1		2		3		4

				Wolf Trail

						1.  Feats of Skill (do A-E and 1 other)		A		B		C		D		E		F										7.  Your Living World		A		B		C		D		E		F

								G		H		I		J		K		L										8.  Cooking and Eating		A		B		C		D		E

						2.  Your Flag		A		B		C		D		E		F		G								9.  Be Safe at Home & on the Street		A		B		C		D		E

						3.  Keep Your Body Healthy		A		B		C																10. Family Fun (do A and 2 others)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G

						4.  Know Your Home & Community		A		B		C		D		E		F										11. Duty to God		A		B		C		D

						5.  Tools for Fixing		A		B		C		D		E												12. Making Choices (do A and 4 others)		A		B		C		D		E		F

						6.  Start a Collection		A		B		C																		G		H		I		J		K



		Arrow Points

						1.  It's a Secret		A		B		C		D														13. Birds		A		B		C		D		E		F

						2.  Be an Actor		A		B		C		D		E												14. Pets		A		B		C		D

						3.  Make It Yourself		A		B		C		D		E												15. Grow Something		A		B		C		D		E

						4.  Play Game		A		B		C		D		E		F										16. Family Alert		A		B		C

						5.  Sparetime Fun		A		B		C		D		E		F										17. Tie It Right		A		B		C		D		E		F		G

								G		H		I																18. Outdoor Adventure		A		B		C		D		E		F		G

						6.  Books, Books, Books		A		B		C																19. Fishing		A		B		C		D		E		F

						7.  Foot Power		A		B		C																20. Sports		A		B		C		D		E

						8.  Machine Power		A		B		C		D																F		G		H		I		J

						9.  Let's Have a Party		A		B		C																		K		L		M		N		O

						10. American Indian Lore		A		B		C		D		E		F										21. Computer Fun		A		B		C

						11. Sing-Along		A		B		C		D		E		F										22. Say It Right		A		B		C		D		E

						12. Be an Artist		A		B		C		D		E		F										23. Let's Go Camping		A		B		C		D		E

																														F		G		H

						Gold		1

						Silver		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10























Bear

		Name										B-Day																				Phone



				Bear Trail

				Do ONE for GOD																												 Immediate Recognition Bead				1		2		3		4

						1.  Ways We Worship		A		B

						2.  Emblems of Faith		A

				Do THREE for COUNTRY																										Do FOUR for SELF

						3.  What Makes America Special? (A, J+2)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G		H		I		J						14. Ride Right (A+3)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G

						4.  Tall Tales		A		B		C																				15. Games, Games, Games! (Any 2)		A		B		C

						5.  Sharing Your World with Wildlife (Any 4)		A		B		C		D		E																16. Building Muscles		A		B		C

						6.  Take Care of Your Planet (Any 3)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G												17. Information Please (A+3)		A		B		C		D		E		F

						7.  Law Enforcement Is a Big Job		A		B		C		D		E		F														18. Jot It Down (H+4)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G		H

				Do FOUR for FAMILY																												19. Shavings and Chips		A		B		C		D

						8.  The Past is Exciting and Important (G+2)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G												20. Sawdust and Nails		A		B		C

						9.  What's Cooking? (Any 4)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G												21. Build a Model (G+2)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G

						10. Family Fun		A		B																						22. Tying It All Up (Any 5)		A		B		C		D		E		F

						11. Be Ready (A-E, G)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G												23. Sports, Sports, Sports!		A		B		C		D		E

						12. Family Ourdoor Adventures (Any 3)		A		B		C		D		E																24. Be a Leader (F+2)   		A		B		C		D		E		F

						13. Saving Well, Spending Well (Any 4)		A		B		C		D		E		F		G



		Arrow Points

						1.  Space		A		B		C		D		E		F														14. Landscaping		A		B		C		D

						2.  Weather		A		B		C		D		E		F														15. Water/Soil Conservation		A		B		C		D		E

						3.  Radio		A		B																						16. Farm Animals		A		B		C		D

						4.  Electricity		A		B		C		D		E																17. Repairs		A		B		C		D		E

						5.  Boats		A		B		C		D		E																18. Backyard Gym		A		B		C		D

						6.  Aircraft		A		B		C		D		E		F		G												19. Swimming		A		B		C		D		E

						7.  Things That Go		A		B		C		D																		20. Sports		A		B		C		D		E		F

						8.  Cub Scout Band		A		B		C		D																		21. Sales		A		B

						9.  Art		A		B		C		A		A		A														22. Collect Things		A		B		C

						10. Masks		A		B		C																				23. Maps		A		B		C		D		E

						11. Photography		A		B		C		D																		24. Native American Life		A		B		C

						12. Nature Crafts		A		B		C		D		E		F		G		H										25. Let's Go Camping		A		B		C		D		E		F		G		H

						13. Magic		A		B		C		D



						Gold		1

						Silver		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11







Webelos

		Name								B-day																Phone





				Webelos Badge		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8						Arrow of Light		1		2		3		4		5		6		7

		Physical																						Technology

		Aquanaut		1-3 plus 3 more 4-8		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8				Craftsman		all 1-4		1		2		3		4

		Athlete		1-5 plus 5 more 3-11		1		2		3		4		5		6								Engineer		1-2 plus 4 more 3-10		1		2		3		4		5		6

						7		8		9		10		11														7		8		9		10

		Fitness (W)		1 plus 6 more 2-8		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8				Handyman		1 plus 6 more 2-17		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Sportsman		all		1		2		3		4																7		8		9		10		11		12

																												13		14		15		16		17

		Mental																						Scientist		1-4 plus 6 more 5-14		1		2		3		4		5		6		7

		Artist		1-2 plus 5 more 3-11		1		2		3		4		5		6												8		9		10		11		12		13		14

						7		8		9		10		11

		Scholar		1 plus 3 more 2-8		1		2		3		4		5		6		7						Outdoor

				and 9-13		8		9		10		11		12		13								Forester		5 from 1-10		1		2		3		4		5

		Showman		6 plus 1 from each		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8								6		7		8		9		10

				are (9)		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16				Geologist		5 from 1-9		1		2		3		4		5

						17		18		19		20		21		22		23										6		7		8		9

		Traveler		5 from 1-13		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8				Naturalist		1 plus 5 more 2-13		1		2		3		4		5		6		7

						9		10		11		12		13														8		9		10		11		12		13

		Community																						Outdoorsman (A)		2 from 1-4 plus		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Citizen (W)		1-8 plus 2 more 9-17		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8						5 more 5-12		7		8		9		10		11		12

						9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16

						17

		Communicator		7 from 1-16		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8

						9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16

		Family Member		1-6 plus 2 more 7-13		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8

						9		10		11		12		13

		Readyman (A)		1-8 plus 2 more 9-15		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8

						9		10		11		12		13		14		15



		Compass Emblem Point=Citizen+Fitness+5 Others												11=East										15=West		19=South				All 20 Patch









pack

		Name																				B-day														Akela

		Rank Advancement

										Bobcat										Arrow Points      G=Gold, #s = Silver

										Wolf				G		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16		17		18		19		20

										Bear				G		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16		17		18		19		20

										Webelos																Arrow of Light																		All 20 Patch



				       Compass Emblem Point=Citizen+Fitness+5 Others																														        11=East								        15=West								       19=South



						Aquanaut										Communicator												Fitness (W)										Naturalist														Scientist

						Artist										Craftsman												Forester										Outdoorsman (A of L)														Showman

						Athlete										Engineer												Geologist										Readyman (A of L)														Sportsman

						Citizen (W)										Family Member												Handyman										Scholar														Traveler

		______________________________________________________________________________________________

		Belt Loop & Pins 												(**W: **) = required for the Webelos Badge (W:  ) = option for the Webelos Activity Badge

		Loop				Pin														Academics										Loop				Pin

										Art  (W:Artist)																												Language & Culture (W:Scholar)

										Astronomy (W:Scientist)																												Maps & Compass  (W:Traveler

										Chess  (Webelos:Scholar)																												Mathematics  (W:Engineer

										Citizenship (***W:Citizen***)																												Music   (W:Showman

										Collecting																												Nutrition

										Communicating (W:Communicator)																												Pet Care

										Computers (W:Communicator)																												Photography

										Disabilities Awareness																												Reading and Writing

										Family Travel																												Science  (***W:Scientist***)

										Geography  (W:Traveler)																												Video Games

										Geology  (W:Geologist)																												Weather  (W:Scientist

										Good Manners																												Wildlife Conserv. (W:Naturalist)

										Heritages  (W:Family Member)

		                                             Sports 																						(Webelos requires: 2 team sports & 2 individual sports for Sportsman) 

		Loop				Pin																Loop				Pin														Loop				Pin

										Archery 																				Flag Football																		Roller Skating

										(only at BSA Camps)																				Golf																		Skateboarding

										BB Gun Shooting																				Gymnastics																		Snow Ski & Board

										(only at BSA Camps)																				Hiking																		Soccer

										Badminton																				Hockey																		Softball

										Baseball																				Horseback Riding																		Swimming (W: Aquanaut)

										Basketball																				Ice Skating																		Table Tennis

										Bicycling																				Kickball																		Tennis

										Bowling																				Marbles																		Ultimate

										Fishing																				Physical Fitness																		Volleyball

																														 (W: Athlete)

		______________________________________________________________________________________________

		National/Council Patches & Awards:																												T=Tigers, F=Wolf, B=Bear, W=Webelos, V=Voluinteer Adult

		Patch																				Patch																				Patch

						Ability Awareness 																				Historical & Pioneer Walk																				Say Yes to Reading 

						America, My Home 																				Hometown Discovery																				This is the Place Heritage Park 

						Benson Gristmill 																				I Discovered Boys' Life																				U of U Observatory

						Conservation Good Turn																				International Activity 																				U of U Physics Lab

						Cub Zoo Trail 																				Kennecott's Bingham 																				Utah Fire Fighters Museum

						Donor Awareness 																				Canyon Mine Tour 																				Utah State Fair 

						Family Camping 																				Leave No Trace 																				Wheeler Historic Farm

						Fort Douglas Patriotic Walk																				Leave No Trace GSLC																				World Conservation Award

						Garden & H2O Conservation																				Museum of Natural History Walk																				** Religious Award **



																		Patch						     Pins																								Pin

		              BSA Family Award																1st				1		2		3		4		5				    Physical Fitness Award														1

		     Emergency Prepareness Award																none				  T		  F		  B		 W		  V				    Crime Prevention Award														1

		    National Summertime Pack Award																ribbon				  T		  F		  B		 W						    National Den Award 												      Ribbon for den flag

		                    Outdoor Activity																1st				1		2		3								    William T. Hornaday Unit Award																		      certificate







beltloop & patch

		Name								B-day



		Belt Loop & Pins 						(**W: **) = required for the Webelos Badge (W:  ) = option for the Webelos Activity Badge

						Academics

		Loop		Pin						Loop		Pin

						Art  (W:Artist)								Language & Culture (W:Scholar)

						Astronomy (W:Scientist)								Maps & Compass  (W:Traveler)

						Chess  (Webelos:Scholar)								Mathematics  (W:Engineer)

						Citizenship (***W:Citizen***)								Music   (W:Showman)

						Collecting								Nutrition

						Communicating (W:Communicator)								Pet Care

						Computers (W:Communicator)								Photography

						Disabilities Awareness								Reading and Writing

						Family Travel								Science  (***W:Scientist***)

						Geography  (W:Traveler)								Video Games

						Geology  (W:Geologist)								Weather  (W:Scientist)

						Good Manners								Wildlife Conserv. (W:Naturalist)

						Heritages  (W:Family Member)



						Sports 		(Webelos requires: 2 team sports & 2 individual sports for Sportsman) 

		Loop		Pin						Loop		Pin						Loop		Pin

						Archery 								Flag Football								Roller Skating

						(only at BSA Camps)								Golf								Skateboarding

						BB Gun Shooting								Gymnastics								Snow Ski & Board

						(only at BSA Camps)								Hiking								Soccer

						Badminton								Hockey								Softball

						Baseball								Horseback Riding								Swimming (W: Aquanaut)

						Basketball								Ice Skating								Table Tennis

						Bicycling								Kickball								Tennis

						Bowling								Marbles								Ultimate

						Fishing								Physical Fitness (W: Athlete)								Volleyball



		National/Council Patches & Awards:												T=Tigers, F=Wolf, B=Bear, W=Webelos, V=Voluinteer Adult



				Patch								Patch								Patch

						Ability Awareness 								Historical & Pioneer Walk								Say Yes to Reading 

						America, My Home 								Hometown Discovery								This is the Place Heritage Park 

						Benson Gristmill 								I Discovered Boys' Life								U of U Observatory

						Conservation Good Turn								International Activity 								U of U Physics Lab

						Cub Zoo Trail 								Kennecott's Bingham 								Utah Fire Fighters Museum

						Donor Awareness 								Canyon Mine Tour 								Utah State Fair 

						Family Camping 								Leave No Trace 								Wheeler Historic Farm

						Fort Douglas Patriotic Walk								Leave No Trace GSLC								World Conservation Award

						Garden & H2O Conservation								Museum of Natural History Walk								** Religious Award **





CS Outdoor Activity

		Cub Scout Outdoor Activity Award



				Required by all		Tiger Requirements				Wolf Requirements				Bear Requirements				Webelos Requirements				Outdoor Activities

		Scout		Attend Cub Scout Day Camp or Resident Camp		Complete 1 requirement in Achievement 5		Complete 3 Outdoor activities		Assemble the 6  essentials for going outdoors Elective 23b		Complete 4 Outdoor activities		Earn Cub Scout Leave no Trace Award		Complete 5 Outdoor activities		Earn Outdoorsman Activity Badge		Complete 6 outdoor activities		Participate in a nature hike in your local area		Participate in an outdoor activity.		Explain the buddy system,  what to do if you get lost, and  cooperation.		Attend a pack overnighter.		Complete an outdoor service project in you community.		Complete a nature/ conservation project in your area.		Earn Summertime Pack Award.		Participate in a nature observation activity.		Participate in an outdoor aquatic activity.		Participate in an outdoor campfire program.		Participate in an outdoor sporting event.		Participate in an outdoor Scout's Own or other worship service.		Explore a local city, county, state or national park.

















































Sheet1












































 
Engineer 


Technology Group 
 
Requirement #8 - Build a catapult and show how it works 
 
Catapult – A mechanical device used to throw an object.  USE YOUR IMAGINATION! 
Use popsicle sticks, paint stir sticks, mouse traps, RAT traps, rubber bands, inner tubes, the list is 
ENDLESS.  Google “table top catapult plans” for more than 259,000 results! 
 
Requirement #4: How Electricity Gets to Your Home 
 
Generation -------------------------------- Transmission ----------------------------------- Use 
 
Fossil Fuels 
Coal, Oil, Natural Gas         Work 
 
Nuclear    Power Lines      Sub Stations  Home 
 
Renewable          School 
Dams, geothermal,  
solar, wind, tides, 
thermal, wave action,    100,000 to 1,500,000 volts   240 volts 
 
Requirement #6 - Build a simple Bridge – Beam Bridge 
 
 
     Glue with “Tacky” Glue 
 
 
     Tongue Depressors 
 
 
 Craft Sticks  
 
Requirement #4 - Visit a civil engineer or surveyor to learn how to measure the length of a 
property line. Explain how property lines are determined.  
 
First-have the boys measure the property line on your house.  Den Leader: Prepare you home by 
putting 16-penny nails in your yard next to your sidewalk designating your property lines. Divide 
the Webelos into two groups and have each group measure the distance between the nails from 
opposite ends. Give each group a length of string about 30 feet long.  Have each group use a 
smaller measuring tape or ruler plus a permanent marker to mark off one foot increments on the 
string.  Each group can then use the string to measure your property lone in between the 16-
penny nails.  Compare the two groups’ measurements and work out the discrepancies together.  
Learn as a den! 


 


 








 
Requirement #6 - Draw 3 Kinds of Bridges 
 
Beam 
Bridge 


 
 
 


Arch Bridge 


 


Truss 
Bridge 


 
 


Tied Arch 
Bridge 


 


Suspension 
Bridge 


 


 
 


Cantilever 
Bridge 


 


Cable-
stayed 
Bridge 


 


 
 


  


 







INDUSTRIAL  
Industrial engineers determine the most effective ways to use people, machines, materials, 
information, and energy to make a product or to provide a service. 
 
NUCLEAR  
Nuclear engineers harness the power of the atom to benefit humankind. They search for efficient 
ways to capture and put to beneficial use those tiny natural bursts of energy resulting from sub-
atomic particles that break apart molecules. 
 
BIOENGINEERING AND BIOCHEMICAL  
Bioengineers study living systems, study the safety of food supplies, keep desirable organisms 
alive in fermentation processes, and design biologically based sensors. 
 
COMPUTER  
Computer Engineering is the design, construction, implementation, and maintenance of 
computers and computer controlled equipment. 
 
MANUFACTURING  
Manufacturing engineers direct and coordinate the processes for making things - from the 
beginning to the end. 
 
PETROLEUM  
Petroleum engineers study the earth to find oil and gas reservoirs. They design oil wells, storage 
tanks, and transportation systems. They supervise the construction and operation of oil and gas 
fields.  
 
BIOMEDICAL  
Biomedical Engineers study biology and medicine to develop technologies related to health care. 
 
ELECTRICAL 
Electrical engineers develop components for some of the most fun things in our lives (MP3 
players, digital cameras, or roller coasters) as well as the most essential (medical tests or 
communications systems). This largest field of engineering encompasses the macro (huge power 
grids that light up cities, for example) as well as the micro (including a device smaller than a 
millimeter that tells a car’s airbags when to inflate). As an electrical engineer, you might work on 
robotics, computer networks, wireless communications, or medical imaging—areas that are at 
the very forefront of technological innovation. 
 
MARINE AND OCEAN   
These engineering fields are closely related, and deal with the design of ocean vehicles, marine 
propulsion systems, and marine structures such as harbors, docks, and offshore drilling platforms. 
 







EXTRAS FOR THE CD! 
 
Requirement #1 - Things Engineers Do 
 
AEROSPACE  
Aerospace engineers design, analyze, model, simulate, and test aircraft, spacecraft, satellites, 
missiles, and rockets. 
 
CERAMIC AND MATERIALS  
Make useful products in many forms from common as well as exotic materials. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL  
Environmental Engineering is the study of ways to protect the environment. 
 
MECHANICAL  
Mechanical engineers are often referred to as the general practitioners of the engineering 
profession, since they work in nearly every area of technology, from aerospace and automotive 
to computers and biotechnology. 
 
AGRICULTURAL AND BIOLOGICAL 
Agricultural engineers apply knowledge of engineering technology and science to agriculture 
and the efficient use of biological resources. 
 
CHEMICAL  
Chemical Engineers discover and manufacture better plastics, paints, fuels, fibers, medicines, 
fertilizers, semiconductors, paper, and all other kinds of chemicals. 
 
GEOLOGICAL AND GEOPHYSICAL  
Geological and Geophysical Engineers draw on the science of geology to study the earth, using 
engineering principles to seek and develop deposits of natural resources and design foundations 
for large buildings, bridges, and other structures. 
 
MINING  
Mining engineers study all phases of extracting mineral deposits from the earth. 
 
AUDIO  
Audio Engineers are involved in the creation of audio that blends both art and science. Like the 
sounds in a video game, or in a move, TV show or at a concert. 
 
CIVIL  
A civil engineer oversees the construction of the buildings and infrastructure that make up our 
world: highways, skyscrapers, railways, bridges, and water reservoirs, as well as some of the 
most spectacular and high-profile of all engineering feats. 
 
 
 








 


Engineer 
Technology Group 


 


Requirement #8 - Build a catapult and show how it works 


 


Catapult – A mechanical device used to throw an object.  USE YOUR IMAGINATION! 


Use popsicle sticks, paint stir sticks, mouse traps, RAT traps, rubber bands, inner tubes, the list is 


ENDLESS.  Google “table top catapult plans” for more than 259,000 results! 


 


Requirement #4: How Electricity Gets to Your Home 


 


Generation -------------------------------- Transmission ----------------------------------- Use 


 


Fossil Fuels 


Coal, Oil, Natural Gas         Work 


 


Nuclear    Power Lines      Sub Stations  Home 


 


Renewable          School 


Dams, geothermal,  


solar, wind, tides, 


thermal, wave action,    100,000 to 1,500,000 volts   240 volts 


 


Requirement #6 - Build a simple Bridge – Beam Bridge 


 


 


     Glue with “Tacky” Glue 


 


 


     Tongue Depressors 


 


 


 Craft Sticks  


 


Requirement #4 - Visit a civil engineer or surveyor to learn how to measure the length of a 


property line. Explain how property lines are determined.  


 


First-have the boys measure the property line on your house.  Den Leader: Prepare you home by 


putting 16-penny nails in your yard next to your sidewalk designating your property lines. Divide 


the Webelos into two groups and have each group measure the distance between the nails from 


opposite ends. Give each group a length of string about 30 feet long.  Have each group use a 


smaller measuring tape or ruler plus a permanent marker to mark off one foot increments on the 


string.  Each group can then use the string to measure your property lone in between the 16-


penny nails.  Compare the two groups’ measurements and work out the discrepancies together.  


Learn as a den! 


 








EXTRAS FOR THE CD! 


 


Requirement #1 - Things Engineers Do 


 


AEROSPACE  


Aerospace engineers design, analyze, model, simulate, and test aircraft, spacecraft, satellites, 


missiles, and rockets. 


 


CERAMIC AND MATERIALS  


Make useful products in many forms from common as well as exotic materials. 


 


ENVIRONMENTAL  


Environmental Engineering is the study of ways to protect the environment. 


 


MECHANICAL  


Mechanical engineers are often referred to as the general practitioners of the engineering 


profession, since they work in nearly every area of technology, from aerospace and automotive 


to computers and biotechnology. 


 


AGRICULTURAL AND BIOLOGICAL 


Agricultural engineers apply knowledge of engineering technology and science to agriculture 


and the efficient use of biological resources. 


 


CHEMICAL  


Chemical Engineers discover and manufacture better plastics, paints, fuels, fibers, medicines, 


fertilizers, semiconductors, paper, and all other kinds of chemicals. 


 


GEOLOGICAL AND GEOPHYSICAL  


Geological and Geophysical Engineers draw on the science of geology to study the earth, using 


engineering principles to seek and develop deposits of natural resources and design foundations 


for large buildings, bridges, and other structures. 


 


MINING  


Mining engineers study all phases of extracting mineral deposits from the earth. 


 


AUDIO  


Audio Engineers are involved in the creation of audio that blends both art and science. Like the 


sounds in a video game, or in a move, TV show or at a concert. 


 


CIVIL  


A civil engineer oversees the construction of the buildings and infrastructure that make up our 


world: highways, skyscrapers, railways, bridges, and water reservoirs, as well as some of the 


most spectacular and high-profile of all engineering feats. 


 


 


 







INDUSTRIAL  


Industrial engineers determine the most effective ways to use people, machines, materials, 


information, and energy to make a product or to provide a service. 


 


NUCLEAR  


Nuclear engineers harness the power of the atom to benefit humankind. They search for efficient 


ways to capture and put to beneficial use those tiny natural bursts of energy resulting from sub-


atomic particles that break apart molecules. 


 


BIOENGINEERING AND BIOCHEMICAL  


Bioengineers study living systems, study the safety of food supplies, keep desirable organisms 


alive in fermentation processes, and design biologically based sensors. 


 


COMPUTER  


Computer Engineering is the design, construction, implementation, and maintenance of 


computers and computer controlled equipment. 


 


MANUFACTURING  


Manufacturing engineers direct and coordinate the processes for making things - from the 


beginning to the end. 


 


PETROLEUM  


Petroleum engineers study the earth to find oil and gas reservoirs. They design oil wells, storage 


tanks, and transportation systems. They supervise the construction and operation of oil and gas 


fields.  


 


BIOMEDICAL  


Biomedical Engineers study biology and medicine to develop technologies related to health care. 


 


ELECTRICAL 


Electrical engineers develop components for some of the most fun things in our lives (MP3 


players, digital cameras, or roller coasters) as well as the most essential (medical tests or 


communications systems). This largest field of engineering encompasses the macro (huge power 


grids that light up cities, for example) as well as the micro (including a device smaller than a 


millimeter that tells a car’s airbags when to inflate). As an electrical engineer, you might work on 


robotics, computer networks, wireless communications, or medical imaging—areas that are at 


the very forefront of technological innovation. 


 


MARINE AND OCEAN   


These engineering fields are closely related, and deal with the design of ocean vehicles, marine 


propulsion systems, and marine structures such as harbors, docks, and offshore drilling platforms. 


 


  







Requirement #6 - Draw 3 Kinds of Bridges


 


Beam 


Bridge 


 


 


Truss 


Bridge 


 


Suspension 


Bridge 


 


 


Cable-


stayed 


Bridge 


 


 


 


Draw 3 Kinds of Bridges 


 


Arch Bridge 


 


Tied Arch 


Bridge 


 


Cantilever 


Bridge 


 


  


 


 


 






Type Information Here

				Type pack information below and then go to the View_Print Newsletter tab (see bottom edge of workbook) to see if you need to make adjustments. To change a locked cell, see "Protection" in Excel Help. (This worksheet is protected WITHOUT a password.) Re-protect sheet when finished.

				Month				Year				Pack number				Pack meeting time

				Council name														:				a.m. or p.m.:

				Chartered organization

				Day of week pack meets				Week of month pack meets								("1" - "4";"first"; or "last")																0

				Pack meeting location

				Pack leader title		Name						Phone number				E-mail address

				Treasurer's report

				Beginning balance:				Notes:

				Dues collected:

				Expenditures:

				Ending balance:		$0.00		(check)

				Pack meeting plans                for this month:

				Parent opportunities         this month:

				Cub Scouts advancing this month														This month's theme:

				Name		New rank				Name				New rank

																		Next month's theme:

				Future pack activities and events

				Den news

				Tiger Cub den news

				Wolf den news

				Bear den news

				Webelos den news





View&Print Newsletter

		

						Cub Scout Pack ,  Council

						Chartered to

						Pack meetings are held at the

						on the 0  of the month at :

				This Month's Theme:

				Cub Scouts Advancing						Pack Meeting Plans for

				This Month						0

				Name		New Rank

				0		0

				0		0

				0		0				Parent Opportunities

				0		0				Please contact your den leader if you can help:

				0		0				0

				0		0

				0		0

				0		0

				0		0

				0		0				Den News

				0		0				Tiger Cub den

										0

				Treasurer's Report

				Beginning balance:		$0.00

				Dues collected:		$0.00				Wolf den

				Expenditures:		$0.00				0

				Ending balance:		$0.00

				Notes:

				0						Next Month's Theme:				Bear den

										0				0

				Pack Leaders

				0

				0

				0										Webelos den

				0										0

				0

				0

				0

				0

				Future Pack Activities and Events

				0





Prepare for E_mailing

				If you want to e-mail the newsletter file, first print this page and then take one of these two steps to prevent recipients from inadvertently changing any of the information in your newsletter. If you choose the second option, be sure to follow the instructions for your version of Excel.®

						1		.		Use a program (such as Adobe Acrobat® Professional) that creates pdf files to make a pdf file of the View&Print Newsletter page. E-mail the pdf file.

						2		.		Use "Save As" and save a copy of the file with a slightly different filename.

										·		If you are using an Excel version from 97 to 2003

												A.		In the "View&Print Newsletter" tab, do Tools, Protection, Unprotect Sheet.

												B.		Click on a cell outside the newsletter area. Do Control+A, then Control+C, then Edit, Paste Special, Values. Press the Escape key.

												C.		Do Tools, Protection, Protect Sheet.

												D.		Go to the "Type Information Here" tab. Do Edit, Delete Sheet, and answer "Yes" when it asks if you're sure.

												E.		Go to the "Prepare for E_mailing" tab. Do Edit, Delete Sheet, and answer "Yes" when it asks if you're sure.

												F.		Save the file; it is ready to e-mail.

										·		If you are using  Excel 2007

												A.		In the "View&Print Newsletter" tab, .go to Review, Unprotect Sheet.

												B.		Go to Home, Paste, Paste Values. Press the Escape key.

												C.		Go to Review, Protect Sheet.

												D.		Go to the "Type Information Here" tab. Go to Home, Delete Sheet, and answer "Yes" when it asks if you're sure.

												E.		Go to the "Prepare for E_mailing" tab. Go to Home, Delete Sheet, and answer "Yes" when it asks if you're sure.

												F.		Save the file; it is ready to e-mail.










Date Budget Completed: July 15 UNIT DETAIL: Date Budget Completed:


Pack #: 1234 Cubmaster: Pack #:
Assistant Cubmaster:


District: Susquehanna Committee Chairperson: District:
Treasurer:


Projected # of Cub Scouts: 50 Popcorn Chairperson: Projected # of Cub Scouts:
Projected # of registered adults: 10 Projected # of registered adults:


Sample Pack Budget Actual Budget
Annual No. of Total Annual No. of Total


Cost Per Scouts/ Unit Cost Per Cub Scouts/ Unit
Scout/Unit Adults Cost PROGRAM EXPENSES: Person Adults Cost


10.00$                 60 600.00$         Registration Fees (1) Total youth + adults @ $10 ea. 10.00$        


20.00$                 1 20.00$           Unit Charter Fee (2) Yearly flat fee @ $20 20.00$       


12.00$                 50 600.00$         Boys' Life (3) Total subscriptions @ $12 ea. 12.00$        


1.00$                   60 60.00$           Accident Insurance Fees (4) Total youth + adults @ $_____ ea.


Advancement (5) Ideally, 100% of youth included in
activity pins, belt loops, ranks,


12.00$                 50 600.00$         etc. (example @ $12 ea.)
Recognition (5)


10.00$                 50 500.00$         Handbooks/Neckerchiefs (1) for each youth @ $10 ea.


10.00$                 6 60.00$           Pack Leaders Thank-you's, veteran awards, etc.


10.00$                 50 500.00$         Special Events (6)
8.00$                   50 400.00$         
6.00$                   10 60.00$           
5.00$                   50 250.00$         


Special Activities (6)
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip A
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip B
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip C


Camp (7)
75.00$                 x 40 = 3,000.00$      Cub Scout Day Camp


130.00$               x 30 = 3,900.00$      Cub Scout Resident Camp
145.00$               x 15 = 2,175.00$      Webelos Resident Camp
40.00$                 x 30 = 1,200.00$      Family Camping
60.00$                 x 20 = 1,200.00$      Leader's Fees


Program Materials (8) Ceremony supplies, bridge cross-
20.00$                 50 1,000.00$       ings, camping items, etc.


5.00$                   5 25.00$           Leader Basic Training (9) _____ leaders @ $_____ ea.


30.00$                 x 20 = 600.00$         Full Uniforms (10) Every Cub Scout in full uniform
1.00$                   x 50 = 50.00$           Reserve Fund (11) Registration scholarships
0.50$                   x 50 = 25.00$           Other Expenses (12) Contingency gunds


18,325.00$    A) TOTAL UNIT BUDGETED PROGRAM EXPENSES 20.00$       


INCOME:
40.00$                 50 2,000.00$      Annual Dues (monthly amount x 10 or 12 months)


500.00$               1 500.00$         Surplus From Prior Year (beginning fund balance)
  $ $ Other Income Source (parent payments, etc.)


2,500.00$      B) INCOME SUBTOTAL


15,825.00$    C) TOTAL FUNDRAISING NEED (A minus B)


45,214$               x 35% = 15,825$         POPCORN SALE PACK BUDGET  (Should equal C above.)
Gross Sales Commission Need (Check with your local council for commission percentage and bonuses) Need  / Commission = Pack Goal


45,214$                / 50 Cub Scouts = 904$              POPCORN SALES GOAL PER CUB SCOUT  / =
Pack Goal  / # Cub Scouts =


(Fill-In Example) 2008–2009 PACK OPERATING BUDGET


Blue and gold banquet
Pinewood derby
Graduation


Cub Scout Goal 


*  Many packs include all or a portion of the Cub Scout Resident Camp or Day Camp fee in the annual budget.  This helps ensure that all Cub Scouts have the opportunity to attend. 
Pack budgeting should include payments on time and qualifying for any discounts offered for early and/or on-time payments.


Location


(+/- 35% includes qualifying for all bonus dollars)








So  
You’re  
a New  
Pack 
Committee 
Member
I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now	that	you	are	registered	as	a	pack	committee	member,	you	will	
receive	Scouting magazine,	which	contains	helpful	information	to	
assist	you	as	a	leader.	These	steps	will	get	you	started:


 1. Complete Fast Start training for Cub Scout pack 
committee members.	Your	pack	leadership		(pack	trainer)	
will	facilitate	this	video–based	training,	or	you	can	complete	
the	training	online	at	www.scouting.org.	Youth	Protection	
training	for	all	Scouting	volunteers	is	available	through	your	
local	council	Web	site.


 2. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book.	(To	start	right	
away,	you	may	need	to	borrow	a	copy	briefly;	until	you	can	
get	your	own.)	This	book	describes	your	role	as		a	pack	
committee	member	or	pack	committee	chair	and	will	give	
more	information	on	the	following	steps.







 3. Get acquainted with the other leaders in your pack.	You	will	need	their	
assistance	in	carrying	out	a	successful	pack	program.	You	will	be	working	closely	
with	the	pack	committee	chair	and	pack	trainer.


 4. Attend the monthly pack leaders’ planning meeting.	This	meeting	is	led	by	the	
pack	committee	chair	and	Cubmaster,	and	it	is	where	pack	plans	are	made.


 5. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leader roundtable.	You	will	receive	
continuing	help	on	pack	management	and	will	be	acquainted	with	leaders	
from	other	packs,	who	will	share	ideas	and	experiences	with	you.	Your	unit	
commissioner	or	unit-serving	executive	can	tell	you	when	and	where	the	
roundtable	meets.


 6. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training sessions as soon as possible.	There	are	
two	components	to	this	training—Pack	Committee	Leader	Specific	Training,	a	
specialized	session	to	help	you	successfully	plan	a	successful	pack	program,	and	
This	Is	Scouting,	which	is	attended	by	leaders	in	all	program	areas.	These	will	give	
you	the	foundation	you	need	to	become	an	effective	and	successful	leader.	Every	
boy	deserves	trained	and	qualified	leaders.	Your	unit	commissioner	or		
unit-serving	executive	can	give	you	information	about	training	sessions.


 7. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible.	
It	is	attractive,	comfortable,	and	suitable	for	all	Cub	Scout	meetings	and	activities.	
Wearing	the	uniform	properly	is	important	in	setting	a	good	example	for	the	
boys.	Your	unit	commissioner	or	unit-serving	executive	can	tell	you	where	to	
obtain	the	uniform	and	insignia.


 8. If you are pack committee chair, get to know the chartered organization 
representative, and keep this key person informed about the needs of the pack.


 9. If you are pack committee chair, get acquainted with your unit commissioner.	
The	commissioner	is	a	friend	to	your	pack	and	will	be	glad	to	answer	questions	
and	help	in	other	ways.


 10. If you are pack committee chair, get to know your unit-serving executive.	This	
professional	Scouter	is	employed	by	your	council	to	serve	all	Scouting	units	in	
your	district,	and	will	do	everything	possible	to	help	you	be	successful.


 11. If you are pack committee chair, begin to develop a close working relationship 
with the Cubmaster.	The	two	of	you	will	be	working	as	a	team	to	make	the	pack	
program	successful.


Don’t hesitate to ask for help.	There	are	many	people	who	want	to	help	you	provide	
the	finest	possible	Cub	Scout	experience	for	the	boys	in	your	pack.


By	the	time	you	have	completed	these	steps,	you	will	be	well	on	your	way	to	becoming	
a	successful	pack	leader.


The Pack Committee
You	were	selected	as	a	member	of	the	pack	committee	because	of	your	interest	in	
helping	boys.	Regardless	of	the	size	of	your	pack	committee,	certain	jobs	must	be	
performed	if	Cub	Scouts	are	to	receive	the	type	of	fun-filled	and	meaningful	program	
to	which	they	are	entitled.	By	making	the	commitment	to	serve	as	a	leader,	you	share	
the	following	responsibilities	with	other	members	of	the	pack	committee:


•	 Recruit	the	best	person	available	for	Cubmaster	and	one	or	more	assistant	Cubmasters.


•	 Provide	adequate	and	safe	facilities	for	pack	meetings.







•	 See	that	a	year-round	pack	program	is	conducted	according	to	the	policies	of	the	
Boy	Scouts	of	America.


•	 See	that	the	pack	program,	leaders,	and	Cub	Scouts	reflect	positively	the	interests	
and	objectives	of	the	chartered	organization	and	the	Boy	Scouts	of	America.


•	 Encourage	all	leaders	and	boys	to	have	and	properly	use	the	uniforms,	badges,		
and	insignia.


•	 Establish	a	good	relationship	with	neighborhood	Boy	Scout	troops.	Try	to	graduate	
every	Webelos	Scout	into	a	troop.


•	 Assist	with	the	pack	charter	renewal,	reregistering	at	least	50	percent	of	present	
members	each	year.


•	 Establish	a	sound	financial	program	with	a	pack	budget	plan	and	adequate		
financial	records.


•	 Stimulate	the	interest	of	families	through	proper	programming.


•	 Work	with	the	Cubmaster	to	make	the	pack	program	effective	so	that	each	boy	
advances	the	rank	for	his	age.	See	that	proper	recognition	is	given	promptly.


•	 Maintain	an	inventory	of	pack	equipment.


•	 Work	with	the	Cubmaster	to	conduct	periodic	training	for	families,	including	an	
annual	pack	adults’	meeting.


•	 Recognize	pack	leaders	periodically	to	show	them	that	their	efforts	are	appreciated.


•	 Maintain	through	the	chartered	organization	representative	and	unit	commissioner	
a	close	liaison	with	the	district	committee	and	its	resources	to	help	the	organization	
and	the	pack.


•	 Conduct	an	annual	survey	of	boys	for	systematic	recruiting	of	new	boys	from	
within	the	chartered	organization.


Your	unit	commissioner	will	be	glad	to	explain	any	of	these	responsibilities	that	you	do	
not	understand.


What Do You Invest in Cub Scouting?
•	 One	evening	each	month	for	the	pack	meeting


•	 One	evening	each	month	for	the	pack	leaders’	planning	meeting


•	 One	evening	each	month	for	the	Cub	Scout	leader’s	roundtable


•	 Time	spent	in	Cub	Scout	leader	basic	training	sessions


•	 Cost	of	the	Cub	Scout	leader	uniform


•	The	registration	fee


This	adds	up	to	a	small	investment,	compared	to	the	dividends	you	will	receive.	And	of	
course,	the	more	you	invest,	the	more	you	can	expect	to	receive	in	return.







What Do You Receive in Return?
•	 An	evening	each	month	of	fun	and	fellowship	with	
pack	families,	sharing	their	pride	in	their	sons’	
accomplishments


•	The	privilege	of	helping	to	enrich	and	strengthen	
families


•	 A	chance	to	help	boys	learn	good	citizenship	
and	help	shape	them	into	men	with	strength	of	
character	who	are	sensitive	to	the	needs	of	others


•	The	opportunity	to	help	make	a	difference	in	the	
lives	of	boys,	as	they	grow	strong	in	mind	and	body


•	 A	code	to	live	by	that	will	set	a	worthwhile	example	
for	both	boys	and	adults


•	 The	satisfaction	of	being	a	member	of	a	worldwide	
movement,	and	pride	in	being	publicly	identified	as	
a	part	of	this	organization	by	wearing	the	uniform,	
which	is	a	visible	means	of	showing	that	you	believe	
in	and	stand	up	for	its	ideals	and	objectives.


You	will	discover	many	other	dividends	that	will	
enrich	your	life	as	you	dedicate	your	time,	talent,	and	
enthusiasm	to	Cub	Scouting.


510-240
2009 Printing








BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA DATE _____________________ Received in council service center __________________
(Date)


UNIT MONEY-EARNING APPLICATION
Applications are not required for council-coordinated money-
earning projects such as popcorn sales or Scout show ticket 
sales.


Please submit this application to your council service center at 
least two weeks in advance of the proposed date of your money-
earning project. Read the 10 guides on the other side of this form. 
They will help you in answering the questions below.


■ Pack


■ Troop
 No. __________ Chartered Organization  __________________________________________________________________________


■ Team


■ Crew


Community  ________________________________________________  District  ____________________________________________________


Submits the following plans for its money-earning project and requests permission to carry them out.


What is your unit’s money-earning plan?  ____________________________________________________________________________________


About how much does your unit expect to earn from this project? _______________ How will this money be used? ________________


Does your chartered organization give full approval for this plan?  ______________________________________________________________


What are the proposed dates?  _____________________________________________________________________________________________


Are tickets or a product to be sold? Please specify.  __________________________________________________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Will your members be in uniform while carrying out this project? (See items 3–6 on other side.)  ___________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Have you checked with neighboring units to avoid any overlapping of territory while working?  ____________________________________


Is your product or service in direct conflict with that offered by local merchants?  ________________________________________________


Are any contracts to be signed? ________ If so, by whom?  ____________________________________________________________________


Give details.  _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Is your unit on the budget plan? _______________________________ How much are the dues? ______________________________


How much does your unit have in its treasury?  ______________________________________________________________________________


Signed  ____________________________________________________  Signed  ___________________________________________________


 (Chartered Organization Representative) (Unit Leader)


Signed  ____________________________________________________   __________________________________________________________


 (Chairman, Unit Committee) (Address of Chairman)


FOR USE OF DISTRICT OR COUNCIL FINANCE COMMITTEE: Telephone  ________________________________________________


Approved by  ______________________________________________  Date  _____________________________________________________


Approved subject to the following conditions  ________________________________________________________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


34427 2007 Boy Scouts of America


(Local council stamp)







7 3 0 1 7 6 3 0 1 1 4 3


#34427


GUIDES TO UNIT MONEY-EARNING PROJECTS
A unit’s money-earning methods should reflect Scouting’s basic values. Whenever your unit is planning a money-earning 
project, this checklist can serve as your guide. If your answer is “Yes” to all the questions that follow, it is likely the project 
conforms to Scouting’s standards and will be approved.


1. Do you really need a fund-raising project?


There should be a real need for raising money 
based on your unit’s program. Units should not 
engage in money-earning projects merely because 
someone has offered an attractive plan. Remember 
that individual youth members are expected to earn 
their own way. The need should be beyond normal 
budget items covered by dues.


2. If any contracts are to be signed, will they be 
signed by an individual, without reference to the 
Boy Scouts of America and without binding the 
local council, the Boy Scouts of America, or the 
chartered organization? 


Before any person in your unit signs a contract, 
he must make sure the venture is legitimate and 
worthy. If a contract is signed, he is personally 
responsible. He may not sign on behalf of the local 
council or the Boy Scouts of America, nor may he 
bind the chartered organization without its written 
authorization. If you are not sure, check with your 
district executive for help.


3. Will your fund-raiser prevent promoters from 
trading on the name and goodwill of the Boy 
Scouts of America? 


Because of Scouting’s good reputation, customers 
rarely question the quality or price of a product.  
The nationwide network of Scouting units must not 
become a beehive of commercial interest.


4. Will the fund-raising activity uphold the good 
name of the BSA? Does it avoid games of chance, 
gambling, etc.?


Selling raffle tickets or other games of chance is a 
direct violation of the BSA Rules and Regulations, 
which forbid gambling.  The product must not 
detract from the ideals and principles of the BSA.


5. If a commercial product is to be sold, will it be   
sold on its own merits and without reference to 
the needs of Scouting?


All commercial products must sell on their own 
merits, not the benefit received by the Boy Scouts.  
The principle of value received is critical in choosing 
what to sell.


6. If a commercial product is to be sold, will the 
fund-raising activity comply with BSA policy on 
wearing the uniform?


The official uniform is intended to be worn primarily 
for use in connection with Scouting activities. 
However, council executive boards may approve 
use of the uniform for any fund-raising activity. 
Typically, council popcorn sales or Scout show 
ticket sales are approved uniform fund-raisers.


7. Will the fund-raising project avoid soliciting 
money or gifts?


The BSA Rules and Regulations state, “Youth 
members shall not be permitted to serve as 
solicitors of money for their chartered organizations, 
for the local council, or in support of other 
organizations. Adult and youth members shall not 
be permitted to serve as solicitors of money in 
support of personal or unit participation in local, 
national, or international events.”


For example: Boy Scouts/Cub Scouts and leaders 
should not identify themselves as Boy Scouts/Cub 
Scouts or as a troop/pack participate in The Salvation 
Army’s Christmas Bell Ringing program. This would 
be raising money for another organization. At no 
time are units permitted to solicit contributions 
for unit programs.


8. Does the fund-raising activity avoid competition 
with other units, your chartered organization, 
your local council, and the United Way?


Check with your chartered organization representa-
tive and your district executive to make certain that 
your chartered organization and the council agree 
on the dates and type of fund-raiser.


The local council is responsible for upholding the Charter and By-laws and the 
Rules and Regulations of the BSA. To ensure compliance, all unit fund-raisers 
MUST OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL from the local council NO LESS THAN 14 
DAYS before the fund-raising activity.







COUNCIL COPY


DISTRICT COPY


UNIT COPY








Date Budget Completed: July 15 UNIT DETAIL: Date Budget Completed:


Pack #: 1234 Cubmaster: Pack #:
Assistant Cubmaster:


District: Susquehanna Committee Chairperson: District:
Treasurer:


Projected # of Cub Scouts: 50 Popcorn Chairperson: Projected # of Cub Scouts:
Projected # of registered adults: 10 Projected # of registered adults:


Sample Pack Budget Actual Budget
Annual No. of Total Annual No. of Total


Cost Per Scouts/ Unit Cost Per Cub Scouts/ Unit
Scout/Unit Adults Cost PROGRAM EXPENSES: Person Adults Cost


10.00$                 60 600.00$         Registration Fees (1) Total youth + adults @ $10 ea. 10.00$        


20.00$                 1 20.00$           Unit Charter Fee (2) Yearly flat fee @ $20 20.00$       


12.00$                 50 600.00$         Boys' Life (3) Total subscriptions @ $12 ea. 12.00$        


1.00$                   60 60.00$           Accident Insurance Fees (4) Total youth + adults @ $_____ ea.


Advancement (5) Ideally, 100% of youth included in
activity pins, belt loops, ranks,


12.00$                 50 600.00$         etc. (example @ $12 ea.)
Recognition (5)


10.00$                 50 500.00$         Handbooks/Neckerchiefs (1) for each youth @ $10 ea.


10.00$                 6 60.00$           Pack Leaders Thank-you's, veteran awards, etc.


10.00$                 50 500.00$         Special Events (6)
8.00$                   50 400.00$         
6.00$                   10 60.00$           
5.00$                   50 250.00$         


Special Activities (6)
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip A
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip B
10.00$                 50 500.00$         Field Trip C


Camp (7)
75.00$                 x 40 = 3,000.00$      Cub Scout Day Camp


130.00$               x 30 = 3,900.00$      Cub Scout Resident Camp
145.00$               x 15 = 2,175.00$      Webelos Resident Camp
40.00$                 x 30 = 1,200.00$      Family Camping
60.00$                 x 20 = 1,200.00$      Leader's Fees


Program Materials (8) Ceremony supplies, bridge cross-
20.00$                 50 1,000.00$       ings, camping items, etc.


5.00$                   5 25.00$           Leader Basic Training (9) _____ leaders @ $_____ ea.


30.00$                 x 20 = 600.00$         Full Uniforms (10) Every Cub Scout in full uniform
1.00$                   x 50 = 50.00$           Reserve Fund (11) Registration scholarships
0.50$                   x 50 = 25.00$           Other Expenses (12) Contingency gunds


18,325.00$    A) TOTAL UNIT BUDGETED PROGRAM EXPENSES 20.00$       


INCOME:
40.00$                 50 2,000.00$      Annual Dues (monthly amount x 10 or 12 months)


500.00$               1 500.00$         Surplus From Prior Year (beginning fund balance)
  $ $ Other Income Source (parent payments, etc.)


2,500.00$      B) INCOME SUBTOTAL


15,825.00$    C) TOTAL FUNDRAISING NEED (A minus B)


45,214$               x 35% = 15,825$         POPCORN SALE PACK BUDGET  (Should equal C above.)
Gross Sales Commission Need (Check with your local council for commission percentage and bonuses) Need  / Commission = Pack Goal


45,214$                / 50 Cub Scouts = 904$              POPCORN SALES GOAL PER CUB SCOUT  / =
Pack Goal  / # Cub Scouts =


(Fill-In Example) 2008–2009 PACK OPERATING BUDGET


Blue and gold banquet
Pinewood derby
Graduation


Cub Scout Goal 


*  Many packs include all or a portion of the Cub Scout Resident Camp or Day Camp fee in the annual budget.  This helps ensure that all Cub Scouts have the opportunity to attend. 
Pack budgeting should include payments on time and qualifying for any discounts offered for early and/or on-time payments.


Location


(+/- 35% includes qualifying for all bonus dollars)








Pack MeetiNg PlaNNiNg Sheet
 Pack Meeting Date: _____________________________________________________________________


Theme ________________________  Webelos Activity Badges: __________________


Before the Meeting Person in charge


Room arrangement  _______________________________________


Materials and equipment  _______________________________________


gathering


Greeters  _______________________________________


Den exhibits  _______________________________________


Preopening activity  _______________________________________


opening


Opening ceremony/prayer  _______________________________________


Song  _______________________________________


Welcome and introductions  _______________________________________


Program


Audience participation stunt  _______________________________________


Den stunts and skits  _______________________________________


Webelos den demonstrations  _______________________________________


Game  _______________________________________


recognition


Boy recognition  _______________________________________


Leader recognition  _______________________________________


Attendance award  _______________________________________


closing


Announcements  _______________________________________


Closing ceremony  _______________________________________


after the Meeting


Refreshments  _______________________________________


Cleanup  _______________________________________








 


388


september
september Cooperation


core Value of the Month
cooperation: Being helpful and working together with others toward a common goal.


  Cooperation is a key element in teamwork. Cub Scouts will gain a better understanding 
of the importance of supporting each other as they play games and learn new skills. 


Pack Planning Meeting
The pack leaders and parents meet a week or two before the pack meeting to finalize plans for 
 September and develop plans for the October pack meeting.


Pack committee
 Check with all den leaders to make certain that advancement reports are completed and turned 


in. Many Bobcat badges are earned in September; it’s important that they are presented in a fun 
and meaningful way.


 Review the pack adults’ meeting information from the Cub Scout Leader Book, No. 33221. 
Share preparation assignments among leaders.


 Verify that the application for the National Summertime Pack Award has been completed and 
filed with your local council service center in a timely manner so the award can be presented this 
month to the boys who have earned it and the streamer added to the pack flag.


 Make certain that all parts of the meeting are assigned to dens or leaders. Be sure to assign 
setup, greeting, refreshments, and cleanup as well. Encourage family involvement.


 Recruit a newsletter editor. Provide information to pack families through the newsletter and yearly 
planning calendar, and refer to that information during announcements at the pack meetings.


Membership chair/committee With cubmaster
 Be sure key leadership positions are filled. Be prepared to present information at the pack 


 meeting to encourage new members to take on meaningful roles.
 Have plenty of membership applications available at this month’s meeting to follow up on your 


recruiting event.
 Have copies of the Family Talent Survey Sheet available at the pack meeting for all pack adults 


to complete. Be sure to use this valuable resource throughout the coming year.
 Assign a committee to coordinate plans for the pack adults’ meeting, and activities for all boys 


and siblings to enjoy.
 Have boys invite their friends and families who were unable to attend your fall recruiting event.


cubmaster corner
 Timing is everything! Start all pack meetings on time. When meetings start late, people will 


just keep arriving later and later. When a meeting starts on time, people will want to arrive on 
time. Gathering activities give families something to do before the meeting starts and should end 
when your meeting begins.


 Webelos Scouts need interaction with local Boy Scout troops. See that Webelos den  leaders 
maintain contact with one or more nearby troops so that Webelos Scouts may visit troop 
 meetings and activities, and make an informed selection of which troop to join.


Pack Trainer
 Be sure all records for returning leaders are up to date. If there is a change of position, remind 


leaders to be trained in their new positions.
 Be prepared with the dates of Cub Scout Leader Position-Specific Training and other training courses 


in your district. Emphasize that training is an ongoing and essential part of Cub Scout leadership.
 Encourage leaders to take advantage of available training opportunities online; remind them to 


register for MyScouting at www.scouting.org.
 Conduct the monthly Unit Leadership Enhancement that best meets the current needs of your 


pack. See the Cub Scout Leader Book for detailed outlines. The topic “Leadership Training” 
may be beneficial this month. Use this opportunity to explain the continuum of training. Select a 
topic for next month’s discussion.


core Value:
cooperation


september







 


389


september
Program Highlights
Academics and sports Program
The Cub Scout Academics and Sports program is a great way to help fulfill the aims of Scouting—
building character, developing citizenship, and encouraging mental and physical fitness. This month 
you might feature these belt loops and pins.


 Weather: Cub Scouts can set up a simple weather station, learn about water cycles, and watch the 
weather forecast on a local television station as they earn the Weather belt loop and pin.


 soccer: Soccer is a great fall activity for Cub Scouts. As they play the game, they will learn the 
importance of teamwork. Cub Scouts can apply their skills to earn the Soccer belt loop and pin.


See the Cub Scout Academics and Sports Program Guide, No. 34299, for more information.


outing in scouting
Make sure to plan your outings around advancement. At least two weeks before any field trip, 
a local tour permit should be filed with the council service center. A permission slip (informed 
consent agreement) should also be secured from the parent or guardian of each Cub Scout.


Resources Highlight: Web site:  www. scouting.org
Adult leaders, families, and Cub Scouts will find valuable information at the Boy Scouts of 
America’s national Web site. Families will learn about their roles in Cub Scouting, find answers to 
frequently asked questions, and learn the correct placement of insignia. Leaders can obtain program 
support and information, including downloadable forms.


september







 


390


september


The september Pack Meeting Cooperation


BeFoRe THe MeeTiNG
Plan to set up with plenty of time to spare so you can start the meeting on time. Include in your setup 
tables for den displays. Display Cub Scout handbooks and pack newsletters for any new parents or 
prospective Cub Scout families to review. Assign a den or several pack leaders to serve as greeters. 
Pay special attention to new members and visitors to make them feel comfortable and welcome.


GATHeRiNG
Greeters are at the door to welcome Cub Scouts, guests, and families to the pack meeting. Provide 
name tags, and be sure to present each family with an application form and information, such as 
your pack newsletter and calendar of pack events for the year. Encourage all adult pack members to 
complete the Family Talent Survey Sheet. Direct families to the exhibit area.


oPeNiNG
Opening Ceremony
Have a pre-assigned den present the colors and lead the Pledge of Allegiance, or select a different 
ceremony from Cub Scout Ceremonies for Dens and Packs, No. 33212.


Prayer (Cub Scout or Leader)
“We thank you for Cub Scouting and all it means to us. We thank you for the fun and the things 
we learn and the opportunities for helping other people. Teach us to work together in cooperation, 
understanding, and love.”


Welcome and Introductions
The Cubmaster welcomes everyone to the September pack meeting. Introduce the current pack 
leaders with a brief explanation of their roles. Explain the plans for the Cub Scout activities and the 
pack adults’ meeting.


PRoGRAM
Adults’ Meeting


 Briefly review family responsibilities.
 Review the pack plans for the year (special activities and projects decided on at the annual pack 


planning conference).
 Discuss leadership needs. Discuss plans for the selection of den and pack leaders as needed.
 Make adults aware of any leadership needed for special pack activities for the year, such as blue 


and gold chair, popcorn chair, FOS chair, etc.
 The chartered organization representative briefly discusses how the chartered organization will 


help the pack.
 Discuss other pack needs and ways that families can help (budget, dues, uniforms, equipment, etc.).
 Hold a question-and-answer session.


Cub Scout Activities
During the pack adults’ meeting, engage the Cub Scouts, siblings, and visiting children with some 
fun activities.


Cooperative Games. Use games that require teamwork and cooperation. Use the games below, or for 
more ideas, the Cub Scout Leader How-To Book, No. 33832, has a whole section on cooperative games.


Game: Helping Partners


Needed: Inflated balloons.


Divide players into pairs and have each pair link arms. Give each team an inflated balloon. On 
signal, they start batting the balloon towards the finish line. They may not unlink arms during 
the race. If the balloon falls to the ground, they must stop and pick it up before going on.


Game: The Snail


Needed: Large playing area, large group of players, 50 to 100 feet of clothesline.
The group stands in a line, each person holding the rope in one hand. Starting at one end, 
the group makes a large coil, like the shell of a snail. After the coiling is complete, the group 
moves slowly together 15 or 20 feet in one direction and then uncoils.







 


391


september
Joint Meeting
The children return and join the group. Spend the remaining time with regular pack meeting activities.


RecoGNiTioN
Youth who have earned recognition since your last pack meeting need to be recognized.


Recognize boys who have earned the National Summertime Pack Activity Award by presenting them 
with pins. Present participation ribbons to the qualifying dens and attach the streamer to the pack flag.


New Cub Scouts may have earned their Bobcat badge. Use the ceremony below or you may choose 
an alternative from Cub Scout Ceremonies for Dens and Packs.


Ceremony: Cub Scout and Parent’s Promise
Personnel: Cubmaster, Bobcat candidates, parents.


Equipment: Bobcat badges and safety pins. The parents’ promise typed on a small card for the 
Cubmaster.


The candidates line up, facing the audience, their parents standing behind them. The Cubmaster 
leads the ceremony in a loud voice so that all the boys can hear him. Before starting, he asks the 
Cub Scouts to speak loudly.


The boys give the Cub Scout sign and recite together the Cub Scout Promise and Law of the Pack. 
Then all the Bobcat parents give the Cub Scout sign and repeat the following, one line at a time, 
after the Cubmaster:


 As a parent of a Cub Scout,
 I will do my best
 To help my boy
 Live up to the Cub Scout Promise
 And obey the Law of the Pack.
 I will work with my boy
 On his achievements and projects.
 I will attend the pack meetings
 And help as needed
 To make the pack go.


The Cubmaster gives each boy the Cub Scout handshake and hands the Bobcat badges to the 
parents. The parents pin the badges on their sons’ shirts.


The boys and their parents are dismissed. The Cubmaster asks the continuing boys and their parents 
in the audience to stand. He asks the boys to recite together the Cub Scout Promise. He then asks 
their parents to repeat the following:


 We will continue
 To do our best
 To help our boys
 Along the advancement trail
 And share with them the work and fun of Cub Scouting.


cLosiNG
Announcements
A pack newsletter creates good lines of communication between pack leaders and families. 
 Distribute copies of the newsletter so all pack members have the yearly calendar of activities. 
Highlight any money-earning projects and Good Turn opportunities. Highlight the date, time, and 
location of next month’s pack meeting.







 


392


september
Cubmaster’s Minute
Cooperation
Great things can happen when people cooperate for a common goal. You cooperate with your 
parents. You cooperate with your den leader. You cooperate with your teachers. The result can be a 
fun time, learning new things and experiencing new adventures. Thank you, Cub Scouts, for your 
cooperation tonight and always. We had a great time.


Closing Ceremony
Ask boys and parents who want to join the pack but haven’t registered to stay after the meeting. 
Remind parents to turn in their Family Talent Survey Sheets.


Have the designated den retire the colors, or use a ceremony from Cub Scout Ceremonies for Dens 
and Packs.


AFTeR THe MeeTiNG
 Refreshments
 Cleanup








So  
You’re 
a New 
Cubmaster


I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now	that	you	are	registered	as	a	Cubmaster,	you	will	receive	Scouting 
magazine,	which	includes	Cub Scout Program Helps and other 
information to assist you as a leader. Ask your unit commissioner to 
furnish you a copy of the current Cub Scout Program Helps to use until 
your	subscription	begins.	These	steps	will	get	you	started:


 1. Complete Fast Start training for Cubmasters. Your pack 
leadership	(pack	trainer)	will	facilitate	this	video-based	training,	
or you can complete the training online at www.scouting.org. 
Youth Protection training for all Scouting volunteers is available 
through your local council Web site.


 2. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book.	(To	start	right	away,	
you may need to borrow a copy briefly; until you can get your 
own.)	This	book	describes	your	role	as	Cubmaster	and	will	give	
more information on the following steps.







 3. Get acquainted with the other leaders in your pack. You will need their 
assistance in carrying out a successful pack program. You will be working closely 
with the pack committee chairperson and pack trainer.


 4. Get acquainted with your unit commissioner.	The	commissioner	is	a	friend	to	
your pack and will be glad to answer questions and help in other ways to make 
your pack program successful. (See the Cub Scout Leader Book.)


 5. Get acquainted with your unit-serving executive.	This	professional	Scouter	is	
employed	by	the	council	to	serve	all	Scouting	units	in	your	district,	and	will	do	
everything possible to help you be successful.


 6. With the help of the pack committee, pack trainer, and Cub Scout Program 
Helps, plan your first pack meeting. Include the plans made at the last pack 
annual	planning	conference.	Your	key	to	success	is	“KISMIF”	(Keep	It	Simple,	
Make It Fun.”


 7. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leaders’ roundtable. You will receive 
many	good	program	ideas	based	on	the	monthly	theme,	and	become	acquainted	
with	Cubmasters	from	other	packs,	who	will	share	ideas	and	experiences	with	
you.	Your	unit	commissioner	or	unit-serving	executive	can	tell	you	when	and	
where the roundtable meets.


 8. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training as soon as possible.	There	are	two	
components	to	this	training—	Cubmaster	Leader	Specific	Training,	a	specialized	
session	to	help	you	successfully	plan	a	successful	pack	program,	and	This	Is	
Scouting,	which	is	attended	by	leaders	in	all	program	areas.	These	will	give	you	
the	foundation	you	need	to	become	an	effective	and	successful	leader.	Every	boy	
deserves	trained	and	qualified	leaders.	Your	unit	commissioner	or	unit-serving	
executive	can	give	you	information	about	training	sessions.


 9. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible. 
It	is	attractive,	comfortable,	and	suitable	for	all	Cub	Scout	meetings	and	activities.	
Wearing	the	uniform	is	important	in	setting	a	good	example	for	the	boys.	Your	
unit	commissioner	or	unit-serving	executive	can	tell	you	where	to	obtain	the	
uniform and insignia.


 10. As soon as possible, establish a working relationship with a neighborhood Boy 
Scout troop and Scoutmaster. You will need their help in obtaining den chiefs 
(older	Boy	Scouts	or	Venturers),	and	graduating	Webelos	Scouts	into	Boy	Scouts.


Don’t hesitate to ask for help.	There	are	many	people	who	want	to	help	you	provide	
the	finest	possible	Cub	Scout	experience	for	the	boys	in	your	pack.


By the time you have completed these steps you will be well on your way to becoming a 
successful Cubmaster.


You, the Cubmaster
You were selected as Cubmaster and approved by the pack committee because of 
your	interest	in	helping	boys.	It	is	your	pack	responsibility	to	coordinate	the	efforts	
of all the leaders in the pack so that the Cub Scout program works the way it should. 
By	making	the	commitment	to	serve	as	Cubmaster,	you	have	accepted	the	following	
responsibilities.


•	 Conduct	the	pack	program	according	to	the	policies	of	the	Boy	Scouts	of	America.


•	 Plan	and	carry	out	the	Cub	Scout	program	in	the	pack.	This	includes	conducting	
regular monthly pack meetings.







•	 Know	about	the	Cub	Scouting	literature,	including	Cub Scout Program Helps, the 
Webelos Leader Guide, the Cub Scout Leader Book, Boys’ Life, and Scouting magazine.


•	 See	that	the	pack	program,	leaders,	and	Cub	Scouts	reflect	positively	the	interest	
and objectives of the chartered organization and the Boy Scouts of America.


•	 Work	with	the	pack	committee	on	program	ideas,	selecting	adult	leaders,	and	
establishing a pack budget plan.


•	 Guide	and	support	den	leaders.	See	that	they	receive	the	required	training	for	 
their positions.


•	 Help	organize	a	Webelos	den	(or	dens)	and	encourage	graduation	into	a	Boy	Scout	troop.


•	 Maintain	a	good	relationship	with	families;	seek	their	support	and	include	them	 
in activities.


•	 See	that	Tiger	Cubs,	Cub	Scouts,	and	Webelos	Scouts	receive	a	quality,	year-round	
program	that	is	filled	with	fun	and	activities	and	qualifies	the	dens	and	pack	for	the	
National Summertime Pack Award.


•	 Guide	Cub	Scouts	in	goodwill	and	conservation	projects.


•	 See	that	the	responsibilities	specified	for	the	assistant	Cubmaster	are	carried	out.


•	 Assist	the	pack	committee	chairperson	in	conducting	the	annual	program	planning	
conference and monthly pack leader’s meeting.


•	 Take	part	in	charter	review	and	the	annual	charter	presentation	ceremony.


Your	unit	commissioner	will	be	glad	to	explain	any	of	these	responsibilities	that	you	do	
not understand.


The Pack Meeting
Pack	meetings	are	usually	held	in	a	location	provided	by	the	chartered	organization,	
once	a	month,	in	the	evening.	The	meeting	day	and	time	are	set	by	the	pack	committee	
and should be the same each month to prevent confusion. Pack meetings are led by the 
Cubmaster	and	last	approximately	an	hour	and	a	quarter.	All	dens	and	their	families	
attend the pack meeting.


The	pack	meeting	program	includes	the	following:


 1. The Gathering Period.	Families	are	welcomed	as	they	arrive.	They	view	den	
displays and participate in a pre-opening activity such as a game or stunt.


 2. Main Part of the Meeting. Dens sit together. One den usually leads the opening 
ceremony,	which	can	be	a	pledge	to	the	flag,	a	song,	or	some	other	activity	in	
which	everyone	takes	part.	There	are	games,	den	stunts	or	skits,	demonstrations,	
recognition	ceremonies,	and	songs,	with	families	participating.


 3. Closing. Make announcements and reminders about upcoming pack activities 
and	business,	and	hold	a	closing	ceremony	that	is	short	and	inspirational.


The	Cubmaster	ensures	that	in	each	month	of	the	year	there	is	a	pack	meeting	(or	
special pack activity) that is enjoyed by Cub Scouting families and provides an 
opportunity for recognition for the boys’ accomplishments.


Other	common	pack	activities	include	a	blue	and	gold	banquet	in	February,	Pinewood	
Derby	and	Space	Derby,	physical	fitness	competitions,	and	bicycle	safety	programs.	
Your unit commissioner can give you information about these activities.







What Do You Invest in  
Cub Scouting?
•	 One evening each month for the pack meeting


•	 One evening each month for the pack leaders’ 
planning meeting


•	 One evening each month for Cub Scout leader’s 
roundtable


•	 Time	spent	in	Cub	Scout	leader	basic	training


•	 Cost	of	the	Cub	Scout	leader	uniform


•	The	registration	fee


This	adds	up	to	a	small	investment,	compared	to	the	
dividends	you	will	receive.	And	of	course,	the	more	you	
invest,	the	more	you	can	expect	to	receive	in	return.


What Do You Receive in Return?
•	 An	evening	each	month	of	fun	and	fellowship	 
with	pack	families,	sharing	their	pride	in	their	
sons’ accomplishments


•	The	privilege	of	helping	to	enrich	and	 
strengthen families


•	 An	opportunity	to	share	your	ideas	and	
experiences	with	other	adults	and	put	
your talents into action at pack meetings


•	 A	growing	admiration	for	boys,	and	their	
growing respect for you as their leader 
and friend


•	 A	chance	to	help	boys	learn	good	
citizenship and help shape them into 
men with strength of character who are 
sensitive to the needs of others


•	The	opportunity	to	make	a	difference	in	
the lives of boys as they grow strong in 
mind and body


•	 A	code	to	live	by	that	will	set	a	worthwhile	example	
for boys and adults as you do your duty to God and 
our country


•	The	satisfaction	of	being	a	member	of	a	worldwide	
movement,	and	pride	in	being	publicly	identified	as	
a	part	of	this	organization	by	wearing	the	uniform,	
which is a visible means of showing that you believe 
in and stand for its ideals and objectives


You will discover many other dividends that will 
enrich	your	life	as	you	dedicate	your	time,	talent,	and	
enthusiasm to Cub Scouting.


All leaders bring to Cub Scouting their own talents and 
skills,	their	own	backgrounds	and	interests.	Your	key	to	
becoming	an	effective	leader	is	to	use	your	own	abilities	
and	interests,	along	with	what	you	learn	about	Cub	
Scouting to plan and conduct the best possible program 
for the boys. What happens in the life of each boy during 
the	formative	years	will	determine	to	a	great	extent	
the kind of man he will become. What a tremendous 
opportunity	and	challenge	for	you,	the	Cubmaster!


510-237
2009 Printing








APPLICATION
 Date  __________________________


Cub Scout Pack No. _________________ of Chartered Organization ______________________________________________
 name


has qualified for this award by conducting a pack activity in the summer months of _______________.
 year


 JUNE JULY AUGUST


Type of pack activity __________ __________ __________


Number of dens participating __________ __________ __________


Number of dens qualifying (50 percent of the den’s
 Cub Scouts participating) __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Tiger Cubs participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Wolf Cub Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Bear Cub Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Webelos Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of parents/family members participating __________ __________ __________


Please send us the following National Summertime Pack Award items:


   One Pack Award Certificate, No. 33731A ________ Den participation ribbons, No. 17806


   One Pack Award Streamer, No. 17808 ________ Cub Scout Summertime Award pins, No. 00464


 Cubmaster ___________________________________________
Date needed __________________________________


 For Pack Committee ____________________________________
(Please print.)
Send to _________________________________________  _______________________________________________
 Name Street, City, State, Zip 


TO ASSURE PROMPT RECOGNITION, SUBMIT APPLICATION TO LOCAL COUNCIL SERVICE CENTER AS 
SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER YOUR AUGUST ACTIVITY.


National Summertime
Pack Award


National Summertime Pack 
Award certificate, No. 33731A


National Summertime Pack 
Award streamer for pack flag, 
No. 17808


Den participation ribbon for 
dens with 50 percent or more of 
their boys at three summertime 
activities, No. 17806


National Summertime Award 
pin for boys who attend all three 
summertime pack activities,  
No. 00464


 







SUMMERTIME ACTIVITIES TRACKING SHEET


JUNE
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ 


Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present _____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________


JULY 
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ 


Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present _____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________


AUGUST
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ Number of dens that qualified for den participation ribbon ____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________ 


2009 Printing


7
 


730176 33748


33748A





		Pack Award: 

		undefined: 

		Date: 

		undefined_2: 

		JUNE 1: 

		JUNE 2: 

		JULY 1: 

		JULY 2: 

		AUGUST 1: 

		AUGUST 2: 

		1: 

		2: 

		3: 

		4: 

		5: 

		6: 

		1_2: 

		2_2: 

		3_2: 

		4_2: 

		5_2: 

		6_2: 

		1_3: 

		2_3: 

		3_3: 

		4_3: 

		5_3: 

		6_3: 

		Please send us the following National Summertime Pack Award items: 

		undefined_3: 

		Date needed: 

		Cub Scout Summertime Award pins, No 00464: 

		undefined_4: 

		Please print: 

		For Pack Committee: 

		Leaders responsible: 

		Pack activity: 

		Location: 

		Date_2: 

		Time: 

		Number of dens that participated: 

		Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present: 

		Number of Tiger Cubs participating: 

		Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating: 

		Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating: 

		Number of Webelos Scouts participating: 

		Number of parentsfamily members participating: 

		COMMENTS: 

		Leaders responsible_2: 

		Pack activity_2: 

		Location_2: 

		Date_3: 

		Time_2: 

		Number of dens that participated_2: 

		Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present_2: 

		Number of Tiger Cubs participating_2: 

		Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating_2: 

		Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating_2: 

		Number of Webelos Scouts participating_2: 

		Number of parentsfamily members participating_2: 

		COMMENTS_2: 

		Leaders responsible_3: 

		Pack activity_3: 

		Location_3: 

		Date_4: 

		Time_3: 

		Number of dens that participated_3: 

		Number of dens that qualified for den participation ribbon: 

		Number of Tiger Cubs participating_3: 

		Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating_3: 

		Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating_3: 

		Number of Webelos Scouts participating_3: 

		undefined_8: 

		Number of parentsfamily members participating_3: 








BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA DATE _____________________ Received in council service center __________________
(Date)


UNIT MONEY-EARNING APPLICATION
Applications are not required for council-coordinated money-
earning projects such as popcorn sales or Scout show ticket 
sales.


Please submit this application to your council service center at 
least two weeks in advance of the proposed date of your money-
earning project. Read the 10 guides on the other side of this form. 
They will help you in answering the questions below.


■ Pack


■ Troop
 No. __________ Chartered Organization  __________________________________________________________________________


■ Team


■ Crew


Community  ________________________________________________  District  ____________________________________________________


Submits the following plans for its money-earning project and requests permission to carry them out.


What is your unit’s money-earning plan?  ____________________________________________________________________________________


About how much does your unit expect to earn from this project? _______________ How will this money be used? ________________


Does your chartered organization give full approval for this plan?  ______________________________________________________________


What are the proposed dates?  _____________________________________________________________________________________________


Are tickets or a product to be sold? Please specify.  __________________________________________________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Will your members be in uniform while carrying out this project? (See items 3–6 on other side.)  ___________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Have you checked with neighboring units to avoid any overlapping of territory while working?  ____________________________________


Is your product or service in direct conflict with that offered by local merchants?  ________________________________________________


Are any contracts to be signed? ________ If so, by whom?  ____________________________________________________________________


Give details.  _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Is your unit on the budget plan? _______________________________ How much are the dues? ______________________________


How much does your unit have in its treasury?  ______________________________________________________________________________


Signed  ____________________________________________________  Signed  ___________________________________________________


 (Chartered Organization Representative) (Unit Leader)


Signed  ____________________________________________________   __________________________________________________________


 (Chairman, Unit Committee) (Address of Chairman)


FOR USE OF DISTRICT OR COUNCIL FINANCE COMMITTEE: Telephone  ________________________________________________


Approved by  ______________________________________________  Date  _____________________________________________________


Approved subject to the following conditions  ________________________________________________________________________________


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


34427 2007 Boy Scouts of America


(Local council stamp)







7 3 0 1 7 6 3 0 1 1 4 3


#34427


GUIDES TO UNIT MONEY-EARNING PROJECTS
A unit’s money-earning methods should reflect Scouting’s basic values. Whenever your unit is planning a money-earning 
project, this checklist can serve as your guide. If your answer is “Yes” to all the questions that follow, it is likely the project 
conforms to Scouting’s standards and will be approved.


1. Do you really need a fund-raising project?


There should be a real need for raising money 
based on your unit’s program. Units should not 
engage in money-earning projects merely because 
someone has offered an attractive plan. Remember 
that individual youth members are expected to earn 
their own way. The need should be beyond normal 
budget items covered by dues.


2. If any contracts are to be signed, will they be 
signed by an individual, without reference to the 
Boy Scouts of America and without binding the 
local council, the Boy Scouts of America, or the 
chartered organization? 


Before any person in your unit signs a contract, 
he must make sure the venture is legitimate and 
worthy. If a contract is signed, he is personally 
responsible. He may not sign on behalf of the local 
council or the Boy Scouts of America, nor may he 
bind the chartered organization without its written 
authorization. If you are not sure, check with your 
district executive for help.


3. Will your fund-raiser prevent promoters from 
trading on the name and goodwill of the Boy 
Scouts of America? 


Because of Scouting’s good reputation, customers 
rarely question the quality or price of a product.  
The nationwide network of Scouting units must not 
become a beehive of commercial interest.


4. Will the fund-raising activity uphold the good 
name of the BSA? Does it avoid games of chance, 
gambling, etc.?


Selling raffle tickets or other games of chance is a 
direct violation of the BSA Rules and Regulations, 
which forbid gambling.  The product must not 
detract from the ideals and principles of the BSA.


5. If a commercial product is to be sold, will it be   
sold on its own merits and without reference to 
the needs of Scouting?


All commercial products must sell on their own 
merits, not the benefit received by the Boy Scouts.  
The principle of value received is critical in choosing 
what to sell.


6. If a commercial product is to be sold, will the 
fund-raising activity comply with BSA policy on 
wearing the uniform?


The official uniform is intended to be worn primarily 
for use in connection with Scouting activities. 
However, council executive boards may approve 
use of the uniform for any fund-raising activity. 
Typically, council popcorn sales or Scout show 
ticket sales are approved uniform fund-raisers.


7. Will the fund-raising project avoid soliciting 
money or gifts?


The BSA Rules and Regulations state, “Youth 
members shall not be permitted to serve as 
solicitors of money for their chartered organizations, 
for the local council, or in support of other 
organizations. Adult and youth members shall not 
be permitted to serve as solicitors of money in 
support of personal or unit participation in local, 
national, or international events.”


For example: Boy Scouts/Cub Scouts and leaders 
should not identify themselves as Boy Scouts/Cub 
Scouts or as a troop/pack participate in The Salvation 
Army’s Christmas Bell Ringing program. This would 
be raising money for another organization. At no 
time are units permitted to solicit contributions 
for unit programs.


8. Does the fund-raising activity avoid competition 
with other units, your chartered organization, 
your local council, and the United Way?


Check with your chartered organization representa-
tive and your district executive to make certain that 
your chartered organization and the council agree 
on the dates and type of fund-raiser.


The local council is responsible for upholding the Charter and By-laws and the 
Rules and Regulations of the BSA. To ensure compliance, all unit fund-raisers 
MUST OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL from the local council NO LESS THAN 14 
DAYS before the fund-raising activity.







COUNCIL COPY


DISTRICT COPY


UNIT COPY








4
0BOY SCOUTS    AMERICAOF


POW WOW 2013
POW WOW 2013


NEED







II


Cover Design:
Debby Martin


Copyright 2013
Great Salt Lake Council
Boy Scouts of America


Salt Lake City, Utah 84113


This book consists of contributors from a number of sources.
The Great Salt Lake Council is not responsible for any errors.


The Council does not endorse any products or services.
Reference to scouting materials are from the most recent editions, unless otherwise noted.


“Boys need lots of heroes like Lincoln and Washington.  But they also need to have 
some heroes close by.  They need to know some leaders of towering strength and 
basic integrity, personally. They need to meet them on the street, to hike and camp 
with them, to see them in close-to-home, everyday, down-to-earth situations; to 
feel close enough to them to ask questions and to talk things over.”


- Walter MacPeek


This is an interactive document. You may click on any of the 
class titles in the Table of Contents to go to the first page of 
that document. At the top of every page are links you can click 
to return to the first page of the Table of Contents and Index.


The Index is also interactive. If you find something you would 
like to look at in the index, move your mouse over the page 
number next to the item until you see a pointing hand, then 
click the page number to go to that page.


Interactive Document
Information







III


CUB SCOUT POW WOW 2013
GREAT SALT LAKE COUNCIL
BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA


POW WOW 2013
POW WOW 2013


NEED







IV


TABLE OF CONTENTS!
Administration  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �2


Activity And Event Planning �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  3
What Successful Committees Have In Common �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  7
Is It Safe Out There, Batman?  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  8
100 Super Ways to Say Thank You �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �10
Record Keeping and How to Keep it  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �15
Resources? What Resources?  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �19
Captain America First Aid �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �22


Crafts  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 28
Crafts For Any Budget   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �29
Holiday Crafts �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �37
Nature Crafts and Activities �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �58
Neckerchief Slides  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �64
Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying &  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �67
Super Balloon Tying Advanced  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �67
Woodcraft   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �71
Advanced Woodworking For Webelos  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �76


Leader Helps  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 82
Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �83
Cub Scouting with Core Value and Themes II  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �87
Cub Scouts Compute �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 103
Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own X-Men  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 110
Creating Ceremonies �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 113
Pack Meetings That Dazzle �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 116
Finding Success in the Webelos Program  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 123
Creating Meaningful Arrow Of Light Advancement Ceremonies   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 127


POW!
WOW!







V


TABLE OF CONTENTS!
Pizzazz   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  134


Super Fun Cooking   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 135
Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 148
Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 156
Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 159
Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 173
Super Fun Science Guy  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 176
Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 179
Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots,  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 181
Intermediate and Advanced Knot Tying �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 181


Program Activities  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  186
Beyond the Badge  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 187
Citizenship & Service Activities  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 195
Fun For the “Super Cub Family”  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 199
Super Fun With Derbies  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 202
Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 206
It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star Gazing!  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 212
Cub Scouts Go Geocaching  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 216


Leader Specific �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  220
   Den leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 221
   Webelos Leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 222
   Cubmaster Leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 225
   Committee Leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 226


Core Value & Webelos Midway  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  231
   Core Value Midway  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 232
   Webelos Midway  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 261


Resources   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  286


Sponsors Ad’s  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  316


Index   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  318







VI


This has been a wonderful experience; I have learned so much and met such great 
people this year. As we thought of what our theme should be I was reading a book that 
was given to me at Pow Wow last year. I came across this quote by Walter MacPeek, 
“Boys need lots of heroes like Lincoln and Washington.  But they also need to have 
some heroes close by.  They need to know some leaders of towering strength and basic 
integrity, personally. They need to meet them on the street, to hike and camp with them, 
to see them in close-to-home, everyday, down-to-earth situations; to feel close enough 
to them to ask questions and to talk things over.” That is why we are doing what we are 
doing here today by being trained to be a great Hero for our Cub Scouts.  They need us 
and want us to be there for them. 


I have had the greatest opportunity to work with some of the finest Heroes during this 
experience with Pow Wow.  They have really stepped up and come together in making 
this Pow Wow a great success.  I could not have done this without my vice chairs, Jody 
Harrison and Cathy Price. We have made a “Super”great team. I am so glad they have 
been so willing to help and do whatever it has taken to make this Pow Wow great; giving 
so much of their time and effort.  Each one of these great women have put their strengths, 
ideas, and dedication into helping this Pow Wow be a great success. They have put many 
hours into making this a great day for all of us to be here enjoying all these wonderful 
classes. I have the best steering committee and staff too. I could not do this without them. 
Words just cannot express my gratitude for every ones help and support. It takes a lot of 
people to make Pow Wow what it is. Please look at all the names in this book and you 
will see some of today’s “Super Heroes”.


As a final thought, I think a “Hero” is an ordinary individual 
who finds strength to persevere and endure in spite of 
overwhelming obstacles. We are teaching our future scout 
leaders. It is many years yet ‘til he becomes a scout leader like 
you but today, you are his “Hero”, and my hero. He watches 
everything you do. He is glad you are here today and willing to 
learn and share your talents with him and with us.


You are all heroes to me,


Debbie Neff Wonder Woman
Pow Wow Chair







VII


It has been a spectacular adventure putting the book together this year. One of the 
exciting things about being in charge of the book is that I get the ultimate preview of 
what is to come at Pow Wow. This years effort has been out of this world and I know 
that this years Pow Wow is going to be a super event. 


I am very grateful for all the cosmic staff members I have had this year to help me 
collect and edit every one of the spectacular pages in this sensational book. They have 
really put a superhero effort into the book this summer. I could never do it without 
them, thank you so much. I have had lots of help from others as well and am grateful 
for all they did and continue to do. I am also grateful for the teachers that stepped up 
and got their pages done in a timely manner. Thank you all for being my superheroes.


I am especially grateful to my husband and my 3 beautiful daughters.  Their patience 
with my obsession with Cub Scouting and the Pow Wow book has been amazing. It 
has been a super cosmic year, thanks for riding the coaster with me.


This year’s theme is “Boys Need Superheroes”. I am so grateful that so many of you 
have stepped up to become superhero scouts to so many boys in your communities. 
It doesn’t take a lot to be a superhero to someone in need and the rewards are endless. 
Batman once said “A hero can be anyone, even a man doing something as simple and 
reassuring as putting a coat around a little boy’s shoulder to let him know that the 
world hadn’t ended.” I hope that Pow Wow and this book will help you feel 
confident in your amazing abilities to be a superhero in your den, your 
pack, your neighborhood and in your family.


The Mighty Debby Martin
Pow Wow Book Chairman 







VIII


POW WOW 
STEERING COMMITTEE!


Chair
Vice Chair
Vice Chair
Emeritus Council Asst� 


Commissioner 
for Cub Scouts


Council Asst� 
Commissioner 
for Cub Scouts


Pow Wow Advisor
Onsite Registration
Promotions
Decorations
Pow Wow Book
Opening Ceremonies
Support Staff
Facilities
Lunch
Commercial Midway
Core Value Midway
Webelos Midway


Administration
Crafts
Leader Helps
Pizzazz
Program Activities
Leader Specific


Debbie Neff
Jody Harrison
Cathy Price
Betty Shaw


Crystal Nebeker


Jake Bangeter
Eliza Crosby
Dave Rawlins
Aralee Scothern
Debby Martin
Stacey Case
Lon Elwood
Kevin Powell
Cindy Sorensen
Nic Hales
Joan Couilette
Dot Cummings


Cynda Bowen
Kathleen Stone
Ranae Monsen
Pat Patterson
Amber Morris
Barbara Elkins


801-254-5909
801-252-7013
801-541-4905
801-572-7743


801-569-1341


801-582-3663
801-783-6307
801-414-5113
801-520-7059
435-882-2727
801-250-1815
801-250-8150
801-250-1022
801-446-1295
801-302-0106
801-598-5271
801-455-3831


801-967-2114
801-678-7839
801-446-0994
801-266-3508
801-884-3770
801-518-8915


WOW







IX


POW WOW SUPPORT STAFF!


Commercial Midway
   Rachael Remund
   Coree Butterfield
   Tammy Rodeback


801-254-5283
801-671-9838
801-446-6773


Facilities
   Alice Miller
   Roy Miller


801-815-8404
801-815-9356


Lunch
   Diana Tuilimu
   Judy Martin
   Gail Jordison
   Steve Rackley
   Matt Harrison       
   Russ Neff


801-981-8449
801-292-6612
801-295-8217
801-413-6002
801-252-7013
801-254-5909


Support Staff
   Lawrence Knight
   Paul Webb
   Neldon Peterson
   Jared Elwood
   Diane Elwood
   Nancy Culley
   Gary Birreol
   Aaron Birreol
   Kevin Mecham


801-414-4595
801-803-4497
801-255-8983
801-598-6601
801-250-8150
801-884-7958
801-485-3533
801-485-3533
801-573-8440


Pow Wow Book
   Alicia Chadwick
   Anita Cacre
   Lisa Davies
   Ron Martin


435-830-9020
435-882-6245
208-317-6147
435-882-2727


On Site Registration
   Ruth Morey
   Keelee Powell
   Leann McFalls
   Mr� Crosby


801-824-9773
801-250-1022
801-540-2115


Promotion
   Todd Rogers
   Adam Hullinger


801-573-3368


Decorations
   Bill Oritz
   Mary Oritz
   Kathy Robertson
   Dave Rawlins
   Steve Rackley
   Emma Black
   Jonah Black


801-572-1760
801-572-1760
801-963-0872
801-292-4831
801-413-6002







X


POW WOW SUPPORT STAFF!


SUPER


Opening Ceremonies
   Awqua Event Production
      AJ Clayson 
 owner/operator 


801-610-9270


Webelos Midway
Physical
   Guy Parker
   Gayness Parker
Mental
   Carolyn Trowbridge
Community
   Chad Anderson
   Dave Olsen
Technology 
   Marissa Trowbridge
   Nicole Trowbridge
Outdoor
   Louise Brown
   Steve Brown
   Kathy Donnell


801-643-1508
801-643-1508


801-643-1508


801-964-8276
801-253-9131


801-680-4085
801-253-9131


801-879-1352
801-867-2612
435-783-2221


Core Value Midway
January


Tami Nelson
Shauna Saddler


February
Linda Black
Sandra Bruening


March
   Courtney Patterson
April


Susan Pope
May


Trish Judd
June


Doree Despain
Lynette Despian


July
Phillys Patterson


August
Duchess Despain
Darla Despain


September
Nancy McQuillan


October
Veon Steele


November
Rose Bartell


December
Misty Larsen


801-367-4349
801-886-8180


801 843-1334
801-475-6542


714-812-1473


801 967-1037


801-561-7747


801 942-2017
801 942-2017


801-973-6427


801 942-2017
801 942-2017


801 879-0426


801 865-5081


801 633-2476


435-843-9514







XI


POW WOW INSTRUCTORS!
ADMINISTRATION


Activity and Event Planning
   
What Do Successful Committees Have In 
Common
Is It Safe Out There, Batman?


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You


Record Keeping and How to Keep It


Resources? What Resources?


American Red Cross Hands-Only


Captain America’s First Aid


CRAFTS


Crafts For Any Budget


Holiday Crafts


Leather Craft


Nature Crafts and Activities


Neckerchief Slides


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying and
Super Balloon Tying Advanced


Woodcraft


Advanced Woodcraft for Webelos


Brian Young
Heather Young
Carol Moody
Kathryn Berry
Nick Toale
Sherrie Batty
Karol Anderson
Laura Unasa
Steve Whatcott
Zac Rawlings
Nancy Stallins
Ruth Nichols
Teresa McRae
Red Cross Staff


Allen Summarell
Lori Summarell


Angie Renny


Tiffany Skavbelund


Dave Beck
Beck Leather Staff
Shelly Zollinger
Jami Myers
Don Hancock


Kira Larkin


Elizabeth Chistensen


Lynn Stromness


801-254-4493
801-254-4493
801-282-1524
801-963-9228
801-300-5636
801-556-8556
801-967-1470
801-966-7127
801-250-1434
801-574-5340
435-882-6032
435-882-1477
435-843-9450


801-634-2521
801-634-2521


801 298-0709


435 579-3541


801 567-1115


801 628-3458
801-628-3458
435 882 5197


435 884-0825


801 254-6492







XII


POW WOW INSTRUCTORS!


LEADER HELPS
Cub Scouting with Core Values & Themes 1


Cub Scouting with Core Values & Themes 2


Cub Scouting, Now What?


Cub Scouts Compute


Cub Scout with Special Needs-Our Own X-Men


Creating Ceremonies


Creating Arrow of Light Ceremonies


Pack Meetings that Dazzle


Finding Success in the Webelos Program


PIZZAZZ
Super Fun Cooking


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz for Any Meeting


Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games


Once There Was a HERO: Skits and Storytelling


Incredible Costumes & Props on Any Budget


Super Fun Science Guy


Ironman’s Technology--Building and Binding


Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots


Intermediate Knot Tying


Advanced Knot Tying


JC Carter


Shauna Pulley


Michelle Scriven
Alicia Chadwick
Les Price
Rob Riches
Krisanne Lewis 


Jolyn Furnell
Darrin Furnell
Eric Christensen


Bryan Smith


Karla Martin
Craig Martin


Paula Bass


Robyn Brown
Lisa Fowler
Bryan Jensen


Matt White
Abby White
Sue Werner


Brad Larsen


Al Trowbridge


Richard Winter


Richard Winter


Richard Winter


801-755-6518


801 508-7643


435 843-8758
435-830-9020
801 201-2451


801 657-9676


801 282-1282
801 282-1282
435 640-3397


801 803-0492


801 254-6522
801 254-6522


801 446-6080


801-671-0363
801-545-8584
801 557-6182


801 589-4279
801 589-4279
801 455-6281


801 916-5854


801 964-8276


801 664-6500


801 664-6500


801 664-6500







XIII


POW WOW INSTRUCTORS!


PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Beyond the Badge


Citizenship & Service Activities


Fun for the “Super Cub Family”


Super Fun with Derbies


Memorable Blue & Gold Banquets


It’s A Bird, It’s a Plane, It’s Super Star Gazing!


Cub Scouts Go Geocaching


LEADER SPECIFIC
Den Leader


Webelos Leader


Cubmaster


Committee


Jonathan Feichter


Debbie Larsen
Al Gore
Liz Shultz
Marc Harris
Andy Ballamis 
Corey Campbell 
Sonja Decker
Amy Rodeback


Wendy Solomon


John Solomon


Karleen Bauer
Sheri Jensen 
Michael McFalls
Doug Patterson
Randi Blanchard
Dennis Blanchard 
Marsha Smith   
Laura Falcon
Roy Herman  
Ted Butterfield
Lewis Bass   
Jolynn Dickerson        
Diane Bigger
Lynn Olsen
Tim Shaw


801 450-5197


801-824-3061
801-979-7158
801-298-1905
801 502-9071
801 891-9459
801 750-6492
801 254-5914
801-446-6773


801 631-9893 


801-870-5154


801 571-2593
801 572-4746 
801 201-0399
801 266-3508
801-298-7607
801-298-7607
801 254-0838
801-942-1312
801 571-1809
801-446-6080
801 446-6080
801 949-8557 
801 943-5809
801-244-7171
801-572-7743







2 Administration


Activity And Event Planning �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �3


What Successful Committees Have In Common �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �7


Is It Safe Out There, Batman?  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �8


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 10


Record Keeping and How to Keep it  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 15


Resources? What Resources?  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 19


Captain America First Aid �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 22







3


ACTIVITY AND EVENT PLANNING


Event director: oversees all of the following components of an event


• Program (possible advancement opportunities)
• Staffing
• Registration
• Promotion/membership recruiting
• Budget
• Facilities
• First aid/emergency procedures
• Evaluation/event closure


Key staff positions
• Program director
• Registration
• Promotions
• Membership
• Facilities coordinator
• First aid 


Event Director (you)


Responsibilities include:


Planning event:
• Select theme
• Recruit key staff
• Plan (along with key staff) an event that ensures safety of participation and complies 
with BSA policy 
• Submit event details online
• Submit budget for approval (If a district event, to activities and membership committee. 
If a unit event, to unit committee)
• Control all purchases and maintain records of income and expenses
• Schedule and chair periodic staff meetings to ensure key staff responsibilities are being 
fulfilled


Activity and Event Planning


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







4 Administration


During event: 
• Ensure safety of participants and compliance with BSA policy


• Oversee event


• Maintain proper documentation required for specific areas


• Conduct leader’s information meeting (cracker barrel) to ensure that leaders are familiar 
with emergency procedures and administrative details


• Provide recognition for staff


After event:
• Write thank-you notes


• Submit actual budget with attached receipts for income and expenses (due to district 
professional within 10 days of event date if a district event)


• Submit attendance report (due to district professional within 10 days of event date)


• Write event evaluation report (due to district professional within 10 days of event date)


• Compile and submit event report notebook, which includes the following information:


—Event details (date, location, theme, and program information)


—Staff list (name, phone number, and job responsibility)


—Evaluation forms, from staff evaluation forms from participants


—Copy of attendance report


—Copy of registration form, information packet, flier, instruction sheets, duty ros-
ters, emergency procedures, etc.


—Sample/picture/directions/descriptions of any programs activity 


—Copies of budget (including copies of receipts for registration, expense vouchers, 
itemized list of expenses, etc.)


—Copy of event evaluation report


Program Director
Responsibilities include:


• Planning program activities that ensure the safety of participants and compliance 
with BSA policy, and offer advancement opportunities
• Recruiting staff members 


• Scheduling activities and making certain the daily program allows ample time for 
rest and food breaks


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







5


• Determining activity locations (with approval of the events director and facilities 
coordinator)


• Planning and leading daily beginning and ending ceremonies (meaningful Scout 
ceremony or patriotic ceremony)


• Providing program information at leaders’ information meeting (cracker barrel)


• Purchasing/gathering supplies for program activities (with approval of event di-
rector)


• Securing judges for competitions


• Providing awards and/or recognitions for program activity participants


• Reporting to event director


• Attending event staff meetings


Registration
Responsibilities include: 


• Developing registration forms and information packets


• Serving as contact person for units needing information (if it’s a district event)


• Confirming pre-registration 


• Handling registration process at check-in 


• Complying attendance reports of all adults and Scouts attending event


• Collecting registration fees at Roundtables—submit to district executive that eve-
ning for receipt if a district event


• Providing nametags for staff, adults, and Scouters


• Collecting evaluation forms and checkout sheets at close of event—submit to 
event director


• Attending event staff meetings


Promotions
Responsibilities include:


• Developing promotional flyer


• Promoting event at Roundtables


Activity and Event Planning


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







6 Administration


• Handling PR for the event
• Reporting to event director


• Attending event staff meetings


Set up/Tear down
Responsibilities include:


•	 Small group of parents, many hands make light work


•	 Set up tables, chairs, and rearrange, etc


•	 Help assist decorating chair


•	 Make sure you have plenty of time, even if you go the night before


•	 Recruit everyone afterwards to clean up, many hands make light work


Just remember that this can be used for about any event and or activity (blue and gold, derbies, 
fun at the park, and cub-o-rees). You might not need all the positions filled, just go with what is 
comfortable.


Budget might be a big factor; cost of the event and what you do might make or break the event. 
Know ahead of time of what the cost is so if you need have fund raiser or charge families to come. 
(or even have a donor to help out).


Make sure you stay within your budget line items, nothing worse the going over and try to figure 
out how to pay for it.


Please tell everyone thank you for all their help, by doing this they might feel important enough to 
come help on the next big event


Just remember to keep it fun and easy ( K.I.S.M.I.F.)


Don’t do all the work yourself; spread the wealth among others and it will make it fun for you 
to!!!!!!!


 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







7


What Successful Committees Have 
In Common


PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE


• To provide an educational program for boys to build desirable qualities of character; to train in 
responsibilities of participating citizenship and to develop personal fitness


• Cub Scouting is a year-round family oriented part of the BSA program designed for boys who are in first 
through fifth grades who work together to achieve the 10 purposes of Cub Scouting.


ROLES OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS


• The pack committee requires at least three members; if you do not have someone for each role then you 
need to have people take on multiple roles.


• Let the members understand and perform their responsibilities.


GAINING SUPPORT OF THE CHARTER ORGANIZATION


• Be enthusiastic and positive; your attitude rubs off!


• Express needs to the Charter Organization


1. Leaders needed; two deep leadership


2. Finances needed - Have an itemized budget to show Pack needs


3. Supplies needed


• Keep accurate records


FINDING PEOPLE TO FILL THE ROLES


• Again, be enthusiastic and positive; your attitude rubs off!


• Use parents as a resouce and to recruit from


• Encourage training for all leaders; A trained leader is a successful leader!


1. Youth Protection


2. Fast Start Training


3. Position Specific Training


• Cub Scout Den Leaders (all ranks)


• Cubmaster


• Pack Committee Member (all positions)


• Pack Trainer


4. Roundtable


What Successful Committees Have In Common


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







8 Administration


Is It Safe Out There, Batman?


Guide to Safe Scouting


“Members of the Boy Scouts of America [are] to 


conduct Scouting activities in a safe and prudent manner. 


The policies and guidelines have been established because 


of the real need to protect members from known hazards 


that have been identified through 100 years of experience. 


Limitations on certain activities should not be viewed as 


stumbling blocks; rather, policies and guidelines are best 


described as stepping-stones toward safe and enjoyable 


adventures.”


--  www.scouting.org 


Safety Training


	 Youth Protection


“The Boy Scouts of America places the greatest 


importance on creating the most secure environment 


possible for our youth members.  To maintain such an 


environment, the BSA developed numerous procedural 


and leadership selection policies.”  --  www.scouting.org


o Required for all volunteers with BSA.


o Required every two years.


o Any individuals who have not completed Youth 


Protection Training during rechartering will not be 


registered with the BSA.


	 Youth Member Behavior Guidelines


	 Child Abuse Reporting


  1.  QUALIFIED SUPERVISION


  2.  PHYSICAL FITNESS


  3.  BUDDY SYSTEM


  4.  SAFE AREA OR COURSE


  5.  EQUIPMENT SELECTION   


     AND MAINTENANCE


  6.  PERSONAL SAFETY 


  7.  SAFETY PROCEDURES 


     AND POLICIES


  8.  SKILL LEVEL LIMITS


  9.  WEATHER CHECK


10.  PLANNING


11.  COMMUNICATION


12.  PLANS AND NOTICES


13.  FIRST AID RESOURCES


14.  APPLICABLE LAWS


15.  CPR RESOURCE


16.  DISCIPLINE


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







9


o All involved in scouting must report any 


suspected child abuse to local authorities and to 


the Scouting executive.


o “Scouting’s Barriers to Abuse”


	Youth Member Behavior Guidelines


	Digital Privacy


	Leadership requirements for trips and outings.


	Co-ed Overnight Activity Policy


	Internet Safety


Medical Safety


	Personal Health


	Risk Factors


	Guidelines and Requirements


	Forms (Activity Consent, Drug Administration 


Record, Annual Health and Medical Record)


Tour Plans


	Tour and Activity Plan FAQs


	Tour Plan Form


	Driver’s Pledge


Age Appropriate Activities


	Diagrams listing age appropriate activities by 


program (camping, all activities, equipment).


www.scouting.org


SCOUTING SAFELY


“GUIDE TO SAFE SCOUTING”


(Online Version)


Excellent source for in depth information 


on safety in scouting.  


“RISK MANAGEMENT”


Links to “Managing Risk” from the field 


book; contains information on limiting risks 


in a variety of settings.


“TRAINING”


Lists multiple training options provided or 


encouraged by the BSA.


“FORMS”


Access to forms needed for different types 


of activities.


“YOUTH PROTECTION”


Videos and information used to improve 


safety for the youth and scouting; 


information on responding to child abuse.


Is It Safe Out There, Batman?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







10 Administration


100 Super Ways to Say 


Thank You


The deepest principle in human nature is the craving to be appreciated.
        – William James
Thank-you Function: noun: a polite expression of one’s gratitude


Everyone appreciates an occasional “thank you”. Saying “thank you” is mostly an 
emotional act. It connects one person to another. Saying “thank you” doesn’t just 
acknowledge someone’s effort, thoughtfulness, intent, or action. It acknowledges 
the person themselves.
It is important that we give recognition to our boys, leaders, family members and 
others for their accomplishments, contributions and service.
There are many opportunities for recognition in the den and pack meetings. 
Recognition is a crucial key in the Cub 
Scout program.


Recognition is an important word 
in the Cub Scout program. People 
who volunteer mainly do so because 
they feel compassion toward those in 
need and they want to contribute to 
their community. In turn they desire 
from those in charge an expression 
of gratitude, praise of encouragement 
for a job well done, an achievement, 
lending a hand, etc. Some people 
enjoy their “thank you” in front of 
an audience, while others prefer it in 
private. Either way, it tells them they are 
APPRECIATED!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







11


Unfortunately, volunteers sometimes can be taken for granted. When we recognize 
others they feel they are a part of the group, that they share the same common goal. 
They will want to continue to stay involved and probably, next time will take on 
a larger assignment. After all, without their service and dedication the Cub Scout 
program would not exist!


Consider these suggestions when giving recognition:


Recognize . . . or else — The need for recognition is very important to most 
people. If volunteers do not get recognition for productive participation, it is likely 
that they will feel unappreciated and may stop volunteering with your program.


Give it frequently — Recognition has a short shelf life. Its effects start to wear 
off after a few days, and after several weeks of not hearing anything positive, 
volunteers start to wonder if they are appreciated. Giving recognition once a year 
at a banquet is not enough.


Give it via a variety of methods — One of the implications of the previous rule is 
that you need a variety of methods of showing appreciation to volunteers. There 
is a whole list below. Let your imagination go wild. (KISMIF)


Recognize the person, not just the work — This is a subtle but important 
distinction. If volunteers organize a fund-raising event, for example, and you praise 
the event without mentioning who organized it, the volunteers may feel some 
resentment. Make sure you connect the volunteer’s name to it.


Give it consistently — If two volunteers are responsible for similar achievements, 
they ought to get similar recognition. 


Give it on a timely basis — Praise for work should come as soon as possible! Make 
sure it is done in a timely manner. Don’t save up your recognition for the annual 
banquet. 


Give it in an individualized fashion — Different people like different things. 
The point to remember is that everyone craves recognition. Recognition doesn’t 
need to be expensive or time consuming. It only needs to express how glad you are 
for each person’s presence and help.  


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







12 Administration


 


Here are some helpful and quick suggestions to get you started…Once you get 
going the ideas are endless!


SAYING ITEM


Thanks a “Hole Lot” Cut up T-shirt


Thanks for “Lending a Hand” Garden glove full of candies


Our “Cup Runneth Over” Dollar store mug with candies


Thanks for going the “Extra Mile” Old Sneaker or Extra Gum


“You Rock!” Rock or candy Rocks


Thanks for “Digging” into Scouting Toy Tractor or Garden Shovel


You deserve a “Hand” Bottle of lotion with cut out of boy’s hands 
taped to either side


Thanks for “Popping” in and helping us with 
-------? Popcorn


You really helped us “Fly” OR You’re just 
“plane” awesome! Paper Airplane


We’re fortunate to have you Cookie


“Dew” your best Bottle of Mountain Dew


We “donut” know what we’d do without you Donut


You’re “fantastic” Fan


You’re all “Write” Pen or Pencil


Thanks for cleaning up after -----? Bottle of dish soap


You’re a shining example Flashlight


You’re GREAT Cheese grater


Thanks from the bottom our hearts Heart with Thanks at the bottom


You keep us in stitches Needle & thread


You’re the key to our success Key


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







13


We’re wild about you Animal Crackers


Thanks for helping us with all the hoop la. Hula Hoop


Bear-y good job , Made things Bear-able, or 
the Bear-y Best Any type of bear – stuffed, gummy, picture


Thanks a bunch! Bananas – Grapes


Transportation Award Toy car – for those volunteer drivers


We’re glad you were planted in our pack Potted plant


You’re worth a mint to our pack Mint candies


Thanks to you a “Big Hunk” of Cub Scout  
work gets done


Big Hunk candy bar


We are so “grapeful” for your help in our pack Grape jam


A “toast” to (names of whom you’re toasting) Piece of toast


Good Egg Plastic egg with candies


Shovel Award-for the person who really digs in Shovel


Thanks for helping Pack ---- grow. Packet of seeds


You deserve a “Raisin” in pay Small box of raisins


Pudding Award-for the person who is 
“pudding” on a good program Box of pudding


Thanks for your time Old clock (spray painted or made from paper)


Thank you for putting your best foot forward 12 inch ruler


When it comes to being the very best, you’re a 
shoe in! Shoe


You brighten up our pack with all you do Glow bracelets & necklaces ($store)


You’re cream of the crop Can of creamed corn


Thanks for always getting the paperwork 
done! Roll of toilet paper


You’ve really added energy to our pack Batteries


That was a truly “noteworthy” achievement Note cards


Link to Scouting Award
Attach a few pieces of chain link fence to a 
plaque and present to the leader who has helped 
prepare the boys for Boy Scouts


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







14 Administration


Golden Knot Award


This is a good award for a Cub Master.  Use 
rope, tie an overhand knot and spray gold.  
Attach to a plaque and award to the person who 
has tied it all together


Blue & Gold Award
A large wooden spoon painted Blue and Gold.  
Attach a ribbon and present to the Chairman of 
the Blue and Gold Banquet


Cub Scout Leader Awards
 Remember for all those scout leaders who are working hard they should also 
be receiving their scouting knots. To recognize den leaders who have completed 
training, tenure, and performance requirement for all den leaders. These 
recognitions can be worn on their uniforms, and shows the boys that they too are 
setting goals and achieving awards, thus in turn giving the boys more motivation! 
http://www.scouting.org Look under the Cub Scout tab for all your questions.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org





15


Record Keeping and How to Keep it


3 simple tips


1. Establish a system of communication between the scout, his parents, 
den leaders and Cubmaster or designed pack committee member.  Make 
sure that the parents know what to report, when to report and whom to 
report to.


1. What should parents and scouts report?


1. Completion of achievements, beltloops, pins and patches


2. When should the parents and scouts report?


1. Weekly- den meetings-


2. Monthly – pack planning meetings


3. How should they report?


1. Show signatures in scout book


2. Respond to email or other notes


3. Input on computer program – be careful with this one


4. Communication should go between leaders and BOTH scouts and 
parents. 


Record Keeping and How To Keep It


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







16 Administration


2. Have a visual means for scouts, parents and leaders to see each scout’s 
progress and what they still need to work on for future advancements 
and awards.  This may be a large wall chart or totem displayed during 
den and pack meetings. It may also be done electronically using a 
computer program.  The important thing is that everyone is aware of 
what each scout has accomplished and what they still need to work on. 
There are many awards a scout can earn; it is great to know what they 
are and how to achieve them.


3. Regular FOLLOW-UP is a key to success.  Kind and caring reminders 
go a long way in getting the cubs to communicate with their parents and 
leaders, as well as in keeping each cub on track. Follow-up is a two way 
track for both parents and leaders to help the boys succeed. Remember 
that a boy’s birthday is the last day to complete that rank. Keep a 
watchful eye on those dates.


* * *


Remember that advancement should be a major part of pack and 
den activities.  When the boys are recognized for their growth and 


achievements, they are motivated to push themselves to achieve even 
more.  It is also an opportunity for Scouters and their families to support 


and celebrate each other.  
* * *


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







17


Useful Websites for Record Keeping and 
Advancement Tracking


Some of these websites cost money, and others are free. Make sure to talk with 
your unit leader before purchasing a product to make sure it is in the budget. 
You want to find a product that will be the most helpful to as many leaders 
and parents as possible.


•	 For a tested and proven Pack program for advancement, click here for 
helpful resources. 
www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/CubScouts/
UniformsAndAwards.aspx 


•	 The Advancement Trail 
www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/Awards/
advancement.aspx


•	 This website has many resources, including spreadsheets to help track 
and record progress for each scout.  Spreadsheets are free. 


http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm 


•	 Track awards, events, & more. Works from your phone. Free trial. 


 www.cubtrails.com 


•	 Keeping all of the records for Cub Scout advancement can be a real 
chore. Den Manager is designed to make communication between Den 
Leaders, Parents, and the Pack Awards Chairperson simple. 


http://denmanager.com 


•	 If you already have a spreadsheet or other form to record attendance 
and what each scout has done, etc. you might consider using a cloud 
system like DROPBOX that allows multiple users to access information 


Record Keeping and How To Keep It


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/CubScouts/UniformsAndAwards.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/CubScouts/UniformsAndAwards.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/Awards/advancement.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/Awards/advancement.aspx

http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm

http://www.cubtrails.com/

http://denmanager.com/





18 Administration


and input what the scout has done.  It is easily managed by the 
Cubmaster or a scout committee member.


www.dropbox.com 


For leaders that are not computer savvy, there are paper forms to be used. 
Most of them are one boy, one sheet of paper. An example of that is found on 
the CD.


            


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.dropbox.com/





19


Resources? What Resources?


WHO CAN HELP?


 Unit Committee Members: All Committee Members, 
Cub Master, Advancement chair, etc.


Unit Commissioner: Contact your District 
Commissioner for list of Commissioners in your District


 WHERE TO FIND HELP�


 District web sites: gslc-bsa.org. Click on your District 
and find information about all District events including


Training, Round Table, calendars, leadership, and more.


Round Table: gslc-bsa.org, Click on your District


 WHATWILL HELP


Guide to Safe Scouting: gslc-bsa.org, Click Forms and 
Materials


Training; MyScouting.org. Click on elearning, then 
choose Cub Scouts, click on your current Scouting 
position.


Journey to Excellence: gslc-bsa.org. Click Forms and 
Materials


Day Camps: gslc-bsa.org. Click camps


Religious Knot
To maintain a gospel focus in Scout activities, leaders use 
the corresponding guidebooks for their faith as one of 
their resources.  The “God and Me Student Workbook” 
for Protestant and Independent Christian Churches, 
The “Parvuli Dei” (Children of God) Activity Book for 
Catholic scouts and the “Faith in God for Boys” book 
for LDS scouts provide faith centered activities for the 
scouts to accomplish during the three years they are 
cub scouts so that they can earn the corresponding 
certificate or award from their chartered organization.  A 
good website for Christian faith related awards is www.
praypub.org .  The two workbooks mentioned above are 
available at larger Boy Scouts of America Scout Stores 
or from the chartered organization leaders.  If you have 
boys attending your den who are of a different faith than 
you are, it would be appropriate to provide them with the 
appropriate guidebook for their faith so they can work 
on obtaining their Religious Knot.


Please keep in mind that no matter what the boys are 
working on it can be related to the gospel.  For example:  
Including a conversation about the creation when the 
boys are studying the outdoors and bearing testimony of 
it to the boys, etc.  Include your scouting responsibilities 
in your daily prayers so that your program will be 
blessed and the boys will feel the Holy Spirit warming 
their hearts and filling them with the love of God.  


Resources? What Resources?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







20 Administration


 


Family Involvement
One of our best resources is one we can not buy.  It is 
not published anywhere.  We have to make it ourselves 
– Time.  Time to get trained, to meet the families of the 
boys, to plan our year with our committee, to prepare 
our den meetings, for record keeping, for field trips, time 
to have an excellent program.  We have to make time.  
Family involvement will make time for you as you will 
then have many helping hands.  The Cub Scout Leader 
Book has a chapter on this subject but I would like to 
suggest first simply getting to know your scouts parents, 
knowing their talents and what they can contribute to 
your den or Pack.  When they know you they will be 
more willing to help.  You might be able to take the den 
to their house to see the baby animals they have or have 
a pack meeting at their cabin up the canyon.  They will 
be more willing to help transport the cubs to day camp.  
Orient them to your program.  Communicate with them 
often.  Invite them to planning meetings and help them 
set goals with their child for scouting.  Invest time in 
them.  That is how to involve them in your program.    


Belt Loops
Need a fun and easy activity for the boys?  Select a few 
of the belt loop activities for the boys to accomplish. 
Survey the boys to see which ones they want to do and 
then schedule them into your year.  Belt Loops range 
from Hiking to Disabilities Awareness.  The Cub Scouts 


Academic and Sports Program Guide will tell you the 
available belt loops and the requirements to earn them.  


Internet Resources
Pinterest 
http://pinterest.com/


Pinterest is a social networking site that puts people with 
similar interests together. It enables convenient sharing 
and storing of ideas in “boards” for future reference. Set 
up an account. It is free. Set up a board that is specific 
for your scout needs such as “My Webelos” or “Pack 
Meeting Ideas”


Be specific; type in topic and then the activity that you 
need help with. (for example, Webelos Engineer or 
Pinewood Derby Awards)


When you find someone that has lots of ideas, follow 
them. Every time they find a neat idea it will pop up on 
your board. You can then “pin” it to your board or ignore 
it and find it later by clicking on their board.


Keep a board of the ideas that you find. It is much easier 
to find that random website if you pin it to a “scout” 
board than just bookmarking it. Good ones that I have 
found: http://pinterest.com/grandperks/cub-scout-
webelos/


http://pinterest.com/leaannc/cub-scouts-bear-rank/


http://pinterest.com/dhewitt/cub-scouts-wolf/


Den and Pack Meeting Resource Guide Online 
PDF format http://www.buckskin.org/BlankSite/
media/Global/Documents/Den-Pack-Meeting-Resource-
Guide-34409.pdf


http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/
CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/
DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx


Meeting Plans with Worksheets


http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/
CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/
DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/WebelosDenPlans.
aspx


Uniforms (Where does that patch go?) 
Interactive in game format


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://pinterest.com/

http://pinterest.com/grandperks/cub-scout-webelos/

http://pinterest.com/grandperks/cub-scout-webelos/

http://pinterest.com/leaannc/cub-scouts-bear-rank/

http://pinterest.com/dhewitt/cub-scouts-wolf/

http://www.buckskin.org/BlankSite/media/Global/Documents/Den-Pack-Meeting-Resource-Guide-34409.pdf

http://www.buckskin.org/BlankSite/media/Global/Documents/Den-Pack-Meeting-Resource-Guide-34409.pdf

http://www.buckskin.org/BlankSite/media/Global/Documents/Den-Pack-Meeting-Resource-Guide-34409.pdf

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/WebelosDenPlans.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/WebelosDenPlans.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/WebelosDenPlans.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/WebelosDenPlans.aspx





21


http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/
CubScouts/UniformsAndAwards/UniformGame.aspx


Oh, rats! I missed roundtable! The Deseret Peak 
Cub Scouting Website has copies of all of their handouts 
and lots of other resources.


http://www.deseretpeakcubscouting.com/roundtable-
handouts.php


Activities, Advancement, Games, Cheers, Skits, 
Songs, Jokes, Worksheets, Recipes…it’s all here


http://www.boyscouttrail.com/


Ok, its cub scouts…we are here to learn and have 
fun. These are some really great sites with fun projects 
that can fit requirements. 


Instructables�com


This two dollar bird house. 


http://www.instructables.com/id/Building-the-2-
Birdhouse/


Resources? What Resources?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/CubScouts/UniformsAndAwards/UniformGame.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/CubScouts/UniformsAndAwards/UniformGame.aspx

http://www.deseretpeakcubscouting.com/roundtable-handouts.php

http://www.deseretpeakcubscouting.com/roundtable-handouts.php

http://www.boyscouttrail.com/

http://www.instructables.com/id/Building-the-2-Birdhouse/

http://www.instructables.com/id/Building-the-2-Birdhouse/





22 Administration


Evaluate – 


Evaluate - 


1. YOU ARE IMPORTANT; please make sure there is no danger to you. Make 
sure you don’t become a victim. 


2. What are the risks to the victim?


3. DO NOT RACE TO THE SCENE. Make a plan.


4. Check the victim and ask “Are you Okay?” If no response from victim, call For HELP. 


If no one is around to HELP, make sure the victim is stable before leaving them to call 
for help. If you can have somebody get help for you, and have somebody stay with you that 
would be best. 


A,B,C’s – 


1. A,B,C 
A - Check Airway. 


B - Check Breathing.


C - Check for Circulation (Bleeding). 


Moving the victim –


1. DO NOT MOVE the victim unless they are at immediate risk.


• Moving the victim can cause more harm than good. Be sure it is necessary to move 
the victim before you do so.  


NOTES:


Choking – 


1. How to help a choking victim?


• Be sure the victim is choking, if someone is coughing let them cough as long as 
they are coughing air is moving. Do not pat them on the back; you may lodge 
whatever is in their throat deeper, causing them to really choke. 


NOTES:


Captain America First Aid


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







23


Bleeding – 
1. What is Wound Care?


• Washing the wound of any debris.


• Applying antibiotic ointment.


• Cover with dry sterile dressing and adhesive bandage.


• Clean and bandage wound each day.


2. Don’t Panic it’s just a Nose Bleed. 


• Have person sit leaning forward so blood does not run down inside of throat.


• Ask person to pinch nose firmly but gently and apply pressure on the upper lip.


• Hold cold compress on nose and surrounding area.


• Repeat action for up to 15 minutes. If this continues seek medical attention.


NOTES:


Shock – 


1. What are the signs of shock?


• Restless, weakness, confusion, clammy or moist skin, quick weak pulse, shallow 
breathing, nausea or vomiting, and extreme thirst.


2. How to treat for shock.


• Treat every accident victim EVEN IF THERE ARE NO SIGNS.


• Never leave an accident victim alone unless there is no choice.


• Call for help.


• Try to eliminate the reason/cause for the shock.


• Have the injured person lie down.


• Keep the victim warm.


NOTES:


Burns – 


1st degree – RED SKIN


2nd degree – SOME BLISTERING


3rd degree – DAMAGE TO THE SKIN AND TISSUE BENEATH IT


NOTES:


Captain America First Aid


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







24 Administration


Concussion – 
1. Signs of a concussion


• “Seeing stars” and feeling dazed, dizzy, or lightheaded


• Memory loss, such as trouble remembering things that happened right before and after 
the injury


• Nausea or vomiting


• Headaches


• Blurred vision and sensitivity to light


• Slurred speech or saying things that don’t make sense


• Difficulty concentrating, thinking, or making decisions


• Difficulty with coordination or balance (such as being unable to catch a ball or other 
easy tasks)


• Feeling anxious or irritable for no apparent reason


• Feeling overly tired


NOTES:


Other: Bee sting, Food allergy, Etc.


1. Signs of anaphylactic shock.


• Swelling of the throat tissues and breathing difficulty or absence of breathing.


2. Animal Bites/Stings.


• Wash wound and flush with water for several minutes.


• Control bleeding and cover wound with sterile bandage.


NOTES:


Resources – 
1. Red Cross –  www.redcross.org


2. Boy Scout of America Handbook


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



file:///C:\Users\Lori%20Summarell\Downloads\www.redcross.org





25


Personal First Aid Kit
Supplies –


Mini Pocket Knife
Bands Aids (6 large, 6 small)
Moist Towelettes (optional)
Rubber Bands
Tape
Aspirin
Swabs
Paper Towel (or gauze if you have it)
Super Glue
Isopropyl Alcohol


Captain America First Aid


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







26 Administration


NOTES!NOTES!







27


NOTES!NOTES!







28 Crafts


Crafts For Any Budget �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 29


Holiday Crafts   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 37


Nature Crafts and Activities �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 58


Neckerchief Slides �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 64


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying & �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 67


Super Balloon Tying Advanced �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 67


Woodcraft �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 71


Advanced Woodworking For Webelos  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 76


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







29


CRAFTS FOR ANY BUDGET


Dye-Out Shirt
Fun for Cub Camp shirts or Den field trip “uniforms”!


	♦ old colored T-shirts (darker colors work best)
	♦ spray bottle with 1 part bleach + 2 parts water
	♦ rubber bands
	♦ tarp or large piece of cardboard (to use under shirts)
	♦ plastic gloves
	♦ apron (if desired)


Method #1
Bunch, twist, roll, or scrunch shirt (as if tie dying) & secure with 
rubber bands. Wearing apron & gloves, spray shirt with bleach 
solution. Turn shirt over & spray other side. (Liquid shouldn’t drip 
through.) Set aside for 15-30 minutes to allow bleach to remove dye. 
Rinse well under cool water. Remove rubber bands & rinse again. 
Wash separately the first time to remove remaining bleach.
*Remember – the more bleach you apply, the less color will remain.


Method #2
Place a large piece of cardboard inside the shirt. Lay shirt down 
on tarp or cardboard, front-side up. Arrange small trinkets (paper 
clips, letter/number stencils, leaves, small toys, stickers, etc.) on 
the shirt. Spritz bleach solution over shirt front. Bleach will leave 
a lighter outline around items. Allow to sit for 15-30 minutes, then 
remove items, & rinse shirt. Wash separately the first time to remove 
remaining bleach.
*A light spritz of solution on uncovered fabric leaves a fun “starry 
sky” pattern!


Crafts For Any budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







30 Crafts


Personalized Plate


	♦ dollar store or second-hand china plate
	♦ sharpie markers
	♦ stencil (if desired) – “Happy Birthday”, “You Are Special”, 
monogram, etc.


Wash & dry plate. Choose & fill in stencil with sharpie markers, or 
free hand the design on the plate. Bake plate at 350 degrees for 
30 minutes to set the ink. Marker will become permanent! Hand 
washing of plate is suggested.


Light-less Saber


	♦ pool noodles (1 noodle = 2 sabers)
	♦ ½” PVC pipe in 3’ length per saber
	♦ 1 - ½” PVC cap per saber
	♦ duct tape for decoration, if desired


Cut each noodle in half. File one end of the pipe to round the corners. 
Slide rounded-end of pipe into the noodle. Make sure to leave 2” to 
4” at the end of the noodle pipe-free, so thrusts won’t injure anyone. 
Attach the cap on the end of the PVC handle. Wrap handle &/or 
noodle with colored duct tape. JOUST!!


Here is a similar method with great directions & pictures!
http://dadlyninja.blogspot.com/2011/06/light-saber-with-pool-noodle-
blades.html


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://dadlyninja.blogspot.com/2011/06/light-saber-with-pool-noodle-blades.html 

http://dadlyninja.blogspot.com/2011/06/light-saber-with-pool-noodle-blades.html 





31


Pocket Rock Reminders
This rock will remind boys to do good. Keep the rock in a pocket. 
When they do a good deed for the day, they move it to the other 
pocket.


	♦ 1” to 1 ½” flat round river rock
	♦ craft paint or spray paint
	♦ Sharpie markers
	♦ clear acrylic spray paint
	♦ large piece of cardboard


Wash & dry rocks. Lay rocks on the cardboard. Paint a light base coat 
on the rocks. When paint isn’t tacky, flip & paint the other side. When 
dry, let boys write Scout slogans on their rock, such as “Do a Good 
Turn Daily”, “Helpful”, “Courteous”, “Kind”, etc.
Spray with clear paint & let dry. Keep in a pocket & DO GOOD!


Haircut Harry – aka Grass Heads
As the grass grows, you can give Harry’s green tresses a trim!


	♦ plastic cups (choose your size)
	♦ potting soil
	♦ grass or wheat seed
	♦ glue (low-temp hot glue sets faster, but Elmers will work fine)
	♦ googly eyes
	♦ Sharpie markers


Poke a few holes in the bottom of the cup for drainage. Glue on the 
eyes, & have boys draw a face on the cup. They can even do a face 
on both sides – one happy & one sad! Fill the cup almost to the top 
with soil. Sprinkle seeds on top. Lightly water, set in a windowsill 
or counter. Keep the soil moist, but not wet. Wait for the “hair” to 
grow!
*These can also be grown in an old pantyhose … fill the toe with 
seed first, soil next, tie it up & set in a cup!


Crafts For Any budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







32 Crafts


Water Bottle Time Capsule
Fun New Year activity! Wait a year (or more) & see how they’ve 
grown!


	♦ empty & dry water bottle & lid - label removed
	♦ measuring tape
	♦ yarn
	♦ glue
	♦ masking tape
	♦ scissors
	♦ “All About Me” type questionnaire - favorite food, color, show, 
game, goals for the year, etc.
	♦ supplies to decorate the outside – stickers, markers, scrapbook 
paper, pom poms, curling ribbon, etc.
	♦ melted wax, if desired


Have boys decorate their bottles & fill out their questionnaires. 
Meanwhile, take them one by one & use the yarn to measure: 
Head circumference
Arm length – shoulder to fingertip
Foot length – heel to toe
Height – head to toe
Cut a length of yarn for each measurement. Mark with a piece of 
masking tape & label with the length of each body part.
Roll up the questionnaire. Place it & the yarn lengths inside the water 
bottle. Twist the lid on tightly. Dip the lid into the melted wax to 
officially seal their time capsule. Open one year later & compare! 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







33


Kaleidoscope Crayons 


	♦ crayons, broken into ¼” to ½” pieces, separated into colors
	♦ silicone or mini muffin pan
	♦ hot pads


Choose colors you want to combine. You can make color families 
– red+pink, light green+dark green, or mix it up – blue+red+purple, 
yellow+red+orange… There are endless possibilities!
Preheat the oven to 200 degrees (too hot will make the wax burn 
or evaporate). Place the crayon pieces in the pan. Bake for 10 to 30 
minutes, depending on the quality of the crayon. When the surface 
of the melted crayon is flat, remove to a cooling rack. Allow to cool. 
Remove from the pan & color away! 
* For easy removal, place the pan in the freezer for a few minutes.


Easy Tied-Fleece Pillow
These can be made in any shape & size, but this describes a square. 
You can also use different colors or coordinating patterns!


	♦ 2 – 18” squares of fleece material per pillow 
	♦ poly fill or quilt batting
	♦ stapler
	♦ fabric scissors


Lay matching fabric squares down on table. Staple the fabric 
together a few times near the center to help keep the pieces aligned. 
Using scissors, cut a fringe ½” wide & about 3” to 4” long through 
both pieces of fleece, all the way around the shape. Tie pairs of fringe 
together in a square knot until you are ¾ of the way done. Fill the 
pillow with batting. Tie remaining fringe together.
*These can be personalized with Troop # or boy’s name or initial 
using fabric & iron-on paper, but this takes a bit more preparation.


Crafts For Any budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







34 Crafts


Magnifying Water Scope


	♦ any size can, washed & both lids removed (bigger can = bigger 
view)
	♦ duct or electrical tape
	♦ black craft foam or felt
	♦ plastic wrap
	♦ large rubber bands


If your can’s rims have a rough edge, cover them with duct tape. 
Trim the black foam to fit the inside of your can & glue inside. Stretch 
the plastic wrap over one open end of the can & secure with rubber 
band to secure it. Wrap the duct tape around the can to completely 
cover the plastic & rubber band up the side of the can. This will keep 
water from getting in. Find a water source & see what’s in there! 
The water pressure will cause the plastic wrap to bow in, making in 
essence, a magnifier!


Finger Knitting


This is a fun, easy way to learn to knit, without any supplies other 
than yarn! This keeps the boys’ fingers busy while listening to 
announcements. You could even have a contest to see who can knit 
the longest scarf! 
 


I suggest watching this video – she gives great visual & verbal 
directions!
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t3LKAlDz9ig&feature=player_embedded


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t3LKAlDz9ig&feature=player_embedded 





35


Recycled Rain Stick
This craft takes a lot of nails, but other than that, it’s cheap & fun! 
It’s a great prop for all kinds of skits & songs. Plus it makes a lovely, 
relaxing sound!


	♦ sturdy cardboard tube - mailing tube works best
	♦ lots of nails - 60 to 100+, depending on how long their interest 
lasts
	♦ a hammer per boy
	♦ duct tape or mailing tube end caps
	♦ fill – pebbles, rice, beans (mix large & small items for great sound) 
	♦ glue & stuff to decorate the stick - paper, feathers, stickers, etc.


Pound in as many nails as you want – the more nails, the better the 
sound. But too many can compromise the strength of the cardboard. 
Cap one end (or cover with duct tape). Pour in the fill, & seal the 
other end. Decorate & make some music!


Drippy-Drop Painted Clay Pot


These decorated pots have a unique 3-D texture! You can use larger 
pots, but it takes more time & paint. Great gifts for moms!
	♦ 3” to4” diameter clay pot
	♦ craft paint
	♦ cardboard
	♦ sharpened pencils  or watercolor paintbrushes 
	♦ small cup of water for rinsing


Place pot upside-down on the cardboard. Gently squirt a circle of 
paint around the base of the pot (small end) & let it drip down the 
pot. Use the pencil tip to guide the drips where you want them to go. 
Rinse pencil tip in water. Apply more as needed. Repeat with as many 
colors as desired. You don’t have to wait for one color to dry before 
applying the next.


Crafts For Any budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







36 Crafts


Depending on the thickness of the paint, it may take a few days to 
completely dry. They can be moved, just try not to bump the paint. 
You can also cure the paint by placing in a 200 degree oven for 
about 1 hour.


Mini Marshmallow Shooter


	♦ plastic cup – 8 oz. or larger
	♦ balloon
	♦ scissors
	♦ mini marshmallows, pom poms, small soft items


Cut off the bottom of the cup. Cut off the top 1/4th of the balloon. 
Tie the balloon in a knot. Stretch the cut side of the balloon over 
the cut side of the cup, centering the knot on the outside. Put in a 
marshmallow & shoot!
*Use a bigger cup & balloon to shoot bigger marshmallows!


More Fun Craft Ideas:
Confetti Poppers – great for 4th of July or New Year’s Eve!
http://alphamom.com/family-fun/holidays/make-your-own-fourth-of-
july-confetti-popper-rockets/


25 Crafts using Coffee Filters! Cheap materials, but gorgeous results!
http://crafting.squidoo.com/coffee-filter-crafts-and-uses


Homemade Chalkboard using Construction Paper & Glue! This could 
be mounted on a block of wood or put into a dollar store frame.
http://www.cometogetherkids.com/2012/09/make-your-own-
chalkboards-with.html


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://alphamom.com/family-fun/holidays/make-your-own-fourth-of-july-confetti-popper-rockets/ 

http://alphamom.com/family-fun/holidays/make-your-own-fourth-of-july-confetti-popper-rockets/ 

http://crafting.squidoo.com/coffee-filter-crafts-and-uses 

http://www.cometogetherkids.com/2012/09/make-your-own-chalkboards-with.html 

http://www.cometogetherkids.com/2012/09/make-your-own-chalkboards-with.html 





37


Holiday Crafts
January


Elmer’s Glue/Paper Chalkboard:    


1. Start with a piece of paper. Any size will work. Cardstock weight works 
best or you could just mount thinner paper to a piece of cardboard. Using a 
sponge brush, apply a thin layer of Elmer’s Glue over the entire surface.


2. Allow 1-2 hours for it to completely dry.


3. Using chalk, cover the entire surface and then wipe it off. 


4. Your done!


Materials Needed:


• Paper (Cardstock weight works best)


• Sponge Brush


• Elmer’s Glue


• Chalk


• Paper Towels


February


Origami Heart:  


1. Start with a piece of square patterned paper white side up. Any size will work 
- ie - 6”x6”, or 8”x8”. Thinner papers work best for origami, but cardstock 
weight works well if you choose to use it to hold candy or other sweets.


2. Fold it in half to make a triangle.


3. Fold it in half again to make a smaller triangle.


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







38 Crafts


4. Open it back up completely.


5. With the corners pointing up & down, fold the top corner down to the middle 
& the bottom corner up to the top.


6. Fold the right side so that it meets the center crease.


7. Fold the right side so that it meets the center crease.


8. It should look like a heart now. Turn the paper over.


9. Fold the right top point down to the top of the crease line.


10. Repeat with the left top point.


11. Now fold the right side point in the same distance as the top points were 
folded down. You will have two identical triangles.


12. Repeat with the left side point.


13. Turn the paper over again & your done!


14. If you want to make a pocket to hold candy or other treats, just tape the front 
fold together.


Materials Needed:
Any size square paper - i.e. - 6”x6”, or 8”x8”. Thinner papers work best for ori-
gami, but cardstock weight works well if you choose to use it to hold candy or 
other sweets.


March


Green Noise Putty: 
1. Pour an 8 oz. bottle of Elmer’s School Glue into a bowl.


2. Fill the now empty glue bottle with water and pour it into the bowl.


3. Add 2-3 drops of green food coloring to the bowl and stir with a spoon.


4. In another bowl, add 1 ½ tsp. of borax powder and 1 cup of water.


5. Stir until dissolved.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







39


6. Add the two bowls together and work it around a little bit with your hands to 
stiffen the mixture.


7. In order to make the putty make noise, push it into a small container with 
your fingers.


Materials Needed:
• 8 0z. bottle of Elmer’s School Glue
• 1 ½ tsp. of Borax Powder
• Water
• 2 Bowls
• Spoon
• Green Food Coloring
• Small container i.e. – plastic film container


April


Cotton ball Lamb:
1. Start with a cotton ball and cut it into three pieces. Then cut each piece in 


half again. Cut enough cotton balls to cover the toilet paper roll completely.


2. Cover the toilet paper roll in Elmer’s School Glue.


3. Place the cotton balls onto the toilet paper roll until completely covered.


4. Using black craft paper, cut out a face for the lamb. A circle with ears on 
each side is easiest.


5. Glue two eyes on the face using craft google eyes.


6. Glue the head on the front of the lamb. The toilet paper roll should be sitting 
up with the open ends on the bottom & top.


7. Glue the black pom-pom onto the back of the lamb.


8. Cut two black pipe cleaners in half. Wrap them around a pencil to coil them 
for legs. Do this four times.


9. Use the hot glue gun to glue the legs to the bottom of the inside of the toilet 
paper roll.


Materials Needed:


• ½ cardboard toilet paper roll


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







40 Crafts


• 5-6 cotton balls


• 2 black pipe cleaners


• Black construction paper


• 2 small google eyes


• 1 medium black pom-pom


• Elmer’s School Glue


• Hot glue gun


• Scissors


• Pencil
May


Pipe Cleaner Flowers :
1. Paint the mini flower pot a color of your choice & set aside to dry.


2. Begin by taking any color of pipe cleaner & forming a flower. 


• Snapdragon – Wrap half of a pipe cleaner around the end of a pencil or 
paintbrush. Slide off the end & glue a 5-6” piece of green pipe cleaner into 
the end of the coil.


• Simple bud - Take half of a pipe cleaner & twist it around in a small circle 
two or three times so that you have a small ball. Then glue half of a green 
pipe cleaner into the center.


• Simple flower - Form a flower shape by bending the pipe cleaner into petals 
& then insert & glue half of a green pipe cleaner into the center to keep it to-
gether.


3. Cut a piece of green tissue paper into a 6” square & crumple it up into a ball.      
 Put a little bit of glue around the inside of the flowerpot & place the tissue   
 paper inside.


4. Take each flower individually & put a small amount of glue onto the bottom   
 & then insert it into the tissue paper.


5. Continue by gluing each flower into the flowerpot.


Materials Needed:


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







41


• Multiple colors of Pipe cleaners & green for flower stems
• Mini Flower pot
• Craft paint
• Green tissue paper
• Elmer’s craft glue
• Scissors
• Pencil
• Paintbrush


June


Star Shaped Bird Feeder:
1. Mix an envelope of Knox Gelatin with ¼ cup water on the stove & simmer 


while continuing to stir until it is completely dissolved.


2. Set aside & allow to cool for a minute.


3. Once cooled, add in ¾ cup birdseed. If there is still liquid in the bottom of 
the pan, add more birdseed until it is gone.


4. Put a star-shaped cookie cutter onto wax paper & fill it halfway with the 
Knox Gelatin/birdseed mixture.


5. Cut a piece of twine about 8 inches long and knot the two ends together.


6. Lay the knotted end into the cookie cutter with the loop end hanging out.


7. Fill the rest of the cookie cutter with the Knox Gelatin/birdseed mixture 
making sure to cover the knotted end of the twine.


8. Allow to dry overnight, turning occasionally to allow both sides to dry fast-
er.


Materials Needed:
• ¾ cup small sized birdseed
• ¼ cup water & wax paper
• 1 small envelope Knox Gelatin
• Twine
• Star-shaped cookie cutter


July


Sponge Water Ball:
1. Cut each sponge into 4 pieces the long way.


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







42 Crafts


2. Using 3 sponges (12 cut pieces), arrange the pieces in your hand and twist 
just a little. Using multiple colored pieces makes the ball fun & bright.


3. Tie the center of the sponges together with a piece of dental floss into a dou-
ble knot. Have someone help you with this step makes it easier.


4. Trim the ends of the dental floss.


Materials Needed:
• 3 Sponges per water ball
• Scissors
• Dental floss


August


Back-to-School Time Capsule:
1. Peel the label off of an empty plastic pop bottle. Any size will work fine. 


2. Cut out a flap of plastic beg enough to fit your hand in where the label used 
to be.


3. Fill out the Important Things About Me in 2013 paper. Collect any of the 
suggested items to put into your time capsule & any others that you would 
like to include.


4. Place the items into the bottle & duct tape the flap shut.


5. Take the time capsule label, fill it out & tape it around the bottle so that the 
flap is covered up.


6. Optional – Use sharpie markers or stickers to decorate the outside of the bot-
tle.


Materials Needed:
• Plastic pop bottle (1/1.5/2-Liter bottles recommended)
• Time Capsule label
• Information About Me in 2013 paper
• Pen/Pencil
• Scissors
• Duct Tape
• Scotch Tape


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







43


Optional Items:
• Foam sheet
• Paper
• Sharpie Markers
• Yarn/String/Ribbon


Ideas of What to Include in Time Capsule:


• Measure your height & put in a string that exact length.


• Trace your hand on a foam sheet/paper.


• Draw a picture.


• Ticket stubs of fun places you went.


• Vacation memorabilia.


• Picture of you.


Time Capsule - 2013
Created By:______________________


Sealed On:______________________


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







44 Crafts


Important Things About Me
2013


1. My favorite foods are: 


2. My favorite toys right now are:


3. My best friends are:


4. In my free time I usually:


5. In 2013, my favorite place to visit was:


6. In 2013, I learned how to:


7. Some of my favorite books are:


8. My favorite shows to watch on TV are:


9. Something that makes me really happy is:


10.  In 2014, I really want to:


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







45


September


Clay Fossil Impressions:


1. Mix ½ cup flour, ¼ cup salt, 4-5 drops of food coloring & enough water to 
make it the consistency of play dough. Add a small amount of water at a 
time until you reach the desired consistency.


2. Pull off a small chunk of dough & roll it into a ball. Flatten it to so that it is 
about ¼” thick.


3. Place it onto a piece of tinfoil.


4. Gently press desired impression into the center of the flattened clay.


5. Let dry 1-2 days turning it over every 12 hours or so to dry both sides. If you 
want it to dry faster, place it into an oven at 200 degrees until dry.


Materials Needed:


Flour


Salt


Water


Tinfoil


Food Coloring (optional)


Dinosaur toy/Rock fossil


October


Shrunken Apple Head:


1. Peel an apple. Granny Smith are recommended because of their shape, but 
any kind will work.


2. Draw facial features on the apple with a pencil or marker.


3. Using a knife, cut out the facial features. Be sure to make them large enough 
so that they don’t disappear when it shrinks.


4. In a bowl, combine 1 cup of lemon juice and 1 Tbsp. salt & soak the apple 
for 1-2 minutes.


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







46 Crafts


5. Using a paper towel, pat the apple dry.


6. Insert a wooden/bamboo skewer or stick into the bottom and let dry in a 
warm, dry place. Watch it shrink and become a wrinkly shrunken head!


Materials Needed:


• Apple (Granny Smith recommended but any variety will work fine)


• Pencil/Marker


• Knife


• Bowl


• Lemon Juice


• Salt


• Paper Towel


• Wooden/Bamboo Skewer or stick


November


Borax Snowflakes:
1. Take 1 white pipe cleaner & bend it into the shape of a snowflake.


2. Boil 2 cups of water & pour it into a pint size mason jar.


3. Add 1/3 cup of Borax to the water in your mason jar. It doesn’t need to dis-
solve completely.


4. Tie a string to your pipe cleaner snowflake & tie the other end of the string 
to a pencil.


5. Lower your pipe cleaner snowflake into the water & place the pencil hori-
zontally across the top of the mason jar so that it suspends the snowflake in 
the water.


6. Allow it to sit for approximately 12 hours.


Materials Needed: (to make one snowflake)


• 1/3 Cup Borax


• 2 Cups water


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







47


• 1 White pipe cleaner


• 1 Pint size Mason jar


• 1 Pencil


• 8” String
December


Marshmallow Igloo:


1. On a plate, arrange the first layer of marshmallows into ¾ of a circle. The 
opening will be used to create the door later on.


2. Put a pretzel into the end of a new marshmallow and stick it into each of the 
marshmallows on the bottom ¾ circle. Be sure to put them into a slightly 
smaller circle than the bottom ¾ circle.


3. Continue putting pretzels into marshmallows & stacking them until you have 
four rows and/or a small enough hole to make the roof by filling in the circle 
hole.


4. Cut a few marshmallows in half and stack them in front of either side of the 
opening in the bottom ¾ circle until you have formed an arch.


Materials Needed:


• 1 Large bag of marshmallows


• Pretzel sticks
Optional:


• Use mini candy canes pushed into whole marshmallows to build a fence 
around your igloo.


• Use red sugar crystals for the floor of the igloo.


Holiday Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







48 Crafts


LEATHER CRAFTS HELP BUILD AND HOLD
THE MEMORIES OF FUN THAT WILL LAST A LIFETIME


CUB SCOUTS LOVE LEATHER FUN!


a) Preparation - Are you ready?
b) Tell what you are going to do (Explain)
c) Show How to do it (Steps)


d) Hands on Learning (Practice by Doing)
e) Coach with Tips & Helps - (Review)
f) Resolve concerns or problems - (Attitude)


Steps to Sharing a Skill:


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


A Pow-Wow 2013 PAGE.pdf   8/8/2013   7:46:49 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







49Leather Crafts


A)  Ask for Donations (FREE is Always Good)


$


$


SECRET # How to Buy your Projects - Stretch your Scout Budget1
B)  Cut Your own Shapes & Projects 
      Requires a few Tools and Safety Tips yet saves money in the  
        long run versus individual kits.


C)  Make It & Take It Workshops
      Beck Leather offers Free & Low-Cost Field Trips (See our Ad)
 Tools, Paints, Finishes, & Instructions


D) Buy in Quantity for Greatest Savings


E)  Ask for Special Group Discount
 (Beck Leather gives All Scout
 Leaders 15% Discount on Personal
 & Group Purchases.


Stamping Tip #1:  When Stamping Alphabet or 3-D Designs, make sure 
the guide letter is facing you when you stamp to prevent upside down 
letters.  Try a few practice ones.  Use a hard firm surface like marble.


Stamping Tip #2:  Use red fingernail polish to mark the guide letter to 
align letters' orientation properly.  Easy to see guide letters.  Help your 
scouts stamp their 3-D or Alphabet Stamps for best resuits.


Doing Leather Projects create memories that last a lifetime!


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


F)  Yard Sales & FriendsC


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow-Wow Pages 2013 - Secret 1.pdf   8/8/2013   6:38:05 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







50 Crafts


Step Four: ASSEMBLY  
 Do Stitching / Lacing
add Beads and Keepsakes


     Step One: WET  THE  LEATHER  With WATER
          


Step One: WET  THE  LEATHER  With WATER


STAMPING  FUN 


 Note: Leather should be moist not soggy
Using a SPONGE OR SPRAY  BOTTLE 


Step Two:STAMP  THE  BORDER  DESIGN   FIRST 
and then Add a Center Design 


Border Ideas:  


by using Cova Paint, Paint Markers, 
Antique Stain or Dyes. ALWAYS 
Apply a Sealer (Leather Shene)


Step Three:ADD COLORS & SEALER


 Leather & Crafts 
 Create Keepsakes 
     that Hold  
Treasured Memories 


Presents:


2) Alternate two tools,      
3) Stamp the tool upside down
4) Turn tool side ways,  
 


1) Repeat tool impression, 


5) Stagger tool 
6) Combination Pyramid pattern


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow-Wow Pages 2013 - Secret 2.pdf   8/8/2013   6:44:39 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







51Leather Crafts


SECRET #    What to Make - Cut Your own Projects3
A - Marble or Gold Pouch


Cut out two rectangular pieces of leather, making 
sure they are the same size.  Punch 4 
medium-sized holes across the tops of the 
two pieces.  Then punch 7 holes on the 
right and left sides of the rectangle, and 
three across the bottom.


Align the two leather pieces together.  With needle & 
thread, start stitching in the first small 


hole from the top left corner.  Pull 
needle thru the first hole from the


back side.  Leave 2' tail.  Use a 
running stitch by pushing needle 


down through the next hole and so
on, as shown. Pull stitches snug as you sew.


At the last hole, reverse direction of stitching and sew back to starting 
point. Note: stitching should now look solid with no gaps in the stitch line. Tie off 
with a square knot in between the pieces.  Lace drawstring through the remaining 
holes at the top. Add a bead to both cords before finishing with an overhand tie 
knot.  Slide a bead to hold bag closed as desired.  Add more beads or feathers, 
dangles, etc., to personalize.


1
2


3


B - Diamond Shape Key Chain


1 From a piece of leather,
cut out a diamond shape.


2 Punch a hole at the top corner using a 
leather punching tool.  Next, create a
design with any stamping tool of your 


choice.  One idea is to create a
pattern or border along the


edges.3
Put a chain through the hole and connect. You are finished!


C - Tie-On Wristband


D - Indian Headband


1


From a piece of leather, 
cut out a long piece of 


leather to fit your 
wrist. Round the 


edges.


2 Punch a hole on each end of the wristband using a 
leather punching tool.  Next, create a design with 


any stamping tool of 
your choice.  One idea 
is to create a pattern or 
border along the 
edges.


3
Tie strings to each end of the
wristband.  Personalize by decorating with dangles, beads, or 
feathers.


Find or cut a long skinny piece
of leather. Cut to fit your head.  


Decorate with a 
marker or stamp.


1 2


3 Tie ends together using a square knot. The 
extra cord length makes a great bead dangle 
with a knot at each end or it may be cut off.


Punch a hole on 
each end of the 


headband 
using a 
leather 
punch tool.


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow-Wow Pages 2013 - Secret 3.pdf   8/8/2013   6:46:15 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







52 Crafts


How to Make Medallions:


A - Arrowhead Medallion


1 Cut out an arrowhead 
shape from a piece of 
leather.  (Sometimes it 
helps to draw the shape 
before cutting it.)


2 Design by 
decorating the 
shape using 
leather stamps, 
markers, or a 
branding tool.


3 With a leather
punching tool, punch a hole 
at the top of your shape.


4 Cut some wax cord to the 
length preferred when wearing 
around your neck.  Thread 
through the hole of the leather 


and tie using a Lark's
Head knot, as shown.


5


Have fun by creating other Medallions by 
cutting different shapes and the steps 
above.   Here are some examples:


SECRET #   Beads Motivate Participation & Recognize Achievement4


Decorate the necklace 
by stringing beads on 
each side of the knot. 
Create a decorative 
pattern using pony 
beads, metallic beads, 
piping, etc.


B - Diamond
C - Skin / Hide Shape
D - Concho
E - Slide / Shield
F - Badge
G - Bear
H - Oval
I - Bell
J - Teddy Bear
K - Stylistic Heart
L - Star
M - Dragon Scale
N - Cowboy Hat
O - Cross
P - Daisy Shape
Q - Cowboy Boot
R - USA
S - Number One
T - Horse Head
U - Southwest Design
V - Utah 
W - Hexagon
X - Triangle
Y - Large Shield
Z - Posse's Star Badge
AA - Train
BB - Pine Tree
CC - Heart


B C
D E


F G H I


J K L M N


O P Q R S


T U V W X


Y Z AA BB CC


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow-Wow Pages 2013 - Secret 4.pdf   8/8/2013   6:47:51 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







53


SECRET # LEATHER CRAFT IS FUN!


Create Easy-to-Do Leather Stamping Projects to use as recognition totems.  Your 
Scouts may build a variety of other Projects such as: Leather Magnets, Key Chains, 
Book Marks, Bolo Necklace, Zipper Pull, Christmas Ornaments, Picture Frame, Hair 
Barrette, or Wristband with the selected pre-cut Leather Stamping Shapes.  You are 
only limited by your imagination.  You will need an assortment of Beads, Cord or 
Lace, Magnets, and Key Chains available at Beck Leather or local craft store.


You will need your own stamping tools and mallet to create the 
Stamping Designs, & hole punch for holes.  Starter Kits are an 
inexpensive way to collect your basic supplies for your Pack or Den.


5


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow-Wow Pages 2013 - Secret 5.pdf   8/8/2013   6:49:42 PM


Leather Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







54 Crafts


B
A


SIC
 Y


O
U


T
H


A
M


E
R


IC
A


N
 H


E
R


ITA
G


E


D
R


E
A


M
C


AT
C


H
E


R


KIT CO
N


TAIN
S:


5” Pre-wrapped hoop,
string,beads and
feathers for dangles


E
A


SY TO
M


A
K


E
!


# 250715


M
IR


R
O


R
D


A
N


G
LE


3 Step :
Fold 3 of the 7” pieces in half and attach them


 to the ring as show
n in


the figures below
.


5 Step :


4 Step :
Thread 3 pony beads onto each string end.  Tie the string an
inch dow


n on the feather shaft.  Place a sm
all am


ount
of glue on the feather shaft and then slide the beads dow


n on
the shaft as show


n.  R
epeat this for the other string end.


R
epeat the above instructions for the next tw


o feather pairs.


YO
U


TH
 D


R
E


A
M


 C
ATC


H
E


R
 H


ow
-To-Instruction


1 Step :
Tie one end of the 70” piece of string to the brow


n ring,
tie a double knot to m


ake sure it is secure.


2 Step :
U


se the follow
ing diagram


s as a guide for creating your dream
 catcher


w
eb.  There w


ill be five circular row
s. Try to space each loop evenly in


each row
.  Pull the string firm


ly after each loop.  A
ttach each new


 loop
to the m


iddle of the previous row
’s loop.  W


hen finished, tie the string
end into a double knot and trim


 off the excess ends.
Rem


em
ber to pull string snugly after each loop.


C
ongratulations!! Your D


one!


N
ow


 tie the last string on the top of the loop to m
ake the hanger.


D
R


EA
M


 C
AT


C
H


ER
 LEG


EN
D


Sio
u


x leg
en


d
 speak


s to
 u


s o
f th


e d
r


ea
m


 c
atc


h
er


, th
ey ar


e believ
ed


to
 c


atc
h


, filter
, an


d
 pr


eser
v
e yo


u
r


 c
h


er
ish


ed
 d


r
ea


m
s.  M


o
st tim


es
th


ey ar
e h


u
n


g
 abo


v
e th


e bed
 o


r
 w


in
d


o
w


 to
 sift th


e bad
 spir


its o
r


d
r


ea
m


s.  T
h


ese w
ill g


et c
au


g
h


t in
 th


e w
eb an


d
 d


isappear
 w


ith
 th


e
m


o
r


n
in


g
 su


n
, so


 th
at o


n
ly th


e g
o


o
d


 r
em


ain
s.  D


r
ea


m
 c


atc
h


er
s ar


e
believ


ed
 to


 bless th
e sleepin


g
 o


n
e w


ith
 pleasan


t d
r


ea
m


s, g
o


o
d


 lu
c


k
,


an
d


 h
ar


m
o


n
y to


 fo
llo


w
 th


em
 th


r
o


u
g


h
o


u
t th


eir
 liv


es.  T
h


ey ar
e g


iv
en


to
 fa


m
ily an


d
 fr


ien
d


s w
h


o
 ar


e lo
v
ed


 an
d


 c
h


er
ish


ed
.  T


h
ey ar


e also
 g


iv
en


to
 n


ew
bo


r
n


 babies an
d


 ar
e h


u
n


g
 fr


o
m


 th
eir


 c
r


ib to
 k


eep th
em


 safe an
d


 sec
u


r
e.


w
w


w
.b


e
ckle


ath
e


r.co
m


B
e


ck C
am


p
 &


 C
rafts S


u
p


p
ly, LLC


.


Warning: Small Parts -CHOKING HAZARD– Not  for Children under 3 years


B
EC


K
 LEATH


ER &
 C


R
A


FTS   7884 So
u


th
 R


ed
w


o
o


d
 R


o
ad


  801-567-1115


CMYC
M


M
Y


C
Y


C
M
YK


P
o
w
 
W
o
w
 
2
0
1
3
 
 
Y
o
u
t
h
 
D
r
e
a
m
 
C
a
t
c
h
e
r
 
6
.
p
d
f
 
 
 
8
/
8
/
2
0
1
3
 
 
 
6
:
5
6
:
1
2
 
P
M


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







55


Use as a Zipper Pull for Back Packs
and Jackets or as Key Ring Holder


Materials:  Needs 50 Pony Beads (Glow in Dark) &  2 yards Artificial Sinew or Plastic Lace


1Step     NOSE:  Center 1st Bead on Lace or Cord.  Wrap the Cord around the Bead by taking 
the Cord back through the hole a second time.


2Step     String two beads on one Cord.  Place strung beads over 1st Bead forming a triangle.  
String other cord end through both beads as shown. Hint: Cord or Lace Ends go through beads 
in opposite directions.  Attach Non-Swivel Hook or Key Ring to Cord going around 1st Bead as 
shown.


3Step      EYES: String one Eye (Dark) Colored Bead, then one body color Bead, and then 
another Eye (dark) Colored Bead.  Work as in step #2.  


4Step      HEAD:  String 4 Body colored Beads on Lace or Cord.  Use the other Cord End and 
lace through the 4 beads as shown by taking the Cord back through the same hole a second time. 
Repeat this process with 5 beads for the next line of the head as shown.  Repeat process again 
with 4 beads this time.


5Step      BODY:  Follow the 4 bead line with 3 beads as shown.  Wrap the Cord around the 
Bead by taking the Cord back through the hole a second time.  String 2 Beads on one cord and 
work as in step #2 by taking the Cord back through the same hole a second time.  Repeat with 2 
Beads ten more times as shown.


6Step      TAIL: String one Bead on lace or Cord and lace other cord through the Bead Hole as 
shown.  Repeat 5 times and tie two double knots to secure your Snake.  The extra cord may be 
used for a medallion or necklace to wear your Alien Bead Snake.


BEAD


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


Pow Wow 2013 Alien Bead Snake Instructions7.pdf   8/8/2013   6:59:08 PM


Leather Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







56 Crafts


#499550


Warning: Small Parts -CHOKING HAZARD– Not  for Children under 3 years


Create (1)  
One Cobra


Style  
Braided 


Fused  
Two Color 


Survival 
BraceletAssorted 


   Colors


1/2 “ Curved
Plastic Buckle


HOW TO MAKE a SURVIVAL BRACELET with   PLASTIC BUCKLE using COBRA STITCH


STEP 3: Pull loose ends through the other end of the 
buckle fig 3  (male part) and fit loosely around your wrist 
( fig 4 ) (snap buckle parts together).  This creates the 
length of your bracelet. 


( Figure 6 ) : 
Cross strand A over 
strand B and C.   Slip 
strand A behind 
strand D.  Pull tightly 
on strands A and D. 
Make sure the stitch 
is pushed up to the top 
knot.  Keep strands B 
and C straight as shown.


STEP 4: Do the cobra stitch: Start  by crossing strands 
behind buckle to create alternating colors as shown 
( fig 5 ) .


a b c d


Size wr ist


d


a


a
cb


d
6


a


d a


b cd


a


7 


1 2  3 4 5


8


10 


11


12


 ( Figure 8 ) :  Now you have two 
completed stitches. Follow the
patterns again,  starting over with 
step five.


Fuze End


Easy To 
  Make


Bracelet Wristband Kit
EZ SURVIVAL


Adjustable To Fit Any Size Wrist


STEP 1: Fuse two color 
strands of Paraline cord (each
1-1/2 yards)  together to 
make one strand 3 yards long
as shown.  Be careful not to
burn yourself when fuzing. 
( fig 1 )


STEP 2: Tie a Larks
Heads (or two half
hitches) knot to the
buckle end (clip part).
The fused seam should 
show on top. ( fig 2 
as shown )


   STEP 5 : ( Figure 6 ) :  Fold 
   strand D behind strand C and B. 
   Cross strand D over strand A.


 STEP 6 : ( Figure 7 ) : 
 For the next stitch, 
 cross  strand D over 
 strands B  and C. 
 Slip strand D 
  under strand A.


 ( Figure 7 ) :  Fold strand 
A behind strands C and B. 
Cross strand A over strand D. 
Pull tightly on strands A 
and D.  Make sure the
stitch is  pushed up to the 
top knot.   Keep strands 
B and C straight.


9


 STEP 7 : ( Figure 9 and 10 ) :  
Once you have achieved the 
desired length,  secure the 
ends by cutting off any 
excess cord.


STEP 8:  ( Figure 11 ) After Cutting off excess cord, 
Fuse ends to adjacent cord as shown.  Congratulations 
you are all done. ( Figure 12 ) The next one will be 
faster and easier to build.  Make more to give as 
friendship gifts or color coordinate with your outfits.


BECK LEATHER & CRAFTS   7884 South Redwood Road  801-567-1115


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


I Pow Wow 2013 EZ Survival Bracelet Kit.pdf   8/8/2013   7:52:09 PM


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







57Leather Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







58 Crafts


Nature Crafts and Activities
Shelly Zollinger and Jami Myers


January-  
 Bird Feeders: 


Materials Needed: A large pinecone with petals open, several feet of twine, 
peanut butter, a spoon, and birdseed
Directions: 1. Loop twine around several rows of petals on the small end of the 
pinecone.  2. Push peanut butter in among the petals of the pinecone.  3. Press 
birdseed into the peanut butter until the cone is covered.  4. Hang the pinecone 
where the birds can get to it, and watch them gobble.


Pine cone fire starters:  http://www�mrs-adventure�com/2010/10/how-to-make-pine-cone-
fire-starters.html


  
 Activity - how to build a safe fire: 
  Refer to Boy Scout handbook


 Paper Plate Sundial:  
See attached page 


February-
 Forcing Bulbs indoors


Materials Needed: narcissus bulbs for forcing, shallow bowl or 
dish, gravel or marbles
Directions: Fill the container with gravel or marbles to depth of 2 inches.  Place 
the bulbs on top of the gravel, pointed end up.  You can plant as many bulbs as fit 
comfortably but do not crowd them.  Leave at least 1 inch between bulbs.  Add 
more gravel to hold the bulbs in place.  Add water so that it reaches about 1/3 of 
the way up the bulb.  Do not submerge the whole bulb in water.  Too much water 
might cause the bulb to rot.


 Sand Foot Prints
   
 Homemade Bow And Arrow 


 Activity - Bow shooting


March-
 Starting seeds on sponges, plates, and eggshells
  See attached page
 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



ttp://www.mrs-adventure.com/2010/10/how-to-m





59


Terrarium
Materials Needed: An oversize jar (1 to 10 gallons) or a fish aquarium with a 
lid (milk carton), plants, gravel (from a gardening store), charcoal (from a pet or 
aquarium store), potting soil, water, plastic wrap.
Directions: 1.  Choose plants (ferns, mosses, African violets) that flourish in 
high humidity.  Select sizes appropriate for your container.  2. At the bottom of 
your container, layer first an inch of gravel, then about half that much charcoal, 
then at least 2 inches of potting soil.  3.  Look at your plants and plan a balanced 
composition of color, texture, and height.  One by one, make a shallow depression 
in the soil, put a plant’s roots in, and pack soil around it gently.  4. Water the soil 
lightly, and sprinkle water on the leaves, too.  Cover the container.  If it didn’t come 
with a lid, fashion one from plastic wrap.  Water sparsely over time (there won’t be 
much evaporation.)


 Activity – garden pizza
  Make pizza-using vegetables found in a garden.
 
April-
 Grow plants from carrots and other vegetables


Materials Needed: carrot tops, gravel, pie plate or shallow dish, 
small knife.
Directions:  Place layer of gravel in a pie plate or dish about 1 inch deep.  Slice 
the tops off several carrots.   If the carrots still have their greens, cut them off.  
Place the carrot tops on the gravel.  Pour water over the gravel so that it comes up 
around the orange part of the carrot – about ¼ inch.  You don’t want to cover the 
top completely.  Place the pie plate in a light spot, but not in direct sunlight.  Check 
the water level every day.  In about 5 to 7 days sprouts should begin to appear.  


Start plants from cuttings of other plants
Materials Needed:  African violet, drinking glass, distilled water, wax paper, 
rubber band, knife or scissors.
Directions:  Fill a drinking glass or jar with distilled water all the way to the top.  
Cover the op with a piece of wax paper rand secure with a rubber band.  Punch 
1 to 3 holes in the paper.  Cut 1 to 3 healthy green leaves from an African violet 
plant.  Choose mid-sized leaves.  Insert the stems from the leaves into the holes of 
the cover, making sure the stems are always well covered with water.  Place the jar 
in a light but not sunny spot.  There is nothing more to do for 2 to 3 weeks, when 
the new roots will appear. 


 
Activity - plan out a garden, learn about soil, fertilizer etc.


May-
 Plantable mothers day cards
 http://www�hillcitybride�com/2010/11/diy-from-pulp-art-plantable-paper/


Nature Crafts and Activities


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







60 Crafts


 Monster Rocks
Gather rocks and paint like a monster


 Activity – Three rope knot race
You will need 3 ropes per team of 2 players.  Divide into groups of 2.  Participants 
must each tie a bowline knot around their waist and then tie the remaining end 
to the third rope using a sheet bend knot by one player and a square knot by the 
other player.  The strength and correctness of the knots is displayed by the players 
leaning back away from one another with arms out and the rope extended between 
them.  The first team to lean back is he winning team.


June-
 Make fishing pole
 http://www.ahappywanderer.com/2011/07/fishing-game.html


 Go fishing activity


 Walking stick carved and painted


 Go on hike activity


July-
 Weaving a shelter


 Indian headdress from leaves 


 Wind chimes painted like flag


 Water balloon golf game activity


August-
 Stick raft and race


 Leaf printing
Cover your worktable with old newspapers.  Select a leaf and place it face down 
on clean scrap paper.  Brush the entire underside of the leaf with paint.  Carefully 
lift the leaf (using tweezers) and place it paint side down on the paper or fabric.  
Hold the leaf in place with one hand and use the other hand to cover the leaf with 
another piece of scrap paper.  Use the roller to gently press the paint from the leaf 
onto the paper.  Press evenly.  Remove scrap paper, and then carefully lift the leaf, 
pulling straight up. 


 Leaf and flower bingo


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.ahappywanderer.com/2011/07/fishing-game.html





61


September-
 Seedpod canoe and race


 Leaf Treasure hunt/ scavenger hunt


 Fishing pole casting game


October-
 Pressed flowers and leaves


Directions:  Stack 3 sheets of paper, and arrange a few plants on the top sheet.  
Cover the plants with a second layer of several sheets of paper.  Repeat with many 
layers of flowers and papers.  Top the pile off with a sheet of cardboard.  Cover the 
cardboard with weights, and keep the pages pressed for about 1 week.  


 Make place cards for thanksgiving dinner


 Witch broom from twigs – Pinterest.com
   


November-
 Scented pinecone for the widows in neighborhood, Pumpkin pie scent


 Corn cob painting


 Roasted pumpkin seeds carving or painting the pumpkins


December-
 Bow and arrow ornament


 Birdhouse with candy


 Scented pine cones (service)
 http://courtneyandeli�blogspot�com/2011/09/scented-pine-cones�html
 


Evergreen star wrapping paper (service)


Paper Plate Sundial


Materials Needed
Crayons
Paper plate
Sharpened pencil


Nature Crafts and Activities


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







62 Crafts


Pushpins
Ruler
Plastic straw


Directions
1. Prepare Paper Plate
Start this project on a sunny day just before noon.
Use the pencil to poke a hole through the very center of the paper plate. 
Write the number 12 on the edge of the plate with a crayon. Using the ruler 
as a guide, draw a straight line from the number 12 to the hole in the center 
of the plate.
2. Take Plate Outside
At noon, take the plate and the straw outside. Put the plate on the ground 
and poke the straw through the hole. Slant the straw toward the line you 
drew. Now carefully turn the plate so that the shadow of the straw falls along 
the line to the number 12.
3. Fasten Plate to Ground
Fasten the plate to the ground with some pushpins. Have your child predict 
where he/she thinks that the shadow of the straw will be pointing in one 
hour.
4. Check Shadow Position Hourly
One hour later, at one o’clock, check the position of the shadow along the 
edge of the plate and write the number 1 on that spot. Continue each hour 
predicting the position and then checking and marking the actual position 
and time on the edge of the plate.
5. Discuss Your Sun Clock
At the end of the day you and your child will have a sun clock. On the next 
sunny afternoon you will be able to tell time by watching where the shadow 
of the straw falls on your clock.
Note: Observation, prediction and communication are all very important 
science skills. This activity helps to develop them. Be sure to have your child 
talk about why he/she thinks the shadow is moving.


http://www.nwf.org/kids/family-fun/crafts/sundial.aspx


Eggshell Gardens
Materials Needed:
Eggs, Spoon, potting soil, seeds, spray bottle, egg carton or muffin tin, 
plastic wrap


Directions:
Break eggs about 1//3 down from the pointed end.  Rinse the egg and 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.nwf.org/kids/family-fun/crafts/sundial.aspx





63


let it dry.  Using a spoon, fill the egg almost full with potting soil.  Pour 
a little bit of water into each shell to moisten the soil.  Sprinkle several 
seeds over the soil.  Gently press the seeds into the soil.  Before you 
put the shells in the carton, water them gently using a spray bottle.  
Cover loosely with a piece of plastic wrap.  Close the lid of the carton 
and put in a warm dark place.  Check daily to make sure the soil is 
moist.  It may only talk 1 or 2 days for the seeds to sprout.


Sponge Garden
Materials Needed:
Clean sponge, seeds, pie plate or saucer


Directions:
Wet the sponge and squeeze out the excess water.  It should be 
very wet but not dripping.  Sprinkle more seed on the sponge than 
necessary and then shake off the excess.  Place the sponge on the 
dish and put it in a dark, warm place.  The seeds will begin to sprout in 
about 2 days, depending on what kind of seed you use.


Plate Garden
Materials Needed:
Seeds (cress, mustard, alfalfa, wheat, and mung), pie plate or saucer, 
cotton rolls or paper towels, spray bottle


Directions:
Choose a plate large enough to hold several layers of paper towels or 
cotton roll.  Which ever you choose, wet it thoroughly and squeeze 
out the excess water.  You want it to be wet, but not dripping.  Place 
on the plate and sprinkle the seeds evenly.  Place the plate in a warm 
dark place.  In 2 to 3 days they will begin to sprout.  When the sprouts 
are about 1” high, move them to a sunny spot, but not in direct sun.


Nature Crafts and Activities


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







64 Crafts


Neckerchief Slides
Bone Neckerchief Slides


    This is a new and fun way to get the boys to use their imaginations. 


Materials


     Bones- Vertebrae are the most fun  


     Paint- any color


     Marbles- to use for eyes


     Sandpaper- to shape the rough edges


     Glue- to add marbles and other embellishments


Instructions


     Choose any bone.  The smaller animal’ bones work the best for neckerchief 
slides.  Use the sandpaper to smooth out the ruff edges and do some shaping.  Let 
the boys come up with some ideas to make animals or faces.  


Let them paint small areas to make their ideas stand out.  Add marbles to make 
eyes.  Then paint on eyelashes and eyebrows.  This is so much fun.  


The boys will have fun with this especially at Halloween time.  Monster makers, 
maybe.  


Before


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







65


After


Monkey’s Fist neckerchief slide


Neckerchief Slides


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







66 Crafts


Braided Leather Neckerchief Slide
 Cut a small rectangular piece of Leather the size needed for a 


neckerchief slide


Cut two slits lengthwise in the leather about ½ inch from each end.


Pass bottom of strip between strip 2 and 3


Push twist to the bottom


Go to top of strand 1 and put over strip 2 then strip 3 over strip 1 then strip 2 over 
strip 3. 


Pass the bottom end of the strip between strip 2 and 3


1 2 3 4


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







67


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying &
Super Balloon Tying Advanced


Supplies


Balloons- There are all kinds and sizes you can use.  For the purpose of 
making balloon animals we are going to use the long ones.


Balloon pump- Again there are many types. I use one of the PVC pumps.  
You can also use the pressure canister. It is not suggested that you blow 
them up by mounth.  It takes too long and you need a lot of balloons.  


Imagination- You can make almost anything with balloons when using this 
item.  Did you know that you can put things inside of regular balloons?


Scissors- These are used to cut not needed portions of a balloon.


Tips
Learn the different types of twists. Here is a website that helps a lot. It 
has a class-type format. 


The basics are a pinch twist- you need to put two balloons together pinch 
them and then twist them.  


Practice before you need to do balloon tying.


Leave a tail at the end of the balloon so that the air has room to move 
while you are twisting.


When making a string of pearls you only need to hold the first and last 
pearl to keep the twists.  


Some designs use more than one balloon.  Some use less than one 
balloon.


Make yourself a cheat sheet of diagrams for different balloons to boost 
your memory.


Balloons can be used to make arches for events or build castles with 
turretts. Check online for many ideas.


There are online instructions and even classes to teach techniques.  One 
good one is www.balloonhq.com.  It had two classes. With complete 
instructions and lot of commentary.


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying & Super Balloon Tying Advanced


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.balloonhq.com





68 Crafts


Definitions
Twist- This is used to keep a bubble in position.


Soft bubble- This is when you squeeze some of the air out of the area 
before doing a pinch or twist.


Tight bubble- This is used when you want the bubble to be more rigid.  
Do not let any air out of the area before twisting.


Tail- When blowing up the balloon, leave a portion of the balloon 
uninflated.


Pearl- These are small round bubbles.


Locking twist- These twists are use to lock more than one bubble in place.


Rose
This uses three balloons- two for the rose and one for the stem. Here is the 
website to watch how to make this rose.  


         


                


This video makes it clear how to tie this rose  It really is easy:


http://balloonotherapy.blogspot.com/2013/02/flower-rose-2-balloon-
twisting.html


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://balloonotherapy.blogspot.com/2013/02/flower-rose-2-balloon-twisting.html

http://balloonotherapy.blogspot.com/2013/02/flower-rose-2-balloon-twisting.html





69


Balloon Cloth or Weaving
Method one- This is one of the flat weaves. This can be used to make a 
superhero cape for use in Pack meetings or even the superman logo.                


     


                                                                                                                     


www.youdoit.com


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying & Super Balloon Tying Advanced


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.youdoit.com





70 Crafts


Method two- This one is a little more time consuming but it looks better. 
Twist a string of pearls. With another balloon twist another string of pearls.  


          


http://balloonotherapy.blogspot.com/2013/03/checkered-flag-2-balloon-
weaving.html


Arrow
This one can be used for an Arrow of Light ceremony to add a little 
something special to give the boys. 


    


                                      


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







71


Woodcraft
Twiggy Pencil Holder


Materials list:      Tools List: 
A bunch of old dried twigs,    Glue gun for each boy
Or dried weed stems,     glue sticks
Or old tree prunings     hand pruners for each boy
1 vegetable can for each boy    Pans of cold water placed around 
A neutral, natural color    the table in case of the inevitable 
To blend into the background    accidents.
behind the twigs.
Rubber bands


Instructions:


Spray paint your cans in some natural, woodsy color.
Let them dry.  Then place the 2 rubber bands around
the cans, one around the top and one around the bottom.
Allow the boys to cut, trim and arrange the twigs under
 the bands fitting them closely all the way around the can.
With the can resting on the table, [you want it to sit flat]
Have the boys put a dab of glue under the top of each twig.
 When they are cool, they can be lifted to put the glue around 
the bottom row.  Remove the bands, fill with pencils and 
display proudly!


Tip:


  The top looks better if it is somewhat uneven…
Going for that rustic, natural look…Think Woodsey….


Variation:


If you are not into rustic, you can use Popsicle sticks instead
For a nice picket fence look.


Woodcraft


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







72 Crafts


Woodcraft: Rustic Planter


     This is a good project for those resourceful Freecyclers out there.  I like to use old pallets for 
this one, they are commonly available and often free for the taking at various dumpsters around 
town, or for a nominal fee at the local recycling centers.  You will need enough lumber to build 
a box roughly 1ft high x 1 ft wide x 2 ft long of 1”x4” stock … approximately 16 linear feet per 
box, plus a piece of 2x12 that is 2 ft long,  you may have to purchase this piece, I don’t see many 
of these in the recycle bins.  We have used multiple 2x4 stock for the bottoms instead but it gets 
complicated for the boys,  I have had better luck with the large pieces for the bottoms… 


Precut per box: List of additional materials: Tools: 
6  @  1”x4”x24” 1 ½” box nails Hammers
6  @  1”x4”x12” Pliers to hold
4  @  1”x4”x10 ½ ” end braces Optional:     the nails while
4  @  1”x4”x12” side braces black plastic garbage bag     starting them.
Enough bottom boards to for each box, potting soil Measure tapes
  total 11 ½” wide x 2” thick flowers, vegetables or seeds Pencils


Instructions: Build the 4 panels separately, start with the 2 short end pieces.  Place the 10 ½ “ 
braces flush with the ends of the 12” boards do your best to keep it rectangular. The end braces 
go on the inside of the planter so apply them 1 ½ “ up from the bottom to leave room to slide the 
bottom into place before nailing.  Set those aside and build the sides.  The side braces go 4” from 
the ends of the side boards and flush to the bottom of the bottom board.  Use 2 nails for each 
overlap to give stability.  Now the tricky part, attach the end panels to the bottom [be careful to 
not overlap the corners] we have found that it often takes 2 scouts to hold them steady enough 
to nail these, and  then used my picnic table 
benches as a jig… apply the sides.  If you 
kept the end braces flush then there is plenty 
of wood to to hold the nails.     These can 
turn out to be very rustic depending on the 
skill levels of the scouts and the materials 
available, but  line them with the garbage 
bag, fill with dirt and flowers.  You won’t 
find a prouder Cub Scout anywhere. The 
measurements here are only suggestions; 
pallets are often made of nonstandard  
lumber, You may need to do a little fiddling 
with the numbers to fit your materials.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







73


Woodcraft
The Cub Cube or


Brag Box


Materials:    Tools:


For each cube you need  Hammers
2- 4” squares    pliers
4- 5 ½ “ squares   1” finish nails
Yellow paint for base color  tape, masking or duct
Permanent Markers   Wood glue


Instructions:


     Assemble the four sides around the bottom 
square, wrapping a couple of strips of tape 
around the sides as temporary clamps.  Slip 
the top square into the open end and place 
the box on its side, nail and rotate until all 
of the corners have been fastened, adjust the 
bottom and nail it in place, doing the same for 
the top if desired. If not remove and discard.  
Paint your cube a nice light color, let dry and 
proceed to brag.  Some suggestions for the 
themes for each of the 6 sides are….


Suggestions:
Bobcat
Wolf
Bear
Arrow of light
Webelos
Scout


Woodcraft


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







74 Crafts


Woodcraft
The Tool Box


     I like to use recycled lumber for this project.  Old pallets are easy to come by 
and usually for “Free”, however they are often made from non standard dimensional 
lumber…hence some simple math…Measurements are suggestions only.


Materials:    Tools:    Precut:
         2 @ 1”x8”x 12” ends
About 8 linear ft of boards  saws    2 @ 1”x4”x 16” sides
Per box    hammers   1 @ 1”x8”x 14 ½ “
Grabber screws   Philips screw drivers  bottom [note the 
Finish nails    measure tapes   actual number is
Handle[broom or dowel]  drill w/ 2 bits   2x the thickness of
Paint for finish    spade bit for handle   the ends, off length 
     Fine bit/ pre-drill  of sides] Check!!!


Pre cut 2 Ends for length, 
the boys will measure and 
cut the shoulders. Pre-drill 
for handle and screws. It is 
best to have at least a 1”x8” 
for the ends.


Pre-drill the sides for the 
screws.


The handle is either a dowel, 
or an old broom handle. You 
must have a drill bit to match 
the diameter of the handle.


Cut 1 bottom piece. The 
length of the bottom is the 
length of the side minus 
the total height of the 2 
ends stacked together
 [ aprox 1 ½ “] Check!!!


Drive a small nail through the side into 
the handle to secure it.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







75


Woodcraft
Rough Cut
Plaque


List of Tools:


Flat and Philips screwdrivers,   
assorted sizes


Hammer for each boy


Drill with fine bit to start the


Cup hook holes. 


  


List of materials:                                           


Soft pine or fir boards, cut 
into squares. [pattern fits 
5.5inches]


“Dollar Store “ cup hooks,


Medium to Dark wood stain,


Rough sandpaper


Push Pins


Pattern copies


Instructions:


Tape the pattern to the board, crosswise- point to point.  Use the push pin 
to transfer the pattern to half the plaque.  Push firmly on the pin every 


1/8th inch or so.  When you have finished the first half of the pattern 
then flip it face down and follow the dots to finish the other half of 


the design.  You should have a clear pattern on your board now. 
The next step is to follow the dot outline with the flathead 


screwdriver and hammer. It is not necessary to go too 
deep, don’t split your wood. A narrower blade follows 


the curves   more easily. Use the Philips to fill in the 
background if desired.  Brush on and wipe off the 


stain [it will fill the design] Allow to dry ,  then 
sand the surface with the grain to make the 


design pop out.  Install the hook at the 
point of the plaque and hang up your 


proud creation!!


Woodcraft


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







76 Crafts


ADVANCED WOODWORKING 
FOR WEBELOS


Hi Webelos leaders, wood crafts projects can be done for the Craftsman (req #2), 
and the Handyman ( req# )12 activity pins. The first project will be a toy airplane 
the pattern came from a wood plane my dad made years ago and now his grandkids 
are playing with it. Wood toys can last longer than the cheap plastic toys of today. 
There are 2 options a larger and a smaller version. The other project is a stool that 
the directions came from the 2009 POW WOW book.


**When cutting out the wood emphasize to the scouts to cut  outside of the lines, 
they are so used to being told to color inside the lines that they think they need to 
cut inside the lines but that will make the item too small.


**Also when cutting out wood, the wood needs to be clamped down onto a   
workbench so that the wood will not wobble.


** Safety glasses need to be worn


** No horse playing/ any scout that is horse playing   will need to have his


 Parents called to come pick him up and they will need to do the project at home 
themselves.


** The scouts cannot use power tools.  One option on the larger plane is for the 
leader to use a band/ scroll saw to cut out the body and the scout can cut out the 
wings with a coping saw. The smaller version of the plane the scout could cut out 
both the body and the wing with a coping saw. With proper supervision the scouts 
can use these saws. I had my 4 ½ yr. old grandson using the coping saw as I was 
helping him. 


**When hammering a nail or using a screw it helps to drill a pilot hole first, and 
them put glue in the pilot hole, and them put the nail or screw in.  The leader will 
need to drill the pilot hole.    


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







77Advanced Woodworking for Webelos


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







78 Crafts


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







79


HANDYMAN
FIVE-BOARD STOOL


The five board stool is eight inches high, and is patterned after a Colonial stool. Pine was a 
favorite wood for stools of this kind because they are easy to work with and will take a nice 


finish.
The five piece of wood shown are standard- size boards from the lumberyard.  The top is cut 


from a one by eight inch board (which is actually slightly more than ¾ inch thick and about 7-5/8 
inch wide) the ends are cut from a 6 inch board, and the rails from 2 inch stock.


The dimensions shown in the illustration are finished sizes.  In cutting allow a little extra material 
for trimming and finishing to size.  When sawing cut just outside the line in the waste part of the 
board.  Use a cross-cut saw for the straight cuts, and a coping saw for the curves in the ends.  Lay 
out the curved lines with a compass and the beveled ends on the tails with a combination square 
and pencil (or you can use a cardboard pattern).  Use the square for marking the lines for cutting 


the pieces to length as well.  And be sure to use a sharp pencil.
After the parts are cut, trim the ends with a wood file. Then sandpaper all surfaces to a satin 


finish to remove imperfections.  Assemble the stool with two 2 inch finishing nails. And white 
glue at each joint. To prevent splitting the wood, first drill 1/8 inch holes through the rails. Then 


drive the nails just thru the rails and into the ends to locate their position. Next drill the same size 
holes for the nails in the ends, apply some glue and drive in the nails.  Use a nail set to drive the 


heads of the nails slightly below the surface of the wood.
Give the stool a final sanding and apply a coat of satin wax to finish.


This project should be simple enough for all the Webelos to do easily; however it should give 
them an excellent knowledge of the tools of a fine craftsman


Advanced Woodworking for Webelos


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







80 Crafts


NOTES!NOTES!







81


NOTES!NOTES!







82 Leader Helps


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 83


Cub Scouting with Core Value and Themes II  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 87


Cub Scouts Compute  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 103


Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own X-Men  �  �  �  110


Creating Ceremonies   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  113


Pack Meetings That Dazzle  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  116


Finding Success in the Webelos Program �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 123


Creating Meaningful 
Arrow Of Light Advancement Ceremonies    �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 127


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







83


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I


Core ValueCitizenship November
Tiger 2D
Wolf Achievement 2
Bear Achievement 3
Webelos Citizen Activity badge


Heroes of the Revolution


Stage a “hike” with heroes placed at various locations to talk about themselves and what was their 
contributions have been to our country�  Use these heroes to inspire patriotism in our scouts�


A totem can be created by each boy as they go around visiting with these heroes�  It can be a collection of 
stickers or pieces to make a picture like a flag or a bell.


Suggestions of heroes to include:  George Washington, Thomas Jefferson, Benjamin Franklin, Betsy 
Ross, James and Dolly Madison, Paul Revere, Patrick Henry, John Paul Jones�


Compassion March
Tiger elective 11
Wolf Achievement 4 b,c
Bear Achievement 18 b,c & 24
Webelos Family member activity badge


Road Home Donation Scavenger Hunt


For pack meeting, divide your neighborhood into areas and then divide your pack families into groups and 
assign them an area�  Tell them that you are doing a scavenger hunt, for the Road Home and the team 
with the most points wins�  Pass out the list of items and tell the groups that they have 30 minutes to get 
as many items on that list as possible�  They can get multiple items at each home and more than one of 
the same item�


While they are gone, set up sorting/counting tables for the groups, when they come back to use�  Have 
someone at each table to help with the counting and sorting (divide the food from the clothing)� As they 
return, tally their items and then reward the group with the most points�  Reward all of the groups for their 
efforts and explain how important it is to be helping others who cannot always help themselves�


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







84 Leader Helps


Cooperation September
Tiger 2G
Wolf Achievement 10
Bear Achievement 12
Webelos Sportsman activity badge


Team Building Builders


Divided the boys and their families (if activity is done at pack meeting) into teams of 6 to 8 members and 
tell them they will be building the tallest tower possible�  Give each team 2 bags, one with supplies for 
building the tower and the other a bag of disabilities/distractions� Building materials may include: straws, 
tape, glue, craft sticks, toothpicks, marshmallows and pipe cleaners�  The disability bag may include: a 
blindfold, headphones, paper bags to cover one or both hands and a note saying someone must sit the 
whole time and not use his legs� There doesn’t need to be a disability for everyone in the group�


The object of the game is simple: create the tallest tower in the allotted time, using the materials given, 
using everyone in your group and communicating with each other without talking�  Give them 10-20 
minutes to create their tower�


After time is up, congratulate the teams on a great job and reward them for the work they have done�  
Talk to them about what it means to work together�  Ask them about what it was like to have the different 
disabilities, to try to include everyone, what was hard and what was fun� 


Courage  July
Tiger 3F b
Wolf Achievement 12
Bear Achievement 11
Webelos Readyman activity badge


Medals of Honor


Over the course of the year, or at least several months prior, watch the boys and note the times they show 
courage�  Were they courageous at Cub Country by participating in a certain activity? Was their courage 
shown when they called the flag ceremony or invited a friend to join him in scouting?  Did you hear 
about him standing up for someone at school or at a den meeting?  Write them down and then have an 
awards night and hand out “Badges of Courage”�  You can choose to spotlight the boys as superheroes 
by dressing them in capes and giving them medals of Honor or more formal like the military with their 
medals�  Either way, focus on one boy at a time and show that there are many ways to be courageous�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







85


Faith April
Tiger Elective 8
Wolf Achievement 11
Bear Achievement 1 & 2
Webelos Badge


Legacy of Faith 


Faith is a value that is very personal but is a great one to share�  Invite families to share stories of faith 
from their own family history or stories of their heroes from history�  The story time can be done in small 
groups or in a large group – campfire type setting.  Families can just tell their story or act it out.  They can 
bring props and pictures to help enhance the story�  As the stories are being shared, share treats to keep 
everyone’s attention�


Health and Fitness  May
Tiger 3
Wolf Achievement 3
Bear Achievement 16 & 9
Webelos Athlete and Fitness activity badge


Where does our food come from?


Fieldtrip!  Our health is closely related to the food that we eat�  Take a tour of a local grocery store or local 
farm and see where we get our food�  Find out where they get our food to sell to us or maybe what types 
of food grow best in our area.  Before you go on the fieldtrip, talk with the boys about the food pyramid 
and help them come up with questions about the food growing and distribution process�  If possible, 
purchase fresh produce to have as a snack after the tour�


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







86 Leader Helps


Pack
Food & clothing Drive Scavenger 


Hunt


Clothing Items Wanted


Coat - 50 pts
Jacket - 40 pts
New Underwear in package – 30 pts
New socks in package – 30 pts
Sheets – 25 pts
Pillow – 20 pts
Blanket – 15 pts
Hats, gloves, scarves – 10 pts each
Shoes, Slippers – 10 pts each
Shirts, pants, skirts, dresses – 5 pts each
Towels – 5 pts small, 10 pts large


Food Items Wanted


Toilet Paper (4 pack) - 10 pts
Toothbrush, toothpaste (new) – 10 pts each
Napkins – 5 pts
Chili – 5 pts
Tuna Fish – 5 pts
Canned Chicken – 5 pts
Cereal – 5 pts
Mac ‘N Cheese – 3 pts
Soup – 3 pts
Veggies – 1 pt
Fruits – 1 pt
Tomato Sauce – 1 pt
Juice – 1 pt
Noodles – 1 pt


Pack
Food & clothing Drive Scavenger 


Hunt


Clothing Items Wanted


Coat - 50 pts
Jacket - 40 pts
New Underwear in package – 30 pts
New socks in package – 30 pts
Sheets – 25 pts
Pillow – 20 pts
Blanket – 15 pts
Hats, gloves, scarves – 10 pts each
Shoes, Slippers – 10 pts each
Shirts, pants, skirts, dresses – 5 pts each
Towels – 5 pts small, 10 pts large


Food Items Wanted


Toilet Paper (4 pack) - 10 pts
Toothbrush, toothpaste (new) – 10 pts each
Napkins – 5 pts
Chili – 5 pts
Tuna Fish – 5 pts
Canned Chicken – 5 pts
Cereal – 5 pts
Mac ‘N Cheese – 3 pts
Soup – 3 pts
Veggies – 1 pt
Fruits – 1 pt
Tomato Sauce – 1 pt
Juice – 1 pt
Noodles – 1 pt


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







87


Cub Scouting with Core Value and 
Themes II


Youth’s Frontier
Making Ethical Decisions
Great Salt Lake Council B.S.A. A Pathway to the Future Pow Wow 1987 Page H-42
Cub Scout Leaders have at least three opportunities to directly influence ethical decision-making 
by Cubs.


1. Personal example as an ethical person.
2. Counseling. Be available, open, and responsive to Cubs who have problems.
3. Closing thought. Weekly opportunity to stress values such as honesty, fairness, and respect 


for other people in Den and monthly Pack meetings.


Cub Scouting’s 12 CORE VALUES
1. Citizenship  2. Compassion  3. Cooperation
4. Courage   5. Faith   6. Health and fitness
7. Honesty   8. Perseverance  9. Positive attitude
10. Resourcefulness 11 . Respect   12. Responsibility


Character development is a part of everything we do. Our goal as Akelas is to seek out 
opportunities to use character development in our den, pack meetings, and any time. We can do 
character connections with any activity; for example service projects, ceremonies, games, skits, 
songs, crafts, etc.)


CHARACTER CONNECTIONS
Character is developed through three critical areas: (1) knowledge, (2) commitment, and (3) 
practice. These are the basis of the Cub Scout Character Connections®.


Know: What do I think or know? (about the core value, about the experience, about the context, 
etc.)


Commit: How do I feel? (about this value, is it difficult to do, how did this experience make me 
feel, etc.)


Practice: What can I do? (practice this at school, at home, with my friends, etc.)


More information on Character Development:
http://www.scouting.org/sitecore/content/Home/CubScouts/resources/Character%20Development.aspx 


Cub Scout Character Development: Ideas for Connecting Core Values with Outdoor Activities   
http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/510-097.pdf 


This page has many resources for Akelas and links to more information:
http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.
aspx 


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes II


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/sitecore/content/Home/CubScouts/resources/Character Development.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/510-097.pdf

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide.aspx





88 Leader Helps


Honesty     August
Bobcat Trail (keeping your word, doing your best, trust)
Bear Achievement 18H (clear and accurate in what you say & write)


Flying Embers
Great Salt Lake Council
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 17 Issue 12 - July 2011 Honesty


 ♣ One boy is “It”. 
 ♣ Everyone else scatters in the playing area. 
 ♣ On signal, “It” tries to tag another boy. 
 ♣ If a boy is tagged, that boy puts his hand on the spot where he was tagged. 
 ♣ The player who is tagged becomes “It”. 
 ♣ He then tries to tag another Cub Scout while holding on to the spot where he was
 ♣ tagged. If a boy is tagged on the head, he must place his hand on his head and then try
 ♣ to tag another person. 
 ♣ The game is played with only one “It”.


Hint: The best place to tag a person is on the foot. They have to place one hand on the 
foot and hop around, trying to tag another person.
Reflection: 


• Do you know what being honest is? 
• Did you do that in this game? 
• What about when you were touched but you didn’t think you were? 
• Is it important to be honest? 
• Is it hard to be honest? 
• Has anyone not been honest with you? 
• How did you feel when you found out that they were not honest?


Positive Attitude     January
Wolf Achievement 6A (through something difficult or challenging, how does it help)
Webelos Scholar (BEST – Believe it can happen, Expect success, Set your mind, and Try, try, try)


Pollyanna’s Glad Game
Alice, Golden Empire Council
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 17 Issue 5 Den - December 2010 Positive Attitude
In the classic childrens book Pollyanna, the main character is a young girl who makes a game of 
positivity, by finding the good in absolutely everything. Her father inspired the game when he 
helped her deal with a disappointing Christmas gift by finding a reason to be glad. Instead of a 
doll, she was given crutches. Her father said she could be glad because she didn’t need them.
The take-off on this is to create a scenario that seems negative and then talk about it and look for 
ways to “find the good” in the situation.  Scouts can be very creative in looking for and finding a 
new way to look at something.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







89


Perseverance     June
Webelos Athlete (difficult times or task)


Perseverance
2010-2011 CS RT Planning Guide
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 18 Issue 10 - May 2012 Perseverance
Directions:


 Ì Make a crooked loop course marked with cones or rope on the floor. 
 Ì Give each Relay Team a stick to push an object around the course. 
 Ì The boys must push the objects and not hit them with the stick. 
 Ì The harder the object is to control, the better, but it has to be doable. 
 Ì Use spoons, two-liter bottles, balloons, or plastic eggs. 
 Ì As a variation, use pieces of cardboard instead of sticks, and blow the object around the 


course. 
Character Connection: Perseverance 
After the game, ask the boys how they did. 
Some of them had a more difficult time than others. 


 9 Was it easy? Did you feel like quitting? 
 9 Do you know what perseverance is? 
 9 Why was it important not to give up on the game? 
 9 Can you say that you persevere at things? 
 9 How will you persevere at things this week at school and home?


See Fun for the Family, No. 33012, for family activities related to this month’s Core Value, 
PERSEVERANCE�


Resourcefulness     February
Bear Achievement 12G (project resources, substitutes, review)


What If?
Alice, Golden Empire Council
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 17 Issue 6 Pack- January 2011 Resourcefulness
Games that have more than one way to play encourage kids to think and tap into their 
resourcefulness.   You can adapt almost any game to be a “What If ” one.  Explain the game, or 
have the boys go over the rules for a well-known game.  
Now come up with some “What If…. changes to make to the game.  There are no wrong answers 
to these kinds of questions. The idea is to suggest changes in the rules, the equipment, the playing 
area, the number of players, how the team is formed – then challenge the boys to play the game 
using the new changes.   
After you play the game, ask the boys which way was easier, more fun – and ask them why.  Then 
let the boys come up with their own “What If ” games to try.


Baloo’s Bugle website: http://usscouts.org/bbugle.asp 
The Materials found in Baloo’s Bugle may be used by Scouters for Scouting activities provided 
that Baloo’s Bugle and the original contributors are cited as the source of the material. 


Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes II


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://usscouts.org/bbugle.asp





90 Leader Helps


Respect     December
Tiger 4F (talking and listening @ dinner table, courtesy vs interrupt)
Wolf Achievement 7A (how we treat something – clean up after yourself)
Bear Achievement 8G (people & property)
Webelos Naturalist (wildlife)


Movie Review Poster
Cub Scout Program Helps, 2002-2003, Page10 MAY
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 18 Issue 4 - November 2011 Respect
On a piece of poster-board, write, “Upcoming feature: [name
of the Scout] – A New Webelos Scout.” Each boy draws a
self- portrait under his name or glues on a photo. Den
members write compliments about him and glue them on the
poster like a movie review. Place 5 stars by each comment.
Display these posters at the pack meeting.


 Ü What do you think it means to show respect? Have the scouts draw a self-portrait and have 
the Den members write compliments about him and glue them onto a poster. Who was 
showing respect in making these posters?


 Ü How did you feel about showing your respect for others by saying nice things? How did you 
feel when others said nice things about you?


 Ü Can you think of ways you show respect for people? What can you do to other people you 
meet, or your family, to show your respect for them?


Responsibility     October
Tiger 1F (my part, doing a chore: hard, how well)
Wolf Achievement 9A (develop safe habits)
Webelos Handyman (my part, chores – jobs)
Responsibility Games:
Alice, Golden Empire Council
Baloo’s Bugle: Volume 18 Issue 2 - September 2011 Responsibility
- Who’s Responsible? 
A variation on an old game.  The boys sit in a circle holding hands.  One boy leaves the room and 
the leader identifies one boy to be “Responsible” – his job is to start the game on signal.  “It” is 
called back into the room, and the boy who is Responsible begins to squeeze the hand of the boy 
on his left or right.  The squeeze continues around the circle in the same direction, from boy to 
boy.  Meanwhile, the boy in the center is trying to figure out where the action started.  When the 
squeeze comes back to the beginning, the boy who is Responsible starts the squeeze again – but in 
the opposite direction.   Whenever the boy in the middle thinks he knows Who is Responsible – 
he walks over and challenges that person.  He has three chances to guess, and then he is Out – the 
person who was Responsible now becomes “It.”
After you play the game a few times, talk about whether it was easy or hard to identify who 
was responsible.  Is it like that in real life sometimes?  To people sometimes act as if they are 
responsible when they are not?  What about when something goes wrong?  Are we tempted to say 
someone else was responsible?  Why?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







91


Cub Scouting, Now What?


At first, Cub Scouting seems like a foreign country and you just can’t tell what step to take first. Well, here is some 
information that will hopefully get you started on the right foot developed from master scouting at our national level. 
There is information in these pages from the Cubmaster to the pack trainer and every position in-between.


1 GETTING STARTED
A Training


•	 Youth Protection


•	 Fast Start


•	 This is Scouting


•	 Leadership Specific


•	 Hazardous Weather


•	 Safe Swim


•	 Monthly Round Table


•	 Yearly Pow Wow


•	 Training in Italics available online @ gslc-bsa.org


So You’re a New Cubmaster
I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now that you are registered as a Cubmaster, you will receive Scouting magazine, which includes 
information to assist you as a leader. A main source of program helps will be the Den & Pack Meeting 
Resource Guide. Much of this publication is available online at http://www.scouting.org/ scoutsource/
CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources.aspx. These steps will get you started:


1. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book. (To start right away, you may need to borrow a copy 
until you can get your own.) This book describes your role as Cubmaster and will give more information 
on the following steps.
2. Get acquainted with the other leaders in your pack. You will need their assistance in carrying 
out a successful pack program. You will be working closely with the pack committee chairperson and 
pack trainer.
3. Get acquainted with your unit commissioner. The commissioner is a friend to your pack and will 
be glad to answer questions and help in other ways to make your pack program successful. (See the Cub 
Scout Leader Book.)
4. Get acquainted with your unit-serving executive. This professional Scouter is employed by 
the council to serve all Scouting units in your district, and will do everything possible to help you be 
successful.
5. With the help of the pack committee, pack trainer, and the Den & Pack Meeting Resource 
Guide, plan your first pack meeting. Include the plans made at the last pack annual planning conference. 
Your key to success is “KISMIF” (Keep It Simple, Make It Fun.”


Cub Scouting, Now What?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







92 Leader Helps


6. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leaders’ roundtable. You will receive many good 
program ideas based on the monthly core value, and become acquainted with Cubmasters from other 
packs. They will share ideas and experiences with you. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive 
can tell you when and where the roundtable meets.
7. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training as soon as possible. There are two components to this 
training—Cubmaster Leader Specific Training, a specialized session to help you successfully plan a 
successful pack program, and This Is Scouting, which is attended by leaders in all program areas. These 
will give you the foundation you need to become an effective and successful leader. Every boy deserves 
trained and qualified leaders. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can give you information 
about training sessions. These training sessions can all be taken online at https://myscouting.org.
8. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible. It is comfortable 
and suitable for all Cub Scout meetings and activities. Wearing the uniform is important in setting a good 
example for the boys. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can tell you where to obtain the 
uniform and insignia.
9. As soon as possible, establish a working relationship with a neighborhood Boy Scout troop 
and Scoutmaster. You will need their help in obtaining den chiefs (older Boy Scouts or Venturers) and 
graduating Webelos Scouts into Boy Scouts.
Don’t hesitate to ask for help. There are many people who want to help you provide the finest possible 
Cub Scout experience for the boys in your pack.
By the time you have completed these steps, you will be well on your way to becoming a successful 
Cubmaster.


You, the Cubmaster
You were selected as Cubmaster and approved by the pack committee because of your interest in helping 
boys. It is your pack responsibility to coordinate the efforts of all the leaders in the pack so that the Cub 
Scout program works the way it should. By making the commitment to serve as Cubmaster, you have 
accepted the following responsibilities.
• Conduct the pack program according to the policies of the Boy Scouts of America.
• Plan and carry out the Cub Scout program in the pack. This includes conducting regular monthly pack 
meetings.
• Know about the Cub Scouting literature, including the Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide, the 
Webelos Leader Guide, the Cub Scout Leader Book, Boys’ Life, and Scouting magazine.
• See that the pack program, leaders, and Cub Scouts reflect positively the interest and objectives of the 
chartered organization and the Boy Scouts of America.
• Work with the pack committee on program ideas, selecting adult leaders, and establishing a pack budget 
plan.
• Guide and support den leaders. See that they receive the required training for their positions.
• HelporganizeaWebelosden(ordens)andencouragegraduationintoaBoyScouttroop.
• Maintain a good relationship with families; seek their support and include them in activities.
• See that Tiger Cubs, Cub Scouts, and Webelos Scouts receive a quality, year-round program that is filled 
with fun and activities and qualifies the dens and pack for the National Summertime Pack Award.
• Guide Cub Scouts in goodwill and conservation projects.
• See that the responsibilities specified for the assistant Cubmaster are carried out.
• Assist the pack committee chairperson in conducting the annual program planning conference and 
monthly pack leader’s meeting.
• Take part in charter review and the annual charter presentation ceremony.
Your unit commissioner will be glad to explain any of these responsibilities that you do not understand.


The Pack Meeting
Pack meetings are usually held in a location provided by the chartered organization, once a month, in the 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







93Cub Scouting, Now What?


evening. The meeting day and time are set by the pack committee and should be the same each month to 
prevent confusion. Pack meetings are led by the Cubmaster and last approximately 75 minutes. All dens 
and their families attend the pack meeting.
The pack meeting program includes the following:
1. The Gathering Period. Families are welcomed as they arrive. They view den displays and 
participate in a pre-opening activity such as a game or stunt.
2. Main Part of the Meeting. Dens sit together. One den usually leads the opening ceremony, which 
can be a pledge to the flag, a song, or some other activity in which everyone takes part. There are games, 
den stunts or skits, demonstrations, recognition ceremonies, and songs, with families participating.
3. Closing. Make announcements and reminders about upcoming pack activities and business, and 
hold a closing ceremony that is short and inspirational.
The Cubmaster ensures that in each month of the year there is a pack meeting (or special pack activity) 
that is enjoyed by Cub Scouting families and provides an opportunity for recognition for the boys’ 
accomplishments.
Other common pack activities include a blue and gold banquet in February, pinewood derby and space 
derby, physical fitness competitions, and bicycle safety programs. Your unit commissioner can give you 
information about these activities.


B Den Meeting Plans
http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/
DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/DenMeetingPlans.aspx


C Cub Scout Den Leader Guide
Den Leader http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/resources/TheNewCubScoutDenLeaderKit.aspx
 Webelos: http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/510-247.pdf


So You’re a New Tiger Cub
Den Leader
Tiger Cubs is for first- grade boys (or those who are 7 years old) and their adult partners. In the Tiger Cub 
den, this team is introduced to the excitement of Cub Scouting as they tread the Tiger trail. The Tiger Cub 
den builds stronger families through involvement in a program that is flexible and fun for the boys and the 
adults. A shared leadership component, where a den leader works with the boy and adult partner teams, 
gives everyone input into the operation of the activities.


Tiger Cub Den Leadership
The success of a Tiger Cub den depends on active, enthusiastic families working alongside a 
knowledgeable, well-trained den leader. The Tiger Cub den leader plans and carries out a year-round 
program of activities for the Tiger Cub den and gives the program continuity. Using the concept of shared 
leadership, the Tiger Cub den leader works with a different boy–adult partner team each month to plan 
two den meetings, a Go See It outing, and the den’s part in the pack meeting. (Some teams may serve 
more than one month, depending on den size.)
Shared leadership is a key element of the Tiger Cub program because direct adult involvement is 
important for boys at this age. Through this sharing of leadership, each boy and adult partner team is 
given an opportunity to lead. Shared leadership also brings a wealth of knowledge and variety to the 
program as each host team has something different to bring to the program. As a Tiger Cub den leader, 
you will provide experience and continuity throughout the program year.


Leadership Training
Your pack leadership (pack trainer) should offer you an opportunity to complete training online under Cub 
Scouts/Adult Leaders/Training at www.myscouting.org. This training will immediately orient you to the 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/DenMeetingPlans.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/DenLeaderResources/DenandPackMeetingResourceGuide/DenMeetingPlans.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/resources/TheNewCubScoutDenLeaderKit.aspx

http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/510-247.pdf





94 Leader Helps


Tiger Cub program before your first meeting with your Tiger Cub den. A member of your pack leadership 
team will contact you within two or three days after you take the training to review the information with 
you and answer questions. Youth Protection training for all Scouting volunteers is
also available through www.myscouting.org. Effective June 1, 2010, Youth Protection training is required 
for all BSA registered volunteers, regardless of their position(s).
As soon as possible, you should plan to complete online training. Your pack leadership can provide you 
with dates and times of sessions in your district if class training is available. There are two components to 
this training—Tiger Cub den leader specific training, a specialized session to help you successfully plan 
an exciting Tiger Cub den program, and This Is Scouting, which is required for leaders in all program 
areas.


Tiger Cub Uniform
The uniform is an important part of the Tiger Cub program. It identifies the boys and adults with the 
program and gives them a sense of belonging to the den, to the pack, and to the Boy Scouts of America. 
Most boys love wearing their Tiger Cub uniform. They should wear it to all den meetings, pack meetings, 
and special pack activities.
The Tiger Cub uniform is the navy blue Cub Scout uniform shirt, with the orange Tiger Cub neckerchief 
and slide. The official Tiger Cub cap and blue web belt with a Tiger Cub buckle are optional. Adult 
partners wear the orange activity T-shirt. The Tiger Cub den leader should wear the official Cub Scout 
leader uniform. The Tiger Cub cap and Tiger Cub den leader neckerchief are optional.


When Do Tiger Cub Dens Meet?
To experience the fun, excitement, and other benefits of Scouting, Tiger Cubs and their adult partners 
attend four meetings each month. Twice a month they will meet at the host family home or place of choice 
for a den meeting. Once a month they will take a field trip or outing, which is called a “Go See It.” Once a 
month they will attend the Cub Scout pack meeting.
Tiger Cub den meetings are held at a time that is convenient for the adult partners and appropriate for 
Tiger Cub–age boys. Each meeting should last no longer than one hour.


Where Do Tiger Cub Dens Meet?
The den meeting place will vary depending on the resources of that month’s host adult partner. If there is 
sufficient space in the home of the host team, this would be the ideal meeting place. Meetings could also 
be held in a backyard, park, or apartment activity room. Some dens meet at the chartered organization’s 
meeting space or in a local school.


Seven Steps for a GRrrrEAT Tiger Cub Den Meeting
Tiger Cub den meetings are opportunities for Tiger Cubs and their adult partners to go somewhere or do 
something new. Den meetings are structured around the Cub Scout motto “Do Your Best.” The Tiger Cub 
den meeting plan in the Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide uses the following pattern, which divides 
the meeting into seven parts. Activities are planned around the Cub Scout monthly core value.
1. Before the Meeting. The den leader and the host adult partner take time to make preparations, to 
gather supplies, set out the U.S. flag and den flag, and to take care of any last-minute items before the 
boys and adult partners arrive.
2. Gathering. Before the meeting begins, have a game, puzzle, or other activity to keep the Tiger 
Cubs busy until everyone has arrived.
3. Opening. At the first few meetings, you might want to recite the Cub Scout motto or Cub Scout 
Promise in unison. Later in the year, vary the opening by using the Pledge of Allegiance, by singing a 
song, or by conducting your own ceremony.
4. Business Items. Let each boy tell about some of the activities he and his family have done together. 
Then talk about what a den is and how it fits in with a pack. Mention what the den will be doing during 
the year, about participation, and a den code of conduct that the boys can help develop, as well as a den 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







95


name, yell, and other identity elements.
5. Activities. Do something together. You will find many theme-related suggestions in Den & Pack 
Meeting Resource Guide. This den activity should occupy the greatest part of your meeting time. Make 
it active and fun for both the Tiger Cubs and their adult partners. They joined Tiger Cubs as a team; they 
should participate as a team.
Plan for the monthly Go See It outing. The boys love getting out seeing new things. This activity could 
fulfill one of the achievement requirements or one of the elective requirements, and/or it could relate to 
the monthly core value. Make sure everyone knows the time, date, and place of the next meeting.
6. Closing. This time is usually more serious and quiet. Some den leaders like to present a thought for 
the day, have the boys say the Cub Scout motto or the Cub Scout Promise together, and/or give everyone 
last-minute reminders about coming events. Leaders can also use this time to reinforce the core values of 
Cub Scouting.
7. After the Meeting. The den leader and host adult partner review the events of this meeting and 
finalize plans for the next meeting and the coming pack meeting.


Tiger Cub Advancement Plan
Tiger Cubs are presented the Tiger Cub immediate recognition emblem when they learn the first three 
requirements for the Bobcat badge: the Cub Scout motto, Cub Scout salute, and Cub Scout sign. When 
a Tiger Cub has accomplished these tasks, he should be awarded his Tiger Cub immediate recognition 
emblem at the next pack meeting. The emblem is worn buttoned to the right pocket of the uniform shirt.
Tiger Cubs then complete the remaining requirements for the Bobcat badge, which will be presented at 
the next pack meeting.
The Tiger Cub Handbook outlines achievements to be completed in five areas. In each of these five areas, 
the Tiger Cub will complete one family activity, one den activity, and one Go See It outing. As each of 
the 15 achievements is completed, the boy is awarded an orange, white, or black bead during a simple 
den meeting ceremony. These beads go on the first three strands of the Tiger Cub immediate recognition 
emblem. When all 15 achievements are completed, the boy has earned the Tiger Cub badge. The badge 
should be presented to the adult partner at the next pack meeting, who in turn presents the badge to his 
Tiger Cub. The Tiger Cub badge is sewn on the left pocket of the uniform shirt.
After a boy has earned the Tiger Cub badge, he can earn Tiger Track beads by completing elective 
activities described in the Tiger Cub Handbook. When a boy completes 10 electives, he has earned a Tiger 
Track bead, which is to be placed on the fourth strand of the immediate recognition emblem. The Tiger 
Tracks are presented to the adult partners at the next pack meeting, who in turn present them to the boys.


Resources
Several resources are available to help the Tiger Cub den leader and the host adult partner plan the den 
meetings and the Go See It outing. The printed resources should be available through your pack library or 
may be purchased at your local Scout shop.
Cub Scout leader roundtable, monthly supplemental training for Cub Scout leaders in your district, 
provides program ideas, policy guidelines, and information on events in your district and council. Check 
with your pack leaders for the time and place of your district roundtable.
Cub Scout Leader Pow Wow and University of Scouting are additional supplemental training 
opportunities that provide a wealth of age-appropriate program ideas for Tiger Cubs.
Boy Scouts of America 1325 West Walnut Hill Lane P.O. Box 152079 Irving, Texas 75015-2079 http://www.scouting.org


Cub Scout Leader Book, No. 33221, is a guide for all Cub Scout leaders. It contains the basic information 
needed to operate and support Cub Scouting, such as information on Cub Scout policies, leadership 
duties, program planning, and youth protection.
Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide, No. 34409, provides den-meeting outlines based on the monthly 
core values. The activities planned for the Tiger Cubs and their adult partners are designed to be age-
appropriate for first-grade boys.


Cub Scouting, Now What?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







96 Leader Helps


Cub Scout Leader How-To Book, No. 33822, is a resource with program ideas for games, crafts, skits and 
songs.
Other BSA literature and helps are also available. Check your pack library and your local Scout shop 
for appropriate materials on songs, sports, ceremonies, academics, family programs, and outdoor 
opportunities that could be used with your den.


So You’re a New Den Leader
I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now that you are registered as a Cub Scout den leader, you will receive Scouting magazine, which 
includes information to assist you as a leader. Ask your Cubmaster to furnish you a copy of the current 
Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide to use. These steps will get you started:


1. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book. (To start right away, you may need to borrow a copy 
until you can get your own.) This book describes your role as a den leader and will give more information 
on the following steps.
2. Get acquainted with your Cubmaster and pack trainer. These leaders will see that you have the 
information and material you need to get started off on the right foot.
3. Plan your first month’s den meetings. This is much easier with the help of the pack trainer, 
assistant den leader, den chief (an older Boy Scout or Venturer helper), and the Den & Pack Meeting 
Resource Guide. The key to success is “KISMIF” (Keep It Simple, Make It Fun.”
4. Get acquainted with the families of the boys in your den. Hold a family orientation meeting. 
The Cub Scout Leader Book has a recommended agenda. You will be needing the families’ help, so get to 
know them early.
5. Get acquainted with the boys in your den. Establish a den code of conduct so that they will know 
what you expect of them. See the Cub Scout Leader Book for details.
6. Ask your Cubmaster to help you secure a den chief. Give your den chief meaningful 
responsibilities right away.
7. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible.
It is comfortable and suitable for all Cub Scout meetings and activities. Wearing the uniform properly is 
important in setting a good example for the boys. Your Cubmaster or pack trainer can tell you where to 
obtain the uniform and insignia.
8. Attend the monthly planning meetings held by your pack. These meetings are led by the pack 
committee chair and the Cubmaster, and are where pack plans are made.
9. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leaders’ roundtable. You will receive many good 
program ideas based on the monthly core value, and become acquainted with leaders from other packs. 
They will share ideas and experiences with you. Your Cubmaster or pack trainer can tell you when and 
where the roundtable meets.
10. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training as soon as possible. There are two components to this 
training—Den Leader Specific Training, a specialized session to help you successfully plan a fun and 
exciting den program, and This Is Scouting, which is attended by leaders in all program areas. These 
will give you the foundation you need to become an effective and successful leader. Every boy deserves 
a trained and qualified leader. Your Cubmaster or pack trainer can give you information about training 
sessions. These training sessions can all be taken online at https://myscouting.org.
Don’t hesitate to ask for help. There are many people who want to help you provide the finest possible 
Cub Scout experience for the boys in your den.
By the time you have completed these steps, you will be well on your way to becoming a successful den 
leader.


You, The Den Leader
You were selected as a den leader and approved by the pack committee because of your interest in 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







97


helping boys. By making the commitment to serve as a den leader, you have accepted the following 
responsibilities.
• Give leadership to carrying out the pack program in the den. • Lead the den in its participation at the 
monthly pack meetings. • Work in harmony with the other den and pack leaders. • Cooperate with the 
Cubmaster and pack committee in recruiting new boys. • Help orient the den chief and guide him to work 
with the Cub Scouts.
• Use Scouting and Boys’ Life magazines, the Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide, and other Cub 
Scouting literature as sources of program ideas.
• Collect dues and turn them in to the pack secretary/treasurer.
• Encourage boys to earn the advancement awards. Keep accurate records, and see that they receive 
recognition for their achievement.
• Help the den earn the National Den Award.
• Establish good working relationships with den families, taking advantage of their skills and talents.
• Take part in the annual pack planning conferences and the monthly pack leaders’ planning meetings.
• Follow the policies of the Boy Scouts of America.
Your Cubmaster or pack trainer will be glad to explain any of these responsibilities that you do not 
understand.


The Cub Scout Den Meeting
Den meetings are usually held in the afternoon, after school, or in the evening, once each week, in a 
home, at a place of worship, or school. The meeting day, time, and location are set by the den leader 
and should be the same each week to prevent confusion. Den meetings last approximately one hour. 
Leadership responsibilities are shared by the den leader, assistant den leader, den chief, and denner (a 
selected member of your den).
The den meeting program includes the following:
1. Before the meeting. The den leader, assistant den leader, and den chief make final preparations 
while the denner helps set up the meeting place.
2. While Cub Scouts gather. The den chief or denner could teach a stunt, trick, or game as the boys 
arrive, while the den leader and assistant den leader collect dues and check achievements and electives.
3. Opening. Have a simple opening ceremony such as a song, yell, pledge to the flag, or uniform 
inspection.
4. Business Items. Discuss den activities and plans and make announcements. Refreshments may be 
served at this time.
5. Activities. Have games, tricks, handicrafts, or other activities related to the monthly theme. Prepare 
for the den’s part in the pack meeting.
6. Closing. Give reminders, the den leader’s closing thought, and a brief inspirational closing 
ceremony.
7. After the Meeting. The den leader, assistant den leader, and den chief discuss plans for next week’s 
meeting, while the denner puts the room back to order.


So You’re a New Webelos Den Leader
I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now that you are registered as a Webelos den leader, you will receive Scouting magazine, which includes 
information to assist you as a leader. Ask your Cubmaster to furnish you a copy of the current Den & 
Pack Meeting Resource Guide to use until you can obtain your own copy. These steps will get you started:


1. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book. (To start right away, you may need to borrow a copy 
until you can get your own.) This book describes your role as a Webelos den leader and will give more 


Cub Scouting, Now What?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







98 Leader Helps


information on the following steps.
2. Get acquainted with your Cubmaster and pack trainer. These leaders will see that you have the 
information and material you need to get started off on the right foot.
3. Obtain (or borrow temporarily) the Webelos Leader Guide and begin reading it. This book 
describes projects that boys can do to complete requirements for Webelos activity badges.
4. Plan your first month’s den meetings. This is much easier with the help of the pack trainer, 
assistant Webelos den leader, den chief (an older Boy Scout or Venturer helper), the Webelos Leader 
Guide and Den & Pack Meeting Resource Guide. The key to success is “KISMIF” (Keep It Simple, Make 
It Fun).
5. Get acquainted with the families of the boys in your den. Hold a family orientation meeting. 
The Cub Scout Leader Book has a recommended agenda. You will be needing the families’ help, so get to 
know them early.
6. Get acquainted with the boys in your den. Establish a den code of conduct so that they will know 
what you expect of them. See the Cub Scout Leader Book for details.
7. Ask your Cubmaster to help you secure a Webelos den chief. Give your den chief meaningful 
responsibilities right away.
8. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible.
It is comfortable and suitable for all Cub Scout meetings and activities. Wearing the uniform properly is 
important in setting a good example for the boys. Your Cubmaster or pack trainer can tell you where to 
obtain the uniform and insignia.
9. Attend the monthly planning meetings held by your pack. These meetings are led by the pack 
committee chair and the Cubmaster, and are where pack plans are made.
10. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leaders’ roundtable. You will receive many good 
program ideas and become acquainted with Webelos den leaders from other packs, who will share ideas 
and experiences with you. Your Cubmaster or pack trainer can tell you when and where the roundtable 
meets.
11. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training as soon as possible. There are two components to this 
training: Webelos Den Leader Specific Training, a specialized session to help you successfully plan a fun 
and exciting den program, and This Is Scouting, which is attended by leaders in all program areas. These 
will give you the foundation you need to become an effective and successful leader. Every boy deserves a 
trained and qualified leader. These training sessions can all be taken online at https://myscouting.org.
Don’t hesitate to ask for help. There are many people who want to help you provide the finest possible 
Cub Scout experience for the boys in your den.
By the time you have completed these steps you will be well on your way to becoming a successful 
Webelos den leader.


You, the Webelos Den Leader
You were selected as a Webelos den leader and approved by the pack committee because of your interest 
in helping boys. By making the commitment to serve as a Webelos den leader, you have accepted the 
following responsibilities.
• Plan and carry out a year-round program of activities for the Webelos den to achieve the purposes of the 
Cub Scout program.
• Lead the Webelos den in its participation at the monthly pack meetings.
• Work in harmony with the other den and pack leaders.
• Cooperate with the Cubmaster and pack committee in recruiting new boys.
• Help orient the Webelos den chief and guide him to work with the Webelos Scouts.
• Use Scouting and Boys’ Life magazines and the Webelos Leader Guide as sources of program ideas and 
information.
• Collect dues and turn them in to the pack secretary/treasurer.
• Encourage boys to earn the advancement awards. Keep accurate records, and see that Webelos Scouts 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







99


are appropriately recognized for their achievement.
• Instill Scouting’s spirit and moral values through personal example, ceremonies, and meaningful 
activities such as goodwill and conservation projects.
• Work with the pack committee to establish a good relationship with neighborhood Boy Scout troops. Try 
to graduate every Webelos Scout into a troop.
• Ask qualified persons, including adult family members of Webelos Scouts, to serve as activity badge 
counselors.
• Encourage adult family members to help plan and carry out Webelos den overnight campouts and other 
outdoor activities.
• Help the den earn the National Den Award.
• Establish good working relationships with den families, taking advantage of their skills and talents.
• Take part in the annual pack planning conferences and the monthly pack leaders’ planning meetings.
• Follow the policies of the Boy Scouts of America.
Your Cubmaster or pack trainer will be glad to explain any of these responsibilities that you do not 
understand.


The Webelos Den Meeting
Webelos den meetings are usually held in the evening or on weekends, once each week, in a home, place 
of worship, or school. The meeting day, time, and location are set by the Webelos den leader and should 
be the same each week to prevent confusion. Den meetings last approximately one hour. Leadership 
responsibilities are shared by the Webelos den leader, assistant Webelos den leader, Webelos den chief, 
and denner (a selected member of your den.)
The Webelos den meeting program includes the following:
1. Gathering. Conduct an activity to keep those who arrive early busy until time for the opening.
2. Opening. This should be a simple opening ceremony followed by den business such as attendance, 
dues, den plans, and uniform inspection.
3. Activity badge fun. Include instruction, practice, games, and contests related to the Webelos Scout 
skills.
4. Preparation. Boys will make equipment and props for the den’s part in the pack meeting and make 
preparations for later outdoor, goodwill, or other special activities.
5. Closing. Make announcements, have a simple closing ceremony, and clean up the den meeting 
place.


Webelos Outdoor Program
As the Webelos den leader, you will, with the participation of adult family members, want to arrange 
and organize den overnight camping experiences. This is an important part of the transition from Cub 
Scouting to Boy Scouting.


So you’re a New Pack Committee Member
I Signed Up; What’s Next?
Now that you are registered as a pack committee member, you will receive Scouting magazine, which 
contains helpful information to assist you as a leader. These steps will get you started:
1. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book. (To start right away, you may need to borrow a 
copy until you can get your own.) This book describes your role as a pack committee member or pack 
committee chair and will give more information on the following steps.
2. Get acquainted with the other leaders in your pack. You will need their assistance in carrying 
out a successful pack program. You will be working closely with the pack committee chair and pack 
trainer.
3. Attend the monthly pack leaders’ planning meeting. This meeting is led by the pack committee 


Cub Scouting, Now What?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







100 Leader Helps


chair and Cubmaster, and it is where pack plans are made.
4. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leader roundtable. You will receive continuing help 
on pack management and will be acquainted with leaders from other packs, who will share ideas and 
experiences with you. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can tell you when and where the 
roundtable meets.
5. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training sessions as soon as possible. There are two components 
to this training—Pack Committee Leader Specific Training, a specialized session to help you successfully 
plan a successful pack program, and This Is Scouting, which is attended by leaders in all program areas. 
These will give you the foundation you need to become an effective and successful leader. Every boy 
deserves trained and qualified leaders. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can give you 
information about training sessions. These training sessions can all be taken online at https://myscouting.
org.
6. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible. It is comfortable 
and suitable for all Cub Scout meetings and activities. Wearing the uniform properly is important in 
setting a good example for the boys. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can tell you where 
to obtain the uniform and insignia.
7. If you are pack committee chair, get to know the chartered organization representative, and 
keep this key person informed about the needs of the pack.
8. If you are pack committee chair, get acquainted with your unit commissioner.
The commissioner is a friend to your pack and will be glad to answer questions and help in other ways.
9. If you are pack committee chair, get to know your unit-serving executive. This professional 
Scouter is employed by your council to serve all Scouting units in your district, and will do everything 
possible to help you be successful.
10. If you are pack committee chair, begin to develop a close working relationship with the 
Cubmaster. The two of you will be working as a team to make the pack program successful.
Don’t hesitate to ask for help. There are many people who want to help you provide the finest possible 
Cub Scout experience for the boys in your pack.
By the time you have completed these steps, you will be well on your way to becoming a successful pack 
leader.


The Pack Committee
You were selected as a member of the pack committee because of your interest in helping boys. 
Regardless of the size of your pack committee, certain responsibilities must be performed if Cub Scouts 
are to receive the type of fun-filled and meaningful program to which they are entitled. By making the 
commitment to serve as a leader, you share the following responsibilities with other members of the pack 
committee:
• Recruit the best person available for Cubmaster and one or more assistant Cubmasters. • Provide 
adequate and safe facilities for pack meetings.
• See that a year-round pack program is conducted according to the policies of the Boy Scouts of America.
• See that the pack program, leaders, and Cub Scouts reflect positively the interests and objectives of the 
chartered organization and the Boy Scouts of America.
• Encourage all leaders and boys to have and properly use the uniforms, badges, and insignia.
• Establish a good relationship with neighborhood Boy Scout troops. Try to graduate every Webelos Scout 
into a troop.
• Assist with the pack charter renewal, reregistering at least 50 percent of present members each year.
• Establish a sound financial program with a pack budget plan and adequate financial records.
• Stimulate the interest of families through proper programming.
• Work with the Cubmaster to make the pack program effective so that each boy advances the rank for his 
age. See that proper recognition is given promptly.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







101


• Maintain an inventory of pack equipment.
• Work with the Cubmaster to conduct periodic training for families, including an annual pack adults’ 
meeting.
• Recognize pack leaders periodically to show them that their efforts are appreciated.
• Maintain through the chartered organization representative and unit commissioner a close liaison with 
the district committee and its resources to help the organization and the pack.
• Conduct an annual survey of boys for systematic recruiting of new boys from within the chartered 
organization.
Your unit commissioner will be glad to explain any of these responsibilities that you do not understand.


D RECORD KEEPING


•	 Leader How to book


•	 Wolf book


•	 Bear book


•	 Webelos book


http://trax.boy-scouts.net/ 


•	 Leader Trax


•	 Wolf Trax


•	 Bear Trax


•	 Webelos Trax


 
The pack trainer’s main objective is to have 100 percent of the pack leadership trained in their position 
responsibilities. New leaders and adult family members should receive orientation within one week of joining the 
pack. Leaders should receive position-specific training as soon as the training becomes available.


Position Qualifications
The pack trainer must: • Meet BSA membership requirements and be at least 21 years of age • Be registered with the 
Boy Scouts of America as a pack trainer
It is recommended that the pack trainer have at least one year of experience in a leadership position in Cub Scouting. 
Pack trainers should participate in a Trainer Development Conference.
For new packs and those lacking experienced leaders, an experienced leader may be appointed as pack trainer until 
the new leaders gain experience.


Responsibilities
The pack trainer is responsible for: • Remaining current with training material and program updates • Conducting 
orientation of new families
• Providing Fast Start Training to new leaders. (Fast Start Training can be used as a recruiting tool. The pack trainer 
should contact the new leader within two or three days to review the information and answer questions. Fast Start 
Training can be completed by viewing the Fast Start video or DVD or by completing the training on your council’s 
Web site.)
• Conducting monthly Unit Leadership Enhancements • Encouraging pack leaders to attend:
a. Cub Scout Leader Basic Training, which includes New Leader Essentials Training and Cub Scout Leader Specific 
Training
b. Youth Protection Training c. Roundtable d. Pow Wow (if conducted in your council) e. BALOO f. Outdoor Leader 


Cub Scouting, Now What?


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://trax.boy-scouts.net/





102 Leader Helps


Skills for Webelos Leaders g. Wood Badge
• Encouraging den chiefs to attend Den Chief Training • Maintaining pack training records


Position Summary
Under the direction of the pack committee chairman, the pack trainer helps leaders and parents understand purposes, 
policies, and procedures of the Cub Scouting program.
The pack trainer conducts, or facilitates, the training of leaders and parents in the pack. The pack trainer promotes 
training to help leaders learn to plan and conduct pack and den meetings and activities. The pack trainer orients 
parents and leaders and guides pack leaders in carrying out their specific position responsibilities.
Pack trainer is a registered pack position and is a voting member of the pack committee. Regardless of the size of 
the pack committee, every pack should have one of its committee members registered as a pack trainer.


E OTHER RESOURCES


•	 Tour Plan


•	 Family Talent Survey Sheet http://www.scouting.org/filestore/CubScoutMeetingGuide/PDF/Ap-
pendix/34362.pdf


•	 Roundtable staff


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/filestore/CubScoutMeetingGuide/PDF/Appendix/34362.pdf

http://www.scouting.org/filestore/CubScoutMeetingGuide/PDF/Appendix/34362.pdf





103


Cub Scout Tracking
Start


Advanement Process
Completed - Start Over


Den Meeting Activity


Take Internet Advancement
print out to Scout Shop. For
the purchasing of awards. 
Turn in print out at register.


Provide print out of 
awards to Cub Master and
Committee Member in
charge of purchasing.


Have Pack Meeting to
recognize the boys’ 
advancements and
achievements.


Record Den Meeting
activity in tracking


spreadsheet or program


provide information to
Advancement Committee
person to be recorded in
Internet Advancement


Have the
requirements been


completed to pass off the
advancement or


elective?


No Yes


Cub Scouts
Compute


Cub Scouts Compute


Cub Scouts Compute


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







104 Leader Helps


Tracking Spread Sheet


Would it not be great if you could track the progress of your cub scouts? Well there are several options out 
there depending on your technical abilities. The long and proven method is to track boys in their books only one 
problem they don’t always bring them. So an electronic tracking method is desirable. There are several packages 
available for purchase or a few for free download. One of the tracking formats I have used with great success is the 
###-Trax spreadsheet (### is the Den name wolf, etc.). It is an excel workbook that is free. You can obtain it at http://
trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm. So you can mark off the progress of multiple boys and track there advancements. 
ONE IMPORTANT THING - You need to read the instruction page to understand how to get the most out this 
workbook.  


To simplify the entering and tracking of boys it is recommended that only one person enter the information. 
Printouts of individual boy’s progress can be given to the parent and then inputted in to the work book. This eliminates 
confusion of the latest version of the document and keeps from having problems of information that is miss-entered. 
Plus there is no way to merge the information without re-entering it. So it is just easier to place one person in charge 
of the tracking.  


So what does it take to get started? You already have by reading this section of your POW WOW book. This will 
only make you a better leader and on top of things with your youth and parents. Here are the steps in getting going.
1. Down load the work book from http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm for the Den you are responsible 


(i.e. tigers, wolves, etc.) and save it to your scouting folder. It is recommended that you have a single 
folder separate in your documents for scouting. This is just good file management.


2. Enter in all the contact information on the Parents Contact Info tab. This is nice because if you are re-
placed you can give them the excel file to the new leader and all of the information is in one spot.


3. Select the Scout# (# is the number in the tab i.e. 1,2,3, etc.) tab and bottom of the page and right click on 
the mouse and select rename to rename the tab. Type in the boy’s name; this carries through the work-
book and places the boy’s name in all of the spots. (This is a must! Do not try and place their name at 
top of the sheet or in the summary page. (Back to the one important thing above) 99% of all problems 
with using the workbook are associated with this single step.) 


4. Enter the activity in the attendance tab with the achievement or elective numbers. This will help in look-
ing back to see if everything is correct at a later date and helps track attendance for the boys. 


5. Select the tab with the advancement you want to record i.e. advancement, electives, belt loops, etc. 
Enter the record in “A” is for Advancement and “E” is for elective, on completed tasks. Note: All boys’ 
advancements are recorded on this single page not their individual tabs. 


6. Once all of the advancements/electives have been recorded you can select the individual boy’s tab and 
it will show the boy’s overall progress. Optional but recommended: Print out this page and give it to the 
parents and ask them to mark the boy’s progress on it. Once progress has been marked, ask that they 
return it to you. So it can be entered in to the tracking workbook for anything done at home. Then enter 
the home progress into the workbook.  


7. The Summary tab lists all of the completed items for all of the boys. This is the page that should be 
printed and given to the advancement committee and cub master for the entering into Internet Advance-
ment and the purchasing of awards. Note: the earned column will be highlighted gray with a “C” in it 
for a completed task. Once the date is entered then the cell goes white with the “C”. I usually wait until 
the boy has received the award to enter the date in. This way you can track to see if he has received the 
award at pack meeting. Note 2: This will not show that arrow heads have been earned until they have 
completed the rank advancement. A general rule of thumb is the boy should be working on the rank 
advancement before electives. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm

http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm

http://trax.boy-scouts.net/cubtrax.htm





105


Another option out there that may appeal to those of you a little 
less technical minded is Den Manager.   It can be found at www.
denmanager.com. It doesn’t have quite the same abilities that      
Cub-Trax has, but what it does do, it does very well.
Manage: 


·	 Dens


o Scouts


	 Awards


•	 Achievements


•	 Electives


•	 Belt Loops


•	 Pins


•	 Dates Granted


•	 Details of what is not signed 
off easily shown


	 Current rank shown


•	 Immediate recognition beads 
achieved shown


•	 Adults


o Role 


	 Parent


	 Committee Member


	Den Leader


	 Cub Master


o Control Award signoff by role


o Email addresses


	 Allows emails to be easily sent for each email registered.


•	 Requirements to be signed off


o Parents can sign off that a requirement is completed, but the leaders are still responsible 
to sign off that is was completed.


•	 Awards to be granted
o Awards can also be un-granted if a mistake is made


Additional Pros:
Simple – (more simple)
Anyone can submit achievements (even Cubmasters!)
Online Support Forum
Data can be exported to a spreadsheet (CSV format)
Tool is online and handles multiple users updating the records at the same time.
Any leader can manage all the setup – for example, if the Cubmaster leaves unexpectedly
The developer takes suggestions for development
Cons:
$25.00 yearly subscription fee (worth every penny in my opinion)
Simple – Does not track EVERYTHING you might want to track (phone numbers, miscellaneous awards/
patches, etc)


Cub Scouts Compute


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.denmanager.com

http://www.denmanager.com





106 Leader Helps


Here are the 9 steps to completing the Internet Advancement (IA).
1. You need to log in. There are two locations in which you can access the IA site:


•	 http://www.gslc-bsa.org – Advancement tab


•	 http://mysocuting.org – This requires you to login to your scouting account and under Unit Tools\
Internet Advancement. 


2. Once you have accessed the site you will need to select RETURNING USER. This will take you to 
the login and password page. 


3. Once you have selected returning user it will take you to 
the login screen. See FAQ for 
obtaining login information.


4. Then you will need to load 
the roster for your pack. Select 
CONTINUE to load the roster.


5. Select LOAD ROSTER this 
will bring up the boys that have been re-chartered in the unit. If a 
boy is not showing then see 
FAQ Missing Youth. The 
upload advancement file 
button is only for use with 
a commercially purchased 
tracking system “Pack Master”. http://www.troopmaster.com/
products/cubscouts/products.aspx
6. Select the required advancement for the youth.
•	 Rank – This is for the Bobcat, Wolf, etc. 
•	 Activity Badges – This is for Webelos pins
•	 Awards – This is for Arrow heads, etc.
•	 Belt Loops – This is for any belt loops earn as a cub.
7. Enter the date that the award was earned and press SAVE.
8. Once all of the youth have been updated press NEXT.
9. This will take you to the 


submission to Council screen. You can select a preview of 
the report and make sure all of the advancements are correct. 
If correct then select SUBMIT TO COUNCIL. If not Select 
PREVIOUS and update youth. Once you have selected submit 
to council it will ask if you are sure. Select YES. Then you can 
leave a comment if desired. Here is where you will print out 
the advancement report. I would recommend saving a copy of 
the advancements for future reference.  To make an electronic 
copy of the advancement report you can down load CutiePDF at http://www.cutepdf.com/. This will 
show up as a printer on the computer allowing you to print directly to a PDF file and saving it on your 
computer. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.gslc-bsa.org

http://mysocuting.org

http://www.troopmaster.com/products/cubscouts/products.aspx

http://www.troopmaster.com/products/cubscouts/products.aspx

http://www.cutepdf.com/





107


Banners, Posters and Graphics, oh my!
“What are you printing!?”  Have you ever been startled heard those words as paper flew out of the printer with only 
minimal marks on each page?  Or worse yet, the cool image you downloaded to print for your poster looks more like 
something that came from Minecraft than Scouting. Here are my 5 rules to follow to have great looking banners and 
posters with stunning graphics.
Rule 1 - Use vector graphics whenever possible.
Vector graphics are made (internally) with points, directions angles and curves.  When they scaled (up or down) the 
distances change but the directions, angles and curves remain the same.  So, the beautiful 1” Fleur de Lis has the 
same graceful, crisp lines at 12”, or 12’!  Because of this format, a 1” Fleur de lis also takes up the same memory 
and processing power as a 12’ one.  Examples of vector graphics file types are SVG, EPS, EMF, DXF, WMF.
Rule 2 - Scale bitmap graphics DOWN, not UP.
Bitmapped graphics (JPG, PNG, BMP, GIF…) are made pixel by pixel and they all have a size (100x100, 1024x768 
etc), which translates to the horizontal and vertical size.  Most printers will print (at least) at 300dpi (or 300x300 
dots (pixels) in a square inch). If you have an image that is 100x100 and want to print it as an 8x10 it will appear 
pixilated.  To get a bitmap to print well at 8x10, your image would need to be somewhere around 300*8x300*10 
or 2400x3000 pixels.  The amount of memory and processor power required to manipulate an image that size is 
substantial.  Keep the image on the page the size it should be.  If the image is 100x100, keep it 1/3”x1/3”.
Rule 3 - Use (and know) the correct tools.
Word is not meant to make banners.  It might work.  It might give you a great sense of accomplishment to get it to 
work.  Chances are you’ll be disappointed.  Tools designed to DRAW or manipulate vector graphics (see Rule 1) 
usually will work best for you.  Adobe Illustrator, Corel Draw and Inkscape are programs I’ve used.  Both Adobe 
Illustrator and Corel Draw are somewhat expensive but have 30 day trials.  Download and try them before you 
commit.  Inkscape (www.inkscape.org), however, is free, has many of the features you will find on the others, and 
some features work better than the more expensive counterparts.  In a pinch, OpenOffice Draw (also free) works 
fairly well making simple shapes and text for a poster. Once you’ve decided on the tool, take some time getting to 
know the features. Knowing is half the battle!
 Rule 4 - Don’t use what you don’t have (Murphy’s Law will make you miserable)
If you’ve downloaded a trial, it will expire just as you try to print.  Many printers now have a “poster” option. Don’t 
do it - if your printer doesn’t print 4’x3’, you will use a ream of paper and this month’s supply of ink before all the 
parts look good.  You still will have to cut off the borders and paste them together...  If you absolutely have to make 
a banner or poster and plan on printing on 8.5x11” paper, plan around the page breaks so you’re not cutting graphics 
in half.
Rule 5 - Printers and PDF are your friends.
Most programs now have a PDF option in the SaveAs dialog.  Once your poster looks good at the size of paper you 
want to print it on, save it using the default file type.  Once saved, save it again as type PDF (Portable Document 
Format).  PDF files are difficult to edit if you don’t have the right software, but nearly everyone has the ability to 
read a PDF.  More importantly, everyone that can read a PDF can print a PDF.  If your printer doesn’t print tabloid 
(11x17), is there one somewhere you can use?  FedEx Office (formerly known as Kinko’s) can print posters 3’ wide 
by as long as you want (the paper roll is 500’).  They also have many different sizes of paper (including tabloid).


Cub Scouts Compute


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







108 Leader Helps


Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
This section is specifically to answer commonly asked questions.


Q: What is Internet Advancement and why is it needed?


A: Internet Advancement is used by the Council to track the progress of youth advancements. Similar to the Journey 
to Excellence (JTE) for your Pack the Council has specific JTE goals to meet to be a Gold level council. That is why 
they require that the information be logged and submitted at the register. 


Q: What is a BSA member number?


A: The BSA member number is a specific number for each participant and volunteer. All of the training you take 
is referenced to this number. It is important that your MyScouting account is linked to your BSA number. Youth 
Protection (YP) is required every two years and the re-charter will show that you are missing youth protection if the 
member number is not linked, even if you took YP only 2 months ago.


Q: How do I obtain my BSA Member number?


A: It can be looked up on Internet Advancement. Once the unit roster is loaded there is a button on the top left of the 
page that say “Review Unit Roster” select this button and all of the unit information will show up. 


Q: What is MySouting.org?


A: This site is specifically for leaders there are several online training courses they typically take 20-30 minutes 
each. As you progress as a leader this will help you become familiar with BSA policies. It is important that you 
retain you user ID and password as you will be accessing this site often and taking youth protection every two years.   


Q: Why is one or more of my youth not showing up on Internet Advancement (Missing Youth)?


A: The youth has been dropped during the re-chartering process or the youth has never been registered in the unit. 
Please fill out a new application with appropriate signatures and submit to Council Registration. Once the council 
has placed their information in the system they should show up in 5-10 days.


Q: How do I obtain a new login for Internet Advancement?


A: Please check with your leader ship and see if anyone has the login information. Typically a member of the 
advancement committee has the login in and password. If not just call the council or see the camp desk at the 
Council to have it reset.  Remember in resting the password will lock out any previous users so don’t just reset the 
password without asking.


Q: What is Journey to Excellence (JTE)?


A: This is the goal setting and tracking process for units, districts, council, etc. It has specific tasks that show the 
overall progress of your unit, Bronze to Gold levels. It is required when you re-charter your unit and is helpful to 
know where you have been and where you want to go with your unit.  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







109


Q: What is re-chartering?


A: Re-chartering is annual process in which your unit registers with the Boy Scouts of America. It is typically 
completed in the fall. This is where the boy’s registration is renewed and fees are paid for the participation in the 
program. 


Q: How do I register for summer/winter camp?


A: This is completed on the Council web page. http://www.gslc-bsa.org. The easy way to remember the site is (Great 
Salt Lake Council – Boy Scouts of America.org) utilizing only the capitol letters. On the main page is a link to 
camps. Select the camp and register.


Q: What District am I in and do they have a web page?


A: The Council is divided up into small regions called Districts. You can locate your district by going to the 
Council web page of (gslc-bsa.org) and searching for District in the search box or go to http://www.doubleknot.
com/openrosters/docdownload.aspx?ID=66647. On the home page of the council site you can select the button for 
Districts and select your District. Each District maintains their own page and content of information about what they 
are doing. So these sites are great resources to see what other people in the area are doing.    


Q: Why does the scout shop keep asking for my advancement paper work?


A:  See Internet Advancement above. 


Q: What is CutiePDF?


A: This is a free down load at http://www.cutepdf.com/ that allows you to print your documents to a PDF file. So 
instead of printing the document and scanning it in you can print it to a PDF directly with higher quality. Once 
installed it shows up in your list of printers and can be selected from the drop down menu. Once you select print it 
will ask what you want to name it and  where to save it. Complete the information and select ok. This is great to use 
when you need to e-mail documents to other leaders or parents. Or if a boy moves to another Den you can keep a 
record of his accomplishments. Note: Newer versions of Excel and Word allow you to save the file as a PDF. This 
is completed under the SaveAs selection. Then in the drop down you can select PDF. The down side to this is if you 
have special formatting it generally does not work to well with this function vs. just printing it to the PDF file. 


Q: Why should I purchase a tracking package?


A: This is a unit choice. There are several packages out there that can be used. Some are better than others but it 
depends on your abilities and how simplified you want your tracking to be. If you are interested in purchasing a 
package you need to research all of the options and chose the best one for your pack/den. Some will allow multiple 
people/parents to log in and update information. This has it pros and cons though it is a unit choce.


Cub Scouts Compute


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.gslc-bsa.org

http://www.doubleknot.com/openrosters/docdownload.aspx?ID=66647

http://www.doubleknot.com/openrosters/docdownload.aspx?ID=66647

http://www.cutepdf.com/





110 Leader Helps


Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our 
Own X-Men


1. Respect/etiquette 


a. People first language 


i. “child with ______” vs. “autistic child” or “he is Down’s Syndrome” 


ii. The child is a child first…they are not their disability


b. Do not talk about the child in front of him


i. Do not assume he does not understand, just because he doesn’t respond or 
speak in a “typical” manner


ii. Speak directly to the child, not to a caregiver or aid


iii. Ask the child about his preferences, goals, etc. when possible


c. Be informed


i. Maintain a positive relationship with the child’s family.  Ask them ques-
tions.  Communicate any concerns, difficulties, and successes.  Respect the 
family’s input, and do not judge them or make assumptions.  They are do-
ing the best they can with the situation they are in.  


ii. Research the disability.  Learn what types of behaviors, characteristics, or 
challenges can be expected.  (i.e., many children with autism are very literal 
and may not understand sarcasm or jokes)


d. Maintain confidentiality


e. Acknowledge the disability, but do not dwell on it.  By ignoring the child or the 
disability, you are communicating that it is something to be ashamed of.


f. Keep the child involved.  With proper planning, ANY activity can be adapted for 
ANY child.


i. Get to know the child.  It’s easier to involve them when you know what 
they like, what their strengths are, etc.


2. Sensory processing issues


a. Child may be over-sensitive or under-sensitive to any type of sensory information, 
including with body awareness


b. Difficult behaviors may be a result of sensory processing difficulties


i. Difficulty sitting still


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







111


ii. Difficulty tolerating multiple sensory inputs at a time 


iii. Tantrums or difficult behaviors


iv. Clumsiness or lack of coordination


3. Behavior issues


a. Behavior is communication with 2 primary functions


i. To get something (attention, a treat, a toy, etc.)


ii. To get out of something (to escape overwhelming sensory input, a 
non-preferred/difficult task, attention, etc.)


b. Precision commands


i. “John, please sit down” (wait 10 seconds)


ii. “John, you need to sit down now” (wait 10 seconds)


iii. Consequence


c. Ignore negative behaviors, when possible, and focus on positive behaviors


i. Provide 8 positive comments for every 1 negative


d. Directly teach expectations, then be consistent with reinforcing those expectations


e. ALWAYS have 2 deep leadership


f. NEVER argue with or threaten a child


g. Provide choices whenever possible to give the child a sense of control (i.e. would 
you like to sit next to Joey or next to me?)


4. Adaptations


a. Speak directly to the child


i. Give one request at a time, using clear language (“Please sit down here”, vs. 
“Can you please come right over her and take a seat next to the rest of the 
boys?”).  less is more.


ii. Tell the child what TO do, rather than what NOT to do (“sit down, please”, 
vs. “stop jumping on the chairs”)


iii. Use a normal tone of voice and volume


iv. Allow for processing time when a response is expected


v. Do not require eye contact


Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own X-Men


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







112 Leader Helps


b. When giving directions:


i. Allow processing time


ii. Keep directions/requests concise


iii. Use visual cues to help the child remember the sequence of the activity


1. Write the steps on the board


2. Use pictures


c. Consider calling a special assistant for the child


d. Teach skills in a variety of ways.  Not all children learn the same way.  


e. Keep them engaged through movement


f. Pre-assemble parts of craft projects, models, etc., or put the pieces in order to sim-
plify a project


g. Plan a variety of activities (athletic/physical games, crafts, problem solving activi-
ties, etc.) so that all children feel respected and involved.  Do not assume that ev-
ery child wants to play basketball when the activity is finished.


h. Let the child know what is coming next


i. Provide a schedule of activities so that the child’s family can prepare ahead 
of time


ii. Consider posting a visual schedule at the beginning of each meeting


iii. “first, then” language (first, we need to ___________.  Then you can have 
your snack.)


iv. Prepare the child (“prime” them to give the correct answer)


1. “I’m going to read the directions for this activity.  Be ready to tell 
me the first 3 steps.”


2. “I’m going to show you how to tie this knot.  Be ready to show me 
the first two steps.”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







113


Creating CeremoniesCreating Ceremonies
The All Purpose, Generic Ceremony Creator


Directions for use:
Choose one or more phrase from each list�
Add your own personal words for each occasion�
Assemble the props called for�
Conduct a successful ceremony!


1�  “Whould the following please come forward?”


2�  (After the above have assembled) - “Before you is:”


3�  “This represents”:


4�  “You have earned this Award by”:


5�  “Please accept this award and continue to:”


6�  “Would the rest of the Pack join me in congratulations for this award�”


There are lots of ceremonies on almost every theme you could think of on line for us to 
use. If you look carefully, you will fi nd that they all follow this basic outline with some of 
their own creative words to make it fi t the situation. I encourage you to try one of your 
own next time�


Cub Scout 
Webelos Scout


Special Guest
Leader


Parent
Den


a candle
a tripod
a neckerchief
your leader


a drum
a fl ashlight
a picture
a bridge


a bucket
a scout book
a car key
a trail


a branch
Akela
a box 
etc�


the spirit of scouting
good deeds
your future
your accomplishments
our community


fun and adventure
our pack
goodwill
our dedication
our church


the family
your den
your advancements
the world
character


completing achievement
helping our pack
helping boys grow
serving for _____ years


helping others
having a birthday
helping with
selling the most _______


doing your best
being the best _________
being a denner
etc�


help the pack go
do your best
follow Akela


grow strong
come to meetings
be the best you


give goodwill
work hard
help your son


Creating Ceremonies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







114 Leader Helps


Spirit of Christmas
(following the All Purpose Generic Ceremony Creator)


Supplies:
(You will need a set of supplies for each boy.)


•	 Two small baby food jars with lids cleaned out and the labels removed
•	 One wand or 2 pin on the shirt type glow sticks (you may want to buy an extra one 


incase one gets broken in the opening process)
•	 A way to cut the glow stick open without spilling the liquid inside like garden 


clippers or a razor blade knife 
•	 Paper towels
•	 Pliers
•	 Award and parent pin


Preparation:
•	 Hold the glow stick vertically and cut off one end, being careful not to break the 


glass vial inside.
•	 Holding the opening over one of the baby food jars, pour the liquid into one of the 


baby food jars, being ready to catch the glass vial as it comes out.
•	 Wrap one end of the glass vial with a paper towel. Use the pliers to crush the very 


end of the vial. Throw away the paper towel with the broken glass securely in it.
•	 Pour the liquid from the vial into the other baby food jar and close the lid.


Ceremony:
(dim some of the lights in the front of the room for a better affect)


1. (calling the boys forward) 
“Would (boy(s) name) please come forward with a parent?”


3.  (explaining the symbolism being used in our ceremony) 
“The Christmas Spirit is very much like the Cub Scout Spirit.” 
(ask the boys how they think they are the same)
“The Christmas Spirit represents the love of our family, doing our best, being excited, and 
doing good to all men, right?  The Cub Scout Spirit is the same. We learn about loving our 
family, doing our best, being excited about what we are learning and doing good to all men 
by serving in our communities, our families and in our Packs.”


2.  (give each boy a symbol) 
(Hand each boy the baby food jar with the yellow liquid in it with the lid off.)


“The liquid in your jar represents the Cub Scout Spirit.”
 (hold up the jar with the clear liquid in it) “This liquid represents the Christmas Spirit.” 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







115


4.  (You have earned this award by. . .) 
“Tonight,	we	are	going	to	find	out	if	you	had	the	Cub	Scout	Spirit	while	you	were	earning	
your (bobcat, wolf, bear, Webelos) award. When I pour the Christmas Spirit into your jar, if 
you have great Cub Scout Spirit, the two types of spirit combined will make your jar glow. 
Do you think you earned your award with the Cub Scout Spirit?” (wait for answer) “I do 
too.” (if he is worried about it say something like I am sure you did because you are a great 
Cub Scout). 
   
Pour the clear liquid into the boys jar and secure his lid. You may need to shake his jar just a 
little to get it to mix and glow better. 


5. (please accept this award and continue) 
You have earned your award with great Spirit. Please accept this award and continue to 
grow strong in Cub Scout Spirit”. 


Have parent present the award to their son and have the Cub Scout pin his parent with the 
parent pin.


6.  Congratulations
“Would the rest of the Pack please join me in congratulating our new (bobcat, wolf, bear, 
Webelos)!” 
Do an appropriate cheer.


As you can see, I mixed up the numbers a little, but that is ok, it still works great. I don’t 
need the boys holding an open jar of liquid for any longer than necessary. Pick one of the 
themes for this year and try coming up with one on your own.


Creating Ceremonies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







116 Leader Helps


Pack Meetings That Dazzle


Tricks, Cakes and Treats
Purpose


Teach the Cub Scouts how to bake and decorate a cake while enjoying the Halloween tradition.  


Opener


You will need:


•	 Three plastic jack-o-lantern buckets that are traditionally used for trick-or-treating.  The 
buckets should have a five to eight inch diameter hole at the top that is big enough to fit a 
fist or hand through.


•	 Cooked, moistened (with a light sprinkling of vegetable oil) and cooled spaghetti noodles 
(monster intestines), peeled green grapes (monster eyeballs), and  soft, mushy tomatoes 
that are about three to five inches in diameter and are cut in half, (monster brains)


•	 One or two blindfolds


•	 Paper towels


•	 Three cloths to hide the “monster” body parts


•	 Table with decorative Halloween table cloth


•	 Orange construction paper and black sharpie marker


Place the three plastic jack-o-lanterns on top of the table and decorative Halloween table cloth.  
In each jack-o-lantern place either the spaghetti noodles, peeled green grapes and soft and mush 
tomatoes.  Cover the top of the jack-o-lantern with the cloth so the Cub Scouts cannot see into the 
jack-o-lantern.  With the sharpie market and orange construction paper, label each jack-o-lantern 
as monster intestines (spaghetti), monster eyeballs (peeled green grapes) and monster brains (soft 
mushy tomatoes).  Blind fold each Cub Scout as they arrive and carefully guide them to the table 
with the monster body parts.  Have them place their hand in each jack-o-lantern to feel the body 
parts.  You may want to challenge them to identify what the actual food is inside the jack-o-lantern.  
Have them use paper towels to dry their hands.  Adding a bowl of dry ice with water on the table 
in a Halloween themed cauldron might also help liven up the monster table.  


Awards


Place the awards for each boy in a small plastic Halloween themed bag along with some Halloween 
candy. You can purchase 10 to 30 these bags for under five dollars at most party stores or on line.  
Using black ribbon, tie a 5 x 2 inch piece of orange construction paper to each party bag with the 
name of the Cub Scout written on the paper.  Present each award with a Halloween themed cheer.  
Some examples are provided below.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







117


Halloween Cheers


Haunted Hangman Cheer: Put your hand behind your neck like you are holding a hangman’s 
noose, then roll your eyes and stick out your tongue.  


Witchy Cheer:  Say in witchy voice: “Heee, Heee, Heee.”


Mad Scientist: Pretend to hold up a test tube in one hand. Pour something into it, then add something 
else, then yell “KAB00000000M!!”


Ghost Sneeze:  Position your face and hands like you are going to sneeze say, “Ahhhhhh Boo!”


Evil Laugh: With an evil sinister grin and a deep loud voice say “Buhahahaha!”


Advancements:


Mad Scientist Operation


Supplies needed


•	 Unusual items in a paper sack (discussed below)


•	 Rectangular table (aka lab table)


•	 Two large white sheets


•	 Lab coat


•	 Crazy hair wig


•	 Car jumper cables


•	 Tool bag with tools (pliers, power drill, hammer, wrench)


•	 Witches cauldron with water and dry ice (optional)


•	 Black Light (optional)


•	 Scary music and stereo system / boom box (optional)


Pack Meetings That Dazzle


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







118 Leader Helps


Prior to the pack meeting, contact the parents or guardian of the Cub Scout to determine some 
of his likes and interests (i.e. favorite candy, favorite toy, favorite sport, best friend, etc.).  This 
information will be used during the presentation as the “unusual items” that will be discovered 
during the Mad Scientist Operation.  


The Cubmaster can dress up and act like a mad scientist.  A crazy looking face, lab coat and wild 
wig will do the trick.  The scientist will call the advancing Cub Scout up and have him lay down on 
a rectangular shaped “lab table” which is draped with a white sheet.  Make sure the white sheet is 
large enough to extend all the way to the floor (this will be necessary to cover the “unusual items” 
that are to be hidden from the audience).    Some optional items to help liven up the atmosphere 
may include:


•	 Adding a black light underneath the table.  


•	 Adding a Halloween themed cauldron filled with water and dry ice


•	 Playing scary music on a hidden stereo system.   


•	 When the Cub Scout lays on the table, the mad scientist can connect one end of car jumper 
cables to the table and the other end to the Cub Scout’s pant leg (making sure not to pinch 
the Cub Scout).   


The mad scientist will advise the audience members that the Cub Scout is very sick and that the 
scientist will commence an operation on the Cub Scout.  The scientist then pulls out a tool bag with 
some dirty tools (i.e. pliers, hammer, wrench, power drill) and places the bag next to the boy or on 
the adjacent table next to the witch’s cauldron of dry ice.  


The scientist then places a white sheet over the Cub Scout to cover his belly during the operation 
and pretends to operate on the Cub Scout underneath the sheet.  During the operation, the mad 
scientist will find some “unusual items” (i.e. favorite candy, picture of favorite sport, picture of 
favorite toy, picture of best friend etc.) in the Cub Scout’s body.  As the scientist pulls the “unusual 
items” out of the Cub Scout’s Body” he shows the audience to provide them with the opportunity 
to get to know the Cub Scout’s interest.  Note that the “unusual items” can be hidden from the 
audience in a bag behind the “lab table” and white sheet.  


The last and final “unusual item” should be the Cub Scout’s advancement.  Upon pulling the 
advancement out, the scientist will ask the Cub Scout to stand up and call his parents or guardians 
to the front of the table to participate in the presentation.  Upon completion of the presentation, the 
Mad Scientist will pronounce the Cub Scout cured.  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







119


Activity


Preparation Cub Scouts:  Prior to the pack meeting and during the weekly den meetings, the Cub 
Scouts can work with their den leaders and den in baking and decorating a cake.  Emphasis should 
be placed on the need to follow directions to prepare the cake.  Decorations on the cake can center 
on a Halloween theme.  These experiences can then be utilized to make their own Halloween 
themed cake at home (with the help and guidance of their parents or guardian) that they will later 
be presented at the Pack Meeting.


Preparation Cub Leaders:  Leaders should prepare a written list of award categories for each Cub 
Scout along with a formal certificate that corresponds to the award category.  The certificate should 
have a blank line or space where the name of the Cub Scout receiving the award can be written at 
a later time.  So that each Cub Scout receives an award, make sure that the number of categories 
equals the number of Cub Scouts within the pack.  An example of categories are provided below.


___ Most Creative


___ Most Colorful


___ Scariest


___ Most Yummy Looking


___ Most Decorative


___ Most Deadly


___ Craziest


___ Most Monsterous


As the Cub Scouts arrive at pack meeting, have them place their cakes on a Halloween themed 
table for presentation.  Have the Den Leaders assign numbers to each cake as they are brought into 
the meeting.  


During the activity portion of the Pack Meeting, have each Cub Scout vote on the cake they feel 
best fits the category by writing the assigned cake number on the line next to the award category.  
Upon completion, the Cub Scouts can submit their votes to the Mad Scientist (the Cub Master).  
Have the Mad Scientist or other evil minions (other Cub leaders) announce the winners of each 
category at the end of the activity.  Each winner should receive a Certificate in their name.  


Cubmater Minute


The Cubmaster minute should discuss the importance in following directions.  Over the past month 
the Cub Scouts had the opportunity to work as a den and with their parents in preparing and 
decorating cakes. They may have learned that if the directions are not followed correctly, their 
cake did not turn out as they would have liked.  This can be likened to the importance of following 
the path of Akela and to reach their personal goals in scouting and life.  


Pack Meetings That Dazzle


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







120 Leader Helps


Refreshments


If you dare, serve the cakes that were prepared by the Cub Scouts.


Branching Out


Purpose


To help Cub Scouts learn and appreciate family values while getting to know friends and family.  


Opener


Puzzling Parents 


Using family photos, make a puzzle for the Cub Scouts to put together.  Upon completion, have the 
Cub Scouts identify the name of the individual in the photo.  


Preparation: From each Cub Scout’s parent or guardian, obtain a photo copy (not an original) of a 
family member related to each of the boys (preferably a grandparent or great-grandparent).  Have 
the photo copy submitted one week prior to the pack meeting and make sure the copy is no smaller 
than 3’ x 5’(the larger the copy the better).  


Have the parents include a description on how the individual in the photo is related to the Cub 
Scout (you may need this information later to help the Cub Scout identify the individual in the 
photo copy).  The notation should not be made on the photo copy but rather on a separate sheet of 
paper.  


On the back side of the photo copy, draw puzzle shapes of no more than five to seven puzzle pieces.  
Using scissors, cut along the puzzle lines and place the puzzle pieces in a zip lock bag with the 
name of the Cub Scout related to the photographed individual on the outside of the zip lock bag.  


When the Cub Scout arrives to the meeting, hand him his zip lock bag with the puzzle pieces.  
While sitting at a table, have the Den Leaders help the Cub Scout put the puzzle together and 
determine if he knows the individual in the picture.  If he does not know the individual, the Den 
Leaders can reveal this to him with the information provided by the Cub Scout’s parents.  


Awards


Obtain a small fake pine tree (about one to two feet in height).  This will be used during the Awards 
segment of the presentation.  If you are unable to obtain a tree, you can cut out an image of a 
tree (at least four feet tall and three feet wide) with green construction paper (i.e. green butcher 
paper) with an image similar to a Christmas Tree.  This can then be taped to a wall as part of the 
presentation.  Using string, attach the awards to the small pine tree similar to how you would hang 
awards from a Christmas tree.  If you used construction paper for your tree and mounted it on the 
wall, then tape the awards to various areas on the construction paper tree.


Advancements


Using construction paper and other supplies, build a small 12 to 18 inch tall tree to present the 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







121


advancement award.  During the process, help the Pack and other attendees get to know some of 
the likes and interests of the advancing Cub Scout.  


Preparation:  Prior to the Pack meeting contact the advancing Cub Scout’s parents/guardians to 
obtain a little information about the advancing Cub Scout (i.e. What is his favorite color?  What 
does he want to be when he grows up?  What is his favorite book or movie? etc.).  


Prior to the pack meeting, build a small tree that can be used during the award presentation.  Cut 
out green construction paper in the shape a round cloud about eight to 12 inches in diameter.  


On the front side of the construction paper, write the answers to the questions about the advancing 
Cub Scout’s interests (discussed above).  For additional creativity, you may want to print out 
pictures of the boys answers.  For example, if his favorite movie is about Super Heroes, you can 
print a picture of that super hero and glue or tape it to the front of the tree.  Just make sure the 
image is small enough (or the tree is large enough) to fit all the images you print.  


Glue popsicle sticks (or “tree branches”) to the back of the construction paper.  The sticks will 
provide support to the tree when it stands upright.  All sticks should lay flat against the backside 
of the construction paper. 


Using another popsicle stick, some glue and/or tape, attach the construction paper to the end of 
a corrugated paper towel tube (the tube will serve as the “tree trunk”).  Tape and/or glue one end 
of the popsicle stick to the back side of the green construction paper.  Tape and/or glue the other 
end of the popsicle stick to the inside of the tree trunk.  Once you have completed the tree, you 
can hang the scouts award from the lower part of the three with a piece of string or just attach the 
award to the tree with some tape.  


When presenting the award to the Cub Scout, be sure to go over the answers to his likes and 
interests that you placed on the front of the tree.  Correlate this to family history work.  As we do 
our family history, we get to know our ancestors’ likes and interests as well as the challenges they 
experienced during their lives.    


Presentation


Invite a leader or guest speaker (preferably someone that is familiar with family history work) 
to speak on the value and importance in family history work.  Have them explain about how to 
complete a family group record and/or family tree chart.  Also have them review family history 
web sites and locations within their area where they can complete family history research.


Pack Meetings That Dazzle


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







122 Leader Helps


Activity


Who’s Who 


From each Cub Scout’s parent or guardian, obtain a baby picture (between the age one and four) of 
each Cub Scout and Cub Leader one week prior to the Pack Meeting.  Make sure the name of the 
Cub Scout and Cub Leader is provided with the photo.  Prior to the pack meeting, cut out an image 
of a tree (at least four feet tall and three feet wide) and mount it to a wall where the pack meeting 
will be held.  Using tape, attach the photos of each of the boys and their Cub Leader to the tree.  
Make sure you assign a number to each photo and place the number next to each photo on the tree.  
Hand each cub scout and Cub Leader a paper with the names of all the individuals that are on the 
tree.  Have the boys and Cub Leaders guess “Who’s Who” from the baby pictures by writing down 
the pictures’ assigned number next to the name of the individual on their paper.  When everyone 
has completed the activity, tally up the results to see who was most accurate in guessing Who’s 
Who.  You may want to provide an award for the top three or four winners.  


Cubmaster Minute


The Cub Master may bring personal family heirlooms and talk about how his or her family’s 
example influences his or her own personal life for the better.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







123


Finding Success in the Webelos 
Program


With their Webelos years being their last year for Cubs, There is a big push to make sure these 
boys are ready for Scouts.  We suggest working with the boys to help build outdoor skills and 
Leadership Skills.  You might try some of the following ideas.  


OUTDOOR COOKING


Materials needed:


    A cardboard box about the size of the boxes that 10 reams of copy paper comes in
    A pint of contact cement OR a staple gun with SMALL staples
    A wire cookie cooling rack
    4-6 empty pop cans (to place under the wire rack)
    A roll of heavy duty Reynolds aluminum foil (wider is better than narrow)
    Shallow aluminum or steel dish or bowl
    Sharp Knife to cut cardboard and scissors to cut aluminum foil.
    Duct tape (optional) 


How to build:


    The finished product will have a door wide enough to accommodate a 9” pie pan on a rack, 
and long enough to insert a dish full of hot coals into the bottom a sufficient distance below the 
rack. Determine which side of the box you will cut the door. If your box is the type that has a 
removable top, you can configure the oven without a door and simply remove the top when you 
need access. It is best to start with a box with all sides fastened down to create a fully enclosed 
space, then cut a door into one of the sides.
    Cut the door into one of the box sides. You can cut the door almost the entire width of the box 
so it will “hinge” near a corner of the box and will “latch” on about 1-3 inches of the remaining 
box side. The length of the door should leave about 4 inches from the top and bottom of the box.
   Fasten aluminum foil to the entire inside of the box, applying through the door opening you 
have cut. Do not leave any card board exposed on the inside of the box. You can use contact 
cement to fasten the foil to the inside of the box, although you can 
   


Cardboard Box Oven


Finding Success in the Webelos Program


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







124 Leader Helps


Box Oven cont.


also use staples.  Let cement cure before use. If any of the aluminum foil tears while applying, 
just cut patches and glue or staple over. You may get better results if you use two layers of foil, 
although one will be sufficient. Do not forget to put foil on the inside of the door you cut! 
Also, when you get to the door side of the box, make sure the foil “wraps” around the 
door edges and the “jamb” edges. You can get a nice finished look by taking duct 
tape and fastening down the aluminum foil that wrapped around the door edges to 
the outside, and also applying it to the outside of the box to reinforce corners, etc. Be 
careful, though, not to get the duct tape too close to the door, because it can melt from 
the heat.
  Next take the 4-6 soda pop cans and place them on the bottom of the box, then place 
the rack on top of the cans.  To make the cans more stable you could fill them with 
some sand.
   Your oven is almost finished! You now need to create the heat source. This is done by using a 
shallow steel or aluminum pan, dish or bowl, sitting on pan supports. The pan supports 
can be a small rack, rolled up balls of foil, rocks, or some other such device which will 
keep the pan a small distance off the bottom of the box.  Line the pan with aluminum foil 
also, just for easy cleaning.  Once you have fully lined the box with foil, you are ready to 
BAKE! 


Easy Pineapple Upside down Cake
3 TBPS melted butter
1 cup brown sugar – or less
1 can pineapple rings, drained. Set pineapple juice aside.
1 small can maraschino cherries (optional)
1 box yellow cake mix
1 egg


Line the inside of the cake pan with foil.  
Spread the melted butter with around the bottom and sides of cake pan.
Sprinkle brown sugar over bottom of pan.
Place pineapple rings over sugar; add cherries in center of rings.
Use pineapple juice instead of water in the cake mix.  
Combine pineapple juice, cake mix, and egg. 
Pour into cake pan.
Bake cake in box for 30 minutes.  Check with a toothpick for doneness. 
Add additional briquettes and bake for an additional 10 – 15 minutes.  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







125


Lazy Cake Cookies
1 box yellow or white cake mix
2 eggs beaten
1 cube butter, melted
2 cups chocolate chips
Combine all ingredients and mix thoroughly.
Line a 9 x 13” pan with foil, spray the bottom with oil.
Pour into the cake pan and bake for 15 to 20 minutes or until cake tests done.
You can use the Cardboard box oven to cook anything you would cook in your oven at home, 
you would just adjust for the number of coals that you need to maintain the temperature.
You might also try a few other Outdoor Cooking Ideas:


Bacon & Egg in a Brown Paper Sack
Take a brown paper lunch sack and cover the bottom with 2 strips of bacon.
Crack an egg over the top of the bacon
Roll top of sack down in 1inch folds, shove a sharp pointed stick through the folds of the paper 
sack, hold stick placing the bag, over the coals the bacon and egg will cook in about 5-10 
minutes.


Pigs in a Blanket
Take a hot dog, and skewer the hot dog with a long stick.  Roll out to about 3/8 in. thick canned 
biscuit, cut into slices, then wrap slices around hot dog. Place over coals until the rolls are golden 
brown.


Foil Dinner
Aluminum Foil
1/4-1/2lb Ground Beef (or some type of meat)
1 carrot peeled and sliced
1/4-1/2 peeled and sliced potato 
A few slices of onion (optional)
Place meat, and vegetables on a large square of foil, fold left and right edges of foil over food, 
fold top over at least twice with shiny side of foil facing inside.  Then fold the remaining edges 
of foil over also at least twice.  Place foil pouch onto hot coals, turn over once at least during 
cooking time.  Cook each side at least 12-15 min.  You can experiment with other vegetables, 
and you can add soups for moister meats, or a large lettuce leave to keep meat from drying out.


Other Outdoor Activities:
Nighttime  Treasure Hunt
Have Webelos Scouts pair up with their dads to look for objects around a campsite.
-Count the number of bugs found with a flashlight in a two minute period.
-Collect leaves from different types of trees.


Finding Success in the Webelos Program


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







126 Leader Helps


Nighttime Treasure Hunt cont.


-Collect garbage left on the ground
-Look for different types of rocks
-Look for different types of animal scat
-Add your own ideas


Time spent out of doors with dad’s and families, makes a lot of great memories.


Outdoor Rocket Launcher


Parts needed:
3 each 3/4” cap
1 each 3/4” tee
1 each 3/4 x 1/2” threaded tee
5 ft. 3/4” P.v.c. Schd 200 or 40 pipe
1 each 1/2 x 8” threaded riser
1 each 3/4” 90 degree elbow
1 ft. Electrical tape
1 each tire valve


Assembling Instructions:
Cut pipe into the following lengths:
2 each 6 inches
2 each 12 inches
1 each 18 inches


Drill 1/2” hole in end of one cap.  Push valve stem into hole, then glue this cap to a 6 inch pipe, 
and then the 90 degree elbow to a 6 inch piece.  Now glue the 18 inch pipe to the 90 degree 
elbow.  Thread riser into threaded tee, then glue tee into 6 inch piece aligning riser with the 6 
inch piece.  Now glue the other 6 inch piece to the threaded tee.  Then glue the tee left to it.  And 
then glue the 2  18 inch pieces of pipe into this tee, and complete the launcher by gluing the caps 
left to the ends of the 1 inch pieces.  At the bottom of the riser tape it up with the electrical tape 
in a tapered manner.  Now it is ready to hook up  the tire pump and fill a two liter bottle half full 
with water, push on riser firmly and start pumping with a tire pump until it goes off.


Pack Night Ideas:


1. Have the boys bring their 2 liter bottles decorated as rockets prior to pack meeting.
2. Display them on tables or a stage.
3. Judge them in the following areas by den.
a. Best Design
b. Most Unusual
c. Most Creative
4. Take them outside and launch them by den.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







127


CREATING MEANINGFUL ARROW OF 
LIGHT ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 


Lord Badden-Powell pointed out that one of the important aspects of scouting was recognition.  
We create ceremonies to recognize achievements, awards, advancements, openings and closings 
of special meeting or events, and patriotic activities such as flag raisings.  


Few things are sadder than attending a scouting meeting as dead as a funeral service.  This is why 
we teach the scouts showmanship.  When Badden-Powell was in the service stationed overseas 
he participated in plays and operettas to entertain his fellow soldiers.  He also was involved in 
the pageantry and ceremony of the Queen’s military service.  As he created the Boy Scouts he 
incorporated all these aspects into the program, in other words, meetings and activities are 
supposed to be fun!  For a Cub Master, once a month is always “Showtime”, a time to “entertain 
the troops”.  The cubs and their families should leave with a memorable experience and the cubs 
feeling special.


MONTHLY THEME CENTERED CEREMONIES


Wolf and Bear advancements as well as arrow point awards can be easily tied into the current 
monthly theme.  Themes range from such subjects as the Great Outdoors to the Knights of the 
Round Table, from Our American Heritage to Space Exploration, from Circus and Show themes 
to Passports to Foreign Lands.  Each of these gives us a wide variety of costuming options as well 
as skits or ceremonies connected with them.  


Themes connected with knights tend to come around every few years.  A natural advancement 
ceremony is to have the scout kneel before the presenter who then knights them on the shoulders 
with a sword.  Costuming can be as simple as creating a tunic from a white bed sheet.  A sleeveless 
sack is sewn up with head and arm holes and extending to about the knees.  Three red crosses 
from the crusades can be drawn, painted or sewn on the chest (look it up on the internet).  Add 
dark long sleeve and pants and a thick belt and your costume is complete.  If head gear is desired 
and simple gold crown of thin cardboard (think of the Burger King give-a-ways), or a knight’s 
helmet can be made from an empty cardboard 3 gallon ice cream tub.  Cut out the openings for 
eyes and slots for breathing and speaking, paint it grey and even put a silky streamer coming out 
the top and it is done.  It doesn’t need to be worn but can be carried under the arm.


A western theme may bring a pony express rider racing through (on a stick horse, of course) to 
deliver the awards.  A forest ranger may visit to teach about the outdoor code and present the 
“Leave No Trace” patches.  A lion tamer with bull whip and chair may come in looking for their 
escaped tigers, only to find them in the audience, and bring them forward to give awards to the 
tiger scouts.  An explorer (from any point in history) may join in to share recent discoveries, all of 
which are patches and pins to present to the boys and their parents.  Simple costuming will always 
sell it and over acting will make it fun.  The possibilities are endless.


Creating Meaningful Arrow of Light Advancement Ceremonies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







128 Leader Helps


WEBELOS ACTIVITY BADGES


Since Readyman is about first aid the range can be from coming out in scrubs to coming out 
all bandaged up.  Years ago I acquired a fireman’s coat and long rubber boots which were easy 
to throw on and run into the meeting saying there was an emergency and asking if there was a 
Readyman in the audience.  Another favorite was to grab the little blue hat that they give you in 
delivery (ever met someone in the area who has had a baby?), a white shirt with narrow tie and a 
black suit jacket (all cheap from DI), wire rimmed glasses (also from DI with the lenses removed), 
black makeup on my eye brows and an over sized mustache painted on and “Voila`”, I’m Groucho 
Marx as a doctor.
Any award dealing with fitness or athletics can bring you out in workout gear or sports uniforms.  
You can be a special guest such as an Olympic hero from the 1920 Olympics being interviewed 
about some of those sports no longer in the games (you know, like the 50 yard wheel barrow dash, 
platform dirt diving, team sardine eating that the Scandinavians always swept, etc.).  


The main thing is to make it fun.  You can create a mini skit that makes people smile and laugh, 
and the boys will remember.  Becoming a person from history such as an artist for that badge, a 
signer of the Declaration of Independence for Citizen, or a scientist (just borrow a lab coat) for 
that badge can be educational as well as fun.  Simply Google the historical figure and you can 
teach a bit of history in your presentation.  Working with an assistant will give you a “straight 
man” to work off and also give you the break you need to change.  If acting just isn’t your thing, 
no problem, you can be the straight man and you can find a ham to help with the theatrical part.  


ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONIES


The main focus of the Pow Wow workshop is creating Arrow of Light Ceremonies.  Nothing is 
sadder than seeing a young man called up and handed this most prestigious award with a simple 
handshake and nothing else.  There are some fine ceremonies out there, but I have seen the same 
presentation made over and over for each boy in the pack.  That diminishes the impact and the 
personal focus of the ceremony.  I decided that I would try to create enough new ceremonies 
so that if a boy was in Cub Scouts for three years and maybe an attendee at pack meetings as a 
sibling for a few more years that they would not hear the same ceremony repeated.  That meant 
that in a five year period I came up with 16 different ceremonies.   Some of the ceremonies were 
used for two boys when they received their awards at the same time, but otherwise each boy had 
their own.  


GETTING STARTED.  The first thing I would try is find out what the scout’s main interests were.  
One scout was crazy about going out hunting with family members, so I wrote “A Hunter’s Tale” 
for him.  He was a little disappointed when he learned he didn’t get to keep the deer skin that I 
had draped across his shoulders, but he did enjoy the story.  Another outdoor loving young man 
was named McKinley after the Alaskan mountain.  The “Mountaineering” ceremony was written 
for him.  One young man was interested in aviation, so “The Dream of Flight” was written for 
him.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







129


Often there is no clear hint or help from the scout as to a subject, so I just come up with 
something that I think is interesting.  Once I have the subject it is a matter of simple research with 
the internet being my resource of choice.  I collect details from such sites as Wikipedia or more 
specific sites to the subject.  Other times I will come up with interesting subjects while reading or 
watching films and documentaries.  If it is an historical subject it can be arranged in chronological 
order.  This will help you remember the ceremony so that your notes can be minimal.  


By far, the easiest ceremonies to memorize and tell are those that are stories rather than a list of 
facts.  A good story flows as you weave the tale among its characters.  Five of the Arrow of Light 
Ceremonies are stories and all have a Native American theme.  Four are either original or mostly 
original, while one is lifted directly off a website.  The website I used is by Paul Burke, www.
firstpeople.us, and has over 1400 Native American legends listed from nations and tribes from the 
U.S. and Canada.


Story telling is an easy art to acquire.   Most adults have read bedtime stories to their children 
over the years.  After reading their favorite story for the “umpteenth” time, what parent doesn’t 
have that story memorized?  Now you have the opportunity to add such things as voice inflections 
and facial expressions to give it a dramatic flair.  The same is true about the stories in a ceremony.  
You should familiarize yourself with the text so you can tell it by heart or uses just a simple set of 
notes.  Your focus should be upon the young man and the audience which cannot happen if your 
head is down while reading.  


The next step to writing the ceremony is to tie it all together into the scouting experience.  How 
can the points of the presentation or story tie into the journey the young man has made from 
Bobcat to Wolf and Bear to Webelos and finally to receiving the Arrow of Light award?  Draw the 
parallels between the two so there is a purpose to the presentation and not just some interesting 
facts or a fun story.  This is the time to wrap it all up into that special presentation that makes the 
young man feel really special.  I usually finish up while presenting the award by stating that this 
patch is the only one earned during Cub Scouting that is worn on the Boy Scout uniform, and 
then mention that he will be able to wear it as knot badge on his uniform as an adult scout leader 
(after all, aren’t we building leaders for the next generation?).  The last thing is that I print off a 
copy of the ceremony to send home with the family.


COSTUMING AND PROPS.  As mentioned previously, the pageantry of the ceremony can 
always be enhanced by a costume or different props.  The costume may be as simple as a coat 
and hat or as intricate as a Native American or mountain man outfit.  The easiest thing is to see 
what your already have in your closets.  A sports uniform, western clothes, outdoor attire or 
older clothes that may be from a former generation may be something that can be worked into a 
ceremony.  If you have the ability to sew you can peruse the discount bolts of fabric at the fabric 
or department store for inexpensive costume material.  One of the best resources for costuming 
is second hand stores.  In our area we have both Deseret Industries and Savers which have ever 
changing stock that can give you endless possibilities.  Use them and have fun.  


About Native American/mountain man outfits, if they are made out of real buckskin leather 


Creating Meaningful Arrow of Light Advancement Ceremonies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







130 Leader Helps


they are extremely expensive, costing you hundreds of dollars and countless hours of sewing—
not recommended.  Many of you may have someone within your unit boundaries that is into 
mountain man activities and already has such an outfit.  Invite them to participate in a ceremony 
and use them as a resource.  They often love the opportunity to be in their regalia and can 
delight the scouts with their outdoor expertise.  If you wish to make an outfit start with a heavy 
broadcloth or canvas, which will do the job or be the practice if you decide to go on to leather.  
Patterns are readily available through the Missouri River Patterns and Eagle’s View Patterns (see 
resources).  These can be purchased locally at Beck Leather, Tandy Leather or online at a number 
of sources (start with “mountain man” or “Native American” clothing, costumes, patterns, etc., 
in a search engine such as Google or Bing).  Buckskin hides can be purchased for up to 40 to 50 
percent off if you watch the sales at the local leather craft stores.  A less expensive alternative is to 
use goat skin that has been dyed to look the same.  


An alternative costume that is much less work and cost is a blanket coat (blanket capote), a 
long draping wrap traditionally made from a Hudson Bay style blanket.  Worn by both Native 
Americans and Mountain men of both sexes, it can be put on quickly over your uniform 
requiring no major costume changes (patterns available from the two above companies).  


Props such as drums (can be made or purchased as toys inexpensively), Indian style blankets 
(Mexican knock-offs are affordable), fake campfires and anything with feathers attached can be 
used with multiple ceremonies.  A “talking wing” is a goose wing that is dried, the base wrapped 
with buckskin; beads optional (if you know a bird hunter, ask them to give you a wing).  But, you 
can buy some cheap feathers, wrap the quills together at the base and you have a wing.  Make it 
out of paper and you have the most inexpensive prop possible. Other simple props can be as easy 
as pictures printed off the internet.  Be creative and think cheap, and it is fun to see what you can 
come up with.


On the disc that accompanies the Pow Wow Book are 16 Arrow of Light ceremonies plus a few 
flag ceremonies that I have written.  Use them as examples to write your own, or just use them if 
you like them.  Have fun.


Eric Christiansen  WE7-590-3-08


RESOURCES:


Beck Leather and Crafts
7884 South Redwood Road
Salt Lake City, UT
www.beckleather.com
801.567.1115


Native American Trading Post
3971 South Redwood Road
Salt Lake City, UT


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







131


natputah.com
801.952.0184


Crazy Crow Trading Post
Missouri River Patterns
www.crazycrow.com
800.786.6210


Eagle’s View Patterns 
6756 North Fork Road
Liberty, UT 84310


Tandy Leather
Various Utah locations in Ogden, Orem, Salt Lake City


Tandy Leather
Sandy, UT
9437 South 700 East
801.966.0144


Be sure to introduce yourself as a scout leader and receive a discount at both Beck Leather and 
Tandy Leather.


Creating Meaningful Arrow of Light Advancement Ceremonies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







132 Leader Helps


NOTES!NOTES!







133


NOTES!NOTES!







134 Pizzazz


Super Fun Cooking  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  135


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting   �  �  �  �  �  �  148


Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  156


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling  �  �  �  �  �  �  159


Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget �  �  �  �  �  �  173


Super Fun Science Guy  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  176


Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  179


Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots,  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  181


Intermediate and Advanced Knot Tying   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  181


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







135


Super Fun Cooking 


Scouts like to eat� Mostly they like sweets but you put food in front of them and they will 
be hungry� 


When making a plan for cooking with scouts first of all think what they would like to 
eat� Gourmet food will probably not go over very well� Also you want to make it as 
simple and fun as possible�  The parents of the scouts would appreciate it if you taught 
them more than treats to make, so keep in mind some healthy along with the sweet� 
Another big issue these days is food allergies� Don’t forget to check to see if any of your 
scouts or leaders have any food allergies that you should be aware of� This is not only 
important for the safety of the child but also allows the scout to feel like you are thinking 
of him and doing things that he can be involved in and not left out� 


Another thing to keep in mind is what requirements can you check off in the wolf, bear, 
or webelos hand books�  Most important is HAVE FUN!!!!


Cub scouts like bugs�  So one thing you can do is to have fun with food to create bugs� 
Think of any food they would like and how can you put that into a snack or meal for the 
cubs to make� 


Ideas:


Spider Cookies:


Ingredients:
 Cookies
 Rope Licorice 
 Frosting
 Candy for eyes


You can use Oreo cookies or any other kind of flat cookie and add frosting in the middle.  
Take the rope licorice and cut into 2” strips� Each cookie or spider has 8 legs�  Put the 
frosting between the 2 cookies� Stick the legs into the frosting (4 on each side)� Put 
2 dots of frosting on top of the top cookie and press 2 pieces of candy in to make the 
eyes�


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







136 Pizzazz


Rice Krispy Bugs


6 cups rice krispies
3 Tbsp� Butter
40 Reg� or 4 cups mini Marshmallows
Licorice Rope
Candy for eyes


Melt butter in pan� Add marshmallows and stir until melted� Remove from heat and 
add rice krispies� Mix well� While still warm take little scoops of the treat and form into 
balls� Make 2� Place vines on top of one ball and place the other ball on top and push 
together to stick� You can do this with 2 additional balls to make 2 parts of the body and 
them place together to make an ant� Or leave as a spider� Or make a caterpillar� Add 
antennas and eyes with candy� 


Decide what you are going to make before you start mixing so you know how many 
balls you will need� It is easier to assemble while still warm so before it is hard it is in the 
shape you want� 


Corn Dog Caterpillars


Mini Corn Dogs
Chinese Noodles
Katsup


It is better for the corndogs to be cooked before adding legs� If you bake the Chinese 
noodles they will burn� I suggest putting the corndogs together with toothpicks or 
noodles that are completely covered� Make the shape of the caterpillar in a squiggly line 
using about 5 mini corndogs on a cookie sheet� Bake them as directed� Then put in the 
Chinese noodles (2 to 3 in each corndog on each side) for legs and add 2 for antennas 
on the front� Then dot the face with ketsup for eyes and nose� 


Bumble Bee appetizer


Cheese circles
Olives (sliced)
Toothpicks


You can use cheese slices but it is easier to get cheese sticks or string cheese� Cut the 
cheese into circles about the same size as olives� Slice the olives� You should end up 
with about 3 slices of olive and 2 slices/circles of cheese and a toothpick per Bee� Use 
the toothpick to strip the bee� First an olive then cheese, then olive, then cheese, then 
olive� Use frosting or candies or plastic eyes to make 2 little eyes on the top� 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







137


Bumble Bee Hot Dogs


Hot Dogs
Cheese
Toothpicks


Each hotdog will make 2 bees� Slice hotdog into about 1” strips� Cut cheese into circles 
about the size of the hotdog�  Cut strips of cheese about 1” x  3”�  Use the toothpicks to 
strip the hotdog and cheese� Use 3 hotdog and 2 cheese or 4 hotdog and 3 cheese� Lay 
the striped hotdog onto the sliced cheese and bake in oven or microwave just to melt 
cheese and warm hotdog� 


Mounds of Bugs


Mounds candy bars
Pretzels
Chocolate frosting
Assorted candies


Using a skewer, poke three holes in both long sides of each candy bar�  Break rounded 
pretzel sections into 1” pieces� Insert into holes for legs� Use frosting to attach candies 
on back to make different types of bugs� You can substitute rope licorice for the pretzels�  
Be creative and have fun� 


Have you ever thought of using ice cream cones, regular or sugar for holiday 
treats?  


You can take a regular ice cream cone, turn it upside down and by using red and blue 
gel make red white and blue stripes on the small part of the cone� Use blue fruit roll ups 
for the brim or wide part of the cone� Stick it on with frosting� Use a scoop of ice cream, 
or whipping cream and create a beard� Add candy eyes and nose and you have Uncle 
Sam� 


Turn the cone right side up and decorate the outside of the cone with frosting and candy 
like a vase or pot� Fill the cone with a chocolate cup cake or crushed up Oreo cookies 
for the dirt. Make flowers or what ever with gummy candy on toothpicks. Put them in the 
dirt and you have a bug or flower garden for mothers day. 


Take the sugar cones and bake a cupcake in it� Turn it upside down and decorate the 
cupcake like grass� You can frost the cone or leave it plain� Cut a small piece off the 
tip of the cone and stick 3 pretzel sticks in the top to make a Tee Pee�  Using different 
colors you can make it into a Christmas tree or a Witches Hat or even a New Years Eve 
Party Hat� 


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







138 Pizzazz


In the Arrow of light badge there are 7 rays� Each ray stands for something that the boy 
is to learn during the scouting program� Each of these rays can be attached to a color�  
One way of teaching these values is to attach them to a color and use those colors to 
make snacks or treats during a scout meeting� 


1� WISDOM - Wisdom does not necessarily mean superior knowledge� It means putting 
to the right use, the knowledge that one possesses�  (can be green)


2� COURAGE - Courage is not the quality that enables men to meet danger without fear� 
It is being able to meet danger in spite of one’s fear� (can be orange)


3� SELF-CONTROL - Self-control isn’t limited to the control of one’s temper but control 
of one’s self in all things� (can be yellow)


4� JUSTICE - Justice is the practice of dealing fairly with others without prejudice or 
regard to race, color or creed� (can be blue)


5� FAITH - Faith is the conviction that something unproven by physical evidence is true� 
(can be white)


6. HOPE - Hope means to expect with confidence. Always hope for better things to 
come� (can be purple)


7� LOVE - There are many kinds of love; Love of family, Love of home, Love of 
fellowman, Love of god, and Love of country� All these Loves are necessary for a full 
life� (can be red)


Use sugar cookies and frost in the different colors as you discuss what each one 
means�


Melt different colors of chips to match the different values and dip pretzels in them to 
make a ray� 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







139


OK, what can we make from Rhodes rolls bread dough� 


Using the premade frozen dough makes it easier to make individual items� Another 
added benefit of this is most of these can be done indoors or outdoors.  


Pizza


One ball of Rhodes roll dough
Pepperoni
Olives
Sauce
Cheese
Mushrooms
Onions
Pineapple
Canadian Bacon
(what ever you want on it, you get to eat it)


Flatten the dough onto a greased cookie sheet or the bottom of a well greased Dutch 
oven pan�  Spread the amount of sauce you want on it and add the remainder of the 
ingredients that you want� Bake in the oven at 400 for about 15 minutes or until crust is 
done� If you are cooking in a Dutch oven make sure you put more coals on top than on 
bottom so the crust does not burn before all else is done� 


Cinnamon Rolls


One ball of Rhodes roll dough
Butter
Sugar/Cinnamon mix


Flatten out the ball of dough onto a greased sheet of foil�  Spread the dough with melted 
butter and then sprinkle with cinnamon sugar�  Roll up�  If you use a string you can cut 
the roll into a couple of pieces� Lay on a greased cookies sheet or cake pan or in a 
greased Dutch oven� Let raise then bake for about 15 to 20 minutes at 350� Again if you 
are using a Dutch oven put more coals on top than on the bottom� 


Pigs in a Blanket


One ball of Rhodes roll dough
Hot Dogs


Flatten out the dough and cut into strips about 1” wide�  Take each strip of dough and 
wrap it around a hotdog starting at the bottom and winding your way up to the top 
like the stripes on a candy cane�  Lay it on a cookie sheet and bake until the dough is 
golden brown� Or if you attach the dough to the hot dog with a toothpick you can put the 
hotdog on a roasting stick and cook over the fire. 


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







140 Pizzazz


Cinnamon Snake on a Stick


One ball of Rhodes roll dough
Cinnamon Sugar
Butter


Take the dough and roll it out like a snake� Make it into a long skinny snake� Cut into 
pieces of about 3”� Poke a wooden skewer up through the center of the dough� Place 
on a cookie sheet and bake for about 10 minutes at 350� When it comes out of the oven 
spread of baste dough with butter and then sprinkler with cinnamon sugar� 


What about Easy Dutch Oven Cooking:


Dutch oven cooking can be made really easy and good or it can be very complicated� I 
like to stick with the easy but OH SO TASTY!!  A couple of simple rules with the Dutch 
oven cooking is start with the size of the Dutch oven� If it is a 10” then to make 350° 
then you add 10 coals on top and 10 coals on the bottom or 10 on bottom and 12 on 
top�  The more coals you add to the top and the bottom the higher the temperature� If 
you want to broil then you would put a lot more on top than on bottom� For example you 
may want to put 5 on bottom and 15 to 20 on top� If you want to fry then the opposite 
is true�  If using a fry pan then of course all would be on the bottom� If you are going 
to need to cook for a long period of time you will need to prepare coals after you have 
started to cook to replace the ones that turn into ash as you go so you can keep up the 
temperature for the duration� Dutch ovens do retain some heat so do not over due it or 
you will burn you food� Also remember that Dutch ovens require oil so as to not stick�  I 
have found that it is hard to clean sugary items from the oven so I will put a layer of tin 
foil in the Dutch oven and use that to do dump or crumble cakes� 


Potatoes:


Potatoes
Onions
Bell Peppers
Butter


Peal potatoes and cut into bit size pieces (one per person)� Chop up onions and bell 
peppers or what ever vegetables you want� Slice butter into about 1 Tbsp segments� 
Layer the bottom of the Dutch oven with butter� (Not too much, about 6 Tbsp� in a 10” 
oven� Layer the vegetables on top of the butter� Add another 8 to 10 Tbsp of butter to 
top of vegetables and bake for about an hour� Check every half hour or so and stir�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







141


Chicken:


Chicken pieces
Flour and seasoning
Eggs
Butter


Beat up some eggs well in a bowl.  Place some flour or cornstarch in a large baggie 
with other seasoning to taste� Dip the chicken in the egg and drop into the baggie of 
seasoning�  Line the bottom of the Dutch oven with about 8 to 10 Tbsp of pads of butter� 
Place the chicken on top of the butter and put the lid on and cook� Turn chicken every 
20 minutes so all sides are cooking well� 


Dump Cake or Crisp


One Cake Mix
Can of fruit of pie filling (Blueberry, Peach, Apple, etc.)
½ cup butter


Grease the Dutch oven with oil or line with tin foil spayed with Pam or oil� If you use a 
can of fruit that is not pie filling pour out most of the juice/liquid from the fruit. Pour pie 
filling or fruit into the pan. Dump dry cake mix in on top of the fruit. Top with about ½ cup 
of butter sliced into ½ to 1 Tbsp dollops�  Cover and bake for about 1 hour or until the 
top is golden brown and slightly crisp� 


Ham:


Grease the Dutch oven very well� Place the ham in the oven and pour about 1 cup of 
honey onto the top of the ham� Put lid on and cook until heated through� 


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







142 Pizzazz


Tin Foil Dinners:


Always Use 2 Layers of Foil when cooking� 


In one wrap place chopped up vegetables with a squirt of oil and a little salt or 
seasoning� Wrap up tight and place on coals� Turn about every 10 minutes and check 
after 20 minutes to see if done� You can add a hamburger patty to this if you want�


In a separate foil wrap you can place chicken with oil and seasoning or a sauce on it�  
Again wrap and place on coals turning every 10 minutes and checking every 20 minutes 
to see if it is done� 


Spread out a refrigerated biscuit or Rhodes roll dough on a piece of foil place sauce 
on top and add other toppings� (Do not pile on too many toppings or the biscuit or roll 
will not cook in the middle)�  Fold up foil and place on coals� It will take about 15 to 20 
minutes to cook� 


Taco in a Bag


Small bag of chips (Doritos, Cheetos, etc�)
1/3 cup hamburger
1/3 cup refried beans
2 Tbsp shredded cheese
Salsa


Mix hamburger (pre cooked or raw) with refried beans and salsa� Place in foil and cook 
through�  Once meat is done or heated through mix in cheese and pour into bag of 
chips� Enjoy� You can use chili instead of hamburger and beans� 


Pocket Pizza


Pita Bread
Spaghetti sauce
Grated Cheese
Pepperoni 
Your favorite toppings


Cut each pita in half and spoon spaghetti sauce into the pocket spreading it evenly�  
Add cheese, pepperoni, and other toppings�  Wrap in foil and place in coals�  Cook for a 
couple minutes, flip and cook another two minutes. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







143


BONUS GRUB!


Outdoor Cooking
Banana Boats
Banana
Chocolate Chips
Marshmallows
Peanut Butter
Favorite Candy bars (chopped)
Any other favorite toppings
Foil


Hold the banana like it is a boat� Slice the peel under the stem and down to the end� 
Keep the peel on the banana but open the peel and slice the banana the same way� 
Load the banana with all your favorite things� Close the peel and wrap in foil� Stick in the 
coals until everything is melted (5-10 min)� Pull out and eat� This could also be done in 
the oven�


Waffle Cone Dessert
Waffle cone or Sugar Cone
Peanut butter
Any other favorite toppings�
Foil


Spread peanut butter on the inside of the cone� This is done to prevent the cone from 
burning� Fill with your favorite topping like chocolate chips, marshmallows, candy bar 
pieces� Wrap in foil and put in the coals for about 5-10 min� Turn every few minutes until 
melted� Open and eat�


Orange Cinnamon rolls
Orange
1 pkg� refrigerated cinnamon rolls (or homemade)
Foil
Baking sheet


Cut oranges in half and hollow out each side� Eat the oranges so they don’t go to waste! 
Put cinnamon roll in each orange� Arrange on cookie sheet and cover with foil� Set on 
grate over the fire. Watch the cook – be careful so they don’t burn. Once they are done 
remove from the fire and frost. Then enjoy! I have also heard of making up a muffin mix 
and cooking them in oranges too� I have never tried it but it is always fun to experiment�


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







144 Pizzazz


Foil Dinners
Choice of meat (chicken, hamburger, pork)
Potatoes
Carrots
Onions
Salt & Pepper
Other desired Seasonings
Foil


Cut a good sized piece of foil� In the middle place your meat� Season it to your liking� 
Add any vegetables you like� I like to add potatoes, onions and  carrots� Put as much as 
you like� Season again� Bring the corners on the foil together and fold down to create a 
tight seal� Fold each of the sides in to create a tight seal� Throw on the coals, grill or in 
the oven for a yummy dinner� Cook for about 15 min on each side� Check to see if done� 
Bring BBQ sauce or ketchup to top it off�


Omelet in a Bag
Eggs
Cheese
Cooked breakfast meat
Vegetables (peppers, onions, tomatoes)
Seasonings
Quart size Ziploc baggie
Pot of boiling water


Mix eggs in a bowl with whatever you like in your omelet� Pour into a quart size sealable 
bag and seal� Put into boiling water and cook until the eggs are cooked� Everyone gets 
what they want in their omelet and clean up is easy! Have salsa or ketchup for those 
who like something on top�


Other outdoor cooking ideas and recipes can be “googled” for more information� Make 
a solar oven and show the boys all the things you can cook� We would make biscuits, 
cookies and brownies� Another fun idea is to make a tin can stove� We would cook 
hamburgers, grilled cheese, eggs, bacon and so on� The possibilities are endless� My all 
time favorite tool to use in the outdoors is the dutch oven� Recipes can be found online 
or go buy a cookbook! 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







145


Indoor Cooking
I love to cook and my family is the same way� We have a family cookbook of recipes 
that we have collected over the years and shared with each other� It’s great for Cub 


Scouts to learn how to cook when they are young� They will be more independent as 
they grow older� Enjoy these recipes that will not disappoint� I also like to search Pinter-


est for new recipes�


No Bake Cookies (This is my favorite recipe)
2 c� sugar
½ c� milk
½ c� shortening
3 T� cocoa
½ t� salt
½ c� peanut butter


Mix together and bring to a hard boil� Remove from heat and add 3 cups quick oats and 
1 t� vanilla� Drop onto wax paper and cool�


Taylor’s Cobbler 
1 cake mix (preferably yellow or white)
1 can peaches (I use quart jar of peaches I have canned)
1 can of Sprite, 7 Up, or Mt� Dew


Preheat oven to 350 degrees� Empty out about ¾ of the juice from the peaches� Pour 
peaches into the bottom a 9x13 pan� Pour dry cake mix onto the peaches� Pour the 
soda on top of the cake mix� Bake for 30-40 minutes� Enjoy with ice cream or whipped 
topping�


Waffle desserts
For this recipe you can use a cake mix, brownie mix, muffin mix or even corn bread 
mix. Follow the directions on the box. Pour into heated waffle iron. Follow the cooking 
instructions for your waffle iron. When done scoop ice cream or whipped topping on top 
and enjoy! If you really like it sweet frost the waffles and present them as cookies. For 
the corn bread mix pour chili on top for a quick dinner� 


Popsicles
Favorite juice


Mix up your favorite juice and freeze it in popsicle mold or ice cube trays and toothpicks 
to hold them� 


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







146 Pizzazz


Orange Julius
1 c� water
1 c� milk
½ can of frozen concentrate orange juice
1 t� vanilla
Tray of ice cubes
And sugar to taste (about ¼ cup)


Put in the blender and blend away until ice is crushed� 


Ice Cream in a Bag
1 gallon size Ziploc bag
1 sandwich size Ziploc bag
3-4 c� ice
6 T� salt
1/3 c� whole milk or chocolate milk
1 T� sugar
1/8 t� vanilla


Mix the milk, sugar and vanilla in the sandwich baggie and seal� Put inside the gallon 
bag with the salt and ice and seal� Shake until the dessert is frozen� Remove the baggie 
from the salt and ice and rinse off before opening and eating� Enjoy� You can always 
add your favorite ice cream toppings�


English Muffin Pizza
English Muffins
Pizza Sauce
Cheese
Pizza Toppings


Open English muffin up and lay on cookie sheet. Spread pizza sauce on top of muffin. 
Add cheese and pizza toppings� Bake in oven at 350 degrees until cheese is melted 
and bubbling�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







147


Edible Fire
Shaved coconut-tinder
Pretzels-kindling
Tootsie Rolls-fuel
Candy Corn-fire
M&M’s-to create a circle around the fire (fire pit)
Crushed Oreo’s-dirt to put out the fire


Teach the Cub Scouts about the different parts of a fire and fire safety. Afterwards, you 
can eat the fire!


No-bake Cheesecake
12 oz� cream cheese
1 can Sweetened condensed milk
¼ c� lemon juice
Graham Cracker crust


Combine first three ingredients into a blender and mix until smooth. Pour into the gra-
ham cracker crust and refrigerate� Once it is set up serve with your favorite toppings�


Roasted Vegetables
Broccoli, cauliflower or asparagus (I haven’t tried any other veggies yet)
Olive oil
Salt & Pepper


Cover a cookie sheet with foil� Clean vegetables put on cookie sheet� Drizzle a little 
olive oil on top and toss around� Salt and pepper to your liking� Bake at 450 degrees for 
10-15 minutes� Keep an eye on them in case you want them more or less crunchy� Take 
out of oven and enjoy� 


Cake Mix Cookies
1 cake mix (any flavor)
1 large egg
¼ c� oil
¼ c� water
1 c� chopped nuts, raisins, chocolate chips, oatmeal, coconut, M&M’s (anything you like)


Preheat oven to 350 degrees� Combine cake mix, egg, oil and water� Beat until well 
blended� Add remaining ingredient(s)� Drop by teaspoon about 1 inch apart onto 
greased cookie sheet� Bake for 15 minutes or until done� Yummy!


Remember, when you cook with nuts, peanut butter, even M&M’s you need to make 
sure you know what allergies people may have� Even cross contamination can be bad�


Super Fun Cooking


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







148 Pizzazz


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz
 For Any Meeting


Pizzazz is the part of Cub Scout meetings that is the silly, and 
the fun.  Parents and kids will look forward to come back when they 
have had fun.  Pizzazz will make the meeting exciting, imaginative, 
up beat, and Sparkle.  


Make fun with:


•	Songs


•	Jokes and Run-ons


•	Cheers and Applause


•	Puzzles  


Get your ideas from all kinds of meetings you go to.  From Scouting 
experiences, attend Roundtable, reading Boys Life, or get resources from the 
Scout Shop or your pack library.  


Search the Internet, read books, find examples in periodicals and from 
media you listen to.  Ask the boys to share their favorite jokes, and riddles.  


Everyone is supposed to have fun.  If you are willing to do what is 
necessary to have fun, they will have fun.


Use appropriate props to spice things up.  Things like hats, song 
leading stick, and props for jokes will all aid in a Pizzazz delivery.  
Imagination is also a huge part of the Sparkle.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







149


Cheers and Applause


Using cheers and applause is a fun way to recognize achievements of Cub 
Scouts and add Pizzazz, when they advance in rank, put on a fun skit, win a 
competition or game, for any kind of participation, or any other way to say, 
“We like you, we are glad you are here, we are glad you help, we think you 
are great.”  


Applauses and cheers need to be fun, seem like they are spontaneous, 
practiced so they can be performed without script, and not be repetitious.  
Have some that everyone knows and introduce new ones each pack meeting, 
den meeting, or other Cub Scout event.


One way to deliver Pizzazz when it is time to perform a cheer or applause, 
have one of the Cub Scouts reach into an empty CHEER detergent box and 
pull out the name of the cheer or applause.  Have the boy demonstrate it 
and then lead the rest of the group performing it.  This way you will get 
variety and not use the same ones over and over.  Plan for lots of cheers and 
applauses, you may not use them all, but you don’t want to run out. You 
can add new ones each time.  Try to follow the theme of the meeting, like 
Pinewood Derby, heroes, western, etc.  Keeping them in labeled envelopes 
makes for easy selection when planning your meeting.


The important thing is to make the cheers and applause, fun.  Most of them 
are done standing, and use hands, feet, and actions.  There are many out 
there and new ones get invented all the time.  You can invent Pizzazz 
cheers and applauses on your own. And there are many variations on the 
same one as well.  


There are many great resources for cheers, including:


MacScouter:
http://www.usscouts.org/macscouter/Campfire/Cheers.asp


 All the Applauses We Could Find by John L Van da Walker III and 
Friends. Thorne Printing Co., 623 – 12th Avenue Road, Nampa, Idaho 83686.  
Phone (208) 466-3682, FAX (208) 466-1133


clipart.usscouts.org/scoutdoc/dmottstf/cheeryel.pdf


www.scoutingpages.org/us/in/pack359/Forms/Cub_Scout_Cheers.doc


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.usscouts.org/macscouter/Campfire/Cheers.asp





150 Pizzazz


Rudolph:  Put thumbs to your head with fingers up, forming antlers.  Wrinkle 
your nose, saying.  “Blink, Blink, Blink.”


Santa Claus:  Reach out and hold stomach saying loudly, “HO, HO, HO” three 
times. Variation:  Add:  “MERRY CHRISTMAS!”


Champion Cheer: To the count of four, do the following: stomp, stomp, clap, 
pause. To the beat say, “We do, we do, thank you!”


Charge Cheer: Cup both hands in front of mouth (like a horn), and yell,“Da-
da-da-dat-da-dah!”


Echo Cheer:  Using a word from your monthly theme, have half of the 
group yell out the word, and the other half be the echo, giving the cheer 
repeatedly, fainter and fainter.)


Ketchup Bottle Cheeer:  Make a fist with one hand.  Pound fist with other 
hand like trying to get the ketchup out of the bottle.


Pinewood Derby:  Hold hand over head and swoop it down saying “Whoosh” 
and “Thud” at the bottom of swoop.


Quarter Turn:  Group stands and claps hands 4 times, turns ¼ and stomps 4 
times, turns ¼ and claps 4 times, turns ¼ and stomps 4 times, turns back to 
front and says “Rah – rah – rah – rah”


Control cheering variations: 
1. Open a can, bottle, bag, whatever.  Group cheers as long as it is 


open.  They stop when you close it.
2. Throw a scarf, handkerchief, neckerchief in the air and group cheers 


until it touches the ground.  
3. Hold a stick or your hand out in front, raise and lower and the group 


raises or softens their cheer with the position of the stick.


Do Your Best:  Group stands and at the same time, claps 3 times, stomps 3 
times and shouts 3 times, “Do your best.”  


Do Your Best 2:  Group stands and claps 3 times, then stomps 3 times and 
then shouts 3 times, “Do your best.”  


[These cheers and applauses came from no specific source I can credit.  
They are some of my favorite and they were in my memory.]


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







151


Run ons, Jokes and Riddles


To add more Pizzazz to a Pack meeting, use run-ons, jokes and riddles.  
A good way is to involve the Cub Scout leaders in performing these, 
spontaneously, when there is a short lull.  Don’t be surprised if one of the 
Cub Scouts shouts out the punch line.  


Run-ons
What would you have if Mount Rushmore threw a football to Pike’s Peak? A 
mountain pass.


Why can’t an elephant ride a bike? Because he doesn’t have a thumb to ring 
the bell. 


What happened when the wheel was invented? It caused a revolution! 


What do you get when you cross a bike and a rose? Bicycle petals 


What would you get if you crossed a chicken with a bicycle? A HEN-speed 
bike. 


From GSLC, District 17 Roundtable handout


PERSON 1: Walks across stage pulling a rope.
PERSON 2: Why are you pulling that rope across the stage?
PERSON 1: Have you ever tried pushing a rope?


PERSON 1:  Walks across stage with the word “Out” on a piece of     paper 
taped to a coat hanger.


PERSON 2:  What are you doing?
PERSON 1:  Hanging out!
  [Saw these performed in a meeting, retelling from memory.]


Jokes
How do you spot a modern spider?    He doesn’t have a web, he has a 
website.


Why is it so hot in a stadium after the football game?    Because all the fans 
have left.


What is the capitol of Washington?  The “W”.


From http://www.grandparents.com/search/?search=jokes    


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.grandparents.com/search/?search=jokes





152 Pizzazz


Places to find jokes, riddles, run-ons and other Sparkle:


Boys Life.
Newspaper
Roundtable


Internet


http://www.grandparents.com/search/?search=jokes        http://www.
ducksters.com/jokesforkids/


   http://kids.nationalgeographic.com/kids/activities/justjoking/
   http://www.fun-with-words.com/palindromes.html
   http://www.highlightskids.com/
   http://scoutermom.com/tag/puzzles/
   http://boyscouttrail.com/content/activity/webelos_puzzles-534.asp
   https://people.creighton.edu/~bjs74318/bluejay/pack114/funpages/
   http://magic.about.com/od/beginningmagic/a/120706scouts.htm


Fabulous Fun With Puzzles
Vintage riddles and word jumbles in this “fabulous” collection
By Phoebe Assenza
I Scream, Ice Cream: A Book Of Wordles
by Amy Krouse Rosenthal


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.grandparents.com/search/?search=jokes

http://www.ducksters.com/jokesforkids/

http://www.ducksters.com/jokesforkids/

http://kids.nationalgeographic.com/kids/activities/justjoking/

http://www.fun-with-words.com/palindromes.html

http://www.highlightskids.com/

http://scoutermom.com/tag/puzzles/

http://boyscouttrail.com/content/activity/webelos_puzzles-534.asp

https://people.creighton.edu/~bjs74318/bluejay/pack114/funpages/

http://magic.about.com/od/beginningmagic/a/120706scouts.htm

http://www.grandparents.com/grandkids/toys-books-and-entertainment/fabulous-fun-with-puzzles

http://www.grandparents.com/grandkids/toys-books-and-entertainment/fabulous-fun-with-puzzles





153


Songs


Don’t be afraid to sing songs.  Songs add lots of Pizzazz and Sparkle.  You don’t have to 
be a music major or be a singer. You will need to be enthusiastic, sing loudly with huge hand 
motions your audience can see and follow.   Sing to have fun.  Here are a few tips to get 
you started.


•  Know the song you are going to teach.
   Choose familiar songs to start out.  


Teach one new song at a time.
Sing a line and have audience repeat.  (There are even songs that are 
repeat songs.)


   Compliment their effort.
•  Use songs that fit the theme.  Ie: Patriotic, Christmas, Spiritual, campfire, fun 


and silly.
•  Use actions and hand motions for songs.
•  For longer songs you might want words printed out.  Consider a Pack 


Songbook.
•  Use chimes, bells, homemade rhythm instruments.  There are many sights on 


the internet teaching you how to make instruments.


Following is a little ditty to be said before you teach a song.


This is a repeat after me song. (This is a repeat after me song) 
Sing what I sing, (Sing what I sing)
And do what I do.  (And do what I do.)


Echo Song– Bill Grogan’s Goat


Bill Grogan’s goat.  Group repeats
Was feeling fine.  Group repeats
Ate three red shirts.  Group repeats
Right off the line.  Group repeats
Bill took a stick.  Group repeats
Gave him a whack.  Group repeats
And tied him to.  Group repeats
The railroad track.  Group repeats
The goat thought awhile. Group repeats
And racked his brains. Group repeats
Coughed up the shirts, Group repeats
And flagged the train. Group repeats


No tune song - Boom-Chicka-Boom
(Slap legs then snap fingers to keep time; leader chants, then group repeats)


I said a boom-chicka-boom. (I said a boom-chicka-boom.)
I said a boom chicka-rocka. (I said a boom chicka-rocka.)
I said a boom-chicka-rocka-chicka-rocka-chicka-boom; (I said a boom-chicka-rocka-chicka-
rocka-chicka-boom,)
Uh huh,  (Uh huh,)
Oh yeah,  (Oh yeah,)
One more time.  (One more time. .)
This time _____. (This time _____)


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







154 Pizzazz


(Repeat above faster, slower, cowboy, sergeant. Make up any other variations.)


Some songs are easy because they repeat phrases – SMILE


It isn’t any trouble just to S-M-I-L-E 
It isn’t any trouble just to S-M-I-L-E 
It isn’t any trouble, it will vanish like a bubble 
If you’ll only take the trouble just to S-M-I-L-E
It isn’t any trouble just to L-A-U-G-H (or ha-ha-ha-ha laugh) 
It isn’t any trouble just to L-A-U-G-H 
It isn’t any trouble, it will vanish like a bubble 
If you’ll only take the trouble just to L-A-U-G-H 
It isn’t any trouble just to G-R-I-N, grin 
It isn’t any trouble just to G-R-I-N, grin 
It isn’t any trouble, it will vanish like a bubble 
If you’ll only take the trouble just to G-R-I-N, grin! 
 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! 
Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha! Ha!


Some can add actions. – My Bonnie


My Bonnie lies over the ocean,
My Bonnie lies over the sea,
My Bonnie lies over the ocean,
Oh, bring back my Bonnie to me.


Directions:
Begin sitting. Each time the word is sung that begins with the letter “b” change  position. 
Stand for the first “Bonnie”, sit for the second “Bonnie”, stand for the third “Bonnie”, sit for 
“bring”, stand for “back”, and sit for the last “Bonnie”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







155


Make any song silly.  The following song you sing after you ate as a group at a picnic, pack 
supper or Blue and Gold banquet.  You add the words that fit the menu you ate.  Tune is 
Alouetta -    All-U-etta


All-U-etta, tell me all-U-etta
All-U-etta, All-U-ett tonight.


Did you et some jello tonight? (name a food eaten)
Yes we et some jello tonight?
Jello tonight, 
Jello tonight.
Oh-oh-oh-oh


All-U-etta, tell me all-U-etta
All-U-etta, All-U-ett tonight.


Did you et spaghetti tonight? (name another food)
Yes we et  spaghetti tonight.
Spaghetti tonight, 
Spaghetti tonight, 
Jello tonight, 
Jello tonight.
Oh-oh-oh-oh


(Continue until all food you ate is included)


[Songs used as examples were taught to me by my Mother. I have known them all my life 
and listed them from memory.]


Places	to	find	songs:


www.orgsites.com/ga/pack568/CubScoutSongs.pdf
http://www.kididdles.com/ 
www.macscouter.com/Songs
www.boyscouttrail.com/songs.asp


Book:
Wee Sing, Sing-alongs Book  by Pamela Conn Beall and Susan Hagen Nipp; illustrated by 
Nancy Klein; Price/Stern/Sloan; Publishers, Inc., Los Angeles


Have fun, make Pizzazz meetings, and make ‘em Sparkle.


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz For Any Meeting


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.kididdles.com/





156 Pizzazz


Screaming Toes - Have everyone stand in a 
circle. Say “look down”, everyone should look 
down and pick someone’s shoes to stare at. 
Say “look up” and have them, with their eyes, 
follow the shoes they picked up to the person’s 
face. If two people are looking at each other 
(meaning they picked one another’s shoes while 
looking down) they SCREAM and are out. This 
cycle continues until one or two people are left.


Swords- Stick out your pointer finger
and find a partner. Interlock hands (make sure 


the rest of your fingers are behind the other 
person’s thumbs to avoid injury). The object 
of the game is to poke your partner with the 
pointer finger of your interlocked hand.


Super Heroes and Villains - A very simple 
game. Have everyone sit in a circle. 
Hand a few people sticks, stating that 


they are “Super Heroes” and hand a few others 
small rocks, saying they are “Super Villains.” 
They HAVE to keep passing toe Heroes and 
the Villains within the circle, but if someone 
is holding BOTH the Hero and the Villain, 
that Hero (stick) gets taken out of the game. 
Evry once in a while add more Heroes and/or 
Villains into the circle. Watch and enjoy as they 
get so excited and work together as a team over 
this simple game.


Hey Dude!- Have everyone circle up with 
a “Super” in the center. The circle claps their 
hands and sings “Mister Super
Hero walking down the street, he stopped in 


Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training 
Games


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







157


front of me and this is what he said” while this 
is being sung the Super run around the center 
of the circle and stop
when every the circle sings “said”. Once the 
super stops the circle sings “Hey dude do that 
thing, do that thing, now switch!” While this is 
being sung the Super can dance however they 
would like in front ofthe person they stop by. 
The Super and the person in the circle switch, 
and it is now their turn to be the Super, the 
cycle and song continues. 


Human Knot- Everyone circles up and sticks 
their right hand in the center and randomly 
takes ahold of another hand, repeat with the 
left hand. Once everyone’s hand is holding 
nother hand have them try to “untangle” them-


selves without letting go of any hands.


Pass the Rock- Have two groups
sit down on opposite sides of a
table facing each other, One
group has their hands under the
table as they pass a rock back
and forth to their teammates.
When someone says “stop!’,
have everyone put their hands
on the table in fists. The other
group gets three chances to
guess who has the rock hidden
in their fist. tf they guess right
they get a turn passing and
hiding the rock.


lightning- Have two groups line
up and hold hands; at the end


of the two lines have an item
that can easily be grabbed.


Everyone should have their eyes
closed except the two people at
the beginning of the lines. you
stand near the beginning, close
to the two with their eyes open,
flip a coin repetitively. Tails=
nothing, heads= the two with
their eyes open quickly squeeze
the hand they are holding. The
rest of the groups, with their
eyes remaining closed, pass the
squeeze down the line. When
the last person in the line feels
their hand being squeezed they
may open their eyes and grab
the item. What team grabs the
item first is the winner of that
round and they rotate their
place in line. The team that has
everyone rotate quicker, wins.


Mingle- Have everyone stand generally 
close together. An announcer calls out 
“MlNGLE!” Once “mingle” is called the rest 


Whant to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







158 Pizzazz


(the “Minglers”) run or walk around aimlessly 
singing “mingle, mingle, mingle!” At any time 
the announcer calls out a number, the Minglers 
have to hurry and get in a group of people that 
make up that number. Ex. lf the announcer 
calls out “three!” the Minglers have to get in 
groups of three people, if there are any groups 
of two or one, they are out and the game 
continues.


Angry Birds- Inspired by the popular video 
game Angry Birds. Simply, have a pig(s) 
(could be a toy or substituted to anything of 
your liking) on top of a can(s). Also have an 
Angry Bird(s) (again a toy, a ball or substitute). 
This could be used as a reward, every correct 
question or good behavior equals a chance to 
throw an Angry Bird at the pig.


Super Shark - Line kids up with their hands on 
the person’s shoulders in front of them. The 
Head (the person in front of the line) is trying 


to eat (grab the shoulder) of the tail (the person 
at the end of the line).


Electric Pulse - Have everyone stand in a circle 
with one person in the center. The middle 
person closes their eyes while the circle holds 
hands and decides who is going to start the 
“electric pulse”. (An electric pulse is when 
someone feels their hand being squeezed and 
passes the squeeze alson; the electric pulse 
can go in either direction). Once the starter 
has been chosen, the person in the center is 
allowed to open their eyes and try to guess 
who has the electric pulse at the moment. The 
object of the game is to see how long the circle 
can keep passing the electric pulse in secret. 
(Advance level: have multiple lectric pulses 
going at one time.)


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







159


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & 
Storytelling


The Rule of Three:


The key to skits is to establish the situation then get to the punch line quickly.  The way to do 


this is the rule of three.  That is to say introduce three people and then hit the punch line, or 


go through the process twice and on the third hit the punch line.  The rule is illustrated in the 


following skits.


Skits for Cubs to do


Cub Scout Uniform Inspection
DEN CHIEF: Cub Scouts, line up for uniform inspection
DENNER: Everyone is ready for the inspection
DEN CHIEF: (holds clip board) Shirts?
DENNER: Shirts fine!
DEN CHIEF: Scarves?
DENNER: Scarves fine!
DEN CHIEF: Pants?
DENNER: Pants fine
DEN CHIEF: Stockings? (Boys pull up pants and show their stockings, one boy has one red and 
one blue stocking)
DENNER: Stockings fi...... Looks at (Boy with mismatched socks)
DEN CHIEF: (BOY’S NAME)?
BOY:  Me?
DEN CHIEF: Yes, you. 
BOY:  What’s wrong with me?
DEN CHIEF: what’s wrong with (boy’s name)?
DENNER: Look at his socks.
BOY: what’s the matter with my socks? 
DENNER: you have one red and blue sock
BOY: That’s funny, I have another pair just like them 
at home!


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







160 Pizzazz


Did you sneeze?


This skit involves 5 Scouts


The scouts come out with one who is in charge, and declares they are going to go marching to 


build discipline.  They walk for a bit and the person in back sneezes.  The first scout turns around 


and asks, “did you sneeze?”  The scout replies no, and the first scout calls them a liar and tells him 


to go do a ridiculous task.  This happens again and again until he gets to the last scout.  When the 


last scout is asked if he sneezed, he replies yes.  The first scout replies, “Oh, bless you!”, and they 


march off.


Submarine


This skit involves 5 Scouts


The five scouts come out in a line and say they are going to go in a submarine.  The captain says 


“enemy spotted”.  The message is passed to the back.  The captain says load torpedo number one.  


The message is repeated to the last scout who tells the person in front of them “I don’t know how.” 


The message is passed to the front, at which point the captain explains how to load the torpedo, 


and the message is passed back.  The person in backs does it and then sends the message back up 


that he did it.  The Captain says “fire torpedo number one”.  The message is passed back and again 


the person in back says “I don’t know how.”  The message is passed to the front again, and the 


captain explains how to do it, and the explanation should involve pushing a button.  The message 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







161


is passed back, where the person in back sees lots of buttons, doesn’t know which one to push so 


pushes all the buttons.  The message gets back to the front that he pushed all the buttons, and the 


captain knows this will make the submarine self destruct.  So the captain says to get out of the 


submarine and runs off.  Each Scout follows suit until it gets to the last scout who says “I don’t 


know how.”  


Lamp post


This skit involves 5 Scouts


Scout one goes out, stands in place and declares, I am a lamp post


Scout two goes out and is looking for something.


Scout three comes out and asks what scout two is doing.  Scout two replies that he lost ten dollars 


and he is looking for it.  Scout three helps him look for it.  The same thing happens with Scout 


four.  


Scout Five comes out and asks what they are doing.  Looking for the money is the reply, then he 


asks where did he lose it.  Scout two says “oh about four blocks over there” then the other scouts 


asks why they are looking over here, and Scout two points to the lamp post and says “the light is 


better.” 


Royal Fruit


This skit involves 5 Scouts


Two Scouts come out, one royal and one guard.  


Royal Scout declares “bring me my royal fruit”


a third scout comes out and presents some exotic fruit.  The royal eats the fruit and spits it out and 


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







162 Pizzazz


sends the fruit merchant away.


Same thing happens with a fourth scout.


Royal Scout declares “bring me my royal fruit” and a fifth scout brings out “raisins from my own 


back yard” The Royal Scout eats it and likes it.  Then says to bring more in two weeks.


A random numbered scout declares “two weeks later”


The royal declares “bring me my royal fruit” and again scout 5 presents raisins from my own 


backyard.  The royal devours the raisins and says to bring more in a week.


The next week the royal declares “bring me my royal fruit” but scout 5 doesn’t show up.  So the 


royal commands the guard to go and get scout 5 who is distraught.  Scout 5 says he doesn’t have 


any more raisins, and the royal asked why not, so scout 5 says “my rabbit died.”


Soap and Water


This skit involves four Scouts


Scout 1 comes out and sits down


Scout 2 comes out pretending to hold something, and asks Scout 1 if he is the dishwasher.  Scout 


1 replies yes.  Scout 2 asks why his dish is still dirty.  Scout 1 replies they washed it.  Scout 2 asks 


what the dish was washed with and Scout 1 replies “Soap and Water.”  Scout 2 says to wash it again 


and leaves.  Scout 3 comes on and repeats the process.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







163


Mosquito or Big Scout Little Scout 


This skit involves as many Scouts as you would like


The Big Scout and little scout come onto the stage and the Big Scout is a jerk and uses little scout 


as a pack mule.  When Little Scout complains Big scout replies with how he is the big scout and 


the other one is the little scout so it is his job to carry stuff etc.  They lie down to sleep, Big scout 


in a tent and Little Scout is sent outside the tent to sleep in the dirt.  Then the mosquitoes attack 


played by the rest of the scouts.  They leave again, and the little scout screams wakes up big scout, 


explains mosquito’s are attacking, and Big Scout says he is imagining things and to go back to 


sleep.  The mosquitoes attack again, then leave.  Again the little scout wakes up the big scout and 


convinces the big scout to let the little scout sleep in the tent.  The big scout relents and sleeps 


outside.  Once again the mosquitoes attack but just as they are about to get to the big scout, one of 


the mosquitoes says, this guys had enough, lets get the one in the tent.


The Ugliest Man in the World


This skit involves s 5 scouts


Once scout comes out with a scout that has his face covered.  The first scout declares that he is 


accompanied by the ugliest man in the world.  The third scout comes in and wants to see the 


ugliest man in the world.  He does and he faints.  Same thing happens with the fourth scout.  A 


fifth scout comes out, and when he looks at the ugliest man’s face the ugly man faints.


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







164 Pizzazz


Mirror of Truth


This skit involves 4 Scouts


Scout 1 comes out and says he has a mirror where if you tell the truth to it you win a million 


dollars but if you fail you faint.  


Scout 2 comes and tries it, he says, I think I am the handsomest person in here, and he falls over


Scout 3 comes and says I think I am the strongest man here and he falls over


Scout 4 comes out says I think, and falls over


Fortune Teller


This skit involves four scouts


Scout 1 comes out, sits on the ground and declares they are a fortune teller.


Scout 2 comes out and asks for his fortune to be told.  Scout 1 asks for his shoe and then gives 


a meaningless or funny fortune. Then the fortune teller gives Scout 2 back his shoe and Scout 2 


leaves.


Scout 3 comes out and does the same thing.


Scout 4 comes out and asks for his fortune.  Again the shoe is needed.  


Scout 1 takes the shoe, stands up and says “you will be taking a long journey... without your shoe” 


and throws the shoe off stage.


The Fly


This skit involves five scouts


Scout 1 comes out kills a fly and walks off stage


Scout 2 comes out finds the fly and narrates as he takes off the wings, then walks off stage.


Scout 3 comes out finds the fly and narrates as he takes off the legs, then walks off stage.


Scout 4 comes out finds the fly and narrates as he takes off the head, then walks off stage.


Scout 5 comes out, sees the fly says “sweet a raisin and eats it.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







165


Snowball Fight


This skit involves at least four scouts


The scouts come out on stage and form two sides having a snowball fight.  


Scout 1 and Scout 2 talk about how they aren’t getting anybody, Scout 1 gets an idea and says 


“isn’t that [scout 3] over there”.


Scout 2: replies yes then 


Scout 1: yells out “Hey [scout 3]” Scout 3 stands up, and they pelt him with snow balls


This happens again, then


Scout 3 says to Scout 4 “lets give them a taste of their own medicine” so they call out “[scout 1]” 


to which Scout 1 says “is that you [Scout 3]” who stands up and gets pelted with snowballs again.


Bubble Gum


This skit involves four scouts


Scout 1 comes out says “this bubblegum lost its flavor” and throws it (the imaginary gum) on the 


ground, then walks off stage


Scout 2 comes out steps on the  gum, says “ew gum”, wipes it off, then walks off stage


Scout 3 comes out and sneezes on the gum, then walks off stage


Scout 4 comes out, picks up the gum and says “ooh gum,” puts it in his mouth and walks off stage


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







166 Pizzazz


Follow the Tracks


This skit involves three scouts


Scouts 1, 2, and 3 come out to go hunting.  Scout 1 goes offstage to hunt and yells bang.  Then he 


comes back with something.  For ease of writing lets use a mosquito.  The other scouts ask him 


how he got the mosquito.


Scout 1: replies “I followed the tracks, and I followed the Tracks, then BANG I got it”


Scout 2 goes hunting and comes back with let’s say a deer.  The other scouts ask how he got it.


Scout 2: “Well I Followed the tracks, and I followed the tracks, and then BANG I got it.”


Scout 3 goes off hunting, and a large bang is heard.  Scout 3 staggers back on stage, acting like he 


is injured.  The other scouts ask him what happened, 


Scout 3: replies “I did just what you said, I followed the tracks, and I followed the tracks, and then 


bam, I got hit by a train.”


No Fish


This skit involves three scouts.


Two Scouts come out and start ice fishing.  


Scout 3: remains unseen offstage and announces: “There are no fish under the ice.”


Scouts 1 and 2 look around not knowing where the voice comes from, then pick another spot to 


ice fish.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







167


Scout 3: announces again “there are no fish under the ice.”


Scouts 1 and 2: again look around not knowing where the voice comes from, then move to 


another spot and start to ice fish again.


Scout 3: announces “This is the manager of the ice skating rink, there are no fish under the ice.” 


Scouts 1 and 2 run off.


Worms Warm


This skit involves three scouts.


Scout 1 comes out and acts like he is fishing and catching lots of fish.  Scouts 2 and 3 come out to 


go fishing as well.  But they can’t catch anything.  They see that Scout 1 is catching fish and decide 


to switch him holes.  They switch holes.  Scout 1 keeps catching lots of fish, while Scouts 2 and 3 


still can’t catch anything.  They decide to ask Scout 1 his secret of catching fish.  Scout 1 Mumbles 


the answer without opening his mouth.  Scouts 2 and 3 ask “What?”


Scout 1: acts like he is spitting something out of his mouth into one of the Scout’s hands and says: 


“ You got to keep the worms warm.”


Moving


this skit involves one scout


scout comes and asks the audience to stand up, take a step to the left, then a step to the right.  


Then asks the audience to sit down.  Afterwards the scout says: “Thanks, I always wanted to move 


an audience.”


Emergency Broadcast System


This skit involves as many scouts as you would like


Scouts come out and line up, one says “We will be conducting a test of the emergency. Remember 


this is just a test.”  All the scouts say beep for a while.  


Scout one: says “ thank you, this has been a test of the emergency broadcast system, if this had 


been an actual emergency you would have seen this:” Scout turns around to look at the other 


scouts and starts screaming in panic.  The rest of the scouts start to panic, and they all run off 


stage.


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







168 Pizzazz


Squirrels


this skit involves two scouts


Scout 1: runs out on stage, yelling “they’re after me, they’re after me”


Scout 2: comes on stage, and calms scout 1, and asks “Who is after you”


Scout 1: “ the squirrels”


Scout 2: “Why are the squirrels after you”


Scout 1: “They think i’m nuts”


Monkeys


this skit involves two scouts.  


Scout 1: runs out on stage, yelling “they’re after me, they’re after me”


Scout 2: comes on stage, and calms scout 1, and asks “Who is after you”


Scout 1: “ The Monkeys:


Scout 2: “Why are the monkeys after you?”


Scout 1: “They think I’m Bananas”


Skits Including Leaders


Tree Climber


LEADER: Introducing, Mr. Super Tree Climber(shows scout)! He is the best tree climber in the 
West! Go ahead and find a tree to climb and demonstrate your skills! (Scout runs off stage where 
he can’t be seen)


LEADER: Hey, how high are you up there?


SCOUT: I think I’m about 25 feet high!


LEADER: Wow! How high are you now?


SCOUT: I think I’m about 50 feet now!


LEADER: Wow, that’s amazing! How high are you now?


SCOUT: I’m almost 100 feet high!


LEADER: But (Scout’s name), the tallest trees out there are only 70 feet tall!


SCOUT: Ahhhhhhhhhh!!! (loud noise)


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







169


The Rattlesnake


What you need: 2 Scouts and 1 leader


2 SCOUTS ARE LYING ON THE GROUND STARING AT THE CLOUDS


Scout 1: Hey, that one looks like a whale! 


Scout 2: Look, that one looks like a dinosaur!


Scout 1: Woah, that’s so cool! 


Scout 2: AHHHHHH!!!! (Starts rolling around on the ground) OW! I just got bit by a 
rattlesnake!!! 


Scout 2: What should I do?


Scout 1: Go get a doctor!!!


(Scout 1 runs to a leader) Doctor, doctor! My friend got bit by a rattlesnake, what do I do?


LEADER: You need to suck out all the venom!


Scout 1 (running back to Scout 2): Where did you get bit??


Scout 2: Right here! (Pointing to his rump)


Scout 1: Uhhh... sorry, the doctor says you’re gonna die.


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







170 Pizzazz


Cub Scouts Approved Jokes


Q:“Why do seagulls fly over the sea?”
A:“Because if they flew over the bay, they would be bagels!”


Q: “What two words have the most letters in them?”
A:“Post Office”
Q: What is a superhero’s favorite part of the joke?  
A: The “punch” line!  
 
Q: Where’s Spiderman’s home page?  
A: On the world wide web.  
 
Q: What’s the difference between Batman and a robber?  
A: Batman can go into a store without robin!!  
 
Q: What’s the difference between Green Lantern and a unicorn?  
A: Nothing,they’re both fictional characters  
 
Q: What is Doc Ock’s favorite month?  
A: Ock-tober.  
 
Q: What is Spider-Man’s favorite month?  
A: Web-ruary. 
Q: What is a superhero’s favorite drink?  
A: Fruit punch!  
 
Q: How many caped crusaders does it take to change a light-bulb?  
A: None. They like the dark.  
 
Q: What position did Bruce Wayne play on his little-league team?  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







171


A: He was the bat-boy.  
 
Q: How does Batman’s mother call him to dinner?  
A: (tune of 1960’s theme) Dinner Dinner Dinner Dinner Batman!!!  
 
Q: Why did Bruce’s date go badly?  
A: Because he has BAT breath!  
 
Q: What does Batgirl wear to bed?  
A: Her Dark Knight gown!  
 
Q: What did Superman say when he married two Women on the same day? 
A: “That’s mighty bigamy!”  
 
Q: What did Lex Luthor say when he did the same thing, then killed the women?  
A: “That’s awful bigamy!”  
 
Q: What do you get if you cross the man of steel with a hot vegetable broth?  
A: Souperman!  
 
Q. “What did Doc Ock drive to the bank?”  
A. “An armoured car!”  
 
Q: How did Dr. Otto Octavius present his new project?  
A: Energetically!  
 
Q: Who is Superman’s greatest sidekick 
A: Duperman! 
 
Q: Where is Spiderman’s homepage 
A: The World Wide Web


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







172 Pizzazz


Run On’s:
My Belt


SCOUT 1: runs onto the stage, yelling, “It’s all around me” over and over.
SCOUT 2: runs on stage and asks, “What’s all around you?”
SCOUT 1: matter of factly: my belt.


The Infantry


Scouts come out yelling the infantry is coming then run off stage.  One Scout comes on stage 


holding a leaf or branch and says “ the infant tree is here.”


Scout comes out with a stick and says “Freeze, this is a stick up”


Scouts run out yelling “ahh its a hold up.” they run off stage.  Then one scout carries another scout 


onto the stage and they say its a hold up.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







173


Incredible Costumes and Props
on Any Budget


(And Auxiliary Costume)


These are simple costumes.  Using only simple: patterns, fabric and 
sewing technics.  
There are many ways to deal with the seam. Some of the ways:


1 Sew the cut edge to the inside.


2 Use a no-sew tape or stop fray to protect from unraveling 


3 Ties


4 Bottoms


Auxiliary Costume
Can be long or short with long selves or short selves


Can be worn alone or under the main costume.


Measure person from the shoulder down to where the costume 
should stop. 


Example: for a shirt measure from shoulder to below waist or for a 
longer custom measure to the floor etc.


See pattern


Suggested Material for Costumes


Felt


Fleece


Shinny inexpensive Fabric 


Suggested decorating materials


Fabric paint


Felt


Duct tape


Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







174 Pizzazz


P
ol


ic
em


an


 F
ir


em
an


Su
pe


rm
an


Sp
id


er
m


an


G
re


en
 L


an
te


rn


B
A


TM
A


N


CAPES AND OTHER ACCESSORIES


CAPE MASK 


MASK RING 


CUFFS 


GLOVES AND 
CUFFS BELT 


MASK 


AX HEADBAND AND 
CUFF 


BELT 


HEADBAND & CUFFS 


CAPE 


BELT 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







175Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







176 Pizzazz


Super Fun Science Guy


Sedimentary Stacker


Bear Elective 15 (Water and Soil Conservation)
a. Describe different layers of soil.
b. Soil experiment.


A Sedimentary Stacker helps demonstrate how sediment forms into layers when allowed to settle 
in water.  It is easy to make with common materials:


1) Plastic Clear Bottle – a cheap water bottle will do
2) Gravel
3) Sand
4) Chalk Dust
5) Water
6) Funnel (something to put the materials into the bottle)


Place equal amounts of the gravel, sand, and chalk (about 4-7 tbsp) into the bottle and shake it up.  
(Use more amounts for larger bottles.)
Then let it settle for a while.
Do you notice any layering?
If so, how are the layers made up?


Ingredients


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







177


Tools


Shaken Settled


Super Fun Science Guy


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







178 Pizzazz


   Bernoulli’s Principle


Pressure of a moving gas decreases as its speed increases
Bernoulli’s principal is part of the reason that Airplanes fly.  As air moves over the top of an 


airplane wing it moves faster than over the bottom of the wing.  This creates lift. 


There are four forces that affect flight:


Drag:  The resistance that air creates on a moving object.


Lift: The force that pushes an object up.


Thrust:  The power that pushes an object forward, usually an engine.


Gravity:  The force pulling an object back to earth.


The Forces Dance
Do the forces dance by saying the force and doing the action.  Make it really silly by having the 


boys stand in line and do it as a line dance.


To Start:  Move your arms and hands straight out from your chest


Drag:  Pull your arms back in quickly to your chest, closing your hands into fists. 


Thrust:  Push arms away from chest quickly.


Lift:  Lift straight arms up.


Gravity:  Move straight arms downward


Repeat the actions as many times as you want


Experiments with Bernoulli’s Principle
1. Make paper airplanes and test different designs.


2. Use a blow-dryer to float a ping pong ball in the air.


3. Use a wind bag to demonstrate Bernoulli’s principle.  See: http://www.


stevespanglerscience.com/windbag-one-breath-bernoulli-bag.html


4. Use a blow dryer to unravel a roll of toilet paper place on a stick (i.e. broom handle).


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.stevespanglerscience.com/windbag-one-breath-bernoulli-bag.html

http://www.stevespanglerscience.com/windbag-one-breath-bernoulli-bag.html





179




















































 

 






Ironman’s Technology-Building and 
Binding


Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







180 Pizzazz

























    



  












      
      



























TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







181


Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots,
Intermediate and Advanced Knot 


Tying
IT’S KNOT HARD


( TO TEACH KNOTS )
BY RICHARD WINTER


9	Have the availability of two different colored strings or rope when teaching for 
convenience�


9	Begin in a side by side stance for ease; do not try to teach face to face�
9	Whenever possible use a color reference, nature reference, or a catchy phrase for 


instruction� 
9	Be aware of the scout’s dominant side� You may need to learn these knots the way they 


would tie them�
9	Cubs need supervision when doing knots�  There is possibility of danger�
9	Know how to tie the knots well, before you try to teach�


Knots by Example
Use Color


SQUARE KNOT-  When tying this knot you will have two different colors of strings / rope, 
orange and white� Holding one color of string in each hand orange in the left and white 
in the right, then instruct by using the phrase; orange over white, orange over white, then 
pull it tight.


Use a Story
BOWLINE- This knot is tied with just one color of rope� You begin by making a loop 
(hole) with the tag line with the short end (rabbit) on top of the loop, bring around below 
the hole and come up through the hole and around the supply line (tree) then back into 
the hole and pull the knot tight by holding the rabbit and pulling on the tree away from 
you�


Use a phrase
BOWLINE AROUND YOU- Wrap the rope around your waist, holding the short end of 
the rope in your dominant hand, and the long (or supply) in the other�  Take the short end 
“over” the top and around the supply bring the short end back through the loop on your 
waist “under” then back up  (towards your chin), “around” your supply line and pull it 
“through” the loop made around your wrist�  Then, holding the short end secure, pull the 
supply line away from your body, causing the knot to tighten�   Hence the phrase; “Over, 
Under, Around and Through.”            


Videos of Magic Knot Tricks  http://www�activitytv�com/828-magic-knots
           http://www�activitytv�com/471-knot-impossible
Boy’s Life Magazine Video  http://boyslife�org/video-audio/644/learn-to-tie-knots/ 


Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots, Intermediate and Advanced Knot Tying


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.activitytv.com/828-magic-knots

http://www.activitytv.com/471-knot-impossible

http://boyslife.org/video-audio/644/learn-to-tie-knots/





182 Pizzazz


(You can choose which knot you need shown, change the speed, and read written 
descriptions of how each knot is used�  Very Cool!)


Pow Wow 2001 National Capital Area Council Pgs., Knots by 
Christopher Conrad


http://www�cubpack2�org/forms/leaders/TeachingandHavingFunwithKnots�pdf
Look for Knots in Crafts:
•	 Overhand knots used to make the fringe on a fleece scarf or a fleece blanket 
•	 Overhand or Square Knots can connect the front & back flannel covers for a pillow


http://familyfun.go.com/crafts/no-sew-fleece-pillow-669763/
•	 Holiday Cracker Craft http://familyfun�go�com/crafts/holiday-crackers-661384/
•	 Yarn Pop Pom Balls, and then they can be used in toss games
•	 Mobiles
•	 Leather Crafts
•	 Things that Hang
BSA Scout Shop Knot Helps:
Knot Tying Kit  ($6�99), Knots and How to Tie Them ($1�49), 
Forty Knots Bandana ($7�49), Quick Reference Cards ($9�99)


 


Practice Knots While Completing Cub Requirements
A=Achievement, E= Elective


WOLF BEAR
A 6b Start a Collection (Knot Board)
E 7b Make Puddle Jumpers
E 7c Make Foot Racers
E 8d Make a Windlass
E 9b-c Make a Gift
E 10b Make American Indian Instrument
E 10c Make American Indian Clothing
E 10d Make an American Indian item
E 17a Overhand Knot & Square Knot
E 17b Tie Shoes with Square Bow Knot
E 17c Wrap & Tie a Package
E 17d Tie a Stack of Newspapers
E 17e Tie 2 Cords with Overhand Knot
E 17f Tie a Necktie
E 17g Wrap ends of Rope with Tape
E 19b Rig Pole, Attach bobber/sinker, 
          Fish


A 15b Play 2 Games with Den
A 22a Whip Ends of Rope
A 22b Square Knot, Bowline, Sheet bend,  
       Two Half Hitches, Slip Knots, Tell Uses
A 22c Keep Rope From Tangling
A 22d Coil Rope, Hit 2ft� Marker 20ft� Away
A 22e Rope Trick
A 22f Make a Rope
E 8a Homemade musical Instrument
E9a Art Project (mobile)
E13d Three Rope Tricks
E18a Build Outdoor Gym
E18b Three Outdoor toss Games
E22b Mount/Display Collection 
         (Knot Board)
E24b Make/Play 2 American Indian Games


TIGER WEBELOS
E 18  Sew a button
E 5    Family Mobile
E 19  Magic Fun


(A� of Light part of #2)   Tie Square Knot
Artist 8  Make a Mobile
Aquanaut 5  Throw Rescues
Craftsman 2   (possible in completing Crafts)
Engineer 8    Block & Tackle
Outdoorsman 8    Whip & Fuse Rope Ends
Outdoorsman 11  Two Half Hitches & Taut-line Hitch to   
           set up Tent/Dining Fly, Show Square Knot & Tell its Use
Readyman 5 Cravat Bandages (Square Knots) Stop Severe  
           Bleeding
Scientist 10 Make Crystals
Showman 3 Make Marionettes


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://familyfun.go.com/crafts/holiday-crackers-661384/





183


Knots Notes


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







184 Pizzazz


NOTES!NOTES!







185


NOTES!NOTES!







186 Program Activities


Beyond the Badge �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  187


Citizenship & Service Activities  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  195


Fun For the “Super Cub Family”  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  199


Super Fun With Derbies   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  202


Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  206


It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star Gazing!  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  212


Cub Scouts Go Geocaching �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  216


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







187


Beyond the Badge


Heroes come in many forms. We often think of our service men as the real heroes that serve with their lives for 
our country, but there are many others that serve in many different forms that are heroes in their own right. From 
Policeman to firemen who put their lives on the line to teachers and adults that help our children and young adults 
grow into productive citizens. You, our scouting leaders are the heroes that give countless hours to instill the 
values and character that help our boys become men. You are the heroes that scouting celebrates. This section will 
hopefully give you all the tools to be the best scouting hero that you can be. 


Every great Hero has a great side kick or supporting cast. Try to recruit another co-den leader or assistant den leader 
that will support your program. This along with supporting parents that can help with activities, teaching sessions, 
and belt loop activities will help your program go a lot smoother. 


A well-run organization is like a team of Superheroes; together they can conquer anything.  Just like a Superhero 
needs to train and rely on their sidekicks, if you take the time to do this you will have an unstoppable Pack.  The 
key to this is a good committee, planning, and organization, these essential items are the “muscle” that keeps things 
running strong.


Make sure that you give your Cub Scout Pack regular “training.”  Just like a team of Superheroes, you need to focus 
and rely on each other at key times.  
	Have a well-functioning Pack Committee and use them to plan the year out in an annual planning 


meeting.  Invite your Scout Parents to this meeting so they have a say in the direction the Pack is 
taking for the year.  They will be willing to help if they have a say in what is happening.


	 Follow up this yearly “maintenance” with regular checkups by doing quick follow up meetings 
every other month with your committee.  These meetings are for your committee to put finishing 
touches on upcoming events, make assignments and talk through any concerns as they arise.


	 Communication is part of this key maintenance.  Your Cub Scout parents need to be kept in the 
loop of upcoming events and any changes that may come up with plans.  Send out a copy of the 
yearly Pack calendar, do a monthly newsletter highlighting Pack news, activities, outings, etc.  
Send emails with last minute changes, homework assignments, or important upcoming events 
and last minute instructions.


o Make sure that you give your Cub Scout Pack regular “training.”  Just like a team of Su-
perheroes, you need to focus and rely on each other at key times.  


	 In each and every group you will have a diverse pool of hobbies, careers, backgrounds, and inter-
ests that you can draw from.  If you use the parents in your group to teach a quick lesson, lead a 
project, or help out on an outing you will keep Scouting fresh and interesting and most of all, you 
are spreading the work load.


	 It is essential that you have a properly staffed Committee to run your Pack, and Parents are your 
best resource.  Most parents are happy to help if they understand just what is involved in each 
job as well as how much of a time commitment they will need.  Break each Committee Position 
down and find out if you have a Parent available to help with the job, some examples are listed 
below: Historian:  A parent that loves to take pictures or scrapbook.


Secretary: Someone that is great at communicating or taking notes.
Pack Trainer: Someone that loves to teach or is great with people.
Pack Committee Chair: Someone that is organized & works well as a support to others.


                                                                                    


Beyond the Badge


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







188 Program Activities


Tiger Scout Beads    


First Year Cub Scouters just like hero want-a-bees love recognition. The tiger program starts that out 
with the Tiger Scout beads. As a Tiger scout finishes each part of the five achievements, he earns a bead. Orange


Bead-Den activities, White Bead-Family Activities, and a Black Bead-
Go See Its. 


           


Wolf and Bear Beads
 
The Progress Toward Ranks Totem & Beads provide recognition during the path to 
earn the Wolf and Bear rank badges. As a Wolf or Bear, when he completes his first three 
achievements, his den leader presents the Progress Toward Ranks totem to him. It’s a diamond 
with a thong attached and a bead slipped on the thong. It is worn on the button of the right 
shirt pocket as a temporary badge. For every three achievements completed by the scout as a 
Wolf, he will receive a gold bead. For every 3 achievements earned as a Bear, he will receive 
a red bead.These beads should be presented at den or pack meetings. After he gets his fourth 
bead, he has completed the requirements for his rank badge (either Wolf or Bear) which will 
be awarded at a pack meeting. Cub Scouts may continue to wear this emblem after ranks are 
earned until they become Webelos Scouts. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







189


Belt Loops
**All super heroes have to work on their skills to be all the hero they can be. Belt loops are a way to learn 
    those skills needed to be ready for anything. Three belt loop requirements are completed in a 
    Academic subject or sport. Academic belt loops are gold, and Sports belt loops are
    silver, except for the Archery and BB-Gun Shooting belt loops, which are brass
    colored. Cub Scouts wear each belt loop on their Cub Scout belt. At least every month if not every 
    Den meeting needs to have something geared towards completing requirements towards 
    a belt loop requirement. 


Sports Activities Belt Loops


Academics Belt Loops


 **Pins are awarded to scouts that continue participating in an academics or sports area  
    and meet the specific requirements for each pin. Pins typically require completion of
    the corresponding belt loop requirements plus 5 or 6 more challenging requirements.


**The Academic and Sports letter can be used to display pins on a sweater, jacket, or a patch vest.  
     Academic and Sports pins are not attached to the uniform.


 


Archery
BB Gun
Badmiton
Baseball
Basketball
Bicycling
Bowling
Fishing
Flag Foot Ball
Physical Fitness


Golf
Gymastics
Hiking
Hockey
Horseback Riding
Ice Skating
Kickball
Marbles
Roller Skating
Skateboarding


Snow Ski & Board 
Sports
Soccer
Softball
Swimming
Table Tennis
Ultimate
Volleyball


Art
Astronomy
Chess
Citizenship
Collecting
Communication
Computers
Disabilities Awareness
Family Travel


Geography
Geology
Good Manners
Heritages
Language & Culture
Map & compass
Mathematics
Music
Nutrition


Pet Care
Photography
Reading & Writing
Science
Video Games
Weather
Wildlife Conservation


Beyond the Badge


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







190 Program Activities


After a cub earns his Wolf and Bear rank he can start earning Arrow Points in the elective section 
of each book Gold Arrow Point: For the first 10 elective completed. He may only earn one 


Gold Arrow point. Silver Arrow Point: For each consecutive 10 electives he may earn another 
Silver Arrow point. He can earn as many Silver Arrow Points as electives that he completes.


ACTIVITY PATCHES, TRAIL PATCHES & RANK


ADVANCEMENT
 
Activity Patches and Trail Patches are a fun way for Cub scouters to have fun while they are ad-
vancing in their ranks. Each location can be a go-see-it or a separate activity on a Saturday morn-
ing. A lot of these patches will also help earn belt loops and pin requirements.


ABILITY AWARENESS PATCH
Tiger Cub electives 10, 12
Wolf achievement 12d 
Wolf elective lc 
Webelos Athlete 2 
Webelos Communicator 4, 9 


AMERICA MY HOME PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 1g 
Tiger Cub elective 11 
Wolf achievements 7c, 10c 
Wolf electives l2a, 11b 
Bear achievements 3b, 3e, 6a, 10a, 12b 
Bear elective 9a 
Webelos Artist 3 
Webelos Citizen 10 


BENSON GRISTMILL PATCH 
Tiger Cub achievement 19 
Wolf achievement 10c 
Bear achievements 10a, 3d 


CONSERVATION GOOD TURN PATCH 
Tiger Cub electives 33, 34, 47 
Wolf achievements 7b, 7c 
Wolf elective 15b 
Bear achievements 5a, 5c 
Bear electives 6c, 15c 
Webelos Forester 6 


CUB ZOO TRAIL PATCH 
Tiger Cub electives 31, 42 
Wolf elective 13d 
Bear achievement 5d 
Webelos Naturalist


DEMONSTRATION GARDEN & WATER 


FAMILY CAMPING PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 5f 
Tiger Cub electives 22, 23 
Wolf achievements 8e, 10c 
Wolf electives 18a, 23a 
Bear achievements 9c, 9g, l2a, l2b, 12c, 12e 
Bear elective la 
Webelos Artist 3 
Webelos Traveler 4, 7 
Webelos Outdoorsman 2, 3 


FORT DOUGLAS PATRIOTIC WALK PATCH
Tiger Cub - achievement 1 g 
Wolf - achievement 10c 
Bear - achievements 10a, 7e 
Webelos - Naturalist 3 


GREAT SALT LAKE COUNCIL LEAVE 
NOTRACE PATCH
HISTORICAL & PIONEER WALK PATCH
Tiger Cub - achievement 1g 
Wolf - achievement 10c 
Bear - elective l2c 
Webelos - Citizen 2 


HOMETOWN DISCOVERY PATCH
Tiger Cub - achievement 1 g 
Wolf - achievements 4a, 7b, 7c, 7d 
Wolf - electives 6a, 22d 
Bear - achievements 3c, 3d, 6a, 6b, 6c, 7d, 7e, 7f, 8a, 8e,
12d 
Webelos - Communicator 6 
Webelos - Readyman 3


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







191


CONSERVATION PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 5f 
Tiger Cub elective 34 
Wolf achievement 7a Wolf - elective 15e 
Bear achievement 6d 
Bear electives 14a, 14b 
Webelos Citizen 7 
Webelos  Family Member 3, 7 
Webelos Forester 2-5, 10 
Webelos Handyman 13 
Webelos Naturalist 10, 11 


DONOR AWARENESS PATCH 
Tiger Cub achievement 19 
Wolf electives 6a, 12f 
Bear elective 9b 
Webelos Artist 3 


INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITY PATCH
Tiger Cub elective 1 
Wolf achievement 8e 
Wolf electives 22a, 22b 
Bear achievements 9b, 9c 
Webelos Communicator 10 
Webelos Traveler 4 
KENNECOTT BINGHAM CANYON MINE
TOUR PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 19 
Wolf achievements 6b, 10c 
Bear achievement 10a 
Webelos Geologist 1,4 
MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY WALK
PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 19 
Wolf achievement 10c 
Bear achievements 10a, 7e 
Webelos Naturalist 3 


SAY YES TO READING PATCH
Tiger Cub elective 14 
Wolf achievements 7e, 10d 
Wolf electives 6, 12f, 22c 
Bear achievement 18b 
Webelos Communicator 8, 11


THIS IS THE PLACE HERITAGE PARK PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 1g
Wolf achievement 10c
Wolf electives 10a 
Bear achievements 3b, 10a 
Bear Elective 16b  


I DISCOVERED BOYS’ LIFE 
PATCH
Tiger Cub - elective 14 
Wolf - achievements 2, 5, 6, 10d 
Wolf - electives 1, 6a, 6b, 20 
Bear. achievements 11, 23a, 23b, 23d
Bear electives 5, 12, 15, 19, 20, 22, 24 
Webelos Citizen 
Webelos Readyman 
Webelos Communicator 6,8 
Webelos Family Member 6, 7 
Webelos Scientist 
Webelos Sportsman 
Webelos Fitness 
Webelos Aquanaut 
Webelos Athlete 
Webelos Naturalist 1, 2 
Webelos Craftsman 
Webelos Geologist 
Webelos Handyman 


U OF U PHYSICS DEPARTMENT
OBSERVATORY TOUR PATCH
Wolf achievement 10c 
Bear achievement 10a 
Bear electives 1a, 1f 
Astronomy academics pin 3 


UTAH FIRE MUSEUM PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 1g 
Wolf  achievement 10c 
Bear achievement 10a 


UTAH STATE FAIRPARK PATCH 
Tiger Cub elective 31 
Bear achievements 10a, 12e 
Bear elective 16b 
Webelos Naturalist 10 
Webelos Traveler 4 


WHEELER HISTORICAL FARM WALK PATCH
Tiger Cub achievement 2g 
Wolf achievement 10c 
Wolf elective 8a 
Bear achievements 3c, 3d, 10a 
Webelos Naturalist 8 
Tiger Cub achievement 1g 
Wolf achievement 10c 
Wolf elective 10a 
Bear achievements 3b, 10a 
Bear elective 16b 


Beyond the Badge


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







192 Program Activities


Important Things to remember:
A boy or leader can earn these patches as a family activity, den activity, or as a unit activity. As you can see from the 
above, these patches can pass off many of the electives in the cub scout books, and should be signed off accordingly. 
Some of these locations may have opportunities for service projects that are an important part of Cub Scouting.
Most patches are available for purchase at all of the Council stores and some may be purchased at the tour site.
Please remember that while on any field trips with your den or pack, both boys and leaders, are encouraged to wear 
uniforms. Boys should be reminded that they are representing the Boy Scouts of America. Please call and verify all 
times, costs and other information with the host organization prior to going. If you are going out of your area, please 
get a tour permit.


National Awards


•	 National Summertime Pack Award


o This award provides an opportunity for a year-round program by encouraging Packs to 
continue to meet during the summer.  Cub Scouts earn this pin by participating in three 
summertime pack events (one each in June, July, and August).


o http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/33748.pdf


•	 Journey to Excellence Award (formerly the Quality Unit Award)


o This is a council recognition program designed to encourage and reward success and 
measure the performance of our units.  It replaces the Centennial Quality Awards Pro-
gram as a means of encouraging excellence in providing a quality program at all levels of 
the BSA.


o http://www.scouting.org/filestore/mission/pdf/2013_JTE_Pac.pdf


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/filestore/pdf/33748.pdf

http://www.scouting.org/filestore/mission/pdf/2013_JTE_Pac.pdf





193


•	 Emergency Preparedness Award


o This award encourages Scouts of all ages to be prepared for emergency situations, this 
can be earned by Tigers through Webelos.


o http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/Media/Publications/EmergencyPreparedness.
aspx


•	 Leave No Trace Award


o Leave No Trace is a plan that helps Cubs to be more concerned about their environment 
and to help them protect it for future generations.  


o http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/resources/LeavenoTrace.aspx


         


•	 World Conservation Award


o This award involves the Cub participating in a conservation project.  A Cub 
Scout can only earn this award one time as a Cub.  The can earn it from 
Wolf to Webelos.


o http://meritbadge.org/wiki/index.php/World_Conservation_Award_(Cub_
Scouting)


•	 SCOUTStrong PALA (Presidential Active Lifestyle Award) Challenge


o Scouts (age 6 to adult) make a goal to be active at least five days a week for six out of 
eight weeks.


o https://www.presidentschallenge.org/BSA_590/


•	 STEM/NOVA Award 


o This award is designed to introduce and encourage further study of 
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics) by Cub 
Scouts.  A Scout may earn all four Nova awards.


o http://meritbadge.org/wiki/index.php/NOVA_Awards


Beyond the Badge


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://meritbadge.org/wiki/index.php/NOVA_Awards





194 Program Activities


Monthly Activities


•	 December Service Project for homeless or kids in need
•	 January:  Winter Camps at Camp Tracy 1/20
•	 February:  Winter Camp at Camp Tracy 2/17 and 2/22
•	 March: Sledding
•	 April:  District Pine Wood Derbies
•	 May:  Scout O Rama
•	 June:  Day Camps at Camp Tracy
•	 July:  Day Camps at Camp Tracy
•	 August: Fishing Derby 
•	 September: Fall Hike
•	 October:  Haunted Village at Camp Tracy
•	 November: Food Drive


Hot Shot Tickets- 
 You can use Hot Shot tickets as an immediate reward for following direction or displaying great behavior 
that follows the Scout Oath or Law. A Hot Shot ticket is just a raffle ticket used for the cub to write his name on as a 
chance to win a prize at the Pack meeting. Works Great!!


Field Trips and Go See Its
• Rhodes Dough
• Energy Solutions Center
• Miller Motor Sports Park
• Real Soccer
• Utah Food Bank
• Local Radio Stations
• Local TV Stations
• Humane Society of Utah Animal Shelters
• Cream of Weber
• Local Fire Department
• Recycling Centers
• Family History Library
• Church History Museum
• Governors’ Mansion
• Salt Lake 
• Art Center
• Local Candy Makers


• Brick Companies
• Rocky Mountain Power
• Questar Gas
• Tracy Aviary
• Utah Pioneer Museums
• Young Electric Sign Co.
• Local Grocery Stores
• Clark Planetarium
• Children’s Museum
• Local Publishing Co.
• Coca-Cola Bottling Co.
• Libraries
• Flight Park in Draper
• Local Historical Society
• UTA
• The Flag Company


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







195


CITIZENSHIP & SERVICE ACTIVITIES
CUB SCOUTS


 To paraphrase a cliché, “citizenship begins at home”.  If we look into the Core Values, the Boy Scout Law, 
and in the Boy Scout Oath we will find the attributes of a good citizen. The CORE VALUES are:  Citizenship; 
Compassion; Cooperation; Courage; Faith:  Health and Fitness; Honesty; Perseverance; Positive Attitude; 
Resourcefulness; Respect; and Responsibility.
In Cub Scouting we start off with the Bobcat trail. The first thing Cub Scout learns is being honest and about 
the Cub Scout promise.  Next he will learn the meaning of the Law of the Pack and some of the aspects of 
responsibility.
Tiger Cubs while working on the achievements they will learn about responsibility, citizenship, health and fitness, 
respect, and faith.
Wolf Cubs they will learn about cooperation, courage, faith, positive attitude, respect, and responsibility while 
they working on their achievements and electives.
Bear Cubs when they work on their achievements and electives they will learn about citizenship, compassion, 
courage, faith, health and fitness, honesty, resourcefulness, respect, and responsibility.
Webelos, We’ll be loyal Scouts,  to receive the WEBELOS Badge ,with the help of parents, guardian, and Webelos 
Leader, will have to earn the CITIZENSHIP Activity Badge. In doing so they will:    KNOW:  Some of the rights as 
a citizen of the United States of America. 


       COMMIT:  To ways, a boy his age can be a good citizen.
        PRACTICE:  Complete the requirements for the Citizenship Activity Badge. Webelos are required to 
know:  The national, state, and local leaders.
The history of the United States flag and how and when the national flag should be displayed.
Why you should respect the flag.
And be able to recite the Pledge of Allegiance from memory.
How our national anthem was written.
The rights and duties of a citizen of the United States.
Explain how and what a citizen should do to save our Natural resources
After the Bear Cub Scout joins the Webelos Den they’ll earn the Cub Scout Academics belt loop for citizenship.
At a den meeting they will talk about the “Good Turn” service project that they did.
Besides the above required activities there are two (2) from a list of nine that they can do.  They are:  Tell how they 
can help law enforcement agencies, or
Visit a local community leader and learn about the job, or
Write and report about some former great American, or
Tell about another boy that they think is a good citizen, or
List three individuals in the world that they think is a good citizen, or
Tell why we should have laws, or
Tell why we have government and why we pay for it, or
List four (4) ways one (1) nation works with other nations, or
Name three (3), non-religious organizations that help people.


Citizenship & Service Activities


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







196 Program Activities


The Origin of the Scout Sign, Scout Salute, and National Flag


We can trace the origin of the Scout sign, salute, during the first millennium, and national flag before the first 
millennium.  They were the Roman, Mongolian, and Chinese were the first three


civilized empires to have had armies and any size. Their flags were basic just banner called “standards”.  It was 
during the first millennium that knight (or ‘cniht’- Anglo-Saxon for boy) were hired by well to do nobles and 
warlords, and eventually Bishops and Cardinals of the Holy Roman Catholic Church.  As time went by the nobles, 
warlords, bishops, and cardinals created family crest or “coat of arms” to identify the individual or group.  These 
coats of arms were displayed on standards and shields.  As the various countries were established and boundaries 
set, counties needed their own standard or flag. 
  The Scout Sign originated from when knights would show that they were friendly.  To do so the knight would 
place in their left the horse’s reigns and their helmet under the left arm.  They would then raise the right arm so that 
the upper arm was horizontal and the forearm was vertical with the palm open and facing forward showing that 
they were unarmed.  All of the scouting families use this procedure, except the Girl Scouts and the Cub Scout, with 
some variations.  The Boy Scouts and Varsity Scouts have the palm facing forward with the thumb holding the little 
finger down.  The Venturing Scouts have the palm facing forward with all fingers upright and the thumb slightly 
out forming a “V”.  Now Cub Scouts like to be noticed, so their arm is fully extended in the air.  The thumb holds 
the last two (2) fingers down while the index and middle fingers forming a “V” to represent the wolf ears.  The two 
fingers stand for the two parts of the Cub Scout Promise – “to help other people” and “to obey”.  When giving the 
Cub Scout sign it means that the boy is ready to listen to Akala.  The Cub Scout sign is given when reciting the Cub 
Scout Promise or the Law of the Pack. 
   It is not clear which came first, the smithy method of working metal or the need of better or more armor.  
Eventually a knight was covered from head to toe, if he could afore it.  A knight is equivalent to modern day armor 
cavalry in today military, but on an individual bases.  At first the helmet looked like nothing more than a bucket 
over the head with a slit to see through.  That became cumbersome and dangerous.  So a visor was developed that 
would protect the eyes when lowered and when raise the eyes could be seen for recognition.  The visor was raised on 
right side of the helmet with the right hand and held there until the recognition was complete.  There by igniting the 
salute.
  Until 1972 Scouts were required to salute each other.  When saluting the flag an individual does it from the position 
of attention.  The position of attention is heals together, toes slightly pointing away from center, legs together with 
knees just slightly bent, left arm straight down the side, and the left hand is in a fist with the thumb on top and 
pointing down the seam of the trouser or skirt.  To teach any Scout to complete a proper salute, have them raise your 
arm so as if they are making a Boy Scout sign.  Upper arm is horizontal and the forearm is vertical.  A Cub Scout 
will now have middle and the index fingers together, turn the hand so that the open palm is facing the right side of 
the head.  Without raising the elbow, the hand is then lowered to the right side of the head, or side of the bill of the 
cap as long as it does not touch the curve, or front of the cap.


Match each Boy Scout Law and each phrases of Boy Scout Oath to the related Cub Scout Core Value. 
A) On my honor                 __1) Citizenship__   I) Trustworthy
B) I will do my best    __2) Compassion__   II) Loyal
C) to do my duty                 __3) Cooperation__   III) Helpful
D) to God                __4) Courage__    IV) Friendly
E) and my country                    __5) Faith__    V) Courteous
F) and to obey the Scout Law;             __6) Health and Fitness__   VI) Kind
G) to help other people at all times:     __7) Honesty__    VII) Obedient
H) to keep myself physically strong,     __8) Perseverance__   VIII) Cheerful
 J)  mentally awake,     __9) Positive Attitude__   IX) thrifty
K) and morally straight.     __10) Resourcefulness__   X) Brave  
     __11) Respect__    XI) Clean
     __12) Responsibility__    XII) Reverent


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







197


 SERVICE IDEAS


“The most worth-while thing is to try to put happiness into the 
lives of others.” 
 Sir Robert Baden-Powell 


	Bring a meal to an anonymous neighbor. Assign each den member a specific can. Place 
in a decorated box then ding dong ditch them…don’t forget to hide.


	Collect can goods for the bank. Even if you get one can from every house that makes a 
difference! To contact them call 801-978-2454


	Clean the Church yard.


	Pick up garbage in a park or baseball field.


	Collect old clothes; include coats and gloves for a shelter of any kind. 


	Call The Road Home in Salt Lake and ask what you can do for them. 801-359-4142


	Volunteer at The Christmas Box House. They need a Christmas tree decorated every 
month and you can choose the theme and make the decorations. 801-747-2201


	Call Primary Children’s Hospital and see all the wonderful things your cubs can put to-
gether for them, like coloring books, craft kits. Or make a simple puppet out of muslin 
(the pattern is on line when you look under Primary Children’s Hospital)      801-662-
5959. Or go to intermountainhealthcare.org/hospitals/primarychildrens then click on 
donations, then click on service projects.


Citizenship & Service Activities


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







198 Program Activities


	Visit a nursing home with songs to sing and books to read. They LOVE it!


	Offer to wash an elderly or recently widowed neighbor’s dog.


	Write a letter to a service man/woman and thank them for what they are doing.


	The Huntsman Cancer Center has projects, like creating a resource manual. E-mail adri-
enne.wilson@hci.utah.edu


	Make an ‘Acts of Kindness’ chart and see how many acts the boys can do through the 
week. Have them keep a journal then give them a bead or a tootsie roll for each act of 
service they performed and talk about how that made them feel and what they liked 
best.


Remember:
“The true leader serves. Serves people. Serves their best 
interests, and in doing so will not always be popular, may 


not always impress. But because true leaders are motivat-
ed by loving concern than a desire for personal glory, they 


are willing to pay the price.”


— Eugene B. Habecker


This is where I got the picture.


Alicia
http://digicamfotos.de/wp-content/plugins/secure-wordpress/helping-hands-clip-art-i11.gif


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



mailto:adrienne.wilson@hci.utah.edu

mailto:adrienne.wilson@hci.utah.edu

http://digicamfotos.de/wp-content/plugins/secure-wordpress/helping-hands-clip-art-i11.gif





199


Fun For the “Super Cub Family”


Cub Scouts is uniquely situated to involve families.  The more we can connect with families the 
greater the chance of families getting involved and supporting these great boys.  Some of the best 
ways to do this is to have planned activities that you communicate to your families. If they miss 
an activity, encourage them to work on the requirement at home.  You can communicate during 
Pack Meetings, with calendars that are sent home to the families, notes sent home about what 
you would like to have them work on at home, emails, text messages, visits, etc.  Here are some 
activities from each of the books that are great to be followed up on or done at home:


Wolf:
3. Keep Your Body Healthy
 a. Make a chart and keep track of your health habits for two weeks
4. Know Your Home and Community


a. Make a list of phone numbers you need in case of an emergency. Put a copy of this list 
by each phone or in a central place in your home. Update it often.
e. Talk with your family members. Agree on the household jobs you will be responsible 
for. Make a list of your jobs and mark off when you have finished them. Do this for one 
month.


5. Tools for Fixing and Building
a. Point out and name seven tools. Do this at home, or go to a hardware store with an 
adult. Tell what each tool does.


7. Your Living World
Know. Discuss these questions with your family: What things have people done to show a 
lack of respect to our world? Why is it important to respect our environment and natural 
resources? How can you show respect for your environment?


8. Cooking and Eating
b. Plan the meals you and your family should have for one day. List things your family 
should have from the food groups shown in the Food Group Pyramid. At each meal, you 
should have foods from at least three food groups. 
c. Help fix at least one meal for your family. Help set the table, cook the food, and wash 
the dishes.


9. Be Safe at Home and on the Street
Commit. Discuss these questions with your family: What happens when people are not 
responsible? What things can make you forget to be responsible? What things will help 
you be more responsible?


 b. Make a game like one of these. Play it with your family. 
c. Plan a walk. Go to a park or a wooded area, or visit a zoo or museum with your family. 
d. Read a book or Boys’ Life magazine with your family. Take turns reading aloud.
f. Attend a concert, a play, or other live program with your family.
g. Have a family Board Game night at home with members of your family.


11. Duty to God
 b. Talk with your family about what they believe is their duty to God.
12. Making Choices


Fun For the “Super Cub Family”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







200 Program Activities


Commit. Give some examples of when it is hard to do the right thing. Discuss with your 
family times that it might take courage to be honest and kind. Tell about a time in your 
life when you needed to be brave and courageous to do the right thing.


Bear:
1.  Ways We Worship


Practice. Practice your faith as you are taught in your home, church, synagogue, mosque, 
or religious fellowship.
b. Make a list of things you can do this week to practice your religion as you are taught in 
your home, church, synagogue, mosque, or other religious community. Check them off 
your list as you complete them.


3. What Makes America Special?
d. Find out where places of historical interest are located in or near your town or city. Go 
and visit one of them with your family or den.


 g. Display the U.S. flag in your home or fly it on three national holidays.
6. Take Care of Your Planet


a. Save 5 pounds of glass or aluminum, or 1 month of daily newspapers. Turn them in at a 
recycling center or use your community’s recycling service. 
b. Plant a tree in your yard, or on the grounds of the group that operates your Cub Scout 
pack, or in a park or other public place. Be sure to get permission first.


 e. Discuss with an adult in your family the kinds of energy your family uses. 
f. Find out more about your family’s use of electricity.


7. Law Enforcement Is a Big Job
 c. Help with crime prevention for your home.


 e. Learn the phone numbers to use in an emergency and post them by each phone 
in your home.


8. The Past Is Exciting and Important
d. Trace your family back through your grandparents or great-grandparents; or, talk to a 
grandparent about what it was like when he or she was younger.


9. What’s Cooking
d. Make a list of the “junk foods” you eat. Discuss “junk food” with a parent or teacher.


10. Family Fun
 a. Go on a day trip or evening out with members of your family. 


b. Have a family fun night at home.
11. Be Ready!
 e. With your family, plan escape routes from your home and have a practice drill.
12. Family Outdoor Adventure
 a. Go camping with your family. 


b. Go on a hike with your family. 
c. Have a picnic with your family. 
d. Attend an outdoor event with your family. 
e. Plan your outdoor family day.


13. Saving Well, Spending Well
 a. Go grocery shopping with a parent or other adult member of your family.
 e. Discuss family finances with a parent or guardian. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







201


f. Play a board game with your family that involves the use of play money.
14. Ride Right
 g. Plan and take a family bike hike.
15. Games, Games, Games!


a. Set up the equipment and play any two of these outdoor games with your family or 
friends. (Backyard golf, Badminton, Croquet, Sidewalk shuffleboard, Kickball, Softball, 
Tetherball, Horseshoes, Volleyball)


17. Information, Please
           a. With an adult in your family, choose a TV show. Watch it together. 


b. Play a game of charades at your den meeting or with your family at home.
f. Talk with a parent or other family member about how getting and giving facts fits into 
his or her job.


23. Sports, Sports, Sports
d. Watch a sport on TV with a parent or some other adult member of your family. 
e. Attend a high school, college, or professional sporting event with your family or your 
den.


Webelos:


Fitness Activity Badge
Artist Activity Badge
Scholar Activity Badge
Traveler Activity Badge
Outdoorsman Activity Badge
Citizen Activity Badge
Communicator Activity Badge
Family Member Activity Badge


These are just the ones that have requirements that talk about doing them with your family or a 
family member.  Remember that most everything in the Cub Scouting books can be done with 
family.  


Pack Meetings are one of your greatest times to involve the family.  Make sure you communicate 
when the meetings are and that the family is invited to attend.  Make the evening fun, thank them 
for coming, recognize the boys and keep it short.  That will encourage them to keep coming.  The 
kids especially love the recognition and treat at the end   As you look for ways to involve the 
families, you will find lots of them and it will make your program even better!


Fun For the “Super Cub Family”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







202 Program Activities


Super Fun With Derbies
Race Planning and Sportsmanship


Schedule and plan for the month of the race
Reserve location for the race date and time - possibly also the night before for pre-registration
Locate a track for this race (already have one or be sure to reserve one in advance)
Buy BSA Race kits
Decide on race scoring system (bracketing single or double elimination or an electronic system)
Handout Race Rules sheet, Tips and Flyer (date, time, place) with race kit
Recruit for volunteers to help with the race (Don’t forget Boy Scouts)
Order/Buy 1st, 2nd, 3rd place awards, participation and side contest ribbons


Race month build planning (building vehicle in den meetings or build at home)
Ask parents about helping boys (some boys may need help from you and your pack)
Gather project tools and supplies required for this race vehicle or provide outside resources 


Day before the races - Parent reminder - remind volunteers - race day refreshments - verify equipment and location 
reservations


Race Day
Setup track
Vehicle Impound / Pit Row Table and a Repair Table with tools and quick-dry glue
Check-in and registration of racer
Assign volunteers to duties as required


Sportsmanship
The Cub Scout Races are parent-son projects. Please feel free to give guidance and 
minimal assistance to your Cub Scouts as they build their Race Vehicles. This is a chance 
for the boys to be part of a team, and to enjoy the spirit of friendly competition with their 
peers. It is also for your Cub Scouts to enjoy the satisfaction of building their own racers 
from the kits provided. 


While everyone will be trying to win, it’s always a good idea to start out by remembering the Cub Scout Motto, “Do 
Your Best” 


The first thing to remember about sportsmanship is that everyone’s skills are a little different. 
The second thing to remember is to follow the rules, without rules there would be no race. 
The third thing to remember about good sportsmanship is that there are winners and losers in every competition. You 
accept this when you choose to compete. 
Being a winner is easy, and losing is sometimes hard. If you win, you must not brag or gloat. If you lose, you must 
not feel jealous or bitter.
To be a good sportsman, you must be able to say “I did my best” and be satisfied with the results. You must also be 
able to appreciate and feel happy for someone else when they run a good race.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







203


Pinewood Derby


History: starts with Don Murphy, Cub Master for Pack 280C in 1952. Don Murphy wanted to create a new father-
son Cub Scout activity he could do with his 10 year old son who was too young to race in the Soap Box Derby, 
which requires the boy to drive a homemade car down a hill. Don’s young son couldn’t wait 2 years to race in the 
Soap Box Derby, so “Dad” Murphy wanted to invent another activity to do with his son and the younger boys in 
his Cub Scout Pack. The ideas started percolating in Don Murphy’s mind. His dedication to family values and Cub 
Scouting ideals drove him, as stated in the quote above, to develop the idea of racing miniature pinewood derby cars 
down a track. He just needed to figure out a basic kit for these cars and design a track to race them on.  


What Goals Are Accomplished:.
Sportsmanship and good citizenship


 Personal achievement
 Family understanding


 
Planning
Designate a Derby Chairperson
Set/adopt racing rules and car specifications - Use BSA kits only to keep it clean
Set place and date of race (and maybe an alternate)
Arrange for a track 
Select a race staff - judges, registration personnel, and scorekeeper 
Select a race chart or scoring system - good rental tracks have electronic timer and scoring system
Check-in and technical check equipment
PA system
Derby Workshop/Pre-race Check 
Coordinate the time, place and workshop host


Race-day
Racer and car Check-in
Register all racers and their cars
Attach a number and name to the car
Have the car checked by the “Pit Crew/Judges”
Weight test, Wheels check, Size Tests, Clearance and misc. 
Impound/store the car
Car judging - for best of show


The Race
Staging and pre-staging the racers
Lane selection and rotation, scoring method
Car handling - In-race Lubrication/Modifications and other no-no’s
Recognize the eliminated racers - all participants
Awards - The fastest, runners-up, participant voted best of show


Have Fun!


Super Fun With Derbies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







204 Program Activities


Raingutter Regatta


History: In the raingutter regatta, boats race down a narrow channel. It’s called Raingutter Regatta because the boats 
were originally raced in rain gutters. The gutters have since been replaced by PVC pipes.


What Goals Are Accomplished:.
Sportsmanship and good citizenship


 Personal achievement
 Family understanding


Planning
Identify Raingutter Regatta coordinator
Determine Date
Determine and reserve location
Review Regatta official rules and tips. Update if necessary
Determine whether to buy or make boat kits
Send emails to pack with Regatta information (rules, tips, flyer…)
Handout kits and collect money


Race-day
Raingutter Repairman 
Check for leaks and make any other necessary repairs for a safe event
Event Setup/Construct race and practice raingutters
Setup registration table
Setup boat storage table (Marina)
Computer operator/Scorekeeper
Determine race brackets (PC or paper)
Determine and set up any nautical decoration for event
Keep kids entertained throughout event
Awards Personnel 
Purchase awards (trophies/medals/ribbons/certificates) and    participation patches
Clean-up Crew 


The Race
Register and Number boats
Race 
Trophies/Medals/Ribbons/Certificates


Have Fun!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







205


Space Derby 


Info
The space derby is similar to the pinewood derby only it uses miniature rockets. These propeller-driven rockets are 
powered by three rubber bands and travel along a monofilament fishing line. Boys carve and assemble the rockets 
themselves under the guidance of an adult family member. 
Space derby kits with building instructions can be bought individually or in packs from a local Scouting distributor. 
Often, the pack’s derby committee purchases derby kits in quantity and distributes them to pack families. The local 
Scouting distributor also will have many derby “extras,” such as space derby carriers, accessory kits, extra rubber 
bands, ribbons, trophies, decals, and more.


What Goals Are Accomplished:.
Sportsmanship and good citizenship


 Personal achievement
 Family understanding


Planning
Identify Space Derby coordinator
Determine Date
Determine and reserve location
Review Derby official rules and tips. Update if necessary
Purchase Space Derby Kits
Send emails to pack with Derby information (rules, tips, flyer…)
Handout kits


Race-day
Track Repairman 
Event Setup/Construct race and practice flight
Setup registration table
Setup spaceship storage table
Computer operator/Scorekeeper
Determine race brackets (PC or paper)
Determine and set up any space decoration for event
Keep kids entertained throughout event
Awards Personnel 
Purchase awards (trophies/medals/ribbons/certificates) and participation patches
Clean-up Crew 


The Race
Register and Number Spaceships
Race 
Trophies/Medals/Ribbons/Certificates


Have Fun!


Super Fun With Derbies


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







206 Program Activities


Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets


The main purpose of conducting Blue & Gold Banquets/Ceremonies is to provide recognition 
and to celebrate Cub Scouting. The traditional Blue & Gold Banquet is held in February, in honor 
of Lord Baden Powell’s birthday. However, as a Pack, you may choose to conduct your Blue & 
Gold Banquet any month that you feel comfortable with. 
 Recognition at Blue & Gold is the main purpose and thus drives the program for the 
evening. Recognizing outstanding achievements among the Cub Scouts, including Arrow of 
Light Ceremonies, special patches, field trips, or displays of activities done in dens throughout 
the quarter or year are excellent components to the Blue & Gold Ceremony. Recognition of 
Leaders, Den Chiefs and other significant adults for their service, or for achievements they may 
have sought after and earned during their tenure as Pack Leaders is also a must at Blue & Gold. 
Recognition of Outstanding Support from parents, grandparents, siblings, or other adults in 
support of Cub Scouting also is worthwhile and builds the unity of families’ within your Cub 
Scout organization. These awards should be done with careful consideration and planning. 
 Besides recognition, Blue & Gold Banquets/Ceremonies require careful planning of the 
Banquet portion of the evening. This should be a special evening to celebrate the Cub and to 
highlight his achievements throughout the year. Giving parents the opportunity to focus on their 
Cub Scout for the evening also adds to the special atmosphere desired at a Blue & Gold.
 An important aspect of the Blue & Gold that should not be overlooked is Uniform 
Inspection. Regular uniform inspection encourages everyone to obtain and decorate his 
uniform according to BSA guidelines. Having everyone in uniform helps to unify and identify 
your Pack. Wearing the official BSA uniform to den meetings as well as for Pack Meetings 
encourages group identification, establishes a sense of dignity and respect, and allows for mutual 
consideration to occur. When in uniform, scouts should be encouraged to act with the Cub Scout 
motto “Do Your Best,” in mind. Conduct should be well behaved and respectful-even when 
the group is having a great time playing together. Identifying with a group, such as wearing a 
uniform, creates its own discipline for the boys. Peer pressure to do you best and to treat each 
other respectfully comes with the wearing of the uniform. Make sure everyone is in proper attire-
shirts decorated correctly, and tucked into their pants, with neckerchiefs properly rolled and 
secured. 
 Planning awards, recognitions and developing a ceremony is further assisted by the 
themes for the year. Decorations and table wear enhance the atmosphere. Each month’s theme 
allows for development of a menu, awards, skits, decorations and other ceremonies to enhance 
your Blue & Gold Banquet


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







207


Blue and Gold Plan


I. Theme-
a. 


II. Scouts/Families
a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 
e. 
f. 
g. 
h. 
i. 
j. 
k. 
l. 


III. Invitation
a. 


IV. Decorations
a. Walls


i. 
ii. 


iii. 
b. Tables


i. 
ii. 


iii. 
c. Centerpiece


i. 
ii. 


iii. 
V. Arrive- Pre opener


a. 


VI. Food/Menu
a. 


i. 
b. 


i. 
c. 


i. 
d. 


i. 
e. 


i. 
VII. Awards-


a. 
i. 


b. 
i. 


c. 
VIII. Program/activity


a. 


Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







208 Program Activities


Menu ideas for each month’s theme


Boys need heroes- “superman” sub sandwiches, “Hulk” mint ice cream, “Ironman” strawberry 
ice cream, Superman ice cream, wonder woman water. 


January 2014: Lights, Camera, Action; Positive Attitude- Pizza, different flavors of 
popcorn. Activity-Put on a puppet show or play charades, have cubs make picture flip books. 
Decorations- flashlights, cameras made out of small boxes.


February 2014: Invention; Resourcefulness- Build your own dinner: various noodles and 
several sauces with toppings, build your own salad� Activity-Cheese squares and pretzel sticks, 
marshmallows (see what you can build). Vegetable derby. Decorations-Time line of lights, 
telephone, computers or airplanes. 


March 2014-Pet pals-Compassion- Hot dogs, frogeye salad, frosted animal crackers and 
ice cream. Activity- a pet store employee, a police K-9 dog, a person training a Seeing Eye dog. 
Decorations-Different types of animal houses (dog house, bird houses painted by the boys)


April 2014: My Family Tree; Faith- Leafy green salad bar, a great time for an ethnic 
experience; Hawaiian haystacks. Activity-tell stories of famous people or not so famous relatives. 
Decorations-Ethnic decorations; Italian, Canadian, Brazilian, Mexican. 


May 2014: Destination Parks; Health and Fitness- Dutch oven food, roast marshmallows, 
smores. Activity- Nature walk, learn about different national state parks. Decorations-travel 
brochures, maps. 


June 2014: Over the Horizon; Perseverance- Step it up, next level finger food advance to a 
spoon or a fork to eat with. Nachos, vegetable or fruit platter, cheese and crackers. Activity-game 
night, make a life size board game.  Decorations- game boards and card games.


July 2014: Space- The New Frontier; Courage- anything from a tube; yogurt, otter pops, 
applesauce. Space ice cream and moon pies. Activity-Space derby, paper airplanes/rockets. 
Decorations-planets, solar system, rockets made out of cardboard and foil.


August 2014:Heroes in History; Honesty- Hot or spicy foods with bread and liquid to save 
the day Activity- have a fire fighter, law enforcement officer, or member of the military come 
and explain what they do. Decorations- picture of people, newspaper clippings pictures of 
grandparents or older siblings.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







209


September 2014: Under the Big Top; Cooperation- spaghetti dinner, popcorn of different 
flavors, snow cones, cotton candy. Activity-eating dinner with hands tied to the person next to 
them� Decorations-circus animals


October 2014: Dollars and Sense; Responsibility- hand out cub bucks and price the 
menu so the cubs can “buy” their dinner. Chicken, roll, salad, dessert. Decorations- pictures 
coins, George Washington, Abraham Lincoln. 


November 2014: Give good will; Citizenship- Thanksgiving dinner; turkey leg, potato 
salad, roll, pie. Activity- tie a spoon to a dowel and have them feed each other. Decorations- 
have the cub scouts draw a picture or write a poem or story on how they can be great citizens 


December 2014: Stars and Stripes; Respect- Red, white, and blue food sweet and sour 
sauce with rice and blue Jello. Activity- review how to do a proper flag ceremony. Cut out a five 
pointed star. Decorations- flags, stars, flags from different countries.


Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







210 Program Activities


Sample Blue and Gold Plan for a Space theme


I. Scouts/Families
a. Smith’s-5
b. Jones-3
c. Jensen’s-6
d. Anderson’s-4
e. Walker’s-2
f. Johnson’s-8


II. Invitation
a. Rocket shaped


III. Decorations
a. Walls


i. Constellations 
ii. Blow up space shuttles-hang 


from ceiling
b. Tables


i. White table cloths
ii. Blue/yellow plates


iii. Clear cups
iv. Yellow silverware
v. Yellow napkins


vi. Paint chip silverware holder
c. Centerpiece


i. Baby food jar rockets
1. Baby food jars
2. Glitter
3. Paper


ii. Space rocks
1. Styrofoam pieces
2. Dark blue spray 


paint
3. Star garland


IV. Arrive- Pre opener
a. Name the constellations on the 


wall
V. Food/Menu


a. Main menu
i. Flying saucer=Hamburger


ii. Space shuttle= hot dog
b. Salad


i. Alien Elbow=mac and cheese
ii. Moon craters= potato salad


c. Side 1
i. Haley’s comet=half a banana


ii. Crescent moon= sliced apples
d. Side 2


i. Crispy clouds=potato chips
ii. Crunchy Stars=flavored chips


e. Drink
i. Astronaut juice=Fruit drink


ii. Moon juice=water
f. Cake contest


i. Have each family bring a cake 
or dessert decorated in a 
space theme- give each boy a 
milky way with a certificate 


VI. Awards- Present awards to those who 
have earned them


VII. Program/activity-
VIII. Mini games


a. Level 1 anti gravity balance. 
Balance bouncy ball on plate walk 
across room


b. Level 2- Shuttle repair-use kitchen 
rubber gloves a bucket of water 
and a large nut and bolt. Wear 
gloves and put together nut and 
bolt under water.


c. Level 3-Commet toss. Styrofoam 
balls covered in tin foil with 
streamer tails toss into numbered 
rings


d. Level- 4- Tranquilize Aliens-print 
out aliens tape to wall use nerf 
guns to shoot the aliens


e. Level 5- Moon rock relay have 
each boy carry a marble on a 
spoon from point a to point B


IX. Certificate of completion
a. Certificate with a ring pop stapled 


to it 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







211


Space Theme Blue and Gold


We used round tables set up in the gym. 
Fishing line was strung between the two 
basketball hoops and blow up space shuttles 
were hung on the line.


Constellations were made on large pieces of 
black butcher paper and placed on the walls 
(this was also our pre-opener, each person 
had to identify each constellation correctly)  


Each table had a white table cloth. Large blue and 
small yellow paper plates were used at each place 
along with a yellow napkin, yellow utensils, and a clear 
cup. 
Silverware holders were made using blue and yellow 
paint chips picked up from the hardware store and 
sewn together on three sides with a sewing machine 
creating a pocket where the napkin and silverware were 
placed. 
Centerpieces were made using empty baby food jars 
and paper to make the cone and stand of the rocket 
then filled with water and glitter.
Space rocks were pieces of Styrofoam spray painted 
dark blue then Silver Star garland was poked in each 
piece.


Photo op was created using a re-
frigerator box painted with a rocket 
and alien with cut outs


Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







212 Program Activities


It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star 
Gazing!


Take your den or pack into the outdoors and learn about the stars.


The stars are fabulous.  They are a natural source of wonder for children of all ages. Awakening 
curiosity about the stars can lead you and your cubs on an adventure not only in science, but in 
mythology, legends, and lore. Children who are exposed to the wonders of the night sky will often 
develop a life-long love and curiosity for the wonders of nature, the mysteries of science, and the 
adventures of days gone by.


     
The Big Dipper


                              
Anytime you talk with kids about the stars, they’re sure to mention the Big Dipper.  What a great place to begin!  
Easily the most recognizable grouping in our night sky, the Big Dipper holds a wealth of astronomical goodies. 


 1.  The NAME: Scientific name: Ursa Major means “great  bear”.  Ursa is the Latin word for bear. How 
awesome that spotting this bear is a requirement for our bear cubs!  Different cultures around the world have used 
different words and descriptions for this shape in the sky.  Can you see why we Americans call it a dipper?  I wonder 
what made someone decide to call it a bear.  What would you call it if you were seeing it for the first time, and didn’t 
know what its name was?


 2. Navigation: for thousands of years people used the sky to find their way. The dipper was one of their most 
useful tools. Native Americans and pirate captains alike knew the dipper well. The two stars at the end of the dipper 
are called the pointers, following their line will lead you to Polaris, the north star, the only star in the sky that never 
moves. Depending on the time of year and even time of night, the dipper might be sideways or even upside down in 
the sky, but the pointers will ALWAYS lead you to the North Star.


 3. The Little Dipper:  Ursa Minor, the Little Bear is very close to his big brother in the sky, but a lot harder 
to see. Teach kids its location in the sky by putting the two constellations together on one slide of your pinhole 
planetarium. The last star in the handle of the little dipper is Polaris, the North Star.


 4. Visual Acuity:  The Big Dipper also features an awesome binary grouping of two stars referred to as the 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







213


“horse and rider”. These are the middle star you see in the handle of the dipper. If you look very closely, you can see a 
tiny little star (called Alcor) riding on the bigger star (called Mizar-- mee-zahr). Ancient legend says that in order to 
be selected as an archer for the king, one had to be able to see both of these stars. Can you?


 5. Science: Mizar and Alcor may appear to be very close together, but Alcor is actually 3 light years further 
from Earth than its binary partner. That means it takes 3 years longer for the light from the little star to get here than 
from the big star. Stars are so far away from us, that by the time their light reaches us, thousands of years may have 
passed! What a strange and wonderful thought!


      


      Planets


 Some of the brightest stars in the sky are actually planets! Ancient navigators knew that the positions of 
these “stars” would change in the sky the word planet comes from Greek and means wandering star. The easiest 
planet to identify is Venus. Because Venus is closer to the sun than the Earth, it is visible either just before the sun 
comes up, as the morning star, or just after the sun goes down, as the evening star. Venus is clearly the brightest star 
in the sky.


 Teach kids the names of all the planets in our solar system, set up a telescope and look at Jupiter-- you can 
see its moons.  Or look at Saturn-- you can make out its rings!


      The Moon


 Our nearest celestial neighbor is also fun to look at.  Try exploring these questions: 


 1. Why does the moon change during the month?  It’s simple to demonstrate the moon’s phases using a 
flashlight for the sun, a large ball to represent the Earth, and a small ball to represent the moon. Show your cubs how 
the orbit of the moon around the Earth changes the way the light shines on it.


 2. How would it feel to walk on the moon? Spread the floor of a room with pillows and cover the pillows 
with a blanket. Attach thick sponges to the bottom of the cubs’ feet with rubber bands and let them try a “moon 
walk”.  You can also discuss the moon’s gravity. A person on the moon will weigh one sixth what he weighs on the 
Earth. A sixty pound cub will weigh only 10 pounds on the moon. That’s about as much as a house cat! 


 3. What does it take to be an Astronaut? The astronauts have one of the strongest training programs around! 
It’s very important they have strong bodies that can handle the stresses of being in space. Talk with your cubs about 
the importance of being physically fit. It also takes a keen mind. Astronauts need to be able to think on their feet and 
solve many problems. Neil Armstrong, the first man to ever walk on the moon, was an Eagle Scout. He embodied all 
three points of the scout law, he was physically fit, mentally awake, and morally straight!


It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane, It’s Super Star Gazing!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







214 Program Activities


The Pinhole Planetarium
 Materials needed:


   Per Cub:     For sharing:


  1 Potato chip can -with a lid   A pushpin 


  1 copy of the constellations below  Glue Stick


  1 sheet of black construction paper  A hammer and one nail


  Scissors


Directions:


1. Each cub glues the white copy of the stars to his sheet of black construction paper.


2. Cut out the circles. It’s better for the circles to be too big than too small.


3. Use the pushpin on a carpeted surface to poke holes where the stars are. Make bigger holes for the bigger stars as 
indicated on the diagrams.


4. Use the hammer and nail to create a viewing hole in the bottom of the can.


5. View the constellations by fitting the circles inside the lid of the can with the white picture toward you. View 
different constellations by switching the circles. Store your constellations inside the can. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







215


Using technology and a planetarium software package


Slideshow: Bob created his using a free download of powerpoint and google images. Show your boys    our galaxy 
from inside to out. Sun, planets, moon, our solar system including the asteroid belt and comets. Progress to galaxies, 
nebulae, and the universe. Billions upon billions of stars!  Remember to keep things appropriate to the interest level 
of your cubs.  By the way you don’t need a projector if your laptop can hook to your television, use that!


Planetarium software: Stellarium is the one we used. Simply google stellarium 11.2 and you can download it free! 
Look for version 11.2 or higher.


Features:


Location-- window can be set to any city you want, Murray, Stainsbury, West Jordan, or wherever you live. The 
program will automatically set elevation from sea level….


Time-- can be advanced to any date or time you wish.  Try centering on Polaris and show the kids how the stars 
rotate through the night.


View--Here’s where you can set light pollution levels and make the moon look just like it will on any date, including 
the lunar phase. Change the likeness of the moon. It will show detail and phases.  Every night the moon begins its 
march further to the east.


Bottom Menu:


 Labels: Planets, constellations and stars


 Atmosphere filter: See what the sky would look like if the atmosphere were not turning our sky  blue 
during the daylight


 Constellation art: Turn on artist renditions of the constellations


 Zoom: Cool for nebulae (Orion) or Galaxies (pinwheel above the big dipper m101)


Resources and references:


Book:   


The Stars: A New Way to See Them H. A, Rey  ISBN:0-395-24830-2


Internet:


lunarepublic.com  (Maps of the moon)


Spaceplace.nasa.gov


Scijinks.NASA.gov


http://www.kidsastronomy.com/astroskymap/constellation_hunt.htm


Skyandtelescope.com


It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane, It’s Super Star Gazing!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.lunarepublic.com





216 Program Activities


Cub Scouts Go Geocaching


Geocaching is a fun and entertaining activity for many people. If you’re interested in taking a 
group of cubs caching you can probably find a neighbor nearby who knows enough to get you 
started, and you might even find an expert! This is one activity that you want to practice before 
you take the kids out. It can be tricky and will almost certainly go better if you know what you’re 
doing (at least a little bit).


What is Geocaching?


Simply put, it’s a high-tech game of hide and seek.


 Geocaching is an outdoor sporting activity in which the participants use a Global Positioning 
System (GPS) receiver or mobile device and other navigational techniques to hide and seek 
containers, called “geocaches” or “caches”, anywhere in the world.


A typical cache is a small waterproof container containing a logbook where the geocacher enters 
the date they found it and signs it with their established code name. Larger containers such as 
plastic storage containers (Tupperware or similar) or ammunition boxes can also contain items 
for trading, usually toys or trinkets of little value. 


Geocaches are currently placed in over 200 countries around the world and on all seven 
continents, including Antarctica, and the International Space Station. After more than 12 years of 
activity there are over 1.7 million active geocaches published on various websites. There are over 5 
million geocachers worldwide .


How do you do it?


An integral part of Geocaching is sharing the experience on line.  In fact, without the internet, 
the game would never have started. Cachers around the world post the locations of where their 
treasures are hidden, and people who find them post their finds and their adventures.


To get started you will need to visit the www.geocaching.com website. This is where you will 
register yourself as a “geocacher “ and find maps and GPS coordinates for caches in your area.


Tools needed: GPS unit or app for your smart phone, pencil, sense of adventure.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Global_Positioning_System

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Global_Positioning_System

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/GPS_receiver

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Antarctica

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_Space_Station

http://www.geocaching.com





217


Tips for helping Cubs enjoy geocaching


Help them understand the rules.  Geocaching is like a secret world they are being given 
a glimpse of. Teach them to be respectful, always put a cache back where they found it, trades 
should always be fair and don’t show geocaches to kids who don’t understand the rules. The 
cacher who hid it would be disappointed if it were not treated with respect.


Set up a localized event for the cubs� Use a local park or building where you can hide a 
few caches of your own without registration--just for the day.  Having a variety of treasures to find 
in a small place is contrived. Geocaching.com requires caches to be at least half a mile apart. But 
you can plant 5 or 6 in the same location at a den or pack meeting in order to make the hunt fun 
and not need to hike long distances. For beginners, this is a good idea.


Let the cubs touch.  Kids this age are curious and love to explore with their hands. Let them 
take turns holding the GPS units and make sure everyone gets a chance to examine the treasures 
they find.


Cub Scouts Go Geocaching


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







218 Program Activities


NOTES!NOTES!







219


NOTES!NOTES!







220 Leader Specific


Den leader Specific   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  221


Webelos Leader Specific   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  222


Cubmaster Leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  225


Committee Leader Specific  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  226


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







221


Den leader - Leader Specific Training


What I wish I knew when I started as a den leader
1. I wish I was aware that if we carried the guide to safe scouting and the boys permission slips 


we were covered by insurance.


2. Where to find permission slips and health forms on the internet and when they are required


3. When I need to file a tour plan and where I can hold my den meetings.


4. That someone had told me the value of using a den chief and what 2 deep leader ship means.


5. How to organize a den meeting and keep the boys interested.


6. That I had been informed about Scouttrax.com for keeping records of the boys


7. Where to find forms for record keeping and why it is important.


8. Who can help with the boys on field trips and what resources are available for field trips. All 
of these questions are answered in the Leader Specific class. These are the things that basic 
training can help you with. There are also lots of resources available at the local Scout shop.


9. WWW.Scouttrax.com is an awsome way to track a boy from Tiger through Webelos. You can 
also use it to send emails to parents.


Den Leader-Leader Specific Training


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







222 Leader Specific


Webelos Leader Specific


Webelos are boys; ages 10 to 11 depending if your unit  does one year or two. This age group of boys are looking for 
new challenges and need hands on projects. Some of the projects they do are crafts and sports and science. These pins 
are all hands on. Most the pins will have hands on experience.
In Webelos the boys will learn individual responsibility and work toward becoming a Boy Scout. They will work 
on the Scout Oath and Law, Learn the Outdoor code, the scout handshake and motto and slogan. They take 
responsibility for Flag Ceremonies during den and pack meetings.
There are 20 activities badges and if a boy completes all 20 he will receive the 20’er Patch.
During Webelos the boys have lots of outdoor experience and they will meet with a Boy Scout troop two times. They 
will learn to tie knots and make fires. They learn about singing indoors and outdoors and the difference. Each boy 
must earn 3 activity badges to earn his Webelos Badge. The citizen and the Fitness are required and one other activity 
badge from a different activity group (mental, technology or outdoor). Then as they work toward their Arrow of 
Light they need to earn the Outdoorsman and the Readyman and then one from the mental skills group, one from 
the technology group and then one other of their choice.
What is really great about the Webelos is that you can double up on requirements. If you do an art project that is 
useful you can count it also on the Craftsman. If you make a picture frame out of wood you can count it in art. If the 
boy earns his swimming belt loop he can count it on an individual sport for the sportsman and so forth.
Field trips are an important part of the Webelos experience. There are many places that you can go with your boys (ie: 
Museum of Natural History, Zoo, a construction site, TV station.)
Den Chiefs should be used as often as possible because their influence is a big help to the boys and in getting them 
excited about scouting. A den chief for Webelos must be at least a first class scout.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







223


Webelos Leader Specific Training
Things that I wish I had known when I became a Webelos leader:


1. There are 20 badges that the boys can earn and if you are in a one year program you need to 
plan on 2 a month to complete them all. They don’t need to understand it all, you are just intro-
ducing the subject to them. They will go into the subjects again as a Boy Scout when they earn 
Merit Badges for these same badges.


2. Activity badges are sometimes called pins because they receive it as a pin. They are different 
from the Academic or Sports pins they earn with the belt loops.


3. When you are working on one badge, some of the requirement overlap with another badge such 
as artist and craftsman – you can make something and count it in both badges.


4. Webelos are beginning to learn the Boy Scout oath, law and sign. If you recite it each week in 
your den meetings by the end of the year they can say them from memory.


5. The belt loops can be earned as a tiger, wolf, bear yet some are required for the Webelos Ac-
tivity Badges. They should only receive the belt loop once but they can earn them in each rank. 
You don’t have time on a 1 year program to earn all the sports and academic pins so to earn 
them they can complete them at home with their parents but they are not required. If they are 
in community sports programs you can send the requirements home to their parents and have 
them sign off those that you didn’t work on but the boys actually earned.


6. Not all badges are required for the Webelos badge, only Fitness, Citizen and one other activity 
badge from another group. For the Arrow of Light they also are required to complete Readyman 
and Outdoorsman and one from Mental Skills and Technology Skills, for a total of 7 badges. The 
Activity Badge Groups are found on page 74 of the Webelos Handbook.


7. For the Webelos badge requirement #8 Faith, for LDS units they can earn the knot even though 
they can’t complete the Faith in God award.


8. To earn all the compass points they only need 19 Activity badges. That leaves 1 badge that they 
might not earn.


9. A conservation project can be as simple as cleaning a park, church or school grounds.


10. To plan your year so the boys receive all the badges, check out the boy that has been in Webelos 
the longest and work on what he needs and by the end of the year you fill find you covered ev-
ery badge. I use the Compass Point Emblem Requirement for my planning program.


11. Emailing the parents is the best way to keep the parents aware of what you are working on and 
what their boys need to catch up on.


12. Attend your local District Roundtables. They are invaluable.


                                                                        HAVE FUN!


Webelos Leader-Leader Specific Training


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







224 Leader Specific


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







225


THE CUB SCOUT CUBMASTER


Cub Masters responsibilities - - -
Complete Cubmaster training
Attend monthly roundtable
Encourage every boy to become a Cub Scout
Fallow the BSA policies when  planning all pack activities
Work with pack committee members to make sure all dens are functioning well.
Plan the den and pack programs with the help of committee members
Lead the monthly pack meeting
Involve all dens
Coordinate the total Cub Scout program
Use the appropriate literature


Den and pack meeting resource guide
Cub Scout leader book
Webelos leader Guide
Other BSA approved literature found at council book stores


Everything the Cub Master does is to help the individual boy
Maintaining good relationships with dens and leaders
Maintaining good relationships between parents and guardians
Seek the support of parents and guardians and include them in den and pack activities
Ensure the pack has a presentable United States Flag and that it is well maintained
Be an example to the boys by wearing a complete uniform
Encourage high advancement standards for all Cub Scouts
Include all family members in pack activities
Conduct impressive advancement recognition, and graduation ceremonies
Have a “Cheer” box loaded with appropriate songs and cheers
Greeting cubs and families with a preopening activity
Offering Cub Scouts the opportunities to excel
Help train Cub Scouts in


Self-esteem
Self pride
Citizenship
Character
Mental
Physical
Emotional fitness


Encourage attendance at summer outdoor activities


ALWAYS REMEMBER TO HAVE FUN, FUN, FUN


Cub Master-Leader Specific Training


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







226 Leader Specific


You’re a New Committee Member; 
What’s Next?


Now that you are registered as a pack committee member, you will receive Scouting magazine, 
which contains helpful information to assist you as a leader. These steps will get you started:


1� Complete Fast Start training for Cub Scout pack committee members� You can 
complete the training online at https://myscouting.org. Youth Protection training for all Scouting 
volunteers is also available at this website. Effective June 1, 2010, Youth Protection training is 
required for
all BSA registered volunteers, regardless of their position(s).


2� Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book. (To start right away, you may need to 
borrow a copy until you can get your own.) This book describes your role as a pack committee 
member or pack committee chair and will give more information on the following steps.


3� Get acquainted with the other leaders in your pack� You will need their assistance 
in carrying out a successful pack program. You will be working closely with the pack committee 
chair and pack trainer.


4� Attend the monthly pack leaders’ planning meeting� This meeting is led by the pack 
committee chair and Cubmaster, and it is where pack plans are made.


5� Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leader roundtable� You will receive 
continuing help on pack management and will be acquainted with leaders from other packs, who 
will share ideas and experiences with you. Your unit commissioner or unit-serving executive can 
tell you when and where the roundtable meets.


6� Attend Cub Scout leader basic training sessions as soon as possible� There 
are two components to this training—Pack Committee Leader Specific Training, a specialized 
session to help you successfully plan a successful pack program, and This Is Scouting, which is 
attended by leaders in all program areas. These will give you the foundation you need to become 
an effective and successful leader. Every boy deserves trained and qualified leaders. Your unit 
commissioner or unit-serving executive can give you information about training sessions. These 
training sessions can all be taken online at https://myscouting.org.


7� Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible� 
It is comfortable and suitable for all Cub Scout meetings and activities. Wearing the uniform 
properly is important in setting a good example for the boys. Your unit commissioner or unit-
serving executive can tell you where to obtain the uniform and insignia.


8� If you are pack committee chair, get to know the chartered organization 
representative, and keep this key person informed about the needs of the pack�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







227


9� If you are pack committee chair, get acquainted with your unit commissioner�
The commissioner is a friend to your pack and will be glad to answer questions and help in other 
ways.


10� If you are pack committee chair, get to know your unit-serving executive� This 
professional Scouter is employed by your council to serve all Scouting units in your district, and 
will do everything possible to help you be successful.


11� If you are pack committee chair, begin to develop a close working relationship
with the Cubmaster� The two of you will be working as a team to make the pack program 
successful.


Don’t hesitate to ask for help� There are many people who want to help you provide
the finest possible Cub Scout experience for the boys in your pack. By the time you have 
completed these steps, you will be well on your way to becoming a successful pack leader.
By the time you have completed these steps, you will be well on your way to becoming
a successful pack leader.


The Pack Committee


You were selected as a member of the pack committee because of your interest in
helping boys. Regardless of the size of your pack committee, certain responsibilities
must be performed if Cub Scouts are to receive the type of fun-filled and meaningful
program to which they are entitled. By making the commitment to serve as a leader,
you share the following responsibilities with other members of the pack committee:


• Recruit the best person available for Cubmaster and one or more assistant Cubmasters.


• Provide adequate and safe facilities for pack meetings.


• See that a year-round pack program is conducted according to the policies of the Boy Scouts of 
America.


• See that the pack program, leaders, and Cub Scouts reflect positively the interests and objectives 
of the chartered organization and the Boy Scouts of America.


• Encourage all leaders and boys to have and properly use the uniforms, badges, and insignia.


• Establish a good relationship with neighborhood Boy Scout troops. Try to graduate every 
Webelos Scout into a troop.


• Assist with the pack charter renewal, reregistering at least 50 percent of present members each 
year.


• Establish a sound financial program with a pack budget plan and adequate financial records.


Committee-Leader Specific Training


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







228 Leader Specific


• Stimulate the interest of families through proper programming.


• Work with the Cubmaster to make the pack program effective so that each boy advances the 
rank for his age. See that proper recognition is given promptly.


• Maintain an inventory of pack equipment.


• Work with the Cubmaster to conduct periodic training for families, including an annual pack 
adults’ meeting.


• Recognize pack leaders periodically to show them that their efforts are appreciated.


• Maintain through the chartered organization representative and unit commissioner a close 
liaison with the district committee and its resources to help the organization


and the pack.


• Conduct an annual survey of boys for systematic recruiting of new boys from within the chartered organization.


Your unit commissioner will be glad to explain any of these responsibilities that you do


not understand.


What Do You Invest in Cub Scouting?
• One evening each month for the pack meeting


• One evening each month for the pack leaders’ planning meeting


• One evening each month for the Cub Scout leader’s roundtable


• Time spent in Cub Scout leader basic training sessions


• Cost of the Cub Scout leader uniform


• The registration fee


This adds up to a small investment, compared to the dividends you will receive. And of


course, the more you invest, the more you can expect to receive in return.


What Do You Receive in Return?
• An evening each month of fun and fellowship with pack families, sharing their pride in their


sons’ accomplishments


• The privilege of helping to enrich and strengthen families


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







229


• A chance to help boys learn good citizenship and help shape them into men with strength of


character who are sensitive to the needs of others


• The opportunity to help make a difference in the lives of boys, as they grow strong in mind and body


• A code to live by that will set a worthwhile example for both boys and adults


• The satisfaction of being a member of a worldwide movement, and pride in being publicly identified as a part of 
this organization by wearing the uniform, which is a visible means of showing that you believe in and stand up for 
its ideals and objectives. You will discover many other dividends that will enrich your life as you dedicate your time, 
talent, and enthusiasm to Cub Scouting.


Committee-Leader Specific Training


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







230 Leader Specific


NOTES!NOTES!







231


NOTES!NOTES!







232 Core Value Midway


Core Value Midway


JanuaryPositive Attitude  �  �  �  �  �  � 233
   Positive Attitude
   Fly high into the sky
February  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 235
   Resourcefulness
   From Litter to Glitter
March �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 239
   Compassion
   Aware and Care 
April �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 240
   Faith  
   Soaring the Skies
May  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 242
   Health & Fitness
   Backyard Fun 
June   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 244
   Perseverance 
   Go For The Gold 


July  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 246
   Courage 
   Under the Sea 
August   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 248
   Honesty 
   Play Ball
September  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 250
   Cooperation
   Under The Big Top
October �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 252
   Responsibility
   Dollars and Sense
November �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 255
   Citizenship 


December �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  � 259
   Respect 
Stars and Stripes


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







233Core Value Midway


January- Positive Attitude
Yes I can!!! 


Fly high into the sky
Where would the world be today if modern-day innovators did not have a positive attitude and 
gave on up their dreams? Often times it seems all too easy to stop trying and not continue to think 
positive through trials. On December 17, 1903 the world as we knew it changed when two brothers 
succeeded in their dream of flying.  After years of trial and tribulation Orville and Wilber Wright 
were finally able to take to the sky in flight.  


There are many characteristics of a positive attitude that were displayed by the Wright brothers. 
They remained optimistic that someday they would fly, found learning opportunities in their 
failures and remained motivated to accomplish their goals. These are valuable lessons that can be 
applied to lives of children today and give them the chance to display their own positive attitudes. 
In regards to flight the innovation did not cease in 1903, but ideas have developed in a manner far 
greater than that short flight.  As the years progressed, the pursuit of flight expanded into the ability 
for man to fly around the world in a few days time and even to the moon. 


Craft Idea #1 : Paper airplanes
The greatest thing about paper airplanes is the simplicity to construct; this makes it a great activity 
for children of all ages. There no need for scissors, glue or tape all you need is a piece of paper.  
With a short series of folds your airplane is the perfect flying machine. 


How to fold a paper airplane:
The most standard fold is known as the dart, it can be completed in 6 simple steps.


•	 Step 1- Fold the paper in half lengthwise, run nail along the fold to crease it sharply
•	 Step 2- Unfold the paper
•	 Step 3- Fold down the top corners towards the center line 
•	 Step 4- Fold the two newly created corners toward the center line
•	 Step 5- Fold the plane in half again along the center line from step one
•	 Step 6 - Create a wing crease by folding down the top part of each side


Your basic dart is complete. There are many more designs and paper airplanes folding techniques 
that can be found online. Better yet give the scouts the creative freedom to create their own 
masterpiece. 
 
**Paper airplanes can fulfill requirements in each level of cub scouts**  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







234 Core Value Midway


Craft Idea #2: Rockets
Alka-Seltzer rockets are fun to construct and even more fun to launch. They do require slightly 
more construction that a paper airplane.


 To construct the rocket you will need:
•	 A toilet paper roll or paper towel roll
•	 A nose tip (made from foam or paper)
•	 Construction paper
•	 Glue or tape
•	 35 mm film canister (white works best)


To construct the rockets 
•	 Step 1- Wrap construction paper around tube, glue or tape in place
•	 Step 2- Cut and attach construction paper fins to the base of the rocket 
•	 Step 3- Using construction paper cut a circle about 4 inches in diameter
•	 Step 4- Cut a slit from the outer edge to the center of the circle
•	 Step 5- Turn the circle into a cone and secure with tape or glue
•	 Step 6- Attach nose to top of rocket (can also use foam for rocket nose)
•	 Step 7- Attach film canister to bottom of rocket upside-down


**Rockets can fulfill requirements in each level of cub scouts**


Activity Idea: Take Flight
Paper airplanes can be flown indoors in a large room or gymnasium if weather is not permitting 
to be flown outside. Boys can have contests to see which plane flies farthest, longest, highest, etc. 
Great activity to involve scouts, families, and siblings alike.


Rockets usually require more room to due to the tendency to fly high and can often create a mess 
if launched indoors, for this reason outdoors is best. As with construction they involve additional 
work to take flight. Refer back to the film canister on the bottom for the following: Break a small 
piece of an antacid tablet, such as Alka-Seltzer, put it into the canister with a little water. Replace 
cap on canister turn over and watch the rocket launch into the sky. Again a wonderful activity to 
involve scouts their families and siblings.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







235Core Value Midway


February – Resourcefulness
From Litter to Glitter


As the saying goes…one man’s trash is another man’s treasure…please come 
with us on our adventure to see what treasures we can make out of trash.


Tin can alley:  over 75billion cans a year are made in the USA.  That’s a lot of cans.  If it weren’t for tin 
cans, you would never be able to eat some of the foods we now eat.  Machines that make tin cans were 
invented in the 1800s.  That invention changed our eating habits because now food can travel.  Canned 
corn is America’s favorite vegetable, next comes green beans, tomatoes and peas.  Fruits… are peaches, 
applesauce and pineapple.  Be sure to recycle tin cans…to make new tin cans.


Cool Can Chimes:                                                                                    Pig In The Pen Game:
Remove the lid and label from four or                                                 The pig is a ping-pong ball.  The pen is
five empty cans that will nest inside each                                           an oatmeal box with a paper towel roll
other.  Wash them and let them dry.  Use                                          for a handle.  Use an ice pick to poke 
holes 
a hammer and nail to make a hole in the                                            in the ball and tube and tie a cord or 
yarn
bottom of each.  Paint the outsides with                                             The idea is to hold the tube and try to 
while primer.  Use one or two coats of                                                swing the ball up and catch it in the box.
colored acrylic paint to cover the primer.
Stack the cans, beginning with the largest.
Measure a length of string or fish line, equal
to the height of the cans, plus 3 ft.  Knot a 
wooden ring onto one end of the string,
thread the other end up through the hole
in the smallest can. Decide how low you want                                   Arctic Animal Ornaments:
to can to hang, slide it up the string, tie a big                                    Frozen juice can lids. Wash and dry.
knot, slide the can down again until it rests on                                 Apply one coat of sealer to the lid.  Let
the knot. You can put a washer or a bead at the                               dry between each coat, colors and 
steps. 
knot.  Add the other cans in the same way,                                       Use your own creative ideas and designs 
making sure they overlap so they can chime.                                    or as pictured.  Wood shapes are used 
for
from the excess string, form a hanging loop                                      the heads arms and feet.  Snaps, 
markers,
above the largest can for hanging.                                                      jute or yarn, glue and felt for the trims...
                                                                                                                   See illustrations.
Tin Can Ringers:
Save the lids from different size cans for this
Project.  Punch a hole with a nail and hammer 
in each lid.  Then use string or fish line to tie 
each to a stick or dowel, making sure they are
close enough to clang against each other when
the wind blows.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







236 Core Value Midway


Christmas “Lid” Tree                                                                                           Photo Blocks 
(materials: paints: hunter green, true green,                                                    Materials:  wood scraps, sand
Yellow, snow flock, jar lids: 2 1/2, 2 ¾, 3 ¼                                                      paper, glue, saw and photo.
4 inch sizes or comparable.  Wood bead and                                                  As per drawing:  a 4x4 cut on a 
star for tree top..3 1in sq. blocks, 1 1 ¾ clay                                                   45o angle, or 1 1/4in. dowels.  It 
pot…assorted buttons for decorations.  Glue                                                 is your choice…rough barn wood                                       
gun. Espresso Bean paint for tree trunk.                                                        or walnut or pine.
Paint the items:  green for the lids and bead.                                                 Cut wood at about 45o angle, 
Star, yellow, blocks and clay pot Espresso Bean                                            smooth wood with sandpaper.
color.  Use sandpaper so sand center top of each                                           Mod-Podge the surface and let
lid where blocks and bead will be glued.  Wipe                                             dry.  Place an untrimmed photo
clean.  Glue bottom of clay pot to bottom of                                                  on the surface and glue.  When 
dry
biggest lid.  In same manner, glue blocks be-                                                trim close to the size of the wood.  
tween lids and bead to top of smallest lid.                                                     Seal with another coat of mod-
Glue star to bead.  Let dry.  Randomly glue                                                 Podge.  Use sand paper to smooth
Buttons to lid edges.  Apply snow flock to                                                     edges.
Edges of star and lids.  Let dry. 


Insect Apartment:
Materials:  2ltr. Bottle, sand or dirt, twigs and                                    
leaves.  
Cut off the upper third of a 2 liter bottle, fill with 
dirt or sand.  Create a hiding place using leaves 
or a paper cup.  Wrap a piece of nylon stocking
or cheesecloth around the spout of the bottle top.
And secure it with a rubber band…allowing air to                                       Leather-Look Things for Dad
Pass but not a bug.  Put your bug or ants inside,                                           Triangles of masking tape, 
Invert the bottle top and insert into the bottle                                                pressed and overlapped on an
bottom.                                                                                                                Item, give a leather-like look
                                                                                                                             when coated with shoe polish.
                                                                                                                              Cover item : tear off small pieces
                                                                                                                              of tape, starting at the bottom
Dad Rocks Paperweight                                                                                     of item, press on overlapping 
rows.
Materials:  med. and small rock, washed.                                                        The ragged edges will help give a
Yarn, tan felt, wiggle eyes, gold wire. Paints:                                                   rough effect.  At top, trim edges 
Flesh tones, red chalk.                                                                                         evenly or bring over top of item.
Glue small rock (nose) to center of large rock.                                                 Apply shoe polish with a soft cl
oth                                           
Choose skin color and paint face and nose.  Rub                                             brown or black paste.  Coat or
Red chalk on cheeks and tip of nose.  Glue eyes                                               cover with shellac or clear 
acrylic
above nose. Draw mouth with a marker.  Decorate                                         spray.
face as per illustration.  Attach felt to bottom of 
rock.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







237Core Value Midway


Mother’s Day Vase                                                                                          Valentines Day Ideas
Materials:  empty Kool-Aid jar or suitable jar.                                            Folding Hearts: cut a fat heart 
Beads, sequins or other materials for decorating.                                        From paper that is two sided…
Glue.                                                                                                                  Wrapping paper works well.
Decorate as illustrated.                                                                                    1.Lay the heart with the pattern
                                                                                                                            side down, fold in sides as shown.
                                                                                                                           2. Fold top down just above the 
                                                                                                                            middle. 3. Fold point up.  4.Turn 
Mister Snow Jingles                                                                                         envelop so flap is at the top and 
Hang near your front door to welcome guests.                                              Seal with a sticker.
Materials:  tin cans: choose your size…one from
a coffee can makes a very cool fellow…you will 
need two sizes (2 1/4.x2 ¼ and 4x2 ¼).  Metal 
primer, acrylic paint: white, dr. green, yellow, 
poppy orange, black.  Snow flock, spray glitter, 
cording 1 ½ yds.  2- beads ½ in. red wire, 12 in.
2-red tinsel poms,  ¼ in dowel 6 in.  Christmas                                              Rain Gauge
fabric, 2 1/2x 25 in.  Wood shapes, carrot, six                                                materials:  2ltr. Bottle, blue paint,
circles 3/8in. star, six jingle bells…see illustration                                         6in. ruler, recycled coffee can or 
for assembly and our table at Pow-Wow.                                                        Similar size clay pot, blue fine-tip
Punch hole in center bottom of each can.  Paint                                             perm. marker.
inside and out, with primer, 2 coats.  Paint outside                                        Cut top 1/3 of bottle…tape the 
cut
only, one coat of white…apply snow flock.  Apply                                          edges.  Make a measuring guide,
2 coats of varnish.  Wood pieces:  2 coats each,                                               with marker in 1/2in. 
increments
circles, beads black, nose, poppy orange, one                                                  from bottom to top of bottle.  
star green, one yellow.  Please see our table                                                     Decorate with raindrops if 
desired.
for assembly.                                                                                                       Invert top of bottle into bottom       
                                                                                                                              so it acts like a funnel. Place in 
Tin Can Lanterns                                                                                               coffee can or clay pot to stabilize.
Water must be frozen overnight in can for this                                              
project to work.
Draw design all around the outside of the can.
Place can on towel to keep it from slipping.  Place
nail on design and tap the nail head gently with the
hammer until the holes are made.  When finished 
with the design…dump out the ice and dry.  If you
want to paint the can, now is the time.  You can stand 
small flashlight in can or ask an adult to help you with 
a votive candle or spookier…use a glow stick in can. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







238 Core Value Midway


Milk Carton Waterwheel                                                                      Rain Stick               
This is a fun way to play in the water on a hot                                    Collect from a fabric store, the heavy
sunny day.  You will need a milk carton, pencil,                                 cardboard rolls that fabric come on.
scissors, string and water.  With the pencil,                                         Cut the size you want…12in. to 18in.
poke a hole in each of the bottom left corners.                                     makes a good one.  Nail into the tube
Poke a hole in the very top of the milk carton                                      in rows all around the tube and going 
for hanging up.  Tie a string to hang up on a                                       down the sides.  It may take a hundred
branch or post.  Have a friend hold the holes                                      or more.  When completed, cover your
while filling with water.  When full, let go of                                       tube with contact paper to keep the 
nails
the holes and watch the carton spin…you have                                   secure and to make it look like wood.
created a waterwheel.                                                                             Close one end with a piece of cloth or 
                                                                                                                   leather.  Pour in rice or wheat, lentils or
                                                                                                                   a mixture of all.  Close other end as per
                                                                                                                   the other end.  Decorate with yarn and 
                                                                                                                   feathers.


Rain Sticks…see our many versions                                                    Other items we will feature at our table:
From the Muppets Big Book of Crafts…                                            Egg carton bells
Materials:  20 small yogurt empty cups                                              Laundry soap cup castanets
(save 2 lids, discard the rest)  duct tape                                              Pumpkin can game
1 c. uncooked rice, googly eyes 10 sets,                                               Sucker toss game (gallon milk bottle)


colored felt, colored tissue paper.                                            Flower vase from Kool-Aid container                                       
Cut out the bottoms of all 20 cups.  Cut                                              Metal to the Petal
fringe strips around the tops of 10 cups. 
Bend the fringe to the inside of the con-
tainers.  Slide on fringed container inside
each of the un-fringed cups, then stack
the un-fringed cups, duct taping 
them together as you go.  Alternate 
stacking bottom to bottom and top to top
and make sure that the cups on the very
ends of the rain stick are both open-end out.
Place a plastic lid on one open end of the 
Rain stick and secure with tape. Pour rice
Into your rain stick and put the other
Plastic lid on the other end of the rain stick.
Secure with tape.  Glue the eyes on each set.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







239Core Value Midway


March- Compassion/Aware and Care
This subject is an awesome opportunity for our Cubs to learn!
A great focus for this theme is learning about people with disabilities.
Here is how you can explain different disabilities to Cub Scouts:


Mental Illness: 


•	 Have a speaker with a mental disability come and interact with the boys. Let them ask 
questions


Physical Disabilities: 


•	 To simulate a physical disability like cerebral palsy or others where a loss of balance is pri-
mary, tape a line of masking tape on the floor as if it was a balance beam. Have each child 
close her eyes and spin her around in circles a few times, and then have her open her eyes 
and try to walk down the line and see how far she can get without stepping off.


•	 To simulate a pain related disability you can get smooth pebbles to put in the heel of each 
boy’s shoe.


•	 Wheelchairs are always fun for the boys so try to make a difficult obstacle course with 
wheelchairs.


•	 To simulate immobility you can duct tape paint stirrers to the boy’s legs.


•	 Simulate a missing arm by having your scouts make a sandwich with one hand.


Blindness:
•	 Print out the braille alphabet and make the Cub Scout Oath, Law and Motto. You can easi-


ly make dot by doing hot glue dots.


•	 Blind fold your Cubs and lead them through an obstacle course.


 Deafness:
•	 Teach the cubs the alphabet in American Sign Language (ASL).


•	 Teach your cubs the Cub Scout Oath, Law and Motto in ASL.


•	 Teach a simple Scout song in ASL.


The key for these activities is to reach out to your leaders and parents. 
You would be amazed at the help you can get when you reach out to 
those around you.
Don’t forget to have fun!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







240 Core Value Midway


April-Faith 
Soaring the Skies


Faith: This might be a good time to work on your religious emblem. You can 
find them in the insignia guide on pg 25-26.


Faith is knowing the sun will come up. Talk to boys about what they think 
Faith is.  It’s spring time which means new beginnings. This is April when 
things begin again.  Like planting flowers and watching birds nest.  It’s 
knowing things will work out even if there are problems.


Experiment with color or just doing different projects and see how they come 
out. Test your faith!


 It’s also a good time to talk about conservation and making the world a better 
place to live in. Service projects around the neighborhood, parks and where 
you live.


Soaring the Skies could be taking to the skies, as in airplanes.  Make paper 
airplanes and have a contest to see how far they fly. Go to the airport or talk 
about other machines that fly. You can make airplanes out of craft sticks or 
candy. Check Google out. 


Then there are birds; that’s what I know being a falconer. My birds are just 
going into the molt (from April to September) which means they shed their 
feathers and grow new ones so they can hunt and fly better.


The Zoo (801-582-1631) has a bird show but it doesn’t start until May.  The 
Tracy Aviary (801-596-8500) has a bird program. They have a lot of birds 
to see, not just the show they put on.  Birds of Prey and Skymasters also 
do a bird program. You can go to Ogden’s nature center (801-621-7595) or 
Hutching Museum in Lehi (801-768-7104) to talk about birds.


For Pack meeting or Den you meeting you could have different birds on the 
wall with the letter of their names mixed up, so they have to unscramble 
them. You could have each den learn about a bird and then have them report 
and do a yell or even the bird call.  Go bird watching in your neighborhood or 
at Red Butte Garden & Arboretum (801-581-4747). You could even go to the 
park.  Birds are everywhere!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







241Core Value Midway


The following websites are not only good for this month’s theme but for 
whatever you may need. Google has everything you need and more. It may 
take a little time to find what you want.  You can find word searches and 
games too!  So here goes:


Search: Soaring the Skies, Cub scout ideals, www.retired scouter.com, www.
scoutermom.com/cubscouts, www.pinterest.com/cherylhash/soaring-the-
skies, www.scouting.org/filestore/cubscoutmeetingmyguide/


Skymasters, Ben Woodruff works out of Hutching Museum in Lehi (801-768-
7104).


Birds of Prey: Ross and Susan Pope 801-967-1037


So enjoy this month and maybe I’ll see you with my birds.


If you have troubles and can’t find information, call me and I’ll help you out. 
(801-967-1037). shewhofliesbirds@gmail.com


Soar High with the birds.  Catch you on the fly!


Susan Pope(shewhofliesbirds)


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.scouting.org/filestore/cubscoutmeetingmyguide/





242 Core Value Midway


May Health & Fitness/Backyard Fun
Cub Scout Relay
Equipment: make 2 copies, each a different color, of the action 
slips below; cut them apart
Space: large grassy area or gym
Players: any number, divided into 2 teams
Directions: Place one set of action slips on a table or chair and 
the other set on the opposite end of the table or another chair. 
Line up Cubs on one side of the area in two teams opposite 
the action slips. On the signal go, a Cub from each team runs 
to the action slips for his team, chooses the top one, reads it, 
and follows the directions. After completing the action slip, the 
Cub runs back to his team touching the next person in line to 
go. Play until all have had 1 or 2 turns.


Action Slips
Make Cub Scout sign and shout “Do your best”
Make Cub Scout sign and repeat the promise
1 forward roll, 1 backward roll
5 jumping jacks
Jump as high as you can 3 times
3 girl kicks with each leg
3 sit ups
3 push ups
Crab walk back to start
Frog leap back to start
Elephant walk back to start
Hop on 1 foot half way back, then change feet
Sing ABC song loud while jumping up and down
Run backwards to the start
Spin 3 times shouting, “I am a Cub Scout”
Skip back to the start
Frog stand for 5 seconds (Wolf Ach. 1k)
3 log rolls, then gallop back to start


Deck of Cards Workout
Equipment: 1 deck of playing cards
Space: large enough area for Cubs to exercise
Players: any number; teams, or individuals
Directions: Give each card suit an exercise: 
diamonds=jumping jacks, hearts=sit ups, clubs=pushups, 
spades=toe touches. The number on the card will represent 
the reps of the exercise with the King=12 reps, Queen=11 
reps, Jack=10 reps. The ace will be a rest. Start with the deck 
face down and flip one card over at a time to find out the 
exercise and number of reps to be done.  


Sock Tag
Equipment: Cubs’ shoes and socks
Space: medium grassy playing area or gym
Players: any number; played as individuals
Directions: Cubs take their shoes off and pull their socks 
slightly off. Cubs crawl around on hands and knees and try 
to steal the other Cubs’ socks. Once both socks are stolen, 
they’re out. Last person with a sock on wins.


Look-n-Sniff Guessing 
Equipment: 6-8 jars baby food- preferably fruits and 
vegetables, marker, paper, pencils 
Space: table 
Players: any number; teams, or individuals
Directions: Remove the labels from the jars. With a 
permanent marker, number the jars 1 through 8 and label the 
corresponding labels the same as the jars. Use the labels as 
an answer key. Cubs examine and smell the baby food jars 
then guess what each one is and write it on a paper. The Cub 
with the most correct answers wins. 
Pick-a-Stick 


Equipment: large craft sticks, tape, copy of the labels for the 
craft sticks listed below, storage container


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







243Core Value Midway


Space: large area in or outside 
Players: an even number of Cubs
Directions: Cut out and tape each label to a craft stick, place 
in the container. To play choose a stick and have the Cubs 
complete the activity on it.


Labels for Craft Sticks
Elbow Wrestle
See Bear Ach. 16b
Spin X 3
Spin 3 times one way and 3 times the other way 
Foot Push
See Bear Ach. 16b
10 Push Ups


One-Legged Hand Wrestle
See Bear Ach. 16b
High Cincos
High 5’s to 5 people.
Jump Rope
Jump rope for 30 seconds
Stand Up Back-to-Back Push
See Bear Ach. 16b
Be Banana Song
It’s a song, search it online.
20 Jumping Jacks


Beach Ball Fun
Pass around a beach ball
Hand Wrestle
See Bear Ach. 16


10 Cherry Pickers
1. Jump up to the ceiling, 2. Push up position, 
3. Frog position. That counts as 1, do 9 more. 
One-Person Push Over Line
See Bear Ach. 16b
Pull Over
See Bear Ach. 16b
Shoulder to Shoulder
Say 2 body parts, leg to hand, hip to knee, etc. Cubs find a 
partner and put those body parts together. Call another. Cubs 
find a new partner.
Elbow Wrestle
See Bear Ach. 16b
Seated Back-to-Back Push
See Bear Ach. 16b
Toe Touches
Cubs do one toe touch for each letter of his first and last name 
as he spells it out loud.


Balloon Splash Bash
Equipment: regular balloons, string, garden hose, plastic bat
Space: medium grassy playing area 
Players: any number; played as individuals
Directions: Fill balloons with water. Tie ends. Tie a string to the 
end of each balloon. Tie end of string to tree limb or structure 
so that each balloon is free hanging, like a piñata. Cubs line up 
and take turns, swinging the bat trying to burst a balloon, one 
swing per turn.  Make sure the other Cubs stay back from the 
batter. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







244 Core Value Midway


June Perseverance Go For The GoldJUNE 2014               THEME:  PERSEVERANCE
THEME MIDWAY


Why Go for the Gold for the Core Value Perseverance. Perseverance means sticking with 
something and not giving up, even if it is difficult. This month’s theme, “Go for the Gold,” will help 


Scouts learn and experience the perseverance gold miners had long ago as they try to obtain 
treasures on their pack Go for the Gold Day!


Quotations 
Our greatest weakness lies in giving up. The most certain way to succeed is always 
to try just one more time.  Thomas A. Edison
Gathering Activity
Golden Phrases
Each phrase is answered by something with the word *gold* in it (example  OIL;  answer is black 
gold)


Pack and Den Activities
Panning for gold, Fishing (bring your own fishing equipment), 
Wagon Rides, Canoeing, etc 


1. Crackers
2. Something in your grandpa’s mouth
3. A state nickname
4. Something to live by
5. Something that should not be missed
6. What was Jason after
7. Where a “beverage” is made
8. Don’t jump off this
9. California Scout Council
10. What Mr. Smith translated
11. He said “a verbal contract ain’t worth the 


paper it is written on”
12. A candy bar
13. Children’s books
14. Held in February


Answers to the Pre-Opener
1.  Golden Grahams  
2.  Gold tooth              
3.  Golden State
4.  Golden Rule
5.  golden opportunity
6.  Golden Fleece
7.  Golden CO
8.  Golden Gate Bridge
9.  Golden Council
10.  Golden Plates
11.  Samuel Goldwyn
12.  silence
13.  a cup of gold
14. Golden Books
15. Blue And Gold


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX



http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/thomasaed149049.html

http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/thomasaed149049.html

http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/thomasaed149049.html





245Core Value Midway


Song


SCOUT GOLD RUSH
Tune: My Darling Clementine
Lyrics by Ron Brown


 
Games


Steal the Treasure  
• 1 Gold Nugget  
• 1 Blindfold  
• 1 Chair (optional)  


The cubs sit in a circle around a chair. Place the gold nugget under the chair and sit a blindfolded 
cub ‘guard’ on the chair. Nominate a cub to try to steal the gold nugget without the guard noticing. 
If the guard hears him approaching he can point straight at the cub. He is detected and must 
return to his seat. Nominate another player to nominate him (pointing to nominate is best otherwise, 
the guard may know which way the cub is approaching from). Once a cub successfully picks up the 
gold nugget the guard (without blindfold) chases the villain round the circle once and back to the 
villain’s seat. If the villain gets back without getting caught he becomes the guard.   To make this 
game work the guard must point directly at the moving cub waving an arm around in the general 
direction is not enough. 
Prospectors and Bears
Two prospectors are walking through the forest when they suddenly encounter a grizzly bear! The 
bear rears up on his hind legs and lets out a terrifying roar. They’re both frozen in their tracks. 
The first prospector whispers, “I’m sure glad I wore my running shoes today.” 
“It doesn’t matter what kind of shoes you’re wearing, you’re not gonna outrun that bear,” replies the 
second. 
“I don’t have to outrun the bear, I just have to outrun YOU,” he answers. 


Years age, (one-hundred fifty)
 Men moved west in  search of 


gold!
 Some found plenty, some not 


any;
Some were hot, and some were 


cold!
 (CHORUS)
 Scouts can be like forty-niners, 
 


Searching for a treasure chest,
 Hunting ways of helping others,


 Finding ways to do our best.
 (CHORUS)
 Gold may glitter, gold may 


sparkle,
 Golden nuggets men might 


spend;
 But more precious than a gold 


mine
 Is when you find a new friend!
            (CHORUS)


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







246 Core Value Midway


July Courage Under the Sea


Every boy loves to make mobiles. Fish, Fish, Fish. It is really fun. Get your hangers, bend them to the shape you want.
Now lets have some fun finding out what kind of courage the boys want to have.


Write I have courage to ____________ on each fish.
Here are some examples.
I have courage to stand up for the truth.
I have courage to stand up to bullies
I have courage to be kind.
I have courage to make new friends.


Look up in the Bear and Webelos book on how to make a mobile.
Bear requirement Elective #9 Art
Webelos: Artist #3


UNDER THE SEA JULY
COURAGE


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







247Core Value Midway


Don’t let your ship sink
say no to
Drugs


Be a star, tell the truth


Have courange
stand up for 


others


Have courage
to make new 
friends


Dive into courage


Get hooked
on courage


have courage
to stand
up to
bullies


Every boy wants to belong, sometimes he may want to follow the group. We need to teach the boys to have
courage to do what is right . . . 


WHAT IS UNDER THE SEA
COURAGE


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







248 Core Value Midway


August - Honesty


PLAY BALL


August - Honesty


PLAY BALL
Why Play Ball for the Core Value Honesty. It is easy to forget how important it is to 
be honest when one is playing a game and really wanting to win; however, a Cub Scout 
is a person who always tells the truth and is worthy of trust� This month we reinforce 
how important it is to be honest, especially when playing baseball with friends�
Quotations


Quotations contain the wisdom of the ages, and are a great source of inspiration 
for Cubmaster’s minutes, material for an advancement ceremony or an insightful 
addition to a Pack Meeting program cover�


Gathering Activity
How Many?


Fill a clear container with tinfoil-wrapped chocolate balls that look like 
baseballs counting as you fill. Everyone makes a guess on a slip a paper 
(be sure they include their first and last name) as to how many “baseballs” 
are in the jar� The winner gets the container and all of the chocolate� Of 
course, the winner may want to share�                                                                     


Pack and Den Activities
Hold a Softball Game  
Attend a Baseball Game as a Den or a Pack�
Make a sports corkboard to put in your meeting place�
Make hand held fans to take when you attend the “game”�
Make a card collector’s treasure chest�
After your den learns the proper rules etc�, teach a group of younger children 


how to play�
Play baseball using a balloon as the ball and a pool noodle as the bat�


Song


Rotten Reeboks (tune: Clementine)
Rotten Reeboks, dirty sweat socks, 
Generating toxic fumes, 
I’ve seen flies dead, struck in mid air 
Fatal venture to his room�
In my brother’s bedroom closet 
Stinkarooning like refuse 
Dwelt a size 10 pair or sneakers 
With a smell you couldn’t lose�
Aging tennis, in a corner 
Turning the air a bluish green,
Hope the county doesn’t visit 
They’d condemn us sight unseen�
I’ve tried bug balm, lemon air scent 
Even spray that smells like pine, 


Must be something that can cut it, 
Something strong, like turpentine�
Even weirdo, crazy mutt dog 
Who has breath you can’t adore, 
Makes a wide turn, cuz his eyes burn, 
Every time he nears the door� 
 “What’s the big deal?” asks ol’ big foot 
None of his friends notice it� 
“Proves they’re brain dead,” says my sister, 
“Doesn’t surprise me a bit�”
 “Not to worry,” says my father 
“Could be money after all, 
“Pentagon might pay a bundle 
“For the secret to it all�”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







249Core Value Midway


Skit
Bubble Gum 
Equipment: 1 chair
Preparation: Practice, but there are no 
lines�  But the more the Cubs ham up the 
action, the better the skit.  
1st scout walks out to the chair, takes his 
gum out of his mouth, places it on the back 
of the chair, then walks off�
2nd scout walks out to the chair, leans his 
hand on the back, finds the gum on his 
hand, and, totally disgusted, wipes it on 
the seat of the chair and walks off�
3rd scout walks up to the chair and sits 
down� He realizes with great disgust that 
the gum is stuck to his bum� Disgusted, 
he peels it off, throws it to the ground and 
walks off�
4th scout walks out to the chair, then 
realizes he’s got gum stuck to his shoe� 
With great disgust, he peels it off, sticks it 
to the back of the chair, and walks off�
1st scout comes back, walks up to the 
chair, peels it off, sticks it in his mouth and 
walks on�  


Game 
Button Baseball Game
Find a box lid that measures about twelve 
by ten inches�  Draw a baseball diamond 
on top of the lid�  Cut out circles as shown 
so that small nut, cups or paper muffin-
pan liners will fit in them.  Each player 
has three buttons for each turn “at bat�” 
Standing about six feet away, he tosses 
them at the holes�  If he misses all the 
holes, it is a strike� If the game is played 
as a team game, “base runners” advance 
the appropriate number of bases for each 
hit� If the game is played by individuals, a 
player scores 1 for a single, 2 for a double, 
3 for a triple, and 4 for a home run�
Australian Circle Game
Equipment: 2 Tennis balls (Could be 
played with softballs but tennis balls will 
hurt less�)
A player stands in the center of a circle 
holding a tennis ball� He tries to throw this 
ball to someone in the circle who will drop 
it� 
Another ball is also being passed around 
the circle from one boy to another�
The player in the center may throw his ball 
to anyone, but he usually throws it to the 
boy about to receive the ball being passed 
around the circle� 
If either ball is dropped, the one who 
dropped it changes places with the boy in 
the center


If you were locked in a room with nothing but a baseball bat, how would you get out?
 Take three strikes and you’re out�
What is the difference between an umpire and a pickpocket?
 An umpire watches steals; a pickpocket steals watches
Baseball Cheer:  Pretend to throw the ball up and pretend to hit it with the bat� After you 
hit the ball, shout “Home Run!” or swing three times, and holler “You’re Out!”


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







250 Core Value Midway


UNDER THE BIG TOP


September Core Value: COOPERATION


UNDER THE BIG TOP


September Core Value: COOPERATION
 


Cooperation: Being helpful and working together with others toward a common goal.
Cooperation is a key element in teamwork. 
Cub Scouts will gain a better understanding of the importance of supporting each other as they 
play games and learn new skill. At the circus all of the workers must work together to put on 
a safe and exciting show. They must cooperate. Just as the circus workers work together, Cub 
Scouts will work together this month to create their show, “Under the Big Top”.


Elephant Slide Instructions: Use Gray Foam, Naugahyde, Leather or Felt. Trace on the felt. Cut 
dotted lined next to eyes on face. Cut out the ears and fold ears and slide through the face making 
the loop in back with the face in the front. Give a little curve to the trunk and the ears. 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







251Core Value Midway


Monkey Chains
On cardstock or heavy paper, reproduce several large, medium and small 
sized monkeys. If you draw the monkeys freehand, make sure that the 
hands, feet, and tails have deep curves for hanging in a chain.


Cut out the monkeys and draw in their faces and features. Color them 
with paint, crayons, or markers.


Make a monkey chain by hooking one monkey beneath another by a 
hand, foot or tail. Hang the chain from a light fixture, floor lamp, or 
anything that protrudes from a background.


Monkey Chains can be used as a pre-opening game, an incentive, or a 
craft activity. The boy with the longest chain gets to choose his treat first, 
etc. Be creative and have fun!


Balloon-Nose Clowns
Materials Needed: paper plates, balloons, crayons, paint, yarn, 
paper to cut out, glue


Draw a funny face clown on the back of a white paper 
pate. Add the features, with exception of the nose, using 
crayons, paints, or paper cut out.


Make a small hole in the center of the face where 
the nose should be. Blow up a round balloon and 


tie the end to prevent the air from escaping. Push 
the tied end of the balloon through the hole and fasten in 
back with tape.


Add hair, ears, hats, ruffles and frills using crepe 
paper, feathers, yarn, cotton balls, paper cut outs, 
etc.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







252 Core Value Midway


October - Responsibility
Dollars and Sense


We learn to be responsible for certain jobs, our own belongings, things in our home, and the 
property of others. We should all learn how to be responsible with our money as well. Not only 
is it wise to learn how money works, it is equally important to learn about the responsibilities 
that go along with having money. It all comes down to dollars and sense.


Games: 


T-Shirt Relay Game      
 This Game is meant for Cub Scouts.


Required:


1 extra large t-shirt for each team. 
A judge for each team.


Notes:


The judge should make sure the shirt is pulled all the way down on each scout 
and no short-cuts are taken in the heat of competition. 
This works on teamwork and everyone is involved the whole time.


Instructions:


Teams line up in single file. 
The shirt is given to the first scout in each line. 
On ‘Go’ signal, the scout puts the shirt on and then holds hands with the next scout in line, fac-
ing the scout. 
All the other scouts work the shirt from one scout to the next so he is wearing it. He then turns 
and holds hands with the next scout, and so on. 
Teams need to have the same number of players or some need to put the shirt on twice.


Regrouping is a difficult concept for some children to understand. Using manipulatives helps, but 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







253Core Value Midway


I find that using money makes it easier for the 
children to visualize the exchange of ones, tens 
and hundreds. It also connects them with real 
examples of Math in their world. 
When referring to trading ones for tens and tens 
for hundreds, I tell the students that they need 
to go to the bank. They need to deposit their 
pennies and get a dime or deposit their dimes 
and get a dollar.


When referring to changing a ten into ones, I 
use the analogy of going to the bank and trading 
a dime for 10 pennies.


Math:


Feed Me Activity   


1
1 1


1 10 10


10 10


10 10


10 10


10 10


1 1


1 1


1 1


1 1


1 1


Regrouping Using Money
(Place Value)


Materials: Pennies
Dimes
Dollars


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







254 Core Value Midway


Required:


Plastic bowls full of snacks - raisins, peanuts, M&Ms, fish crackers, anything small like that.  
Plastic spoon for each scout  
1 foot ruler for each scout  
3 foot strip of cloth for each scout


Preparation:


Set the bowls of snacks out on the table (preferably in a different room).  
Using a strip of cloth, tie a ruler to the top of each scout’s right arm at the elbow - this is to 
make the arm stiff and straight so it cannot bend.


Notes:


Good teamwork and problem solving activity.


Hand each scout a spoon in their right hand.  
Tell them it is time for snack, but there is a twist.  
All of them have broken their right arm and their left arm has been bitten off by a mad shark.  
Tell everyone to have a seat around the table and enjoy their snack.  
 
The ruler is just to remind them that their arm cannot move - if a scout tries to bend his arm, 
remind him that the arm is broken and has to stay straight.  
What you would hope would happen is that the scouts realize they cannot eat any of the food - 
alone! If no one figures out that they can feed the scout across from them after a few minutes, 
drop a hint or two to help them along.  
Once someone feeds someone else, make sure that spoon is only used for that person - have 
some extra spoons just in case. 


Craft: 
Teach the value of money by making a piggy bank 
from re-cycled materials - like an empty prescription 
or vitamin bottle with a slit in the lid, an icing tub 
or margarine container with a small slit in the lid or 
a water bottle made to look like a pig. Attach one of 
these saying to the bank. 


A penny saved is a 
penny earned.
Benjamin Franklin


“Never spend your money be-
fore you have it.” 
Thomas Jefferson


“Save a part of your income and 
begin now, for the man with a 


surplus controls circumstances 
and the man without a surplus is 


controlled by circumstances.”
 -Henry H Buckley


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







255Core Value Midway


November – Citizenship


America the Beautiful
Have the boys write a play about America. You could include the founding of the country, what 
life was like at different time periods in our history and what life is like today. Have them act it 
out and videotape their play. Present the play at Pack Meeting.


From Near and Far
Our country is a melting pot of cultures and religions, which is very rare throughout the rest of 
the world. This gives us an opportunity to teach our kids about acceptance and working together 
as one big community to strengthen our country. For Packmeeting have someone from your 
community that grew up or has lived in another country come to speak to your boys and families. 
Have them talk about what kids do in their country, how they dress, what they eat etc. Play 
games popular in the country and have food to try from the country for your treat.


Our Heroes
Have a super hero pack meeting. Make posters of superheroes in your community like firemen, 
teachers, community leaders as well as parents of the boys. Talk about how it doesn’t take 
superpowers to be a superhero. Everyone can be a superhero to someone by serving them 
or sticking up for them when there are bullies etc. Do a skit showing them how they can be 
superheroes too.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







256 Core Value Midway


Service projects 


• Tie fleece blankets for primary Children’s hospital or your local hospital to be given away to 
children that need to spend time in the hospital.


• Collect coats, shoes and school supplies for your local food bank to be given out to kids 
when school starts.


• Clean up a park near you.
• Collect soda can pop-tops and give them to the Ronald McDonald house or Primary 


Children’s. 
• Take thank you treats to fire stations or police stations with notes of appreciation.
• Make Valentine’s for senior Citizens.
• Donate kids’ craft kits to a local children’s hospital. There are great, inexpensive ideas for 


kits online.
• Decorate placemats for Meals on Wheels.
• Have a garage sale for your favorite cause.
• Plan a day of fun with crafts, games movie and popcorn etc with a local children’s home or 


refugee center.
• Bring gently used board games and stuffed animals to a local women’s shelter or children’s 


home.
• Write a letter to your elected official about a cause you believe in.
• Collect DVD’s and videogames you no longer use or watch and donate them to a children’s 


hospital for patients.
• Volunteer at an animal shelter – play with the dogs and cats, help to brush them and clean up 


after them.
• Stuff warm socks with snacks and fruit to give to a homeless shelter for distribution to the 


homeless.
• Secretly rake leaves or shovel snow for a neighbor in need.
• Hold a car wash to raise money for a favorite charity.
• Go through the books you’ve grown out of and donate them to the waiting room of a local 


dentist, hospital or doctor.
• Donate your gently used stuffed animals to a local firehouse or police station to give to 


children in emergencies.
• Find out when the next sporting event is for your local Special Olympics teams, and go there 


as cheerleaders for the participants with signs, balloons, and noisemakers.
• Promote bike-riding and carpooling with posters or flyers at your school to reduce traffic and 


air pollution.
• Make bedtime bags for children at shelter, or going into foster care: Each bag has a stuffed 


animal, a blanket, a book and a toothbrush.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







257Resources


Take a Trip to “Honesty-ville”  
 


 Purpose:  To give the children the opportunity to practice being honest and 
serving in their communities as they visit different shops and places in the 
town of Honesty-ville�  


Preparation:  Several stations could be set up to represent different shops 
and places in Honesty-ville�  “Honesty dollars” could be reproduced and 
given to use as currency�  Children could be divided into groups according 
to age and rotated to the various stations�  


Procedure:  The children receive “honesty dollars” or pay “honesty dollars” 
as they participate in various activities�  The money can then be used to 
purchase their refreshments from the general store�  Here are a few ideas to 
get you started�  


Stations:  


1�  County Courthouse - “Tell the Truth”  
Younger children could be asked to distinguish between true and false 
statements by holding up “true” and “false” signs as a judge asks questions 
such as “pigs are green” or “cows fly” or “Valentine’s Day is in February”.  If 
they get all the correct, the are paid honesty dollars�  
The older children could play the part of a courtroom jury in a game called 
“To Tell the Truth�”  Three people pose as witnesses, all claiming to be a 
certain famous honest person (i�e� Abraham Lincoln)�  Only one is the real 
person�  The other two are imposters�  The children are allowed to question 
the three until they determine who the real honest person is�  If they guess 
correctly, they are paid honesty dollars�  


2.  Employment Office - “An honest day’s pay for an honest day’s work.”  
Clean your room game - The object of this game is to “clean the bedroom” 
in a certain amount of time�  The area to be cleaned includes a “bed” to 
be made ( a rumpled blanket in an area marked to size of the blanket), a 
table to dust (with a pile of dirt or sand on top� If you don’t want to use dirt 
you could use feathers or something else that could represent dirt without 
making the mess�), and scattered clothes to be folded and put in drawers (a 
box maybe) or match socks and put them away�  The child must straighten 
the blanket to fit in the square that has been marked, brush the dust from 
the table to dustpan and pick up clothes and put away�  They are paid 
according to allotted time�  


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







258 Resources


3�  Central Park - “Respect the Property of Others”  
Use a long board as a balance beam.  Along each edge, place cardboard flowers 
with a sign reading, “Keep off the flowers.”  The children are to walk the balance 
beam without falling off�  If they stay on, they collect a dollar�  If they fall off, they 
must pay a dollar for damages incurred�  
Older children might be asked to walk the beam backwards or blindfolded to 
increase the challenge�


4�  Refreshments served at the General Store�


Found at http://www�sugardoodle�info/Honesty/A%20trip%20to%20Honestyville�
shtml


Skit idea: The lie monster. Have something happen between 2 people where one person helps 
another person.  Then have other people one by one walk up and ask what is going on. The 
person that helped tells a story about what happened. Each time someone new comes up the 
helper makes his story bigger and more outlandish as he goes. Each time he tells a lie he puts on 
something representing a monster ie: hairy hands, funny teeth, hairy wig, or a funny nose. The 
last person he tells the truth to and the listener then says “I don’t believe lie monsters.”


Then talk about honesty and how telling lies makes people not believe us, even if our story is 
true.


Treat: a sugar cookie with a spider web drawn on it and a plastic spider put on it. Put a sign near 
the cookies that say “Tell the truth and avoid getting caught in a web of lies”.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







259Core Value Midway


December - Respect
Stars and Stripes


A Modest Flag Retirement Ceremony


Background and Preparation:  A small, modest fire is built and lit in advance, being 
given sufficient time to burn down almost to coals.  


Scout #1; The following is a direct quotation from the beginning of Title 36, Section 176, 
of the United States Code: “No disrespect should be shown to the flag of the United 
States of America;” 


Furthermore, Paragraph (K) of this same Title 36, Section 176, states: “The flag, when it 
is in such condition that it is no longer a fitting emblem for display, should be destroyed 
in a dignified way, preferably by burning.” 


(Ceremony team enters in silence, displaying unfurled flag to the assembled gathering) 


Scout #2: (Recites entire following prose while flag’s colors are being separated): 


I AM YOUR FLAG  
I was born on June 14, 1777  
I am more than cloth just shaped into a design�  
I am the refuge of the world’s oppressed people�  
I am the silent sentinel of freedom�  
I am the emblem of the greatest sovereign nation on earth�  
I am the inspiration for which American Patriots gave their lives and fortunes�  
I have led your sons into battle from Valley Forge to the blistering desert of the Arabian 
Peninsula�  
I walked in silence with each of your honored dead to their final resting place beneath 
the silent white crosses row upon row�  
I have flown through peace and war, strife and prosperity, and amidst it all I have been 
respected� 


“Old Glory” is my nickname; proudly I wave on high� Honor me, respect me, defend me 
with your lives and your fortunes� Never let my enemies tear me down from my lofty 
position lest I never return. Keep alight the fires of patriotism, strive earnestly for the 
spirit of democracy� Worship Eternal God and keep His commandments, and I shall 
remain the bulwark of peace and freedom for all people� For, I AM YOUR FLAG� 


(Stop here until the flag’s colors are completely separated; then continue). 


Scout#2: My red stripes symbolize the blood spilled in defense of the glorious nation� 


Scout #1: LET US RETIRE THE RED STRIPES� HAND SALUTE! (Red stripes are now 
placed on the burning fire) 


Scout #1: TWO! 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







260 Core Value Midway


Scout #2: My white stripes signify the burning tears shed by Americans who lost their 
sons� 


Scout #1: LET US RETIRE THE WHITE STRIPES� HAND SALUTE! (White stripes are 
now placed on the burning fire.) 


Scout #1: TWO! 


Scout #2: My blue field is indicative of God’s heaven under which we fly. My stars, 
clustered together, unify 50 States as one for God and Country� 


Scout #1: LET US RETIRE THE BLUE FIELD WITH STARS� HAND SALUTE! (Blue 
field with stars are now placed on the burning fire.) 


Bugler: (Plays “Taps” while colors are being destroyed�) 


Scout #1: TWO! 


(Ceremony team files out in silence) 


NOTE:  This may be done outdoors as part of a campfire or indoors if you have access 
to a fireplace.  


For a flag that is too big, as ceremony is going the flag is cut.  The red and white stripes 
are separated from the blue field of stars and then separated.  The field of stars always 
stays together as one whole piece� Once they are separated they are retired individually 


at the designated spots in the ceremony�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







261Webelos Midway


Webelos Midway


Aquanaut  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  262


Athlete  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  263


Fitness  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  264


Sportsman  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  265


Artist   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  266


Scholar  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  267


Showman �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  268


Traveler �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  269


Citizen �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  271


Communicator  �  �  �  �  �  �  272


Family Member �  �  �  �  �  �  273


Readyman   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  274


Craftsman   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  276


Engineer  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  277


Handyman  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  278


Scientist   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  279


Forester  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  280


Geologist  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  281


Naturalist  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  282


Outdoorsman   �  �  �  �  �  �  283


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







262 Webelos Midway


AQUANAUT 


Water safety is always a big concern for cubs and scouts alike.  Usually these 
training and achievement items are taken care of at day camp, but they can be 
done in the den as well.  Always remember safety whenever there is water in-
volved!


Life Jacket Contest (PFD):  
How fast can you find the correct size life jacket and get it on?


What are the rules for safety around water?  Make sure each cub knows!
1. Learn to swim well enough to survive in an emergency.
2. Never swim alone.
3. Swim only in supervised areas.
4. Follow the rules set up for the particular pool, beach, etc.
5. Learn the simple and safe reaching techniques.
6. Know your limitations.
7. Stay out of the water when overheated or tired.
8. Stay out of the water during lightning storms.  Seek protection in an en-
closed shelter – not under a tree!
9. Dive only into known deep water.
10. Call for help only when you need it – don’t be the boy who cried wolf! 
 
Help the cubs learn and explain the four rescue techniques:
Reach, Throw, Row, and Go (with support)   RTRG.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







263Webelos Midway


ATHLETE 


What is a couch potato?  Are you a couch potato?  It takes determination and perseverance 
to NOT be a couch potato, especially when it’s hot.  Encourage the cubs to do activities in the 
morning or late afternoon when it’s summer time that will help them be strong and healthy.  
Other times of the year are not as difficult.


Most Cubs are members of a type of sports team.  They will already to things every day as part 
of those teams.  But when they aren’t working out with a team, they need to recognize the 
need for movement and strength.


Hopscotch:  (coordination and balance)


Indoor mini basketball:  How many baskets can you make in a minute?


Brick layers:  How many can you do in a minute?


Many of the required activities can be done as part of pack meeting in the welcoming activities.  
The families will love the participation as well.  Encourage activity as a den.  Have a field day 
where they try out different track events.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







264 Webelos Midway


FITNESS 


Eating right is a challenge for everyone, especially if the Cubs family hasn’t been show-
ing a desire to be fit.  This could be that Cubs opportunity to help get his family going!  
Help them understand the KCP of being healthy!


 A. Know: Tell why it is important to be healthy, clean, and fit.
 B. Commit: It’s not always easy to stick with eating right when someone else
           is eating a big sugary ice cream cone or a large soda!  How do you stick it out?
           Does it mean never sugar again?  


C. Practice:  It takes practice to be good at anything.  Keep practicing knowing 
what is good health habits and promoting them to your family and friends. Prac-
tice good health habits while doing the requirements for this activity badge.


The guidelines for healthy eating have been changed from the pyramid to the plate!  
There are lots of great ideas at myPlate.gov.  Have a competition to see who can come 
up with the best recipes for an after school snack.  See who comes up with the most 
liked meals planned for a week.  


MyPlate.gov coloring sheet – handout.   You organize the plate activity.


How good do you know your plate?  What color goes where?  Do you know how many 
fruits and veggies you should be eating each day?
           


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







265Webelos Midway


SPORTSMAN 


Knowing how to participate and be active in sports is a great thing for each Cub.  Most are 
already involved in community sport teams, but some are not.  Encourage them to find a team 
to participate with or get a neighborhood group together to play often.  Review the movie 
Sandlot to show how kids bond and grow together.  (This movie also shows perseverance 
through participating every day, despite the heat.)


Match up game:


 match the term used in each sport:


1. football   a.  foul
2. basketball   b.  Free-throw
3. baseball   c.  goalie
4. soccer                 d.  penalty box
5. hockey                e.  off-sides


What’s the difference between football and rugby?  This would be a good discussion on how 
sports vary from country to country and names of sports.  In many countries football is what we 
call soccer!


Participating on a team encourages good sportsmanship.  This is a social skill that each cub 


needs to learn.  Encourage them to understand basic sportsmanship which includes the 
following:
No cheating!
Not losing your temper
No negative comments about teammates, coaches, referees, or opposing players
Not blaming others for mistakes or a poor team performance
No “trash talk” or taunting the other side
No showboating – explain what this means
No arguing with the referees’ calls and judgments and always remember to 
congratulate the other team/participants after a game!


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







266 Webelos Midway


ARTIST


Requirements for this Activity badge are fairly straightforward and could be 
accomplished in one or two meetings with careful planning and some help from an art 
professional.  A teacher would be ideal as he/she would be familiar with all of the various 
specialties in the field.


The first requirement asks for a lecture-type situation with the teacher or other 
professional explaining about occupations in the field.  While you have the professional 
available the second topic could be covered, which is a portfolio.  If the artist has his own 
portfolio, he could show this and then talk about different types of portfolios.  You could 
take photos of their (the Webelos’) work and help them do their own portfolios.


The third requirement asks for an original drawing or painting of an outdoor subject, 
which should then be framed.  The frame could be used as part of the Craftsman Badge.  
Fourth, is listing primary and secondary colors.  A simple color wheel can be shown by 
painting a rainbow on a paper plate with the appropriate colors.  Next they are supposed 
to use a computer to make six simple designs using the straight and curved lines, dots, 
etc.  


Six is drawing a profile of a family member which would be a good pack meeting 
activity.  Using clay as a medium, sculpt a simple object.  Cookie dough, play dough and 
Sculpey Clay are all good clay types.  Sculpey Clay can be expensive and salt play dough 
or peanut butter play dough recipes can be readily found online or at the library.  You 
could also incorporate your clay projects into the next requirement which is a mobile.  
Another possibility would be to use paper folding techniques which could pass off the art 
construction part of this activity badge.


Number ten asks for a collage describing each boy.  This could use magazine pictures 
buttons, leaves, feathers, photos or other medium the boy is interested in.  Last but not 
least, eleven is to earn the Academics belt loop for Art.  These requirements also work 
well for combining with the Activity Badge requirements.  


Most importantly, do not become overwhelmed by the need to do this by yourself or all in 
one meeting.  It is not necessary to do either of these.  Requirements three through eleven 
only need five of the eight requirements so choose those that best meet your financial and 
physical limitations.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







267Webelos Midway


SCHOLAR


This activity badge requires a lot of parental and teacher (when possible) 
assistance�  It also requires more time for a cub who has been struggling in 
school�  It could however give the cub a new focus on the value of an education� 
First remind your cubs that education is not just schoolwork and that education 
starts the day they are born and ends the day they die�  Their education is only 
somewhat determined by the schools they attend�  There are also many great 
suggestions in previous POW WOW books�  


Make sure that parents are included in the character connection portion of this 
activity badge whenever possible�  Discussing with a teacher or principal the 
importance of getting an education can be an eye-opening experience for some 
cub scouts�  Sometimes we forget that all aspects of life require education�  You 
wouldn’t want a sanitary engineer that didn’t know what he is doing any more 
than you want a doctor that is uneducated�  It is as important for the bricklayer 
to know how to lay the brick correctly for the chimney as it is for the architect to 
know where to put it�


Some of the requirements include earning the language and mathematics belt 
loops�  Point out that math is considered by some to be a language�  Chess is 
another belt loop that may be earned as a part of this activity badge�  How is it 
related to language and what skills do you learn by playing it?


Ask your cub scouts if they have any friends attending a charter school or a 
private school�  If they do, have them determine the similarities and differences 
in how they are run and how each school determines priorities for funding and 
programs�  Talk about school boards and how they are made up�  If you know 
a school board member, ask them to talk to your boys about what is involved in 
running the school and who makes what decisions�  Ask an adult what he thinks 
are the best and worst things about your school and what could be done to 
improve it?


List what full time positions are available in education�  Have your cub help 
another student with his homework� Be sure they know the difference between 
helping them understand and doing the work for them�  Have them tell you what 
they did to help�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







268 Webelos Midway


SHOWMAN


This activity badge focuses on puppetry, music, and drama.  Six activities are chosen from any 
of these areas, but they need prior approval of the Webelos leader.  Each of these areas requires 
some knowledge of the subject and none of these are a one day project.  They can however be 
worked on individually or as a group.  


The fifth option is a good den meeting activity and could be used at a pack meeting when your 
group is responsible for the skit. It is to put on a puppet show for your den or pack.  Two through 
seven all include puppet making or performing skills and could be used to put on a puppet show.  
If you have a cub scout who does not like to perform in front of others, you could have that one 
write the puppet show or help build the puppets or the stage.  If you have a cub that thrives on 
attention, he could be one of the puppeteers.


In the musical section you might want to see if any of your cubs has the ability to lead music.  
If you have one or more, they could teach the rest of the group about music… time signatures, 
notes, key signatures, sharps, flats, and other notation.  Ask a cub to research folk music, or 
American composers and what kind of music they wrote or write.  Have one check out the Music 
Belt Loop and one talk about the difference between singing indoors and out.  Put together a 
small concert for your Den or Pack and have each person who plays an instrument perform for 
you.  If you have a non-instrumentalist, have that boy as your emcee.


The last section involves drama.  The easiest to pass off would be to read a play and then make 
a model of a stage for one of the acts.  A good field trip would be to attend a play as a den and 
then write a short paper telling the story and what they liked about it.  If you have a cub who is 
currently in a play, he might enjoy doing his part for the other cub scouts.  You could also write, 
put on and take part in a one-act play and involve all of your cubs in it.  You should also point 
out that sometimes it is the small parts that you remember from a play.  If you have the ability to 
record his and show it to your boys they will remember it for years.


Making a list of stage directions and what they mean would be a good part of creating a play.  
Have the boys learn what a theater-in-the-round is and why it is used.  What are its good and bad 
points?  Explain the difference between grand opera and light opera.  Boys should also know that 
those terms do not remain the same in each century.  They should use current terminology.  


They could also explain the difference between a musical and a play.  Another possibility is 
to read about William Shakespeare and draw a picture of his Globe Theater.  A good place for 
beginning information on this subject is in the 2012 POW WOW book in the midway section.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







269Webelos Midway


TRAVELER
 


Maps are an integral part of traveling.  Today we depend on Google Maps, MapQuest 
and other internet sources to get us where we need to go.  I was reminded recently that 
different types of maps are good for different things.  Several of the requirements for the 
Traveler Activity Badge use different types of maps and other sources for trip planning.


The first requirement asks for a map or timetable of a transportation system such as a bus, 
plane, train, or ferry to determine how to arrive at a location from another location at the 
right time.  You can look up these tables online at the bus company, airline, ferry, etc., or 
you can find written tables at your local library or grocery store, depending on whether it 
is local, national, or international.  The next one has you plan a trip to another state using 
these guidelines and the third asks the cub to plan a trip to a local area of interest with the 
help of a parent, teacher, guardian, or librarian.  That trip plan should be printed as part of 
the requirement.
 
Number four asks that you take the trip (or one you’ve planned).  Five asks that you 
compute the cost per mile for the trip you took.


Six requires an actual highway map, not a Google-type map.  The Scout should plan four 
different trips of at least twenty-five miles with at least six turns in each one.  He should 
draw the route on the map and then act as navigator as he takes one of these trips with a 
parent.


Plan a trip of at least two days and pack everything you need for it is the seventh 
requirement.  The next asks the cub to check the family first-aid kit and explain what he 
finds.  Nine requires the Cub to look at a map legend of your area, learn what they mean 
and explain it to your den.


Next is to find a place of interest and draw two different routes to it.  Then, using the map 
legend, determine which route is shorter in miles.  Eleven asks for safety precautions you 
should use for cars, trains, buses, boats, and planes.  


The last two requirements are for belt loos for Geography and Map and Compass.  There 
are twelve requirements and you need to complete this badge.  It is not a two week 
activity badge, but will help your scouts be able to find their way around anywhere.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







270 Webelos Midway


Traveler Activity Badge 


http://meritbadge.org/wiki/images/4/45/Traveler.pdf
http://www.macscouter.com/CubScouts/PowWow09/Webelos/Traveler.pdf
UTA Maps 
http://www.rideuta.com/ridinguta/routes/routefinder.aspxhttp://www.rideuta.com/mc/?page=UTA-
Home-FrontRunner


Delta Airlines Flight Schedule
http://images.delta.com.edgesuite.net/delta/pdfs/flight_schedules.pdf
 
Greyhound Bus Map
http://extranet.greyhound.com/Revsup/schedules/sa-50.pdf


Fuel Cost Calculator
http://www.roadtripamerica.com/Fuel-Cost-Calculator.php


Car First Aid/Emergency Kit (Not a 72 hour kit)
•	 Fire extinguisher


•	 Road flares


•	 Bottles of water


•	 Emergency rations such as Jerky


•	 Items for fire making, i.e. 


Kindling, a lighter or waterproof matches. 


•	 Hand sanitizer (also great for starting fires).


•	 A needle and thread and a few safety pins


•	 A notepad and pen or pencil


•	 Paperback book (entertainment until rescued).


•	 Emergency Blanket and Poncho


•	 Antibacterial wipes (diaper wipes)


Salt Lake International Airport Control Tower Radio – LIVE Online
http://www.liveatc.net/search/?icao=kslc


Make a Travel Kit - Use an ice cream bucket or metal lunch box:
•	 Include knot tying instructions and twine/rope (ScoutStuff.org has an item called “Deck of Cards 


- Knots” Oversized, laminated cards offer color illustrations and how-to diagrams, with essential 
details and advice. Item: 32663


•	 Include 3 x 5 cards describing travel games (or have each boy bring a favorite game to add to a 
file)


•	 Include change for treats or to award as prizes
•	 Include a book of riddles, or riddle cards
•	 Include a mirror for flashing codes
•	 Include pencils and paper


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







271Webelos Midway


Citizen


* Required for Webelos Badge


** Required for Arrow of Light


Take the scouts to a local fire station and have an outdoor flag 
ceremony and as part of the ceremony tell the story about 


Francis Scott Key and how The Star-Spangled Banner came to be:


http://www.usflag.org/history/francisscottkey.html


Take the scouts to a public meeting of the city council or
 other local government meeting.


Participate in your school activities and events such as
Back-to-School nights and carnivals.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







272 Webelos Midway


Communicator


Take the scouts to your local library and become familiar with
how the library is structured and how to locate books, etc.


Teach the scouts good communication skills; how to be a good listener
 and how to express yourself in a face-to-face conversation.


Give the scouts opportunity to speak in front of other people,
either at Den or Pack Meeting.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







273Webelos Midway


DAD


MOM


G
RA


N
D


PA


G
RA


N
D


M
A


G
RA


N
D


M
A


G
RA


N
D


PA


YO
U


R 
N


A
M


E


Family Member


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







274 Webelos Midway


Readyman
Make a home �re escape plan for your family. The great thing about this requirement is that 
you can add a few extra details like bathtubs and sinks and count this �oorplan for Engineer 
as well. Here is a key to use with your boys while they draw their �oorplan.


Garage


Kitchen


Dining Room


Living Room


Mom & Dads Room


My Room Sisters Room


Closet


Mail Box


Tub


Toilet
Sink Stove


Sample Floor Plan & Fire Escape Plan


Readyman


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







275Webelos Midway


Fire Escape Plan


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







276 Webelos Midway


Craftsman Activity Badge 
http://meritbadge.org/wiki/images/0/06/Craftsman.pdf
http://meritbadge.org/wiki/images/f/f9/Sportsman.pdf
http://www.macscouter.com/CubScouts/PowWow09/Webelos/Craftsman.pdf
http://www.e-scoutcraft.com/intro/craftsman.html


There are four things necessary for teaching a successful craft project.
•	 List of materials 
•	 List of tools 
•	 Detailed instructions 
•	 Make a prototype using the exact same tools and materials FIRST.


REMINDER: Requirement #2 starts with “With adult supervision and using hand tools…”  That 
means HAND tools, no hot glue, no drills that use A/C or batteries, etc.


Here’s the list of projects.  Type the name of the project with either “Webelos” or “kid’s crafts” 
in the search and be amazed with the number or results.  “Webelos weather vane” had 35,700 
results.  “kids project weather vane” had 265,00 results.  Remember to try the project out 
yourself (don’t use a Webelos as the guinea pig).


Please remember that you have very limited time to complete the required projects.  Two basic 
guidelines: 
1) It’s OK to start a project in Den Meeting and have it finished at home.  
2) Remember KISMIF (Keep It Simple Make It Fun).  For instance try this simple project:


Key Rack
Two picture hangers
1 X 4 pine board (from a home center) cut 9 – 12 inches long
4 – 6 Small brass cup hooks
Paint or stain the board first, let dry, then measure for the cup hook on the front and the picture 
hangers on the back. Nail and/or screw on the hooks and hangers.
For birdhouses, start here: http://allcrafts.net/woodworking/birdhouses.htm.  Be careful with 
sites like these – they REALLY want to sell you things while giving you more than 50 plans.


Book rack 
Shelf 
Bulletin board 
Weather vane 
Tie rack 
Letter holder 
Notepad holder 
Toolbox 
Towel rack 


Recipe holder 
Lamp stand 
Kitchen knife rack 
Kitchen utensil rack  
Napkin holder 
Animal cutouts 
Garden tool rack 
Lid holder 
Mailbox 


Birdhouse 
Desk nameplate 
Letter, bill, and pencil holder 
Bread box 
Key rack 
Measuring cup rack 
Measuring spoon rack


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







277Webelos Midway


Engineer Activity Badge 


http://meritbadge�org/wiki/images/2/2e/Engineer�pdf
http://www�macscouter�com/CubScouts/PowWow09/Webelos/Engineer�pdf
http://cubscoutideas�com/379/webelos-engineer-activity-badge-make-a-catapult/
http://thetrainerscorner�wordpress�com/2009/01/02/mousetrap-catapult-plans/


Catapult: A catapult is any kind of device that shoots or launches a projectile by mechanical means� A 
Google search for “build a catapult” had 8,510,000 results�  Almost anything with tension (mousetrap, 
rubber bands, etc�) can be used to create a catapult�  For a catapult arm Lowes and Home Depot give 
away paint stir sticks (check for a 5 gallon pail stirrer for a long arm)�


Circuit: You can buy simple circuit parts from Radio Shack.  Wire up this circuit with thin flexible wire 
twisted to the switch and battery holder, and under the screw terminal on the lamp base�  This example 
takes a single AA battery�  Too easy!


“AA” Battery Holder – Catalog #: 270-401 – $1�49
E10 Lamp Base with Screw Terminals – Catalog #: 272-357 – $1�99
1�2V/250mA Incandescent Bulb (2-Pack) –| Catalog #: 272-1174 – $2�49
SPST Push On-Push Off Switch – Catalog #: 275-617 – $3�99


  Lamp & Holder                                             Push Button Switch
           


     Battery Holder


Bridge Types: Go to google�com, click on “Images” on the top bar (black menu bar) and 
type “bridge types” in the search bar�  Print out a few examples to show your Webelos 
and have them use the picture to draw from�  There are many famous bridges almost 
anybody recognizes (Golden Gate or Brooklyn anybody?)�  “http://en�wikipedia�org/wiki/
List_of_bridge_types” has a fantastic list of bridge types with great picture examples�  
Hint: For building a bridge model 
nothing is easier than a beam or pier bridge�


Block and Tackle: Using pulleys at home to create a simple block 
and tackle may seem easy, but a tall A-frame or tall arm like a crane 
can be difficult to find and/or fit in your home or classroom.  Try a 
simple 6 foot step ladder�  It’s sturdy, easy to set up, and can hold a 
lot of weight�  Use a thicker rope looped around the top step�  Use 
small carabineer to attach a pulley to the rope loop, and you are 
ready to go�


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







278 Webelos Midway


Handyman Activity Badge 


http://usscouts.org/advance/cubscout/worksheets/Handyman.pdf
http://www.boyscouttrail.com/webelos/w2/pdfs/handyman.pdf
http://www.cubroundtable.com/assets/pdf-documents/Handyman-Activity-Badge-Outline.pdf


Bicycle Repair - Have a clinic on the care and repair of bicycles. Set it up like a shop and have each boy bring his 
bike and do repairs.
Tool ID - Have Webelos bring tools to a Den Meeting and demonstrate how to use it and different ways to mark 
them.
A Bigger Hammer - Hold a nail hammering contest. See who can hammer a nail in the fewest number of strokes. 
(Possible awards for most/fewest bent nails, most/fewest nail misses, etc.)
Twenty Questions - Split the Webelos den into small 2-3 Scout teams. Each team has five minutes to write down 
twenty things that it takes to build a house. Not what is in a house after it is built but what it takes to build the 
house.  The team that gets 20 things written down first is the winner.


CAR WASHING TIPS/TOOLS
SPONGE – Start from top of car and work toward the bottom so the dirt doesn’t move onto the cleaned area.
SCRUB BRUSH, SCOURING POWDER – Use on the sides of the tires to brighten the white walls. Brush can also be 
used on door jams, wheel wells, and floor mats. DO NOT use abrasive brush or scouring powder on chrome or 
painted body of the car - it may scratch.
VACUUM, NOZZLE – Use a long, pointed nozzle to clean in crevices on backs of seats and between seats.
SOFT CLOTH, VINYL POLISH – Use on the dashboard only. Do not use on any clear plastic glass covering 
speedometer, or other gauges - it will dull and fog plastic.
WINDOW CLEANER, PAPER –Clean all windows inside and out and the rear view mirror. Make sure you wipe until it 
is completely dry – streaks will form on any glass area left wet.
PRESSURE GUAGE - Check for tire pressure shown in car manual
CLOTH  - With adult supervision, check the oil level
WINDSHIELD WASHING FLUID - Refill fluid for wipers


Safety rules for users of power lawn mowers:
1. Remove sticks, stones, wires or other debris from the mowing area before starting to mow.
2. Never refuel indoors or when the motor is running or hot. (BOOM!)
3. Mow only when the grass is dry. Never use a power mower barefoot. Wear heavy shoes. Thousands of toes are 
amputated or mangled every year when feet slip under blades.
4. Never leave motor running when mower is unattended.
5. On hills and banks, cut grass sideways, not up and down.
6. Stand firm behind the machine. Don’t pull it backwards towards you or run with it.
7. Don’t use an electric power mower in the rain. Be sure its frame is grounded through the cord.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







279Webelos Midway


Scientist Activity Badge 


BERNOULLI’S PRINCIPLE, formulated by Daniel Bernoulli that states that as the speed of a moving fluid 
(liquid or gas) increases, the pressure within the fluid decreases. 


The Ball and Funnel Challenge - Materials: Ping-Pong balls, a few large funnels
Experiment: Let the scouts know that it is time to have a little contest--you are going to see who can 
blow a Ping-Pong ball out of a funnel the easiest. All you must do is give a ball and funnel to each 
participating scout, have them place the ball in the funnel, and then try to blow the ball out as far as 
they can. The ball won’t move! In order to blow the Ping-Pong ball out of the funnel, you must blow 
across the top of the funnel.


AIR PRESSURE EXPERIMENT - Materials: Two drinking straws, small bottle filled with water
Have a boy put both straws in his mouth, with one straw in the water and the other straw outside of the 
bottle. Now ask him to suck water out of the bottle. He can’t – because the air pressure in his mouth is 
equalized by the air coming in through the outside straw.


EXPERIMENT - Materials: 3” x 5” index card
Slightly bend the card lengthways (so that it forms an arc) and lay it on a table. Try to overturn the card 
by blowing underneath it. No matter how hard you blow, the card will not rise from the table.  The 
pressure of a gas (in this case, air) is lower at higher speed. By blowing under the card, you create a 
lower pressure underneath so that the normal air pressure on top of the card actually presses the card 
to the table! The harder you blow, the more the air pressure on top presses down! This is a principle 
used in flying airplanes.


NEWTON’S LAWS:
1. First law: An object at rest remains at rest unless acted upon by a force. An object in motion remains 
in motion, and at a constant velocity, unless acted upon by a force. 
2. Second law: The acceleration of a body is directly proportional to, and in the same direction as, the 
net force acting on the body, and inversely proportional to its mass. 
3. Third law: When one body exerts a force on a second body, the second body simultaneously exerts a 
force equal in magnitude and opposite in direction to that of the first body.


BEST NEWTON’S LAWS EXPERIMENT EVER: 2-LITER BOTTLE ROCKETS!
http://exploration.grc.nasa.gov/education/rocket/BottleRocket/about.htm
Go to google.com and search “2 liter bottle rocket launcher” for hours of reading!


PASCAL’S LAW: The pressure of a liquid or a gas like air is the same in every direction if the liquid is in 
a closed container.  If you put more pressure on the top of the liquid or gas the increased pressure will 
spread all over the container.


HYDROMETER
This measures the density of a liquid. An object can float in a liquid only if it is less dense than the liquid.  
Prove this by placing a fresh egg in a glass of water. The egg will sink. Then add 1 tablespoon of salt to 
the water and the egg will float
WHY?  BECAUSE SALT WATER IS MORE DENSE! 


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







280 Webelos Midway


Forester


Dandelions – Gold Finches eat seeds and use the fluff to line their nests


Currants – Bears and Birds eat the fruits.  Bees and butterflies use the nectar and 
pollinate it
Manzanitas – serves as winter browse for Mule Deer and hiding places and food 
for small rodents
Raspberries and Strawberries – Birds, Bears, Skunks, rodents eat them
Thistles – Birds eat seeds; use down for lining nests
Grasses – Deer, Elk, Moose, Bears, rodents all eat grasses.  They provide nesting 
places and materials for birds.  The seeds are also eaten by birds and rodents
Set of 15 posters at the USDA Forest Service – NFES #92000-92015
                                   


Thistle:


USDA-NRCS PLANTS Database / Britton, N.L., and A. Brown. 1913. An illustrated flora of the northern United 
States, Canada and the British Possessions. 3 vols.Charles Scribner’s Sons, New York. Vol. 3: 554.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







281Webelos Midway


Geologist


G. K. GILBERT GEOLOGIC VIEW PARK, SALT LAKE COUNTY, UTAH
9400 SOUTH WASATCH BLVD


THE PARK SHOWCASES SEVERAL WORLD – CLASS EXAMPLES 
OF GEOLOGIC FEATURES. THE INTERPRETIVE SIGNS PROVIDE 
INFORMATION ON SEVERAL ROCK FORMATIONS THAT CAN BE 
VIEWED FROM THE PARK INCLUDING SCARPS OF THE WASATCH 
FAULT, LANDFORMS AND DEPOSITS ASSOCIATED WITH ICE AGE 
GLACIERS, EVIDENCE OF PAST GOLD MINING, PLUS INFORMATION 
ABOUT LAKE BONNEVILLE AND PAST QUARRYING ACTIVITIES. THREE 
VISIBLE ROCK FORMATIONS ARE THE METAMORPHIC LITTLE WILLOW 
AND BIG COTTONWOOD AND THE IGNEOUS LITTLE COTTONWOOD 
STOCK. THE LITTLE WILLOW FORMATION CONSISITS OF CONTORTED 
SCHIST AND GNEISS AND AT 1.7 BILLION YEARS OLD IS THE OLDEST 
ROCK IN SALT LAKE CITY AREA. THE BIG COTTONWOOD FORMATION 
IS ALTERNATING SHALE/SLATE AND QUARTZITE ORIGINALLY 
DEPOSITED IN A TIDAL/SHORELINE 1 BILLION TO 800 MILLION YEARS 
AGO. THE LITTLE COTTONWOOD STOCK IS A YOUNG 31 MILLION 
YEAR OLD INTRUSIVE IGNEOUS ROCK CALLED QUARTZ MONZONITE 
(GRANITE)
THERE ARE ALSO GLACIAL FEATURES AND MINE DUMPS TO BE SEEN.


http://geology.utah.gov.surveynotes/geosights/gilbertpark.htm


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







282 Webelos Midway


Naturalist


Key to Life in the Pond
To view total key go to watermonitoring�uwex�edu/wav/pubs�html


No Legs


Worm Like


Red, green or  Body with Reddish         Suckers, expand     Small, hair like       Glides along       Tan to


tan “twists”        bristles no brown           and contract swim in “S”         bottom                  brown


  Suckers      shape                                                   long


Midge   Bristle   Tubifex    Leech            Threadworm    Flatworm     Horsehair
Larve  Worm  Worm         or Planaria      worm    


 Developed by the University of Wisconsin·Extension in cooperation with the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources. Based on a Key developed by Riveredge Nature Center, Newburg, WI. May be repro-
duced with this credit for educationaln non·profit purposes. For information, contact UWEX Environmen-
tal Resource Center, 


608/262·2634.


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







283Webelos Midway


Outdoorsman


BASIC FIRST AID KIT (FITS IN A 20 OZ PLASTIC PEANUT BUTTER JAR 
WITH A SCREW LID)


ANTISEPTIC WIPES


ANTIBACTERIAL OINTMENT


ASSORTED ADHESIVE BANDAGES


GUAZE ROLL OR PADS


ADHESIVE TAPE MOLESKIN (FOR BLISTERS)


IBUPROFEN OR OTHER PAIN RELIEF


INSECT STING RELIEF (e.g. AFTERBITE)


ANTIHISTAMINE (ALLERGIC REACTIONS)


TWEEZERS


SAFETY PINS 


KNIFE


 Q TIPS


SMALL METAL MIRROR


SMALL LED HEADLAMP OR FLASHLIGHT (EXTRA BATTERIES)


SUNSCREEN


LIP BALM


INSECT REPELLANT


MAGNIFYING GLASS


MATCHES


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







284 Webelos Midway


NOTES!NOTES!







285Webelos Midway


NOTES!NOTES!







286 Resources


Resources


Great Salt Lake Council Locations  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  287


Abbreviations and Acronyms of Scouting  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  288


Uniform Guide


Adult  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  291


Boys   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  293


Activity Consent Form   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  295


Health Form   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  296


Tour and Activity Plan  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  300


Den Leader Training Award  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  302


Scouter’s Training Award Cub Scouting  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  303


Cub Master’s Key  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  304


Pack Calendar Template   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  305


Pack Newsletter template  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  306


Cub Scouting and Your Family  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  307


Family Talent Survey Sheet  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  308


Guides to Unit Money-Earning Projects   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  309


Unit Leader Award of Merit   �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  310


Derby Track Rentals  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  312


National Summertime Pack Award  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  314


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS


INDEXINDEX







287Resources


Great Salt Lake Council Locations
SALT LAKE CITY


SANDY


CENTERVILLE


Council Headquarters 
525 Foothill Blvd


Salt Lake City, UT 84113
Council Services


(801) 582-3663 Offi ce
(801) 582-7401 Fax


8:30 am - 5:30 pm Mon - Fri
Closed Saturday


Scout Shop
(801) 349-3760 Store


8:30 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri
10:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday


South Valley
8395 S� 700 West
Sandy, UT 84070


Council Services
(801) 571-6015 Offi ce
(801) 571-2761 Fax


10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri
Closed Saturday


Scout Shop
(801) 571-2727 Store


9:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri
10:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday


North Valley
380 E� Pages Lane (Inside Ace 


Hardware)
Centerville, UT 84014


Council Services
(801) 951-0687 Offi ce
(801) 951-0689 Fax


10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri
Closed Saturday


Scout Shop
(801) 951-0691 Store


9:30 am - 6:30 pm Mon - Fri
10:00am - 5:00 pm Saturday


E University Blv


Veterans
Medical Center


Foothill Dr


186


1725 EE South Campus Dr


Great Salt Lake
Service Center


Scout Shop


M
ar


io
 C


ap
ec


ch
i D


r


LDS Church


LDS Church


LDS Institute
Building


W
 9


00
 S


20
9


450 W


S 450 W


Sa
nd


y P
kw


y


Sa
nd


y
Se


rv
ic


e 
Ce


nt
er


Sc
ou


t S
ho


p


Main St. S 700 W


Veterans Memorial Hwy


29
5


15


N
 650 E


E 1450 N


N
 400 E


1000 SE Pages Ln


Centerville
Service Center


Scout Shop


LDS
Church


LDS
Church


JA Taylor
Elementary


School


Pages Lane
Shopping Center


N
 M


ain St
S M


ain St


105


E 1400 N1200 S


E 900 S







288 Resources


•	 AAMES	-	Association	of	African	Methodist	Episcopal	Scouters
•	 ABS	-	Association	of	Baptists	for	Scouting
•	 ACM	-	assistant	Cubmaster
•	 AD	-	activities	director
•	 ADL	-	assistant	den	leader
•	 AGC	-	Annual	Giving	Campaign
•	 APL	-	assistant	patrol	leader
•	 APO	-	Alpha	Phi	Omega
•	 ASE	-	assistant	Scout	executive
•	 ASM	-	assistant	Scoutmaster
•	 ASPL	-	assistant	senior	patrol	leader
•	 B-P	-	Baden-Powell
•	 BM	-	business	manager
•	 BSA	-	Boy	Scouts	of	America
•	 BSE	-	borough	Scout	executive
•	 CD	-	camping	director
•	 COPE	-	Project	COPE	(Challenging	Outdoor	Personal	Experience)
•	 COR	-	chartered	organization	representative
•	 CPD	-	Center	for	Professional	Development
•	 CSE	-	Chief	Scout	Executive
•	 DCAD	-	distinguished	citizen	award	dinner
•	 DCS	-	director	of	camping	service


Abbreviations and Acronyms of Scouting


Abbreviations	serve	the	purpose	of	brevity;	they	are	not	always	conducive	
to	clarity.	The	Scouting	abbreviations	and	acronyms	listed	here	can	aid	
communication	when	you	know	that	your	audience	will	quickly	recognize	them.	
Abbreviations	may	hinder	communication	with	those	new	to	or	unfamiliar	with	
the	Scouting	movement,	so	use	abbreviations	carefully	and	sparingly	and	avoid	
“alphabet	soup.”
Be	consistent	in	the	use	of	abbreviations.	When	nonstandard	(those	not	listed	
below)	abbreviations	or	acronyms	are	used,	spell	out	the	term	on	first	reference,	
followed	by	the	abbreviation	or	acronym	in	parentheses.







289Resources


•	 DE	-	district	executive
•	 DEm/p	-	district	executive-multiple-person;	district	executive	(multiple	


person);	district	executive,	multiple/person	(obsolete)
•	 DFS	-	director	of	field	service
•	 DFiS	-	director	of	finance	service
•	 DL	-	den	leader
•	 DSS	-	director	of	support	services
•	 DiD	-	district	director
•	 EnD	-	endowment	director
•	 FD	-	field	director
•	 FOS	-	Friends	of	Scouting
•	 FiD	-	finance	director
•	 G.O.L.D.	-	Growth	Opportunities	in	Leadership	Development	(obsolete)
•	 JASM	-	junior	assistant	Scoutmaster
•	 JOTA	-	Jamboree-on-the-Air
•	 KISMIF	-	Keep	It	Simple,	Make	It	Fun
•	 LNT	-	Leave	No	Trace
•	 MCCS	-	Members	of	Churches	of	Christ	for	Scouting
•	 NAES	-	National	Association	of	Episcopals	for	Scouting
•	 NAPS	-	National	Association	of	Presbyterian	Scouters
•	 NAUMS	-	National	Association	of	United	Methodist	Scouters
•	 NCCS	-	National	Catholic	Committee	on	Scouting
•	 NCS	-	National	Camping	School
•	 NDC	-	National	Distribution	Center
•	 NEI	-	National	Executive	Institute	(obsolete)
•	 NESA	-	National	Eagle	Scout	Association
•	 NJLIC	-	National	Junior	Leader	Instructor	Camp
•	 NLAS	-	National	Lutheran	Association	of	Scouters
•	 NLATS	-	National	Lodge	Adviser	Training	Seminar
•	 NLTC	-	National	Leadership	Training	Conference
•	 NOAC	-	National	Order	of	the	Arrow	Conference
•	 NRRC	-	National	Religious	Relationships	Committee







290 Resources


•	 NTS	-	National	Training	School	(obsolete)
•	 NYILT	-	National	Youth	Instructor	Leadership	Training
•	 NYLT	-	National	Youth	Leadership	Training
•	 OA	-	Order	of	the	Arrow
•	 OFC	-	Operation	First	Class	(obsolete)
•	 P.R.A.Y.	-	Programs	of	Religious	Activities	With	Youth
•	 PD	-	program	director
•	 PD-L1	-	Professional	Development	Level	1
•	 PD-L2	-	Professional	Development	Level	2
•	 PD-L3	-	Professional	Development	Level	3
•	 PL	-	patrol	leader
•	 PLC	-	patrol	leaders’	council
•	 PRD	-	public	relations	director
•	 PTC	-	Philmont	Training	Center
•	 SDE	-	senior	district	executive
•	 SE	-	Scout	executive
•	 SEA	-	Scout	Executives’	Alliance
•	 SME	-	Sustaining	Membership	Enrollment	(obsolete)
•	 SPL	-	senior	patrol	leader
•	 TAY	-	total	available	youth
•	 TD	-	training	director
•	 TRAIL	-	TRAIL	(Teaching	Resources	And	Individual	Leadership)	Boss
•	 USFIS	-	United	States	Foundation	for	International	Scouting
•	 WDL	-	Webelos	den	leader
•	 WOSM	-	World	Organization	of	the	Scout	Movement
•	 WSB	-	World	Scout	Bureau







Uniform Inspection Sheet


Scout Leader
Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


Attendance. Presence at inspection merits 15 points.
 Notes 


Headgear. Headgear is optional. 
	 Boy Scout leaders wear the olive visor cap, campaign hat, or troop-approved headgear. 
	  Varsity Scout leaders wear the blaze visor cap. 
	  Cub Scout pack leaders wear the olive visor cap. 
	  Den leaders wear the same visored cap as the youth they serve.


 Notes 


Shirt/Blouse and Neckwear. New long or short sleeves, or official long or short 
sleeves with appropriate loops on epaulets. Neckwear is optional but must be worn according  
to specifications in the Insignia Guide. 
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the long- or short-sleeve uniform or official shirt.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear either the official long- or short-sleeve yellow blouse, official 
long- or short-sleeve shirt, or the official long- or short-sleeve uniform blouse.
	 Female Boy Scout leaders wear the official shirt or official long- or short sleeve uniform blouse.


 Notes


Pants/Shorts. Units have no option to change.
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the official pants or the official uniform shorts 
or pants with no cuffs.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear the pants or the official navy blue shorts, skirt, or pants with 
the yellow blouse, or the official pants or official uniform shorts or pants with the official  
shirt or blouse.


 Notes 


Belt
	 Male leaders wear the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle 
of their choice.
	   Female leaders wear the official navy blue Cub Scout or Webelos Scout buckle with 
navy blue pants, or the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle of their  
choice with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


 Notes 


Socks 
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear olive socks with official pants or official 
uniform shorts or pants.
	   Female leaders wear the blue socks with the blue shorts or pants, or the olive socks 
with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


Shoes
	  Must be neat and clean.


 Notes 


Uniform points. Total points from above (75 possible)


Insignia.✱ Correct epaulets, 5 points. Correct placement on left sleeve, 5 points; right sleeve, 
5 points; left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points. Use the checklist on the reverse of this  
form to help determine score.
Insignia points from reverse (25 possible)


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Uniform and insignia points combined. A perfect score is 100 points.


15 pts.


5 pts.


20 pts.


20 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


 


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Name Unit No.


Address District


Office or position in unit


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


.


Bring this form with you.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.


34048.indd   1 8/18/10   10:06 AM







Scout Leader Uniform Inspection Sheet


Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness.


Shoulder Epaulets
	 Scouters wear the color shoulder loop of the program in which 
they are serving: blue, Cub Scouting; green, Boy Scouting; blaze 
(orange), Varsity Scouting; green, Venturing; silver, council and 
district; gold, regional and national.


  Notes 


Right Sleeve
	  U.S. flag emblem centered directly below shoulder seam
	  Den or emblem numeral, if applicable, below and 
touching the flag 
	  Centennial Quality Unit Award (most recent only), 
if applicable, 4 inches below the shoulder seam


  Notes


Left Sleeve
	 Council shoulder patch is directly below the shoulder seam. 
	  Veteran unit bar, if worn, is centered and touching the 
council shoulder patch (above) and unit numeral (below). 
	  Unit numeral, if worn, is centered directly underneath and 
touching the council patch or veteran unit bar. 
	  On the official shirt, the badge of office is centered on the 
pocket, as shown. On the official uniform shirt, the badge of 
office is centered and touching the unit numeral, or centered 4 
inches below the shoulder seam. 
	 When earned, the Trained leader strip is centered at the top 
of the pocket flap on the official shirt. On the official uniform 
shirt, it is centered as shown, touching the badge of office.


  Notes


Right Pocket
	 Boy Scouts of America strip is centered above the pocket.
	  Order of the Arrow lodge insignia is worn on the pocket flap.
	 Current national Scout jamboree insignia is centered above 
the BSA strip and any other items above the pocket.
	  Optional insignia, if worn, is placed in the following order, 
from the BSA strip upward: interpreter strip, Venture or 
Varsity strip, name plate. The name plate may be worn on 
the pocket flap if no lodge insignia is worn.
	  Temporary insignia, including one current world Scout jam-
boree patch, centered on pocket. Only one temporary insignia 
may be worn at a time, and they are not required for correct 
uniforming. Cub Scout leaders and female leaders wearing 
the official uniform shirt or blouse may wear one temporary 
insignia centered above the Boy Scouts of America strip.


  Notes


Left Pocket
	  World Crest emblem is centered between the left shoulder 
seam and the top of the left pocket.
	 Embroidered square knots are centered above the pocket in 
rows of three. 
	 Service stars are centered above the pocket, 3⁄4 inch from 
top point to top point and 3⁄8 inch from either the pocket 
or embroidered knots.


  Notes


Total insignia score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


RIGHT POCKET LEFT POCKET


VENTURE


FRANÇAIS
3⁄4"


3⁄8"


SHOULDER
SEAM


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


25 pts.


4"


SHOULDER EPAULETS 
AND LOOPS


RIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE 
(OFFICIAL UNIFORM  


SHIRT)


LEFT SLEEVE 
wITH POCKET  


(OFFICIAL SHIRT)


SKu 34048


34048 2010 Printing


34048.indd   2 8/18/10   10:06 AM







Uniform Inspection Sheet


Tiger Cub, Wolf Cub Scout,  
and Bear Cub Scout


General Appearance. Allow 4 points for each: 
n	Good posture 
n	Clean face and hands 
n	Combed hair 
n	Neatly dressed 
n	Clean fingernails


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Headgear. Tiger Cub cap, Cub Scout Wolf cap, or Cub Scout Bear cap, according to den. 


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Neckerchief and Slide. Triangular. Orange with blue border for Tiger Cubs. Gold with  
blue border for Cub Scouts working in Wolf book. Light blue with dark blue border for Cub  
Scouts working in Bear book. Each is secured by a slide for that rank.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shirt. Official long- or short-sleeve, navy blue. Wear with either pants or shorts.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Pants/Shorts. Official navy blue pants or shorts, no cuffs. To be worn with  
official long- or short-sleeve navy blue shirt.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Belt. Official navy blue web belt cut to proper length with Tiger Cub or Cub Scout  
insignia on buckle.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Socks. Dark blue official socks with orange tops for Tiger Cubs and gold tops for  
Wolf and Bear Cub Scouts. 


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shoes. Neat and clean.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Registration. Current membership card or temporary certificate on person.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Insignia.✱ Correct placement: left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points; left sleeve,  
5 points; right sleeve, 5 points.


Total Uniform Inspection Score
A perfect score is 100 points.


20 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


15 pts.


15 pts.


5 pts.


Total Uniform Inspection Score


Name Pack No.


 Den


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


___________________.  


Bring this form with you.


Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


5 pts.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.


5 pts.


20 pts.







Right Sleeve 
n	 Wear the U.S. flag, den numeral, and Centennial Quality 


Unit Award (if earned) as shown. Only the most recently 
earned Centennial Quality Unit Award may be worn.


  Notes ________________________________________


Left Sleeve
n  Wear the council shoulder emblem and pack numeral  


as shown. 
n		The veteran unit insignia bar (25, 50, 55, or 60 years), if 


worn, is centered and touching the council shoulder  
emblem (above) and unit numeral (below). 


n		Denner cord or assistant denner cord is worn over  
left shoulder.


  Notes ________________________________________


Right Pocket. 
n		Temporary insignia are not necessary in uniform inspection, 


but if worn, must be centered on the pocket, or hung from  
the button. 


n		Progress Toward Ranks (with thong and beads) is  
fastened to the button under the right pocket flap with 
the flap rebuttoned. 


n		The National Summertime Award is pinned centered  
on the right pocket flap. 


n		The Cub Scout Outdoor Activity Award is worn on  
the right pocket flap. Each successive time the award  
is earned, a wolf track pin may be added to the flap.


  Notes ________________________________________


Left Pocket. 
n  Cub Scouts wear badges of rank as shown: Bobcat,  


Tiger Cub, Wolf, and Bear. 
n		Gold Arrow Points are worn beneath the pocket and 


below the badge for which they were earned. 
n		Silver Arrow Points are worn below the Gold Arrow 


Points in double rows. 
n		Wear medals just above the pocket seam, and service 


stars centered just above medals or knots, or 3/8 inch 
above seam if no medals are worn. 


n		Gold background disks are worn with service stars for  
Cub Scouting service, including Tiger Cub service. 


n		Not more than five medals may be worn. 
n		Wearing sequence for medals or knots is at the  


wearer’s discretion. 
n		The only knots worn by Cub Scouts are the religious  


emblem knot and a lifesaving or meritorious award knot. 
n		The World Crest is worn centered between the left  


shoulder seam and the top of the left pocket.	
  Notes ________________________________________


Total Insignia Score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


Tiger Cub, Wolf Cub Scout, and Bear Cub Scout Uniform Inspection Sheet


Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


20 pts.


5 pts.


RIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE


LEFT pockET


3⁄4"


3⁄8"


SHouLdER SEAM


7 30176 34599 4


34282


2008 Printing


3⁄8"


SERVIcE STARS


RIGHT pockET


4"


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


NATIoNAL 
SuMMERTIME 


AwARd pIN







This form is recommended for unit use to obtain approval and consent for Tiger 
Cubs, Cub Scouts, Webelos Scouts, Boy Scouts, Varsity Scouts, Venturers, and 
guests (if applicable) under 21 years of age to participate in a den, pack, team, 
troop, or crew trip, expedition, or activity. This form is required for use with flying 
plans and should be attached to the flying plan application. It is recommended that 
parents keep a copy of the form and contact the tour leader in the event of any 
questions or in case emergency contact is needed. Additional copies of this form 
along with the Guide to Safe Scouting are available for download from Scouting 
Safely at www.scouting.org/forms.


Se recomienda que la unidad use este formulario para obtener la aprobación y 
consentimiento para los Tiger Cubs, Cub Scouts, Webelos Scouts, Boy Scouts, 
Varsity Scouts, Venturers e invitados (si es que aplica) menores de 21 años que 
participen en un viaje, expedición o actividad del den, pack, equipo, tropa o grupo. 
Este formulario es obligatorio junto con los permisos de vuelo y deben adjuntarse 
a la solicitud de permiso de vuelo. Se recomienda que los padres de familia 
guarden una copia del formulario y se pongan en contacto con el líder de la 
excursión si es que tienen alguna pregunta o en caso de que se necesite un 
contacto de emergencia. Las copias adicionales de este formulario junto con la 
Guía para un Scouting seguro se encuentran disponibles para descargar desde 
Scouting Safely en www.scouting.org/forms.


ACTIVITY CONSENT FORM AND APPROVAL BY PARENTS OR LEGAL GUARDIAN
FORMULARIO DE CONSENTIMIENTO Y APROBACIÓN DE ACTIVIDAD POR PARTE 


DE LOS PADRES DE FAMILIA O TUTORES


HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT
I understand that participation in Scouting activities involves a certain degree of 
risk and can be physically, mentally, and emotionally demanding. I have carefully 
considered the risk involved and have given consent for myself or my child to 
participate in this activity. I also understand that participation in this activity is 
entirely voluntary and requires participants to abide by applicable rules and 
standards of conduct. I release the Boy Scouts of America, the local council, the 
activity coordinators, and all employees, volunteers, related parties, or other 
organizations associated with the activity from any and all claims or liability arising 
out of this participation. 


In case of emergency involving my child, I understand every effort will be made to 
contact me. In the event I cannot be reached, I hereby give my permission to the 
medical provider selected by the adult leader in charge to secure proper treatment, 
including hospitalization, anesthesia, surgery, or injections of medication for my 
child. Medical providers are authorized to disclose to the adult in charge 
examination findings, test results, and treatment provided for purposes of medical 
evaluation of the participant, follow-up and communication with the participant’s 
parents or guardian, and/or determination of the participant’s ability to continue in 
the program activities.


ACUERDO DE INDEMNIZACIÓN Y EXONERACIÓN DE RESPONSABILIDAD
Entiendo que la participación en actividades Scouting implica un cierto grado de 
riesgo y que pueden ser física, mental y emocionalmente agotadoras. He 
considerado cuidadosamente el riesgo involucrado y doy mi consentimiento para 
mi mismo o mi hijo para participar en la actividad. Entiendo que la participación en 
la actividad es completamente voluntaria y requiere que los participantes se 
acaten a las reglas y estándares de conducta pertinentes. Libero a Boy Scouts of 
America, al concilio local, a los coordinadores de la actividad y a todos los 
empleados, voluntarios, partes relacionadas u otras organizaciones asociadas con 
la actividad de cualquiera y todas las demandas o responsabilidades que surjan de 
esta participación.


En caso de una emergencia que tenga que ver con mi hijo, sé que se harán todos 
los esfuerzos necesarios para contactarme. En caso de que no me contacten, 
autorizo al proveedor médico seleccionado por el líder adulto encargado, de 
asegurarse de que se le ofrezca a mi hijo el tratamiento adecuado, incluyendo 
hospitalización, anestesia, cirugía o inyecciones de medicamento. Los proveedores 
médicos están autorizados para informar al adulto encargado los hallazgos de la 
exploración física, los resultados de pruebas y el tratamiento otorgado con el 
propósito de una evaluación médica del participante, seguimiento y comunicación 
con los padres o tutores del participante y/o la determinación de la capacidad del 
participante para continuar en las actividades del programa.


______________________________________________________   _____   _____________________________________________________ Birth date (month/day/year) ____/____/____ Age during activity ________
 First name of participant Middle initial Last name Fecha de nacimiento (día/mes/año)  Edad al momento de realizar 
 Nombre del participante Inicial del sugundo nombre Apellido  la actividad


____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 Address 
 Domicilio


City ____________________________________________________________________________________ State __________________________________________________________ Zip _____________________
Ciudad Estado Código postal


Has approval to participate in (Name of activity, orientation flight, outing trip, etc.) __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Tiene la aprobación para participar en (Nombre de la actividad, vuelo de orientación, excursión, etc.)


From ______________ to ______________  Without restrictions  Special considerations or restrictions:
De (Date)  a (Date) Sin restricciones  Consideraciones o restricciones especiales: 
 (fecha)  (fecha)


______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ________________________
 Participant’s signature Date 
 Firma del participante Fecha


______________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________________________________________


__________________________________________________________________________________________


 ________________________
 Parent/guardian printed name Parent/guardian signature Date 
 Nombre con letra de molde del padre de familia/tutor Firma del padre de familia/tutor Fecha


______________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 Area code and telephone number (best contact and emergency contact) Email  (for use in sharing more details about the trip or activity) 
 Código de área y número telefónico (primer contacto y contacto de emergencia) Correo electrónico (para más detalles sobre el viaje o actividad) 


Contact the adult tour leader with any questions: 
Póngase en contacto con el líder adulto de la excursión si es que tiene preguntas:


Name ___________________________________________________________________ Phone ___________________________ Email ________________________________________________________________
Nombre  Teléfono Correo electrónico


680-673 
2012 Printing







P
ar


t 
A


 
Fu


ll 
na


m
e:


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_ 
D


O
B


: _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


 
A


lle
rg


ie
s:


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


 
E


m
er


g
en


cy
 c


o
nt


ac
t 


N
o


.: 
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


P
ar


te
 A


 
N


o
m


b
re


 c
o


m
p


le
to


 
Fe


ch
a 


d
e 


na
ci


m
ie


nt
o


 
A


le
rg


ia
s 


Te
lé


fo
no


 e
n 


ca
so


 d
e 


em
er


g
en


ci
a


Annual Health and Medical Record  
Registro Médico y de Salud Anual
Part A/Parte A  
GENERAL INFORMATION/INFORMACIÓN GENERAL


Name  ___________________________________________________  Date of birth  __________________________________  Age  ___________     Male  Female 
Nombre   Fecha de nacimiento  (MM/DD/Year) - (MM/DD/Año)  Edad  Masculino Femenino 


Address  _____________________________________________________________________________________________ Grade completed (youth only) _____________________
Domicilio Grado escolar completado (sólo niños) 


City  _________________________________________________________  State _____________  Zip  _____________________  Phone No.  ______________________________
Ciudad   Estado   Código postal    No. telefónico


Unit leader  ___________________________________________________  Council name/No.  __________________________________________  Unit No.  __________________
Líder de la unidad   Nombre y no. del concilio   No. de unidad 


Social Security No. (optional; may be required by medical facilities for treatment) __________________________________  Religious preference  _______________________
No. de Seguro Social (opcional; puede ser solicitado por las instalaciones médicas para brindar tratamiento)   Preferencia religiosa


Health/accident insurance company  ___________________________________________________________ Policy No.  _______________________________________________
Compañía de seguro médico/accidental   No. de póliza 


ATTACH A PHOTOCOPY OF BOTH SIDES OF INSURANCE CARD. IF YOU DO NOT HAVE MEDICAL INSURANCE, ENTER “NONE” ABOVE. 
ANEXAR UNA FOTOCOPIA DE AMBOS LADOS DE LA TARJETA DEL SEGURO. SI USTED NO TIENE SEGURO MÉDICO, ESCRIBA “NINGUNO.”


In case of emergency, notify/En caso de emergencia, notificar a:
Name  ________________________________________________________________________________  Relationship  ___________________________________________________
Nombre   Parentesco


Address  ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Domicilio


Home phone  ________________________________________  Business phone  ____________________________________ Mobile phone  ______________________________
Teléfono de casa    Teléfono de oficina   Teléfono móvil 


Alternate contact name  ____________________________________________________________________  Alternate’s phone  __________________________________________
Nombre de contacto alterno   Teléfono del contacto alterno


HEALTH HISTORY/HISTORIAL MÉDICO Please fill in the bubbles as indicated below:
Do you currently have, or have you ever been treated for any of the following? Por favor rellene los círculos tal como se indica a continuación:


¿Tiene actualmente, o ha tenido alguna vez los siguientes? Incorrect:    Correct: 
 Incorrecto    Correcto


Yes/Sí No/No Condition/Padecimiento Explain/Explique


Asthma Last attack: (MM/YY) 
Asma  Último ataque: (MM/AA)


Diabetes Last HbA1c: (Percentage) 
Diabetes  Última HbA1c: (Porcentaje)


Hypertension (high blood pressure) 
Hipertensión (presión alta)


Heart disease/heart attack/chest pain/heart murmur 
Enfermedad del corazón/infarto/dolores de pecho/soplo cardíaco 


Stroke/TIA 
Apoplejía/Accidente isquémico transitorio


Lung/respiratory disease 
Enfermedades pulmonares/respiratorias


Ear/sinus problems 
Problemas del oído/senos paranasales


Muscular/skeletal condition 
Condiciones musculares/óseas


Menstrual problems (women only) 
Problemas menstruales (sólo mujeres)


Psychiatric/psychological and emotional difficulties 
Dificultades psiquiátricas/psicológicas y emocionales


Behavioral/neurological disorders 
Trastornos de conducta/neurológicos


Bleeding disorders 
Enfermedades hemorrágicas


Fainting spells 
Desmayos


Thyroid disease 
Enfermedades de la tiroides


Kidney disease 
Enfermedades del riñón


Sickle cell disease 
Anemia falciforme


Seizures Last seizure: (MM/YY)
Convulsiones  Última convulsión: (MM/AA)


Sleep disorders (e.g., sleep apnea) 
Trastornos del sueño (por ejemplo, síndrome de apnea-hipopnea durante el sueño)


Use CPAP:  Yes No  
Usa CPAP                  Sí                 No


Abdominal/digestive problems 
Problemas abdominales/digestivos


Surgery Last surgery: (MM/YY) 
Cirugía Última cirugía: (MM/AA)


Serious injury 
Lesión grave


Excessive fatigue or shortness of breath with exercise 
Fatiga en exceso o dificultad para respirar al hacer ejercicio


Other 
Otro


High-adventure base participants:
Participantes en la base de aventura extrema:
Expedition/crew No.  
Expedición/grupo no.: ______________________________
or staff position 
o puesto fijo:  _____________________________________


%


PART A (continued on next page)Page 1 of 2







MEDICATIONS List all medications currently used. (If additional space is needed, please photocopy this part of the  
health form.) Inhalers and EpiPen information must be included, even if they are for occasional or emergency use only.


MEDICAMENTOS Enumere todos los medicamentos que usa en la actualidad. (Si requiere espacio adicional, favor de sacar una fotocopia de esta 
parte del formulario.) Se debe incluir información sobre inhaladores y EpiPen, incluso si son sólo para uso ocasional o en caso de emergencia. 


Administration of the above medications  
is approved by (if required by your state): _________________________________________________________/ _______________________________________________________
La administración de los medicamentos arriba Parent/guardian signature and/or MD/DO, NP, or PA signature
mencionados está aprobada por (si lo requiere su estado) Firma del padre o tutor y/o Firma del Dr., Enfermera  
   profesional, Asistente médico


Bring enough medications in sufficient quantities and in the original containers. Make sure that they are NOT expired, including inhalers 
and EpiPens. You SHOULD NOT STOP taking any maintenance medication unless instructed to do so by your doctor.


Asegurarse de traer los medicamentos en cantidades suficientes y en los envases originales. Asegurarse de que NO ESTÉN 
CADUCADOS, incluyendo inhaladores y EpiPens. NO DEBE DEJAR DE tomar cualquier medicamento de mantenimiento a menos 
que se lo indique su médico.


 No medications 
 Sin medicamentos


 Additional medications (sheet attached)
 Medicamentos adicionales (hoja anexa)


680-001 
2012 Printing


Rev. 9/2012


HEALTH HISTORY/HISTORIAL MÉDICO 


Please fill in the bubbles as indicated: 
Por favor rellene los círculos tal como se indica:


Incorrect: 
  


 Correct: 
Incorrecto Correcto


Page 2 of 2


Yes/Sí No/No Allergies or Reaction to 
Alergias o Reacciones a


Explain 
Explique


Medication 
Medicamentos


Food, plants, or insect bites 
Alimentos, plantas o picaduras de insectos


The following immunizations are recommended by the BSA. Tetanus immunization is required and must have been received within the last 10 years. For each 
item, indicate if you have been immunized, the date of the immunization (MM/YY), if you have had the disease, and the date (MM/YY). 


BSA recomienda las siguientes vacunas. La vacuna contra el Tétanos es obligatoria y debe haberla recibido en los últimos 10 años. Por cada punto, indique si ha sido vacunado, la fecha 
en que la recibió (MM/AA), si ha padecido la enfermedad, y la fecha (MM/AA).


Immunized? 
¿Vacunado? Immunizations 


Vacunas
Date (MM/YY) 
Fecha (MM/AA)


Had Disease?
¿La ha padecido? Date (MM/YY) 


Fecha (MM/AA)
Yes/Sí No/No Yes/Sí No/No


Tetanus 
Tétano


Pertussis 
Tos ferina


Diphtheria 
Difteria


Measles 
Sarampión


Mumps 
Paperas


Rubella 
Rubéola


Polio 
Polio


Chicken pox 
Varicela


Hepatitis A 
Hepatitis A


Hepatitis B 
Hepatitis B


Meningitis 
Meningitis


Influenza 
Influenza


Other (i.e., HIB) 
Otra (por ejemplo, HIB)


Exemption to immunizations claimed (form required). 
Exención de vacunas solicitada (formulario obligatorio).


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Medication  
Medicamento _________________________________________


Strength   Frequency 
Dosis  ____________________   Frecuencia  ________________


Approximate date started  
Fecha aproximada de inicio _____________________________


Reason for medication 
Razón del medicamento ________________________________


______________________________________________________


Are you allergic to or do you have any adverse reaction to any of the following?
¿Es alérgico a, o le causa alguna reacción adversa cualquiera de los siguientes?


P
ar


t 
A


  
Fu


ll 
na


m
e:


  _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
 


D
O


B
:  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


P
ar


te
 A


 
N


o
m


b
re


 c
o


m
p


le
to


  
 


Fe
ch


a 
d


e 
na


ci
m


ie
nt


o
 







High-adventure base participants: 
Participantes en la base de aventura extrema:
Expedition/crew No./Expedición/grupo no.:  ______________________________
or staff position/o puesto fijo:  ___________________________________________Part B/Parte B


Informed Consent and release agreement
I understand that participation in Scouting activities involves 
a certain degree of risk and can be physically, mentally, and 
emotionally demanding. I also understand that participation in 
these activities is entirely voluntary and requires participants to 
abide by applicable rules and standards of conduct. 


In case of an emergency involving me or my child, I understand 
that every effort will be made to contact the individual listed as the 
emergency contact person. In the event that this person cannot 
be reached, permission is hereby given to the medical provider 
selected by the adult leader in charge to secure proper treatment, 
including hospitalization, anesthesia, surgery, or injections of 
medication for me or my child. Medical providers are authorized to 
disclose protected health information to the adult in charge, camp 
medical staff, camp management, and/or any physician or health 
care provider involved in providing medical care to the participant. 
Protected Health Information/Confidential Health Information (PHI/
CHI) under the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information, 45 C.F.R. §§160.103, 164.501, etc. seq., 
as amended from time to time, includes examination findings, 
test results, and treatment provided for purposes of medical 
evaluation of the participant, follow-up and communication with 
the participant’s parents or guardian, and/or determination of the 
participant’s ability to continue in the program activities.


I have carefully considered the risk involved and give consent for 
myself and/or my child to participate in these activities. I approve 
the sharing of the information on this form with BSA volunteers  
and professionals who need to know of medical situations that 
might require special consideration for the safe conducting of 
Scouting activities.


I release the Boy Scouts of America, the local council, the activity 
coordinators, and all employees, volunteers, related parties, or 
other organizations associated with the activity from any and all 
claims or liability arising out of this participation.


I hereby assign and grant to the local council and the Boy Scouts 
of America the right and permission to use and publish the 
photographs/film/videotapes/electronic representations and/or 
sound recordings made of me or my child at all Scouting activities, 
and I hereby release the Boy Scouts of America, the local council, 
the activity coordinators, and all employees, volunteers, related 
parties, or other organizations associated with the activity from any 
and all liability from such use and publication.


I hereby authorize the reproduction, sale, copyright, exhibit, 
broadcast, electronic storage, and/or distribution of said 
photographs/film/videotapes/electronic representations and/
or sound recordings without limitation at the discretion of the 
Boy Scouts of America, and I specifically waive any right to any 
compensation I may have for any of the foregoing.


notIfICaCIÓn de ConsentImIento Y eXoneraCIÓn de resPonsaBIlIdad
Entiendo que la participación en actividades Scouting implica un cierto 
grado de riesgo y que pueden ser física, mental y emocionalmente 
agotadoras. Asimismo, entiendo que la participación en dichas actividades 
es completamente voluntaria y requiere que los participantes se acaten a 
las reglas y estándares de conducta pertinentes. 


En caso de que yo, o mi hijo, nos veamos involucrados en un caso de 
emergencia, entiendo que se hará todo lo posible para contactar al 
individuo mencionado como persona a contactar en caso de emergencia. 
En caso de que dicha persona no pueda ser localizada, por este medio 
otorgo permiso al proveedor de servicios médicos seleccionado por el 
líder adulto a cargo para asegurar que se proporcione el tratamiento 
adecuado, incluyendo hospitalización, anestesia, cirugía o inyecciones 
de medicamentos para mí o mi hijo. Los proveedores médicos están 
autorizados a compartir información médica protegida con el adulto 
a cargo, el personal médico del campamento, la administración del 
campamento, o cualquier médico o proveedor de servicios médicos 
involucrado en la administración de atención médica al participante. La 
Información médica protegida/Información médica confidencial (PHI/CHI, 
por sus siglas en inglés) bajo los Estándares de privacidad de información 
médica individualmente identificable, 45 C.F.R. §§160.103, 164.501, etc., 
y siguientes como se enmiendan de vez en cuando, incluye resultados 
de reconocimientos médicos, resultados de pruebas y tratamiento 
proporcionado para propósitos de evaluación médica del participante, 
seguimiento y comunicación con los padres o tutor del participante, 
y determinación de la habilidad del participante de continuar con las 
actividades del programa. 


He considerado cuidadosamente el riesgo implicado y he dado el 
consentimiento para mí mismo o mi hijo de participar en dichas 
actividades. Apruebo que se comparta la información contenida en este 
formulario con los voluntarios y profesionales de BSA que necesiten tener 
conocimiento de condiciones médicas que puedan requerir consideración 
especial para la realización de actividades Scouting de manera segura.


Eximo a Boy Scouts of America, al concilio local, a los coordinadores de la 
actividad y a todos los empleados, voluntarios, grupos involucrados u otras 
organizaciones asociadas con la actividad, de cualquier y toda reclamación 
o responsabilidad que surja a raíz de esta participación.


Por este conducto asigno y otorgo al concilio local y a Boy Scouts of 
America el derecho y permiso para usar y publicar las fotografías/películas/
videocintas/representaciones electrónicas y grabaciones de sonido de mí 
o mi hijo realizadas en todas las actividades Scouting, y por este medio 
exonero a Boy Scouts of America, al concilio local, a los coordinadores 
de la actividad y a todos los empleados, voluntarios, grupos involucrados 
u otras organizaciones asociadas con la actividad, de cualquier y toda 
responsabilidad por dicho uso y publicación.


Por este conducto autorizo la reproducción, venta, derechos reservados, 
exhibición, transmisión, almacenamiento electrónico y distribución de 
dichas fotografías/películas/ videocintas/representaciones electrónicas 
y grabaciones de sonido sin limitación a discreción de Boy Scouts 
of America, y específicamente renuncio a cualquier derecho de 
compensación alguna que pueda tener por cualquiera de lo anterior.


 Without restrictions./Sin restricciones.


 With special considerations or restrictions (list)/Con condiciones especiales o restricciones (lista):


________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


 Yes/Sí


 No/No


PART B (continued on next page)Page 1 of 2


P
ar


t 
B


  
Fu


ll 
na


m
e:


  _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
 


D
O


B
:  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


P
ar


te
 B


 
N


o
m


b
re


 c
o


m
p


le
to


  
 


Fe
ch


a 
d


e 
na


ci
m


ie
nt


o
 







680-001 
2012 Printing


Rev. 9/2012


Page 2 of 2


ADULTS AUTHORIZED TO TAKE YOUTH TO AND FROM EVENTS: 
You must designate at least one adult. Please include a  
telephone number.


I understand that, if any information I/we have provided is 
found to be inaccurate, it may limit and/or eliminate the 
opportunity for participation in any event or activity. 


If I am participating at Philmont, Philmont Training Center, 
Northern Tier, Florida Sea Base, or the Summit Bechtel 
Reserve: I have also read and understand the risk advisories 
explained in Part D, including height and weight requirements 
and restrictions, and understand that the participant will 
not be allowed to participate in applicable high-adventure 
programs if those requirements are not met. The participant 
has permission to engage in all high-adventure activities 
described, except as specifically noted by me or the health-
care provider. If the participant is under the age of 18, a parent 
or guardian’s signature is required.


ADULTOS AUTORIZADOS PARA TRANSPORTAR AL NIÑO HACIA Y DESDE 
LOS EVENTOS:
Debe designar por lo menos a un adulto. Por favor incluya un número telefónico. 


Entiendo que, si cualquier información que he/hemos proporcionado 
es errónea, puede limitar o eliminar la oportunidad de participación en 
cualquier evento o actividad.


Si participo en Philmont, el Centro de Capacitación Philmont, 
Northern Tier, la Base Marina de la Florida o Summit Bechtel Reserve: 
También he leído y entiendo las advertencias de riesgo explicadas 
en la Parte D, incluyendo los requisitos y restricciones de estatura y 
peso, y entiendo que al participante no se le permitirá intervenir en 
programas de aventura extrema si dichos requisitos no se cumplen. 
El participante tiene permiso de intervenir en todas las actividades 
de aventura extrema descritas, excepto aquellas específicamente 
señaladas por mí o el proveedor de servicios médicos. Si el 
participante es menor de 18 años, se requiere la firma de el padre/
madre o tutor. 


1. Name/Nombre __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono  ________________________


2. Name/Nombre __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono ________________________


3. Name/Nombre __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono ________________________


Adults NOT authorized to take youth to and from events/Adultos NO autorizados para transportar al niño hacia y desde los eventos:


1. Name/Nombre  __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono ________________________


2. Name/Nombre  __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono ________________________


3. Name/Nombre __________________________________________________________________________Telephone/Teléfono ________________________


Participant’s name/Nombre del participante _____________________________________________________________________________________________


Participant’s signature/Firma del participante   Date/Fecha 


Parent/guardian’s signature/Firma del padre o tutor   Date/Fecha 
 (if participant is under the age of 18/si el participante es menor de 18 años)


Second parent/guardian signature/Firma del otro padre o tutor   Date/Fecha 
 (if required; for example, CA/si se requiere; por ejemplo en CA)


This Annual Health and Medical Record is valid for 12 calendar months. 
Este Registro Médico y de Salud Anual tiene vigencia por 12 meses calendario.


P
ar


t 
B


  
Fu


ll 
na


m
e:


  _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
 


D
O


B
:  


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
_


P
ar


te
 B


 
N


o
m


b
re


 c
o


m
p


le
to


  
 


Fe
ch


a 
d


e 
na


ci
m


ie
nt


o
 







1


TOUR AND ACTIVITY PLAN
Date  __________________________________________________________________________


 Pack     Troop/team     Crew/Ship     Contingent unit/crew   
Unit No. _________ Chartered organization  __________________________________________


Council name/No. ________________________________________________/_______________


District _________________________________________________________________________


Description of tour or activity  ______________________________________________________


From (city and state)  ______________________________to  _____________________________


Dates _________________________ to  ________________________  Total days ____________


Itinerary: It is required that the following information be provided for each day of the tour. 
(Note: Speed or excessive daily mileage increases the possibility of accidents.) Attach an addi-
tional page if more space is required. Include detailed information on campsites, routes, and 
�oat plans,  and include maps for wilderness travel as required by the local council.


Date
Travel


Mileage Overnight stopping place  
(Check if reservations are cleared.)From To


Type of trip:    Day trip     Short-term camp (less than 72 hours)     Other (OA Weekend, etc.)  _________________________________  


  Long-term camp (longer than 72 hours)     High-adventure activities     High-adventure base____________________


Party will consist of (number):
____ Youth—male ____ Youth—female
____ Adults—male ____ Adults—female


Party will travel by (check all that apply):
 Car              Bus              Train              Plane              Van              Boat 
 Other ______________________________________________________________


Leadership and Youth Protection Training: Boy Scouts of America policy requires at least two adult leaders on all BSA activities. Coed 
Venturing crews must have both male and female leaders older than 21 for overnight activities. All registered adults must have completed  
BSA Youth Protection training. At least one registered adult who has completed BSA Youth Protection training must be present at all events and 
activities. Youth Protection training is valid for two years from the date completed. 


Adult leader responsible for this group (must be at least 21 years old):


 Name ____________________________________ Age _______ Scouting position _________________________________________________ 


 Address __________________________________________________________________________________  Member No.  ________________


 City __________________________________________________________ State _______________ Zip code  ___________________________


 Phone _______________________________ Email  ___________________________________  Youth Protection training date ______________


Assistant adult leader name(s) (minimum age 18, or 21 for Venturing crews): 


 Name ____________________________________ Age _______ Scouting position _________________________________________________ 


 Address __________________________________________________________________________________  Member No.  ________________


 City __________________________________________________________ State _______________ Zip code  ___________________________


 Phone _______________________________ Email  ___________________________________  Youth Protection training date ______________


Attach a list with additional names and information as outlined above.


 Our travel equipment will include a �rst-aid kit and a roadside emergency kit.


 The group will have in possession an Annual Health and Medical Record for every participant.


We certify that appropriate planning has been conducted using the Sweet 16 of BSA Safety, quali�ed and trained supervision is in place, 
permissions are secured, health records have been reviewed, and adult leaders have read and are in possession of a current copy of  
Guide to Safe Scouting and other appropriate resources. Any items needing attention will be resolved before the tour or activity date.


 
Signature: Committee chair or chartered organization representative Signature: Adult leader 


Unit single point of contact (not on tour) 


Name  ____________________________________Phone  __________________Email_________________________________________________


For o�ce use


Tour and activity plan No.  ____________


Date received  _______________________


Date reviewed  ______________________


Council stamp/signatures







2


Tour involves:   Swimming  Boating  Climbing  Orienta hts (attach Flying Plan required) 
  Wilderness or backcountry (must carry Wilderness Use Policy and follow principles of Leave No Trace) 
  Shooting  Other (specify) 


Activity Standards: Where swimming or boating is included in the program, Safe Swim Defense and/or Safety A oat are to be followed. If 
climbing/rappelling is included, then Climb On Safely must be followed. At least one person must be current in CPR/AED from any recognized 
agency to meet Safety A at and Climb On Safely guidelines. At least one adult on a pack overnighter must have completed Basic Adult Leader 
Outdoor Orientation (BALOO). At least one adult must have completed Planning and Preparing for Hazardous Weather training for all tours and 
activities. Trek Safely and Basic First Aid are recommended for all tours, and  Wilderness First Aid is recommended for all backcountry tours.


Expiration date of commitment card/training (two years from completion date)


Name Age Youth 
Protection


Planning and  
Preparing  


for Hazardous  
Weather


BALOO
(no  


expiration)


Climb On Safely Safe Swim 
Defense


Safety A at


Name Age CPR Cer ation/Agency CPR Expiration 
Date


First-Aid Cer ation/Agency First Aid  
Expiration Date


Name Age NRA Instructor and/or RSO


No. _______  R  Shotgun      Pistol (Venturing only)      Range Safety O cer      
 Muzzle-loading r  Muzzle-loading shotgun


No. _______  R  Shotgun      Pistol (Venturing only)      Range Safety O cer      
 Muzzle-loading r  Muzzle-loading shotgun


Unauthorized and Restricted Activities: The BSA’s general liability insurance policy provides coverage for bodily injury or property damage 
that arises out of an o cial Scouting activity as d ned by the Guide to Safe Scouting. Volunteers, units, chartered organizations, and local 
councils that engage in unauthorized activities are jeopardizing their insurance coverage. PLEASE DO NOT PUT YOURSELF AT RISK.
INSURANCE
All vehicles MUST be covered by a liability and property damage insurance policy. The amount of this coverage must meet or exceed the 
insurance requirement of the state in which the vehicle is licensed and comply with or exceed the requirements of the country of destination for 
travel outside the United States. It is recommended, however, that coverage limits are a $100,000 combined single limit. Any vehicle designed 
to carry 10 or more passengers is required to have a $500,000 combined single limit. In the case of rented vehicles, the requirement of coverage 
limits can be met by combining the limits of personal coverage carried by the driver with coverage carried by the owner of the rented vehicle. 


If the vehicle to be used is designed to carry more than 15 people (including the driver), the driver must have a valid commercial driver’s license 
(CDL). In some states (California, for example), this policy applies to drivers of vehicles designed to carry 10 or more people.


All vehicles used in travel outside the United States must carry a public liability and property damage liability insurance policy that complies 
with or exceeds the requirements of that country. Attach an additional page if more space is required.


Name  ___________________________________________________________  CDL expires  ___________________________________________


Name  ___________________________________________________________  CDL expires  ___________________________________________


680-014 
2011 Printing 
Rev. 12/2011


MAKE MODEL YEAR


NU
M


BE
R 


O
F 


SA
FE


TY
 B


EL
TS


DRIVER/OWNER


VALID 
DRIVER’S
LICENSE
(Y or N)


LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE


Combined Single Limit


Guide to Tour Planning Principles







302 Resources


Den Leader Training Award


Progress Record


Candidate’s Personal Information
Name: ______________________________________________________________________________________________


Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________________
 City State Zip


Email: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Pack No. ______________________  District: ___________________________________________________________________________


Council Name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________


Select One:
❏ Tiger Cub den leader


❏ Wolf Cub Scout den leader


❏ Bear Cub Scout den leader


❏ Webelos den leader


Note: This award can be earned in each position, but tenure may be used only for one award.


Tenure
Complete one year as a registered den leader in the position selected. Tiger Cub den leader’s tenure can be the program year as 
long as it is greater than eight months.


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


Training
❏ Complete the basic training for the selected den leader position.


❏ Complete This Is Scouting training.


❏  Attend a pow wow or university of Scouting (or equivalent), 
or attend at least four roundtables (or equivalent) during the 
tenure used for this award.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Cubmaster Date


Performance
Do five of the following during the tenure used for this award:


❏  Have an assistant den leader who meets regularly with your den.


❏  Have a den chief who meets regularly with your den.


❏  Graduate at least 70 percent of your den to the next level.


❏  Take leadership in planning and conducting a den service project.


❏  Have a published den meeting/activity schedule for the 
den’s parents.


❏  Participate with your den in a Cub Scout day camp or 
resident camp.


❏  Complete Basic Adult Leader Outdoor Orientation (BALOO).


❏  Complete Outdoor Leader Skills for Webelos Leaders.


❏  Participate with your den in at least one family camp; if your 
den is a Webelos den, participate with your den in at least 
two overnight camps.


❏  Take leadership in planning two den outdoor activities.


❏  Hold monthly den meeting and den activity planning 
sessions with your assistant den leaders.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Pack Committee Chair Date


Training Committee Action
The leadership training committee has reviewed this application and accepts the certification that the candidate meets the 
required standards. The Den Leader Training Award is approved.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 District or Council Training Committee Chair Date


511-052
2012 Printing







303Resources


Scouter’s Training Award for Cub Scouting


Progress Record


Candidate’s Personal Information


Name: ______________________________________________________________________________________________


Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________________
 City State Zip


Email: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Pack No. ______________________  District: ___________________________________________________________________________


Council Name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________


Tenure


Complete at least two years of tenure as a registered adult leader in a Cub Scout pack.


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


Training


❏ Complete basic training for any Cub Scout leader position.


❏ Complete This Is Scouting training.


❏  Attend a pow wow or university of Scouting (or equivalent), 
or attend at least four roundtables (or equivalent) during 
each year of the tenure used for this award.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Pack Committee Chair Date


Performance


Do the following during the tenure used for this award:


❏  Participate in an annual pack planning meeting in each year.


❏  Serve as an adult leader in a pack that achieves at least the 
Bronze level of Journey to Excellence in each year. The Quality 
Unit Award is acceptable if the tenure used is prior to 2011.


❏  Give primary leadership in meeting at least one pack 
Journey to Excellence objective in each year.


❏  Participate in at least one additional supplemental or 
advanced training event at the council, area, region,  
or national level during the two years.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Pack Committee Chair Date


Training Committee Action


The leadership training committee has reviewed this application and accepts the certification that the candidate meets the 
required standards. The Scouter’s Training Award is approved.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 District or Council Training Committee Chair Date


511-057
2012 Printing







304 Resources


Cubmaster’s Key


Progress Record


Candidate’s Personal Information
Name: ______________________________________________________________________________________________


Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________________
 City State Zip


Email: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


Pack No. ______________________  District: ___________________________________________________________________________


Council Name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________


Tenure
Within a five-year period, complete at least three years of registered tenure as a Cubmaster or one year as a registered assistant 
Cubmaster plus two years as a registered Cubmaster. (This can include the tenure used to earn the Scouter’s Training Award.)


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


From __________________________________________________  to  ________________________________________________________


Training
❏ Complete basic training for Cubmasters.


❏ Complete This Is Scouting training.


❏  Attend a pow wow or university of Scouting (or equivalent), 
or attend at least four roundtables (or equivalent) during 
each year of the tenure used for this award.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Pack Committee Chair Date


Performance
Do the following during the tenure used for this award:


❏  Achieve at least the Silver level of Journey to Excellence for 
at least two years. The Quality Unit Award is acceptable if 
the tenure used is prior to 2011.


❏  Earn the National Summertime Pack Award at least once.


❏  Conduct an annual pack planning session and have a 
published pack meeting/activity schedule for the pack’s 
parents in each year.


❏  Participate in at least one additional supplemental or 
advanced training event at the council, area, region, or 
national level.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 Pack Committee Chair Date


Training Committee Action
The leadership training committee has reviewed this application and accepts the certification that the candidate meets the 
required standards. The Cubmaster’s Key is approved.


Approved by:


_________________________________________________________   ________________________________________________________
 District or Council Training Committee Chair Date


511-053
2012 Printing







305Resources


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Date Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Pack Meeting 1


8 9 10 11 12 13 14 New Boy Recruiting 2 3 4 5 6 7 8


15 16 17 18 19 20 21 9 10 11 12 13 14 15


22 23 24 25 26 27 28 16 17 18 19 20 21 22


29 1 Pack Meeting 23 24 25 26 27 28 29


30 1


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat


1 2 3 4 5 Pack Meeting Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5


13 14 15 16 17 18 19 6 7 8 9 10 11 12


20 21 22 23 24 25 26 13 14 15 16 17 18 19


27 28 29 30 31 Pack Meeting 20 21 22 23 24 25 26


27 28 29 30


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat


1 2 Pack Meeting Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3


10 11 12 13 14 15 16 4 5 6 7 8 9 10


17 18 19 20 21 22 23 11 12 13 14 15 16 17


24 25 26 27 28 29 30 8 BSA Anniversary Day 18 19 20 21 22 23 24


Blue and Gold Banquet 25 26 27 28 29 30 31


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Pack Meeting Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 1 2 3 4 5 6 7


15 16 17 18 19 20 21 8 9 10 11 12 13 14


22 23 24 25 26 27 28 15 16 17 18 19 20 21


29 30 31 Pack Meeting 22 23 24 25 26 27 28


29 1


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat


1 2 3 4 Pack Meeting Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 1 2 3 4 5


12 13 14 15 16 17 18 6 7 8 9 10 11 12


19 20 21 22 23 24 25 13 14 15 16 17 18 19


26 27 28 29 30 31 Summertime Activity 20 21 22 23 24 25 26


27 28 29 30 31


Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat


1 Summertime Activity Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2


9 10 11 12 13 14 15 3 4 5 6 7 8 9


16 17 18 19 20 21 22 10 11 12 13 14 15 16


23 24 25 26 27 28 Summertime Activity 17 18 19 20 21 22 23


24 25 26 27 28 29 30


31


For more information, contact at
Name Phone or e-mail


August 2014


AUG 2014
FEB 2014


July 2014


May 2014


June 2014


JULY 2014
JAN 2014


March 2014


April 2014


JUNE 2014
DEC 2013


February 2014


MAY 2014
NOV 2013


January 2014


December 2013


OCT 2013
APR 2014November 2013


Date


October 2013


Cub Scout Pack No.


2013-2014 Calendar
SEPT 2013 September 2013 MAR 2014







306 Resources


Find this great Pack Newsletter template at:
http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Leaders/ProgramPlanning.aspx
Or, on the CD.
There are 3 tabs at the bottom of the excel spreadsheet. You type in your packs information in the 
“Type Information Here” tab, See the generated newsletter and/or print from the “View & Print 
Newsletter” tab, or prepare the Newsletter for emailing in the “Prepare for Emailing” tab. What a 
great resource!


Name New Rank


Beginning balance:


Dues collected:
Wolf den


Expenditures:


Ending balance:


Notes:


Pack Leaders


 


Pack Meeting Plans for 


   Treasurer's Report


This MonthCub Scouts Advancing


Cub Scout Pack ,  Council


This Month's Theme: 


Den News
Tiger Cub den 


Webelos den


Bear den


Next Month's Theme:


Future Pack Activities and Events


Chartered to 


Pack meetings are held at the 


 on the 0  of the month at : 


Parent Opportunities


Please contact your den leader if you can help:







34-12 appendix


CUB SCOUTING AND YOUR FAMILY
The Cub Scout program helps to meet your boy’s growth needs. As a boy develops, he has 
specific developmental needs such as:


1 To learn new physical skills. He can do this through games, sports, and crafts. As he 
develops his coordination, he gains a sense of worthiness and acceptance by his peers.


2 To learn to get along with boys of his same age. He needs to form friendships with other 
boys. He needs to learn how to balance giving and receiving affection if he is to relate 
well to his peers. He needs to belong to a group of boys his own age. Being a part of a 
Cub Scout den helps fulfill these needs.


3 To develop his mental processes. He can develop his mental process by reading, writing, 
and calculating. He needs opportunities to use language to express ideas and to influ-
ence others. He must move from a preoccupation with self to understanding how and 
what others think of him. Opportunities for observation and experimentation will help 
him learn self-reliance. Den activities and meetings, along with the advancement pro-
gram, help him develop mentally.


4 To develop a value system. He is developing a sense of what is right and wrong and 
what is fair and unfair. He will do this by cooperating with other boys, by being taught, 
by examples of adults, and from positive reinforcement. He begins to develop demo-
cratic social attitudes.


5 To develop personal independence. He is becoming less dependent on adults. His same-
age friends become important to him. In his den, and in the pack, he exercises his inde-
pendence while learning to get along with others.


Your son also needs to belong to a ‘‘group’’ of boys his own age. This group is a key com-
ponent of the Cub Scout program. A den is like a neighborhood group of six or eight boys 
in which he will achieve status and recognition.


As you learn more about how Cub Scouting works and what goes on in a den and a pack, 
you will see that the program helps your boy in these five important developmental needs. 
The uniqueness of Cub Scouting is that you, as his family, join the program with your boy. 
You will help him all along the way.


To find out how you can support your boy by becoming a Cub Scout family, please turn the 
page and complete the Family Talent Survey Sheet*. Please turn it in at this meeting.


* Also may be titled Parent and Family Talent Survey Sheet.







FAMILY TALENT SURVEY SHEET


Each parent or adult family member should fill out a separate sheet
and turn it in at this meeting.


Pack  ___________________  Chartered Organization __________________________________Date ________________


Welcome to the Cub Scout family of our pack. As explained to you, Cub Scouting is for parents as well as boys. We 
have a fine group of families who have indicated a willingness to help, according to their abilities. We invite you to 
add your talents and interests so that the best possible program can be developed for your boy and his friends.


Den leaders are always busy with den activities. Our pack leaders and committee members know you have some 
talent that will help in the operation of our pack. Although your help may not be on a full-time basis, whatever you 
can do will be appreciated.


In making this survey, your pack committee wants to uncover ways you can enjoy giving assistance. Please answer 
the following as completely as possible:


1. My hobbies are:  __________________________________________________________________________________


2. I can play and/or teach these sports:  _________________________________________________________________


3. My job, business, or profession would be of interest to Cub Scouts:  ______________________________________


4. I am willing to help my boy and the pack as: ■ pack committee member, ■ Cub Scout den leader or assistant, 
 ■ Tiger Cub den leader, ■ assistant Cubmaster, ■ Webelos den leader or assistant, ■ Cubmaster, ■ Pack trainer.


5. My Scouting experience: Cub Scout ________________ Boy Scout _______________ Girl Scout _______________


 Explorer  _______________________________________ Rank attained ____________________________________  


 Adult leader ______________________________________________________________________________________


6. I can help in these areas:


General Activities  Special Program Assistance


■ Carpentry ■ Computer Skills ■ I have an SUV or ■ van or ■ truck.
■ Swimming ■ Drawing/art ■ I have a workshop.
■ Games ■ Radio/electricity ■ I have family camping gear.
■ Nature ■ Dramatics/skits ■ I can make contacts for special trips and activities.
■ Sports ■ Cooking/banquets ■ I have access to a cottage or camping property
■ Outdoor activities ■ Sewing ■ or a boat.
■ Crafts ■ Transportation ■ I can help Webelos Scouts with Boy Scout skills.
■ Music/songs ■ Other _________________ ■ I can, or know others who can, help with our Cub
■ Bookkeeping --- _______________________ ■ Scout Academics and Sports program.
	 	 ■ I can give other help.  _____________________________
  ■  ________________________________________________
Webelos Activity Areas  ■  ________________________________________________
■ Aquanaut
■ Artist
■ Athlete
■ Citizen
■ Communicator
■ Craftsman
■ Engineer


Name  _________________________________________________________  Home phone _________________________
Street address  _________________________________________________  Business phone ________________________
E-mail address ____________________________ City  ______________________________  State ____ ZIP__________
Your cooperation and help are appreciated.


■ Family Member
■ Fitness
■ Forester
■ Geologist
■ Handyman
■ Naturalist
■ Outdoorsman


■ Readyman
■ Scholar
■ Scientist
■ Showman
■ Sportsman
■ Traveler







510-274 
2011 Printing


BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.O. Box 152079
Irving, Texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


GUIDES TO UNIT MONEY-EARNING PROJECTS
A unit’s money-earning methods should reflect Scouting’s basic values. Whenever your unit is planning a money-earning project, this 
checklist can serve as your guide. If your answer is “Yes” to all the questions that follow, it is likely the project conforms to Scouting’s 
standards and will be approved.


1. Do you really need a fundraising project?


There should be a real need for raising money based on 
your unit’s program. Units should not engage in money-
earning projects merely because someone has offered an 
attractive plan. Remember that individual youth members 
are expected to earn their own way. The need should be 
beyond normal budget items covered by dues.


2. If any contracts are to be signed, will they be 
signed by an individual, without reference to  
the Boy Scouts of America and without binding the 
local council, the Boy Scouts of America, or the 
chartered organization? 


Before any person in your unit signs a contract,  
he/she must make sure the venture is legitimate and worthy. 
If a contract is signed, he/she is personally responsible. He/
she may not sign on behalf of the local council or the Boy 
Scouts of America, nor may he/she bind the chartered 
organization without its written authorization. If you are not 
sure, check with your district executive for help.


3. Will your fundraiser prevent promoters from trading on 
the name and goodwill of the Boy Scouts of America? 


Because of Scouting’s good reputation, customers rarely 
question the quality or price of a product.  The nationwide 
network of Scouting units must not become a beehive of 
commercial interest.


4. Will the fundraising activity uphold the good name of the 
BSA? Does it avoid games of chance, gambling, etc.?


Selling raffle tickets or other games of chance is a 
direct violation of the BSA Rules and Regulations, 
which forbid gambling. The product must not  
detract from the ideals and principles of the BSA.


5. If a commercial product is to be sold, will it be   sold on 
its own merits and without reference to the needs of 
Scouting?


All commercial products must sell on their own merits, not 
the benefit received by the Boy Scouts.  The principle of 
value received is critical in choosing what to sell.


6. If a commercial product is to be sold, will the fundraising 
activity comply with BSA policy on wearing the uniform?


The official uniform is intended to be worn primarily for use 
in connection with Scouting activities. However, council 
executive boards may approve use of the uniform for any 
fundraising activity. Typically, council popcorn sales or 
Scout show ticket sales are approved uniform fundraisers.


7. Will the fundraising project avoid soliciting money 
or gifts?


The BSA Rules and Regulations state, “Youth members 
shall not be permitted to serve as solicitors of money for 
their chartered organizations, for the local council, or in 
support of other organizations. Adult and youth members 
shall not be permitted to serve as solicitors of money in 
support of personal or unit participation in local, national, 
or international events.”


For example: Boy Scouts/Cub Scouts and leaders should 
not identify themselves as Boy Scouts/Cub Scouts or as a 
troop/pack participate in The Salvation Army’s Christmas 
Bell Ringing program. This would be raising money for 
another organization. At no time are units permitted to 
solicit contributions for unit programs.


8. Does the fundraising activity avoid competition with 
other units, your chartered organization, your local 
council, and the United Way?


Check with your chartered organization representative and 
your district executive to make certain that your chartered 
organization and the council agree on the dates and type 
of fundraiser.


The local council is responsible for upholding the Charter and Bylaws and the 
Rules and Regulations of the BSA. To ensure compliance, all unit fundraisers 
MUST OBTAIN WRITTEN APPROVAL from the local council NO LESS THAN  
14 DAYS before committing to the fundraising activity.







310 Resources


Unit Leader Award of Merit


Background
Quality unit leadership is the key to a quality unit program—and it leads to better Scout retention. Statistics show that if 
young people stay engaged in the program for at least five years, the BSA’s influence likely will stay with them for the rest 
of their lives. A quality Scouting experience will help keep Scouts in the program, and the Boy Scouts of America created 
the Unit Leader Award of Merit to recognize the quality unit leaders who make that happen.


The Unit Leader Award of Merit replaces the Scoutmaster, Varsity Team Coach, and Venturing Crew Advisor award of 
merit programs. This new recognition has revised requirements, and Cubmasters are also eligible for this recognition.


Requirements
The nominee must


1. Be a currently registered Cubmaster, Scoutmaster, Coach, or Advisor who has served in that position at least 18 
continuous months.


2. Meet the training requirements for the registered position. 


3. Distribute a printed or electronic annual unit program plan and calendar to each family in the unit.


4. Have a leader succession plan in place.


5. Effectively use the advancement method so that at least 60 percent of the unit’s youth have advanced at least once 
during the last 12 months.


6. Cultivate a positive relationship with the chartered organization.


7. Project a positive image of Scouting in the community.


Nomination Procedure
1. The unit committee chair completes the Unit Leader Award of Merit Nomination Form on behalf of the unit 


committee. For Boy Scout troops, Varsity Scout teams, and Venturer crews, the nomination must include 
endorsement by the senior patrol leader, team captain, or crew president, respectively.


2. The unit or district commissioner certifies that the form is complete.


3. The unit submits the nomination form to the council for approval by the Scout executive and council commissioner 
or president. The council is resposible for processing the award.


The Award
Upon receipt of the approved nomination form, the council may present the Unit Leader Award of Merit, which includes 
a certificate, square knot with the appropriate device, and a special unit leader emblem. Recognition of this achievement 
may be presented at appropriate district or council events, such as district or council leader recognition dinners, training 
events, and board meetings.


The award may be presented for each program, Cub Scouts, Boy Scouts, Varsity, and Venturing, if the individual meets the 
requirements in each program. Only one knot is worn with the devices of each program that the award was earned in. 


Unit Leader Award of Merit certificate, No. 512004 Scoutmaster emblem, No. 610093


Unit Leader Award of Merit square knot, No. 610091 Cubmaster emblem, No. 610094


Varsity coach emblem, No. 610092 Venturing Advisor emblem, No. 610095







311Resources


Unit Leader Award of Merit Nomination Form
Submit to your local council service center.


Nominee’s name as it is to appear on the certificate: _____________________________________________________________


Address  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________


City  ___________________________________________________________ State  ______________Zip_____________________


Select one:


 Cubmaster Pack No.   ________  Chartered organization  __________________________________________


 Scoutmaster Troop No.  ________  Chartered organization  __________________________________________


 Coach Team No.  ________  Chartered organization  __________________________________________


 Advisor Crew No.  ________  Chartered organization  __________________________________________


Service


Inclusive dates for the service in the above-selected position (include month and year; must be at least 18 continuous 


months of service in this position).


From _______________________ to ___________________________  Number months of service _______________________


Training


Date nominee completed training requirements for this position (month and year) ____________________________________


Unit Program Plan


 Yes, this nominee’s unit has an annual unit program plan and calendar, and it is shared with all families in the unit. 


 Unit committee chair initial ________________


Succession Plan


 Yes, the unit has a replacement recruited and committed to take over the nominee’s position as unit leader


if necessary.


 Replacement’s name ________________________________________________ Unit committee chair initial ____________


Advancement


  Yes, at least 60 percent of the members of the nominee’s unit have advanced at least once during the past 12 months.  


Unit committee chair initial ________________


Chartered Organization Relationship


  Yes, this nominee has a good relationship with the chartered organization.


 Unit committee chair initial _________________


Community Image


  Yes, this nominee has a positive image in our community.  


 Unit committee chair initial _________________


Please attach a statement by the unit committee chair on behalf of the unit committee attesting to the nominee’s 


performance as unit leader. For Scoutmaster nominations, also attach a statement by the troop’s senior patrol leader. 


For Varsity Scout Coach nominations, also attach a statement by the team captain. For crew Advisor nominations, also 


attach a statement by the crew president.


Nominated by _________________________________________  Certified by __________________________________________
 Unit Committee Chair Unit or District Commissioner


Date of nomination _____________________________________


Approved by ____________________________  Date  __________and  ____________________________  Date ____________
 Scout Executive Council Commissioner or President







312 Resources


Na
m


e
Ci


ty
Ph


on
e


Pr
ice


De
ta


ils


Be
ck


y &
 R


us
s K


nig
ht


Sa
lt L


ak
e C


ity
80


1-
63


1-
69


04
80


1-
63


1-
43


75
$7


5
42


' fo
ot 


dig
ita


l tr
ac


k. 
4 l


an
es


. C
om


pu
ter


 se
t-u


p a
nd


 fin
ish


 th
at 


re
co


rd
s s


pe
ed


 an
d p


lac
em


en
t o


f c
ar


s w
he


n t
he


y f
ini


sh
. 


W
ill 


co
me


 se
t-u


p a
nd


 ru
n t


he
 tr


ac
k.


Mi
ke


 &
 W


en
dy


 Je
ns


en
m


cj
_i


nv
es


t@
m


sn
�c


om
Sa


nd
y


80
1-


97
9-


33
27


$1
00


Br
an


d n
ew


 42
' 4


-la
ne


 al
um


ini
m 


tra
ck


, e
lec


tro
nic


 tim
er


/co
mp


ute
riz


ed
 re


su
lts


, w
ill 


ru
n t


he
 en


tire
 ev


en
t fr


om
 se


t-u
p t


o 
tak


e-
do


wn
. P


un
ctu


al 
an


d f
un


, c
an


 cr
ea


te 
an


 aw
ar


ds
 pa


ck
ag


e t
o f


it w
ith


in 
yo


ur
 bu


dg
et.


 In
qu


ire
 ab


ou
t o


ur
 re


ffe
ra


l 
dis


co
un


t p
ro


gr
am


. O
ur


 tr
ac


k i
s r


ais
ed


 of
f th


e g
ro


un
d s


o e
ve


ryo
ne


 ca
n e


njo
y t


he
 ra


ce
.


Ke
n D


ell
er


bo
ots


tre
am


@
gm


ail
.co


m 
 or


Ch
ar


lie
 C


am
be


ll
ch


ar
lie


c@
xm


iss
ion


.co
m


Ta
ylo


rsv
ille


80
1-


89
8-


78
75


80
1-


81
5-


22
64


$1
00


35
 ft.


 al
um


inu
m 


tra
ck


, 4
 la


ne
s, 


ele
ctr


on
ic 


fin
ish


, ti
me


r, 
co


mp
ute


r in
ter


fac
e. 


W
ill 


co
me


 an
d r


un
.


Br
en


t C
hr


ist
en


se
n


br
en


tcd
@


gm
ail


.co
m


80
1-


63
1-


68
97


$8
5 i


n D
av


is 
Co


un
ty


$9
5 i


n S
alt


 La
ke


 C
ou


nty
42


', 4
-la


ne
s. 


El
ec


tro
nic


 st
ar


t, f
ini


sh
 an


d t
im


er
s. 


No
n-


eli
mi


na
tio


n r
os


ter
 gi


ve
s e


ve
ry 


ca
r 4


 ra
ce


s. 
Fu


ll s
tat


s a
va


ila
ble


 
aft


er
 ra


ce
s. 


Ab
le 


to 
sh


ow
 na


me
s a


nd
 re


su
lts


 of
 ra


ce
s o


n T
V.


Ke
vin


 P
ow


ell
W


es
t V


all
ey


80
1-


25
0-


10
22


$4
0


4-
lan


es
, e


lec
ro


nic
 fin


ish
. H


e w
ill 


se
t-u


p &
 ru


n.
Br


ian
 Le


an
y


80
1-


96
8-


22
73


$4
0


35
' a


lum
inu


m 
2-


lan
e t


ra
ck


 w
ith


 tim
er


. W
ill 


se
t-u


p a
nd


 ru
n t


he
 tr


ac
k.


Da
n o


r J
an


 S
an


de
rs


26
06


 E
. C


as
to 


Ln
. (


50
60


 S
.)


Ho
lla


da
y


80
1-


27
8-


78
96


$5
0


4-
lan


es
, e


lec
tro


nic
 fin


ish
. Y


ou
 pi


ck
-u


p a
nd


 re
tur


n. 
Al


so
 ne


w 
tra


ck
s f


or
 sa


le.


Re
ed


 &
 C


an
dy


 H
aw


ke
s


 
22


26
 S


 76
0 W


, W
oo


ds
 C


ro
ss


80
1-


29
8-


27
58


$5
0


40
' tr


ac
k, 


4-
lan


es
, e


lec
tro


nic
 fin


ish
. S


ho
ws


 1s
t-4


th 
pla


ce
s. 


Yo
u p


ick
-u


p &
 re


tur
n. 


Ha
ve


 sc
ale


 if 
ne


ed
ed


.


Th
om


as
 L.


 P
ryo


r
Ko


old
ad


dy
yo


he
x@


ya
ho


o.c
om


Sa
lt L


ak
e C


ity
80


1-
96


8-
17


58
$5


0
32


' tr
ac


k, 
4-


lan
es


, e
lec


tro
nic


all
y t


im
ed


. $
40


 if 
yo


u d
o t


he
 w


or
k, 


$5
0 i


f h
e d


oe
s


Al
so


:S
tat


ion
 la


un
ch


 pa
d f


or
 2-


lite
r b


ott
le 


ro
ck


et 
fun


 - 
$4


0 i
f y


ou
 do


 th
e w


or
k, 


$5
0 i


f h
e d


oe
s. 


2 p
us


h c
ar


s f
or


 pu
sh


 ca
r d


er
by


 - 
$3


0 i
f y


ou
 do


 th
e w


or
k, 


$4
0 i


f h
e d


oe
s.


Di
ck


's 
Ho


me
 C


en
ter


Ce
nte


rvi
lle


80
1-


29
2-


14
71


$4
0 p


lus
 ta


x
32


' 3
 la


ne
s, 


ele
ctr


on
ic 


tim
er


, e
as


y s
et-


up


Do
n A


lle
n


71
48


 S
 29


85
 E


, S
LC


80
1-


94
3-


62
60


$7
5 i


f y
ou


 pi
ck


 up
 &


 re
tur


n
$8


5 i
f y


ou
 w


an
t D


on
 to


 ru
n i


t.
49


' a
lum


inu
m 


tra
ck


, 4
-la


ne
s, 


ele
ctr


ic 
tim


ing
, e


lec
tric


 st
ar


t, 2
 tr


ac
ks


' 1
 ca


ter
ed


, 
1 s


elf
-ru


n. 
I p


ro
vid


e c
ar


s t
o r


ac
e b


an
an


as
 at


 no
 ch


ar
ge


. F
un


 fo
r s


ibl
ing


s w
ho


 w
an


t in
vo


lve
me


nt.
St


ev
e N


ay
lor


So
uth


 S
alt


 La
ke


80
1-


48
4-


33
35


$8
0


3 l
an


es
, e


lec
tro


nic
 tim


er
 to


 1/
10


00
 se


co
nd


. 6
4' 


alu
mi


nu
m 


tra
ck


. H
e w


ill 
se


t-u
p &


 ru
n.


Ca
me


ro
n P


ar
ke


r
80


1-
57


7-
50


67
 80


1-
23


2-
95


54
$8


0
Br


an
d n


ew
 al


um
inu


m 
tra


ck
, fa


st 
tra


ck
 tim


er
s a


cc
ur


ate
 to


 1/
10


00
 pl


ac
e, 


ma
ny


 st
yle


 op
tio


ns
 fo


r r
ac


es
, w


eig
ht-


ins
 


ac
cu


ra
tel


y r
ec


or
de


d, 
ca


r g
rid


 bo
x t


ra
y t


o p
ro


tec
t c


ar
s, 


an
d r


un
 by


 E
ag


le 
Sc


ou
t b


ro
the


rs.
Da


vid
 R


en
nie


Ce
nte


rvi
lle


80
1-


29
8-


07
09


$6
0


Al
um


inu
m 


tra
ck


, v
er


y n
ice


, ti
me


r s
ho


ws
 pl


ac
e a


nd
 tim


e.
Mi


ch
ell


e D
ay


ww
w.


ru
sh


va
lle


yra
cin


g.c
om


80
1-


89
1-


77
23


$1
24


6-
lan


es
, d


igi
tal


 ov
er


 tr
ac


k d
isp


lay
, c


om
pu


ter
 &


 pr
oje


cto
r f


or
 in


sta
nta


ne
ou


s r
es


ult
s. 


W
e s


et-
up


, r
un


 th
e r


ac
e, 


pu
t o


n a
 


sh
ow


, a
nd


 ta
ke


 do
wn


.
Ro


wl
an


d B
olm


an
ro


wl
an


d.b
olm


an
@


gm
ail


.co
m


W
es


t J
or


da
n


80
1-


36
1-


43
95


$1
00


W
ill 


co
me


 se
t-u


p &
 ru


n r
ac


e. 
Ne


w 
co


mp
ute


r r
un


 4-
lan


e a
lum


inu
m 


tra
ck


 w
/el


ec
tric


 tim
er


 an
d p


rin
tab


le 
re


po
rts


!
An


dr
ew


 F
all


on
Ea


gle
 M


ou
nta


in
80


1-
78


9-
34


45
$5


0-
$1


00
3-


lan
es


, d
igi


tal
 tim


er
, c


om
pu


ter
 so


ftw
ar


d a
va


ila
ble


. W
ill 


se
t-u


p &
 ta


ke
 do


wn
.


Gl
en


n J
ew


ke
s


jew
ke


se
ng


ine
er


ing
@


gm
ail


.co
m


80
1-


40
3-


47
02


$1
00


 in
 S


alt
 La


ke
 C


ou
nty


$1
50


 ou
tsi


de
 th


e S
alt


 La
ke


 
Va


lle
y


W
ill 


se
t-u


p t
ra


ck
, w


eig
h c


ar
s &


 gi
ve


 af
 ul


l s
er


vic
e r


un
nin


g o
f r


ac
e. 


W
ill 


fin
d t


he
 to


p 4
 fa


ste
st 


ca
rs 


an
d c


re
at 


a w
inn


er
 in


 
ev


er
yo


ne
 th


at 
pa


rtic
ipa


tes
. M


y g
oa


l is
 to


 cr
ea


te 
ex


cit
em


en
t &


 a 
fun


 en
vir


on
me


nt 
for


 al
l. P


ro
fes


sio
na


l 4
-la


ne
 w


oo
d t


ra
ck


wi
th 


ele
ctr


ic 
ey


e o
n t


he
 .0


00
1 a


t th
e f


ini
sh


 lin
e. 


No
 w


re
ck


s o
n o


ur
 tr


ac
k! 


If 1
st 


pla
ce


 w
inn


er
 ca


n b
ea


t m
y c


ar
, th


e t
ra


ck
 


re
nta


l is
 fr


ee
!


Tim
 W


illi
am


s
kli


pb
oa


rd
55


@
ya


ho
o.c


om
or Aa


ro
n W


illi
am


s
aa


ro
nw


illi
am


s1
00


@
gm


ail
.co


m


Sa
nd


y


80
1-


56
1-


51
63


80
1-


88
9-


82
78


 ce
ll


38
5-


25
2-


97
31


$1
00


Fu
el 


an
d t


ra
ve


l c
ha


rg
es


 m
ay


 
be


 ad
de


d t
o r


ac
es


 ou
tsi


de
 


the
 gr


ea
ter


 S
alt


 La
ke


 ar
ea


Re
nt 


my
 B


ES
T 


TR
AC


K.
  T


he
 or


igi
na


l a
ll a


lum
inu


m 
pin


ew
oo


d d
er


by
 ra


ce
 tr


ac
k. 


 A
 4-


lan
e, 


ele
va


ted
 42


 fo
ot 


tra
ck


 w
ith


 
dig


ita
l e


lec
tro


nic
 LE


D 
fin


ish
 lin


e t
ha


t a
uto


ma
tic


all
y c


alc
ula


tes
 tim


es
 to


 on
e t


en
 th


ou
sa


nd
th 


of 
a s


ec
on


d. 
 A


 co
mp


ute
r 


pr
oje


cte
d b


ig 
sc


re
en


 ra
ce


 an
aly


sis
 sh


ow
s a


ll a
sp


ec
ts 


of 
ev


er
y r


ac
e s


o y
ou


 ca
n s


ee
 yo


ur
 re


su
lts


 im
me


dia
tel


y.
Ex


pe
rie


nc
e t


he
 be


st 
ra


ce
 ev


er
!  Y


ou
 br


ing
 th


e c
ar


s -
 w


e'l
l d


o t
he


 re
st.


 


Br
an


do
n M


ille
r


bm
w


sa
l@


ho
tm


ai
l�c


om
Ma


ple
ton


80
1-


42
7-


72
04


$1
20


W
ill 


se
t-u


p, 
ru


n a
nd


 ta
ke


 do
wn


 tr
ac


k-I
 ta


ke
 al


l th
e r


es
po


ns
ibi


lity
. B


ra
nd


 ne
w 


4-
lan


e t
ra


ck
 ap


pr
ox


im
ate


ly 
42


' lo
ng


. 
El


ec
tro


nic
 fin


ish
 lin


e s
ho


wi
ng


 pl
ac


em
en


t. T
ra


ck
 is


 C
ub


 S
co


ut 
ye


llo
w.


 C
om


pu
ter


 ge
ne


ra
ted


 ra
cin


g h
ea


ts.
 "F


un
" r


ac
ing


 
all


ow
ed


 fo
r a


 fe
w 


mi
nu


tes
 af


ter
wa


rd
. W


illi
ng


 to
 ac


co
mo


da
te 


sp
ec


ial
 re


qu
es


ts.
 T


ra
ck


 is
 H


ot 
W


he
els


 ca
rs 


co
mp


ati
ble


. I 
ch


ar
ge


 ex
tra


 be
ca


us
e I


 dr
ive


 fr
om


 M
ap


let
on


.


Ko
re


y M
ar


sh
ko


re
y.m


ar
sh


@
ho


tm
ail


.co
m


Sa
nd


y
80


1-
43


2-
08


67
$8


0
4 l


an
e a


lum
inu


m 
tra


ck
. W


ill 
co


me
 se


t-u
p, 


ru
n a


nd
 ta


ke
 do


wn
.


Pi
ne


wo
od


 D
er


by
 T


ra
ck


s
(U


pd
ate


d 0
3/2


6/1
3)


D
E


R
B


Y
 T


R
A


C
K


 R
E


N
T


A
L


S


Derby Track Rentals
Updated 03-26-13







313Webelos Midway


Na
m


e
Ci


ty
Ph


on
e


Pr
ice


De
ta


ils
Br


ian
 Y


ou
ng


80
1-


25
4-


44
93


$2
5


4-
lan


es
, s


tar
t g


ate
, m


eta
l c


on
str


uc
tio


n, 
an


y l
en


gth
, e


as
y t


o s
et 


up
.


De
nn


is 
Da


vis
Sa


nd
y


80
1-


94
2-


31
62


$3
0


4-
lan


es
, m


eta
l c


on
str


uc
tio


n, 
qu


ick
 re


lea
se


, fo
r e


qu
al 


sta
rts


 [b
rid


ge
 to


 gr
ad


ua
te 


fro
m 


W
eb


elo
s t


oo
!].


Th
om


as
 L.


 P
ryo


r
ko


old
ad


dy
yo


he
x@


ya
ho


o.c
om


Sa
lt L


ak
e C


ity
80


1-
96


8-
17


58
$5


0
20


' tr
ac


k, 
4-


lan
es


, r
oc


ke
t d


er
by


 ra
ce


wa
y. 


$4
0 i


f y
ou


 do
 th


e w
or


k.


Do
n B


ar
ne


y
Ri


ve
rto


n
80


1-
66


1-
87


15
$6


0
4-


lan
es


 w
ith


 ru
les


 &
 de


rb
y i


ns
tru


cti
on


s. 
He


 w
ill 


ru
n t


he
 de


rb
y.


Ma
rk 


an
d S


ha
nn


on
 W


ixo
m


Dr
ap


er
80


1-
55


3-
09


50
$1


5
10


' tr
ac


k, 
4 g


utt
er


s, 
yo


u p
ick


-u
p &


 re
tur


n.
Br


ya
n K


en
ne


y
Sa


nd
y


80
1-


94
3-


11
99


$1
5


8' 
tra


ck
, 4


 gu
tte


rs.
Th


om
as


 L.
 P


ryo
r


ko
old


ad
dy


yo
he


x@
ya


ho
o.c


om
Sa


lt L
ak


e C
ity


80
1-


96
8-


17
58


$4
0


13
' tr


ac
k, 


2-
thr


ou
gh


, R
ain


gu
tte


r R
eg


att
a a


ss
em


bly
, $


30
 if 


yo
u d


o t
he


 se
t-u


p.


Br
ian


 Y
ou


ng
He


rri
ma


n
80


1-
25


4-
44


93
No


 C
ha


rg
e


Ha
s g


re
at 


ide
as


 an
d l


oa
n e


ve
ryt


hin
g t


o y
ou


 fo
r f


re
e.


Lo
n E


lw
oo


d
W


es
t V


all
ey


 C
ity


80
1-


25
0-


81
50


Je
ff M


or
rill


W
es


t J
or


da
n


80
1-


28
0-


23
52


Ro
ss


 &
 S


us
an


 P
op


e
ro


ss
ep


op
e@


gm
ail


.co
m


Ke
ar


ns
80


1-
96


7-
10


37
Se


ve
ra


l c
er


em
on


y o
pti


on
s


Cl
ay


 C
ro


wl
ey


Bo
un


tifu
l


80
1-


29
2-


03
44


Al
 La


mp
kin


: M
ag


ici
an


ww
w.


all
am


pk
inm


ag
ic.


co
m


80
1-


96
7-


26
38


ww
w.


all
am


pk
inm


ag
ic.


co
m


n:\
Cu


b S
co


uts
\E


ve
nts


\D
er


by
 R


en
tal


s\D
er


by
 R


en
tal


s 0
12


41
3


Cu
b 


Sc
ou


t C
er


em
on


ies


Sp
ac


e D
er


by


Ra
in


gu
tte


r R
eg


at
a


Ar
ro


w 
of


 L
ig


ht
 C


er
em


on
ies







APPLICATION
 Date  __________________________


Cub Scout Pack No. _________________ of Chartered Organization ______________________________________________
 name


has qualified for this award by conducting a pack activity in the summer months of _______________.
 year


 JUNE JULY AUGUST


Type of pack activity __________ __________ __________


Number of dens participating __________ __________ __________


Number of dens qualifying (50 percent of the den’s
 Cub Scouts participating) __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Tiger Cubs participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Wolf Cub Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Bear Cub Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of the pack’s Webelos Scouts participating __________ __________ __________


Number of parents/family members participating __________ __________ __________


Please send us the following National Summertime Pack Award items:


   One Pack Award Certificate, No. 33731A ________ Den participation ribbons, No. 17806


   One Pack Award Streamer, No. 17808 ________ Cub Scout Summertime Award pins, No. 00464


 Cubmaster ___________________________________________
Date needed __________________________________


 For Pack Committee ____________________________________
(Please print.)
Send to _________________________________________  _______________________________________________
 Name Street, City, State, Zip 


TO ASSURE PROMPT RECOGNITION, SUBMIT APPLICATION TO LOCAL COUNCIL SERVICE CENTER AS 
SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER YOUR AUGUST ACTIVITY.


National Summertime
Pack Award


National Summertime Pack 
Award certificate, No. 33731A


National Summertime Pack 
Award streamer for pack flag, 
No. 17808


Den participation ribbon for 
dens with 50 percent or more of 
their boys at three summertime 
activities, No. 17806


National Summertime Award 
pin for boys who attend all three 
summertime pack activities,  
No. 00464


 







SUMMERTIME ACTIVITIES TRACKING SHEET


JUNE
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ 


Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present _____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________


JULY 
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ 


Number of dens with at least 50 percent of members present _____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________


AUGUST
Leader(s) responsible ___________________________ _______________________________________


Pack activity __________________________________________________________________________


Location ___________________________________ Date ______________ Time _______________


Number of dens that participated _____ Number of dens that qualified for den participation ribbon ____


Number of Tiger Cubs participating _____


Number of Wolf Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Bear Cub Scouts participating _____


Number of Webelos Scouts participating _____


Number of parents/family members participating _____


COMMENTS _________________________________________________________________________ 


2009 Printing


7
 


730176 33748


33748A







316 Sponsors


Sponsors Ad’s


Made Medicine 


Sign up for your FREE 


Learn the mystery of the 
“Super Powers of Plants” 


Christy Olsen 
(801) 865-0161 


oils2youfromme@gmail.com 


 Lonni Andrew 
(801) 574-8105 


oilsfromtheandrews@gmail.com 


FREE Wild Orange Essential Oil 
 with personal consultation 


 
We Offer: 
 Personal Consultations 
 Pack Meetings 
 Parties 


dōTERRA Independent Product Consultants 







317Sponsors


BUILD A USEFUL PROJECT DURING YOUR VISIT & TOUR FOR A SMALL FEE
Our Leather Professionals teach and help with the projects.  Beck supplies the tools, paints, and stains FREE.


You just pay for the project listed below.  Each person builds the same project choice.


* By appointment only.  Call to reserve your party today!  Phone: 567-1115


Youth Leaders Always get a


15% discount at Beck's


BRING YOUR GROUP in for a


FUN LEATHER ADVENTURE
"Where the Fun Begins"


A)  Den Doodle
B)  Copper Foil Picture
C)  Beadie Critter Key Ring
D)  Bead & Concho Key Ring
E)  Alphabet Letter Beads Choker
F)  Leather Magnet - Star, Diamond, or Oval
G)  Leather Key Ring or Key Chain
H)  Leather Bolo: Heart or Boot
I)  Leather Neckerchief Slide
J)  Leather Bookmark
K)  Leather Belt Totem
L)  Leather Heart Medallion
M)  Leather Braided Wristband
N)  Leather Arrowhead Medallion
O)  Little Bit Coin & Key Holder
P)  Mini Hide Indian Medallion
Q)  Indian Headband w/ Bead Dangles
R)  Mini Leather Canoe


 PROJECT CHOICES
$3.50 FEE:  Choose Two (2)


Our Staff has over  80  Years of Scouting / Youth Leadership Experience!


Field Trips


Mini Classes


Make It & Take It


Birthday Parties


EASY Scout


Activities


 Fax Order Line: 
1-801-567-1117


FUN CRAFTS & SPECIAL GIFTS


 BECK
Leather & Crafts


7884 So. Redwood Rd.


West  Jordan 


EASY TO ASSEMBLE 
Launches Marshmallows  or
 Ping Pong Balls over 30 feet


Regular $7.95


Wood Catapult Launcher


$4.95
On Sale


WEDGE CAR KIT
NO LIMIT


BASIC CAR KIT


Coupon also Valid on:


$3.49


PINEWOOD DERBY


Complete Line - National Distributor for PineCar


50 
OFF


%


 #270370


Best Deal in Town


Regular
 Price  
$6.98


#120513 #120514


$14.95


TOUCH OF CLASS AWARDS     Regular $18.95  


Leader’s 
Special
 Deal


Youth Leaders
Always Get  15%


Off
Retail prices on Personal or Group Purchases 
           - does not apply to lcustom laser or licensed products


 #270369


4-1/2” Wide X 3-1/2” High X 1-1/2” Deep & 3/8” Clear Acrylic
With 1/4” Black Acrylic Base Material.   Camera Ready Art is 
Required or additional set-up fee. 


#120512


FLAME
 ACRYLIC AWARD 


#120511
 ACRYLIC AWARD 


RAINDROP OVAL
 ACRYLIC AWARD 


DIAMOND
 ACRYLIC AWARD 


 15%
Off We


CREATE
Awards


801-567-1115  
801-567-1116  


Visi t  us  at  www.beckleather.com


C


M


Y


CM


MY


CY


CMY


K


2013 Pow Wow Ad.pdf   8/8/2013   6:30:53 PM







318 Index


Index


Symbols


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You  10


A


Abbreviations and Acronyms of Scouting  288
Activity Consent Form  295
Activity Ideas


A Bigger Hammer  278
Activities  248
America the Beautiful  255
Bicycle Repair  278
Car Wash  278
Family Tree  273
Feed Me Activity  254
From Near and Far  255
Life Jacket Contest  262
Monkey Chains  251
Our Heroes  255
Regrouping Using Money  253
Scientist


2-Liter Bottle Rockets  279
Air Pressure Eexperiment 279
Hydrometer  279
index card  279
The Ball and Funnel Challenge  279


Sportsman Match up game  265
Take Flight  234
Travel Kit  270


Activity Patches  190
Administration  2
Advanced Woodworking
 For Webelos  76
Age Appropriate Activities  9


B


Balloon Tying
Crafts


Balloon Arrow  70
Balloon Cloth or Weaving  69
Rose  68


Definitions  68


Supplies  67
Tips  67


Banana Boats  143
Banners  107
Belt Loops  20, 189
Beyond the Badge  187
Block and Tackle  277
Blue & Gold’s


Menu ideas  208
Sample Plan  210
Space Theme  211


Bridges  180, 277


C


Captain America First Aid  22
Car Washing Tips  278
Catapults  179


Catapult  277
Ceremonies


Arrow Of Light  128
Branching Out  120
Costuming And Props  129
Mad Scientist Operation  117
Monthly Theme Centered  127
Spirit of Christmas  114
Webelos Activity Badges  128


Character Connections  87
Cheers  149–150


Baseball Cheer  249
Evil Laugh  117
Ghost Sneeze  117
Haunted Hangman  117
Mad Scientist  117
Witchy Cheer  117


Circuit  277
Citizenship & Service Activities  195
Classes


100 Super Ways to Say Thank You  10
Activity and Event Planning  3
Advanced Woodworking 
for Webelos  76
Beyond the Badge  187


TABLEO
F


CONTENTS
TABLEO


F
CONTENTS







319Index


Captain America First Aid  22
Citizenship & Service Activities  195
Crafts For Any Budget  29
Creating Ceremonies  113
Creating Meaningful Arrow Of Light Advance-


ment Ceremonies  127
Cub Scouting with Core Value and Themes II  87
Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I  83
Cub Scouts Compute  103
Cub Scouts Go Geocaching  216
Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own 


X-Men  110
Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots, Intermediate and 


Advanced Knot Tying  181
Finding Success in the Webelos Program  123
Fun For the “Super Cub Family”  199
Holiday Crafts  37
Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget  


173
Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding  179
Is It Safe Out There, Batman?  8
It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star Gazing!  212
Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets  206
Nature Crafts and Activities  58
Neckerchief Slides  64
Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling  159
Pack Meetings That Dazzle  116
Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying &
Super Balloon Tying Advanced  67
Record Keeping and How To Keep it  15
Resources? What Resources?  19
Super Fun Cooking  135
Super Fun Science Guy  176
Super Fun With Derbies  202
Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games  156
Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz  For Any Meeting  


148
What Successful Committees Have In Common  7
Woodcraft  71


Committees  226
Finding People  7
Gaining Support of the Charter Organization  7
Purpose of  7
Roles of  7


Cooking
Outdoor  123


Core Value Activity
Flying Embers  88
Heroes of the Revolution  83


Legacy of Faith  85
Medals of Honor  84
Movie Review Poster  90
Perseverance  89
Pollyanna’s Glad Game  88
Road Home Donation Scavenger Hunt  83
Team Building Builders  84
What If?  89
Where does our food come from?  85
Who’s Responsible?  90


Core Value Midway  232
April  240
August  248
December  259
February  235
January  233
July  246
June  244
March  239
May  242
November  255
October  252
September  250


Core Values  87
Craft


piggy bank  254
Crafts  28


Arctic Animal Ornaments  235
Back-to-School Time Capsule  42
Balloon Arrow  70
Balloon Cloth or Weaving  69
Balloon-Nose Clowns  251
Bird Feeders  58
Bone Neckerchief Slides  64
Borax Snowflakes  46
Braided Leather Neckerchief Slide  66
Christmas “Lid” Tree  236
Clay Fossil Impressions  45
Cool Can Chimes  235
Cotton ball Lamb  39
Dad Rocks Paperweight  236
Drippy-Drop Painted Clay Pot  35
Dye-Out Shirt  29
Easy Tied-Fleece Pillow  33
Eggshell Gardens  62
Elmer’s Glue/Paper Chalkboard  37
Finger Knitting  34
Forcing Bulbs indoors  58
Green Noise Putty  38







320 Index


Grow plants from carrots and other vegetables  59
Haircut Harry - aka Grass Heads  31
Insect Apartment  236
Kaleidoscope Crayons  33
Leaf printing  60
Leather  236
Light-less Saber  30
Magnifying Water Scope  34
Make fishing pole  60
Marshmallow Igloo  47
Milk Carton Waterwheel  238
Mini Marshmallow Shooter  36
Mister Snow Jingles  237
Monkey’s Fist neckerchief slide  65
More Fun Craft Ideas  36
Mother’s Day Vase  237
Origami Heart  37
Paper airplanes  233
Paper Plate Sundial  61
Personalized Plate  30
Photo Blocks  236
Pinhole Planetarium  214
Pipe Cleaner Flowers  40
Plantable mothers day cards  59
Plate Garden  63
Pocket Rock Reminders  31
Pressed flowers and leaves  61
Rain Gauge  237
Rain Stick  238
Recycled Rain Stick  35
Rockets  234
Rose  68
Shrunken Apple Head  45
Sponge Garden  63
Sponge Water Ball  41
Star Shaped Bird Feeder  41
Starting seeds on sponges, plates, and eggshells  58
Start plants from cuttings of other plants  59
Tin Can Lanterns  237
Tin Can Ringers  235
Valentines Day Ideas  237
Water Bottle Time Capsule  32
Wood


Brag Box  73
Five-Board Stool  79
Rough Cut Plaque  75
Rustic Planter  72
The Cub Cube  73
The Tool Box  74


Twiggy Pencil Holder  71
Wooden Airplane  77


CRAFTS FOR ANY BUDGET  29
Creating Ceremonies  113
Creating Meaningful Arrow Of Light Advancement 


Ceremonies  127
CUBMASTER  225
Cubmaster Help  91
Cub Master’s Key  304
Cub Scouting and Your Family  307
Cub Scouting, Now What?


Cubmaster  91
Den Leader  96
Pack Committee  99
Pack Trainer  101
Tiger Cub Den Leader  93
Webelos Den Leader  97


Cub Scouting with Core Value and Themes II  87
Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I  83
Cub Scout Leader Awards  14


Religious Knot  19
Cub Scouts Compute  103


Banners  107
Frequently Asked Questions  108
Graphics  107
Posters  107
Tracking Spread Sheet  104


Cub Scouts Go Geocaching  216
Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own X-Men  


110
Adaptations  111
Behavior issues  111
Precision commands  111
Respect  110
Sensory processing issues  110


D


Den Leader Help  96
Den Leader Training Award  302
Derbies  202


Raingutter Regatta  204
Space Derby  205


Derby Track Rentals  312
Dutch Oven  140


E


Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots, Intermediate and 
Advanced Knot Tying  181


Engineer    87







321Index


Events
Program Director  4
Promotions  5
Registration  5
Set up/Tear down  6


F


Family Involvement  20
Family Talent Survey Sheet  308
Field Trips  194
Finding Success in the Webelos Program  123
Fire Escape Plan  274
First Aid  22


First Aid Kit, Personal  25
Steps  22–24


First Aid/Emergency Kit  270
First Aid Kit, Personal  25, 283
Flag Retirement Ceremony  259
Forest Plants  280
Fun For the “Super Cub Family”  199


Bear  200
Webelos  201
Wolf  199


G


Games
Australian Circle Game  249
Balloon Splash Bash  243
Button Baseball Game  249
Cub Scout Relay  242
Deck of Cards Workout  242
Electric Pulse  158
Golden Phrases  244
How Many?  248
Human Knot  157
Lightning  157
Look-n-Sniff Guessing  242
Mingle  157
Pass the Rock  157
Pick-a-Stick  242
Pig In The Pen Game  235
Prospectors and Bears  245
Scraming  Toes  156
Sock Tag  242
Steal the Treasure  245
Super Heroes and Villains  156
Super Shark  158
Swords  156
T-Shirt Relay Game  252


Geocaching  216
Go See Its  194
Graphics  107
Great Salt Lake Council Locations  287
Guides to Unit Money-Earning Projects  309
Guide to Safe Scouting  8


H


Health Form  296
Holiday Crafts  37
House Plans  274


I


Incredible Costumes and Props on Any Budget  173
Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding  179
Is It Safe Out There, Batman?  8
It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star Gazing!  212


J


Jokes  170–171, 249


K


Knots
In Crafts  182
Use a phrase  181
Use a Story  181
Use Color  181
Videos of Magic Knot Tricks  181


L


Leader Awards, Cub Scout. See Cub Scout Leader 
Awards


Leader Specific Training  221, 222
Cubmaster  225
Den Leader  221
Webelos  222


Life in the Pond  282


M


Medical Safety  9
Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets  206
Midway, Core Value. See Core Value Midway
Midway, Webelos. See Webelos Midway


N


National Awards  192
National Summertime Pack Award  314







322 Index


Naturalist
Life in the Pond  282


Nature Crafts and Activities  58
Neckerchief slides


Bone Neckerchief Slides  64
Elephant Slide  250


Neckerchief Slides  64
Braided Leather Neckerchief Slide  66
Monkey’s Fist neckerchief slide  65


O


Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling  159
Outdoor Activities


Nighttime Treasure Hunt  125
Outdoor Rocket Launcher  126


Outdoor Cooking  123
Cardboard Box Oven  123


P


Pack Calendar Template  305
Pack Committee Help  99
Pack Meeting Ideas  92


Branching Out  120
Activity  122
Cubmaster Minute  122


Halloween
Activity  119
Cubmater Minute  119


Take a Trip to “Honesty-ville”  257
Tricks, Cakes and Treats  116


Pack Meetings That Dazzle  116
Pack Newsletter template  306
Pack Trainer Help  101
Planning


Events  3
After  4
During  4


Program Director  4
Promotions  5
Registration  5
Set up/Tear down  6


Plastic Man’s Balloon Tying & Super Balloon Tying 
Advanced  67


Posters  107
Pre Opener


Branching Out  120
Halloween  116


Pulleys  179


R


Raingutter Regatta  204
Recipes


Bacon & Egg in a Brown Paper Sack  125
Bumble Bee appetizer  136
Bumble Bee Hot Dogs  137
Cake Mix Cookies  147
Cinnamon Rolls  139
Cinnamon Snake on a Stick  140
Corn Dog Caterpillars  136
Dutch Oven  140


Chicken  141
Dump Cake or Crisp  141
Ham  141
Potatoes  140


Easy Pineapple Upside down Cake  124
Edible Fire  147
English Muffin Pizza  146
Foil Dinner  125
Foil Dinners  144
Ice Cream in a Bag  146
Indoor Cooking  145
Lazy Cake Cookies  125
Mounds of Bugs  137
No-bake Cheesecake  147
No Bake Cookies  145
Omelet in a Bag  144
Orange Cinnamon rolls  143
Orange Julius  146
Outdoor Cooking  143
Pigs in a Blanket  125, 139
Pizza  139
Pocket Pizza  142
Popsicles  145
Rice Krispy Bugs  136
Roasted Vegetables  147
Spider Cookies  135
Taco in a Bag  142
Taylor’s Cobbler  145
Tin Foil Dinners  142
Waffle Cone Dessert  143
Waffle desserts  145


Recognition
Giving  11
ideas  12
Ideas  13


Record Keeping
tips  15







323Index


Websites  17
Record Keeping and How To Keep it  15
Religious Knot  19
Resources  286


Abbreviations and Acronyms of Scouting  288
Activity Consent Form  295
Cub Master’s Key  304
Cub Scouting and Your Family  307
Den Leader Training Award  302
Derby Track Rentals  312
Family Talent Survey Sheet  308
Great Salt Lake Council Locations  287
Guides to Unit Money-Earning Projects  309
Health Form  296
National Summertime Pack Award  314
Pack Calendar Template  305
Pack Newsletter template  306
Scouter’s Training Award Cub Scouting  303
Tour and Activity Plan  300
Uniform Guide


Adult  291
Boys  293


Unit Leader Award of Merit  310
Resources? What Resources?  19


Internet Resources  20
Run On’s  172
Run ons, Jokes and Riddles  151


S


Safety Training  8
Science Experiments


Bernoulli’s Principle  178
Sedimentary Stacker  176
The Forces Dance  178


Scientist
Air Pressure Experiment  279
Bernoulli Principle  279
index card Experiment  279


Scouter’s Training Award Cub Scouting  303
Sections


Administration  2
Crafts  28


Service Projects  256
Service Projects  197
Skits


Bubble Gum  165, 249
Cub Scout Uniform Inspection  159
Did you sneeze  160
Emergency Broadcast System  167


Follow the Tracks  166
Fortune Teller  164
Lamp post  161
Mirror of Truth  164
Monkeys  168
Mosquito or Big Scout Little Scout  163
Moving  167
No Fish  166
Royal Fruit  161
Soap and Water  162
Squirrels  168
Submarine  160
The Fly  164
The lie monster  258
The Rattlesnake  169
The Ugliest Man in the World  163
Tree Climber  168
Worms Warm  167


Songs  153–155
Rotten Reboks  248
Scout Gold Rush  245


Space Derby  205
Sponsors Ad’s  316
Star Gazing  212


Big Dipper  212
Moon  213
Pinhole Planetarium  214
Planets  213


Super Fun Science Guy  176
Super Fun With Derbies  202
Sweet 16, The  8


T


Themes
Aware and Care  239
Backyard Fun  242
Dollars and Sense  252
Fly high into the sky  233
From Litter to Glitter  235
Go For The Gold  244
Play Ball  248
Soaring the Skies  240
Stars and Stripes  259
Under The Big Top  250
Under The Sea  246


Tiger Cub Den Leader Help  93
Tiger Cub Uniform  94
Tour and Activity Plan  300
Tour Plans  9







324 Index


U


Uniform Guide
Adult  291–292
Boy  293–294


Unit Leader Award of Merit  310


W


Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games  156
Webelos Den Leader Help  97
Webelos Midway


Aquanaut  262
Artist  266
Athlete  263
Citizen  271
Communicator  272
Craftsman  276
Engineer  277
Family Member  273
Fitness  264
Forester  280
Geologist  281
Handyman  278
Naturalist  282
Outdoorsman  283
Readyman  274
Scholar  267
Scientist  279
Showman  268
Sportsman  265
Traveler  269


Webelos Outdoor Program  99
Websites


Activities, Games and more  21, 258, 264
Advancement  17
Advancement, Sharing  18


Awards  192, 193
Balloon Tying  67, 68, 69, 70
Bridges  180
Catapults  179
Character Development  87
Cheers  149
Clipart  149
Crafts  21, 36, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 276
Cub Scout Leader Awards  14
Den and Pack Resource Guide  20, 93
Den Meeting Plans  93
Family Talent Survey  102
Geocaching  216
History  271
Jokes  151, 152
Knots  181, 182
Meeting Plans with Worksheets  20
Pack Newsletter template  306
Pinterest  20
Pullies  179
Record Keeping  17, 101
Red Cross  24
Scouting  106, 149, 192, 226, 241, 306
Service Ideas  197
Songs  155
Star Gazing  215
Traveler Helps  270
Uniforms (Where does that patch go?)  20
Webelos  270, 276, 277, 278, 281


Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz
 For Any Meeting  148
What Successful Committees Have In Common  7
Woodcraft  71


birdhouses  276
Key Rack  276





		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		__RefHeading__3444_720599600

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		Modest

		_GoBack

		_GoBack

		ACTIVITY AND EVENT PLANNING

		What Successful Committees Have In Common

		Is It Safe Out There, Batman?

		100 Super Ways to Say 

		Thank You

		Record Keeping and How to Keep it

		Resources? What Resources?

		Captain America First Aid

		Cub Scouting with Core Values and Themes I

		Cub Scouting with Core Value and Themes II

		Cub Scouts Compute

		Cub Scouts With Special Needs - Our Own X-Men

		Creating Ceremonies

		Pack Meetings That Dazzle

		Finding Success in the Webelos Program

		CREATING MEANINGFUL ARROW OF LIGHT ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 

		Super Fun Cooking 

		Wham, Bam, Ka-Pow Pizzazz

		 For Any Meeting

		Want to Play? Hero Athletic Training Games

		Once There Was A Hero: Skits & Storytelling

		Incredible Costumes and Props

		on Any Budget

		Super Fun Science Guy

		Ironman’s Technology-Building and Binding

		Elastic-Man Tied Up in Knots,

		Intermediate and Advanced Knot Tying

		Beyond the Badge

		CITIZENSHIP & SERVICE ACTIVITIES

		Fun For the “Super Cub Family”

		Super Fun With Derbies

		Memorable Blue and Gold Banquets

		It’s a Bird, It’s a Plane,It’s Super Star Gazing!

		Cub Scouts Go Geocaching

		Den leader - Leader Specific Training

		Webelos Leader Specific

		THE CUB SCOUT CUBMASTER

		You’re a New Committee Member; What’s Next?

		Core Value Midway

		Webelos Midway

		Resources

		Sponsors Ad’s

		Index

		January- Positive Attitude

		Fly high into the sky

		February – Resourcefulness

		From Litter to Glitter

		March- Compassion/Aware and Care

		April-Faith 

		Soaring the Skies

		May Health & Fitness/Backyard Fun

		June Perseverance Go For The Gold

		July Courage Under the Sea

		August - Honesty

		PLAY BALL

		UNDER THE BIG TOP

		September Core Value: COOPERATION

		October - Responsibility

		Dollars and Sense

		November – Citizenship

		December - Respect

		Stars and Stripes

		AQUANAUT 

		ATHLETE 

		FITNESS 

		SPORTSMAN 

		ARTIST

		SCHOLAR

		SHOWMAN

		TRAVELER

		Citizen

		Communicator

		Family Member

		Readyman

		Craftsman Activity Badge 

		Engineer Activity Badge 

		Handyman Activity Badge 

		Scientist Activity Badge 

		Forester

		Geologist

		Naturalist

		Outdoorsman






WOLF 
ACHIEVEMENTS


 1. Feats of Skill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Your Flag. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Keep Your Body Healthy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4.  Know Your Home and Community . . . . . . . __________
 5. Tools for Fixing and Building. . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Start a Collection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Your Living World. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Cooking and Eating . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9.  Be Safe at Home and on the Street. . . . . . . . __________
 10. Family Fun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Duty to God. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Making Choices . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


ELECTIVES*
 1. It’s a Secret . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Be an Actor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Make It Yourself . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Play a Game . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Sparetime Fun. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Books, Books, Books . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Foot Power . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Machine Power. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Let’s Have a Party . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Native American Lore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Sing-Along . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Be an Artist . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Birds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Pets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Grow Something. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Family Alert. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Tie It Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Outdoor Adventure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Fishing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sports . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Computers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Say It Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Let's Go Camping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
GOLD ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


BEAR 
ACHIEVEMENTS


GOD (1)
 1. Ways We Worship . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Emblems of Faith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
COUNTRY (3)
 3. What Makes America Special?. . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Tall Tales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5.  Sharing Your World with Wildlife. . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Take Care of Your Planet. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7.  Law Enforcement Is a Big Job . . . . . . . . . . . __________
*See “How to Use This Form” above.


ADVANCEMENT RECORD
This Cub Scout completes the third grade on _________________ (date) 
and will be eligible to join a Webelos den. (He is also eligible when he 
becomes 10 on __________________________________________________________.)


BECAME A BOBCAT ON ____________________________________  (date)


FAMILY (4)
 8.  The Past is Exciting and Important. . . . . . . . __________
 9. What’s Cooking?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Family Fun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Be Ready . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Family Outdoor Adventures . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Saving Well, Spending Well. . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SELF (4)
 14. Ride Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Games, Games, Games! . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Building Muscles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Information, Please
 18. Jot It Down . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Shavings and Chips . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sawdust and Nails . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Build a Model . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Tying It All Up . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Sports, Sports, Sports! . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 24. Be a Leader . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


ELECTIVES*
 1. Space. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Weather . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Radio. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Electricity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Boats . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Aircraft. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Things That Go . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Cub Scout Band . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Art . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Masks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Photography . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Nature Crafts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Magic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Landscaping . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Water and Soil Conservation . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Farm Animals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Repairs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Backyard Gym. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Swimming. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sports . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Collecting Things . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Maps . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 24. Native American Life. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 25. Let's Go Camping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
GOLD ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


WEBELOS 
ACTIVITY BADGES


 1. Aquanaut. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Artist . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Athlete . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Citizen †† . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Communicator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Craftsman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


 7. Engineer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Family Member. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Fitness †† . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Forester . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Geologist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Handyman. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Naturalist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Outdoorsman †. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Readyman † . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Scholar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Scientist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Showman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Sportsman. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Traveler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 † Required for Arrow of Light 
†† Required for Webelos badge


WEBELOS BADGE
 1. Parent Guide . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Active for 3 months. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Webelos badge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Uniform. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Three activity badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Flag ceremony . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Boy Scout requirements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Religious award or alternates . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


COMPASS POINTS
Emblem . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


ARROW OF LIGHT AWARD
 1. Six months in fifth grade (or age 10) . . . . . . __________
 2.  Boy Scout requirements 


•  Scout Oath and Law . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________ 
•   Motto,  slogan, sign, salute, 


and handclasp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Scout badge. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Uniform . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Tie square knot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3.  Earn five additional 


activity badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Troop visit and outing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Webelos outdoor event. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Troop meeting and conference. . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Honesty Character Connection . . . . . . . . . . __________
AWARD PRESENTED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________
GRADUATION CEREMONY HELD . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
JOINED TROOP. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


LEADERSHIP
 FROM TO
Denner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Assistant denner . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Webelos denner. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Assistant Webelos denner . . . . . . .  _________  _________


ACHV ELEC


HOW TO USE THIS FORM:
For ranks of Bobcat, Wolf, and Bear, and for arrow points, Webelos 
activity badges, Webelos badge, and Arrow of Light Award, the entries 
should consist of the date (i.e., month and year). For recording elec-
tives a “tally” system may be used since some of these electives may 
be done more than once. A tally entry (I) is given for each time the 
elective project is completed. Four individual tally entries with a diag-
onal line across them equals 5: I I I I. Note that Bear achievements 
not used to earn the Bear rank may be used as Bear electives.


ACHV ELEC








 


168


   
den Meeting 1


Bear den Meeting 1
Bobcat, The Past is exciting and important, and Building Muscles
Bobcat. achievement 8. achievement 16. character connection for Respect.


Preparation and Materials Needed
 With pack leaders, confirm who is in your den, and reach out to parents. Either distribute a talent 


survey or ask about interests, abilities, etc.
 Materials checklist (add to your den Cub tub of U.S./den flags, paper/pencils, other supplies):


n Prepare a family history chart (Achievement 8d, below) for distribution to each boy at the 
end of the meeting (an example is provided at the end of this meeting plan).


n Bring an empty scrapbook (or three-ring binder) for use as the den scrapbook.
n Print enough blank den scrapbook pages for each boy (see sample at the end of this 


 meeting plan).
n Tape measure for standing long jump, and softball. Tape (for start line)
n Make a scrapbook page to record each Scout’s push-ups, standing long jump, and hopefully 


the softball throw and curl-ups (see the example at the end of this meeting plan).
n If you’re doing a field trip, prepare permission slips for the field trip at Den Meeting 2.
n Large paper or poster board and markers to write the den’s code of conduct.
n Cub Scout Immediate Recognition Emblems and beads


 Go to www.scoutingmagazine.org and click to get to the search page, and search “scrapbook” for 
more ideas and tips to help you in preparation.


Before the Meeting
 Make final preparations with assistance from any assistant den leader or other parent helper, den 


chief, and/or denner. Organize the space (seating, flags, advancement charts, activity materials, 
handouts, etc.). If you’re snacking, organize space for that and the cleanup.


Gathering
 Welcome new and returning Cub Scouts and parents.
 Get to know parents/engage them in the meeting.
 Have a gathering activity (games, puzzles, other) that will keep Scouts interested and busy, 


and that others may join as they arrive. If the den desires, serve a healthy snack during 
this time.


 Collect dues, record attendance and any advancement completed over the summer (a good job 
for an assistant den leader).


opening
 Flag ceremony (indoor or outdoor; rotate roles to complete Achievement 3f) with Pledge of 


Allegiance; the Cub Scout Promise or a patriotic song (of other opening).
 Consider a roll call, uniform inspection, or den yell.
 Provide index cards printed with the Cub Scout Promise and Law of the Pack for use by any new 


boys and adults.
 If you have a guest, give a formal introduction, including what the guest will do for you.
 Effectively, everyone today is a “guest,” so all should be introduced, which takes us to . . .


Business items
 Have each Scout (and attending parent) introduce themselves. Note that you’ll want to know 


more about each other, and part of that will be the family history chart for Achievement 8d.
 Discuss/remind what a den is, and how it fits in with a pack. Discuss your goals for the year 


and highlight/promote the cool activities. Discuss a den name, den yell, and other den identity 
 elements (could include flag, totem, or neckerchief slide).


 Remind boys of behavioral expectations at den meetings. This is an opportunity to create your 
den’s code of conduct for how the den should govern itself during meetings.


 Use this time to discuss participation in coming pack meetings or events, as needed.


Activities
 Review or learn Bobcat requirements 1–7: Cub Scout Promise; Law of the Pack; Cub Scout 


motto, sign, handshake, salute; meaning of Webelos.







 


169


   
den Meeting 1


n Suggestion: Use a fun method to help the Scouts learn:
• Could be a tape recorder to practice and listen
• Could be flash cards
• Could play “hangman” with phrases from the Law, Promise, Motto
• Could be a Bobcat Relay Race:


— Den divides into two teams, lining up for relay race on one end of room or field, with 
leaders and/or parent helpers on the other end, to test on the Cub Scout Promise; Law 
of the Pack; Cub Scout motto, sign, handshake, and salute; and meaning of Webelos.


— Team members could go one at a time (run, skip, crawl, roll) to the leader, answers 
the Bobcat-related question, then returns to tag the next Cub Scout. If the Cub Scout 
can’t answer, he can go back and get help, then return and answer the question.


• Scouts could come in pairs to work together and teach each other.


 Achievement 8g: Complete the Character Connection for Respect:
n Know: As you learn about what Cub Scout–age life was like for adults you know, does 


what you learn change what you think about them? Tell how it might help you respect or 
value them more.


n Commit: Can you think of reasons others might be disrespectful to people or things you 
value? Name one new way you will show respect for a person or thing someone else values.


n Practice: List some ways you can show respect for people and events in the past.


 Achievement 8c (“Start or add to an existing den or pack scrapbook.”) and 8d (“Trace your 
family back through your grandparents or great-grandparents.”)
n Show empty scrapbook, distribute den scrapbook Scout page (example at the end of this 


meeting plan).
n Have them start the work, and use the opportunity to have them describe (at least) parents 


and siblings so you get to know the Scouts and their families.
n If you have this job, have this week’s den photographer take pictures for the scrapbook!
n If you need more time, they can take home and complete.


 Achievement 16a (“Do physical fitness stretching exercises. Then do curl-ups, push-ups, the 
standing long jump, and the softball throw.”):
n Have boys do physical fitness stretching exercises, then at least push-ups and standing long 


jump, maybe the softball throw and curl-ups.
n Create a record of each boy’s numbers for the den scrapbook (example included at the end 


of this meeting plan).
n Record on a scrapbook page with great ceremony. 
n Don’t worry about not doing it all today; this is a good “active” item to pair with passive 


ones, so go ahead and have a fun time doing some well, and catch up later.
n Repeat these in future meetings to measure progress when you need a physical activity.


closing
 Award (or recognize) any advancement completed at this meeting; thank hosts, guests, and  helpers.
 Closing ceremony: Retire the colors (fold and return the flag), or have a den leader’s minute 


with a Living Circle, or the Law of the Pack and den yell (or other ceremony).
 If you’re doing a field trip next meeting, hand out permission slips.


 Home Assignment: With the help of parents, cub Scouts should find out about 
two famous americans (Achievement 3b). they should be prepared to report at 
the next meeting on what these people did or are doing to improve our way of life. 
Remind cub Scouts and their families to work on Achievement 16a and record 
weekly results. if not started in the meeting, hand out a family history chart (at the 
end of this meeting plan) to be completed and returned at the next den meeting 
(Achievement 8d).


 Hand out or send family information letter.


After the Meeting
 If you’ve changed the sequence of den meetings, double-check to make sure you will still 


advance your boys appropriately and check with the Cubmaster to make sure you stay 
coordinated with the pack.


 Refreshments: If appropriate
 Cleanup: Recruit enough help to do a good job. Scouts always leave an area as clean, or cleaner, 


than they found it.







 


170


   
den Meeting 1


Bear cub scouts
Achievement 8d: the Past is exciting and important
(Trace your family back through your grandparents or great-grandparents. If possible, talk to a 
grandparent about what it was like when he or she was younger.)


________________
My Name


________________
My Mom


________________
My dad


________________
My Grandma


________________
My Grandpa


________________
My Grandma


________________
My Grandpa


________________
Great Grandma


________________
Great Grandma


________________
Great Grandma


________________
Great Grandma


________________
Great Grandpa


________________
Great Grandpa


________________
Great Grandpa


________________
Great Grandpa







 


171


   
den Meeting 1


den scrapbook Page


Pack  _____________ Den  _______________  Date: _________________________________


My name:  _____________________________  Den Leader: ___________________________


My family (parents, brothers, sisters, etc.): _____________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


My pets: ________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


My favorite places: ________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


My favorite things to eat: ___________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


Things I like to do with my family: ___________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


Things I like to do with my friends:  ___________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


Things I want to do when I grow up: __________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


Other things about me: _____________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________________







 


172


   
den Meeting 1


Bear cub scouts—Achievement 16a
achievement Record: Push-Ups, Standing Long Jump, Softball throw, and curl-Ups


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 







 


173


   
den Meeting 1


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 


Name: __________________________________ 


Date: 


Curl-ups


Push-ups 


Standing long jump 


Softball throw 













Uniform Inspection Sheet


Tiger Cub, Wolf Cub Scout,  
and Bear Cub Scout


General Appearance. Allow 4 points for each: 
n	Good posture 
n	Clean face and hands 
n	Combed hair 
n	Neatly dressed 
n	Clean fingernails


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Headgear. Tiger Cub cap, Cub Scout Wolf cap, or Cub Scout Bear cap, according to den. 


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Neckerchief and Slide. Triangular. Orange with blue border for Tiger Cubs. Gold with  
blue border for Cub Scouts working in Wolf book. Light blue with dark blue border for Cub  
Scouts working in Bear book. Each is secured by a slide for that rank.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shirt. Official long- or short-sleeve, navy blue. Wear with either pants or shorts.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Pants/Shorts. Official navy blue pants or shorts, no cuffs. To be worn with  
official long- or short-sleeve navy blue shirt.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Belt. Official navy blue web belt cut to proper length with Tiger Cub or Cub Scout  
insignia on buckle.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Socks. Dark blue official socks with orange tops for Tiger Cubs and gold tops for  
Wolf and Bear Cub Scouts. 


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shoes. Neat and clean.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Registration. Current membership card or temporary certificate on person.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Insignia.✱ Correct placement: left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points; left sleeve,  
5 points; right sleeve, 5 points.


Total Uniform Inspection Score
A perfect score is 100 points.


20 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


15 pts.


15 pts.


5 pts.


Total Uniform Inspection Score


Name Pack No.


 Den


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


___________________.  


Bring this form with you.


Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


5 pts.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.


5 pts.


20 pts.







Right Sleeve 
n	 Wear the U.S. flag, den numeral, and Centennial Quality 


Unit Award (if earned) as shown. Only the most recently 
earned Centennial Quality Unit Award may be worn.


  Notes ________________________________________


Left Sleeve
n  Wear the council shoulder emblem and pack numeral  


as shown. 
n		The veteran unit insignia bar (25, 50, 55, or 60 years), if 


worn, is centered and touching the council shoulder  
emblem (above) and unit numeral (below). 


n		Denner cord or assistant denner cord is worn over  
left shoulder.


  Notes ________________________________________


Right Pocket. 
n		Temporary insignia are not necessary in uniform inspection, 


but if worn, must be centered on the pocket, or hung from  
the button. 


n		Progress Toward Ranks (with thong and beads) is  
fastened to the button under the right pocket flap with 
the flap rebuttoned. 


n		The National Summertime Award is pinned centered  
on the right pocket flap. 


n		The Cub Scout Outdoor Activity Award is worn on  
the right pocket flap. Each successive time the award  
is earned, a wolf track pin may be added to the flap.


  Notes ________________________________________


Left Pocket. 
n  Cub Scouts wear badges of rank as shown: Bobcat,  


Tiger Cub, Wolf, and Bear. 
n		Gold Arrow Points are worn beneath the pocket and 


below the badge for which they were earned. 
n		Silver Arrow Points are worn below the Gold Arrow 


Points in double rows. 
n		Wear medals just above the pocket seam, and service 


stars centered just above medals or knots, or 3/8 inch 
above seam if no medals are worn. 


n		Gold background disks are worn with service stars for  
Cub Scouting service, including Tiger Cub service. 


n		Not more than five medals may be worn. 
n		Wearing sequence for medals or knots is at the  


wearer’s discretion. 
n		The only knots worn by Cub Scouts are the religious  


emblem knot and a lifesaving or meritorious award knot. 
n		The World Crest is worn centered between the left  


shoulder seam and the top of the left pocket.	
  Notes ________________________________________


Total Insignia Score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


Tiger Cub, Wolf Cub Scout, and Bear Cub Scout Uniform Inspection Sheet


Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


20 pts.


5 pts.


RIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE


LEFT pockET


3⁄4"


3⁄8"


SHouLdER SEAM


7 30176 34599 4


34282


2008 Printing


3⁄8"


SERVIcE STARS


RIGHT pockET


4"


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


NATIoNAL 
SuMMERTIME 


AwARd pIN








34-24 appendix


BO
YS


’ N
AM


ES
RA


NK
S


AR
RO


W
 


PO
IN


TS
*


AC
TI


VI
TY


 B
AD


GE
S


CO
M


PA
SS


 
PO


IN
TS


(C
H


E
C


K
 M


A
R


K
 [


✔
] 


IN
D


IC
A


T
E


S
  


R
E


C
O


G
N


IT
IO


N
 A


C
H


IE
V


E
D


)
*D


es
ig


na
te


 A
rr


ow
 P


oi
nt


s 
by


 r
an


k:
  


(W
) W


ol
f, 


(B
) 


B
ea


r.
†D


es
ig


na
te


 p
ro


pe
r 


se
rv


ic
e 


st
ar


 b
y 


nu
m


be
r 


 
of


 y
ea


rs
.


BOBCAT


TIGER CUB


WOLF


BEAR


WEBELOS BADGE


ARROW OF LIGHT


GOLD


SILVER


AQUANAUT


ARTIST


ATHLETE


CITIZEN


CCOMMUNICATOR


CRAFTSMAN


ENGINEER


FAMILY MEMBER


FITNESS


FORESTER


GEOLOGIST


HANDYMAN


NATURALIST


OUTDOORSMAN


READYMAN


SCHOLAR


SCIENTIST


SHOWMAN


SPORTSMAN


TRAVELER


EMBLEM


DEVICE


SERVICE STAR


D
E


N
 A


D
VA


N
C


E
M


E
N


T
 R


E
P


O
R


T
D


E
N


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


PA
C


K
 _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_


D
AT


E
 _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_


N
O


T
E


 T
O


 T
H


E
 L


E
A


D
E


R
S


 O
F


 C
U


B
 S


C
O


U
T


 D
E


N
S


 A
N


D
 W


E
B


E
LO


S
 S


C
O


U
T


 D
E


N
S


: 
B


ef
or


e 
su


bm
itt


in
g 


th
is


 r
e-


co
rd


, 
m


ak
e 


ce
rt


ai
n 


th
at


 
fu


ll 
an


d 
co


rr
ec


t 
in


fo
rm


at
io


n 
fo


r 
ea


ch
 


C
ub


 
S


co
ut


 
or


 W
eb


el
os


 
S


co
ut


 
is


 
gi


ve
n,


 
an


d 
th


at
 


he
 i


s 
ac


tu
al


ly
 a


 r
eg


is
te


re
d 


m
em


be
r 


of
 y


ou
r 


pa
ck


 a
nd


 i
s 


qu
al


ifi
ed


 a
s 


to
 g


ra
de


 (
or


 a
ge


) 
to


 r
ec


ei
ve


 t
he


 a
dv


an
ce


-
m


en
t 


in
 r


an
k 


in
di


ca
te


d.
 F


ill
 o


ut
 t


hi
s 


fo
rm


 a
t 


th
e 


en
d 


of
 y


ou
r 


th
ird


 d
en


 m
ee


tin
g 


an
d 


ta
ke


 i
t 


to
 t


he
 p


ac
k 


le
ad


er
s’


 m
ee


t-
in


g,
 w


he
re


 a
 c


om
po


si
te


 r
eq


ue
st


 w
ill


 b
e 


m
ad


e 
fo


r 
th


e 
pa


ck
. 


A
w


ar
ds


 s
ho


ul
d 


be
 a


va
ila


bl
e 


fo
r 


pr
es


en
ta


tio
n 


at
 t


he
 


ne
xt


 p
ac


k 
m


ee
tin


g.
 U


se
 s


pa
ce


 o
n 


th
e 


ba
ck


 t
o 


re
po


rt
 b


oy
 p


ro
bl


em
s:


 n
ot


 a
dv


an
ci


ng
, 


no
t 


pa
yi


ng
 d


ue
s,


 n
ot


 w
ea


rin
g  


un
ifo


rm
, p


oo
r 


at
te


nd
an


ce
 o


r 
di


sc
ip


lin
e,


 in
ac


tiv
ity


, e
tc


.


AT
T


E
N


T
IO


N
 D


E
N


 L
E


A
D


E
R


S
: U


se
 th


e 
sp


ac
e 


pr
ov


id
ed


 b
el


ow
 to


 o
rd


er
 C


ub
 S


co
ut


 In
st


an
t R


ec
og


ni
-


tio
n 


K
its


, N
o.


 0
18


04
, t


o 
re


co
gn


iz
e 


C
ub


 S
co


ut
s 


as
 th


ey
 c


om
pl


et
e 


ac
hi


ev
em


en
ts


 fo
r W


ol
f a


nd
 B


ea
r.


P
le


as
e 


or
de


r 
fo


r 
m


y 
de


n 
__


__
__


__
 In


st
an


t R
ec


og
ni


tio
n 


K
its


, N
o.


 0
18


04
.


T
he


se
 d


en
 m


em
be


rs
 h


av
e 


co
m


pl
et


ed
 r


eq
ui


re
m


en
ts


 fo
r 


th
e 


ba
dg


e 
in


di
ca


te
d.


C
ub


 S
co


ut
 D


en
 L


ea
de


r
W


eb
el


os
 S


co
ut


 D
en


 L
ea


de
r _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__


B
O


Y
 S


C
O


U
T


S
 O


F
 A


M
E


R
IC


A








34-14 appendix


CUB SCOUT DEN MEETING PROGRAM
DEN NO.  ________________________  PACK NO.  ________________________


MEETING PLACE  __________________________________  TIME ___________


THIS MONTH’S THEME  ______________________________  DATE ___________


As den leader, use this form at your monthly pack leaders’ or den leaders’ 
meeting to plan the weekly den meetings. Indicate ways for the den chief 
and denner to help you in the den meeting.


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


BEFORE THE MEETING STARTS
Den leader and den chief make final 
preparations; coach denner on part 
he is to take in the meeting; help 
denner arrange meeting place.


WHILE CUB SCOUTS GATHER
Collect dues; check achievements 
and electives; start a game, make 
something, or work a puzzle.


OPENING
Simple opening ceremonies—song, 
yell, Promise, Pledge of Allegiance, 
etc.; membership inventory; uniform 
inspection.


BUSINESS ITEMS
Theme-related ideas; den’s part in 
pack meeting; plans for special den 
activities.


ACTIVITIES
Games; tricks and puzzles; stories; 
theme handicraft; practice for den’s 
par t in pack meeting; goodwill 
 projects; plan ways to stimulate 
interest in achievements and 
 electives.


CLOSING
Announcements and reminders; den 
leader’s closing thought; brief inspi-
rational closing ceremony—song, 
Living Circle, Promise.


AFTER THE MEETING
Den leader and den chief review 
this meeting and discuss plans for 
next den meeting. Review next 
meeting assignment with denner. 
Help denner put room in order.


33826A
1999 Boy Scouts of America7


 
230176 33826


#33826A








INDIVIDUAL CUB SCOUT RECORD


Cub Scout Den _____________________   Webelos Den _____________________   Pack No.___________


PERSONAL DATA


Name __________________________________________________________________________________


Address _______________________________________________________________________________


City, State, Zip ____________________________________________________


Home phone ______________________________________________________


Date of birth ______________________________________________________


Religious organization ____________________________________________


School ______________________________________________________


Parent’s or guardian’s name ______________________________________


Business address ________________________________________________


City, State, Zip ____________________________________________________


Business phone __________________________________________________


Occupation _________________________________________


MEMBERSHIP


Former Tiger Cub (yes or no) ___________________________


Number of years in another pack ________________________
 Date


Joined this pack ______________________________________


Will complete grade 3 or become 10 ______________________


To Webelos den ______________________________________


To another pack ______________________________________


Dropped from pack ___________________________________


Tenure when separated:


 Less than 1 year  1 to 2 years  2 to 3 years


SERVICE AWARDS


1-Year 2-Year 3-Year 4-Year


Service stars


Perfect attendance


ATTENDANCE AND DUES
Write in year and month


BUDGET: The dues collected should cover the following items in the pack budget: registration, Boys’ Life, 
accident insurance, reserve fund, program materials, activities.


D = Present at den meeting
P = Present at pack meeting
F = Family represented


 S = Present at special pack activity
 50, 75 = Amount paid on date shown (dues)
 ✓ = Dues paid ahead or back


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞








Uniform Inspection Sheet


Scout Leader
Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


Attendance. Presence at inspection merits 15 points.
 Notes 


Headgear. Headgear is optional. 
	 Boy Scout leaders wear the olive visor cap, campaign hat, or troop-approved headgear. 
	  Varsity Scout leaders wear the blaze visor cap. 
	  Cub Scout pack leaders wear the olive visor cap. 
	  Den leaders wear the same visored cap as the youth they serve.


 Notes 


Shirt/Blouse and Neckwear. New long or short sleeves, or official long or short  
sleeves with appropriate loops on epaulets. Neckwear is optional but must be worn according  
to specifications in the Insignia Guide. 


	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the long- or short-sleeve uniform or official shirt.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear either the official long- or short-sleeve yellow blouse, official  
long- or short-sleeve shirt, or the official long- or short-sleeve uniform blouse.
	 Female Boy Scout leaders wear the official shirt or official long- or short sleeve uniform blouse.


 Notes


Pants/Shorts. Units have no option to change.
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the official pants or the official uniform shorts  
or pants with no cuffs.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear the pants or the official navy blue shorts, skirt, or pants with  
the yellow blouse, or the official pants or official uniform shorts or pants with the official  
shirt or blouse.


 Notes 


Belt
	 Male leaders wear the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle  
of their choice.
	   Female leaders wear the official navy blue Cub Scout or Webelos Scout buckle with  
navy blue pants, or the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle of their  
choice with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


 Notes 


Socks 
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear olive socks with official pants or official  
uniform shorts or pants.
	   Female leaders wear the blue socks with the blue shorts or pants, or the olive socks  
with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


Shoes
	  Must be neat and clean.


 Notes 


Uniform points. Total points from above (75 possible)


Insignia.✱ Correct epaulets, 5 points. Correct placement on left sleeve, 5 points; right sleeve,  
5 points; left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points. Use the checklist on the reverse of this  
form to help determine score.
Insignia points from reverse (25 possible)


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Uniform and insignia points combined. A perfect score is 100 points.


15 pts.


5 pts.


20 pts.


20 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


 


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Name Unit No.


Address District


Office or position in unit


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


.


Bring this form with you.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.







Scout Leader Uniform Inspection Sheet


Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness.


Shoulder Epaulets
	 Scouters wear the color shoulder loop of the program in which 
they are serving: blue, Cub Scouting; green, Boy Scouting; blaze 
(orange), Varsity Scouting; green, Venturing; silver, council and 
district; gold, regional and national.


  Notes 


Right Sleeve
	  U.S. flag emblem centered directly below shoulder seam
	  Den or emblem numeral, if applicable, below and  
touching the flag 
	  Centennial Quality Unit Award (most recent only),  
if applicable, 4 inches below the shoulder seam


  Notes


Left Sleeve
	 Council shoulder patch is directly below the shoulder seam. 
	  Veteran unit bar, if worn, is centered and touching the  
council shoulder patch (above) and unit numeral (below). 
	  Unit numeral, if worn, is centered directly underneath and 
touching the council patch or veteran unit bar. 
	  On the official shirt, the badge of office is centered on the 
pocket, as shown. On the official uniform shirt, the badge of 
office is centered and touching the unit numeral, or centered 4 
inches below the shoulder seam. 
	 When earned, the Trained leader strip is centered at the top 
of the pocket flap on the official shirt. On the official uniform 
shirt, it is centered as shown, touching the badge of office.


  Notes


Right Pocket
	 Boy Scouts of America strip is centered above the pocket.
	  Order of the Arrow lodge insignia is worn on the pocket flap.
	 Current national Scout jamboree insignia is centered above 
the BSA strip and any other items above the pocket.
	  Optional insignia, if worn, is placed in the following order, 
from the BSA strip upward: interpreter strip, Venture or  
Varsity strip, name plate. The name plate may be worn on  
the pocket flap if no lodge insignia is worn.
	  Temporary insignia, including one current world Scout jam-
boree patch, centered on pocket. Only one temporary insignia 
may be worn at a time, and they are not required for correct 
uniforming. Cub Scout leaders and female leaders wearing 
the official uniform shirt or blouse may wear one temporary 
insignia centered above the Boy Scouts of America strip.


  Notes


Left Pocket
	  World Crest emblem is centered between the left shoulder 
seam and the top of the left pocket.
	 Embroidered square knots are centered above the pocket in 
rows of three. 
	 Service stars are centered above the pocket, 3⁄4 inch from  
top point to top point and 3⁄8 inch from either the pocket  
or embroidered knots.


  Notes


Total insignia score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


RIGHT POCKET LEFT POCKET


VENTURE


FRANÇAIS
3⁄4"


3⁄8"


34048


7 30176 34600 7


2008 Printing


SHOULDER
SEAM


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


25 pts.


4"


SHOULDER EPAULETS 
AND LOOPS


RIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE 
(OFFICIAL UNIFORM  


SHIRT)


LEFT SLEEVE  
wITH POCKET  


(OFFICIAL SHIRT)








So 
You’re  
a  
New  
Den 
Leader
I Signed Up; What’s Next?


Now	that	you	are	registered	as	a	Cub	Scout	den	leader,	


you	will	receive	Scouting magazine,	which	includes	Cub 


Scout Program Helps	and	other	information	to	assist	you	


as	a	leader.	Ask	your	Cubmaster	to	furnish	you	a	copy	of	


the	current	Cub Scout Program Helps	to	use	until	your	


subscription	begins.	These	steps	will	get	you	started:


 1. Complete Fast Start training for Cub Scout den 
leaders.	Your	pack	leadership		(pack	trainer)	will	
facilitate	this	video–based	training,	or	you	can	
complete	the	training	online	under	Cub	Scouts/
Adult	Leaders/Training	at	www.scouting.org.	Youth	
Protection	training	for	all	Scouting	volunteers	is	
available	through	your	local	council	Web	Site.


 2. Begin reading the Cub Scout Leader Book.	(To	
start	right	away,	you	may	need	to	borrow	a	copy	
briefly;	until	you	can	get	your	own.)	This	book	
describes	your	role	as	a	den	leader	and	will	give	
more	information	on	the	following	steps.







 3. Get acquainted with your Cubmaster and pack trainer. These	leaders	will	see	that	
you	have	the	information	and	material	you	need	to	get	started	off	on	the	right	foot.


 4. Plan your first month’s den meetings. This is much easier with the help of the 
pack trainer, assistant den leader, den chief (an older Boy Scout or Venturer 
helper), and Cub Scout Program Helps.	The	key	to	success	is	“KISMIF”	(Keep	It	
Simple,	Make	It	Fun.”


 5. Get acquainted with the families of the boys in your den.	Hold	a	family	
orientation	meeting.	The	Cub Scout Leader Book	has	a	recommended	agenda.	You	
will	be	needing	the	families’	help,	so	get	to	know	them	early.


 6. Get acquainted with the boys in your den.	Establish	a	den	code	of	conduct	so	that	
they	will	know	what	you	expect	of	them.	See	the	Cub Scout Leader Book	for	details.


 7. Ask your Cubmaster to help you secure a den chief. Give	your	den	chief	
meaningful	responsibilities	right	away.


 8. Obtain and begin wearing the Cub Scout leader uniform as soon as possible.	
It	is	attractive,	comfortable,	and	suitable	for	all	Cub	Scout	meetings	and	activities.	
Wearing	the	uniform	properly	is	important	in	setting	a	good	example	for	the	
boys.	Your	Cubmaster	or	pack	trainer	can	tell	you	where	to	obtain	the	uniform	
and	insignia.


 9. Attend the monthly planning meetings held by your pack.	These	meetings	are	led	
by	the	pack	committee	chair	and	the	Cubmaster,	and	are	where	pack	plans	are	made.


 10. Attend the monthly district Cub Scout leaders’ roundtable.	You	will	receive	
many	good	program	ideas	based	on	the	monthly	theme,	and	become	acquainted	
with	leaders	from	other	packs,	who	will	share	ideas	and	experiences	with	you.	Your	
Cubmaster	or	pack	trainer	can	tell	you	when	and	where	the	roundtable	meets.


 11. Attend Cub Scout leader basic training as soon as possible. There	are	two	
components	to	this	training—	Den	Leader	Specific	Training,	a	specialized	
session	to	help	you	successfully	plan	a	fun	and	exciting	den	program,	and	This	Is	
Scouting,	which	is	attended	by	leaders	in	all	program	areas.	These	will	give	you	
the	foundation	you	need	to	become	an	effective	and	successful	leader.	Every	boy	
deserves	a	trained	and	qualified	leader.	Your	Cubmaster	or	pack	trainer	can	give	
you	information	about	training	sessions.


Don’t hesitate to ask for help.	There	are	many	people	who	want	to	help	you	provide	
the	finest	possible	Cub	Scout	experience	for	the	boys	in	your	den.


By	the	time	you	have	completed	these	steps	you	will	be	well	on	your	way	to	becoming	a	
successful	den	leader.


You, The Den Leader
You	were	selected	as	a	den	leader	and	approved	by	the	pack	committee	because	of	your	
interest	in	helping	boys.	By	making	the	commitment	to	serve	as	a	den	leader,	you	have	
accepted	the	following	responsibilities.


•	 Give	leadership	to	carrying	out	the	pack	program	in	the	den.


•	 Lead	the	den	in	its	participation	at	the	monthly	pack	meetings.


•	 Work	in	harmony	with	the	other	den	and	pack	leaders.


•	 Cooperate	with	the	Cubmaster	and	pack	committee	in	recruiting	new	boys.


•	 Help	orient	the	den	chief	and	guide	him	to	work	with	the	Cub	Scouts.







•	 Use	Scouting	and	Boys’ Life	magazines,	Cub Scout Program Helps,	and	other	Cub	
Scouting	literature	as	sources	of	program	ideas.


•	 Collect	dues	and	turn	them	in	to	the	pack	secretary/treasurer.


•	 Encourage	boys	to	earn	the	advancement	awards.	Keep	accurate	records,	and	see	
that	they	receive	recognition	for	their	achievement.


•	 Help	the	den	earn	the	National	Den	Award.


•	 Establish	good	working	relationships	with	den	families,	taking	advantage	of	their	
skills	and	talents.


•	 Take	part	in	the	annual	pack	planning	conferences	and	the	monthly	pack	leaders’	
planning	meetings.


•	 Follow	the	policies	of	the	Boy	Scouts	of	America.


Your	Cubmaster	or	pack	trainer	will	be	glad	to	explain	any	of	these	responsibilities	that	
you	do	not	understand.


The Cub Scout Den Meeting
Den	meetings	are	usually	held	in	the	afternoon,	after	school,	or	in	the	evening,	once	
each	week,	in	a	home,	church,	or	school.	The	meeting	day,	time,	and	location	are	set	by	
the	den	leader	and	should	be	the	same	each	week	to	prevent	confusion.	Den	meetings	
last	approximately	one	hour.	Leadership	responsibilities	are	shared	by	the	den	leader,	
assistant	den	leader,	den	chief,	and	denner	(a	selected	member	of	your	den).


The	den	meeting	program	includes	the	following:


 1. Before the meeting.	The	den	leader,	assistant	den	leader,	and	den	chief	make	final	
preparations	while	the	denner	helps	set	up	the	meeting	place.


 2. While Cub Scouts gather.	The	den	chief	or	denner	could	teach	a	stunt,	trick,	or	
game	as	the	boys	arrive,	while	the	den	leader	and	assistant	den	leader	collect	dues	
and	check	achievements	and	electives.


 3. Opening.	Have	a	simple	opening	ceremony	such	as	a	song,	yell,	pledge	to	the	flag,	
or	uniform	inspection.


 4. Business Items.	Discuss	den	activities	and	plans	and	make	announcements.	
Refreshments	may	be	served	at	this	time.


 5. Activities.	Have	games,	tricks,	handicrafts,	or	other	activities	related	to	the	
monthly	theme.	Prepare	for	the	den’s	part	in	the	pack	meeting.


 6. Closing.	Give	reminders,	the	den	leader’s	closing	thought,	and	a	brief	
inspirational	closing	ceremony.


 7. After the Meeting.	The	den	leader,	assistant	den	leader,	and	den	chief	discuss	
plans	for	next	week’s	meeting,	while	the	denner	puts	the	room	back	to	order.


What Do You Invest in Cub Scouting?
•	 One	afternoon	or	evening	each	week	for	a	den	meeting


•	 One	evening	each	month	for	the	pack	meeting


•	 One	evening	each	month	for	the	Cub	Scout	roundtable


•	 One	evening	each	month	for	a	planning	meeting	with	other	pack	leaders


•	 Time	spent	in	research	and	planning	each	month	on	such	interesting	subjects	as	
native	Americans,	knights,	the	circus,	or	whatever	the	next	monthly	theme	will	be







•	 Time	spent	in	Cub	Scout	leader	basic	training


•	 Cost	of	the	Cub	Scout	leader	uniform


•	The	registration	fee


This	adds	up	to	a	small	investment,	compared	to	the	
dividends	you	will	receive.	And	of	course,	the	more	you	
invest,	the	more	you	can	expect	to	receive	in	return.


What Do You Receive in Return?
•	 One	lively,	never-dull	afternoon	or	evening	each	
week	when	you	have	the	good	fortune	to	view	the	
world	through	the	eyes	of	boys


•	 An	evening	each	month	of	fun	and	fellowship	with	
pack	families,	sharing	their	pride	in	their	sons’	
accomplishments


•	The	privilege	of	helping	to	enrich	and	strengthen	
families


•	 A	sense	of	pride	as	you	watch	the	Cub	Scouts	
receive	recognition	for	their	accomplishments


•	 An	opportunity	to	share	your	ideas	and	
experiences	with	other	adults	who	share	your	
interest	in	and	concern	for	boys


•	 A	chance	to	read	about	subjects	that	you	
haven’t	taken	time	for	in	years,	and	the	
opportunity	to	put	your	ideas	into	action	
at	den	meetings


•	The	privilege	of	getting	to	know	boys	in	
your	neighborhood	a	little	better	and	
watching	them	all	grow	strong	in	mind	
and	body


•	The	opportunity	to	help	boys	learn	good	
citizenship	and	to	help	shape	them	into	
men	who	have	strength	of	character	and	
are	sensitive	to	the	needs	of	others


•	The	knowledge	that	all	boys	are	alike	in	many	
ways,	and	yet	each	one	is	a	very	special,	unique	
individual


•	 A	chance	to	help	stimulate	boys’	imaginations	and	
to	help	them	learn	to	“do	their	best”


•	The	satisfaction	of	being	a	member	of	a	worldwide	
movement,	and	pride	in	being	publicly	identified	
as	a	part	of	this	organization	by	wearing	the	
uniform,	which	is	a	visible	means	of	showing	
that	you	believe	in	and	stand	for	its	ideals	and	
objectives


You	will	discover	many	other	dividends	that	will	
enrich	your	life	as	you	dedicate	your	time,	talent,	and	
enthusiasm	to	Cub	Scouting.


All	leaders	bring	to	Cub	Scouting	their	own	talents	and	
skills,	their	own	backgrounds	and	interests.	Your	key	to	
becoming	an	effective	leader	is	to	use	your	own	abilities	
and	interests,	along	with	what	you	learn	about	Cub	
Scouting	to	plan	and	conduct	the	best	possible	program	
for	the	boys.	What	happens	in	the	life	of	each	boy	during	
the	formative	years	will	determine	to	a	great	extent	
the	kind	of	man	he	will	become.	What	a	tremendous	
opportunity	and	challenge	for	you,	the	den	leader!


510-239
2009 Printing








 


90


Wolf den Meeting 1
Bobcat and Your Flag
achievement 2. elective 9b. elective 12e. character connection for Honesty.


Preparation and Materials Needed
 With pack leaders, confirm who is in your den, and reach out to parents.


n Either distribute a talent survey or ask about interests, abilities, etc.
 Materials checklist (add to your den Cub tub of U.S./den flags, paper/pencils, other supplies):


n Index cards with the Cub Scout Promise printed on one side and Law of the Pack on the other 
side (make enough for all people attending the meeting). And Pledge of Allegiance if needed.


n An undecorated den flag (can be part of a sheet of fabric), flag stands, squares of yellow-gold 
felt (one per boy). Large paper or poster board and markers to write the den’s code of conduct.


n Ballpoint pens, youth scissors, camera, and film
n Cub Scout Immediate Recognition Emblems and beads


Before the Meeting
 Make final preparations with assistance from any assistant den leader or other parent helper, den 


chief, and/or denner. Organize the space (seating, flags, advancement charts, activity materials, 
handouts, etc.). If you’re snacking, organize space for that and the cleanup.


Gathering
 Welcome new and returning Cub Scouts and parents.
 Get to know parents/engage them in the meeting.
 Have a gathering activity (games, puzzles, other) that will keep Scouts interested and busy, and 


that others may join as they arrive. If the den desires, serve a healthy snack during this time.
 Collect dues, record attendance and any advancement completed over the summer (a good job 


for an assistant den leader).


opening
 Conduct an indoor or outdoor flag ceremony (Achievement 2b or 2f). (Note: If you don’t have 


a flagpole like at a school, you can still do this, but be sure to plan out in advance where your 
flag will be posted.)
n Choose the first Scout to carry the U.S. flag; he may also be today’s denner if you use denners.
n The second Scout will be next meeting’s U.S. flag bearer and will carry the den flag today if 


you have one (the den flag is probably not yet decorated).
n The third and fourth boys are the “color guards” marching alongside and assisting.
n The remaining boys in the den and all adults present form a reviewing line that the color 


guard passes on the way to the flag stands.
n The den leader can “call” the flag ceremony at the first few meetings (issue directions and 


calls to attention, etc). until the boys learn how to do so.
 After the flags are posted, have all recite the Pledge of Allegiance.
 Provide index cards printed with the Cub Scout Promise and Law of the Pack for each person 


present. After the Pledge, all may read the Cub Scout Promise and Law of the Pack in unison 
from the index cards. Provide the cards for the first few meetings until the boys can recite 
the Pledge of Allegiance, the Cub Scout Promise, and the Law of the Pack with confidence. 
Alternatively, the Promise and Law can be learned in “call and response” fashion, line by line.


Business items
 At this first meeting, develop a den code of conduct.


n Have each boy tell the den what one rule for good behavior during a den meeting should be.
n With a little prompting from the den leader, all the rules can be covered. Try to focus on 


what you want the behavior to be rather describing a negative action.
n For example: Only one person speaks at a time. Stay in the meeting room, unless you 


have permission from the den leader to go elsewhere. Use good, appropriate, and positive 
manners. Walk in the building unless we are doing an activity requiring otherwise. Leave 
our meeting room cleaner than we found it.


den Meeting 1







 


91


Activities
 Review the Bobcat requirements (pages 16–26 of the Wolf Handbook):


n Learn and say the Cub Scout Promise.
n Say the Law of the Pack and discuss what it means.
n Tell what Webelos means. (We’ll Be Loyal Scouts.)
n Learn the Cub Scout sign and tell what it means. (Two parts of the Promise: “help other 


people” and “obey the Law of the Pack,” and it looks like a Wolf’s ears, meaning “I’m ready 
to listen.”)


n Show the Cub Scout handshake and tell what it means. (Like the sign, two parts of the Promise.)
n Say the Cub Scout motto. (Do Your Best.)
n Learn the Cub Scout salute and tell what it means. (Respect)
n Suggestion: Bobcat relay race:


• The den divides into two teams, lining up for relay race on one end of room or field, with 
leaders and/or parent helpers on the other end, to test on the Cub Scout Promise, Law of 
the Pack, Cub Scout motto, sign, handshake, salute, and meaning of Webelos.


• The first boy on each team walks to the leader, answers the Bobcat-related question, then 
returns to tag the next Cub Scout.


• If the Cub Scout can’t answer, he can go back and get help from the other Scouts, then 
return and answer the question.


 Complete the Character Connection for Honesty.
n Know: Discuss these questions with your family. What is a promise? What does it mean to 


“keep your word?” What does honesty mean? What does it mean to “do your best?”
n Commit: Discuss these questions with your family. Why is a promise important? Why is 


it important for people to trust you when you give your word? When might it be difficult to 
keep your word? List examples.


n Practice: Discuss with family members why it is important to be trustworthy and  honest 
and how you can do your best to be honest when you are doing the activities in Cub 
 Scouting.


 Elective 9b (“Make a gift or toy like one of these and give it to someone.”):
n Photograph each boy separately (head and shoulders) in his uniform. Alternatively, have the 


Scouts photograph each other (serious shots and fun shots).
n This will be used for Elective 9b in Den Meeting 5.


 Elective 12e (“Make a stencil pattern.”):
n Trace each boy’s hand on cardstock (or heavy paper) and make a stencil.
n Then trace the pattern on a square of yellow-gold felt.
n Have each boy cut out his handprint and put his name on the back of it.
n This will be used for your den flag. If you keep the flag in this way, at their Arrow of Light 


Award ceremony, when the boys are in fifth grade, the handprints can be removed from the 
den flag and each boy will present his print to his parents.


closing
 Award (or recognize) any advancement completed at this meeting; thank hosts, guests, and helpers.


.  Hand out or send family information letter.


 Home Assignment: Remind parents to complete Achievement 8b–e and read 
How to Protect Your Children From Child Abuse: A Parent’s Guide.


After the Meeting
 If you’ve changed the sequence of den meetings, double-check to make sure you will still 


advance your boys appropriately and check with the Cubmaster to make sure you stay 
coordinated with the pack.


 Refreshments: If appropriate
 Cleanup: Recruit enough help to do a good job. Scouts always leave an area as clean, or cleaner, 


than they found it.


Following Den Meeting 1, the den leader prints each boy’s name on his felt handprint, 
using fabric paint. When the paint is dry, the leader may sew the handprints onto the den 
flag or may choose to have the boys do the sewing at Den Meeting 2.


den Meeting 1








2010 Centennial Quality Commitment and Achievement  
Form for Council Award


“To improve the QUALITY of program in every unit in America!”


Council _____________________________  Area________________________________  Region___________________


As leaders of our council, we are dedicated to achieving the following criteria for the 2010 Centennial Quality Award:


Criteria for Award
2009 
Actual


2010  
Goal 


2010 
Actual


Yes/No 
Achieved


1.  We will have at least 60 percent of our traditional units earn the Centennial 
Quality Award for this year.


Yes/No Yes/No Yes/No Yes/No


2. We will organize _____new units in 2010. Yes/No


3.  We will achieve ________ percent growth in traditional membership OR a 
________ percent gain in traditional density, PLUS increase or maintain the 
number of Exploring members.


Yes/No


4.  We will increase the district’s retention of youth from ______   percent last 
year to _______ percent.


Yes/No


5.  We will achieve a balanced 2010 operating budget with income of 
$_____________ over expenses.


Yes/No


6.  Through our district commissioner staffs, we will work to retain ____ percent 
of the units in our council.


Yes/No


7.  We will recruit and train an additional ______ unit commissioners,  
increase commissioner unit visits per unit by commissioners to____ per year, 
and improve the commissioner-to-unit ratio.


____
____
____


____
____
____


____
____
____


Yes/No
Yes/No
Yes/No


8.  We will recruit and train ______ additional district committee members and 
increase the average number of members per district over last year.


Yes/No
Yes/No


9.  We will add _____ commissioned youth-serving executives or maintain the 
approved staff size.


Yes/No


10.  Have an active endowment committee, and secure _______ new 
endowment gifts this year.


Yes/No
______


Yes/No
______


Yes/No
______


Yes/No
Yes/No


 
Reviewed and approved on this date ___________________ by:


Council president Council commissioner Scout executive


Area president Area commissioner Area director


________________________________________________________________________________
Based on our evaluation of the criteria (complete after the year ends December 31):


___ Yes, we have achieved the 2010 Centennial Quality Council Award. 


___  No, we did not achieve the award for 2010, but have developed an action plan to accomplish it for next year. The action plan includes: 


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Reviewed and approved on this date ___________________ by:


Council president Council commissioner Scout executive


Area president Area commissioner Area director







2010 Centennial Quality Commitment and Achievement  
for Council Award Interpretation of Criteria


“To improve the QUALITY of program in every unit in America!”


Use this information to guide your understanding of the criteria. The Centennial tab on MyBSA under the Program section helps 
monitor your progress towards achievement. Use actual numbers from the previous year to guide your improvement as you establish 
your goals. (If any of the criteria are at an agreed-upon number, then the goal might be to maintain them for this year.) Additional 
details and other resources in support of the Centennial Quality Awards program can be viewed by going to MyBSA, then clicking  
on Resources, and Council and District Operations.


After you have completed the form, submit it to the area for recording and filing. The first page is the council copy; the second 
page is the area copy.


1. Centennial Quality Units. At least 60 percent of the traditional units in the council qualified as national Centennial Quality 
Units this year. Note: New units organized during the year can also qualify for the award.


2. New Units organized. Establish a number of new units to be organized. Use the district new-unit charts and determine how 
many new units are needed to serve the youth population in the council.


3. Membership or density growth. Record membership growth of traditional members or an agreed-upon gain in traditional density, 
PLUS increase or maintain the number of Exploring members.


4. Youth retention. Using the retention figures from MyBSA, increase the total retention of youth members by the percentage 
your council and area leadership agreed upon.


5. Finance. Achieve a balanced 2010 operating budget. (Your 2010 operating budget should include a net result of excess of 
revenues over expenses by a specified amount.) The budget should be approved by the council and area leadership.


6. Unit retention. Establish a percentage of units to retain based on last year’s retention rate. Work with all district commissioner 
staffs and establish a rechartering goal for the council.


7. Commissioner service. Add an agreed-upon number of new unit commissioners, increase unit visits per unit by commissioners 
to a specified number per year, and improve the ratio of commissioners to units.


8. District committee. Recruit an agreed-upon number of new district committee members to increase the average number of 
members per district over last year.


9. Youth-serving executives. Add a specified number of commissioned youth-serving executives based on your strategic plan, or 
maintain the strategic plan approved staff size. 


10. Endowment. Have an active endowment committee. Secure a specified number of new endowment gifts this year.


Additional goals. When the area leadership meets with the council as a part of the annual local council charter review meeting, 
they will review other important items. These may include, but are not limited to: the council’s long-range strategic plan, functioning 
Key 3s in every district, balanced growth, active risk-management committees, annual conferences with chartered organization 
leaders, and other important priorities.


7 30176 30714 5


SKU 5131901


513-190-1 2009 Printing








FAMILY TALENT SURVEY SHEET


Each parent or adult family member should fill out a separate sheet
and turn it in at this meeting.


Pack  ___________________  Chartered Organization __________________________________Date ________________


Welcome to the Cub Scout family of our pack. As explained to you, Cub Scouting is for parents as well as boys. We 
have a fine group of families who have indicated a willingness to help, according to their abilities. We invite you to 
add your talents and interests so that the best possible program can be developed for your boy and his friends.


Den leaders are always busy with den activities. Our pack leaders and committee members know you have some 
talent that will help in the operation of our pack. Although your help may not be on a full-time basis, whatever you 
can do will be appreciated.


In making this survey, your pack committee wants to uncover ways you can enjoy giving assistance. Please answer 
the following as completely as possible:


1. My hobbies are:  __________________________________________________________________________________


2. I can play and/or teach these sports:  _________________________________________________________________


3. My job, business, or profession would be of interest to Cub Scouts:  ______________________________________


4. I am willing to help my boy and the pack as: ■ pack committee member, ■ Cub Scout den leader or assistant, 
 ■ Tiger Cub den leader, ■ assistant Cubmaster, ■ Webelos den leader or assistant, ■ Cubmaster, ■ Pack trainer.


5. My Scouting experience: Cub Scout ________________ Boy Scout _______________ Girl Scout _______________


 Explorer  _______________________________________ Rank attained ____________________________________  


 Adult leader ______________________________________________________________________________________


6. I can help in these areas:


General Activities  Special Program Assistance


■ Carpentry ■ Computer Skills ■ I have an SUV or ■ van or ■ truck.
■ Swimming ■ Drawing/art ■ I have a workshop.
■ Games ■ Radio/electricity ■ I have family camping gear.
■ Nature ■ Dramatics/skits ■ I can make contacts for special trips and activities.
■ Sports ■ Cooking/banquets ■ I have access to a cottage or camping property
■ Outdoor activities ■ Sewing ■ or a boat.
■ Crafts ■ Transportation ■ I can help Webelos Scouts with Boy Scout skills.
■ Music/songs ■ Other _________________ ■ I can, or know others who can, help with our Cub
■ Bookkeeping --- _______________________ ■ Scout Academics and Sports program.
	 	 ■ I can give other help.  _____________________________
  ■  ________________________________________________
Webelos Activity Areas  ■  ________________________________________________
■ Aquanaut
■ Artist
■ Athlete
■ Citizen
■ Communicator
■ Craftsman
■ Engineer


Name  _________________________________________________________  Home phone _________________________
Street address  _________________________________________________  Business phone ________________________
E-mail address ____________________________ City  ______________________________  State ____ ZIP__________
Your cooperation and help are appreciated.


■ Family Member
■ Fitness
■ Forester
■ Geologist
■ Handyman
■ Naturalist
■ Outdoorsman


■ Readyman
■ Scholar
■ Scientist
■ Showman
■ Sportsman
■ Traveler







34-12 appendix


CUB SCOUTING AND YOUR FAMILY
The Cub Scout program helps to meet your boy’s growth needs. As a boy develops, he has 
specific developmental needs such as:


1 To learn new physical skills. He can do this through games, sports, and crafts. As he 
develops his coordination, he gains a sense of worthiness and acceptance by his peers.


2 To learn to get along with boys of his same age. He needs to form friendships with other 
boys. He needs to learn how to balance giving and receiving affection if he is to relate 
well to his peers. He needs to belong to a group of boys his own age. Being a part of a 
Cub Scout den helps fulfill these needs.


3 To develop his mental processes. He can develop his mental process by reading, writing, 
and calculating. He needs opportunities to use language to express ideas and to influ-
ence others. He must move from a preoccupation with self to understanding how and 
what others think of him. Opportunities for observation and experimentation will help 
him learn self-reliance. Den activities and meetings, along with the advancement pro-
gram, help him develop mentally.


4 To develop a value system. He is developing a sense of what is right and wrong and 
what is fair and unfair. He will do this by cooperating with other boys, by being taught, 
by examples of adults, and from positive reinforcement. He begins to develop demo-
cratic social attitudes.


5 To develop personal independence. He is becoming less dependent on adults. His same-
age friends become important to him. In his den, and in the pack, he exercises his inde-
pendence while learning to get along with others.


Your son also needs to belong to a ‘‘group’’ of boys his own age. This group is a key com-
ponent of the Cub Scout program. A den is like a neighborhood group of six or eight boys 
in which he will achieve status and recognition.


As you learn more about how Cub Scouting works and what goes on in a den and a pack, 
you will see that the program helps your boy in these five important developmental needs. 
The uniqueness of Cub Scouting is that you, as his family, join the program with your boy. 
You will help him all along the way.


To find out how you can support your boy by becoming a Cub Scout family, please turn the 
page and complete the Family Talent Survey Sheet*. Please turn it in at this meeting.


* Also may be titled Parent and Family Talent Survey Sheet.






The Foundations of Cub Scouting and the BSA

The Mission


The Mission of the Boy Scouts of America is to prepare young people to make ethical and moral choices over their lifetimes by instilling in them the values of the Scout Oath and Law.


The Scout Oath


On my honor, I will do my best, to do my duty to God and my country and to obey the scout law; to help other people at all times, to keep myself physically strong, mentally awake, and morally straight.


The Scout Law


A Scout is:


Trustworthy

Obedient


Loyal


Cheerful


Helpful

Thrifty


Friendly

Brave


Courteous

Clean


Kind


Reverent


The Vision


The Boy Scouts of America will prepare every eligible youth in America to become a responsible participating citizen and leader who is guided by the Scout oath and law.


The Aims of Cub Scouting


· Character Development


· Citizenship training


· Mental and physical fitness





WOLF 
ACHIEVEMENTS


 1. Feats of Skill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Your Flag. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Keep Your Body Healthy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4.  Know Your Home and Community . . . . . . . __________
 5. Tools for Fixing and Building. . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Start a Collection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Your Living World. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Cooking and Eating . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9.  Be Safe at Home and on the Street. . . . . . . . __________
 10. Family Fun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Duty to God. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Making Choices . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


ELECTIVES*
 1. It’s a Secret . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Be an Actor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Make It Yourself . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Play a Game . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Sparetime Fun. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Books, Books, Books . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Foot Power . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Machine Power. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Let’s Have a Party . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Native American Lore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Sing-Along . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Be an Artist . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Birds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Pets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Grow Something. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Family Alert. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Tie It Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Outdoor Adventure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Fishing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sports . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Computers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Say It Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Let's Go Camping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
GOLD ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


BEAR 
ACHIEVEMENTS


GOD (1)
 1. Ways We Worship . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Emblems of Faith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
COUNTRY (3)
 3. What Makes America Special?. . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Tall Tales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5.  Sharing Your World with Wildlife. . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Take Care of Your Planet. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7.  Law Enforcement Is a Big Job . . . . . . . . . . . __________
*See “How to Use This Form” above.


ADVANCEMENT RECORD
This Cub Scout completes the third grade on _________________ (date) 
and will be eligible to join a Webelos den. (He is also eligible when he 
becomes 10 on __________________________________________________________.)


BECAME A BOBCAT ON ____________________________________  (date)


FAMILY (4)
 8.  The Past is Exciting and Important. . . . . . . . __________
 9. What’s Cooking?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Family Fun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Be Ready . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Family Outdoor Adventures . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Saving Well, Spending Well. . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SELF (4)
 14. Ride Right . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Games, Games, Games! . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Building Muscles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Information, Please
 18. Jot It Down . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Shavings and Chips . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sawdust and Nails . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Build a Model . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Tying It All Up . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Sports, Sports, Sports! . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 24. Be a Leader . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


ELECTIVES*
 1. Space. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Weather . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Radio. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Electricity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Boats . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Aircraft. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Things That Go . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Cub Scout Band . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Art . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Masks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Photography . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Nature Crafts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Magic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Landscaping . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Water and Soil Conservation . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Farm Animals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Repairs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Backyard Gym. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Swimming. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Sports . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 21. Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 22. Collecting Things . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 23. Maps . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 24. Native American Life. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 25. Let's Go Camping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
GOLD ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
SILVER ARROW POINT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


WEBELOS 
ACTIVITY BADGES


 1. Aquanaut. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Artist . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Athlete . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Citizen †† . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Communicator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Craftsman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


 7. Engineer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Family Member. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 9. Fitness †† . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 10. Forester . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 11. Geologist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 12. Handyman. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 13. Naturalist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 14. Outdoorsman †. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 15. Readyman † . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 16. Scholar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 17. Scientist. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 18. Showman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 19. Sportsman. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 20. Traveler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 † Required for Arrow of Light 
†† Required for Webelos badge


WEBELOS BADGE
 1. Parent Guide . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 2. Active for 3 months. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3. Webelos badge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Uniform. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Three activity badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Flag ceremony . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Boy Scout requirements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 8. Religious award or alternates . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 BADGE AWARDED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


COMPASS POINTS
Emblem . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
Point . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________


ARROW OF LIGHT AWARD
 1. Six months in fifth grade (or age 10) . . . . . . __________
 2.  Boy Scout requirements 


•  Scout Oath and Law . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________ 
•   Motto,  slogan, sign, salute, 


and handclasp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Scout badge. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Uniform . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
    •  Tie square knot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 3.  Earn five additional 


activity badges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 4. Troop visit and outing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 5. Webelos outdoor event. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
 6. Troop meeting and conference. . . . . . . . . . . __________
 7. Honesty Character Connection . . . . . . . . . . __________
AWARD PRESENTED . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________
GRADUATION CEREMONY HELD . . . . . . . . . . . . __________
JOINED TROOP. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (date) __________


LEADERSHIP
 FROM TO
Denner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Assistant denner . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Webelos denner. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _________  _________
Assistant Webelos denner . . . . . . .  _________  _________


ACHV ELEC


HOW TO USE THIS FORM:
For ranks of Bobcat, Wolf, and Bear, and for arrow points, Webelos 
activity badges, Webelos badge, and Arrow of Light Award, the entries 
should consist of the date (i.e., month and year). For recording elec-
tives a “tally” system may be used since some of these electives may 
be done more than once. A tally entry (I) is given for each time the 
elective project is completed. Four individual tally entries with a diag-
onal line across them equals 5: I I I I. Note that Bear achievements 
not used to earn the Bear rank may be used as Bear electives.


ACHV ELEC








34-24 appendix


BO
YS


’ N
AM


ES
RA


NK
S


AR
RO


W
 


PO
IN


TS
*


AC
TI


VI
TY


 B
AD


GE
S


CO
M


PA
SS


 
PO


IN
TS


(C
H


E
C


K
 M


A
R


K
 [


✔
] 


IN
D


IC
A


T
E


S
  


R
E


C
O


G
N


IT
IO


N
 A


C
H


IE
V


E
D


)
*D


es
ig


na
te


 A
rr


ow
 P


oi
nt


s 
by


 r
an


k:
  


(W
) W


ol
f, 


(B
) 


B
ea


r.
†D


es
ig


na
te


 p
ro


pe
r 


se
rv


ic
e 


st
ar


 b
y 


nu
m


be
r 


 
of


 y
ea


rs
.


BOBCAT


TIGER CUB


WOLF


BEAR


WEBELOS BADGE


ARROW OF LIGHT


GOLD


SILVER


AQUANAUT


ARTIST


ATHLETE


CITIZEN


CCOMMUNICATOR


CRAFTSMAN


ENGINEER


FAMILY MEMBER


FITNESS


FORESTER


GEOLOGIST


HANDYMAN


NATURALIST


OUTDOORSMAN


READYMAN


SCHOLAR


SCIENTIST


SHOWMAN


SPORTSMAN


TRAVELER


EMBLEM


DEVICE


SERVICE STAR


D
E


N
 A


D
VA


N
C


E
M


E
N


T
 R


E
P


O
R


T
D


E
N


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


PA
C


K
 _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_


D
AT


E
 _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_


N
O


T
E


 T
O


 T
H


E
 L


E
A


D
E


R
S


 O
F


 C
U


B
 S


C
O


U
T


 D
E


N
S


 A
N


D
 W


E
B


E
LO


S
 S


C
O


U
T


 D
E


N
S


: 
B


ef
or


e 
su


bm
itt


in
g 


th
is


 r
e-


co
rd


, 
m


ak
e 


ce
rt


ai
n 


th
at


 
fu


ll 
an


d 
co


rr
ec


t 
in


fo
rm


at
io


n 
fo


r 
ea


ch
 


C
ub


 
S


co
ut


 
or


 W
eb


el
os


 
S


co
ut


 
is


 
gi


ve
n,


 
an


d 
th


at
 


he
 i


s 
ac


tu
al


ly
 a


 r
eg


is
te


re
d 


m
em


be
r 


of
 y


ou
r 


pa
ck


 a
nd


 i
s 


qu
al


ifi
ed


 a
s 


to
 g


ra
de


 (
or


 a
ge


) 
to


 r
ec


ei
ve


 t
he


 a
dv


an
ce


-
m


en
t 


in
 r


an
k 


in
di


ca
te


d.
 F


ill
 o


ut
 t


hi
s 


fo
rm


 a
t 


th
e 


en
d 


of
 y


ou
r 


th
ird


 d
en


 m
ee


tin
g 


an
d 


ta
ke


 i
t 


to
 t


he
 p


ac
k 


le
ad


er
s’


 m
ee


t-
in


g,
 w


he
re


 a
 c


om
po


si
te


 r
eq


ue
st


 w
ill


 b
e 


m
ad


e 
fo


r 
th


e 
pa


ck
. 


A
w


ar
ds


 s
ho


ul
d 


be
 a


va
ila


bl
e 


fo
r 


pr
es


en
ta


tio
n 


at
 t


he
 


ne
xt


 p
ac


k 
m


ee
tin


g.
 U


se
 s


pa
ce


 o
n 


th
e 


ba
ck


 t
o 


re
po


rt
 b


oy
 p


ro
bl


em
s:


 n
ot


 a
dv


an
ci


ng
, 


no
t 


pa
yi


ng
 d


ue
s,


 n
ot


 w
ea


rin
g  


un
ifo


rm
, p


oo
r 


at
te


nd
an


ce
 o


r 
di


sc
ip


lin
e,


 in
ac


tiv
ity


, e
tc


.


AT
T


E
N


T
IO


N
 D


E
N


 L
E


A
D


E
R


S
: U


se
 th


e 
sp


ac
e 


pr
ov


id
ed


 b
el


ow
 to


 o
rd


er
 C


ub
 S


co
ut


 In
st


an
t R


ec
og


ni
-


tio
n 


K
its


, N
o.


 0
18


04
, t


o 
re


co
gn


iz
e 


C
ub


 S
co


ut
s 


as
 th


ey
 c


om
pl


et
e 


ac
hi


ev
em


en
ts


 fo
r W


ol
f a


nd
 B


ea
r.


P
le


as
e 


or
de


r 
fo


r 
m


y 
de


n 
__


__
__


__
 In


st
an


t R
ec


og
ni


tio
n 


K
its


, N
o.


 0
18


04
.


T
he


se
 d


en
 m


em
be


rs
 h


av
e 


co
m


pl
et


ed
 r


eq
ui


re
m


en
ts


 fo
r 


th
e 


ba
dg


e 
in


di
ca


te
d.


C
ub


 S
co


ut
 D


en
 L


ea
de


r
W


eb
el


os
 S


co
ut


 D
en


 L
ea


de
r _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__


B
O


Y
 S


C
O


U
T


S
 O


F
 A


M
E


R
IC


A








INDIVIDUAL CUB SCOUT RECORD


Cub Scout Den _____________________   Webelos Den _____________________   Pack No.___________


PERSONAL DATA


Name __________________________________________________________________________________


Address _______________________________________________________________________________


City, State, Zip ____________________________________________________


Home phone ______________________________________________________


Date of birth ______________________________________________________


Religious organization ____________________________________________


School ______________________________________________________


Parent’s or guardian’s name ______________________________________


Business address ________________________________________________


City, State, Zip ____________________________________________________


Business phone __________________________________________________


Occupation _________________________________________


MEMBERSHIP


Former Tiger Cub (yes or no) ___________________________


Number of years in another pack ________________________
 Date


Joined this pack ______________________________________


Will complete grade 3 or become 10 ______________________


To Webelos den ______________________________________


To another pack ______________________________________


Dropped from pack ___________________________________


Tenure when separated:


 Less than 1 year  1 to 2 years  2 to 3 years


SERVICE AWARDS


1-Year 2-Year 3-Year 4-Year


Service stars


Perfect attendance


ATTENDANCE AND DUES
Write in year and month


BUDGET: The dues collected should cover the following items in the pack budget: registration, Boys’ Life, 
accident insurance, reserve fund, program materials, activities.


D = Present at den meeting
P = Present at pack meeting
F = Family represented


 S = Present at special pack activity
 50, 75 = Amount paid on date shown (dues)
 ✓ = Dues paid ahead or back


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


YEAR
ATTENDANCE


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞


DATE	
➞








Uniform Inspection Sheet


Scout Leader
Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


Attendance. Presence at inspection merits 15 points.
 Notes 


Headgear. Headgear is optional. 
	 Boy Scout leaders wear the olive visor cap, campaign hat, or troop-approved headgear. 
	  Varsity Scout leaders wear the blaze visor cap. 
	  Cub Scout pack leaders wear the olive visor cap. 
	  Den leaders wear the same visored cap as the youth they serve.


 Notes 


Shirt/Blouse and Neckwear. New long or short sleeves, or official long or short  
sleeves with appropriate loops on epaulets. Neckwear is optional but must be worn according  
to specifications in the Insignia Guide. 


	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the long- or short-sleeve uniform or official shirt.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear either the official long- or short-sleeve yellow blouse, official  
long- or short-sleeve shirt, or the official long- or short-sleeve uniform blouse.
	 Female Boy Scout leaders wear the official shirt or official long- or short sleeve uniform blouse.


 Notes


Pants/Shorts. Units have no option to change.
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear the official pants or the official uniform shorts  
or pants with no cuffs.
	   Female Cub Scout leaders wear the pants or the official navy blue shorts, skirt, or pants with  
the yellow blouse, or the official pants or official uniform shorts or pants with the official  
shirt or blouse.


 Notes 


Belt
	 Male leaders wear the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle  
of their choice.
	   Female leaders wear the official navy blue Cub Scout or Webelos Scout buckle with  
navy blue pants, or the official web belt or official leather belt with the buckle of their  
choice with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


 Notes 


Socks 
	 Male Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders wear olive socks with official pants or official  
uniform shorts or pants.
	   Female leaders wear the blue socks with the blue shorts or pants, or the olive socks  
with official pants or official uniform shorts or pants.


Shoes
	  Must be neat and clean.


 Notes 


Uniform points. Total points from above (75 possible)


Insignia.✱ Correct epaulets, 5 points. Correct placement on left sleeve, 5 points; right sleeve,  
5 points; left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points. Use the checklist on the reverse of this  
form to help determine score.
Insignia points from reverse (25 possible)


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Uniform and insignia points combined. A perfect score is 100 points.


15 pts.


5 pts.


20 pts.


20 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


 


Total Uniform Inspection Score
Name Unit No.


Address District


Office or position in unit


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


.


Bring this form with you.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.







Scout Leader Uniform Inspection Sheet


Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness.


Shoulder Epaulets
	 Scouters wear the color shoulder loop of the program in which 
they are serving: blue, Cub Scouting; green, Boy Scouting; blaze 
(orange), Varsity Scouting; green, Venturing; silver, council and 
district; gold, regional and national.


  Notes 


Right Sleeve
	  U.S. flag emblem centered directly below shoulder seam
	  Den or emblem numeral, if applicable, below and  
touching the flag 
	  Centennial Quality Unit Award (most recent only),  
if applicable, 4 inches below the shoulder seam


  Notes


Left Sleeve
	 Council shoulder patch is directly below the shoulder seam. 
	  Veteran unit bar, if worn, is centered and touching the  
council shoulder patch (above) and unit numeral (below). 
	  Unit numeral, if worn, is centered directly underneath and 
touching the council patch or veteran unit bar. 
	  On the official shirt, the badge of office is centered on the 
pocket, as shown. On the official uniform shirt, the badge of 
office is centered and touching the unit numeral, or centered 4 
inches below the shoulder seam. 
	 When earned, the Trained leader strip is centered at the top 
of the pocket flap on the official shirt. On the official uniform 
shirt, it is centered as shown, touching the badge of office.


  Notes


Right Pocket
	 Boy Scouts of America strip is centered above the pocket.
	  Order of the Arrow lodge insignia is worn on the pocket flap.
	 Current national Scout jamboree insignia is centered above 
the BSA strip and any other items above the pocket.
	  Optional insignia, if worn, is placed in the following order, 
from the BSA strip upward: interpreter strip, Venture or  
Varsity strip, name plate. The name plate may be worn on  
the pocket flap if no lodge insignia is worn.
	  Temporary insignia, including one current world Scout jam-
boree patch, centered on pocket. Only one temporary insignia 
may be worn at a time, and they are not required for correct 
uniforming. Cub Scout leaders and female leaders wearing 
the official uniform shirt or blouse may wear one temporary 
insignia centered above the Boy Scouts of America strip.


  Notes


Left Pocket
	  World Crest emblem is centered between the left shoulder 
seam and the top of the left pocket.
	 Embroidered square knots are centered above the pocket in 
rows of three. 
	 Service stars are centered above the pocket, 3⁄4 inch from  
top point to top point and 3⁄8 inch from either the pocket  
or embroidered knots.


  Notes


Total insignia score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


RIGHT POCKET LEFT POCKET


VENTURE


FRANÇAIS
3⁄4"


3⁄8"


34048


7 30176 34600 7


2008 Printing


SHOULDER
SEAM


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


25 pts.


4"


SHOULDER EPAULETS 
AND LOOPS


RIGHT SLEEVE LEFT SLEEVE 
(OFFICIAL UNIFORM  


SHIRT)


LEFT SLEEVE  
wITH POCKET  


(OFFICIAL SHIRT)








PROGRESS RECORD FOR THE  
WEBELOS DEN LEADER AWARD


Cut along solid lines; fold along dotted lines.


(Reproduce  
locally.)


➨


Take leadership in planning and 
conducting a Webelos den service 
project.
Conduct at least three Webelos den 
meetings per month, 9 months per 
year or an optional meeting plan 
approved by the pack.
Participate with your den in a 
Webelos day camp or resident 
camp experience.
Explore three “character 
connection” activities with your 
den members in one year.
Hold regular den meeting and 
activity planning sessions with 
your assistant den leader.


Approved by


Pack committee chairman or Cubmaster Date


DISTRICT ACTION
This progress record has been reviewed 
and the candidate has met the standards 
for the Webelos Den Leader Award. The 
award is approved.


Approved by


For the district Date


PROGRESS RECORD 
FOR THE 


WEBELOS DEN LEADER 
AWARD


Name  _____________________________


Address   __________________________


City   ______________________________


Pack No.  _______  District  __________


Council   ___________________________


BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA


TENURE
Complete 1 year as a registered 
Webelos den leader. (Dates of service 
used to earn this award cannot be used 
to earn another key or award.


Dates of Service


From  ____________ To  _____________


From  ____________ To  _____________
Approved by


Pack committee chairman or Cubmaster Date


TRAINING
Complete “The New Webelos Den 
Leader” Fast Start training.
Complete New Leader  
Essentials.
Complete leader-specific  
training.
Complete Youth Protection 
Training.
Complete outdoor leader skills for 
Webelos leaders.
During your tenure for this award, 
participate in a Cub Scout leader 
pow wow or University of Scouting, 
or attend at least four roundtables.


Approved by


Pack committee chairman or Cubmaster Date


PERFORMANCE
Do seven of the following:


During at least one program year, 
have a minimum of 50 percent of 
the Webelos Scouts in your den 
advance in rank (Webelos Badge or 
Arrow of Light Award).


At least once, reregister a minimum 
of 75 percent of the eligible 
members of your den as a part of 
pack rechartering.


 Graduate a minimum of 60 percent 
of the eligible members of your 
Webelos den into Boy Scouting.


Have an assistant Webelos den 
leader or second adult who 
regularly attends your den’s 
meetings and activities.


Have a Webelos den chief who 
meets regularly with your den.


Take leadership in planning and 
conducting two Webelos overnight 
campouts or other outdoor den 
activities.


Help plan and conduct a Webelos 
den–Boy Scout troop joint activity.








33852A
2001 Boy Scouts of America


WEBELOS DEN MEETING PROGRAM
WEBELOS DEN NO.  _________________________  PACK NO.  ________________________


MEETING PLACE _______________________________________________________________


DATE  ____________________________________ TIME _______________________________


ACTIVITY BADGE AREA _________________________________________________________


The Webelos den leader and the Webelos den chief use this form to build the den meeting pro-
gram. Together they determine which part or parts the den chief and the denner will be assigned 
for each meeting. Indicate time schedule as needed.


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


BEFORE THE MEETING
The den leader and den chief make 
final preparations; coach the denner on 
the part he is to take in the meeting; and 
help the denner arrange meeting place.


GATHERING
Choose an activity to keep those 
who arrive early busy until time for 
the opening.


OPENING
Select a simple opening ceremony, 
conduct a uniform inspection, and 
attend to den business—attendance, 
dues, and discussion of plans of 
coming events.


ACTIVITY BADGE FUN
Use this time for instruction, prac-
tice, games, and contests related to 
the Webelos badge, activity badges, 
and the Arrow of Light Award.


PREPARATION
Make equipment and props for dem-
onstrations and exhibits for den’s 
part in the pack meeting. Get set for 
future outdoor, goodwill, or other 
special events.


CLOSING
This is the time for announcements, 
a simple closing ceremony, and den 
meeting cleanup.


AFTER THE MEETING
The den leader and den chief review 
this meeting and discuss plans for the 
next den meeting. Review the next 
meeting assignment with the denner. 
Help the denner put room in order.


EQUIPMENT NEEDED:


7
 


130176 33852


#33852A


ResouRces, FoRms, and applications 34-15








W
E


B
E


LO
S


 D
E


N
 L


E
A


D
E


R
, 


th
is


 i
s 


yo
ur


 p
er


m
an


en
t 


re
co


rd
 o


f 
ea


ch
 W


eb
el


os
 S


co
ut


 f
ro


m
 t


he
 t


im
e 


he
 


jo
in


s 
C


ub
 S


co
ut


s 
un


til
 h


e 
tr


an
sf


er
s 


or
 b


ec
om


es
 a


 B
oy


 S
co


ut
. I


nd
ic


at
e 


m
on


th
 a


nd
 y


ea
r o


f a
dv


an
ce


m
en


t, 
as


 s
ho


w
n 


ab
ov


e.
 A


s 
ne


w
 b


oy
s 


jo
in


, 
fil


l i
n 


th
ei


r 
na


m
es


 a
nd


 o
th


er
 in


fo
rm


at
io


n.
 W


he
n 


a 
bo


y 
le


av
es


 t
he


 
de


n,
 d


ra
w


 a
 li


ne
 t


hr
ou


gh
 h


is
 n


am
e.


 U
se


 a
 s


ec
on


d 
fo


rm
 w


he
n 


th
is


 o
ne


 is
 f


ill
ed


.


W
e


b
e


L
O


S
 D


e
N


 r
e


c
O


r
D


D
e


N
 N


O
. _


__
__


 
PA


c
K


 N
O


. _
__


__
__


__
__


 
D


e
N


 M
e


e
t


iN
g


S
 H


e
L


D
  _


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


 
P


L
A


c
e


 _
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


_
 


D
A


Y
 


t
iM


e


N
A


M
e


A
D


D
r


e
S


S
P


H
O


N
e


H
O


M
e


b
u


S
iN


e
S


S


W
e


b
e


L
O


S
 D


e
N


 L
e


A
D


e
r


A
S


S
iS


tA
N


t
 W


e
b


e
L


O
S


 
D


e
N


 L
e


A
D


e
r


(A
d


d
it


io
n


al
 L


ea
d


er
)


W
e


b
e


L
O


S
 D


e
N


 c
H


ie
F


t
r


O
O


P
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


  
 r


A
N


K
__


__
__


__
__


__
__


D—Denner
AD—Assistant Denner


N
A


M
e


 A
N


D
 A


D
r


e
S


S
P


H
O


N
e


Birth Date


School Grade


Joined Webelos Den


Bobcat


A
c


t
iV


it
Y


 b
A


D
g


e
S


Webelos Badge


c
O


M
PA


S
S


 
P


O
iN


t
S


Arrow of Light


Graduation Date


Jointed Troop No.


Scout Badge


Aquanaut


Artist


Athlete


Citizen


Communicator


Craftsman


Engineer


Family Member


Fitness


Forester


Geologist


Handyman


Naturalist


Outdoorsman


Readyman


Scholar


Scientist


Showman


Sportsman


Traveler


Emblem


Point


Point


Point


H
O


W
 t


O
 u


S
e


 t
H


iS
 F


O
r


M


D
G


eo
rg


e 
Ol


se
n,


 6
5 


M
ar


kh
am


 S
t.


26
5-


22
14


M
/D


/Y
4


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


M
/Y


10
7


M
/Y








Camping Equipment


 ❑ Tent or tarp, poles, and stakes


 ❑ Waterproof ground cloth or plastic sheet


 ❑ Sleeping bag, pillow, air mattress or pad


 ❑ Cup, bowl, plate, knife, fork, spoon, mesh bag


 ❑ Clothesline


Clothes Bag


 ❑ Webelos Scout uniform


 ❑ Poncho or raincoat


 ❑ Warm jacket or coat


 ❑ Pajamas or sweatshirt, sweatpants


 ❑ Underwear


 ❑ Durable shoes, shoe laces


 ❑ Hat or cap


 ❑ Gloves


 ❑ Extra socks, shoes, other extra clothing


Toilet Kit


 ❑ Toothpaste, toothbrush, comb


 ❑ Washcloth, towel


 ❑ Soap in container


 ❑ Toilet paper


 ❑ Extra plastic bag or container


First Aid


 ❑ First aid kit


 ❑ Water bottle


 ❑ Flashlight, bulb, batteries


 ❑ Sunscreen


 ❑ Insect repellent


 ❑ Whistle


 ❑ Webelos Scout Book


 ❑ Safety pins


Extras


 ❑ Camera


 ❑ Binoculars


 ❑ Sunglasses


 ❑ Notebook and pencil


 ❑ Nature books


Program Options


 ❑ Swimsuit, towel


 ❑ Fishing gear


 ❑ Work gloves


weBeloS Scout overNight checkliSt
Our Webelos den is going camping on ______________________________________ at ________________________________.


We will meet at __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ______at ____________________.


We will return there at ___________________________  on ________________________.


 ❑ Tents will be furnished. ❑ Bring your own shelter.


 ❑ Cooking equipment will be furnished ❑ Bring your own cooking equipment.


A full Webelos Scout uniform is required for the campout. Sturdy shoes that are suitable for hiking will 


be useful.


During the campout we will be working on requirements for the following activity badge(s):


 ❑ Forester ❑ Geologist ❑ Naturalist ❑ Outdoorsman ❑ _________________________


The related material in the Webelos Scout Book should be read and carefully studied in advance. Bring your 


Webelos Scout Book to camp.


The following is a list of equipment that would be useful on the campout. Check off each item in pencil as 


you lay out your equipment pack:


(Location)


(Time)


(Date)


(Date)


(Location)


(Time)


Leader ____________________________  Phone _________________________________________________________








Uniform Inspection Sheet


Webelos Scout 


General Appearance. Allow 4 points for each: 
n	Good posture 
n	Clean face and hands 
n	Combed hair 
n	Neatly dressed 
n	Clean fingernails


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Headgear. Webelos cap. Webelos activity badges are worn on the plaid front panel of the  
Webelos cap or on the optional Webelos colors, if selected by the pack.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shirt. Webelos Scouts have the option of wearing either the long- or short-sleeve navy blue  
shirt and navy blue shorts or pants OR the long- or short-sleeve tan shirt with the official  
convertible Boy Scout pants or official shorts or pants. The blue shoulder loops are worn  
on epaulets regardless of the uniform color.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Neckwear. Triangular, plaid neckerchief secured by the Webelos rank slide.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Pants/Shorts. Webelos Scouts may wear either the official navy blue pants or shorts  
(with the navy blue shirt), or the official convertible Boy Scout pants (with the tan shirt),  
or the official Boy Scout pants or shorts (with the tan shirt).


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Belt. Official navy blue web belt cut to proper length with the Webelos insignia on the  
buckle. Cub Scout belt loops are worn only on the navy blue belt. Webelos Scouts wearing  
the optional tan uniform wear the navy blue belt and Webelos buckle. 


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Socks. The official navy blue socks (with gold tops) are worn with the navy blue uniform.  
The official socks are worn with the official Boy Scout uniform.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Shoes. Neat and clean.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Registration. Current membership card or temporary certificate on person.


 Notes ______________________________________________________


Insignia.✱ Correct placement: left pocket, 5 points; right pocket, 5 points; left sleeve,  
5 points; right sleeve, 5 points.


Total Uniform Inspection Score
A perfect score is 100 points.


20 pts.


5 pts.


15 pts.


5 pts.


15 pts.


5 pts.


Total Uniform Inspection Score


Name Pack No.


 Den


Our unit inspection  
will be held on


___________________.  


Bring this form with you.


Uniform Inspection.
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


5 pts.


5 pts.


✱
For more information about insignia, see the Insignia Guide, No. 33066.


5 pts.


20 pts.







Right Sleeve 
n		Wear the U.S. flag, den numeral, and Centennial Quality Unit Award (if 


earned) as shown. Only the most recently earned  
Centennial Quality Unit Award may be worn. 


n	 	Webelos Scouts may wear the den emblem in place of the  
den numeral.


n	 	If the pack elects, Webelos Scouts may wear the Webelos colors. 
n	 	Wear the Webelos colors immediately below and touching the U.S. flag 


if no den numeral is worn. 
n	 	If the den numeral is worn, wear colors below and touching the nu-


meral (as shown). 
n	 	Wear activity badges on the colors if this option is elected.
  Notes __________________________________________


Left Sleeve 
n		Wear the council shoulder emblem and pack numeral as shown.  
n	 	The veteran unit bar (25, 50, 55, or 60 years), if worn, is centered  


and touching the council shoulder emblem (above) and unit  
numeral (below). 


n	 	The denner cord or assistant denner cord is worn over the left shoulder.
  Notes __________________________________________


Right Pocket 
n		Temporary insignia are not necessary in uniform inspection, but  


if worn, the insignia must be centered on the pocket, or hung from  
the button. 


n	 	The compass points emblem is positioned under the right pocket  
button, and the flap is buttoned to keep it in place.  


n	 	A metal compass point may be pinned to the emblem for each four 
activity badges earned subsequently until three compass points have 
been earned.


n	 	The National Summertime Award is pinned centered on the right 
pocket flap. 


n	 	The Cub Scout Outdoor Activity Award is worn on the right pocket flap.
n	 	Each successive time the award is earned, a wolf track pin may be added 


to the flap. 
n	 	The recruiter strip is worn centered below the right pocket.
  Notes __________________________________________


Left Pocket 
n		Webelos Scouts have the option of wearing the oval-shaped Webelos 


badge by itself on the tan shirt only; or the diamond-shaped Webelos 
emblem along with other rank badges on either the tan or navy blue 
shirt; or if the Tiger Cub emblem was earned, the Webelos diamond-
shaped emblem may be worn on either the tan or navy blue shirt by itself 
and centered on the left pocket. 


n		The Arrow of Light Award is worn centered below the pocket of 
the tan shirt or centered at the top of the pocket flap of the navy 
blue or tan shirt. 


n		Wear medals just above the pocket seam. 
n		Wear service stars centered just above the medals or knots, or 


centered 3⁄8 inch above the seam if no medals are worn.
n		Gold background disks are worn with service stars for Cub 


Scouting service, including Tiger Cub service.  
n		Not more than five medals may be worn.
n		Wearing sequence for medals or knots is at the wearer’s discretion. 
n		The only knots worn by Cub Scouts are the religious  


emblem knot and a lifesaving or meritorious award knot. 
n		The World Crest is worn centered between the left shoulder 


seam and the top of the left pocket, as shown.
  Notes __________________________________________


Official Boy Scout Uniform Option
n	 	Webelos Scouts electing this option wear blue shoulder loops on the 


epaulets, Webelos neckerchief, and Webelos cap.  
n	 	The navy blue belt is worn with and will fit only the Webelos buckle. 


Academics and Sports belt loops will fit only on the navy blue belt. 
n	 	Badge placement is the same as for the navy blue uniform.
  Notes __________________________________________


Total Insignia Score (transfer to other side)


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


5 pts.


Webelos Scout Uniform Inspection Sheet
Official Placement of Insignia
Conduct the uniform inspection with common sense; the basic rule is neatness. 


30 pts.


5 pts.


Boy ScoutS of AmericA
1325 West Walnut Hill Lane
P.o. Box 152079
irving, texas 75015-2079
http://www.scouting.org


LEFT POCKET, (Tan shirT)


LEFT POCKET, navy BLuE  
Or Tan shirT


3⁄8"
sErviCE sTars


LEFT POCKET, navy BLuE  
Or Tan shirT


3⁄8"


34635


2008 Printing


LEFT sLEEvE


OPTiOns FOr  righT sLEEvE


wiTh dEn EmBLEm


righT POCKET


W E B E L O S


wiTh dEn numEraL


naTiOnaL 
summErTimE 


award Pin


OPTiOns FOr LEFT sLEEvE








 


258


Webelos den Meeting 1
Fitness and Athlete 


Before the Meeting
 Make final preparations with assistance from any assistant den leader or other parent helper, 


den chief, and/or denner. Organize the space (seating, flags, advancement charts, activity 
materials, handouts, etc.). If you’re snacking, organize space for that and the cleanup.


Gathering
 Welcome new and returning Scouts and parents. 
 Get to know parents/engage them in the meeting. 
 Have a gathering activity (games, puzzles, other) that will keep Scouts interested and busy and 


that others may join as they arrive. If the den desires, serve a healthy snack during this time.
 Collect dues, record attendance and any advancement completed over the summer (a good job 


for an assistant den leader).


opening
 Flag ceremony (rotate planning and leadership to complete Webelos requirement 6), with 


Pledge of Allegiance; maybe recite the Cub Scout Promise or sing a patriotic song; perhaps add 
a roll call, uniform recognition, or den yell.


 Provide index cards printed with the Cub Scout Promise and Law of the Pack for any new boys. 
 If you have a guest, give a formal introduction, including what the guest will do for you.


Business items
 This meeting will have lots of organizational and getting-to-know talk.
 Have each Scout (and attending parent) introduce themselves. 
 Discuss/remind what a den is, and how it fits in with a pack. Discuss your goals for the year 


and highlight/promote the cool activities. Discuss a den name, den yell, and other den identity 
elements (could include flag, totem, or neckerchief slide).


 Remind boys of behavioral expectations at den meetings. This is an opportunity to create your 
den’s code of conduct for how the den should govern itself during meetings.


 Use this time also to discuss participation in upcoming pack meetings or events as needed. 
 Explain that today’s meeting is to review Bobcat knowledge and requirements, plus to plan for 


upcoming Webelos events—to work on the Fitness and Athlete activity badges because the 
Webelos Scouts need to help plan where to go and how to get there.


Activities
 Review Bobcat Requirements (if needed): Cub Scout Promise; Law of the Pack; Cub Scout 


motto, sign, handshake, salute; meaning of Webelos. 


 Fitness Activity Badge: Requirements are to do 1 and six from 2–8.   


1. With your parent, guardian, or Webelos den leader, complete the Health and Fitness 
Character Connection. 
a. Know: Tell why it is important to be healthy, clean, and fit. 
b. Commit: Tell when it is difficult for you to stick with good health habits. Tell where you 


can go to be with others who encourage you to be healthy, clean, and fit. 
c. Practice: Practice good health habits while doing the requirements for this badge. 
• Doing this in small groups helps allow each Scout to participate more fully, but you may 


elect to discuss as an entire den, especially in this introductory meeting.


2. With a parent or other adult family member complete a safety notebook, which is discussed 
in the booklet How to Protect Your Children From Child Abuse: A Parent’s Guide that 
comes with the handbook.
• This is an “at home” project, but you may elect to discuss this with the den as well.


3. Read the meal planning information in this chapter. With a parent or other family member, 
plan a week of meals. Explain what kinds of meals are best for you and why. 


den Meeting 1







 


259


4. Keep a record of your daily meals and snacks for a week. Decide whether you have been 
eating foods that are good for you. 
• Review the handouts for 3 and 4 that you will ask the Scouts to complete and return.
• If you have access to a computer, go to www.mypyramid.gov/mypyramid/index.aspx and 


create personal pyramids tailored to your size, age, and activity level. 


5. Tell an adult member of your family about the bad effects smoking or chewing tobacco 
would have on your body. 


6. Tell an adult member of your family four reasons why you should not use alcohol and how 
it could affect you. 


7. Tell an adult member of your family what drugs could do to your body and how they would 
affect your ability to think clearly. 
• These could be done at home, but you may elect to discuss this with the den as well.


8. Read the booklet Choose to Refuse! Take A Stand Against Drugs! Discuss it with an adult 
and show that you understand the material. 
• If you do not have these booklets, this will be the extra requirement you do not do. 
• If you have the booklet, this could be done at home and in the den as well.
Note: Choose to Refuse is the standard booklet for this requirement and should be available 
through your council service center.


 This Fitness introduction is a good time, if you haven’t done it yet, to have them plan what kind of 
snacks to have at den meetings for the rest of the year. More nutritious snack alternatives include:
n Hard cheese cut into cubes and served with whole wheat crackers and/or apple slices
n Celery stalks filled with cheese spread or peanut butter
n Fresh vegetables served with a dip
n Peanut butter on bran muffins or whole wheat bread or crackers
n Chopped nuts mixed with bits of dried fruit
n Any kind of fruit. If available, try some unusual ones, such as kiwi, pomegranate, or mango.


 Note: Check for food allergies among your boys—for someone with a peanut allergy, even 
being around peanuts can trigger an allergy attack.


 Athlete Activity Badge: Requirements are to do requirements 1–5, and then two of 6 through 10.
(This meeting plan starts those first five, and adds 6 and 7):


1. With your parent, guardian, or Webelos den leader, complete the Perseverance  
Character Connection. 
a. Know: Review the requirements and decide which ones might be more difficult for you 


to do. Make a plan to complete one of the harder requirements. 
b. Commit: When doing the harder requirement, did you ever feel frustrated or angry? 


What did perseverance have to do with that? Name another type of task for which you 
will need to persevere. 


c. Practice: Practice perseverance by following your plan to do that requirement for the 
Athlete activity badge. 


2. Explain what it means to be physically and mentally healthy. 


3. Explain what you as a Webelos Scout can do to stay physically and mentally healthy. 
• You might cover 1, 2, and 3 as a group discussion, and then when you start the 


physical skills, you and other parents might then ask the Webelos Scouts to explain and 
demonstrate their knowledge of these.


• So you can do an activity, and while recovering, do the 1, 2, 3 question-and-answer signoffs.


Want More Fun in Your Activities?
this is a terrific day to jazz up with excitement. consider themes like a track meet. 
Maybe have an Mc or announcer for each event. Maybe someone with a video recorder 
can team up with a “sideline reporter” to get interviews with the contestants.


den Meeting 1







 


260


4. Every time you work on requirement 5 below, start with at least five minutes of stretching 
warm-up activities.


5. Do as many as you can of the following and record your results. Show improvement in all of 
the activities after 30 days. 
a. Have another person hold your feet down while you do as many curl-ups as you can. 
b. Do as many pull-ups from a bar as you can. 
c. Do as many push-ups from the ground or floor as you can. 
d. Do a standing long jump as far as you can. 
e. Do a quarter-mile run or walk. 


6. Do a vertical jump and improve your reach in 30 days. 


7. Do a 50-yard dash as fast as you can, and show a decrease in time over a 30-day period. 


n For requirement 5, 6, and 7, record boys’ initial results on the Athlete progress chart. Keep 
those charts for use in future meetings, since doing some or all of these is a great way to add 
physical activity, and the Scouts may be fired up to see if they have improved each time!


 In the boys’ Webelos Handbooks, sign the requirements met (and update your records).


 It is possible (especially if you have a good deal of Bobcat work) that this meeting will not be 
completed today. If so, carry over any incomplete elements to the next meeting that has a trip involved.


closing
 Award (or recognize) any advancement completed today (ideally, award the activity badge or belt 


loop item completed today, and recognize later at the pack meeting); thank hosts, guests, helpers.
 Closing ceremony (rotate planning and leadership to complete Webelos requirement 6): Retire 


the colors; maybe with the Boy Scout Oath and/or Law, or the Law of the Pack and/or den yell. 
Den leader may add a den leader’s minute comment.


 Remind the Webelos Scout who will plan and lead the next meeting’s flag ceremony, and remind 
about home assignments (and include these in any family information letter or e-mail).


 Hand out or send family information letter. 


 Home Assignment:
n ask boys to complete Fitness activity badge requirements 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 


at home with their parents/guardians, who should sign the boy’s handbook on 
completion.


n ask boys to complete athlete activity badge requirements 4–7.
 Read naturalist and Forester chapters in Webelos Handbook.


After the Meeting
 If you’ve changed the sequence of den meetings, double-check to make sure you will still 


advance your boys appropriately and check with the Cubmaster to make sure you stay 
coordinated with the pack.


 Refreshments: If appropriate
 Cleanup: Recruit enough help to do a good job. Scouts always leave an area as clean, or cleaner, 


than they found it.


den Meeting 1







 


261


Webelos scouts
Athlete Activity Badge Progress Record: Requirements 4–9
Chart your progress over five weeks.


Name: _________________________________________________


                     Week


Activity


1 


__/__/__


2


__/__/__


3


__/__/__


4


__/__/__


5


__/__/__


Minutes of 
stretching/ 
warm-up activities


curl-ups (number)


Pull-ups (number)


Push-ups (number)


standing long 
jump (distance)


Quarter-mile walk 
or run (time)


Vertical jump 
(height)


50-yard dash (time)


(optional) one-mile 
bike ride (time)


(optional) Quarter-
mile swim (time)


den Meeting 1







 


262


Webelos Fitness Activity Badge,  
Requirement 3 
With a parent or other family member, plan a week of meals.


Name: _________________________________________________


                    Meal
day Breakfast Lunch supper


sunday


Monday


Tuesday


Wednesday


Thursday


Friday


saturday


den Meeting 1







 


263


Webelos Fitness Activity Badge,  
Requirement 4 
Keep a record of your daily meals and snacks for a week. 


Name: _________________________________________________


              Meal
day Breakfast Lunch supper snacks


sunday


Monday


Tuesday


Wednesday


Thursday


Friday


saturday


den Meeting 1








A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


I 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games  
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 


 


 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Boy's Life Patch:  This is a great time to sit down and read some articles from different Boys’ 
Life Magazines. Make it a part of your den meetings. Make it a fun experience. Make time to 
read so the boys can earn this patch. 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEA 
 


Activities:  Make and deliver decorations to a hospital, rest home, or shelter 
Boys serve dinner to families 
Guest speakers tell about their favorite gifts and why they were  
special.  Learn new holiday songs 
Learn international holiday customs 


 
Menu:  "Sharing" Stew   "Giving" Grasshopper Pie 


"Helping" Ham   "Serving" Strudel 
"Good Deed" Goulash   "Caring" Chocolate Cake 
  


 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 


BATHROOM KITS FOR THE HOMELESS SHELTER 
 
     As a service project, have the pack prepare bathroom kits for a shelter 


of their choice.  Collect items a couple of months ahead of time, then put 
them in containers.   
     Supplies could include:  soap, shampoo, deodorant, shaving cream, razors, 
toothpaste, toothbrush and anything else that may be gender specific. 


 


HELP THE REINDEER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 


GATHERING 2 
 


IDENTIFY THE CHRISTMAS SONGS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Answers to songs:  1) The first noel  2) Winter Wonderland  3) Santa Claus Is Coming 4) Joy to the 
World 5) Rudolph  6) O Come All Ye Faithful  7) White Christmas  8) O Christmas Tree  9) What Child 
Is This  10) We Three Kings  11)  Deck the Halls  12) Little Drummer Boy  13) O Holy Night  14) Jingle 
Bells 15) Away in a Manger 16) 12 Days of Christmas 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
“CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY” OPENING CEREMONY 
 


1 H— Christmas Holiday is a season for helping, happiness, and 
honoring. 


2 O— Christmas Holiday is a season for being forgiving and one 
with others.  


3 L— Christmas Holiday is a season for loving, listening, and 
reflecting.  


4 I— Christmas Holiday is a season for being interested in others 
and involved with you family 


5 D— Christmas Holiday is a season for devoutness and determination to do good 
6 A— Christmas Holiday is a season for appreciation, accord, and adoring. 
7 Y— Christmas Holiday is a season for Yule, traditions of yore, and yarns.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUB MASTER MINUTE 
“MARY’S TWO YEAR OLD” 
By Val Chatwin 
 
As I was tending my two-year-old one-day  
I began to ponder.  What did Mary do when  
her child laid on the floor and kicked and cried? 
Did she lose her patience and quietude? 
Or did she think back to the night he was born,   
When shepherds knelt in the early morn? 
And a special star proclaimed God’s joy, 
And the eastern kings brought their special toys. 
Did those thoughts make temper more easy to bear, 
Give virtue to patience, and teaching, and care? 
Oh, little two-year-old of mine, You too are God’s son. 


HOLIDAY PLEDGE 
 
I PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 
 At this joyous time of year. 
TO THE FLAG 
 A symbol of unity, as Christ is a symbol of peace. 
OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 A land chosen above all others. 
AND TO THE REPUBLIC FOR WHICH IT STANDS 
 Made of hard working, upstanding citizens. 
ONE NATION UNDER GOD 
 Who shared his Son with us. 
INDIVISIBLE 
 A nation united for our freedoms. 
WITH LIBERTY AND JUSTICE FOR ALL 
As now at this Christmas season, when people are more 
conscious of helping others and showing love for their 
fellow citizens, LET US PLEDGE. 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING/FLAG CEREMONY 2 
 


CLOSING THOUGHT 
 
 
 
 
 
 


“ALL THOSE MOTHERS AT THE MANGER” 
By Megan Lloyd 


 
 
All those mothers at the manger---hen and cow and mare and ewe--- 


     gathered around the lovely stranger while her baby was still new. 


All those mothers at the manger---cow and mare and ewe and hen--- 


      welcomed warm the lovely mother, welcomed soft her baby, then. 


All those mothers at the manger---mare and ewe and hen and cow--- 


      praised the lovely little stranger:  perfect features, peaceful brow. 


All those mothers at the manger---ewe and hen and cow and mare---said, 


“no mother is a stranger to another, anywhere.” 


 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


            ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 


 
Make large cutouts of Christmas ornaments using cereal boxes, then cover them with 
Christmas wrap.  On each of them glue a key word on the front and the following 


ceremony on the back.  As each boy reads his part, have him place his ornament on a Christmas 
tree.  Also, make small cardboard Christmas ornaments and staple the awards for each boy onto 
these ornaments.  Hang them on the Christmas tree. 
 
 
Boy 1: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means being GENEROUS.  I can 
give goodwill when I give a part of what I 
have to someone who is not so fortunate. 
 
Boy 2: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means being CHEERFUL.  I can 
give goodwill when I pitch in and help with 
our family’s household chores with a smile. 
 
Boy 3: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means being KIND.  I can give 
goodwill when I stick up for someone the 
other boys are making fun of. 
 
Boy 4: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means MAKING OTHERS 
HAPPY.  I can give goodwill by visiting an 
older neighbor who is not able to get out of 
his house very often.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Boy 5: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means being UNSELFISH.  I can 
give goodwill when I read to a younger 
child. 
 
Boy 6: A Cub Scout gives goodwill.  Giving 
goodwill means GIVING SERVICE.  I can 
give goodwill when I play with the baby 
while mother cooks dinner. 
 
Boy 7: I will do my best to live the LAW 
OF THE PACK by giving goodwill.


Cubmaster:  Thank you, boys, for giving us some good examples of how we can do our best to
live up to that part of the Law of the Pack that says, “A Cub Scout gives goodwill.”  Many of
the boys in our pack have done their best this month and earned some awards.  Have the boys
come forward with their parents and receive their awards.  Pick the small ornaments with each
boy’s award on them off the tree as you award them to the boys. 


 
DECEMBER ACTIVITY:  A fun pack activity for December is to make a video to show at 
pack meeting starring each boy and his family.  Go to each boy’s home and take video pictures 
of their Christmas decorations and let each boy tell about his family’s traditions and wish the 
viewers a happy holiday season.  Following the pack meeting, the boys and leaders could also 
take the videotape to show to a few selected shut-ins in their neighborhood. 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


      SIT ABOUT OR LAP SIT 
 
Have the cub scouts make a circle, placing their hands on the 
shoulders of the person in front of them and their feet toe to heel.  
When all the cub scouts are in the correct position, count to three 
and sit down.  They will be sitting in the lap of the person that is 
behind them.  If it is unsuccessful, make your circle tighter and try 
again.  Can you raise your hands from each other’s shoulders?  Can 
you stand up? (Fills Webelos Requirement for Scientist—Center of 
Gravity) 
 


TIMETABLES 
 


  You will need: (for each den) 
• A set of timetables 
• Paper and pens 
• A prepared set of destinations and arrival times 


 
If you go to a local travel agent, or from the internet,  you should be able to get some 
airline flight timetables.  If you have four dens then you will need five identical copies, 
one for the leaders and one for each den.  You have to make up a list of destinations and 
times that you would like to arrive there.  Put in some interesting ones that will need 
flight changes and different airports.  You could also throw in things like certain flights 
only going on certain days.  You could, if you prefer, use railway or bus timetables, but 
airlines will give you more exotic destinations.  This is a good training game for teaching 
the youngsters how to read and use timetables. (Meets Webelos Traveler Requirement) 
 
 


THE CUB SCOUTS OF DEN ___ 
 
You will need a paper cup for each person playing. 
 
Players sit in a circle and pass their cup to the person sitting to the left of 
them.  The cup is passed in rhythm while singing the following song.  
When you come to the”zig a zag a zig a zag a zim,” the cup goes from 
the right to left in front of the person, then is handed off in the word 
“zim.” 
 
The Cub Scouts of Den ____ were playing catch a ball 
Take it, leave it, take it again. 
While playing they went zig a zag, a zig a zag a zim, 
While playing they went zig a zag, a zig a zag a zim. 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING  
 


                                   ESKIMO PIE 
 
SCENE:  Group of Cub Scouts Around a table 
PROPS:  Ping Pong balls, sponge, white golf tees, pan 
with ice cream bars in the bottom. 


 
CUB 1:  Isn’t it great our leader is letting us make a 


pie for our den meeting treat! 


CUB 2:  It sure is.  I don’t know what kind of pie it is, but here are the directions. 


CUB 3:  Let’s see, first you put in these walrus eyes. 


CUB 4:  Walrus eyes?  Are you sure? 


CUB 3:  Says so right here.  (Puts ping pong balls in the pan.)  


CUB 5:  Okay, next put in a pound of blubber. 


CUB 4:  A pound of blubber?  Are you sure? 


CUB 5:  That’s what is says in the recipe. (Puts in sponge.) 


CUB 6:  The next things to add are two-dozen polar bear teeth. 


CUB 4:  I don’t believe that.  Why would you put teeth in a pie? 


CUB 3:  Hey, you have to have teeth to eat a pie! 


CUB 6:  Here go the teeth.  (Put in golf tees.) 


CUB 1:  Now we let if freeze for one hour. (Put lid 


on pan.)  


CUB 2:  (Hold up sign that says ‘One Hour Later’.) 


CUB 1:  Let’s see what we’ve got. (Uncovers pot.) 


ALL:  (Look in pan and exclaim.)  Eskimo Pies!! (Pull out ice cream bars and 


eat.)  







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


 
SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 


 


HOW SANTA BECAME CUBMASTER 
                                                          


One year, right after Christmas, Mrs. Santa was worried.  Things were odd. 
Toys for next year needed planning, the reindeer walked around unshod. 
She wrung her hands in frustration, something was bothering the jolly old elf. 


Depression, tendonitis, carpal tunnel?  He wasn’t his jolly old self. 
Finally one day it came out.  His worry, the kids of this age. 
All they wanted for Christmas was shooting toys, electronics of battles and war to wage. 
Then came a knock at their door.  Most unusual up here at the pole! 
It was a boy in tan and green clothes, “Selling tickets with his den.” 
“A ticket for what?” Santa asked, “And come in out of the cold.” 
For Scout-O-Rama,” the boy replied, “you haven’t seen ads or been told?”  
“What is it?”  Santa asked the boy.  
“A gathering to show skills and events. It’s fun,  
We’re showing off our Derby Cars, hope that they all run.” 
Building, sportsmanship, learning skills?   
Santa thought, there is hope at last! 
“And what organization are you in?” Santa was curious to ask. 
“The Boy Scouts of America.  We meet once a week.” He explained. 
Then he wanted to be on his way.  “Are you buying a ticket—or two?” he exclaimed. 
“Of course, “ Santa said and got out his wallet. “Before you go, where do you meet?”  
“At the Air Force Base down there.  And our Cubmaster is really neat!” 
Then the boy’s face fell and he said with a little catch in his voice, 
“Our Cubmaster’s leaving, won’t be with us long, and it sure wasn’t his choice.” 
Santa remembered hearing about Baden-Powell in the past, 
But he didn’t understand what scouting was, so he asked, 
“Where the meeting was held.” Then he showed up, incognito. 
He was impressed with what was taught!  There wasn’t a thing he would veto. 
Sure enough, the Cubmaster was moving, transferred and leaving the pack,  
And none of the other parents had the time or experience to keep the boys on track. 
The plans were all made for the meeting the next week. 
Santa said he’d be happy to come and lead. 
“But only this once, he thought he would try it. 
The next week was Cub Winter Day Camp.  Santa knew he could do that!. 
 So he took the boys out. They built a wonderful sled.  Are you surprised at that? 
Then the Chairman knocked at the door.  “Wouldn’t he please take over the pack? 
So Santa thought he’d try it.  Though in training, he felt a lack. 
The next meeting, the faces of the boys were a pleasure to behold. 
Santa has always been good with kids; even though he’s a little bit old. 
And his pack doesn’t even realize that when he comes to a meeting. 
He has reindeer for horsepower.  He’s still very good at secrets. 
So that’s how Santa became Cubmaster.  Now he hardly has time to make toys. 
But he’s awful happy, and knows there’s hope for the world, because of the Scouting 
boys.         By Val Chatwin 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


 
Snowflake cards and decorations: 
Cutting symmetrical patterns from paper is a traditional folk 
art that has been enjoyed for more than two thousand years.  
Boys enjoy cutting and discovering the shapes, as they are 
unfolded. Once cut, paper snowflakes can be used in many 
different ways. Some ideas are: tape them together to make 
garlands, to decorate cards, laminate for a bookmark or 
window hanging, or frame them.  To make:. 


1.  Start with a square sheet of paper. Fold diagonal and 
crease the fold firmly. (Illus. A). 


2.  Find the center of the folded edge by placing the two 
end corners together and pinching a crease to mark the center. 
(Illus. B) 


3.  Now fold into thirds as shown in illustration C, and 
finally fold the entire unit in half. 


4.  Neatly cut your pattern into the folded sides of your 
unit. 


5.  Carefully unfold your snowflake and use it to create a 
one-of-a-kind gift or decoration. 


 
Holiday 
Fortuneteller: 
This is a simple 
fortuneteller, which may 
help the boys understand 
more about how other 
cultures celebrate. Enlarge 
the pattern and have it 
printed, then let the boys 
fold it into a fortuneteller. 
 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


3 GIFT BAGS 
• All bags – bag (lunch sack or colored gift 
bag), glue, scissors, decorative edge scissors 
• Bag #1 – gold gift wrap, gold tissue paper 
• Bag #2 – yellow foam star, green rickrack, 
sequins, red tissue paper • Bag #3 – yellow 
foam star, green cardstock, hole punch, red 
tissue paper • 
 Bag #1 – Cut star shape out of bag.  


Glue gold gift wrap behind 
hole.  Trim top edge with 
decorative edge scissors.  
Wrap gift with tissue paper 
and place in bag.  


 Bag #2 – Cut 
rickrack in seven pieces of 
decreasing lengths and glue 


horizontally on bag 
leaving about ¾’ between 
pieces to form tree shape.  
Glue sequins in spaces 
between rickrack.  Glue 
star at top of tree.  Trim 
top edge with decorative 
edge scissors.  Wrap gift with tissue paper 
and place in bag.   


Bag #3 – Cut two identical tree 
shapes out of green cardstock using 


decorative edge scissors.  
Punch holes randomly in 
tree shapes, saving the 
punched out dots.  Glue 
one tree shape flat on bag.  
Fold other tree in half 
forming a 90-degree angle.  
Glue the fold down the 


center of the flat tree.  Glue star at top, and 
glue punched dots around tree.  Trim top 
edge with decorative edge scissors.  Wrap 
gift with tissue paper and place in bag. 


 
TEENSIE TREE 


• small clipping from evergreen garland • 
clay or plaster • scissors • bottle lid • 
seed beads, confetti, glitter, etc. to 


decorate• glue • 
 Trim clipping to make it tree 
shaped.  Fill lid with plaster or clay to 
hold clipping.  Glue desired 
decorations on tree. 


 
GINGERBREAD MAN 


• sandpaper • cardstock or thin cardboard • 
glue stick • gingerbread man cookie cutter • 
scissors •  puffy paint • hole punch • string 


or ornament hangers • cinnamon stick • 
 Glue sandpaper to cardstock to make 
more rigid.  Trace cookie cutter onto back 
(cardstock side).  Cut out gingerbread man.  
Decorate sandpaper side with puffy paints as 
desired.  After paint has 
dried, rub cinnamon 
stick on undecorated 
areas of sandpaper to 
scent.  Punch hole and 
hang with string or 
ornament hanger.  
Option 1 – Instead of using cardstock for 
backing, cut shape out of sandpaper and 
decorate, then glue to the front of folded 
piece of cardstock to make a greeting card.  
Option 2 – Make gingerbread man out of 
brown craft foam and decorate with paint. 


 
STAR OF DAVID 


• 2 metallic chenille stems 
 • string •  
Bend stems to form triangles, twisting 
ends at corner to secure.  Weave 
triangles together to form star.  Hang 
with loop of string.


 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 


 
Paper Clay 
* Materials:   


2 cups construction paper scraps (all the same 
color), 4 ½ cups water divided, ½ cup flour 
* Directions:  


Tear construction paper into small pieces.  Pour 
4 cups water and paper scraps into a blender.  Blend 20 
seconds or until the mixture turns into pulp.  Drain and 
squeeze excess water from the mixture.  Mix flour and 
the remaining ½ cup of water in a small bowl until 
blended.  Slowly add the flour and water mixture to 
paper pulp.  Knead until it forms a workable dough.  
Mold paper clay as you would any clay or dough.  


Finished creations take 1-2 days to air dry, or bake in 275-degree oven until dry (time depends 
on size and thickness). 
* Tips and Ideas:   


Paper clay can be used to create 3-D greeting cards, pictures, package ties, or tree 
ornaments. Try adding glitter or bits of confetti to clay.   Press Paper Clay into candy molds, 
cookie cutters, or gelatin molds to create interesting shapes. 


 
Puffy Paint  


* Materials:   
½ cup white flour, ½ cup salt, 1 cup water, plastic squeeze bottle, 4 – 5 teaspoons 


powdered tempera paint, mixing bowl, funnel 
* Directions: 


Stir flour, salt, and about ½ of the water in a bowl.  Add tempera paint to desired color.  
Slowly add more water until paint can be poured, but is not runny.  Pour the paint into the bottle 
using a funnel.  Squeeze paint from bottle to make a picture on paper or to decorate a craft.  This 
paint takes several hours to completely dry. 


 
 


Snow Glue 
* Materials:   


Shaving cream, craft glue, plastic cup, craft sticks 
* Directions: 
Fill plastic cup about ½ way with shaving cream.  Stir in enough 
craft glue to make the mixture sticky.  Use craft stick to apply to 
craft.  This takes a while to dry, but will stay white and 
dimensional – a great way to enhance ornaments or other 
Christmas or winter crafts.  Sprinkling clear glitter on while wet 
creates a shimmering look. 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 
 


SONG:  JOLLY OLD CUBMASTER 
Tune: “Jolly Old Saint Nicholas” 
 
Jolly Old Cubmaster, lean your ear this way, 
Don’t you tell a single soul what I’m going to say. 
Advancement time is coming soon, 
Now you dear old man, 
Tell me who has earned his rank, tell me if you can. 
 
Has Bobby earned his Bobcat badge?  
Has Billy earned his Wolf? 
Has Johnny earned his Bear rank? 
Jack, his Webelos? 
All the pack is ready now, 
Trying to catch a glance; 
Tell us now, dear Cubmaster,  
 Tell us who’s advanced. 
 
THE LAW OF THE PACK: 
Tune – “Blowin’ in the wind” 
 
The Cub Scout follows Akela. 
The Cub Scout helps the pack go. 
The Pack helps the Cub Scout grow. 
The Cub Scout gives goodwill. 
The Answer my friend, is growing from within. 
The Answer is growing from within. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
JINGLE BELLS: Stand and wiggle all over while saying ‘jingle, jingle, jingle.” 
DANCER: Have everyone stand up, link arms, and do the Can-Can.  
SANTA’S FAREWELL: “Merry Christmas to all and to all a good night!”    


SANTA CLAUS: “Ho, ho, ho!” Pull on reins and say, “Where’s Rudolph?”  
DAD’S GIFT: Act as if opening a gift and when open say, “Oh, a new tie! Just 


what I needed”.  
CHRISTMAS STOCKING: Pretend to empty your stocking and then 
put it on your right foot. 


 JACK IN THE BOX—Squat down and then jump as high as you can  
and say, “Boing!”  


RUN-ON FUN 
 


1. Who is Santa’s favorite insect?  
2. Who helps Santa deliver toys 


when the elves are on vacation?  
3. What kind of car does Santa 


drive? 
4. Why doesn’t Santa Claus like to  


shave? 
5. Why was Santa late on 


Christmas Eve? 
6. Which of Santa’s reindeer has 


bad manners? 
7. What do you get if Santa comes 


down the chimney when the fire 
is burning? 


8. Why did the reindeer wear 
brown boots? 


9. Where do you find reindeer? 
10. What’s in December that we 


don’t have in other months? 


ANSWERS 
1.Chimney Cricket.  2. The twelve Daves of 
Christmas. 3. A T0Y-ota  4. When he does 
he nicks himself   5. He kept stopping for the 
Northern lights.  6.  Rude—olph 7. Crisp 
Krinkle   8.  Because his black ones were all 
muddy. 9.  It depends on where you leave 
them.  10. The letter D 


  







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
 
MORE CHEERS: 


DASHER—Slide hands against each other, making loud swishing noises. 


FROSTY THE SNOWMAN—Say, Thumpity, thump, thump!” twice. 


MISTLETOE—Pretend to hold mistletoe over your head and make kissing sounds. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
SONG: "THE WINTER POKEY" 
     Tune: "The Hokey Pokey"  
 
You put your right mitten in,  


You take your right mitten out  


You put your right mitten in,  


And you shake it all about.  


You do the winter pokey (shiver)  


And you turn yourself around.  


That's what it's all about! 
 
Continue adding additional verses:  
left mitten, right boot, left boot, long scarf, warm cap, snowsuit, etc. 
 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 


 
December 7 - Cowboy Christmas 
December 21 - Winter Solstice 


 
Reindeer Food 
Every one knows (don’t they?) that a 
reindeer’s favorite food is the tender bark of 
the birch tree in the early spring.  So have 
your boys whip up a batch of birch bark to 
feed those reindeer on Christmas Eve. 
 
Birch Bark 
2 cups white chocolate 
3/4 cup sliced, slivered or coarsely chopped 
almonds 
 
Place 1 cup of white chocolate in a 
microwave safe bowl and microwave on 
high for one minute.  Remove and stir well.  
As the mixture cools, replace in microwave 
and turn on high for 30 seconds.  Remove 
and stir.  As the chocolate melts, add a few 
more pieces of white chocolate and stir.  
Replace in microwave and turn on high for 
20 seconds.  Continue to stir and add white 
chocolate.  When smooth, add almonds and 
spread with spatula on waxed paper.  Let 
harden and store in resealable bag with a 
header stapled to it reading: Birch bark.  
Save and leave out for Santa’s reindeer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Blueberry Muffin Mix 
Homemade muffins straight from the oven 
are a real treat on a cold winter’s day.  
Package 2-1/2 cups of mix in a jar or 
decorated coffee can with a snap-on lid. 
 
4 cups all purpose flour 
1 cup dried blueberries (or cranberries, etc.) 
1/3 cup sugar 
2-3/4 teaspoons baking powder 
1-12 teaspoons salt 
1/2 cup vegetable shortening 
 
Combine all the dry ingredients in a large 
bowl, and cut in the shortening using a 
pastry blender or a fork.  Blend until the 
pieces of shortening are no larger than a 
grain of rice.  Store airtight in a cool place 
or freezer to use within three months.  The 
recipe makes 5 cups or two gifts of 2-1/2 
cups that make a dozen muffins each.  Your 
label should read:  Homemade Blueberry 
Muffin Mix.  Store in cool, dry place or 
freeze until ready to use.  To make 12 
blueberry muffins, beat together in a small 
bowl 1 egg and 1 cup milk.  Combine in a 
large bowl all the mix, 1/4 cup sugar, and 
the egg and milk.  Stir well just to blend.  
Grease muffin cups and fill two-thirds with 
batter.  Bake at 425 degrees for 15-20 
minutes, until golden brown.  Serve warm. 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


Seasoned Rice Mix 
Your cubs can do all the work for this quick, delicious mix.  Package the mix in a jar, or 
Chinese take-out container.  Add a homemade label listing the ingredients and a tag with 
the cooking directions. 
 
 
Herbed Rice 
1 cup uncooked long-grain white rice 
2 beef or vegetable bullion cubes or two teaspoons powder 
1 teaspoon dried green onion flakes 
1/2 teaspoon each:  
dried rosemary, marjoram or oregano, and thyme leaves 
1/2 teaspoon salt or celery salt 
 
 
Curried Rice 
1cup uncooked long-grain white rice 
2 chicken or vegetable bullion cubes 
1-1/2 teaspoons curry powder 
1 teaspoon dry minced onion 
1/2 teaspoon ground cumin 
1/2 teaspoon salt or celery salt 
 
 
In a large mixing bowl stir all the ingredients for either herbed rice or curried rice and 
pour into a sealable container.  On the tag write: Combine the rice mixture with 2 cups 
cold water and 1 tablespoon butter or oil in a large saucepan.  Cover and bring to a boil.  
Reduce heat to low, stir once and simmer about 17 -25 minutes, or until all the liquid is 
absorbed.  serves 4-6. 
 
 


 







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
 
Service Ideas for Christmas - It is a great opportunity in Cub Scouts to teach children 
about service.  The first idea is to let the boys bake some cookies and pass them out to the 
widows and widowers in the neighborhood.  You can alter the treat.  The second idea can 
be treated as a game.  You have each of the boys pick out a driveway.  Give them each a 
snow shovel and at the word ‘go’ have them begin to shovel the driveway.  Whoever 
finishes first is the winner.  You can help the boys learn that service can be fun. 
 
Field trips - Check out the local festivities to see if there is an activity that your den can 
attend and fill some of the requirements needed for the achievement you are working on.  
Hint: Gardner Village in West Jordan has Christmas ethnic elves all over the village and 
activities you can attend.  
 
    ornament  
 
         cup 
 
 
 


Glass Ornaments 
Take the clear Christmas ornaments and 
pour a couple of different colors of tole paint 
inside.  Then turn the ornament upside 
down.  The paint should cover the sides of 
the ornament and drain out the bottom.  Let 
the paint dry and put the ornament back 
together. 
 
 
 
 
 
Christmas Picture 
Take a Christmas coloring book and have 
the cubs pick out their favorite picture.  Cut 
out a piece of cardboard the same size as the 
picture.  Place a piece of aluminum foil over 
the cardboard and set aside.  Place a piece of 
clear or colored plastic wrap over the picture 
and trace the picture on to the plastic wrap.  
Transfer the plastic wrap to the cardboard 
piece so the aluminum reflects the light 
through the plastic wrap. 
 


Butcher Wrapping Paper 
Have the cubs draw Christmas pictures on to 
a piece of butcher paper and then let them 
use it to wrap a present to whoever they 
wish.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pin-Hole Picture 
Copy some Christmas pictures onto a blank 
sheet of paper then tape that onto a red or 
green sheet of construction paper.  Place the 
picture onto a carpeted floor.  Give the cubs 
something to puncture holes through the 
paper like a pin, or needle or a sharp pencil.  
Have the cub punch holes in the paper 
following the lines of the picture.  Remove 
the tape so you only have the construction 
paper.  Hang the picture in a window so that 
the light shines through the holes.







A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill  December 2003 


Circus of Fun                                                                                                Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Winter Wonderland, What do you do 


at Holiday Time?, Holiday Magic, 
Let’s Celebrate, 


National Theme – December 2002, 
December 2000, December 1999, December 
1998 


 Fun for all Seasons-Winter Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 8-32 
 Winter Games Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-47, 


(rev.2002) pg 3-44 
Stories  “The House Where Santa Claus 


Lives” 
Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 6-4, 
(rev. 2002) pg 5-6 


 “The Animal’s Christmas” Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 5-24 
  “My Trusty Musket” Crazy Cory’s pg 6 
  “The Legend of the Olympic Torch” Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 20 


Games Box Hockey Game Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-21, 
(rev.2002) pg 3-38 


 Hanukkah Peanut Hunt Game Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-29 
 Snow Shovel Relay Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-41, 


(rev.2002) pg 3-27 
 Indoor Ski Race Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 3-5 
 Avalanche Game The Best of Scout & Youth Games pg 30 


Ceremonies Snowflake Instant Recognition 
Ceremony Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 2-4 


 Yule Log Advancement Ceremony Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 8-12 
Applauses & 


Cheers Ice Cube, Rudolph Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 5-10 
& 5-11 


 Goodbye Santa, icicle, Rudolph, 
Santa Claus, snowball, snowman, 
sleigh & working elf 


All the Applauses We Could Find 
(alphabetical) 


 Olympics, ice cube, melting icicle, 
Santa & Rudolph Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 81 & 82 


 Christmas, Christmas stocking, ice 
cube, melting icicle, Rudolph, Santa, 
sleigh, snowball 


Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 


Belt Loops & 
Pins 


Snow Ski & Board Sports, Ice 
Skating 


Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 
Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Bear Elective 20-Winter Sports Bear Book 


 Wolf Elective 20-Winter Sports Wolf Book 
 


Cub Scout Service Ideas 
 
*Caroling   *Festival of Trees  *Program at Care Center 
*Giving Gift Baskets  *Sub For Santa  *Humanitarian Projects 
*Shoveling Walks  *Visit Elderly People  *Giving Cub-made  
 












Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 
Wheeler Historic Farm Walk:  A great place to visit to teach children about farm life. No fee 
to enter but small fee for services. Children can gather eggs, or milk a cow. Step back in time 
when Utah had a country life. A great place for a den or pack meeting. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: Speakers-fire, police, abuse intervention specialist, Red Cross representative 


Skits-role playing, scenarios 
Make family fire escape plan 
Fire escape obstacle course 


 
Menu:  "Screaming" Spaghetti  "Safety" Strawberry Sundaes 


"Locked Tight" Lasagna  "Prepared" Peach Cobbler 
"Family Rules" Fajitas  "Obedient" Orange Sherbet 


 
 
 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


FIRST-AID KIT NECKERCHIEF SLIDE 
Use 35mm film containers.  One is needed for each person. Punch holes in container and put 
a chenille stem through the back in a circle for slide (punch hole with hot glue gun).  You can 
paint canister or cover with white paper and put a red cross on the front. Fill with: 2 quarters,  
2 Band-Aids, moist wipe in sealed package, emergency phone number, needle or straight pin 
stuck in a cardboard, 3 safety pins, matches (dip heads in wax so they are fire proof), etc.  


EMERGENCY PHONE LIST 
FAMILLY MEMBERS NAMES ______________________________ 
HOME ADDRESS _________________________________________ 
HOME TELEPHONE NUMBER______________________________ 
POLICE, SHERIFF, FIRE, AMBULANCE DEPARTMENTS __911 
FAMILY DOCTOR_________________________________________ 
GAS COMPANY __________________________________________ 
ELECTRIC COMPANY ____________________________________ 
WATER DEPARTMENT ___________________________________ 
POISON CONTROL  1-800-222-1222 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AMERICA AND THE ARMY 
A is for the ARMY that guards us well. 
M is for MEN and WOMEN who for liberty fell. 
E is for the ENEMY that knocks at out door. 
R is for RANKS of soldiers in the battle roar 
I is for INDEPENDENCE that they win. 
C is our COUNTRY and we in unison. 
A is for ALLEGIANCE that we feel for our land. 
   Let us now pledge it with heart and with hand. 


“POLICE REPORT” OBSERVATION ACTIVITY 
When people give eyewitness accounts to the police they sometimes 
vary wildly.  Try this exercise to see how observant your Cubs, 
parents, siblings, and friends are. 
Have a person come in with their clothing in some strange way 
(plaid pants, unmatched shoes, shirt backwards, carrot hanging from 
rope around neck, red bandana, sailor hat, etc.)  Do some specific 
actions (hop part way, bow and kiss someone’s hand, crawl under the
table, etc.)   This should last about 30 seconds, then leave room. 
Then 2nd person comes across with different actions and clothes and 
exits.  Then 3rd person does different things and exits. They should 
be out of sight but close enough to come in when you ask. Now, ask 
the audience questions about clothing, actions, what they looked like.
(Make a list of questions about obscure items, such as who was 
wearing pink sox or earrings.)  Tell the audience all should learn to 
be observant and, if they see a crime, should write down what they 
saw immediately so they don’t get it mixed up.  


THE NOTE PUZZLE 
The wolf den got a thank you note from 
Grandma Jones.  They had raked up her 
many, many leaves. It was written on 
several small pieces of paper and got all 
mixed up.  Can you arrange it in the 
right order to find out what it says? 


Answ
er  


All you cubs 
In the W


olfs 
Saw


 that I 
H


ad m
any leaves 


C
overing m


y law
n 


You brought rakes 
To m


y house 
Piled those leaves 
C


om
e back over 


I’ll give you 
H


ot chocolate 
cookies 
And a hug  
 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUBMASTERS MINUTE 
“DEPENDS ON WHOSE HANDS IT’S IN” 


 
A basketball in my hands is worth about $19. 


A basketball in Michael Jordan's hands is worth about $33 million. 


            It depends whose hands it's in. 


A tennis racket is useless in my hands. 


A tennis racket in the Williams Sisters' hands means a  


                              US Open/Wimbledon Championship. 


                It depends whose hands it's in. 


A rod in my hands can catch a fish. 


A rod in Moses' hands will part the mighty Red Sea. 


                  It depends whose hands it's in. 


A sling shot in my hands is a kid's toy. 


A sling shot in David's hand is a mighty weapon. 


                   It depends whose hands it's in 


Two fish and 5 loaves of bread in my hands are some fish sandwiches. 


Two fish and 5 loaves of bread in Jesus’ hands will feed thousands. 


                   It depends whose hands it's in. 


Nails in my hands might produce a birdhouse. 


Nails in Jesus Christ's hands will produce salvation for the entire world. 


                    It depends whose hands it's in. 


 So put your concerns, your worries,  


      your hopes, your dreams, 


            your families and your relationships in God's hands because – 


                     It depends whose hands it's in. 


 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
SAFETY BUZZ SESSION 
 
Have everyone at pack meeting break into small 
groups with some parents in each group.  Give each 
group one of the following questions.  Give them 5 
minutes to discuss their question.  Then have the 
groups come back to the main area and have a 
spokesman from each group report on their 
question and the solution they came up with.  For 
suggested answers, see the section “Preparing,” in 
the BSA Family Book.   
 
Following the reports, thank each group for their 
thoughtful solutions.  Then say the following: 
 
It is very important to know what to do if a problem arises.  If you know what to do, you don’t 
need to be afraid.  You can do the right thing that will keep the problem from getting worse or 
keep a bad thing from happening.  When something goes wrong you will be able to make good 
choices.  We have some boys who have made some very good choices this month.   
 
Have the boys come up with their parents and present their awards.  This would be a good 
month to earn the Crime Prevention patch and/or work on the BSA Family Award. 
 
 


SAFETY FIRST FAMILY QUIZ 
 
Question 1:  You are walking home from school when a man you don’t know pulls up in his car 
to the curb beside you.  He tells you that your mother has been hurt and you should go with him.  
What do you do?  Why? 
 
Question 2:  You are skate boarding with your little brother when he falls and scrapes his hand 
and knees.  What do you do?  Why? 
 
Question 3:  You are roasting a hot dog over a camp fire when a spark flies up and catches your 
jacket on fire.  What do you do?  Why? 
 
Question 4:  Your parents are both at work when someone you don’t know calls on the 
telephone and asks to speak to your dad.  What do you do?  Why? 
 
Question 5:  You are visiting your grandma when she falls down.  What do you do?  Why? 
 
Question 6:  One of your friends wants you to skip school with him and go on a hike.  What do 
you do?  Why? 
 
Question 7:  A strange dog comes up to you.  What do you do?  Why? 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


TELEPHONE CODES 
 


You will need:  Paper and a pencil, copy of the numbers from the phone. 
 
This is a secret message game based on the buttons on a telephone. Give each boy a pencil and a 
piece of paper and have him convert a very short message into code based on the letters on each 
numbered button on the phone.  It's tricky because there is a choice of three letters for each 
number. 
Here is a sample message:  
36 .........Do 
9687 ... Your 
2378 ....Best 
When all the boys have coded their messages, 
exchange papers and have them try to 
solve each other's message. 
 
 
 


 
CUB SCOUT SURVIVAL GAME 


 
What you will need: 3" bolts, one for each player, with 2 nuts for each bolt 


20 pieces of candy 
 
This game helps the cubs learn to keep a clear head when they need to act fast. 
Each player needs a 3" bolt with 2 nuts screwed onto it and 20 pieces of candy. 


Let the boys challenge each other to a race. To start, the nuts must be screwed all the way to the 
top of the bolt. On a signal, the boys must unscrew the nuts all the way until they come off the 
bolt. The boy who gets the nuts off first gets two pieces of the other Cub's 
candy. 
 


 
LOLLIPOP, LOLLIPOP 


 
What you will need:  Several lollipops wrapped in several layers of paper. 
One die. 
 
Everyone is gathered in a circle. Divide boys into pairs. The player sitting to the right starts 
rolling a die trying to get a six while the person on the left puts on a hat and mittens. Once the 
hat and mittens are in place, that person unwraps a lollipop (with mittens on) before the other 
player rolls a six. If the person rolls a six before the clothes are put on and the lollipop is 
unwrapped, the candy moves to the next person on the left and the game continues. If a six is not 
rolled in time, the player who unwraps the lollipop gets to keep it.  







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


DOCTOR, DOCTOR 
 
The secret to success with this series of quickies is to keep them moving along. You can have one 
doctor and different patients, or, in a large pack or den, have several doctors and patients.  
 
Cub:  Doctor! Doctor! I feel like a set of drapes.  
Doc:  Pull yourself together! 
 
Cub: Doctor! Doctor! Am I going to die? 
Doc: That's the last thing you'll do. 
 
Cub: Doctor! Doctor! Everyone keeps ignoring me.  
Doc:  Next! 
 
Cub: Doctor! Doctor! My back feels like a deck of cards!  
Doc:  I'll deal with you later. 
 
Cub:  Doctor! Doctor! What's wrong with me?  
Doc: Have you had this before? 
Cub: Yes. 
Doc:  Well, you've got it again! 
  
Cub: Doctor! Doctor! I've got insomnia. 
Doc:  Don't lose any sleep over it! 
 
 
 


C.P.R. 
 
The first cub comes out walking around, suddenly grabs his chest and falls to the ground.  


Two other scouts come out and see the scout on the ground.  They 
rush to his aid and begin CPR (adjust head, feel for pulse, then 
begin FAKE compressions). 
 
The other scout counts.  After about two sets, the scout counting 
yells ‘switch”.  Suddenly the scout on the ground gets up, one of 
the other scouts lies down, and they begin again to administer 
CPR. 
 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 
 


RICH MAN AND THE CUBS 
 


[This is a melodrama where the narrator reads the whole thing, except the words in parentheses, 
and the cast acts out what is happening.] 
 
  As the scene opens we are in the dining room of 
an unhappy Rich Man.  He is dining with his poor 
nephew, who is also his chauffeur.  The nephew wants 
to go to school but doesn’t have the money.  


Also at the table is a High School friend the rich 
man hasn’t seen in years.  He feels he is too important to 
associate with the friend, but invited him anyway.  Now 
the rich man regrets it.  The friend happens to be a 
Scouter and is presently the Cub Chairman. 


The Butler enters.  The Butler hates the miserly 
rich man.  He is the hardest person on earth to please 
and complains about everything.  He asks the rich man 
if he might have another suit so he can send his only one to the cleaners.  The rich man yells 
about the slow service and tells him he is fired. 


The Cook is serving the meal.  The rich man complains about the food.  She asks him if 
she could attend cooking school.  The rich man nastily tells her ‘no’. The rich man turns to the 
nephew and tells him he will never amount to anything, he is sick and tired of his ‘mooching,’ 
and fires him. 


Suddenly the lights go out.  There is a scream.  The lights come back on.  The rich man is 
dead, slumped on the table.  It seems like he has been murdered.   


The police arrive, and they assemble all the suspects:  the Butler, the Cook, and the 
Nephew.  They know the friend couldn’t be involved, because after all he is a Cub Chairman.  
Although all the suspects have reasons for hating the rich man, they all claim their innocence.     


After looking over the crime scene, a detective announces he knows who the killer is. [He 
points to the French maid, who is seated in the audience, with her maid outfit covered up with a 
coat.]  


The French maid confesses.  “That’s right, I did zis and I’m glad. He cared for no one but 
himself.  This huge place has a swimming pool, a gym to play zee basketball in, and a tennis 
court for only one man.  My son needs a Pack and Den.  Boys could be camping out under all 
those trees on his golf course.  He is so selfish and mean.  [All suspects nod in agreement and tell 
how he has been unjust, awful to them also].   


But wait!  What is this? The rich man is showing signs of life.  He isn’t dead after  
all.  He gets up. He puts his arms around the suspects and says,  “Is that all you wanted?  That 
doesn’t seem so hard to arrange.”   


To the cub chairman, he says, “Let’s talk about this Scout thing over a round of  
golf.”  And that is how a new Pack came into existence.  Soon the Webelos Leader moved away, 
the rich man took her place, and he is having the time of his life. 


By Val Chatwin 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


FIRST AID KIT/NECKERCHIEF SLIDE: 
 
Materials: 


Film Canister 
3 Band Aids 
Small Mirror 
Antibacterial Ointment sample 
$0.50 for phone call 
Alcohol wipe 
Red Cross Slide 
Wire 
Hammer / nails 


 
Put 2 holes in back of canister and put wire through. Hot glue mirror in lid of film canister to use 
as an emergency reflector. Put the $0.50 in the bottom for emergency phone call. The bandaids, 
ointment, and alcohol wipes are put in to take care of small injuries. The red cross can be made 
from red paper and hot glued on the outside of canister, or take 2 red straight stickers and cut 
them to make the cross. 
 


RED CROSS REFRIGERATOR MAGNET 
Materials: 


Sheet of red fun foam (cut in half) 
Sharpie marker or Micron Marker (permanent marker)  
Magnet 
Hot glue or Tacky Glue 


 
Cut the sheet of fun foam in half and make a cross out of each half.  Let the boys write on the 
center of cross ‘Emergency ~ 911’. On the left side of cross put the non-emergency number for 
the police in their area of town. On the top of cross, put the non-emergency number for the Fire 
Department. Right hand side of cross, write the number for Poison Control. On bottom of cross, 
place doctor’s name and phone number along with other important telephone numbers. When 
finished, glue magnet pieces on each section of the cross. 
 


PONY BEAD NECKERCHIEF SLIDE 
(Found in “Pack of Fun” Magazine) 


 
Materials: 12 Blue Pony Beads 


 4 Yellow Pony Beads 
 1 yard of Rattail cording ribbon or string 
 Glue 


 
Put the first blue bead on, then string the ribbon through both ends of bead, pulling tight.  Thread 
ribbon through next two beads, continue each row in the same manner until all rows are done.  
At the end, thread the end of the string through the first blue bead again, then tie it into a square 
knot. Put a dab of glue on the square knot to help secure it. 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


COOKIE CUTTER SNOWMAN 
• 1” thick Styrofoam sheet • metal snowman 
shape cookie cutter • pencil or dowel • 
chenille stems (brown for arms, sm. piece of 
orange, any color for scarf) • black 
permanent marker • 
Cut snowman shape out of Styrofoam.  
Round edges with fingers or by pressing on 


table.  Wrap chenille 
around neck, twist to 
secure.  Cut arms to 
desired length, then wrap 
a 1 ½” piece near the end 
for fingers.  Poke into 
sides.    Draw eyes, mouth 
and buttons with marker.  


Poke small piece of orange stem in for nose.  
Push onto end of pencil for pencil topper, or 
dowel for plant poke.  (Start hole with sharp 
end of pencil – may need to secure with 
glue.)  
 
 


SEAGULL GLIDER 
• paper plate • plastic spoon • tape • black 
permanent marker • gray marker or crayon • 
Plasticene or poster tac - about the size of a 
marble •  
 Cut paper plate in half.  Cut a wedge 
(about 1/3 of one half) for the tail.  Tape the 
tail wedge onto the 
other half of the 
plate as shown.  
Press Plasticene 
into the bowl of the 
spoon.  Tape the 
spoon to the bottom 
of the body.  Draw 
beak and eyes on the head and make the 
wings gray with black tips.  Throw like a 
paper airplane to fly. 


FORTUNE COOKIE 
• felt • strips of paper (3/4 “ x 3 ½”)• pen 
or pencil • stapler • scissors • 
 Cut a 4 ½ - 5” circle out of felt (a 
free internet CD makes a great pattern!).  


Fold circle in half, 
then in half again and 
mark the center.  With 
circle folded in half, 


staple center about ¼ “ in from the folded 
edge.  Turn right side out (staple ends up 
inside) pushing felt out by the ends of the 
staple to form fortune cookie shape.  Write 
fortune on paper and slip inside cookie.  
Press edges closed.  
 


SNOW PAINT 
• spray bottles • water • food coloring •   
 Fill bottles 
with water.  Add a 
few drops of food 
coloring.  Spray on 
snow to add some 
color to winter! 
 
 


SKIING PENGUIN 
• white film canister • craft foam (black, 
orange, yellow) • glue • wiggle eyes • 1 craft 


stick, cut in half (or 2 mini)  • 
 Cut a 1 ¾” circle and a 
1 ¼” circle from black foam.  
Cut 1 ¾” circle in half.  Glue 
on canister so that a triangle 
of white shows between the 
halves.  Glue other circle on 
rim for head.  Glue wiggle 


eyes and triangle of yellow (beak) on face.  
Cut feet out of orange, glue to bottom of 
canister.  Glue craft sticks to bottom of feet.


 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 


 
 
 


I Have a Dream Paper Boy Chain 
 
* Materials:  


Construction paper for each boy, pencil, scissors, crayons or markers 


* Directions:  


Starting at narrow end of a 5x12-inch piece of paper, fold over 1½ inches of 


paper (can use other sizes of paper).  Continue to fold into accordion pleats 


until the whole piece is pleated.  Using a pencil, lightly sketch half of a boy 


shape.  Be sure the center of the boy is on the fold and that the hand comes out 


to the end of the paper.  Cut out the boys with the paper folded.  The boys will 


be holding hands.  On the front of each boy, write “I have a dream….”  Let the boys write a 


dream or wish of their own.   


 


 


 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 


SONG: LOCK YOUR DOORS 
Tune: Row, Row, Row Your Boat 
 
Lock, lock, lock your doors, 
Lock them every day. 
Turn the radio on to hear, 
Keep troubles away. 
 
Look, look, look, both ways 
When crossing any street.  
Use the walkway that is there;  
Safety is so sweet. 
 
No, No, No’s the word,  
When you know what’s right.  
Tell ‘em to just give it up— 
Keep trouble out of sight.   
 
 
 
 
 


 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 


 
FIRE BUCKET BRIGADE: Pretend to pass buckets of water, throw water on fire, saying 
“SWWOOOSSSHH”  
FIRE ENGINE CHEER: Divide into four groups; have everyone yell at the same time. 


1. Bell… “Ding, ding, ding” 
2. Horn… “honkhonk.”  
3. Siren… “rrr, rrr, rrr.” 
4. Clanger… “clang, clang, clang 


FIREFIGHTER CHEER:  Shout,“Water! Water! Water!” 
GARBAGE DISPOSAL:  Hold hands up in the shape of a sink.     Your  


mouth is the drain, so turn it up too.  Now shake your head and make all 
kinds of gurgling and grinding noises! 


HOME ALONE CHEER:  Pretend to shake cologne on each hand, rub hands together, then 
slap your hands to your face and scream:  “Aaaaaaahhhhhhhh!” 
POLICE OFFICER— “Excuses, excuses, excuses is all I hear all day long, but you did great!” 
RADAR DECTOR—Say, “Ping, ping, ping, ping, ping,” really fast.  “Good, right on speed!”  
MAGNIFYING GLASS—Pretend to look carefully with the magnifying glass, “Ohhhhhh!” 
FBI & CIA—One side of room says FBI the other says CIA when you point to them.  Mix it up.  
PRIVATE EYE—Put hands over eyes and say, “What do you want to know?” 
FINGERPRINTS—Pat all 10 of your fingerprints together several times as loud as you can. 
JUDGE—Pound gavel by clenching fist, pounding it in open palm, & say, “Order in the court!” 


RUN/ON FUN 
 


1. How did the Private eye find the missing barber? 
2. Where did the detective find the lost belly button? 
3. What can’t the detective ever find again,  


after he has lost it? 
4. Did you hear about the two cops that 


 walked into a building? 
5. What do you get when you cross a cop and elephant? 
6. What kind of rocks are in the Jordan River? 
7. Why did the dumb crook crash the helicopter? 


ANSWERS TO RUN ONS 
1. He combed the town. 
2. At the Naval reserve. 
3. Time. 
4. You would have thought that one of  
      them would have noticed it. 
5. An elephant that helps little old ladies  
      across the street. 
6. Wet ones. 
7. It got too cold so he turned off the fan. 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
January 4-10  “Some Day We Will Laugh About This” Week  
 
Sand Castles for the Very Hungry 
Homemade or canned frosting 
Sugar ice cream cones for turrets 
Graham crackers 
Other assorted edibles for castle building  
 
Break two graham crackers into four halves.  
Put icing on the edges of all four sides of all 
four crackers; stand vertically to make a 
square.  Break another cracker in half to 
make a roof.  Add sugar cone towers, round 
cracker or cookie windows, wafer doors, a 
pretzel portico, etc.  Have a contest to see 
which boy can make his the highest, then 
see if he can eat it all. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Silly  “Grilled Cheese” Sandwich 
1 loaf pound cake, sliced into “bread” slices 
1 cup canned or homemade butter cream or 
white frosting, tinted “cheese yellow” 
(yellow and just a touch of red) 
 
Toast “bread” in the toaster until just brown.  
Once it's cooled for a few minutes stack two 
of them and cut in half diagonally.  (Doing 
this before the frosting makes for fewer 
crumbs.) 
Carefully spread the frosting between the 
slices of each half sandwich, mounding 
slightly.  Gently press the other slice down 
over the first, causing the frosting to ooze 
slightly looking very much like cheese.  Eat. 


Toasty the Snowman 
(Snowman on a Stick) 
3 marshmallows 
2 thin pretzel sticks  
Currants or raisins cut in half 
Dried apricots cut into small carrot shapes 
Miniature M&M’s 
Miniature chocolate chips 
Skewers 
 
Using a gas stove, barbecue, or campfire, 
roast all three marshmallows on one long 
skewer or roasting stick.  Carefully press the 
fruit and chocolate into the melted 
marshmallow for eyes, nose and buttons.  
Eat raw if you don’t want to go to all the 
trouble of starting a fire, but the 
marshmallows may have to be snipped 
slightly with the scissors to make the fruit 
stick into them. 
 
Snow Ice Cream 
3 cup loose clean snow 
2 tablespoons milk 
1/4 cup sugar  
1 teaspoon vanilla extract 
 
Mix all the ingredients, sample the result, 
and add more sugar or vanilla to taste. 
 
Cinnamon Cider 
Pour 4 cups cider into saucepan.  Tie 8 
whole cloves, 5 allspice berries, and a stick 
of cinnamon broken up, in a coffee filter or 
clean cloth, and add to the cider.  Cut an 
orange into 4 slices and set aside.  Place the 
rest of the orange in the cider.  Warm cider 
over low to medium heat until steam starts 
coming from the surface.  Pour into four 
mugs and garnish each with an orange slice.  
Makes 4 cups. 
 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


New Year’s Sunrise 
 
4 ounces seltzer 
6 ounces orange juice 
1/2 ounce grenadine syrup 
1 orange slice  
1 lemon slice 
1 maraschino cherry  
Fancy toothpick 
In a tall glass, mix the seltzer and orange juice.  Slowly pour the grenadine into the center of the 
glass, allowing the syrup to settle to the bottom (thanks to its great density.)  Garnish with the 
orange, lemon, and cherry, stacked and skewered on the toothpick. 
 
 
 
Peanut Butter Dunkin’ Sauce 
 
For the peanut lovers in your den, this is a variation of an Asian dish used as a dip for everything 
from grilled meats to raw vegetables and fruit, and can be poured over rice or noodles. 
 
1/2 cup chicken broth 
1/2 cup milk 
1/4 cup peanut butter 
3 tablespoons grated green pepper  
1 teaspoon soy sauce 
1 clove garlic, crushed or finely chopped 
1/2 teaspoon sugar 
salt and pepper to taste 
2 tablespoons chopped scallions (optional) 
 
In a heavy saucepan, mix all the ingredients except the scallions and cook over low heat until the 
sauce thickens.  Stir often for about 15 minutes.  Sprinkle with scallions and serve hot 
surrounded by your choice of dippers.  Makes 1 cup. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


               THEME MIDWAY 
 


Home Alone Safety: 
 
Emergency Numbers Chart — create a chart that includes important 


numbers such as 911 Emergency, poison control 801-581-2151, parents or 
guardians work numbers and mobile phones, pediatricians number and any 
other contacts. 


Basic First Aid Chart — create a chart that includes first aid for cuts, burns and 
choking. A den or pack meeting where CPR is taught would be great. Create a first aid kit to 
accompany chart. 


Telephone and Front Door Etiquette – At  den or pack meeting, teach the boys proper 
information to give over the phone and at the door when parents or guardians are away. 
 
 
Fun Activities to do at Home Alone: 
 


Back to Basics – Play with Legos, building blocks, puzzles, Memory or cards.  Read a 
book, make a hut with blankets and pillows. 


Crafts — Coffee Filter Art: take a coffee filter and draw designs with washable markers. 
Then take the filter, fold into a triangle, then dip point of the filter into a cup of water. Let filter 
absorb water, allowing the marker to bleed. Open filter to reveal cool tie-dye design.  


Pressed Leaves and flowers — Take a nature hike around your own yard, 
and collect fun flowers and leaves. Place flowers and leaves in between two sheets 
of paper towels, then place in the yellow pages phone book. Let flowers and 
leaves dry completely. Use to make pictures, collages, cards, etc. 
 


 
Fixing Fun Food Home Alone: 
 


No Cook Fudge - I ziplock bag, ¼ cup mini marshmallows, 
½ cup chocolate chips (can use mint or butterscotch), 2 Tbsp. peanut 
butter, 2 Tbsp. nuts and raisins (optional). Use body heat to melt and 
mix by mashing bag with hands. When all melted together, form mixture 
into a ball and freeze until solid. 


Peanut Butter Playdough - WASH HANDS BEFORE MAKING THIS! 3½ cups  
creamy peanut butter, 4 cups powdered sugar, 3 ½ cups corn syrup or honey, 4 cups powdered 
milk. Knead together and play with as playdough. Use chocolate chips and raisins to decorate. 
Store in refrigerator. Fun and edible. 
 
 
Great Web Sites to Surf When Home Alone: 
disneykids.com school.discovery.com pbskids.org 
ahajokes.com/kids jokes coloringpages.net yahooligans.com 
nrdc.org/greensquad ala.org (search: great kid web sites) 
 







Home Alone  January 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note:  All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Kids Against Crime National Theme-Nov 2001 


 Ethics in Action Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) Chap 11 
 *Wonderful INFORMATION!* BSA Family Activity Book (see info below) 


Ceremonies Fire Prevention Ceremony Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 5-7 
Games Rescue Relay Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-41 
Story Fire Safety Story Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 5-5 


Applauses & 
Cheers Fire Engine All the Applauses We Could Find 


(alphabetical) 
 Home Alone Cheer Crazy Cory’s vol. 1 pg 88 
 Home Improvement Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 76 
 Fire Engine, Fire Bucket Brigade, 


Fire Fighter Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 


Patches Crime Prevention, Fire Museum, 
Cub Power, Unacceptables 


Great Salt Lake Council Cub Scout 
Awards, Activity Patches, and Policies 
Pamphlet 


Cub 
Requirements 


Webelos Family Member & 
Readyman Webelos Book 


 
Bear Achievement 7-Law 
Enforcement is a Big Job, 11-Be 
Ready 


Bear Book 


 


Wolf Achievement 2-Keep your 
body healthy, 4-Know your home 
and community, 9-Be safe at 
home & on the street, 12-Making 
choices  


Wolf Book 


 Wolf Elective 16-Family Alert Wolf Book 
 
The BSA Family Program 
 


“The BSA Family program is a series of activities designed to help strengthen all 
families—whether two-parent, single-parent, or nontraditional.  All family members are 
encouraged to participate and may earn the BSA Family Award.  The BSA Family Activity Book 
is the primary resource for the program.  It is filled with suggested activities to enhance the 
children’s personal development and enrich and strengthen the family.”   


The BSA Family Activity Book is divided into the following five sections and is a great 
resource!   


1. Learning Through Fun and Adventure (family fun, make-believe, talents, patriotism) 
2. Strengthening Family Relationships (mealtime, traditions, siblings, love, communication) 
3. Developing Character (duty to God, self esteem, success, trust, giving, differences) 
4. Teaching Responsibility (responsibility, being prepared, planning, organizing, money) 
5. Handling Difficult Situations  (obstacles, moving, illness, loss of loved ones) 


 


“The real way to get 
happiness is by giving out 
happiness to other people.” 


Lord Baden-Powell  












Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 
World Conservation Award: The Wolf, Bear and Webelos have different requirements for this 
award. Make it a learning experience for the boys, but don't forget the conservation service 
project that should go along with this award 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 


See Blue and Gold Pages in the Helps for Leaders section of this Pow Wow Book, p. 205. 
 
 
 


 
GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


FIESTA MATCH GAME 
 
Match the Spanish words to their  
English translation 
1.  Naranja 
2. Verde 
3. Azul 
4. Negro 
5. Blanco 
6. Rogo 
7. Nombre 
8. Amarillo 
9. Agua 
10. Hola 
11. Donde 
12. Si 
13. Siete 
14. Diezi 
15. Lavar 
 


A. White 
B. Wash 
C. Ten 
D. Orange 
E. Seven 
F. Yellow 
G. Blue 
H. Yes 
I. Green 
J. Where 
K. Name 
L. Hello 
M. Red 
N. Water 
O. Black 


HAPPY BIRTHDAY IN SPANISH 
 
Teach the birthday song in Spanish  
and sing it to those who have birth- 
days this month. The words are: 
 
Feliz cumpleanos a ti`   
Feliz cumpleanos a ti`   
Feliz cumpleanos a (person’s name),   
Feliz cumpleanos a ti`   
 
Vs. 2 is often sung—the words mean ‘now we 
want cake’: 
Ya queremos pastel (repeat four times) 


GAME----- MEXICAN 
PETS NOISES 


 
Hide small objects (cutouts, 
pieces of candy, etc.) around  
the room.  Form 2 teams, the dogs 
and the cats, with a leader in each 
one.  At a signal all start hunting 
for the items, but ONLY THE 
LEADER can go get it and pick it 
up.  The Dogs must bark to get 
the leader’s attention and the Cats 
must meow.  The team with the 
most items wins. 


Answers:  1D, 2I, 3G, 4M, 5O, 6A, 7K, 8F, 
9N, 10L, 11J, 12H, 13E, 14C, 15B 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GATHERING/PRE-OPENING 2 


THE WORLD’S EASIEST QUIZ 
 


1. How long did the Hundred Year war last? 


2. Which country makes Panama hats? 


3. From which animal do we get catgut? 


4. In what month do the Russians celebrate the October revolution? 


5. What are camel hairbrushes made of? 


6. What are the Canary Islands in the Pacific named after? 


7. What color is the purple Finch? 


8. How long did the 30 year war last? 


 


ANSWERS TO THE EASIEST QUIZ 
 


1. 116 yrs. 1337 to 1453 
2.  Ecuador 
3. Sheep and horses 
4. November [their calendar is 13 days off ours] 
5. Squirrel fur 
6. Dogs (the Latin name was Insularia Canaria, island 


of the dogs.) 
7. Crimson 
8. 30 years, of course, 1618 to 1648 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUB MASTER MINUTE   
“ALL I KNOW ABOUT LIFE, I LEARNED 
 FROM MY MEXICAN CHIHUAHUA” 
 [This dog actually did originate in Mexico] 
 
If you stare at someone long enough, eventually  
   you'll get what you want. 
If it's not wet and sloppy, it's not a real kiss. 
Be aware of when to hold your tongue and when to use it.  
Leave room in your schedule for a good nap. 
Don't go out without your I.D 
When you do something wrong, always take responsibility (as soon as you're dragged out from 
under the bed). 
Be direct with people; let them know exactly how you feel by jumping up on them. 
When you go out into the world, remember: always take time to smell the roses. and fire hydrants, 
trees, grass, legs, sandals, car tires, rocks, pots, sidewalk cracks, plants growing in the sidewalk, 
fences, etc. 


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


HISTORICAL PRESENTATION 
#1 Mexico’s government is a 


republic with elected president and 
congress much like the US. They 
have a Senate and chamber of 
deputies.  There are 29 States. 


#2  Their money is called the Peso 
#3  It is 1/5 the size of the U.S. The 


States of California, Arizona, New 
Mexico, & Texas are on the 1,549 
mile border and the Rio Grande 
river flows along 2/3 of it.  


#4  They have the greatest variety of 
plants of any country in the world. 
(There are over 500 kinds of 
cactus.)  There are also 350 kinds 
of birds.  They export most of the 
chicle that makes gum that the 
world uses. (Chicle comes from 
the Sapodilla tree.) 


#5  They have two seasons, rainy 
and dry, rainy is from May to 
October.   


#6  Their language is Spanish.  We 
use many of their words: chili con 
carne, desperado, lasso, patio, 
rodeo, taco, canyon, and 
stampede. 


#7 Mexico has freedom of religion, 
as the U.S. does, but 90% of 
Mexicans are Roman Catholic. 


WHAT DOES IT MEAN, THE FLAG     
 


#1  What do they mean, the stripes of red?  
#2  Courage and freedom for those who fled.  
#3  What do they mean, the stars of white?   
#4  Each for a State, altogether with might. 
#5  What does it mean the field of blue?    
#6  Ancestors who came and were willing  
to do. Courage to work and to dare…and to  die, 
Faith likes the stars that light the sky,  
Honor and vision towering high. 
That’s what it means, THE FLAG WE FLY. 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


OPENING CEREMONY ABOUT MEXICO 
 
F  Fiestas are parties held in every hamlet and 
city usually to honor the patron saint.  They 
decorate, hold dances, street vendors hawk their
wares, and they watch cockfights.  


 
I  Independence was declared on Sept. 16, 1821 
ending 300 years of Spanish rule. This is one of 
the holidays. 


 
E  Expansion caused the Mexican War. Texas  


and California wanted to be part of the United 
States. The U.S. declared war, and, 
eventually, the newly acquired territory  
included California, Nevada, Utah, Arizona, 
New Mexico, and parts of Texas, Colorado, 
and Wyoming. 


 
S  Spain’s Cortez arrived in 1400 A.D. which 
began 3 centuries of Spanish rule.  The  native 
population went from 25 million people to 6 
million due mostly to European diseases, like 
small pox, cholera, flu, and diphtheria. 


 
T  Tacos and Tostados are Mexican foods we 
like. Texas is on its northern border. 
Teotihuacan was a huge city occupied in about 
200 B.C.  It had the Pyramid of the Sun, the 
largest pyramid in the world in it.   


 
A  Aztec, Toltec, and Mayan cultures occupied 
the land in the past.  Adobe is a mud brick that 
many house are built with.  







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
FIESTA FUN  
 
Before the meeting make enough triquitraques (pronounced tree-key-
tra'-kays) in assorted colors for each of your boys, following the 
directions below.  Put a World Brotherhood patch inside each 
triquitraque.  Display them at the pack meeting in a brightly colored 
basket, pottery bowl, or sombrero.  Play a CD or tape of some Latin 
American music in the background as you speak.  Music is available 
at the library.   
 
This month we have been learning a little about the culture of some 
Spanish speaking countries (name the country or countries that have 
been featured).  It is good to learn things about other places and 
peoples.  It helps us to understand and appreciate them.  It enriches 
our lives to have lots of different kinds of experiences.  And, it is 
also a lot of fun!   
 
Who can tell me some of the things that you have learned about another country this month?  
(Allow the children to tell some of the things they have learned.  You may have to ask some 
leading questions to get them started.  After they have had sufficient time to answer, continue. ) 
 
I have a surprise for each of you.  The Den Chiefs will pass out some Latin American 
triquitraques to you.  Don’t do anything with them until I tell you to.  Just hold them.  (Have Den 
Chiefs pass out the triquitraques while you talk.)  In Mexico triquitraques are often used on 
holidays or other special days, such as birthdays, to add to the fun of the occasion.  Inside of the 
triquitraque is a little gift.   
 
Does everyone have his triquitraque?  Okay, when I count to three in Spanish, everyone pull on 
the little strings that are hanging out of your triquitraque.  Can everyone find the strings?  Bueno.  
Oh!  How do I count to three in Spanish?  Okay, on “tres” pull your strings.  Everyone help me 
count.  Altogether now, uno, dos, tres!  Pull your strings!  (After they pop their triquitraques 
make sure everyone finds their patch.)  We have given you the World Brotherhood patch to show 
that you understand that all of us are God’s children and we need to love and appreciate each 
other. 
 
TRIQUITRAQUES 
 
Needed:  empty toilet paper rolls, assorted colors of tissue paper, bright, narrow ribbon and 
“Pulling Fireworks” (little cylinders with strings coming out of each end).  You can buy the 
pulling fireworks or poppers at a craft or novelty store.  Cut a toilet paper roll in half to make 
two cylinders.  Put a small gift or patch inside.  Put the popper in the cylinder, leaving the strings 
dangling out of each end.  Lay the cylinder on colored tissue paper leaving about two inches of 
extra tissue on each end.  Put a tiny piece of clear tape over the strings on each end to attach it to 
the tissue.  Wrap the tissue around the cylinder.  Tie a narrow ribbon at both ends of the tissue 
close to the cylinder and flare out the loose ends, making sure the strings are still dangling out.   







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


   BEAN DROP 
 


Each player is given 5 to 10 beans.  The players will try to drop the beans one 
at a time in a mouth of a canning jar by holding a bean up to his chin and 
letting go.  After each person has a turn, the beans in the jar are counted. The 
person that gets the most beans in the jar wins. 


 
 


FRUIT BASKET 
 
This is a very active game, so if things start getting rough move on to a 
new game. Chairs are placed in a circle. Each player sits in a chair and 
is assigned to he a fruit (orange, apple, banana. etc.). There needs to be 
at least two of each fruit. One person stands in the middle of the circle 
and a chair is taken away so there is one less chair than people playing the game. The person in 
the middle calls out the name of a fruit such as “apple”. All the apples jump up and must move to 
a different chair. The person in the middle tries to sit in one of the chairs. The person left 
standing is the new leader. The leader can also call out “fruit basket” which means everyone gets 
up and moves to a new chair. 
 
 


SOMBRERO RACE 
 
Divide into teams of three or four boys each. Team members stand back to back with elbows 


linked.  On a signal they race to a turning point and back 
again 


 
 
 


 
 


 


 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


A REAL MEXICAN HERO   (AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION) 
 
EMILIO—Yeaaaaa     CHICK—Peep, peep    MIGUEL—Thanks, friend.   


EMILIO is a real hero. One day he and MIGUEL were goofing off down by a pond that 


was in a remote area by where they lived.  It was rumored that the pond had alligators in it even 


though they couldn’t see any.  No one else was around.   


MIGUEL was wading along the shore when he suddenly disappeared under the water.  


MIGUEL came to the surface sputtering and splashing wildly.  


EMILIO did not know how to swim that well.  He seized a long 


branch and pushed it into the water toward MIGUEL.  It didn’t 


quite reach, so he waded in cautiously and pushed it further.  Finally 


EMILIO could get hold off it and was pulled to shore safely. 


MIGUEL and his father were so grateful, they tried to give EMILIO some money, but he 


wouldn’t take it.  He said he was a Cub Scout and wanted to help others.  


EMILIO  is a hero in other ways, too.  One rainy, cold day he was on his way to school.  


In the weeds he spotted a CHICK.  It was cold and glassy eyed.  He picked it up and cuddled it in 


his warm hands.   He thought he would take it to school and show it to everyone, 


but instead he looked under a bush and saw a mother hen on a nest.  He set the 


CHICK down close to her and it pushed under her wing.  She clucked at EMILIO and 


pecked his hand.  He knew the CHICK would be safe. 


In EMILIO’S class in school there was a bully named Juan.  He especially loved to pick 


on Roberto.  Roberto was timid and quiet and wasn’t ever chosen to play games.  One day 


EMILIO got to choose the teams at recess.  He chose Roberto first. All the guys looked 


surprised, and Juan jeered.  That afternoon, when they were walking home from school, Juan 


grabbed Roberto and forced him to the ground.  EMILIO pulled Juan off and stood between 


them until Roberto could get up.  Juan threatened to hit him, but with two boys to fight, it wasn’t 


so easy. Finally, Juan left and the two boys walked home together. 


At Den Meetings EMILIO always helps fold up the chairs and pick things up.   


All of us can be HEROES.  We may not save a life, but we can be helpful to others.  







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


Ojo de Dios: 
Ojo de Dios are a traditional stick weaving often used 


as jewelry or to decorate a home or Fiesta. Making 
an Ojo de Dios will take two sticks and enough 


string or yarn to complete. (It depends on the 
size). Begin by lashing two sticks perpendicular 


to each other, then wrap one loop of yarn 
around one stick, go to the next and wrap one 
loop of yarn around the next, and so on. 
Variety can be added by changing the color of 


string, by changing wrapping order, etc. Tie off to 
finish. Decorate if desired with beads buttons, 


feathers, etc. 
 


Sombreros:  Everyone loves a hat. The boys can make 
and decorate these and then wear them to the Blue and Gold, or 


use them for decorations. The hats do take a little time, since they 
need a week to dry between forming and decorating. 
1.  Make a form for each boy by blowing up an 11-inch balloon (the size of a boy's head). Tape it  
     into the center of a 24 inch square of cardboard. Use rolled up newspapers to form a donut 
     around the base of the balloon. 
2.  Soak a 36x36-inch square of butcher paper (available from 
     craft stores) in either wallpaper paste or paper-mache 
     paste. 
3.  Drape the paper over the form and shape until you 
     are happy with your sombrero. 
4.  Let dry at least overnight. 
5.  Decorate with paint, markers, ribbons etc.  
 
Luminaries:  Use paper bags and let the boys decorate them by painting, gluing and cutting 
shapes and designs. Instead of lighting them with candles, use flash lights or push lights to 
provide illumination. 
 


 
 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


GROUNDHOG POP-UP PUPPET 
• film canister • glue• 1” brown pompom • 
wiggle eyes • brown and black felt or craft 


foam • black Sharpie marker • drill • 3” 
piece of 3/16 dowel or skewer • wood bead • 


wood grain shelf liner 
(optional) • 


Drill hole in center of bottom of film 
canister that dowel will fit through.  Cover 
outside with shelf liner if desired. Glue 
pompom to one end of dowel (use hot glue 


or allow craft glue to dry 
before continuing).  Cut two 
small “D” shapes for ears and 
one circle for cheeks out of 
brown felt or foam.  Draw 
mouth on circle.  Cut a small 
triangle of black for nose.  
Glue to pompom as shown.  
Put dowel down through hole 
in film canister and glue bead 


on the end.  Push up to make groundhog pop 
up out of his hole and look for his shadow! 
 


 
 


PUNCHED VALENTINE CARD 
• cardstock (red & white) • push pin • glue • 


scissors • gathered lace • 
red ribbon • 


 Fold one sheet of red cardstock in 
half.  Cut a heart out of white 
to fit on front of card.  On a 
carpeted floor, use push pin to 
poke holes in white heart to 
form design or message.  
Glue lace (if desired) around 
edge on the back of the heart.  
Glue heart to card.  Glue a red bow to top of 
heart. 


 
FOIL SILHOUETTES 


• cardboard • heavy duty foil • tape • pencil • 
permanent markers • yarn • craft glue • 


President silhouette patterns - or try making 
silhouettes of each boy as shown in the 


Webelos Handbook • 
 Trace silhouette on cardboard with 
pencil.  Add an oval or rectangle border 
around silhouette.  Trace over pencil lines 
with a thin bead of craft glue.  Lay yarn 
along glue line.  Center cardboard face down 


on a piece of foil 
that has been cut  
2 – 3” larger than 
the cardboard.  
Fold corners  
of foil up over 
corners of 
cardboard, then 


fold edges and secure with tape.  Turn over 
and define silhouette shape by running the 
side of your thumbnail along each side of 
yarn lines.  Color the sections with 
permanent markers, leaving the raised yarn 
lines silver. 
 
 


VALENTINE TRIVET 
20 craft sticks • craft glue • red felt • 


 Lay ten craft sticks side by side.  
Glue remaining 
ten craft sticks 
the opposite 
direction 
across the first 
ten.  Cut a 
heart shape out 
of felt on top 
of sticks. 


 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 


 
 


Votive Candle Holder 
 
* Materials:   


Small glass jar or clear glass votive cup, 3 – 4 shades of white to 


light pink tissue paper, red tissue paper, Modge Podge, paint brush, heart 


shaped paper punch, votive candle, red ribbon 


* Directions: 


 Tear white and pink tissue paper into nickel to quarter size pieces.  


Brush Modge Podge on a small section of the outside of the jar.  Cover 


with tissue pieces, placing shades randomly.  Brush Modge Podge over tissue to adhere to jar.  


Continue working small areas as described until outside of jar is completely covered.  Use paper 


punch to punch hearts out of red tissue and Modge Podge onto jar.  Let dry.  Place candle in the 


jar.  Tie ribbon around mouth of jar.  


* Tips and ideas: 


 Use seasonal colors and shapes (shades of light blue with dark blue snowflakes).  Use 


sparkly Modge Podge. 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 
SONG : “I DON’T CARE IF I GO CRAZY” 
Tune: “Reuben, Reuben” 
 
I don’t care if I go crazy, 
1,2,3,4,5,6, switch!  
Crazy go I if care don’t I, 
6,5,4,3,2,1 switch! 
 (sing three times, increasing  
 speed each time)  
 


 
 
SONG:  “LA CUCARACHA” 
 


1. Down in sunny old Me-hee-ko, 
     All the kids in Spanish speek-o,  
     And they play at hide-and-seek-o,    
     With a bug moo-ey coh-meek-o. 
 
2. Little cu-ca-ra-cha mia,  
     Just as happy as can be-a,  
    When I’m no around to see-a,  
     He is eating my tort-tee-a. 
 
3. One day the cook was baking,  


Wondered he what she was making,  
For it looked so appetizing,  
With the batter slowly rising. 


 
4. To the edge he started skipping,  


Then he found that he was slipping,  
In the pie so hot a blazing,  


      Now he just another raisin.  
 


APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
HOT PEPPER: Take a bite of a hot pepper, chew and swallow. Suddenly it’s hot, real hot… 
express it by holding throat and yelling, “Ahhhhhhhhh!”       
MEXICAN HAT DANCE: Take your hat off your head, throw it on 


ground, stomp on it and yell,  “Smashed sombrero!”  
JUMPING BEAN:  Jump around like a jumping bean. 
BULL FIGHTER:  Hold cape in both hands  as if fighting off a bull 
and yell, “Ole!” 
BUENO (Boo-ay-no):  means good!  Repeat several times! 


SONG:  “BUG JUICE” 
Tune:  On Top of Old Smokey 
 
At camp with the Cub Scouts 
They gave us a drink 
We thought it was Kool-Aid 
Because it was pink. 
 
But the thing that they told us 
Would’ve grossed out a moose, 
For the great tasting pink drink 
Was really Bug Juice. 
 
It looks fresh and fruity, 
Like Cherry Kool-aid 
But the bugs that are in it, 
Were murdered with Raid. 
 
We drank it for breakfast 
We drank it for lunch 
We got kind of curious 
When it started to crunch. 
 
So when you are hiking, 
And a fly drives you mad. 
He’s just getting even, 
Cause you swallowed his Dad. 


Chorus 
La cucaracha, la cucaracha, running up and down 
the wall. La cucaracha, la cucaracha, me I love 
you not at all. 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
 


 
RUN ON FUN 


 
1. Why did the burro cross the road?  


2. What is worse than an alligator with a 


toothache?  


3. What do you get when you cross a 


centipede with a parrot? 


4.  Why was the centipede dropped from the insect soccer team? 


5. Why should you be careful about playing against a team of big cats? 


 
 
ANSWERS  


1. Because the chicken needed a day off. 2. A centipede with athlete’s foot. 
3. A walkie talkie. 4. It took it too long to put its boots on. 5. They might be Cheetahs. 


 
 
 


MORE CHEERS 
 
CHICLE:  Ingredient in gum that makes it chewy from Sapodilla trees 
in Mexico.  Chew your gum, clicking your teeth together as loud as you 
can. 
 
SAGUARO CACTUS: Put arms up in air like a cactus.  A woodpecker 
lands on your belly and starts to peck, then tickles you so you start 
laughing and giggling.  
 
PESO: Say, “Money, money, money, money!” while holding arm out 
with right hand cupped and rubbing thumb on fingers as loud as you 
can. 


 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
February 10 - Clean Out Your Computer Day  
 
Mexican Rice Mice 
To make one mouse, you need the 
following: 
 
1/4 cup cooked rice 
1 teaspoon cream cheese 
1/2 teaspoon plain yogurt (or 1 teaspoon 
whipped cream cheese instead of cream 
cheese and yogurt) 
pinch of salt. 
Eyes: green peas 
Noses: corn niblets 
Tails: chives, pretzels, or cheese straws 
Ears: olives, cheese, or radishes 
 
Mix rice, cream cheese, yogurt and salt.  
Roll into 1-1/2 inch balls with slightly damp 
hands.  Add features, play with, and eat! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mexican Hot Chocolate 
1 cup milk 
1/2 ounce milk chocolate candy bar 
1/2 teaspoon sugar 
Dash of cinnamon 
Whipped cream and cinnamon for garnish 
Heat milk in microwave safe container 1 to 
1-1/2 minutes until almost boiling. (I use a 2 
or 4 cup Pyrex measuring cup.)  Meanwhile, 
place chocolate, sugar and cinnamon in a 
blender jar.  Pour hot milk over chocolate in 
blender and blend on medium until frothy 
and evenly dark.  Pour immediately into a 
mug and top with a dollop of whipped cream 
and a sprinkle of cinnamon.  Makes 1 cup. 


 
Tortilla Sweet Pizza 
1 teaspoon each of apricot and strawberry 
jam (you can use just strawberry jam, but 
the combo makes for a more tomato-y 
looking sauce.) 
 
flour tortilla, individual size 
black licorice stick 
green fruit roll-up 
1/4 cup white chocolate chips 
cashew halves 
 
Stir the two jams together.  Spread on the 
tortilla, staying away from the outer edges 
so it looks like a pizza.  (If you use a bigger 
tortilla, cut it into wedges before putting the 
stuff on.)  With scissors, slice the licorice to 
look like olives and cut the fruit roll-up into 
strips to look like green peppers.  
Microwave the white chocolate at half 
power for 1 minute intervals, stirring it 
every time to see if it’s melted.  Spread the 
melted white chocolate on the pizza, 
sprinkle on the “olives,” “peppers,” and 
cashew “mushrooms.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 


 
Peanut Butter and Jelly Kite 
 
1 piece of firm bread 
peanut butter 
jelly 
peeled carrot 
 
Trim the edges of the bread to create an enlongated 
diamond and place it on a plate. Spread on peanut butter 
and jelly in a decorative pattern. Shave a tail for the kite 
with vegetable peeler. Curl the tail and tuck it into the end 
of the kite.  


 
 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
 
 


CONFETTI FILLED EGGS 
 
 


In Mexico this is a tradition.  They use it for fiesta’s and at Easter time.  
 
Take a raw egg and color it, then decorate it as you wish.  Make a hole in 
it about the size of your middle finger and remove the yolk and egg white. 
(A needle or awl work well to start the hole).  Wash the egg out and let it 
dry.  Once the egg is dry, fill it with confetti as until it is as full as 
possible, then place a small piece of  scotch tape over the opening in the 
egg.  At the fiesta or party, gently hit the person you like with the egg on 
the head, and they will be covered with confetti as the egg breaks.  This is 
better done outdoors. 
 


 
 
 
 


PINATAS 
 


Decide on your pattern. Use light cardboard, balloons, or a small lightweight box and/or 
empty lightweight cardboard rolls from paper towels. The rolls are used to make the legs for the 
animals.  


You will need several newspapers cut in strips of 1” x 6” long.  These you will dip in 
school glue or a mixture of flour and water to the consistency of gravy. Start by blowing up your 
balloon and tying it with a sturdy 
knot.  Then proceed to glue your 
strips to the balloon, fully covering 
it.  Let dry and proceed with 2 more 
layers, drying after each one.  Use 
no more than 3 layers or your pinata 
will be so strong that it may not 
break.  Use your imagination.  
We’ve made ships, tanks, donkeys, 
owls, people etc.  Paper mache will 
dry over night, then you can 
decorate the pinata with tissue paper 
or construction paper, or even paint 
it with powder paints.  String or 
yarn and tape can also be used to 
decorate it. 
 
 







Fiesta  February 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note:  All books at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas 


Blue & Gold Banquet Ideas 
Cub Scout How To Book 
(rev.1999) pg 9-52, (rev.2002) 
pg 6-3 


Ceremonies Musician Ceremonies, Story of the Blue & 
Gold Opening Ceremony, Parents Closing 
Ceremony, Scout Benediction, Meaning of 
Blue & Gold Advancement Ceremony, Cub 
Scout Trail Graduation Ceremony 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs 
pg 3-7, 5-10, 6-6, 6-6, 8-10, 9-5 


 National Den Award Ceremony, BSA Family 
Award Ceremony, National Summertime 
Pack Award Ceremony, Quality Unit Award 
Ceremony, Silver or Gold Pack Anniversary 
Ceremony at Blue & Gold Banquet 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs 
pg 10-4 & 10-5 


 Den Chief & Adult Ceremonies Ceremonies for Dens and Packs 
chap 12 


Thank You Thank You Ceremonies for Dens and Packs 
pg 6-7 


Applauses & 
Cheers New person, Spanish, tortilla All the Applauses We Could 


Find (alphabetical)  
 Mexican Hat Dance, Spanish, tortilla Need a Cheer? Find it Here! 


(alphabetical) 
 


GREET YOUR AMIGOS IN SPANISH 
          English             Spanish Pronunciation  
Good morning/day Buenos días. (Bweh'-nohs dee'-ahs) 
Good afternoon Buenas tardes. (Bweh'-nahs tahr'-dehs) 
Good evening Buenas noches. (Bweh'-nahs noh' chehs) 
Good-by Adiós. (ah-dee-ohs') 
How are you? Como esta usted? (Koh'-moh eh-stah’ oos-tehd?) 
Very well, thank you Muy bien, gracias. (Mooy bee-en grah’-see-ahs) 


 
    AMIGO TAG 


Each player links arms at the elbows with another “Amigo” (friend), except for 2 
players.  The amigos put their other arms on their hips so that each person has a 


“handle” on his free side.  The amigos can move about freely in the game area.  The other two 
players are El Perro (the dog) and El Zorro (the fox).  El Perro chases El Zorro.  If he catches 
him, El Zorro becomes El Perro and does the chasing and El Perro becomes El Zorro and must 
run away.  But if El Zorro can link arms with an amigo, he becomes an amigo and is safe.  The 
amigo of the player who El Zorro links arms with must let go and is then El Zorro.  The object is 
to become and remain an amigo. Playing some lively Latin American music (available free at the 
library) adds to the fun.  The game ends when the music stops. 


 












Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 
This is The Place Heritage Park: Return to days of the pioneers. See how things were done in 
Utah's past. Great place to see some of Utah's heritage and learn about what made Utah what it is 
today. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: "Disability" challenge course 


Speakers-Disabled physically and/or mentally, Non-English  
speaking, aged "What Would You Do?" vignettes 
Puppet show 


 
Menu:  "Communicating" Calzones  "Limited” Lemon Pie 
  "Conquering" Crab Salad  “Challenging" Cheesecake 


"Frustrating" Fish & Chips  "Ability" Angel Food Cake 
 
 
 


 
GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 


 
BLIND MAN’S WALK 


 
As families arrive for pack meeting, have them remove their shoes. Have two large 
pairs of shoes, one a woman’s and one a man’s pair.  Blindfold the parents.  
Have the children put the opposite shoes on the parents.  The 


children then lead the parents through a maze (made with 
chairs or rope) using only their voices.  Time it to see who 
is fastest.  
 


 
                    WHEELCHAIR/ CRUTCH RELAY 


 
Borrow a wheel chair and crutches from a local agency.  
Set up a course for the families to try, with obstacles to go 


around.  The first stage of the race, one member of the 
family could use the wheelchair through the course.  
Next, hand off to another family member who must do 


the same course on crutches.  Switch back and 
forth until all have gone through the course.  
See which family can do it the fastest. 


 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GATHERING 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


C O M P A S S I O N 
R P L E H X A W E Q 
I J K L R H G S N W 
P Z X C B C S U C T 
P N B L V S Y P O E 
L Z I X S E F P U M 
E N Q S L R D O R O 
D E A F K V S R A C 
M Z P Y J I P T G L 
Q W E R H C I U E E 
B E F R I E N D Y W 


 


WALK IN MY SHOES WORD SEARCH   Find these words: 


Assist 
Befriend 
Blind 
Compassion 
Crippled 
Deaf 
Help 
Mercy 
Service 
Support 
Encourage 
Welcome 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 


CUB MASTER MINUTE     “IMPORTANT THINGS IN LIFE” 
 
    A young and successful New Yorker was traveling down a neighborhood street in his new 
Jaguar. He was watching for kids darting out from between parked cars and slowed down when 
he thought he saw something. As his car passed, no children appeared; instead a brick smashed 


into the Jag's side door! He slammed on the brakes and backed up. 
He jumped out of the car, grabbed the kid who was standing 
there, and pushed him against a parked car, shouting, "What do 


you think you are doing?" Building up a head of steam he went on, "That's a new car and that 
brick you threw is going to cost you a lot of money. Why did you do it?"  
     "Please sir, please. I'm sorry, I didn't know what else to do," pleaded 
the youngster. "I threw the brick because no one else would stop.  It's my 
brother, sir," he said. “He fell out of his wheelchair and I can't lift him up. 
Would you please help me get him back into his wheelchair, sir?”  
     Moved beyond words, the driver tried to swallow the rapidly swelling 
lump in his throat. He lifted the young man back into the wheelchair and 
took out his handkerchief and wiped the scrapes and cuts, checking to see 
that everything was going to be okay. "Thank you, and may God bless 
you, sir," the grateful child said to him. The man then watched the little boy push his brother 
toward their home. It was a long walk backs to his Jaguar...a long slow walk. He never did repair 
the side door. He kept the dent to remind him not to go through life so fast that someone has to 
throw a brick at you to get your attention. 
 
 


CLOSING CEREMONY FOR REFRESHMENTS 
 
CM:  Every stage of  Cub Scouting is fun.  It is also different, challenging, rewarding, and a lot 


of work.  To help prepare you for this great effort, the pack developed some Cub Scout magic 
water. (Hold up empty jar.  Look at jar) Well, it looks like it evaporated.  Okay, I can make 
more.  Lets see, what was the recipe? Okay, here we go: (throw these things in the tub, have 
some real punch hidden in it to serve). 
• An old tennis shoe to remind you still have many miles to go on 


the scouting trail. (throw in tub) and to remind you not to take 
your shoes off in a two man tent. 


• A shovel to remind you to keep your room clean. 
• A balloon to remind you that a lot of hot air doesn’t get the job 


done. 
• A heart to remind you of your commitment to your parents and family. 
• An inner tube to remind you that you may have a few flat tires but they can be fixed. 
• A rubber band to remind you to stretch yourself as you learn new skills as you pass off 


your achievement and electives. 
• Okay, that’s it.  Let’s stir a little.  Looks good.  Now lets give everyone a cup full. (Ladle 


it out of hidden pot). 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   


PINEWOOD DERBY REMOTE CAR FLAG CEREMONY 
 
Props: Pinewood Derby track, remote control car that can climb up 
the track with a small U.S. Flag attached to it. 
 


A uniformed Scout comes to the front and asks the audience to please 


rise for the presentation of the flag ceremony. From the back of the 


room the car enters and drives to the bottom of the track, enters the 


raceway and climbs to the top of the track.   


Have audience sing ‘America the Beautiful”, then repeat the Pledge of


Allegiance.  The car is then turned around and exits the same way.   







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
THE TRUE STORY OF TRAVIS 
 
Here is a story to help the boys think before 
judging a person based on his physical 
appearance or handicap.  Divide the story 
and have each one tell or read a part. 
 
Our den would like to tell you the true story 
of Travis.  When Travis was one year old he 
was an adorable little toddler just like (child 
they know).  He was just starting to walk and 
talk.  He was a bright, happy, little guy who 
was curious about everything. 
 
One afternoon while his mother had her 
back turned to him, he tipped over a big pan 
of boiling water.  Travis screamed as the hot 
water poured all over him, burning him 
badly.  His mother grabbed him and put him 
in the sink, running cold water over him.  
She screamed for his older sister to call 911. 
 
Travis was taken to the hospital where they 
treated his deep burns.  For a week no one 
knew if he would live or die.  His family and 
friends prayed for him.  After a week Travis 
began to get better, but he had to stay in the 
hospital for a long time.   
 
 
Over the next few years Travis had many 
painful operations and other treatments to 


try to make his burned skin better.  His face 
was only burned on one side, by his ear, but 
he had ugly scars running down one side of 
his neck, one arm and all over his chest, 
back, belly and both legs. 
 


 
 
 
His family and friends were so happy to 
have Travis alive that they didn’t mind his 
scars.  But when he started school, some of 
the other children made fun of him.  Travis 
was still a smart, nice boy, but some 
children could not see beyond his scarred 
skin.  To them, he looked like a monster.   
 
When the children called him names, it 
made Travis very sad.  He became very shy 
and tried to stay away from other children in 
order to avoid their hurtful comments.  He 
thought that maybe because he looked 
different than the other kids that he really 
was a monster.  None of the kids took the 
time and trouble to find out what a 
wonderful person he really was. 
 
When you meet someone who looks 
different, think of Travis.  Treat him kindly.  
You might find in him a wonderful friend if 
you don’t judge him by the way he looks.  
And remember, an accident could happen to 
you, too. 
 
Cubmaster:  Thank you for the good story 
boys.  It gave us some valuable things to 
think about.  It is not important how a 
person looks or what he CAN’T do.  What is 
important is that he does his best. 
 
Tonight we are honoring _____ boys who 
have done their best.  Will (names) please 
come forward with their parents?  (Give 
awards.)               Story by Carol Shaw Lord 
 
 
 
“Do not judge a man  
             until you have walked a mile 
                          in his moccasins.”    


           Old Indian Saying







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


GOING ON A HIKE 
 


The leader starts by saying, “I’m going on a hike. Everyone needs to 
come along. I’m bringing .... What are you bringing?” Each boy 
answers in turn what they will bring on the “hike”. The trick is that 
their answer must begin with the first letter of their first name. Do 
not give away the secret. Let the boys figure it out as they continue 
to guess. Soon they will catch on, but they should not reveal the 
secret when they guess it. Here’s an example where the leader’s 
name is Dave. 


 
Leader (Dave): I’m going on a hike and I’m bringing a door. 
Teddy: I’ll bring a chair. 
Leader: No, you can’t bring that. 
Frank: I’ll bring a frisbee. 
Leader: Good. Frank can come along. I’m also bringing a dinosaur. 
Johnny:  I’ll take my dog. Rex. 
Leader: Sorry. Rex can’t go. 
Teddy: Can 1 bring a towel? 
Leader: Yes, you can bring a towel. I’m bringing donuts. 
 
 


RIVER JUMPERS 
 


 In this game the boys will try not to get their feet “wet.”  Play 
this game outside on a grassy area or inside on a large carpeted 
area. Use 2 pieces of string to form a “river.’ Two players hold 
the string to make the river.  All the other players stand on one 
side of the river and try to jump across without getting their feet 
wet. The river should start out fairly narrow and gradually get 
bigger (by about 6 inches each time). Then, have the cub scouts 
try to jump back. As the boys jump back and forth, players are 
eliminated as their feet get wet (land inside the rope river). The 
last player with dry feet is the winner. 


  FANCY FEET RELAY 
 


Before the game, pack two boxes with an assortment of different silly 
footwear, such as swim fins, fluffy slippers, big rubber boots, high 
heels, etc. Divide players into two teams. Place the boxes of footwear at 
the starting line. Each player chooses a pair of silly shoes, puts them on and moves 
quickly to the crossing line.  He then takes the shoes off and carries them back and 
returns them to the box. The next person in line does the same until everyone on each 
team has a turn. The team finishing first wins. 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


MIXED UP FAIRY TALES 
 


Take a fairy tale, such as ‘Cinderella and the Glass Slipper’, 
and divide it into sentences. Cut the sentences out and pass the strips 
out to the audience in no particular order. In fact, the more mixed up 
the better. Start reading the strips row by row. The story will be all 
mixed up, confusing, and funny. 


Or, number the strips from the end of the tale to the beginning 
and read the story backwards. Of course, you would start with, “And 
they lived happily ever after.” For greater fun, ask each person to 
stand up and act out the line they are reading. 


 
 


THE MUDDY FACTS 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION STORY 


 
Feet—PU   Shoes—STOMP, STOMP, STOMP 
 
One very muddy day, 12 Wolf Cub Scouts showed up for den meeting 


with their 24 FEET in 24 muddy SHOES.  Mrs. Jones & Mrs. Whitney, the den leaders, 


met all 24 FEET and muddy SHOES at the front door and had the boys take them off 


and leave them on some newspaper by the front door.   


The den meeting was fun, and after it was over the den leaders started trying to 


match up the 24 muddy SHOES with the 24 FEET.  Finally there was only one pair left.  


Sam was the only Cub with no SHOES on.  However, they appeared to be too small for 


Sam’s FEET.  


After tugging and struggling the den leaders were finally able to get the SHOES 


on, but Sam said, “These are not mine.  They don’t fit my FEET!”   


The den leaders looked at all the muddy SHOES on the FEET of the other Cub 


Scouts in dismay.  They all seemed to have their own shoes. What was the 


problem?   


After much pulling and yanking the den leader finally got the 


SHOES off Sam’s FEET.  Just as they did, Sam announced, “They 


are my little brothers SHOES.   I had to wear them because I couldn’t 


find my own.” 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 
 


THE INVISIBLE BENCH 
 


#1—Enters and squats down like they are sitting on a bench 


#2—[Enters] What are you doing? 


#1—Sitting on this invisible bench. Want to join me? 


#2—Sure [squats down beside #1] 


#3—[Enters} Hey, what’s going on? 


#2—We’re sitting on this invisible bench, want to join us? 


#3—Okay.  Looks like fun. [Squats nest to #2] 


[Same for any number of other people] 


LAST PERSON—What’s are you guys doing? 


ALL SITTERS—We’re sitting on this invisible bench. 


LAST PERSON—The invisible bench?  I moved it over  


       there this morning.  [Points to other side of room].  


ALL SITTERS—Oh no! [scream and topple over] 


 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 
CLAY BEADS 
 
Materials:  
Play Dough or clay 
Colors to create different shades (food coloring 
   or acrylic paints) 
toothpicks 
String 
 
While discussing the handicapped, have Scouts make clay beads using only one hand.  
Give the scouts a handful of clay and have them divide it into several piles to create 
variety of color.  Give boys some coloring materials to knead into clay using only one 
hand. After having achieved desired colors, have the boys break off some clay into small 
pieces to create beads. The beads can be oval, round, square or any shape they choose. 
After creating shapes, have boys stick toothpick through each clay bead to create a hole 
for string. Let the beads dry. After beads have dried, have boys string beads with one 
hand. Then have boys try to TIE string with only one hand. 
 
 
PAPER AIRPLANES 
 
Materials:  Paper 
   One hand. 
 
Give each boy one piece of paper and have them decorate their airplane in any manner 
they wish. Then have boys try to fold paper airplane using only one hand. Upon 
completion of folding airplanes, have boys compete in paper airplane contest. 
 
 
SHOE BOOKMARK 
 
Materials: 


Felt of any color 
Felt marker  
Scissors 
Glue 
Curl Hair Clips (with spring) 
String (optional) 
 


Draw pattern of a shoe sole, tongue, and sides of a shoe out of felt. Cut four soles of shoe 
to cover both sides of clips.  Glue clip to one of the soles. Then glue second sole onto the 
first to cover backside of clip. Repeat procedure to cover front part of clip. Glue tongue 
onto front part of sole.  Take the sides and glue to front and back of shoes. May use string 
to represent shoelaces. 


 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


 
THE END OF THE RAINBOW 


• chenille stems – white or colors to match 
beads • scissors • faceted beads – 8 red, 7 
orange, 6 yellow, 5 green, 4 blue, 3 purple 
• cookie sheet lined with waxed paper or 
foil • black or green craft foam • gold 
jumbo rickrack • craft glue • 
 Put red beads on chenille stem 
(they should be touching).  Trim off 
excess, leaving about ¼” on one end and 
about 1” tail on the other.  
Repeat with each color of 
beads.  Arrange bead rows on 
cookie sheet, curving slightly 
and making the rows touch as 
much as possible with the 1” 
tails on same side to form rainbow section.  
Place cookie sheet into cold oven.  Turn 
oven on to 350 degrees.  When oven has 
reached temperature, bake for 10-15 minutes 
to fuse beads together, then turn oven off.  
Let oven cool completely before removing 
tray (this could take a couple of hours).  Cut 
two pot shapes out of foam.  Glue rickrack 
along top edge of each pot so ½ of it shows 
above edge.  Carefully remove rainbow 
section from tray.  Trim off short chenille 
stem ends.  Glue 1” tails “sandwiched” 
between pots. 


 
GROCERY BAG KITE 


• 2 plastic grocery bags • stapler • 
 kite string •  


 Cut a few strips 
(about 1” wide) from one 
bag.  Staple three or four 2’ 
strips along bottom seam of 
other bag for tails.  Tie 


handles together with end of kite string.  To 
fly, start running to fill bag with air, then 
slowly let out string and watch it soar! 


LEPRECHAUN MOBILE 
• 2 paper plates • construction paper • 


scissors • thread • craft glue • 
 Cut centers from paper plates.  
Fold construction paper in half and 
cut out facial features (you need to 
have 2 identical pieces of each).  
Position one set of parts inside of 
one plate ring.  Lay thread pieces to 
join the parts and hang from top of 


ring.  Glue second set of parts over first, 
with the thread in between.  Glue ears on 
each side of plate rim.  Glue second plate 
rim over first, making sure top of each 
thread is secured.  Cut ¼” strips of orange 
paper and wrap around pencil to curl.  Glue 
around rim for hair and beard.  Glue green 
hat on each side of head with end of thread 
loop between layers. 


 
MINI KITE MOBLE 


• blue poster board • 3” squares 
 of colored paper • ruler 
 • pencil • tape • curling ribbon •  
needle • thread • 


Lightly draw a center 
line on back side of square 
from corner to corner.  Fold 
other corners in to center, with 
edge laying along line, to make 
kite shape.  Tuck end of a 4” 
piece of ribbon inside bottom 


corner of kite and secure with tape.  Tape 
where corners meet to make flat.  Tie three 
1.5” pieces of ribbon on to tail.  Make eight 
kites.  Cut spiral from poster board (8” 
diam.).  Thread needle.  Insert needle down 
through spiral, through top of kite, and back 
up through spiral near first hole and knot 
thread to attach kites at eight points 
 along spiral. 
  







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


POT OF GOLD & SHAMROCK 
     NECKERCHIEF SLIDES 


 
 


Patterns – Pot of Gold, Shamrock,  
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
* Tips and Ideas 
Cut out of craft foam and glue a ring cut from the  
handle of a milk carton on the back to make a 
neckerchief slide. (Add some gold rickrack or 
some “gold” coins punched out of yellow foam to 
the top of the pot) 
 
 
 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 2 (Cont.) 
 


SPIRAL MOBILE 
Full-size pattern below 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 


 
SONG : MAMA PLEASE LET YOUR BABIES 


GROW UP TO BE CUB SCOUTS 
Tune: Mama Don’t Let Your Babies Grow Up To Be Cowboys 


 
Cub Scouts are easy to love, or so we’ve been told. 
They’d rather ‘tend meetings than have bags filled with gold! 
They work for their patches and badges, 
Have campouts with friends in the woods overnight. 
If you don’t understand them, just pay close attention, 
We’ll explain it all to you tonight! 
 
Chorus 
Mama, please let your babies grow up to be Cub Scouts.  
Let ‘em earn badges or race derby cars. 
Make ‘em Bobcats, Webelos, and B’ars! 
Mama, please let your babies grow up to be Cub Scouts. 
They’ll promise their best to God and their country. 
Obeying the Law of the Pack. 
 
Cub Scouts like sleeping outdoors on clear  
      mountain mornings.  
Little warm puppies and children and stars in the night. 
Them that do know him will like him – he follows Akela. 
He’s going to grow as he helps the Pack go 
As he strives for his Arrow of Light.  (Chorus) 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
ALL STAR: Clap and yell to this rhythm: clap, clap, pause, pause, clap, clap, 


“These guys are our stars”, clap, clap, pause, pause, clap, clap, “They deserve 
our best”, clap, clap, pause, pause, clap, clap, “They are our all stars”, clap, 
clap, pause, pause, clap, clap, “They deserve our best--- YEA ALL STARS.”
  


ROCKETSHIP: Count down “10, 9, 8…3, 2,1… blast off.”  (Squat down, jump 
in air with hand extended). Gain orbit, and say “Beep-beep beep-beep.” 


IRON MAN: Flex muscles and then pretend to iron a shirt on an ironing board. 


RUN-ON FUN 
 


1. What kind of music do 
sailors play? 


2. Why do astronauts see the 
doctor just before blast 
off? 


3. If athletes have athlete’s 
foot, what do astronauts 
have? 


4. The moon is going broke!  
Why do you say that? 


ANSWERS 
1. Neptunes. 
2. To get their booster shots. 
3. Missile-toe. 
4. The TV weatherman said it is  
        down to its last quarter. 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 


 
 


FUNNY QUESTIONS ABOUT LOTS OF THINGS. 
 [Ask question, pause for effect, then laugh like crazy]. 


 
1. Why isn't the number 11 pronounced one-ty one?  


2. Why aren’t there interstate highways in Hawaii? 


3.   Why doesn't Tarzan have a beard?  


4. Why isn't phonetic spelled the way it sounds?  


5. Why don’t all those psychics know the winning lottery numbers?  


6. Why don't they call moustaches "mouthbrows"?  


7. Why is it called 'after dark', when it is really after light?  


8. How is it possible to have a civil war?  


 
 
 


MORE CHEERS 
 
CRAZY WOODCHOPPER: Make a big deal of chopping down a tree, then keep trimming it 
until you have a toothpick to pick your teeth with. 
 
CAN OPENER: Pretend to chomp around the edge of a can. 
 
BUBBLE GUM: Open gum, put in mouth, chew, blow big bubble, clap hands once as it bursts 
all over your face, then peel it off face.  
 
CHEESE GRATER:  Pretend to grate cheese, say, “Great, great, great!”  







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


Finely chop the cabbage and scallions and put them in a mixing bowl.  Add the soy sauce, salt, 
cornstarch and pork, mixing well with a spoon.  Place 1 teaspoon of filling on each wrapper.  
Fold the wrappers into half circles.  Moisten the inside edges with water and press them together 
to seal.  In a large pot, bring 2 quarts of water to a boil.  Drop in the dumplings and cover.  When 
the water resumes boiling, add 1 cup cold water.  Repeat this step twice.  When the water boils 
for the third time, the dumplings will be done.  Serve with 1/4 cup soy sauce mixed with 2 
tablespoons white vinegar.  Makes 4 dozen. 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
March 1 - National Pig Day 
March 14 - Save A Spider Day 
March 22 - National Goof Off Day 


 
“Stir Fry” 
(or not!) 
This nutty mix of vegetable impostors is 
guaranteed to cause a stir! 
 
Fruit Roll-Ups, 2-3 green rolls and 1 red roll 
1-1/2 teaspoons hulled sunflower seeds 
1-1/2 cups dried apples 
3/4 cup dried pineapple chunks 
1/2 cup cashews 
 
First make a bunch of pea pods.  For each 
one, cut a 2-1/4 inch square from a green 
fruit roll.  Arrange 5 or 6 sunflower seeds 
(for peas) on the strip in a vertical row, just 
off center.  Fold the strip in half over the 
seeds and press the edges together to seal 
them.  Trim the ends into a rounded pod 
shape using scissors.  Next, cut the red fruit 
roll into thin pepper strips and break the 
dried apples into bite size chicken pieces.  
For the full effect, serve in a frying pan with 
chopsticks.  Makes three cups. 
 
Steamed Dumplings From China  
3 stalks chinese cabbage 
2 scallions 
1 tablespoon soy sauce 
1 teaspoon salt  
1 tablespoon cornstarch 
1 pound lean ground pork 
1 10-ounce package dumpling wrappers 
 
 
 
 
 


African Sesame Cookies 
In Africa, sesame seeds, or benne, 
symbolize good luck.   
 
2/3 cup sesame seeds 
1/2 cup butter, softened  
1/2 cup sugar 
1/2 cup brown sugar 
1 egg 
1 teaspoon vanilla extract 
1-1/4 cups all-purpose flour 
1/2 teaspoon baking powder 
1/4 teaspoon cinnamon 
1/4 teaspoon salt 
 
Toast the sesame seeds on a baking sheet in 
a pre-heated 350 degree oven for about 10 
minutes.  Stir occasionally to keep them 
from burning.  In a mixing bowl, cream 
together the butter and sugars.  Beat in the 
egg and vanilla.  Stir in flour, baking 
powder, cinnamon and salt until well mixed.  
Fold in 1/2 the sesame seeds.  Shape the 
dough into 1" balls and roll them in the 
remaining sesame seeds.  Place on greased 
cookie sheets and flatten with the palm of 
your hand.  Bake until golden brown (about 
10 minutes).  Makes 2 dozen. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
Try putting yourself in another’s shoes! Cub Scouts will explore the world and experiences of 


those who face challenges ranging from language and culture differences to special physical or 
mental needs.  
CUSTOMS OF OTHER LANDS 
We live in a global village, but not all customs, languages, sports, games and clothing are alike.  
Each Den could “adopt” a different nation for the month. In the Pack Leaders Meeting, the Den 
Leaders should select the countries so several different countries are represented. Each Den 
should prepare a den act for the Pack meeting based on a custom, game, song or craft from the 
adopted country. The juvenile section of the public library has many useful books on the various 
countries. Simple costumes (see Cub Scout Leader How-To Book pages 5-29 to 5-33) add 
variety to the demonstrations. Foods from the different countries would make great refreshments 
for the Pack meeting. Earn the World Crest Patch (see Cub Scout Activity Patch Booklet).  


☺ If you smile at me, you know I will understand, because that is  
something everybody, everywhere, does in the same language. ☺ 


You may want to focus on one specific challenge or need at each den meeting or bring various 
aids such as crutches, wheelchairs, signs in other languages, ear plugs or blindfolds. 
The following den or pack “disability awareness” games are fun in themselves, but they also 
show boys without disabilities the problems of  boys who have disabilities. (see Cub Scout 
Leader How-To Book pages 7-1 to 7-9 Cub Scouts with Special Needs). 
SHIPS IN THE FOG: Divide the den or Pack into two teams and line them up relay fashion at 
one end of the room. For each team, set up a series of obstacles chairs, tables, stools, etc. 
between the teams and the other end of the room. Blindfold the first boy on each team. On the 
signal, he starts for the other end of the room, trying to avoid the obstacles. His teammates may 
call out directions (go right, turn left, etc.).  When he reaches the other end of the room, he takes 
off the blindfold and runs back to the next player, who is already blindfolded. Continue until all 
have raced. The first team finished wins, or don’t have a winner. Discuss and reflect on the 
difficulties the boys faced. Were they scared of falling? Was it frustrating? Were the directions 
helpful? 
TALKING CLEARLY: Give each participant a large marshmallow (they do not chew or 
swallow after putting it into the mouth) and have him or her try to talk clearly. Say their name or 
the Cub Scout motto. Discuss with the participants their feelings. Point out for some people this 
is how they normally talk. How much effort was needed to be clearly understood by each other? 
Did you have to listen more carefully? Was this frustrating either to listen or try to talk? 
FUMBLE FINGERS: Divide into two teams. Tell players to untie their shoelaces. Then tell 
them to put one hand behind their back. On signal, all players try to tie their shoelaces, using 
only one hand. Discuss with the players how they felt. Did they feel clumsy? Did it take longer 
to perform this simple task? Did they feel frustrated doing this simple task they normally find 
very easy to do? 







Walk In My Shoes  March 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note:  All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Cub Scout Promise in Sign Language Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 5-10 


 Ethics in Action Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) chap 11 
 Disabilities Awareness Day Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 6-14 
 Cub Scouts with Special Needs Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) chap 7 
 Fellers (Family) Cake Bake Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 9-51, 


(rev.2002) pg 6-21 
 Blindfolded Cake Decorating 


Competition  


Ceremonies I will use my senses, Ripple Effect, 
Smile, Sportsmanship, Sticks, Ten 
needs of a boy, Yardstick 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 6-5, 6-6, 
6-7, 6-8 


Games Blindfolded Pole Walk The Best of Scout & Youth Games pg 19 
 Games for Disabled People Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-49 
 Smiles Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 3-35 


Applauses & 
Cheers Group Handshake Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 83 


 Partner, Personal Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 
Belt Loops & 


Pins 
Communicating, Language & 
Culture 


Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 
Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Webelos Communicator Webelos Book 


 Wolf Elective 1-It’s a Secret, 22-Say 
it Right Wolf Book 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Test Your Senses Activity 
 


Place a variety of white food items in 
several different canisters.  (i.e. 
powdered sugar, baking soda, flour, salt, 
sugar, cornstarch, etc.)  Use your senses 
(touch, taste, see, or smell) to guess the 
white substance.  This activity 
demonstrates our need to have and use 
many senses.  Some people may be 
handicapped in one way, but rely on 
other senses to compensate 


Aliens R Us  
(Tune: Far Away Places) 


By Carol S. Lord 
On far away planets, with strange sounding names, 
Far away, clear out in space, 
Alien creatures who look nothing like me 
Might think that I have a weird face. 
 
They might think I’m funny, with only two eyes, 
With my nose on my head and no beak, 
With skin that’s not purple, and toes on my feet, 
They’d think I was really a freak 
 
So better be careful when you meet someone new, 
Not to judge by their looks, that’s not bright! 
Just ‘cause they are different and don’t look like 
you 
Doesn’t mean you are better or right. 












Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


              ACTIVITY—LITTER PICK UP 
 
Have garbage bags available for people as they come.  Have them pick up 
the area around the building or meeting place.  Have treats/prizes for the 
people who pick up the most. This will also go toward earning the 
           conservation patches. 


PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 
Kennecott Copper Mine: One of the largest man made holes in the world. See how it became 
one of the greatest places to visit in Utah. A great place for boys to learn something about Utah 
and part of its mining history. 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities:  Speakers-park ranger, zoo worker, ecologist, astronomer, Wildlife specialist 


Indoor "nature" walk--listen, see, smell, feel 
Make pinecone or other birdfeeders 
Have Blue & Gold picnic at park and do service project 


 
Menu:  "Pollution" Pot Stickers  "Damaging" Dirt Pie 


"Conservation" Chow Mein  "Ozone Layer" Cake 
"Ecosystem" Egg Foo Young  "Burned Away" Brownies 


 
 


 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Plastic 
Recycle 
Conservation 
Trees 
Water 
Metal 
Tin Cans 
Garbage 
Electricity 
Cub Scouts 
Acid Rain 
Blue Skies 
Clouds 
Animals 


 
 
 


CONSERVATION WORD SEARCH  Find these words: 


P L A S T I C D E G K L G I E 
O A T C A V O N B G W O C P L 


  S   N   R   Z B S N A C N I T U F   E 
Q U B C L M S U D E V S B X C 
A M U M N T R E E S Z C C G R 
R A E B I L V D K F E J O J I 
B L S T M W A T E R G K U M C 
A C K B A Y T Z X Y I E T J I 
G K I D L L I K R K M I S L T 
E A E V S U O T I S J X G F Y 
W I S P K M N I A R D I C A E 
M J X M Z R B G F S T N W I O 
Y L O M Q N J A S D U O L C D 
N R E C Y C L E B U C V H P Q 


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 


S L A M I N A Y H T L A E H 
Q W N O I T A V R E S N O C 
A C I D R A I N Z E X D V B 
R E R P X Z W Q E O I U Y T 
T Z E X V B U R E C Y C L E 
Q M T W Z A T X V M P Z X C 
H E A L T H Y P E O P L E Q 
Z T W X Q W P C L O U D S W 
G A R B A G E K M A Z X B N 
Q L W Z X S T U O C S B U C 
B L U E S K I E S Y D T W Q 
Q W Z X P F H S N A C N I T 
E L E C T R I C T Y M X Z C 
 


CONSERVATION WORD SEARCH   
Find these words: 


PLASTIC 
RECYCLE 
CONSERVATION 
TREES 
WATER 
METAL 
TIN CANS 
GARBAGE 
ELECTRICITY 
CUB SCOUTS 
ACID RAIN 
BLUE SKIES 
CLOUDS 
HEALTHY ANIMALS 
HEALTHY PEOPLE 
 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Enlarge the elephant and copy 
it on card stock, color and hang 
on doorknobs to remind people 
to turn off the lights.  


CUB MASTER MINUTE--”THINGS AREN’T 
ALWAYS WHAT THEY SEEM TO BE” 


 
     The only survivor of a shipwreck was washed up 
on a small, uninhabited island. He prayed feverishly 
for God to rescue him, and every day he scanned the 
horizon for help, but none seemed forthcoming. 
     He eventually managed to build a little hut out of 
driftwood to protect him from the elements and to 
store his few possessions.  
But then one day, after scavenging for food on the 
other part of the island, he arrived home to find his 
little hut in flames, the smoke rolling up to the sky. 
The worst had happened; everything was lost. He 
was stunned with grief and anger. "God how could 
you do this to me!" he cried. 
     Early the next day, however, he was awakened by 
the sound of a ship that was approaching the island. 
It had come to rescue him.   
"How did you know I was here?" asked the relieved 
man of his rescuers.  
“We saw your smoke signal," they replied.    
     It is easy to get discouraged when things are 
going bad. But we shouldn’t lose heart, because God 
is at work in our lives, even in the midst of pain and 
suffering. Remember, next time 
 your little hut is burning to the 
 ground, it just may be a smoke 
signal that summons a rescue, so 
 always do your best and the best  
will come back to you. 


 


“A B C X Y Z “ OPENING CEREMONY 
A—Is for ACTION.  Take Action to keep the world around you at its best. Take 


no action that will mar the beauty or destroy plants, animals or atmosphere.  
B— Is for BEAUTY.  We are blessed with the beauty of nature all around us. Let 


us appreciate it. 
C—Is for CITIZENSHIP.  Practice good citizenship by caring about the 


appearance of your home, neighborhood, and hometown. 
X—“X” is the unknown factor that could happen if we don’t all work together to 


preserve our environment? 
Y— Is YOU!  It is up to you to set the example for others. 
Z—Is for ZEST—Recycle, reuse, and pick up litter with zest and enthusiasm.  
Walk hand in hand with Mother Nature. She will always be your friend. 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


                                              “FREE PRESS”--FLAG CEREMONY 
 


In the United States, newspapers can publish anything they want.  The 


government does not censor them.  Only 20 percent of the people in the 


world live in countries that have a free press.  In most countries the 


government controls, to some extent, what the paper may publish. Some 


governments own all of the newspapers.  In the United States newspaper 


readership is very high, second in the world.  For every 1,000 people 287 


newspapers are sold.  There have been times when newspaper reporters 


have discovered things that are wrong or illegal in government or private 


businesses and report it so it is stopped. Sometimes the things that are 


published in newspapers are offensive, sometimes slanted, and sometimes 


opinionated--- but it is all there for us to read and accept or reject.  Let us 


be grateful for the privilege we have of a free press. 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


AFFIRMATIONS     Eggs-cellent! 
Eggs-emplary!      You have egg-ceeded eggs-pectations! 


You have gone the egg-tra mile!   You are egg-ceptional! 


You are doing egg-traordinarily well!  You are a great eggs-ample! 


Your eggs-uberance is paying off!   It is egg-citing that you have done so much! 


No eggs-cuse can stand in your way!   You eggs-hibit great enthusiasm! 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 


CUBSERVATION CEREMONY 
 
It is really important that children grow up with a feeling of hope.  They must know that 
their actions can make their corner of the world a better place.  Have the boys do a 
service project, such as picking up trash in the neighborhood.  Take pictures or a video 
of them while they are working.  Then at pack meeting show the video or pictures with a 
slide show presentation while you play John Denver’s “Rhymes and Reasons” (leave off 
the first verse).  When you come to the just music part, have a boy read the following.  
Tape the music with the voice over ahead of time to make sure it comes out just right. 
 
I am just one quite small kid, 
I am only but a boy, 
Yet what I do can make a difference, 
My actions can bring pain or joy. 
 
I can bring a smile to friends 
With the smile upon my face. 
I can help to keep my world 
A clean and lovely, safer place. 
 


I’m only one, but I am one; 
When other people hear my voice, 
Some may come and join my quest  
If I make the better choice. 


 
(By Carol Shaw Lord) 


 
 
 


After the presentation the lights go up and the Cubmaster gives the awards. Cubmaster:  Yes 
boys, each of you is young and inexperienced.  But even in the choices you make now, you can 
bring misery or happiness to those around you.  With your work, enthusiasm and cooperation 
you can make your home and neighborhood a better place to live.  Whether you are cooperative 
and helpful, or quarrelsome and negative, it is up to you.   
 
Would the boys who helped us with our neighborhood clean up please come forward?  I am 
proud of these boys for getting in and working to make the neighborhood better.  Each of them 
has earned his World Conservation Award. 
 


GOOD EGG AWARDS 
 


Put each boy’s awards in a plastic egg and put the eggs in an Easter Basket.  Along with the 
awards put in an affirmation.  Write or tape each boy’s name on the outside of the egg.  Make a 
list to read from of what each boy has earned and his affirmation.  As you give each boy his egg, 
tell which awards he is receiving and read the affirmation. 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


            PING PONG BALL SHOOT OUT 
 


Fill several 2-liter bottles with water to weigh them down.  Place them 
on a flat surface. Put a ping-pong ball on top of each bottle. Have a 
contest to see how fast each Cub can shoot the ball off the bottle using a 
squirt gun. 


 
 


WATER ON THE BRAIN 
 
This is a fun game that can show the boys just how much fun they can 
have by using a very small amount of water. Take a very small container such as a thimble or the 
lid from a 2-liter bottle. Fill it fill of water. The leader will think of a topic such as colors. The 
leader thinks of a color and keeps it to himself.  He goes around to each player as each one 
names a color. When someone names the color that he was thinking of, the leader gets to throw 
the water from the small container on that person. The wet person gets to be the new leader and 
the game continues. Each new leader can choose a new topic.  Make certain the boys know what 
is coming and are all willing to get wet! 
 
 


NUGGETS IN THE BAG 
 
The den chief puts a certain number (known only to himself) of different sized rocks in a cloth 
drawstring Bag. He closes the Bag. Each boy is given the bag for 15 seconds. He examines it 
then passes it on to the next boy. When all the boys have had a chance to examine the Bag, it is 
returned to the den chief.  The boys then try to guess the number of rocks in the Bag. The boy 
who guesses the correct number (or closest to it) takes a turn putting the nuggets in the Bag. 
 
 
 


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


BEEN FISHING 
 


#1  Where have you been? 


#2  We’ve been fishing down at the Jordan River. 


#1  Really?  What kind of fish does it have in it?  


#2  I caught this Sole [sole of shoe] 


#3  I caught this Snapper  [rubber band, old girdle, or sling shot]  


#4  I caught this Shell fish  [Shell oil can] 


#5  I caught this Skate [roller skate] 


#6  [Enters with a long line out the door and tugging on it.]  


#1  Woo,  what have you got there? 


#6  Just an old Crab. [Pulls Cubmaster or other leader in with hook in seat of pants—make 


certain this is prearranged with the leader]. 


 


 


LITTER BUG LOU AND TIDY BUG TED 
 
My name is Litter Bug Lou,  
And, oh what us litterbugs do!   
We clutter the country with papers and trash,  
At making a mess, we’re really a smash.   
Too lazy to take our trash to a can, 
We drop cups and wrappers all over the land.  
The roadsides and parks are scenes of our folly, 
To see things cleaned up makes us melancholy.  
 
I’m Tidy Bug Ted, of the Tidy Bug Clan 
We work to keep everything spic and span.  
We pick up litter wherever we are, 
And always carry litterbags in our car. 
We’ll KO Lou and all of his band.  
Then America will be a beautiful land,  
Free of litter, trash, and clutter. 
The beauty we see makes our hearts flutter. 
 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 
Earth Eggs:  This is a fun way to decorate eggs with colors and 
patterns from nature.  
To make the dye--Gold: the skins of 6 yellow onions,  Blue: half a 
small red cabbage;  Brown: 6 sliced beets.  Add 2 Tablespoons of 
white vinegar and enough water to cover each ingredient. 
Prepare the eggs--Center a flower or leaf on a 4 x 4-inch square of 
nylon stocking. Pull the corners tightly around a raw egg and use a 
twisty-tie to close. Check to see that the flower or leaf stayed flat. 
Dying the eggs--Bring the water to a boil. Carefully lower egg into the water. Simmer the eggs 
for 30 minutes. Let the eggs and dyes cool in the pans. Take the eggs out of the dye, remove the 
nylon and leaves, and pat the eggs dry. Rub on a little salad oil to shine them. Keep the eggs in 
the refrigerator until you are ready to hide them or give them away. 


Pocket Sundial:  The sundial is the oldest scientific instrument still in use. As 
the sun moves across the sky, the shadows it casts change their positions. This 
particular sundial is called a Shepherd's Dial. 
1.  With a nail or awl, make a small hole in the center top of a 4" piece of 1-inch 
dowel and screw the screw eye into it 
2.  Hammer a 1-inch wire nail lightly into the dowel about 1/2 inch from the top. 
Drive the nail in only far enough to hold it firmly. 
3.  Wrap a copy of the sundial graph around your dowel, with the top touching the 
nail, and tape over the marked edge. Don't let the tape touch the dowel (the graph 
should rotate freely). 
4.  Push a thumbtack into the dowel near the bottom of the graph to keep it from 
sliding down the dowel. Be careful that it doesn't go through the graph. 
5.  Tie a short piece of string to the screw eye. 


6.  The letters on the bottom of the graph represent the months of the year. Turn the graph on the 
dowel until the letter for the current month is directly below the nail. Stand with your back to the 
sun and hold your dial up by the string. 
Slowly rotate the entire dial until the 
shadow of the nail points straight down. 
The shadow of the head of the nail will 
indicate the time on the graph. 
7.  Before your sundial will work properly 
it must be adjusted for your latitude.  Read 
the time on your sundial. Now, look at a 
clock and adjust the length of your nail 
until your dial reads the same time as the 
clock. Do this by slowly hammering the 
nail in until the dial reads correctly. 
Remember that during Daylight Savings 
you must add one hour to the reading to 
get the correct time. 
 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


TRICKY TUMBLER 
• square of paper (any size) 


       Fold paper in half.  Unfold.  Fold 
top corners in so the top edge lies along 
the center fold line, forming a point at 
the top.  Fold the top point down to meet 
the top corners on the middle line.  Fold 
the sides over so the edges meet the 
center fold line.  Press flat, then unfold.  
Fold the top edge down once more in 
line with the horizontal line where the 
top point ended up.  Fold the bottom 
corners up to meet the fold lines closest 
to them, forming small triangles.  Fold 
the bottom edge up so it lies along the 
top edges of the two triangles, forming a 
horizontal line across the paper.  The top 
and bottom should look the same.  Fold 
the sides back in to the middle line, then 
unfold so that they stand upright.  Stand 


tumbler up on a flat 
surface with the 
heavier side up.  
Gently push the top 
edge from the back 
and it will tumble 
forward.  Have your 


friend try, but set it upright with the 
heavy side down – it will just fall over, 
not tumble! 
 


APRIL SHOWERS TREE 
• paper plate • brown crayon • green 
washable marker • a rainy day •  
 Draw a 
tree trunk on the 
plate with brown 
crayon.  With 
green marker, 
make squiggly 
lines around the 
top of the trunk.  Hold the plate in the 
rain and watch the leaves grow. 


 
EASTER EGG MOSAIC 


• dyed Easter egg shells, broken into 
small pieces, colors separated • 


cardstock • newspaper • pencil • glue • 
 Lay newspaper down on work 
area.  Draw a simple shape on cardstock.  


Spread glue in the 
shape.  Sprinkle shell 
pieces onto glue, let 
dry and shake off 
excess.  Variation: 
Glue white shell pieces 
on shape, then lightly 
color with watercolor 
paint  


 
BASKET 


• cardstock • scissors • ruler • pencil • 
stapler • glue stick • 


 Cut 8” x 8” square from 
cardstock.  Measure and mark at 2” 


intervals along each 
side.  Lightly draw 
lines, dividing 
square into 16 
smaller, equal 
squares.  Cut each 
line from the edge 
to the first line that 
intersects it.  This 


will remove the corners.  Fold each 
remaining outside 
section along the 
line toward the 
center.  The four 
squares in the 
center should 
remain flat.  To 
form basket, overlap outside sections as 
indicated by arrows.  Glue.  Cut ¾” strip 
from cardstock for handle.  Staple onto 
opposite sides of basket.  Decorate with 
markers or stickers, as desired. 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 


Easter Egg Chick and Bunny 
 
* Materials:   


Plastic eggs, green craft foam, several different colors of craft foam, wiggly eyes, toilet 
paper tube, pencil, scissors, tacky glue, emery board or sandpaper 
* Directions:   


Cut a 1½-inch length of paper tube.  Cut a piece of green craft 
foam about 2 inches by long enough to fit around tube.  Cut zigzag 
pattern on one long side of craft foam to look like grass.  Glue around 
the tube.  Use a rubber band to hold it in place until the glue dries.  
Decorate grass with shapes (eggs, flowers, carrots) cut from craft foam.  
For chick: cut yellow wings and orange beak from foam.  For rabbit: 
cut rabbit ears, and triangle nose.  Sand area on plastic egg where parts 
will be so glue will stick.  Glue foam parts and wiggly eyes on.  To make animals stand up, place 
them in the grass stands. 
 
 
 


 
Paper Plate Basket 


* Materials:   
2 heavy-duty paper plates, scratch paper, ruler, pencil, scissors, paper punch, ¼” ribbon, 


stapler 
* Directions:   


Cut a circle out of scratch paper slightly smaller than plate.  Fold circle in half, then in 
half again, and again, and again (4 times total) so that circle is divided into 16 equal wedges.  
With circle folded, mark 1 ½” from each side of the center point.  Cut point off at markings.  


This should leave a 3” hole in the center.  Place paper circle centered on 
bottom of plate.  Trace center hole, then make a mark on each end of 
each fold line (inside hole and outside edge).  Connect marks with ruler, 
so the plate is divided from the rim to the circle into 16 equal sections.  
Make a circle about half way between the center circle and the outside 
rim of the plate.  Cut the straight lines from the rim of the plate to the 
center circle.  Fold each section in to the center along the center circle 
line, forming a basket.  Punch a hole in the center of each section on the 
half way circle line.  Thread ribbon through holes, making sections 
overlap each other.  Tie ends into a bow.  Cut ¾” strip from the center 
of second plate.  Staple ends on two opposite sections to form handle. 


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS  
 


SONG : “I LOVE THE MOUNTAINS”  
(This is a great song to sing as a “round”) 
 
I love the mountains, I love the rolling hills, 
I love the flowers, I love the daffodils, 
I love the fireside when the lights are low, 
Boom-de-ah-da, Boom-de-ah-da, 
Boom-de-ah-da, Boom-de-aye. 
Boom-de-ah-da, Boom-de-ah-da, 
Boom-de-ah-da, Boom-de-aye. 
 
 
SONG: “THERE’S A TREE IN THE MIDDLE OF THE WOODS” 
Tune: There’s a Hole in the Bottom of the Sea 
 
There’s a tree in the middle of the woods 
There’s a tree in the middle of the woods 
There’s a tree, there’s a tree 
There’s a tree in the middle of the woods. 
 
There’s a branch on the tree in the middle of the woods… 
There’s a nest on the twig… 
There’s a bird in the nest… 
There’s a wing on the bird… 
There’s a spider on the wing… 
There’s a flea on the spider on the wing on  
the bird in the nest on the twig on the branch on the tree in the middle of the woods. 
 
 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
RECYCLE:  Pick up an empty soda can, stomp on it and throw into a recycling can  
SMOKY THE BEAR: “Cough, cough, cough, Don’t play with matches!” 
SPRING: Jump up and down and say “boing, boing, boing.” 
LIFETIME OF A TREE:  Start as a seed, crouch on ground, then stretch out arms and slowly 
stand  to represent trunk and branches; sway with wind happily, shake fingers as you lose your 
leaves, shiver in cold during winter.  Say “oh, no! Timmmberrrrr.”  
RECYCLE 2: Pat yourself on the back several times. 
LITTERBUG:  Slap back of hand several times with a frown on 
your face. 
PICKING UP AFTER A LITTERBUG:  Spot some trash, pick it 
up and put in can, clap, slide hands together as though you are 
brushing them off and smile big. 
CLEAN UP SCHOOLYARD:  Pick up piece of paper and stuff it into bag, pick up another, 
examine and say, “This is the homework I lost yesterday, yeaaaaaaaa!” 


RUN ON FUN-- NUTS 
Help me, help me, they think 
I’m nuts! 
Who thinks your nuts? 
The squirrels. 


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
                    MORE RUN ON FUN 
 
1. What is the best kind of paper for making kites?  
2. Why is a joke like a coconut? 
3. Why did the Cub Scout stand on his head? 
4. I asked my mother for some new sneakers for  
      gym and what do you think she told me? 
5. Why does a hummingbird hum? 
6. When will a net hold water? 
7. What goes hoppity boom, hoppity boom? 
 
 


 
 
 
ANSWERS TO RUN ONS 
1. Fly paper 
2. It isn’t good until it’s cracked. 
3. His feet were tired.   
4. Have Jim get his own sneakers. 
5. It doesn’t know the words. 
6. When the water is frozen. 
7. The Easter Elephant. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MORE CHEERS: 
 
GARBAGE DISPOSAL:  Turn you face up, open mouth, make gurgling sound, swallow big. 
 
GARBAGE TRUCK:  Start with hands over head together, lower arms, open, clap, lift up, open 
and make sounds of compressing garbage. 
 
CLEAN UP PARK:  Pretend to be picking up stuff, examine one piece and exclaim, “A $20 
bill!!” 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 3 
 


PLASTIC BOTTLE STUNT 
 


Set out some 2-liter bottles filled with water and have group step over them without 
knocking them over.  Produce a blindfold and tell the group they now need to step over the 
bottles blindfolded.  Blindfold the first boy, take him to where the bottles were, and tell him to 
step as high as he can.  After he is blindfolded, have another person remove the bottles.  The 
stepper is stepping over nothing. 
Another version is have someone verbally guide the person through the obstacle course which is 
not there. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


THESE ARE NEW WORDS WE NEED TO ADD TO OUR AMERICAN LANGUAGE 
 
1. AQUADEXTROUS (ak wa deks'trus) adj. Possessing the ability to turn the bathtub tap on 


and off with your toes. 
 
2. CARPERPETUATION (kar'pur pet u a shun) n. The act, when vacuuming, of running over a 


string or a piece of lint at least a dozen times, reaching over and picking it up, examining it, 
then putting it back down to give the vacuum one more chance. 


 
3. PEPPIER (peph ee ay') n. The waiter at a fancy restaurant whose sole purpose seems to be 


walking around asking diners if they want fresh ground pepper. 
 
4. PHONESIA (fo nee' zhuh) n. The affliction of dialing a phone number and forgetting whom 


you were calling just as they answer. 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
April 25th National Zucchini Bread Day  
 
 
Edible Wild Flowers 
Let the boys use their imaginations to come up with “wild” flower ideas with lots of eat-appeal. 
 
sliced bananas 
sliced strawberries  
raspberries 
 
 
Put everything out in front of the boys and with minimal suggestions and helps, let them go wild 
creating a beautiful bouquet of  flowers.   Remind the boys they have to eat what they “pick.” 


 
Ladybugs On A Stick  
red grapes cut in half 
hulled strawberries 
mini chocolate chips 
toothpicks cut in half 
 
For each one, push 1/2 a red grape onto tooth pick half for the head.  Next push on a strawberry 
for the body and score down the back to create wings.  For spots, push mini chocolate chips, 
point side in, to the back of the lady bug. 
 
 
Portable Hot Dogs 
With high fire danger, small children and serious hunger NOW, These dogs are ready when you 
are. 
Before leaving home,  place fully cooked hot dogs in one or more wide mouthed 1-2 gallon sized 
thermal jugs (24 dogs will fit in 1 gallon). 
Pour enough boiling water to fill the jugs.  By the time you need them, the dogs will be steaming 
hot.  Bring tongs to lift out the hot dogs, as well as all the usual hot dog condiments. 
 
 
 
 
Fruit Chews Green Beans 
For each bean, cut a green Jolly Rancher or Starburst Fruit Chews candy into quarters. 
Microwave on paper towel for 7 seconds until slightly softened, then roll each piece between 
your palms to form a thin snake for the bean’s center.  For the outside of the bean, soften a whole 
chew in the microwave for 10 seconds.  Stretch and flatten it into an elongated oval and trim 
each end to a point with kitchen shears.  Place a bean center on the candy oval, then press 
together the edges of the outer bean. 


sliced kiwis 
shoestring licorice 
mint or other leaves 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


 
Make your own “PEEPS” bunnies 
 
Using scissors, make a diagonal cut in the upper left 
corner of the marshmallow (figure 1).   
 
Gently lift the corner and snip down the middle 
(figure 2).  Use your fingers to separate the ears and 
angle them outward.  From the point where the first 
cut was made, snip downward to the middle of the 
marshmallow to make the tail (figure 3).   
 
Pinch the cut end slightly to form a rounded tail.  
For the bunny’s face, make a 1/4 inch horizontal cut 
mid-way between the ears and the base of the 
marshmallow (figure 4)   
 
Then, create the front feet by making a diagonal cut 
in the lower left corner of the marshmallow  (figure 5). 
 
Divide the feet as shown.  Using a toothpick dipped in food coloring, draw on eyes, nose, and 
whiskers.  


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
 
 


OUTDOOR CODE 
 


As an American I will do my best to: 
Be clean in my outdoor manners, 


Be careful with fire, 
Be considerate in the outdoors, 


and 
Be conservation minded. 


 
 


Leader's Responsibilities: 
 


1. Making sure you have access to the "Learning and Teaching the 
Principles of LEAVE NO TRACE for outdoor adventures Cub 
Scouts".  A leader must understand and teach these principles, as well 
as set an example for the boys.  (This can be purchased at Scout 
shops.) 


2. Remember that it is up to you to keep track of the youth in your care 
when up at the Day Camps and to see that they follow these principles. 
The Day Camp Staff is there to only run the camps in a safe manner. 


3. When at the Day Camps please do not allow the boys to play 
anywhere else other than the designated locations.  The youth could 
seriously get hurt.  Ask where, don't assume. 


4. Have the boys memorize the above code, which is found in the 
"LEAVE NO TRACE" book. 


 
 
 


 
 


To get more information call1-800-332-4100 or go to the ‘Leave No Trace’ Home 
page @ www.lnt.org. 


 
 


 







Cubservation  April 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
THEME RESOURCES  


CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 
(Note:  Books at Scout Shop) 


Extra Ideas A Hiking We Will Go; Critters, Cubs & Campfires; 
Man’s Best Friend; Save It For Us; Happy Trails; 
Bugs and Things; See the Forest for the Trees; 
Pollution Solution; Trails, Treks and Tracks 


National Theme-July 2003, 
June 2002, March, April & 
May 2001, April & May 2000, 
April & June 1999 


 
Nature and Outdoor Activity Ideas, Conservation 
Day Ideas 


Cub Scout How To Book 
(rev.1999) chap 8 or 
(rev.2002) chap 4, (rev.2002) 
pg 6-12 


Ceremonies Hike Preparation, Living Circle, Mountain 
Climbing Closing Thought, Garden Ceremoies 


Ceremonies for Dens and 
Packs pg 2-3, 2-5, 5-8 


 Apple Seeds, Bird Nest, Bird Watchers, Compass, 
Create or Destroy, One Candle, Nature Visitors, 
Ripple Effect, Sky is the Limit, Stars, Sticks, Trees 
& World Globe Closing Ceremonies 


Ceremonies for Dens and 
Packs pg 5-8, chap 6 


 Mountain Climbing, Top of the Mountain, Four 
Winds & Colors of the Wind Advancement & 
Graduation Ceremonies 


Ceremonies for Dens and 
Packs pg 8-5, 8-12 & 9-4 


 World Conservation Award Ceremony, Outdoor 
and Campfire Ceremonies 


Ceremonies for Dens and 
Packs pg 10-4, chap 11 


Stories 
 “The Three Trees” & “The Gift of Trees” 


Cub Scout How To Book 
(rev.1999) pg 6-5, 6-15 or 
(rev.2002) pg 5-1, 5-44 


Applauses & 
Cheers 


Bird watcher, big rainstorm, hikers, mosquito, map, 
owl, rainstorm, rain, swat the fly, thunder, wolf 


All the Applauses We Could 
Find (alphabetical) 


 Good turn, mosquito, map, disco mosquito Crazy Cory’s pg 91, 92, 95, 96 


 Babbling brook, bird watcher, disco mosquito, 
echo, map, mosquito, owl, rainstorm, thunderous 


Need a Cheer? Find it Here! 
(alphabetical) 


Belt Loops & 
Pins Map & Compass, Weather, Wildlife Conservation  Cub Scout Academic and 


Sports Program Guide 
Patches Museum of Natural History, Leave No Trace, 


Conservation Good Turn, Cub Scout World 
Conservation Award 


Great Salt Lake Council Cub 
Scout Awards, Activity 
Patches, and Policies Pamphlet 


Cub 
Requirements 


Webelos Forester, Geologist, Naturalist, 
Outdoorsman Webelos Book 


 Bear Achievement 5-Sharing your World with 
Wildlife, 6-Take Care of your Planet, 12-Family 
Outdoor Adventure 


Bear Book 


 Bear Elective 2-Weather, 12-Nature Crafts, 14-
Landscaping, 15-Water and Soil Conservation Bear Book 


 Wolf Achievement 7-Your Living World, 10B-Plan 
a Walk with family  Wolf Book 


 Wolf Elective 13- Birds, 15-Grow Something, 18-
Outdoor Adventure, 19-Fishing Wolf Book 


 












My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

 Main Table of Contents







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 
Cub Zoo Trail:  So where can you go to see all those animals that may have been in that big old 
ark that Noah built? Try our own Hogle Zoo! A great place to take Cubs on an activity or go as a 
family. 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: Speakers-elected state or local official, Daughters or Sons of 


the Utah Pioneers, historian, "long time" resident 
Pioneer games 
Life-size Utah monopoly 
Picture match of local landmarks 


 
Menu:  "Sego Lilly" Stir Fry   "Ute" Upside Down Cake 


"Brigham Young" Baked Beans "Cougar" Chocolate Chip Cookies 
"Seagull" Sloppy Joes   "Aggie" Apple Pie 


 
 


 
GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


NAME THE MONUMENT 
Find pictures of monuments in 
your state.  Display for all to see.  
Have the families guess what they 
are. 


DO YOU KNOW? 
1. The state animal ___________________ 
2. The state bird _____________________ 
3. The state cooking pot _______________ 
4. The state emblem  __________________ 
5. The state fish ______________________ 
6. The state flower ____________________ 
7. The state folk dance _________________ 
8. The state fossil _____________________ 
9. The state fruit ______________________ 
10. The state gem ______________________ 
11. The state rock ______________________ 
12. The state insect _____________________ 
13. The state mineral ____________________ 
14. The state vegetable __________________ 
15. The state tree _______________________ 
16. The state grass ______________________ 
17. The state motto _____________________ 
18. The state song ______________________ 


Answers:  1 Rocky mountain elk 
2.  California Seagull 3. Dutch 
oven  4. Beehive  5.  Bonneville 
Cutthroat trout 6. Sego Lily  7. 
Square Dance  8. Allosaurus  9. 
Cherry  10. Topaz  11. Coal  12. 
Honey bee  13 Copper  14. 
Sweet onion  15. Blue Spruce  
16. Indian Rice grass  17. 
Industry  18. “Utah, This is the 
place”, by Sam and Gary Francis. 
For more information, go to Utah 
State Song on the internet and 
find out it was changed from 
“Utah, We love Thee” on Feb. 28, 
2003. 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 


“UTAH” OPENING CEREMONY 
 


All:  In my state we have: 
#1   U   The Uintas, Utes,  uranium, and we are an upbeat utopian.   
#2   T   Timpanogos, trappers, temples, turkeys, table salt, train meeting 


from east to west, tyrannosaurus bones, we have technical 
geniuses and the television inventor.  We are temperate and 
theological.  


#3   A   Apples, apricots, antelopes, many academic colleges, 
athletes, artists, April conference, and Apostles.  Appetites for 
casseroles, green Jell-O salads, ice cream and church dinners. 


#4  H  Honey bees, handcarts, a huge salty lake, a harmonizing choir, hieroglyphics, and many 
hobbies and handicraft.  We harvest hay, pie cherries, peaches, and hams.  We are 
known for being happy, helpful, and holding the best Winter Olympics ever. 


All:  This is truly the greatest place on earth!   
 
 
 
 
 
 


BROKEN WATER JUG 
  
     100 years ago a family lived in the St. George area.  Water had to be carried from the creek 
everyday for the family’s use.  Two large pots were suspended across the carriers back on a stout 
stick. One of the pots had a crack in it, while the other pot was perfect and always delivered a 
full portion of water. At the end of the long walk from the stream to the house, the cracked pot 
arrived only half full.   
     All summer this went on daily, with the bearer delivering only one and a half pots 
full of water to his house. Of course, the perfect pot was proud of its 
accomplishments, but the poor cracked pot was ashamed of its imperfection, and 
miserable that it was able to accomplish only half of what it had been made to 
do.   
     Finally it could bear it no longer and said to the bearer, "I am ashamed of 
myself, and I want to apologize to you. I have been able to deliver only half my load because this 
crack in my side causes water to leak out all the way back to your house.  Because of my flaws, 
you have to do all of this work, and you don't get full value from your efforts.”   
     The bearer said to the pot, "Did you notice that there were flowers only on your side of the 
path? That's because I have known about your flaw, and I planted flower seeds, and every day 
while we walk back, you've watered them.  I have been able to have these beautiful flowers to 
enjoy. Without you being just the way you are, there would not be this beauty for us all to look 
at" 
    It's the cracks and flaws we each have that make our lives together so very interesting and 
rewarding. Take each person for what they are, and look for the good in them.  
 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 


FLAG CEREMONY 
“I LOVE THIS GREAT AMERICA” 


(Tune: Battle Hymn of the Republic) 
 


1.  I love this great America the land that God has blessed, 
Where the hope that stirs the hearts of men will never be 
suppressed. 
Through the flame of faith came forth a nation choice above the 
rest.  
       This great America! 
 
Chorus  
Glory to the land of freedom,  
Glory to the land of freedom. 
Glory to the land of freedom, I love America. 
 
2.  I love this great America the land of liberty 
For I know the price of freedom countless others paid for me, 
Do we hear their call to carry on and serve as valiantly?     
       This great America! 
 
3.  America stands far freedom and America stands for good. 
As we live in this great land we will love her just as we should, 
Our eyes do tear from battles fought for freedom for us all 
We love the Flag and this great land, it's freedom for us all. 
 
4.  May we all be united by the bonds of brotherhood. 
May we learn to love each other for in every soul is good. 
Let us live in peace upon the land where people of valor stood.       
This great America!  







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
My Home State Ceremony 


 
Prepare slide presentation using pictures of these or other Home State Heroes as well as Cub 
Scout(s) celebrating advancement.  Use background music with boys’ voices reading ceremony 
text.  An appropriate song would be “Utah, This is the Place”, the new Utah State Song. 
(Information from:http://pioneer.utah.gov/newsong.html) 
 


I was born February 20, 1890 in Parowan, Utah.  I lived on a farm and I loved 
everything about “high plains country living” except going to school.  In fact, I 
dropped out of school in the 8th grade.  Then, when I was 18, I met Professor 
Thomas Trueblood, a Native American.  I told him about my hopes and dreams.  
He told me that I could do anything I wanted to, but only if I first got an 
education.  He changed my life.  I decided to go back to school.  It was at school 


that I realized that I wanted to participate in track and field sports.  My name is Alma Richards.  I 
was the first person from Utah to win an Olympic Gold Medal in any sport.   
(Information & picture by permission: http://magazine.byu.edu/bym/1996/96august/s-richards.html, and 
http://www.cougarclub.com/) 


 
I was born on August 19, 1906 in Indian Springs, Utah.  My life was like most 
kids of the pioneer west.  Life was strenuous and we worked hard to survive.  I 
was a good older brother and my father valued my hard work, but I was only an 
average student.  As a young boy I began to notice the amazing machines of 
those days.  Machines like the telephone and light bulbs.  I was full of 
enthusiasm and questions.  My father took the time to explain to me these 


creations and told me of the people who “dedicated their lives to such innovations”.  I decided 
then that I wanted to be an inventor. My name is Philo Taylor Farnsworth.  I invented the 
television.  I am also an Eagle Scout. 
(Information & picture by permission: http://philotfarnsworth.com/) 
 


I was born in Richfield, Utah on October 12, 1932.  “My father was a pilot in 
World War I, so I grew up with flying and always wanted to be a pilot.  As a 
matter of fact, my father didn't care if I was a bum or not, as long as I was a 
pilot.  So I was a kid who built every model airplane and followed Buck Rogers 
through all his adventures.”  When I grew up “I was a private pilot, then a 
Navy pilot”, and then a pilot with the Air Guard. My name is Edwin Jacob 
“Jake” Garn.  I flew on the landmark flight for the Space Shuttle Discovery and 


became the first member of congress to go into space. 
(Information & picture by permission: http://www.jsc.nasa.gov/ and Thiokol Pamphlet, Wasatch 
Operations referenced at http://www.slcc.edu/schools/hum_sci/physics/whatis/biography/garn.html)  


 
I was born (enter birth place and date, this can be specific or general).  I am 
another ordinary boy with extraordinary hopes and dreams.  I can do and 
become anything, and who knows what my future will be?  Right now I am 
working on making small goals and I am having success.  My name is 
_________.  Tonight I am celebrating my ________ advancement in the Cub 
Scouts. 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


WHO’S IN YOUR COUNTY SEAT? 
 
What you will need: 
• Go to www.historyforkids.utah.gov (Search Utah.gov) 
• This has a map of Utah with all counties and their county 


seats. 
• Print the map or the individual counties, 2 each for 2 teams 
• 2 walls, chalkboards or whatever. 
• Tape 
• Small piece of paper with the name of the county seat on it. 


To play, each team has a whole state all cut up and names of each county seat. Each team races 
to place Utah back together in the right order with the right county seat. First team to complete 
Utah wins. 
 
 


MY TOWN HAS TREASURE! 
 


• A little research 
• 2 or 3 teams (or more depending on the size of the group)  
• Parents and cars 
• Different color for each team 
• A treasure map of historic sites in your town 
• Treasures to put at each site (candy or toys) for each team. (Small bit of information on 


the place to read) 
To Play: Give each team the treasure map. (I would have them go to different places, instead of 
all at the same place at once). Everyone wins treasure and knowledge. 
 
 


HANDCART OR COVERED WAGON 
 
What you need.  
• Cardboard box big enough for cub to get inside and walk 
• Poster board 
• Crayons or marker, to decorate 
• Tape 
To Play: Have each cub construct his own handcart or covered wagon.      
Get inside, go from point A to B, with stops along the way. 
 


Water Stop  (Get a Drink of water) 
Fire Stop (Eat a Cinnamon Bear) 
Food Stop  (Eat a Cracker) 
Fun Stop  (Get out of handcart or wagon. Jump up and down 3 times, get hack in) 


 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


A UTE INDIAN COMMUNICATING 
 
A person, with a blanket around his shoulders, is sitting on floor and beating 
on a tom-tom or signaling with a smoking fire.  The others are across the 
stage interpreting what is being signaled. 
 
 [Indian beats out message  or signals with smoke] 


#1  Running Deer says that a meeting of the tribe will be held tonight.  


 [All nod]  [Indian beats out another message or signals with smoke] 


#2  He says that many awards will be given at the meeting.   


[All nod] 


[Indian beats out another message or signals with smoke] 


#3  He says that a brave has advanced to the Arrow of 


Light.  [All nod ] 


[Indian beats out another message or signals with 


smoke] 


#4  He says there will be singing and games at the meeting 


 [All nod, happily] 


 [Indian beats out another message or signals with smoke.  Everyone shakes their heads as 
though they don’t understand. Beats out another message.  Again they don’t understand.  Beats 
out for the third time—finally] 


 
#5  I’ve got it.  Running Deer says to telephone him if there is anything we  


   want him to bring to the meeting. 


All—nod in understanding, some pull out Cell phones and put them to their ears.  







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 
 


AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION STORY 
 
KEN—“Bear leader!” 
CLAIR—“Guide leader!” 
SCOUT---  “Do your best!” 
 


KEN Ekker was a Cub SCOUT  Bear Den Leader.  


KEN was also a computer whiz.   


He was one of the first to get an e-mail address and 


encouraged others to get one too. He discovered that there were many SCOUTING sites. 


Sometimes he would communicate with someone and then find out he or she lived in a 


foreign country. Soon he was corresponding with other SCOUTERS all over the world. He 


discovered a SCOUTER in England.  Her name was CLAIR and she was a SCOUT Leader for 8 


& 9-year-old boys and girls.  In England they are called Guides. They called themselves the 


Cellar Dwellers, because they met in the basement of an old church.  


After KEN and CLAIR had corresponded for a while, CLAIR told KEN that she had 


always wanted to come and visit America.  KEN invited her over, and soon CLAIR arrived at 


Salt Lake International Airport..  KEN, and his wife, Lee, had CLAIR stay at their house and 


took her all over to show her the tourist spots.  


Utah has a completely different look and feel than England has.  She was amazed at the 


mountains and canyons, the desert, the Great Salt Lake, and how few people there were in such a 


large area.  She was surprised that she could visit three SCOUT 


shops for three different districts within 90 miles. Everyone was 


so friendly and kind to her that CLAIR loved it in Utah.  When 


she left, she invited KEN & Lee to come to England where she 


could show them the sites. 


 
By Val Chatwin  







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


 
 
MOSAIC PICTURE OF UTAH 
 
Materials: 


Colored Mosaic Stones, Beads. Beans or Macaroni 
Cardboard cut into shape of Utah 
Ribbon or string (heavy) 
Glue 


 
Using blue or blue-green stones to fill in the Great Salt Lake and Utah Lake. Use color of choice 
to write out the word Utah. Use yellow or yellow-orange to fill in the rest of Utah. Tacky glue or 
Elmer’s glue will hold stones or items in place. Use Tacky Glue or hot glue to put on a piece of 
ribbon or string on back to use as a hanger. 
 
 
DELICATE ARCH 
 
Materials 


Play dough or clay 
Acrylic paint or food coloring 
Square piece of cardboard 
Popsicle sticks 


 
Delicate Arch is one of the best-known sites in Utah. Making this will be fun. While making the 
arch, tell the boys some of its history, such as when it was discovered, by whom, and where it 
can be located. It can be a learning experience for all. Use a popsicle stick to help create the 
designs in the arch. 
 
 
SAND ART SEA GULL 
 
Materials: 


Colored sands or salts: (black, white, yellow, gray) 
Glue 
Board or Cardboard (5x7 or 8x10) 


 
Draw out your design onto the board or cardboard. You’ll be doing sections at a time. Start with 
the white first. Brush on glue then sprinkle on sand. Press it into the glue. Shake off excess. Next 
do the yellow for the beak and legs. Shake off excess. Use gray just above the ends of side 
wings. Use the black for eye, tip of wings, and outline of Sea Gull. (Note: Utah’s state bird is 
actually the California Gull.  That’s all right, because the state tree is the Colorado Blue 
Spruce.) 


 


 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


QUILT MAGNET 
• small woodsies – squares & triangles • 
thin cardboard • paint or paint markers • 


craft glue• adhesive backed magnet • 
Arrange woodsies 


to resemble a quilt block. 
Cut a piece of cardboard 
the size of assembled 


pieces.  Paint pieces as desired.  Glue to 
cardboard.  Stick magnet on back. 
 


BUG MAGNET MAZE 
• cereal box • green paper • green craft foam 
• scissors• pencil • glue • small plastic bug • 
small washer • paint paddle • ½” round 
magnet • 
 Spread glue on the insides of the box 
flaps and turn them to the inside of the box.  
Cover box with green paper.  Draw lines on 
top of box where maze will go.  Cut ½” 
strips of green foam with a  jagged edge on 
one side to simulate grass.  Trace over 
pencil lines with thick craft glue.  Cut strips 
to fit and place on glue lines. Glue washer to 
bottom of bug.  Glue magnet to one end of 
paint paddle.  
When glue 
is dry, move 
bug by 
moving the magnet on the underside of the 
maze inside the box. 
 


MOM’S DAY MITT 
• plain colored oven mitt or hot pad • pencil 


• fabric paint •  
 Lightly draw 
picture or design on 
back of oven mitt.  
Decorate with fabric 
paint. 
 


 
SUNCATCHER 


• 2 paper plates • crayon shavings • 
waxed paper • scissors • string • iron • 
glue • paper towels • newspaper • 
 Cut the centers of the plates out, 
leaving the rims.  Cut two pieces of waxed 
paper a little bit larger than the opening in 
the plates.  Place a 
section of newspaper 
down with a paper towel 
on top.  Place one circle 
of waxed paper on paper 
towel.  Make a picture or 
design with crayon 
shavings, cover with second circle.  Cover 
circle with paper towels and press with 
warm iron until crayon is melted.  Put glue 
inside one plate rim, center wax paper 
inside, then put other rim on top, first 
placing a string hanger between the layers. 
 


MEMORIAL DAY CRAFT 
• empty pop can • craft glue • rubber bands • 
craft sticks • paint • clear acrylic spray • 
plaster or gravel • glue gun • artificial 
flowers • 4 x 6 American Flag •  
 Glue craft sticks around can.  Use 
rubber bands to help hold them until the glue 


dries.  When dry, 
paint sticks as 
desired then spray 
with clear acrylic.  
Fill can about 1/3 
full of plaster or 
gravel.  Place flag 
through hole in can.  
Glue flowers on top 
of can with hot 
glue. 


 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY & SEASONAL CRAFTS 2 
 
 
 


Butterfly or Dragonfly Garden Stake  
 
 
* Materials:  


11x17 paper, scissors, wire window screen, 


cutters, paint markers or dimensional paints, plastic 


beads for eyes, plant stake with round hook at the top, 


lightweight steel wire, newspaper for work surface 


* Directions:   


Make a pattern by folding an 11x17-inch sheet of 


paper in half.  Draw half the body and a butterfly wing along the folded edge.  Cut the drawing 


out and unfold the pattern.  Lay the pattern on the window screen.  Trace around the paper with a 


paint marker.  Cut the butterfly out of the screen.  Lay the screen butterfly on newspapers and 


decorate it with paint.  Let dry.  Bend the body in half.  Punch two holes in the center of the 


body.  Thread stake through the holes.  For antenna, cut a 7-inch piece of wire, fold it in half, and 


thread through the head.  Curl ends.  For eyes, attach beads using short pieces of thin wire.  For 


dragonfly, make pattern and repeat above steps. 


* Tips and Ideas:   


Hang a string from the insect’s head and use as a mobile.   Think of other insects to make. 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS  
 
 


SONG : TAKE ME OUT TO THE PACK MEETING 
            Tune: Take Me Out to the Ball Game. 
 
Take me out to the Pack Meeting 
Take me out to the field 
Let’s have some fun and some good old cheers,  
Lets sing a song that will ring in our ears. 
And it’s root, root, root for the Cub Scouts 
They’re the best that can be. 
So come on out to the field,  
And you’ll see what we mean. 
 


SONG: I’M PROUD TO BE A CUB SCOUT 
       Tune: God Bless the USA 
 
By repeating the Cub Scout Promise 
We agree to do our best 
Do our duty to God and Country 
We are put to the big test 
To help other people 
To obey the Law of the Pack 
We are always trying to do what’s right 
There is no turning back. 
 
I’m proud to be a Cub Scout 
 In a land of liberty 
Where I’m taught about my country’s needs.  
And how to remain free 
I’m taught about the strength  
Of god, my home and family 
I’m taught that I am really great 
Cub Scouting’s here to stay.   


 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 


 
UTAH: Clap three timse, yell “Utah, Utah.” Clap three times, yell “You are the greatest,” clap 
three times.  Repeat three times.  
BEE:  Put arms straight out and pretend to fly, saying “Bzzz, bzzz.”  
GIANT BEEHIVE: Tell the group to buzz like a bee.  When your hand is raised, 
the volume increases.  When you lower your hand, the volume decreases. 
GREEN JELLO: Put it on your plate, jiggle it and watch it quiver, then slurp it 
all up. 
ARCHES, BRYCE & ZION CHEER:  Say, “Large, spectacular, colorful, amazing, wonderful, 
marvelous!” 


 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 


YOU MIGHT BE LIVING IN UTAH IF:  


1. You live on Redwood Road, but there are no Redwood Trees. 


2. Schools stay open, even if two feet of snow falls 


overnight, but close for the opening of hunting 


season.  


3 The most popular public transportation system is a 


ski lift (or in St. George, a golf cart). 


4 In-state college football rivalries are bigger than 


the Super Bowl.  


5 There is a town spelled Tooele that is pronounced ‘two-ill-a’ and the Oquirrh Mountains 


are called ‘oak- ker’. 


6 Every driveway has an 8-passenger SUV and a pickup. 


7 Ninety percent of the population was born in California. 


8 Every back yard has at least one fruit tree and everyone grows a few tomatoes 


9 More movies and TV shows are filmed in your town than in Hollywood. 


10 The July 4th celebration lasts 20 days. 


 


  
 
 
MORE CHEERS 
 
GREAT SALT LAKE: Pretend to go swimming there.  As 
you get in water, it is cold, so say “Ouch, ouch, ouch!”  Then 
float along without sinking, and say “Ahhhhh!”  
 
OLYMPICS: The best winter Olympics anyone ever had. 
Everyone pat yourselves on the back. 
 
BIG COTTONWOOD CANYON SKIING:  Put on skies, 
ride up lift, take off, straight down, fall with a huge clap and 
slide down the mountain in a tangle of skies, bindings, arms, 
and legs. Get up unhurt and say, “That was fun!” 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
May 10 - Eat What You Want Day 
May 17-27 - National Pickle Week  
 
Awesome Onion Rings 
These are low fat and delicious! 
 
3 medium or 2 large yellow or sweet onions 
1 cup flour 
1 cup non-alcoholic beer (for leavening) 
1/4 teaspoon cayenne pepper (optional) 
1/2 teaspoon seasoning salt 
1/4 teaspoon freshly ground black pepper 
2 egg whites beaten to soft peaks 
1 bag of herb seasoned croutons (crushed or 
processed into 2 cups of fine crumbs) 
2 tablespoons canola oil 
Canola cooking spray 
 
 
 
Heat oven to 450 degrees.  Cut the onions 
into 1/2” thick slices and separate them into 
rings.  Reserve the smallest inner rings for 
another recipe.   
 
In a large deep bowl, combine the flour, 
beer, cayenne pepper, seasoning salt, and 
black pepper and whisk together.  Gently 
fold in the egg whites; the batter should be 
light and fluffy.  Spread the crouton crumbs 
in a shallow bowl.  Coat 2 baking sheets 
with 1 tablespoon of canola oil each.  Hook 
an onion ring on your finger and dip it into 
the batter, shaking off the excess.  Then dip 
it in the crouton crumbs and shake off the 
excess.  Place the ring on one of the 
prepared sheets.  Repeat with the remaining 
onions and batter, placing smaller rings 
inside larger ones to make use of every inch 
of pan.  Spray the tops generously with 
canola cooking spray.  Bake for 18-20 
minutes, flipping after 10 minutes, until 
lightly browned.  Makes 8 servings. 
 


Jell-O 
As we are in Utah, never forget Green Jell-O 
with Carrots!!!!!!  Jigglers are also fun to 
make.  Follow the recipe on the gelatin box 
and have the boys take small cookie cutters 
and cut out their own snack. 
  
Fried Scones 
Another Utah favorite is fried scones.  
Nearly any bread dough recipe will work, 
and frozen bread or roll dough makes it 
especially easy.  (Frozen roll dough is 
already portioned for the boys.)  While 
heating 1 to 1-1/2 inches of vegetable oil in 
a heavy skillet or dutch oven, have the boys 
flatten their dough ball (about a 2” ball per 
boy) on a piece of waxed paper with a little 
flour on it to prevent sticking.  The thinner 
the dough the better.  When a small pinch of 
dough is dropped into the oil, it should 
immediately start to bubble and pop to the 
top.  Slide bread dough, one at a time, 
carefully into the hot oil.  When the edges 
just start to turn golden, flip the scone over 
using a long handled fork.  When golden all 
over, remove from hot oil and drain on a 
paper towel.  Top with butter and honey or 
powdered sugar.  
 
 
Strawberry Treasures 
Strawberries, washed and hulled 
Cream cheese, softened 
Chocolate chips 
 
Hull the strawberries (if you let the boys do 
this, let them use serrated plastic knives) and 
slice length-wise.  Spread each half of 
strawberry with cream cheese, place a 
chocolate chip in the center and press the 
two halves together. 







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
 
COMPUTER GAME—MY HOME STATE 
 
Choose trivia questions about your state.  Select two answers for your 
question, of which just one is correct.  
 
TOP VIEW OF COMPUTER PAPER BOX: 
 
1ST Column—the questions 2nd & 3rd columns contain the correct answers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INSIDE VIEW OF COMPUTER PAPER BOX 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


First name       
Flower        
Tree        
Bird        
Capital        
Motto        
Nickname       
Named after       
Counties       
Tallest Peak       
Statehood date      
Statehood #       
Area        


Salt Lake City       
Twin Peaks       
July 24, 1896       
Jan. 4, 1896       
46         
29        
90,904        
Sego Lily       
Industrial State      
Pinyon Pine       
Ute Indians       
Blue Spruce       
Do Your Best       


Columbine       
Seagull       
27        
Kings Peak       
Piute Indians       
Deseret       
84,904 Sq. Miles   
Beehive State       
Navajo Territory   
45        
Peregrine Falcon   
Industry       
Fillmore       


connect
wires  to  bolts
in  the  1st
column
(  the  questions  )
with  one  of
the  bolts  in
the  2nd  or  3rd
column
(  the  correct
(  answers  ).


To  complete  circuit,  touch  the  end  of  one  nail
to  question  bolt,  and  the  other  nail  to
an  answer  bolt.     If  correct,  the  buzzer


            will  buzz.


nut


bolt


18  gauge  wire


lid  of
computer
paper  boxbattery


nail


buzzer


computer
  paper
    boxnail







My Home State  May 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Circle the Wagons, Our Native 


Peoples, Hometown Heroes, Cliff 
Dwellers of the South West  


National Theme – August 2003, February 
2002, November 2001, April 1998 


 Fall Farm Frolic Ideas, Western 
Festival Ideas, Western Rodeo 
Roundup & Pioneer Day Ideas 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 9-
26, 9-28, (rev.2002) 6-23 


 *Wonderful Ideas!* Fun Field Trip Ideas Pamphlet 
 Theme Craft Ideas, Skits & Costume 


Ideas 
Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 3 
or (rev.2002) 2-5, (rev.1999) sect 4 


Ceremonies My Flag Ceremony & Patriotic Song 
Endings, Duties as a Citizen, Our flag, 
My backyard, Neighborhood, I am 
your flag Ceremonies, Wagon Train 
Advancement Ceremony 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 2-5, 5-
3, 5-5, 5-8, 5-9, 6-4, 8-7 


Patches America my Home, Hometown 
Discovery, Historical & Pioneer Walk, 
Fort Douglas, Wheeler Historic Farm 
Walk, Kennecott’s Bingham Canyon 
Mine Tour, Benson Gristmill, This is 
the Place Heritage Park, Cub Zoo Trail, 
Utah State Fair 


Great Salt Lake Council Cub Scout 
Awards, Activity Patches, and Policies 
Pamphlet 


Belt Loops & 
Pins Citizenship & Heritages  Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 


Guide 
Cub 


Requirements Webelos Traveler & Citizen Webelos Book 


 
Bear Achievement 1-Ways We 
Worship, 2-Emblems of Faith, 3-What 
Makes America Special, 10-Family 
Fun, 12-Family Outdoor Adventure 


Bear Book 


 Bear Elective 16-Farm Animals, 23-
Maps, 24-Native American Life Bear Book 


 Wolf Achievement 2-Your Flag, 10-
Family Fun, 11-Duty to God Wolf Book 


 Wolf Elective 10-Native American 
Lore Wolf Book 


 
Current Utah State Symbols  


 
Animal: Rocky Mountain Elk, Bird: California Seagull, Cooking Pot: Dutch Oven, Emblem: 
Beehive, Fish: Bonneville Cutthroat Trout, Flag: State Flag & Seal, Flower: Sego Lily, Folk 
Dance: Square Dance, Fossil: Allosaurus, Fruit: Cherry, Gem: Topaz, Grass: Indian Rice 
Grass, Insect: Honey Bee, Mineral: Copper, Motto: "Industry", Rock: Coal, Song: "Utah, This 
Is The Place”, Hymn: "Utah We Love Thee", Star: Dubhe, Tartan: Utah State Tartan, Tree: 
Blue Spruce, Vegetable: Spanish Sweet Onion, Historic Vegetable: Sugar Beet  (Information 
from:  http://www.utah.gov) 












Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


1             _ _ _     
2           _ _ _ _ _    
3       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _    
4           _ _ _      
5            _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 
6      _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 
7         _ _ _ _ _ _     
8           _ _ _      
9            _ _ _ _    


10         _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   
11 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _     


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Crime Prevention: Time to take a bite out of crime. Learn about your city and community. 
Participate with your family, den, park or friend in a crime prevention project. Discuss how 
crime prevention relates to your family. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: Speakers—paleontologist, archeologist, geologist, scientist 
  Dinosaur balloon stomp 
  Pre-historic skits 
 
Menu:  "Petrified" Pot Pie   "Fossil" Fudge 


"Stone" Soup    "Prehistoric" Peanut Butter Bars 
"Cavemen" Chicken Strips  "Volcanic" Hot Fudge Cake 


 
 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 


WHAT DINOSAUR AM I? 
 


Write names of dinosaurs on strips of paper.  Tape strips of paper on backs of 
each person as they arrive at pack meeting.  Tell them to find out what dinosaur 
they are by only asking other people yes or no questions. 
 


FIND THE DINOSAUR 
 
Directions:  Place the answers on the lines below.  Then, read the letters in the box to find the 
name of a famous Egyptian dinosaur. 
 
1.  Center of the solar system 
2.  What being in cubs makes you 
3.  A person who studies rocks. 
4.  What we have at Cub Scouts 
5.  Dinosaur bones in the earth 
6.  Large, long-necked dinosaur 
7.  Location of Utah’s Dinosaur land 
8.  We can’t have Cub Scouts without… 
9.  Large, meat eating dinosaur 
10. It sucked dinosaur blood & ours 
11. Someone who digs up fossils 
 
 
Answers:  1) sun 2) happy 3) geologist  4) fun 5) fossils 6) Brachiosaurus 7) Vernal 8) you     9) T-Rex  
10) mosquito 11) paleontologist  Dinosaur:  Spinosaurus 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUBMASTER MINUTE—“BIG MUD PUDDLES & 
SUNNY YELLOW DANDELIONS” 


 
    When I look at a patch of dandelions, I see a bunch of weeds that are  


going to take over my yard.  My kids see flowers for Mom 
and blowing white fluff you can wish on.   
     When I look at a homeless person, and he smiles at me, I 
see a smelly, dirty person who probably wants money, and I 
look away.   My kids see someone smiling at them and they 
smile back.   
      When I feel wind on my face, I brace myself against it. I feel it messing up my 


hair and pulling me back when I walk.  My kids close their eyes, spread their arms and fly with 
it, until they fall to the ground laughing.  They make kites out of the trash blowing around. 
      When I pray, I say thee and thou and grant me this, give me that.   My kids say, 


"Hi God! Thanks for my toys and my friends and that I didn’t live when the 
dinosaurs did. Please keep the bad dreams away tonight. Sorry, I don't want 
to go to Heaven yet. I would miss my Mommy and Daddy."   


      No wonder God loves the little children!  Enjoy the little things in life for one day instead of 
always looking at the imperfections you perceive. 
 
 


“DINOSAUR” FLAG CEREMONY 
 
Back in the time of the Dinosaurs there were no people.  The reason they


became extinct was that they just were not good citizens. 
  A good citizen learns about the  issues and votes, not like the lazy


APATOSAURUS who was too  comfortable in his swamp to go to the
polls.  


 
 A good citizen pays his fair share of taxes, honestly and with a minimum


of gripping, not like the screaming PTERANODON, with his 12 ft. wing
span, that would fly to another country when it was tax time, screaming
his doctrine from up in the sky all the way.  


 
 A good citizen is a good family person and raises responsible children, not


like the huge HADROSAUR who wouldn’t even help his children with
their home work.  


 
 A good citizen volunteers and helps other people with love in his heart and


is grateful that he has so many blessings, not like the early
DIDELPHODEN, who was an early marsupial that looked like an
opossum.  He hid in his den when his neighbor needed some help. Lets
all be good citizens so we don’t become extinct.  







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 
 


OPENING CEREMONY—“UNPLEASANT MODERN TIME DINOSAURS” 
 
CM:  As we meet some dinosaurs, ask yourself—do any of these resemble me? 
 


1. Show a picture of STEGOSAURUS.  This is STINGY 
STEGO.  He’s big, and greedy. He thinks he should 
always be first in line, first to eat, first to do everything.  He 
acts like he’s the only one that is important. 


 
 


2. Show a picture of ALLOSAURUS.  This is POUTASAURUS.  
He is never happy, but always discouraged and blue about 
something. He blames himself when someone can’t play even 
if they have something else to do.  


 
 


3. Picture of TRACHODON.  This is a TATTLEACHODON.  
He doesn’t play well with others because he is always looking to 
catch them doing something wrong. He imagines things and 
tattles on them.  How sad!  


 
 


4. Picture of TYRANNOSAURUS.  This is RUDE REX.  He 
wants to be the center of attention.  He doesn’t say please 
or thank you, and he butts in and pushes to get where he 
is going.  He burps and thinks its funny. 


 
 


5. Picture of TRICERATOPS.  This is POKEYCERATOPS.  He is 
always late because he finds things to do at the last minute.  
He doesn’t care that others are waiting for him and wasting 
their time.  


 
 
CM:  I’m glad all those creatures are extinct.  We can choose how to behave.  Let’s all do our 
best! 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
The Meaning of the Wolf Paw 
 
Supplies:  A large pad of paper and marker or a blackboard and chalk.  Draw each part of a 
wolf toe print as you tell about each part. 
 


The first toe of the Wolf paw represents what you 
have learned about caring for others and doing things 
to help them.   


The second toe of the Wolf paw represents what you 
have learned about your home, community and 
country, as well as your religious beliefs.   


The third toe of the Wolf paw stands for the skills you have gained in handling tools, tying 
things, using books and collecting things.  


The fourth toe of the Wolf paw represents your new appreciation for conservation, as well as 
safety in home and traffic.  


The pad of the Wolf paw represents your growth as a Cub Scout and the increased responsibility 
you are now capable of handling.  


Remember the meaning of the wolf’s paw as you move along the upward trail of Scouting.  
 
 
THE BEAR TRAIL 
When you think about a bear, what words come to your mind?  (Let 
the boys tell some things they think about bears.)  There are many 
things we can learn from bears.  They are POWERFUL, STRONG, 
and CLEVER and protect their FAMILIES (put up key words).  
You can be like a bear. 


You can build a POWERFUL body by eating a variety of healthful 
foods, getting plenty of exercise, getting enough sleep, and playing 
safely. 


You can be STRONG in standing for the right and saying “no” to things that would be harmful 
to you, such as drugs and tobacco.  


You can be CLEVER by studying hard in school, reading good books, and watching only 
wholesome shows on TV. 


You can help make your FAMILY strong by listening to your parents, helping cheerfully with 
household chores, and sharing with your brothers and sisters. 


As you follow the Bear Trail, remember to be powerful, strong, and clever and care for your 
family. 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GAMES 
 


NAME THAT TUNE 
What you need:  
Several tapes of fun or silly or your choice of songs.  
Tape player  
2 teams. 
 
To play: Play a very small piece of the song. Have the teams see if they can 
name that tune. If team one misses, team two gets the points. Go to ten points 
or your choice. Have a prize for that team. 
 


STONE, STONE 
 


What you need: 
• Very small stone or marble (to fit in the palm of children’s hands). 
• Large or small group standing in a circle. One person in the center of 


the circle. 
 
To play: The stone is passed from one player to another using the right hand. Each person picks 
the stone up out of the cupped left hand of the person holding it, then passes it to the next 
consecutive player. While passing the stone, all sing or speak the Stone Song (below). 
 
Stone, stone, where do you wander.  
Is it there. Is it fair 
To keep old (persons named) waiting there.  
<Repeat over and over.> 
 
The person in the middle calls out someone’s name he thinks is holding the stone. If he is right, 
he trades places. Game starts over again. Quit when you’re tired. 
 
 


  THROW IT OUT THE WINDOW 
 
What you need: 
2 teams Nursery rhymes 
 
To play: Pick a team to start the game.  Team 1 and 2 think of a nursery rhyme. Team 1 or 
2 start to sing this song with nursery rhyme first. (Cub Scout Songbook p. 35).  
 
Example: Humpty Dumpty sat on a wall, Humpty Dumpty had a great fall. All the Kings horses 
and all the Kings Men couldn’t put Humpty together again   So they threw it out the window, the 
window, the second story window, with a heave and a hoe, and a mighty throw, they threw it out 
the window. Learn 2 then starts with their nursery rhyme. If team 1 or 2 repeat a nursery rhyme, 
or if they can’t think of a rhyme within one minute, the other team wins. 


 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


End by everyone singing “Old McDonald”. 
 
Old McDonald had a farm E-I-E-I-O. 
And on that farm he had a Camarasaurus E-I-E-I-O  
With a moo, moo here, and a moo, moo there. Here 
a moo, there a moo, everywhere a moo, moo 
Old McDonald had a farm E-I-E-I-O. 
2.  Tyrannosaurus Rex—with a woof, woof…. 
3.   Pteranodon—With a cluck, cluck… 
4.  Triceratops— With an oink, oink … 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


 


McDONALD’S FARM DURING THE 
DINOSAUR AGE 


 
Narrator—Long ago, during the Mesozoic Age, scientists 
have told us that there were no humans, and the dinosaurs, 
uncontrolled and wild, roamed the land.  We have 
discovered quite a different picture, which we will present 


           to you tonight 
 


The scene opens in the farmyard of Mr. and Mrs. McDonald, who were farmers of that time.  
They are having a discussion with their two sons, David and Scott. 
 
David—Dad, I want to enter Duke in the Tyrannosaurus Rex show that is coming up.  Can I!  
McDonald--When is it? 
David—Next week.  We have been working on his tricks.  He can roll over when I ask him, and 


he can fetch.  I think he is one of the best-looking Tyrannosaurus Rexes around.  I have been 
oiling his skin and his colors really come out. 


McDonald—I’ve noticed how well he is looking. 
David--Do you want to see him do a trick? 
McDonald—Sure. 
David—Duke, roll over.  Roll over Duke! 
McDonald—Watch out for the house!  Don’t let him roll over the house.  
David—Bad boy, Duke, bad boy! 
McDonald—Your mother is getting upset because you let him sleep on your bed.  Is that why it 


broke all down last night? 
David—Aww, he just gets lonesome during the night and wants company.  
Mrs. McDonald—I know, but he makes the bedroom all smelly.  Try to keep him outside, okay? 
Scott—Dad, I can’t get Camarasaurus out of the swamp to be milked.  She is getting more and 


more stubborn. 
McDonald—Why don’t you try giving her a bucket of corn whenever you milk her.  That should 


bring her running. 
Mrs. McDonald—I got eight eggs today.  The Pteranodons really outdid themselves. 
McDonald— Oh good.  I wanted to add 


some to the Triceratops food.  It’s 
getting big enough that we can butcher 
him any day. 


Mr. McDonald—Hmm, Ticeratops roast.  
That will taste good.  How about an 
omelet for supper? 


All nod 
David—If there is some left over can I feed 


it to Duke. 
Mrs. McDonald—Sure.  You really love 


that dinosaur, don’t you? 


 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME CRAFTS 
 


Instant Fossils 
 
 Use clay that will harden by itself, or mix "rock" dough from 1 cup flour, 
1/2 cup salt, and 6-8 tablespoons water. (Use just enough water so the 
dough holds together without being sticky.) Squeeze the clay or dough in 
your hands until it is soft and smooth. Then pat it out on a piece of waxed 
paper or a cookie sheet--not too thin, or your fossil will crack easily. Press 
a leaf, or a toy dinosaur, into the clay, then lift it off so that the shape stays 
in the clay. Scratch in the date, your name, or the plant name, if you wish.  
 
 
 


Archeology Dig 
 


 Cub Scouts love the thrill of the hunt.  This is an activity they 
will really enjoy. Fill a large box, a wheelbarrow, or a small 
wading pool with damp sand or sawdust. Mix in a bag of small 
plastic dinosaurs, and possibly a handful of change (it keeps it 
interesting). Pat the sand or sawdust down tight and let it dry 
overnight. When the boys come let them have a miniature dig 
with paintbrushes and toothpicks. The idea is to not disturb any 
item until after that item has been catalogued by the den 
leaders. 


 
 


Dinosaur Match Game 
 
Have the children make their own Dinosaur 
Match Game.  Cut out 20 cards, each 3” square.  
Draw ten dinosaurs, one per card, then 
duplicate those pictures on the next ten cards.  
(Use stencil patterns, computer printouts, or let 
the children just draw their own.)  Write the 
name of the dinosaur on each picture.  The 
library has lots of books on dinosaur 
identification.  Laminate cards with contact 
paper if desired.  You are ready to play!!  The 
game is played by laying all cards face down, then each player turns over two pictures at a time, 
trying to find a match.  If their cards match, they remove them.  These cards can also be used like 
‘Go Fish’; or by removing one of them from the deck, play ‘Old Fossil’ (like Old Maid.)  Have 
fun!! 
 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 
 


 
WHIRLY BUG 


 
Materials: 
Pattem of the Bug 
Big craft stick 
2 one-inch ½ foot dowels 
Heavy duty elastic band 
2 feet of string or ribbon 
 
Copy the bug on a separate piece of paper. Color 
the bug any color you want. Take the craft stick and 
cut the rounded ends off. Glue or staple the bug to 
the craft stick. Cut a groove in the one-inch dowel, 
glue the craft stick in the groove. Drill a hole in the 
craft stick. Tie the ribbon to the craft stick. Wrap 
the ribbon around the dowels. Then, whirl the bug 
and have fun. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PAINTBRUSH NOTE PAD 
 
Materials: { 1 } 3" wide paintbrush 
 { 1 } 3" note pad 
 1" wide ribbon {8-12" long} 
 Pencil, yarn and glue 
 
Remove chrome band from paintbrush and remove 
bristles. Insert note pad and replace chrome band 
using pliers to tighten.  For trim, tie ribbon around 
the chrome and make a bow. Put yarn through 
brush handle to hang. 
 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 


SONG:  ICE AGE 
Tune: School Days 


 
Ice Age, Ice Age  
Good old frozen ice age. 
Freezing, no thawing makes ice real thick. 
Then all at once all the dinosaurs stick. 
They are all gone but now we’re here. 
We have no need at all to fear. 
So raise up your hand and give a cheer. 
For all of them to hear. 
 
 


SONG: T-REX 
     Tune: Armor Hot Dogs 
 
T-Rex, 
Where is T-Rex, 
What kind of Cubs want a T-Rex? 
Bobcats, Wolf Cubs, Bears, and Webelos, 
Arrow of Light, Compass Points, 
Anyone or all of those 
Want T-Rex 
We all want T-Rex 
The Rex that’s long gone now. 
 
 


APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 


CAVEMAN: Beating fists on chest yelling “Captain CavvvveMaaaannnnn!”  
FLINTSTONE CHEER: Hands over head, shake whole body, and yell 
“Yabba, Dabba, Do!” 
FLINTSTONE #2: In Fred Flintstone manner yell “Weelll Dooooonne!”  
(like Wilmahhhhhh)  
BRACHIOSAURUS:  This was one of the largest plant eating dinosaur.  Stand 
up and walk in place heavily, take a bite of some tree leaves, and chew 
loudly, with a big smile on your face.  
COMPSOGNATHUS:  1 ft. tall, the chicken dinosaur.  “Cock-a-
doodle-doooo!” 
TYRANNOSAURUS REX:  Put arms up curled with claws, growl ferociously, 
then say, “I’ll have a king sized burger and large fries, please.” 
PTERODACTYL:  Soar through the air on wide spread wings saying, “Eek, eek, eek! 
DINOSAUR WATERMELON: Pick up melon, toss in the air, eat in one bite, swallow.   


RUN ON FUN 
 


1. Why are some dinosaurs big and scaly? 
2. Why don’t they let dinosaurs drive cars? 
3. What was the fastest dinosaur called? 
4. What do you do with a green dinosaur? 
5. What do dinosaurs have that no one else has? ? 
6. What do you have if a dinosaur walks through a 


potato field? 


ANSWERS TO JOKES/ RUN ONS 
1. Because if they were small fuzzy, yellow and 


round they would be tennis balls. 
2. There were too many tyrannosaurus wrecks. 
3. The Prontosaurus. (really Droceiomimus) 
4. Wait till it ripens. 
5. Baby dinosaurs.  
6. Mashed potatoes. 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 


SONG   HOW PECULIAR 
Tune:  Battle Hymn of the Republic 


 
1. When one Triceratops tricked the trio, the 


other Triceratops trumpeted the trick. 
 
2.  When one Iguanadon ignited the igloo the 


other Iguanadon extinguished the flame. 
 
3. When one Brachiosaurus braved the brawl 


the other Brachiosaurus bravoed the brave. 
 
4. When one Allosaurus alarmed the Alaskan 


the other Allosaurus ala-kinged the 
albatross. 


 
5. When one Deinonychus dined on dynamite the other Deinonychus desisted to dine. 
 
6. When one Tyrannosaurus triumphed the tyrant the other Tyrannosaurus trumpeted the 


triumph. 
 


Chorus:   
Glory, glory how peculiar, 
Glory, glory how peculiar, 
Glory, glory how peculiar, 
[Repeat the line of the verse again]  


 
 


 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
June 3 - Repeat Day - Pick out a word and use it as often as you can all day. 
June 14 - Flag Day 
June 15-21 Hug Holiday - Use any excuse to hug those you love. 


 
Design-o-saurus Pizza 
Roll out pizza dough and cut into dinosaur 
shapes with large cookie cutters or knife.  
Spread with sauce and let the boys create 
their own dino with toppings like olives, 
green peppers, pineapple, onions, and 
pepperoni cut into wedges.  Sprinkle with 
grated cheese and put in 400-degree oven 
for 10-15 minutes.   
 
 
Pre-Hysterical Creatures  
 
 
Hershey’s Kisses 
Chenille stems 
Construction paper, felt, or craft foam sheets 
Glue (low melt hot glue works the best, but 
craft glue or glue sticks also work) 
Scissors 
Markers, crayons, paint or pastels  
Googley eyes (optional) 
 
With the chenille stems bend, twist, or wrap 
around a pencil to make legs, arms, antennae 
or bodies.  Make wings, eyes, or any thing 
else out of the paper, felt or foam sheets.  
Glue kisses for heads, tails, bodies, etc. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Earthquake! Popcorn 
Plastic wind up toy with fairly  
   large “key” 
Stiff cardboard 
Glue 
Modeling clay  
Deep bowl 
Popcorn 
 
Buy a cheap plastic wind up toy with a large 
wind-up key.  Glue an “L” shaped piece of 
cardboard to the key as shown in fig. 1.  
Place a good-sized blob of clay in the 
bottom of the bowl to hold the toy in place 
while you are winding it up.  If the toy has 
feet, the popcorn may get jammed in them 
and stop the production so cover toy with a 
little cardboard box cover.  When ready to 
serve, crank toy up and quickly pour in the 
popcorn.  The earthquake will shake rattle 
and roll the popcorn to the delight of 
budding geologists and paleontologists 
alike. 


Pre-Cambrian Insects 
These insects are easy and fast.  Look for very soft gumdrops to make things easier. 
 
Large gumdrops 
Small twist pretzels 
Shoestring licorice cut into 1” lengths 
Toothpicks or short skewers 
 
Break pretzels into pieces that resemble wing shapes.  (You may have to eat a few before you get 
the hang of it.)  Poke the ends into the sides of a large gumdrop.  Use a toothpick or skewer to poke
two holes in the top and insert licorice antennae. 


Fig. 2 


Fig. 1 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


White Chocolate Baby Dinosaur Egg 
 
1 plastic sugar egg mold (available in a craft or cake decorating store for about $2.00-3.00.) 
Non stick cooking spray 
1 pound white chocolate coating (Ap’peels or other wafer-type easy melt chocolate flavored 
disks) 
cotton candy 
candy baby dinosaur (gummy, sour gummy or sweet-tart-types all work.) 


 
Melt chocolate over medium heat in double boiler or in 
microwave until evenly smooth.  Lightly coat the inside of the 
mold with non-stick spray.  Pour about 1/2 cup melted chocolate 
in 1/2 mold and  “roll” mold around so gravity makes the 
chocolate flow over the entire surface.  Pour in more to thicken 
any thin spots if necessary.  Repeat with the other half.  
Refrigerate 10-15 minutes.  Save 2-3 tablespoons of chocolate to 
seal egg.  When completely cool, invert onto a plate.  If it doesn’t 
slide out immediately, dip each outer egg half in warm water for 
a few seconds and try again.  If it cracks, re-melt and start over.  
Place cotton candy “nest” in bottom half of egg, place baby 
dinosaur in nest and cover with top half of egg.  Seal the seam 
with remaining melted chocolate, and smooth with your finger.  


Wrap in decorator foil or cellophane to give as a gift, or just rap on a hard surface and watch as 
your baby dinosaur hatches!  
 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME MIDWAY 
 


FAUX STONES FOSSILS 
 
Coffee dough has a natural look when it 
dries. 
The speckles in this dough will look as if it 
is made from stone. 
 
1 c. flour 
1 c. coffee grinds (used) 
1/2 c. salt 
1/4 c. sand 
3/4 c. water 
 
Mix all ingredients together. Knead on a 
floured surface like bread dough.  Can be 
stored in a plastic bag or tub. Air dry 
stones/fossils. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DINOSAUR BONES 
 
4 egg whites, room temperature 
1/2 t. cream of tartar 
1 c. powdered sugar 
1 t. vanilla 
 
Oven: 200 degrees.  Line cookie sheets with 
parchment paper, set aside.  Beat egg whites 
in small bowl, until foamy.  Gradually add 
cream of tartar, then sugar, continuing 
beating until stiff peaks form.  Fold in 
vanilla.  Use a re-sealable baggie, put in 
foam, and cut off one corner.  Pipe onto 
prepared cookie sheets in shapes of bones.  
Bake one hour.  Turn oven off.  Leave in 
oven with door closed for one hour more.  
Cool completely.  Carefully remove from 
cookie sheet.  Store in airtight container up 
to one week. 
 


STICK-TACK-STONES 
 
Find ten rocks that are flat and smooth.  
Paint half of them with acrylic paints one 
color and the other half, another color.  Find 
smooth sticks and break them into 12" 
lengths.  Paint them with bright colors.  
Using twine, lash the sticks together to form 
a tick-tack-toe grid.  You can also just lay 
the sticks on the ground to make your game 
portable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OWARE…MANCALA  (from Ghana) 
 
One egg carton 
48 small rocks 
one bowl for each player 
 
Put four rocks in each cup of carton and each 
player takes a side.  Player ONE picks up all 
the rocks from any one of the six cups.  He 
circles counterclockwise around the carton, 
dropping one rock in each cup.  When all the 
rocks have been dropped, he picks up all the 
rocks in the cup and continues circling 
around the carton.  Repeatedly dropping and 
picking up rocks until he drops his last rock 
into an empty cup.  Then player TWO does 
the same thing.  When a player drops his last 
rock and it makes a group of four, he 
captures these rocks.  When eight rocks are 
left in the carton, whichever player captures 
the next four also gets the final four.  The 
winner is the one with the most rocks 
captured at the end of the game. 
 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME MIDWAY 2 
 


 
Welcome to Cub Rock. Learn about prehistoric times with natural materials for table settings, 
toys, clothing, school supplies, vehicles. Explore geology and learn about dinosaurs, have a 
scavenger hunt. 


What fossils can you find? 
 
Credits: Pack-o-Fun, BHG: Kids in the Kitchen, Leisure Arts: The Perfect Party Planner, Stefan 
Koter. The Great Book of Dinosaur Crafts, FBNR. com Birthday Parties for Kids, Jill Frankel 
Hauser. Kids Crazy Concoctions, Sandra and Linda's own creative ideas. 
 
 
EGG-CARTON DINOSAURS 
 
Long Dinosaur 
2 egg cartons  
scissors  
knife  
all-purpose glue  
art supplies 
tape, wallpaper paste 
 
 
 
 


PET ROCKS 
 
Rocks  
Paint 
Glue 
 
Choose the rock that gives character and 
meaning to you.  Decorate or paint it as you 
see fit. See ours at the display table. 
 
 
 
 


ROCK COLLECTIONS 
 
A favorite rock collection can be displayed 
in many ways.  An egg carton can be used, a 
jar of water with the rocks inside, or an old 
cigar box. 


ROCK PHOTO HOLDER 
 
Fist size rock 
40" to 50" of 18 gauge plastic- 
    coated wire  
ruler, nail clippers  
round nose pliers 
favorite photos 
 
Use a clean rock. Wrap the rock with 30" to 
40" of wire. Wrap around rock, so both ends 
are at the top, with one 3" wire piece.  
Tightly twist together once. Wrap long wire 
length around rock in opposite direction.  
Twist together at top of rock using 3" length 
end. Wrap around one more time in another 
direction. Spiral wrap long wire. Use 
remaining 10" length and thread through 
center wires under twist. Twist together 
tightly. Spiral wrap each end. Insert photos 
in spirals. See drawing below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME MIDWAY 2 (cont) 
 


PREHISTORIC BONES 
 
Paper tubes 
Newspaper or grocery bag  
Masking tape 
Glue mixture(flour & water) 
Paints 
Crush several sheets of newspaper into balls, 
getting the size you want.  Use masking tape 
to secure the balls to the ends of the tube. 
Using torn strips and glue mixture, place 
three or four layers of strips over entire 
"bone". Shape ends while damp, adding 
more strips as desired to give the ends a 
"bone" shape. Dry and paint with paints. 
They are lightweight and make great props. 
 
 


CAVEMAN BOTTLE CLUBS 
 
2 liter bottle  
newspaper strips  
water/flour glue  
paint 
Roll a "handle" of newspaper and put inside 
top of bottle. Cover with newspaper strips 
dipped in the glue. Make little bumps of 
newspaper and place in various spots on 
bottle. Cover over again with strips dipped 
in glue. Allow to dry. Paint with colors to 
resemble a prehistoric Fred Flintstone club! 
 
 


STALACTITES 
 
9 squares almond bark  
12 to 14 pretzel rods 
1 can mixed nuts. 
Melt bark in microwave. Spoon about 1 T. 
of bark over the top half of pretzel rod and 
sprinkle on nuts. Drizzle a little more melted 
bark over nuts. Allow bark to harden. Melt 
more squares of bark. Turn pretzels over and 
repeat. Chocolate chips can also be used. 
 


 
 


PREHISTORIC CLOTHING  
 
Brown paper grocery bags  
Water 
Paints 
Open up to bags, soak in water, crinkle up, 
and then press out. Allow to dry. Make a 
vest, loin cloth, hat, your choice. Paint with 
your favorite colors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DINO-MITE T-SHIRTS 
 
White T-shirt 
Shelf paper (self-adhesive)  
Fabric paint 
Paper plates 
Small sponge 
Dinosaur pattern 
Scissors 
Cut shelf paper into 7" squares.. Draw 
dinosaur on the paper.  Cut out shape, 
creating a stencil Lay T-shirt flat and put 
thick paper or cardboard inside so paint 
won't go through. Peel the adhesive from 
shelf-paper and put on shirt. Pour paint on 
paper plate and, using sponge, blot the 
cutout dinosaur. Remove stencil carefully. 
Allow paint to dry before wearing.







Cub Rock  June 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Why did the dinosaur 
walk on two legs? 


To give the ants a chance 


THEME RESOURCES  
 


CATEGORY NAME 
BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note:  All books can be found at Scout 
Shop) 


Extra Ideas A Hiking We Will Go; Forces of 
Nature; Trails, Treks and Tracks 


National Theme-July 2003, April 2002, 
June 1999 


 Pack Picnic Ideas  Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 
9-4, (rev. 2002) pg 6-22 


 Nature and Outdoor Activity 
Ideas  


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) chap 
8 or (rev.2002) chap 4 


Ceremonies Painted Paws & Spirit of Scouting 
Advancement Ceremonies 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 8-7, 
8-13 


Applauses & 
Cheers Family Picnic  All the Applauses We Could Find 


(alphabetical) 
Patches Kennecott’s Bingham Canyon 


Mine Tour, Museum of Natural 
History 


Great Salt Lake Council Cub Scout 
Awards, Activity Patches, and Policies 
Pamphlet 


Belt Loops & 
Pins 


Geography, Geology, Map & 
Compass 


Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 
Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Webelos Geologist Webelos Book 


 Bear Achievement 6-Take Care of 
your Planet, 12-Family Outdoor 
Adventure 


Bear Book 


 Wolf Achievement 7-Your Living 
World, 10B-Plan a Walk with 
family 


 Wolf Book 


 Wolf Elective 18-Outdoor 
Adventure 


Wolf Book 


 
Activity Ideas 


*Make a Piñata that looks like a rock  [for instructions see Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 
3-44 or (rev.2002) pg 2-14] and hit with clubs.   


*Visit the Planetarium 
*Take the Temple Quarry Trail Walk (bottom little of Cottonwood Canyon) 
*Tour the Museum of Natural History or Study about Dinosaurs 
*Make animal paw print rubbings at Memory Grove Park 
*Tour Ogden Dinosaur Park 
*Visit the Gem & Mineral Society Shows (Tooele Show in September) 
*Hunt for Geodes, fossils, or other rocks (See variety of Utah rock books) 
*Tour historical markers or buildings in your area 
  -Downtown SLC 
  -Emigration Canyon 
 -East Canyon 
 -Tooele Area 












Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Leave No Trace Patch:  Earn the new Cub Scout Version of this patch, with requirements for 
Cub and Webelos Scouts.  These are ‘Front Country Guidelines.  Requirements are found in the 
Cub Scout Activities section of this Pow Wow 2003book. 
 


 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 


                 Activities: Speakers-oceanographer, pet shop worker, zoo worker, 
fisherman, Red Cross water safety, Share "fish stories" (tall tales) 
Have a dry dock sailing adventure 
"Fish" races (Raingutter regatta) 


 
                 Menu:  "Wild Waves" Waffles & Fruit  "Crustacean" Cookie & Milk 


"Dorsal Fin" Foot long Hot Dogs  "Shoreline" Shaved Ice 
  "Coral Reef” Cheese & Macaroni   "Key" Lime Pie 


 
 


 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


IF I WERE A FISH WHAT KIND 
WOULD I BE 


 
Give everyone paper, scissors, crayons, markers, etc. 
and have them design a fish to fit their personality.  
Award gummy fish to all who finish their fish. 


BAIT THE HOOK 
 
(Fishing belt loop requirement 2) 
Use either a fish hook or safety pin.  Buy gummy worms 
 or favorite fish bait.  Have families race to see who can bait 
the fastest. 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Which Cub is catching which fish? 
 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
   
 
 
 
 


CUB MASTER MINUTE    “DRUG TO CHURCH “ 
 
"I had a "drug" problem when I was a young person  
I was "drug" to church on Sunday morning. 
I was  "drug" to church on Sunday night. 
I was "drug" to scouts on Wednesday night and             
        campouts on some weekends. 
I was "drug" to reunions with our relatives. 
I was "drug" to the family home evening, family Bible   
        reading and daily family prayer. 
I was also "drug" to the woodshed when I told a lie,   
        got a bad report card, was disrespectful to adults 
        or disobeyed my parents. 
Those "drugs" are still in my veins, and they affect my behavior in every thing I do, say, 
and think.  They are stronger than cocaine, crack or heroin. 
If our children had this "drug" problem, America would certainly be a better place." 


CUBMASTER MINUTE   
 “WALKING A NARROW BRIDGE WITH SHARKS BELOW” 


 
Cut shark fins from poster paper and staple to the side of a 2x4 so they  
stand up.  Spread a blue tarp on the floor, crumple it up to look like waves, 
 and put shark fins in ‘water’.  Lay a 2x4 across for a bridge.   
     Tell boys that in order to get their awards they are going to have to cross the bridge 
without falling into the water, and the sharks are waiting to eat them.  Say, “this is what 
life if like. If you get involved in tobacco, drugs, cheating in school, stealing, or telling 
lies [use some things that are problems with the kids in your area], you are falling off the 
bridge and you might drown or be eaten. “  
     “Cub Scouting helps by teaching you to be honest, do your best, and do good things.  
Your parents or cub leaders will guide you, so trust in them.” [Have a parent and cub 
leader come and hold the boys hands on either side as he walks across making it easy to 
walk across and get his reward]. 


FLAG CEREMONY “QUALITIES OF BEING A GOOD CITIZEN OF THE US”  
 
All: I am a citizen of the United States of America 
#1  I hereby pledge myself to live my life to the honor of my country 
#2  I will be honest because my country has no need of a thief. 
#3  I will speak the truth because my country has no need for a liar 
#4  I will be brave because my country has no need for a coward. 
#5  I will work because my country has no need of a lazy citizen 
#6  I will help my country remain the greatest nation on earth in industry, wisdom, honor, 
and goodness. 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
Before pack meeting, cut some fish shapes out of heavy colored paper.  Staple each boy’s awards to a 
fish.  Then attach each to a fish line and put all the fish into an empty fish bowl with the lines dangling 
over the edge.  In pack meeting have a group of the boys sing the following song (or say it as a poem).  
(The original music is available on the Cub Power Chorus audio-tape.   Following the song, say:   
 
Boys, I am glad that you are learning to make good choices.  It is good to have fun, but we all 
need to be careful that the things we do are safe and constructive.  The following boys have 
made some good choices this past month.  They have worked hard, but they have also had fun 
earning their awards.  Call the boys up with their parents and present their awards as you pull 
each fish out of the bowl.  
 


THE HUNGRY FISH                By Donna Wagstaff and Bob Greer 
 


A hungry fish was swimming  
up and down a little stream. 
When he spied the most delicious worm 
that he had ever seen!  
“So fat,” he thought, “so juicy;  
I just can’t believe it’s real.  
How nice of it to come along 
(pause) and be my evening meal.” 
In a flashing and a splashing,  
in an instant he had turned.  
And in another instant  
had his mouth around that worm!  
But just before he swallowed it,  
he paused and turned aside.  
He remembered it’s the fattest worm 
(pause) that has the hook inside! 
 
So he dropped back and cocked his head  
to take another look.  
And poking from that worm he saw 
a sharply pointed hook!  
He spun around and swam away  
from that unhealthy thing.  
When he was safe beneath the bank 
(pause) the fish began to sing. 
 
(Chorus)  “Choosing’s never easy  
But at least the choice is mine. 
Who can say for certain  
Where I’ll go or what it’ll find? 
The life I live tomorrow  


Is the one I choose today.  
If I’m careful in my choosing,  
then I know that I can say, 
I won!  I didn’t take the bait! 
I won! The future’s looking great! I won!” 
 
I had a friend who told me  
of a special pill he’d tried.  
He said it made him feel so warm 
and fuzzy deep inside.  
He said he had another  
I could sample, if I wished.  
But when he held it out to me 
(pause) I thought of that old fish. 
My friend said, “Here, just try it.   
It will make you feel just great.” 
I was tempted, just a little,  
but I thought I’d better wait  
until I had a chance to stop  
and take a closer look.   
Then I said, “I think your pill 
(pause) contains a little hook!” 
 
I choose to take care of myself. 
I will not take the bait. 
I want a good tomorrow  
and tomorrow starts today!  
I turned and proudly walked away  
from that unhealthy thing.  
And a big smile spread across my heart 
(pause) as I began to sing. (Chorus) 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 2 
 


JUST FOR FIN FUN 
 
The boys love it when their parents or leaders take a part of the program.  Celebrate July’s Fin 
Fun by having some of the adults perform this song, wearing swim goggles and flippers.  Invite 
audience participation by passing out stick puppets of the various sea creatures and ask 
everyone to stand and animate their puppet when it is mentioned in the song.   
 
 
FIN FUN! 
 
 Words by Carol Shaw Lord 
 Tune:  Splish, Splash 
 
Splish! Splash! 
I was diving in the deep, 
Wearing all my cool scuba gear. 
Down, down, 
I just had to snoop around - 
See what’s going on down here. 
I swam down to the bottom 
Took a look around the reef 
I was so surprised  
That I almost dropped my teeth! 
Well, splish! Splash! 
They were having a bash 
How was I to know  
There was a party going on? 
 
(Chorus)  
 
The fishes did the swishes, 
Eels were doing reels, 
The clams were doing jams. 
Sea horses joined the chorus. 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Bub, bubble 
Wasn’t any trouble! 
Could not believe what I had spied. 
Down in the coral 
Wasn’t any quarrel 
They, busy having fun, were occupied. 
So much joy together 
The like I’d never seen 
No one even cared if their gills 
Were pink or green. 
Yeah!  Flip, flop! 
The music wouldn’t stop. 
How could I be sad  
With so much happiness around? 
 
(Repeat chorus several times) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GAMES 
 


WET CUBBY RELAY 
What you need: 
2 Big buckets or something to hold lots of water 
2 small buckets or something to hold water 
4 small buckets or tin cans with boles punched in bottom or around the sides. 
2 teams, water 
 


First person in line fills small can with hole in it. Then they walk. run, or skip (take your pick, or 
alternate) for 50 yards, to another bucket that they have to fill. (They can fill it full or to a line 
marked by you.)  First team to fill the bucket wins. Of course everyone will GET WET! Lots of 
fun and laughs. 
 


SPONGE BOB SQUARE PANTS 
 


  What you need: 
  1 Sponge 
  Bucket of water 
   Sit in a circle on the grass. 
 
Played the same as ‘duck, duck, goose.’  One person (IT) walks on the outside of a circle saying, 
‘Sponge Bob, Sponge Bob, Square pants.’  The one who is IT has a sponge full of water, and 
when he says, “Square pants!” he squeezes the sponge on someone so that person gets wet. The 
person chosen then chases ‘it’ around the outside of the circle.  If he catches him, ‘it’ remains the 
same.  Otherwise, the person chosen becomes the new ‘it’ and the game continues. (If the boys 
are prepared to get wet, they will love this game!) 
 


 


WATER BASE BALL 
Water 
4 Small wading pools kill of water 
Rubber hat 
Softball (something that won’t hurt if you get hit with it.) 
 
To play: 
Play like regular baseball, only the wading pools are the bases. To be safe on a base, a body part 
must be in the wading pool. Play until you’re too tired or too wet to play.  Have fun! 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 
 
 


X MARKS THE SPOT 
 
#1  Wow, Strawberry Reservoir looks big,  but when you are rowing it you know how big.  


#2  This looks like a good spot.  Let’s start fishing. 


#1  Looks like a good spot to me to.  Hand me my pole. 


    [Both pretend to fish and start catching one fish after another.  Continue for several casts.] 


#2  I told you this would be a good spot. 


#1  It is really great.  We both have 


caught our limits.  We have got to 


remember this spot so we can come back 


here again.  How are we going to do 


that? 


#2  Oh that is easy, let’s put a big X right 


here on the side of the boat.  


#1  Okay  [mark side of boat and row 


away]. 


 
 
 


SUCCESSFUL FISHING??? 
 


A person is fishing and catching fish like crazy.  Two other people 


are watching and wondering what the secret is.  They ask what 


his secret is and he just mumbles in reply.  This happens 


exactly the same a couple more times.  Finally the 


successful fisherman spits something in his hand and 


answers,  “The secret is that you have to keep the worms 


warm.”  


  [Works great with gummy worms]. 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 


 
 


THE STATUE OF LIBERTY  
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION STORY 


 
AMERICA=Freedom    FRANCE=Friendship    STATUE=Miss Liberty 


 
 


Years ago, the people of FRANCE wanted to show they were friends with the 


AMERICANS.  They decided to have a STATUE built as a present to 


the AMERICANS.  The school children and people of FRANCE 


donated their money to pay for the STATUE.  Mr. Bartholdi was asked 


to sculpt and build it.  It took a long time, but finally it was loaded into 


214 crates and sent to AMERICA.   


But in AMERICA, there was not a place to put the STATUE.  Mr. 


Pulitzer, a newspaper editor, wrote in the newspaper and asked for 


donations.  The school children and people of AMERICA donated their 


nickels, dimes and dollars and finally there was enough to build the 


pedestal for the STATUE on Bedloe Island in New York Harbor.  In 


October, 1886, the STATUE, like a shining copper penny, was seen 


through the rain and mist. The STATUE’S torch was a lighthouse. For 


many years she was the first thing that emigrants saw as they sailed to 


AMERICA.  During the 1970’s, the STATUE was in disrepair, and so 


another campaign was started to raise funds to refurbish her.  Again, 


school children and adults all over AMERICA donated their pennies, 


quarters, and dollars.  She was updated so her torch shines out again over the harbor. On her 


pedestal is a poem by Emma Lazarus that tells how AMERICA feels. “Give me your tired, your 


poor, your huddled masses yearning to be free…Send these, the homeless, tempest tossed to me.  


I raise my lamp beside the Golden Door.” 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SKITS AND STORIES 3 
 
 
 


THE DEAD GOLDFISH 
 


Little Tim was in the garden filling in a hole 


when his neighbor peered over the fence. Interested in 


what the little Wolf Cub Scout was up to, he asked, " 


What are you doing, Tim?"  


"My goldfish died," replied Tim tearfully, 


without looking up, "and I've just buried him."  


The neighbor was concerned. "That's an 


awfully big hole for a goldfish, isn't it?"  


Tim patted down the last heap of earth then replied, "That's because he's inside 


your cat." 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
THEME CRAFT 


 
 


 
LITER BOTTLE AQUARIUM 


Materials: 
1 liter bottle 
Forester wood shapes 
Fish Line 
Acrylic Paint 
Hot glue or Tacky Glue 
Blue paper 
Fish tank rocks 
Scissors 


 
Clean 2-liter pop bottle and let dry. Using scissors or Xacto Knife (leaders only),cut bottle at the 
top of the black base of bottle. Make fish from wood shapes and paint them. Glue fish line to top 
of fish. Push other end of fish line through top of pop bottle with needle to give appearance of 
fish swimming. Glue blue paper onto back half of 2-liter bottle representing the water. Remove 
cap and sprinkle in fish tank rocks. When you have a layer of rocks, put lid back on 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
FISHING PENCIL HOLDER 


Materials 
Empty Vegetable can 
Pop side sticks 
Acrylic paint 
Felt 
Wood shapes 
Glue 


 
Clean can and make sure there are no sharp pieces around top of can. Glue Popsicle (craft) sticks 
all around can. Paint your sticks to look like water. Make your wood shape fish and paint. Glue 
onto the popsicle sticks.  Make 2 or 3 small circles to make it look like air bubbles. You can 
draw a fishing line and hook just in front of the fish. Cut a circle of felt to fit in the bottom of 
can. 


 


 


 


 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


ROUND-UP PENCIL HOLDER 
 


1. Cut a 2 feet long piece of 3-ply or 4-ply rope. 
2. Cut a piece of wire a bit longer that the rope. Bailing wire 


works well. 
3. Carefully twist the wire in between the ply of the rope so that 


it doesn't show. 
4. Whip both ends of the rope/wire. 
5. Twist the rope into a loose coil, shaping one end around a 2-


inch wooden circle, 
6. Hot glue the rope around the wood. 


 
LOG CABIN 


 
                                                                   Materials needed: 


 42 Popsicle sticks 
1/2" plywood or particle board for ends.  
Small pieces of foil for windows and doors 
Glue 
Varnish 
Door is centered under roof on wall (not 
shown), and windows are on both ends. 
Cut slots for coins out of sticks before 
gluing them down. 


 
 
 


QUICK CRAFT—FLAG PLACE MAT  
 
Decorate a 1 l x 17 inch sheet of white paper with stars and stripes to match the flag. 
 (Use construction paper and glue.)   Laminate 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS  
 
 


SONG : WE LIKE TO PLAY IN WATER 
    Tune: “For He’s a Jolly Good Fellow” 
 
Oh, we like to play in the water 
We like to play in the water 
We like to play in the water,  
And get each other wet, 
And get each other wet, 
And get each other wet,  
Oh, we like to play in the water 
We like to play in the water 
We like to play in the water,  
And get each other wet. 
 
 
SONG: BLOW YOUR BOAT: 
Tune – “Row, Row, Your Boat” 
 
Blow, blow, blow, your boat, 
Swiftly down the track,  
Harder, faster, straighter, swifter,  
Blow and don’t look back! 
 
Splish, splash, goes the pack 
In the swimming pool, 
Doing Cub Scout water fun 
It is really cool! 
 
 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
RAINBIRD: With pointer finger in front of your lips, slowly turn head 
from right to left making a ch-ch-ch-ch noise.  Then, move head quickly 
from right to left making a p-p-p-p-p-p sound. 
SWIMMER’S BELLY FLOP: Put both hands out in front of you and 
clap your hands together once.  Look around and say, “Where’s the 
water?  Where’s the water?”  
WATER SKIER: Hold arms out like holding tow line saying, “You-ee, splash!” 
SWIMMING—Pretend to do the breaststroke, clap back of hands together. 
FISH—Pucker up lips like you are going to kiss and make kissing sounds. 
WAVE—Have front row lean to the right, 2nd row lean to the left, 3rd row to the right (all at the 
same time like waves.) 
FROG EATING A MOSQUITO—Luv it—luv-it----luv-it! 
 


RUN ON FUN 
1. Knock,knock. 


Who’s there? 
Dwain. 
Dwain who? 
Dwain the bathtub.  I[m dwowning. 


2. If you want to learn something the 
right way you must start at the 
bottom 
But I want to swim! 


3. Where do swimmers sit to eat 
lunch?  At pool tables. 


4. Why are fish so well educated?  
They travel in schools. 


5. Why is a boat the cheapest kind of 
transportation? It runs on water. 


6. What lies at the bottom of the sea 
and shivers? A nervous wreck. 


7. Where do sick boats go? To the 
‘dock’. 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 


MORE CHEERS 
 


MERMAID—Put legs together like a mermaid, hands on hips, 
sway and say, “Hip, hip, Horray!” 
 
CLAM—Put back of hands together and open and close hands 
several times.  
 
OCEAN—All yell, “Swell, swell, swell!” 
 
JAWS—Make a shark mouth by putting elbows together.  
Open arms and yell, “Help!” Close arms and say, “Delicious!” 
 


     
 


SONG: JAWS 
Tune: Do, re, mi] 


Jaws a mouth, a great big mouth 


Teeth, the things that kinda crunch 


Bite, the friendly sharks hello 


Us, his favorite juicy lunch 


Fin, that shows us he is there. 


Chomp, that makes the swimmers flee 


Gulp, that means the shark’s been fed. 


That will bring us  


back to Jaws, jaws, jaws,  jaws. 


 
HOW TO SPELL JOKE 


This stunt always ‘cracks’ me up! 
 
Ask someone to spell the word ‘joke’.   


Then, ask them to spell ‘coke’.   


Next, ask them to spell ‘poke’.   


Finally ask them to spell the white of an egg.  They will probably spell 


‘yoke’.  But the yolk is not the white, it is the yellow part.  The white is 


called albumin. 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SURPRISE SONG 
[Tune: Twinkle, twinkle, twinkle little star] 


 
It’s so nice to be with you, here is something you can chew.   
Gum, gum in the air, gum, gum everywhere [everyone throw 
small pieces of gum to audience] 
It’s so nice to be with you, here is something you can chew. 
 
It’s so nice to be with you, here is something nice and sweet. 
Candy, candy in the air, candy, candy everywhere [throw 
candy] 
It’s so nice to be with you, here is something nice and sweet. 
 
It’s so nice to be with you here is something you can crack.   
Nuts, nuts in the air, nuts, nuts everywhere  [throw peanuts] 
It’s so nice to be with you here is something you can crack. 
 
It’s so nice to be with you here is something very wet.  
Water, water in the air, water, water everywhere (pull squirt 
guns from behind back, threaten to shoot audience, but shoot 
selves.) 
Now its time to end our song, we are wet, it’s time we’re 
gone. 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
July 16 - National Ice Cream Day 
July 27 - Take Your Houseplants For a Walk Day  
 
Cucumber Swimming Shark 
Another project using effervescent tablets.  
This one could be used as a substitute for the 
rain gutter regatta.  It’s cheaper and the boys 
could build their sharks right at Pack 
Meeting. 
 
Small cucumber or zucchini 
Paring knife  
Toothpicks 
Effervescent tablets 
Peanut butter 
Body of water or punch (punch bowl sized 
or larger) 
 
Cut a “V” shaped notch in the large end of 
your cucumber.  Just behind the notch, cut 
two slashes for gills.  Carve out two holes 
for eyes.  Cut three slices from the back end 
for fins, and attach with toothpicks.  Put a 
dab of peanut butter on the effervescent 
tablet and attach to rear of shark.  Warm 
water makes the shark go faster.  The water 
or punch will be inedible if you use Alka-
Seltzer tablets, but alright if you use straight 
bicarbonate of soda tablets. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Baited Fishing Poles  
Pretzel rods 
Gummy worms  
Shoestring licorice 
 
Cut shoestring licorice in half.  Have boys 
practice tying knots with one piece.  After 
they have mastered the square knot and a 
double half hitch, let them eat that half.  Tie 
one end of the licorice to one end of the 
pretzel using a double half hitch.  Tie the 
gummy worm onto the other end of the 
licorice with a square knot.  Make sure each 
boy has his knots right before he can eat his 
fishin’ pole. 
 
Spinning Eels 
When you want to do a little ahead-of-time 
work, this is a fabulous “special effects” 
project.  Make or buy cookies shaped like 
S’s.  Using small pieces broken off an 
effervescent tablet (like Sodium bicarbonate 
or Alka-Seltzer) push one piece into each 
end of the S-shaped “eel.”  Place it in a bowl 
of milk.  The cookies should start spinning.  
Experiment with different angles to increase 
speed, etc.  When fizzing stops, cookie is 
eaten, and a new one dropped in.  The milk 
will be inedible if you use Alka-Seltzer 
tablets, but all right if you use straight 
bicarbonate of soda tablets. 


 Seaside Snacks 
This is a great poolside or hiking snack as it won’t spoil or melt in the 
heat and has good nutritional value as well.  Makes 6-1/2 cups mix. 
 
1 cup each of:    Pretzel sticks (driftwood) 
Fish shaped crackers   Cheerios (life preservers) 
Roasted peanuts (beach pebbles) Raisins (sand fleas?) 
Chow mien noodles (seaweed) 1/2 cup dried pineapple, 
Cut into small wedges (seashells).  Mix.  Store in snack sized resealable bags. 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


Peanut Butter and Jellyfish Sandwich 
 
 
Cut slices of bread into fish shapes with a knife or large cookie 


cutter.  Make regular peanut butter and jelly sandwiches and 


serve with carrot curls and goldfish crackers.  
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME MIDWAY 
 
DOLPHIN SLIDE 
 
Material: Gray fun foam 
  Ball point pen 
  Scissors 
 
Cut out pattern and trace on to fun foam. Now cut it out.  When you cut the notches, be sure to 
make them very skinny. Put your dolphin together as shown in drawing.  Glue the fins in place.  
To make the slide, use either a ½” piece of PVC pipe or use a 3” piece of chenille pipe cleaner 
and glue onto the back. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SWIMMING PAPER FISH 
 
Materials: Stiff paper (notepaper type) 
  Scissors 
  A few drops of oil 
 
Draw and cut out a paper fish.  Make a small round hole in the center of the fish and cut a narrow 
slit leading from the center hole to the tail.  Dip lower half of fish in water.  Lay fish gently on 
the surface of water in a large bowl or tub.  To make him swim, drop a little oil (1 or 2 drops) 
into the little hole in the fish’s body.  Oil will spread  through the slit leading to the tail.  The fish 
will be propelled forward.  Do the same thing with a frog or turtle. 


 


 


 


 







Fin Fun   July 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME RESOURCES  
Category NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Fun in the Sun, Wet & Wild, Splish 


Splash, See What You Can Sea 
National Theme – June 2003, June 2001, 
July 2000, August 1999, July 1998 


 Water Carnival Ideas, Fishing Derby 
Ideas, Raingutter Regatta Ideas 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 9-15, 
9-16, 9-47, (rev. 2002) pg 6-14, 6-37, 6-32 


 Water/Boats Theme Craft Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 2-5 
 Print a Fish Idea Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 8-29 


Ceremonies Instant Recognition Fishing, Ships of 
Scouting & Seven Seas Ceremonies, 
Fishing & Swimming Advancement 
Ceremonies 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 2-4, 5-9, 
8-4 & 8-7 


Games Fish Pond Games, Water Games & 
Harbor Master Game 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-21 
or (rev. 2002) pg 3-38, (rev.1999) pg 2-44 & 
2-55 


 Underwater Race & Swimming Pool 
Games 


The Best of Scout & Youth Games pg 53 & 
55 


Stories & 
Songs The Captains Shirt Story, Jaws Song Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 18, 27 


Applauses & 
Cheers 


Deep Sea Diver, fish, fisherman, 
motorboat, ocean, swimming, 
steamboat, under sea, whale, water  


All the Applauses We Could Find 
(alphabetical) 


 Deep sea diver, divers, fish, fishing, 
life guard, motor boat, non 
swimmers, ocean, steam boat, 
swimming, under water, water, whale 


Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 


 Whale Cheer, fish lips Crazy Cory’s pg 89, 93 
Belt Loops & 


Pins Fishing, Swimming  Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 
Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Webelos Aquanaut Webelos Book 


 Bear Elective 5-Boats, 19-Swimming Bear Book 
 Wolf Elective 19-Fishing Wolf Book 
 
SUPERCALIFORNIASURFER  (Tune: Supercalifragilisticexpialidocious) 


From 1998 Pow Wow Book 
Supercaliforniasurfer, expert of the ocean. 
Even though the most of them do not use suntan lotion, 
When they hit the waves too hard they always cause a motion. 
Supercaliforniasurfer, expert of the ocean. 
 
Um diddle idlle iddle um diddle lie, um diddle idlle iddle um diddle lie. 
 
Because I was afraid to surf when I was just a lad, 
My father took my board away and told me I was bad. 
But then one day I leaned a word that every surfer knows, 
The biggest word you ever heard, and this is how it goes. 


Where do sick boats go? 
To the doc 


How do sailors do their laundry? 
Throw it overboard, it is washed 


ashore. 












Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


 
Fort Douglas Patriotic Walk: Many boys may not know that we even have a military base in 
Utah. What was it used for? Did they know that there was a U.S.S. Utah? Those questions and 
many other interesting facts can be found at Fort Douglas. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: Midway games run by dens 


Mini carnival 
Round robin game night 


 
Menu:  "Coin Toss" Com Dogs  "Carousel" Cotton Candy 


"Big Fun" Burritos   "Fair Time" Funnel Cakes 
"Prize Winning" Pizza  "Amazing" Apples on a Stick 


 
 


 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


GAME  TWIST AND TANGLE 
YARN BALL 


 
Supplies—Big ball of yarn. 
Have all families stand in a big circle.  One 
person holds the end of the ball of yarn.  He 
states his name and throws it to a person 
across the circle.  That person states his 
name and throws it to someone else.  
Everyone keeps hold of his or her yarn 
piece.  Continue until everyone has had the 
yarn ball thrown to them.  Then have fun 
untangling it. 


MATCH THE THEME PARK  
WITH THE STATE 


 
1. Hershey Park 
2. Disney World 
3. Disney land  
4. Lagoon  
5. Coney Island 
6. Great Adventure 
7. Dolly Wood 
8. Sea World 


A. California 
B. Pennsylvania 
C. New Jersey 
D. California 
E. Florida 
F. New Jersey 
G. Tennessee 
H. Utah 


Answers 1B, 2E, 3A, 
4H, 5C, 6F, 7G, 8D 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


“TRUE CHAMPIONS”  
 SPORTS FLAG CEREMONY 


 
  #1  Have you ever thought about why we sing the 


Stars Spangled Banner before sporting events? 
  #2  (With ball and glove)  We’re Americans before 


we’re Dodgers or Cubs.  We don’t want to 
forget in the heat of competition that the ideals 
of sportsmanship and the ideals of Democracy 
are pretty much the same. 


#3  (With golf club) We believe in ideals like 
HONESTY.  Roberto de Vicenzo may have lost 
the Masters Tournament when he told an official 
that he touched the ball accidentally, but today 
he symbolizes the honesty of sportsmanship 


#4  (with basketball) We support ideals like FAIR 
      PLAY.  Every wonder why they’re called  
      “fouls”?  If you get too many of them you’re out 
      of the game.  Fair play means giving the other  
      guy an equal chance. 
#5  (With tennis racquet) We seek for ideals like 


RESPECT FOR OTHERS.  Winning really isn’t 
everything, And it definitely isn’t the only thing. 
Did we like Crissie Evert because she won, or 
did we like her because of her unfailing 


  courtesy for others? 
   #6  (With ice skate)  Did we admire 


   Apollo Ohno in these past Olympics 
   because he won the gold, or did we 
   admire that when he fell, he scrambled 
   for the finish line on his knees to place 
   without giving up, and took the  
   decisions of the judges with good grace and  
   acceptance-- while another athlete was having a  
   tantrums at their decision? 


   #1  It isn’t whether you win or lose, it’s how you 
         play the game, whether on the field and off.  
 
     (All lay down their equipment and join in pledge) 
 


CUB MASTER MINUTE   
“WAKE UP!” 


 
#1  Wake Up !!  Decide to have a 
good day. This is the day the Lord 
made; let us rejoice and be glad in it. 
#2  Dress Up !! The best way to dress 
up is to put on a smile.   A smile is an 
inexpensive way to improve your 
looks.   
#3  Shut Up!  Say nice things and 
learn to listen.   God gave us two ears 
and one mouth, so He must have 
meant for us to do twice as much 
listening as talking.   
#4 Stand Up!. for what you believe 
in.  Stand for something or you will 
fall for anything. 
#5  Reach Up !! for something 
higher. Trust in the Lord with all your 
heart, and then try and work at a thing 
until you succeed at it. 
#6 Lift Up !!. your Prayers. 
Do not worry about anything; instead 
PRAY ABOUT EVERYTHING. 
 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 2 
 


CAMPFIRE LIGHTING OPENING CEREMONY 
 
Have the wood and crumpled newspaper for a campfire 
ready.  Each person brings in a lighted candle, says 
their part then stands until all the candles are standing 
around the campfire then they all reach down together 
and light it. 
 
#1  I am light.  As I am added to the campfire, my flame 


allows us to see new chances to be helpful to others. 
#2  I am friendship.  My flame teaches us how to 


become a friend to other people 
#3  I am restraint.  My flame reflects off the stones that 


surround the campfire, thus keeping the fire in check.  
When I am added to the campfire we learn to keep our tempers and tongues in check. 


#4  I am the rising smoke.  As I rise from our campfire our eyes turn skyward as we envision 
God. 


#5  I am love.  My flame makes the campfire burn brighter and lovelier.  Love grows toward 
parents and families when it is returned, and it makes our own lives more joyful. 


#6  I am fun.  My flame jumps and leaps with sheer pleasure.  When I am added to the campfire 
we see that most good things in a life well lived are fun. 


#7  I am the Scout Spirit.  My spirit is the brotherhood of Scouting all over the world who are 
preparing themselves to become good citizens who are physically fit, mentally awake, morally 
straight. 


CM: Now we will light the campfire [all put candles into fire which lights].  We have learned 
things that make our Pack Meeting more meaningful. 


“SCOUTING IS”  CLOSING OR OPENING CEREMONY 
 
Scouting is a sea of blue, and gold or green and tan uniforms. 
Scouting is shirt full of patches 
Scouting is a new tie slide that you have made 
Scouting is sleeping under the stars 
Scouting is putting the worm on the fishhook by yourself 
Scouting is a hike in the mountains or around the block 
Scouting is learning a new game 
Scouting is leaders willing to give time, money and hearts 
Scouting is pledging allegiance and feeling your heart swell for  
                     love for your country 
Scouting is all of these and more.  Let’s hope Scouting last for   
                  many years more. 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 


THE SCOUTING LADDER 
 
Equipment:  Ladder with cards with key words on each rung facing toward 


the audience and a pointer.   
 
As each boy reads his part have him point to the key word on the ladder with 
the pointer, the pass it to the next boy.  The narrator could be a pack or den 
leader, a den chief, or another boy.  After the ceremony present awards to the boys. 
 
Narrator: We think of Cub Scouting as a ladder of good citizenship.  Let us show you what 


we mean. 
 
Boy #1. FRIENDSHIP:  We make lots of friends in our school, church, neighborhood, den 


and pack. 
 
Boy #2: TEAMWORK:  We learn how important it is to work with others as members of a 


team. 
 
Boy #3. DEPENDABILITY:  We learn to be places when we promise to do our part.  
 
Boy #4: LEADERSHIP:  We learn to lead games and help with other den and pack 


activities. 
 
Boy #5: HONESTY:  We learn to tell the truth, to handle money, and to understand what 


honesty means. 
 
Boy #6: LOYALTY:  We learn to be true to our friends, our parents, and our den and pack, 


and to honor our country and its flag. 
 
Boy #7: GOODWILL:  We like to help our school, church, neighbors and those less 


fortunate than we are. Goodwill projects make us feel good. 
 
Boy #8: RESPONSIBILITY:  We learn to be responsible for certain jobs, our own 


belongings, things about our home, and for the property of others. 
 
Narrator: Through good citizenship and through Cub Scout experiences, boys learn things 


that help make them better citizens as they grow into manhood. 
 
 
 Staple the boy’s awards to a small card, put each card inside a balloon.   
 Then blow it up.  As you tell what awards each boy has earned, give him a 


balloon and let him pop it to retrieve the awards. 
 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 
 


TRIVIA GAME 
 


Just think of fun, crazy questions to ask , then see who knows the answer..: 
 
Examples: What is the name of Gilligan’s boat? (SS Minnow). What is 
Scooby’s favorite snack? (Scooby snacks). What insect can you ride and 
get dizzy on? (The Spider. at Lagoon). 
Hand out rewards for the right answers. 
 
 


BALLOON STOMP 
 


What you need: 
Balloons (Any Size) 
Yarn or string, about 2 yards or less per person 


To Play: Have each player blow up their balloon. Tie the balloon to the string, then the other end 
of string around your ankle. When everyone has a balloon around his ankle, you can begin. The 
object of the game - stomp the other person’s balloon and break it while keeping yours intact.  
The last one with a balloon on wins. 
 
 


WATER BALLOON VOLLEY BALL 
 
What you need 
I Volley Ball Net 
2 Full Sized sheets 
Several water-filled water balloons. (These are your volleyballs) 
2 teams 
 
To Play: Divide your group into 2 teams, one on each side of the net. Each team has a sheet. 
Place a person (the more the better) all around the sheet. Someone puts a balloon into the center 
of the sheet, when slack.  To toss the ball, everyone, at the same time, pulls the sheet tight. 


Remember, the balloon does have to make it over the net. When the 
balloon breaks, that is a point for the side that tossed it. (Unless it pops 
on their own side). The first one to ten wins. (Or when you want to quit). 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


GETTING DIRECTIONS 
 
 


A Cub Scout den is trudging through the mountains and the trees [People with signs on them that 
say TREE].  
 
Cub 1:   I’m so tired, and now I think I’m lost.  


Cub 2:  We need to go West.  Which way is that? 


Cub 3:  I remember hearing that you can tell directions 


by looking at the trees. 


Cub. 4:  That’s right.  They have moss growing on the north side. 


Cub 5:   Let’s see what the trees can tell us. 


Trees turn around and have signs with arrows saying, St. Louis, Denver, Salt Lake City, etc.  


Cub 1:  Thanks trees, that sure beats moss anytime.” 


 


 


THE TAIL OF THE SERPENT 
 


The Tail of the Serpent once rebelled against the Head and said 


that it was a great shame that one end of any animal should always 


have its way and drag the other after it, whether it was willing or not.  


In vain, the Head reminded the Tail that it had neither brains nor eyes 


and wasn’t made to lead.  One day, wearied by the Tail’s constant 


pleading, the Head let him have his will.   


The Serpent now went backward for a while, quite gaily, until 


he came to the edge of a high cliff.  Suddenly, both the head and the 


tail went flying over the high cliff and landed with a heavy thump on the shore beneath. 


The Tail never again troubled the Head with a word about leading. 


The moral:  When you are traveling, always look ahead.  







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


Clothespin Wrestlers:  Decorate at least two clothespins with 
different colors, and draw the meanest looking faces you can. (Round 
clothespins work best). Use a wide rubber band to tie two wrestlers 
together as shown in the illustration. Wind up the wrestlers (not too 
tight), and carefully put them down. They will wrestle for a few seconds. 
The winner will end up on top. 
 


Racing Spools:  Hammer a carpet tack into one side of 
the top of a wooden spool (available in craft stores). Cut a small 
stick or twig to about 4 or 5 inches long. Push a rubber band 
through the hole in the center of the spool and loop one end 
around the tack. Ideally, the rubber band should just stick out 
the other end of the spool. If it is much too long, you can 
double it up, tie a knot to shorten it, or try to find a shorter 
rubber band. Slip a flat washer over the free end of the rubber 
band, then push the stick about 1 inch through the rubber band 
loop. You're now ready for the first test race. Hold the racing 


spool in one hand and wind up the stick. Carefully put the racer on the floor, take aim, and let go. 
 
 
Squishers:  Pull a large (11-inch) balloon onto the end of a funnel. Pour in flour or fine sand.  
Use a pencil to gently pack the flour or sand into the balloon. Tap and squish to get rid of air. Tie 
a knot and pull it tight. Use to squish (they feel good); to toss, play catch or basketball; or play 
hackeysack (keep the squisher off the ground using only your two feet; juggle them.) 
 
 
Pin Ball Bowl:  
1.  Cover 5 toilet paper tubes with construction paper and paint the numbers 1 to 5 on them. 
2.  Cover a fat tube with construction paper.  Punch holes in opposite sides at one end of both the 
fat tube and a narrow tube. 
3.  Tape over the end of the narrow tube, which doesn't have the holes. 
4.  Attach rubber bands to fat tube. 


5.  Put the thin tube inside the fat tube. 
6.  Push rubber band ends through holes in the thin tube. 
7. Tie rubber bands together with yarn. 


8. Crumple aluminum foil into balls, which will fit loosely in the 
fat tube. 
9. Stand the short tubes up in a V shape. To shoot, load a ball, 


pull back the inside tube, and let go.. Add 
up the points printed on the pins you've 
knocked down. The player with the most 
points wins. 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 
 


WORRY WHEEL 
 
Cut the shape below from a piece of wood 1” thick. 
Drill 2 - 1" hole as shown, sand, stain.  
Insert thumbs into the holes and 
 twirl your worries away.  
 
 
 


           
 
 


MAKE A NOTE POCKET 
 


1. Cut a paper place in half. 
2. Place half of  a paper plate on a 


whole paper plate to form a Pocket. 
3. Attach the 2 plates by sewing with 


yam, or staple together. 
4. Decorate in bright colors with paint, 


crayons, or similar. 
5. Make two holes in the top and string 


yam for hanging (see diagram). 
6. Place a note pad and pencil in the 


pockets for writing important notes. 
 
 
 
 
 
         BOOMERANG 
 
Learning to be a friend is an important skill for 
Cub Scouts.  Cut out this boomerang from 
heavy cardboard.  The dimensions should 
be at least 5 inches from center to tip. 
Have fun with a friend!! 
 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


RUN-ON FUN 
 


1. Is this water healthy for swimming? 
2. What do baseball players eat on? 
3. What do you get when you cross an 


answering machine and fat football 
player? 


4. What charges did the police bring 
against the baseball player? 


5. If you have 180 rabbits all standing in 
a row and they take one step 
backwards, what do you have? 


6. That’s some cold you have there Jake. 
What are you taking for it? 


7. Why did it take 8 Cub Scouts to help 
the old lady across the street? 


8. Why did the Bobcat leave his shirt on 
when he took a bath? 


 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 


SONG:  COFFE BEAN 
 Tune:  Little Brown Jug 
 
My dog coffee, likes to roam  
The other day he left his home, 
He came back all nice and clean, 
Where, oh, where had coffee bean? 
 
Coffee Bean, Coffee Bean, 
Where, oh, where has coffee bean? 
Coffee Bean, Coffee Bean, 
Where, oh where  
has coffee bean? 
 
 
 
 
 
THE BEAR, WOLF, BOBCAT SONG 
     Tune: They Call the Wind Mariah 
 
Away out here we got a name for 
Bear and Wolf, and Bobcats. 
The Bear is Joe, the Wolf is Jess,  
And we call them all the Cub Scouts. 
The Cub Scouts, the Cub Scouts. 
We call them all the Cub Scouts.  
 
 
 
 
APPLAUSES/CHEERS 
 
ROLLER COASTER: Use hand to simulate a roller coaster car going 
uphill.  Say, “Click, click, click!” Finally at the top, your hand goes down 
quickly and all say, “Wheeeee!”  
POP CORN:  With one hand closed, cover it with the other.  Let the 
closed hand ‘grow’ from under the other hand.  Then, spring the fingers 
open saying, “Pop, pop, pop!” 
FERRIS WHEEL:  Move arm around in a large circle.  On the upswing 
say , “ohhhhhhhhhh”, and on the downswing say, “ahhhhhh!” 
BALLOON:  Put thumb in mouth with fist closed.  Blow and have hand 
expand.  It gets away from you and flies all over the room and finally 
falls to the floor all limp and empty.  


ANSWERS  
1. Sure, it’s well water. 
2. Home plates 
3. A wide receiver. 
4. Hit and run. 
5. A receding hare line  
6. I don’t know.  How much 
      will you give me? 
7. She didn’t want to go. 
8. On the label it said 
      Wash & Wear. 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
 


MORE CHEERS 
 
ROOSTER:   Put hands in armpits and crow like a rooster.  
 
DAYS OF ’47 CELEBRATION DAYS:  Clap hand and slap lap 
like galloping horses.  
 
FLOATING DOWN THE JORDAN RIVER:  Each row sways a 
different way and everyone sings “Sailing, sailing over the 
bounding main.”   
 
FISHING AT THE JORDAN RIVER:  Pretend to fish, catch 
something, pull it in with great effort.  A strange kind of fish 
appears, round, black with ‘SARDINE’ printed on the side.  
Everyone say ‘sardine’ three times. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 


August 8 - Sneak Zucchini on Your Neighbor’s Porch Night 
August 13 - -International Left Handers Day 
 
Instant Ice Cream 
For each serving you will need: 
1 resealable sandwich bag  1 cup whole milk  
1 quart sized resealable bag  1 teaspoon vanilla 
12 ice cubes    1 tablespoon sugar 
2 tablespoons table salt 
 
Pour milk, vanilla and sugar into smallest bag and seal carefully.  Put ice cubes and salt into 
larger bag and add milk mixture to bag.  Seal tightly.  Shake, jiggle, dance with, but don’t drop 
bags.  In about 10 minutes, you should notice ice crystals forming.  As soon as the ice cream 
reaches soft-serve consistency, scoop the ice milk into a bowl and serve immediately.  Or, wipe 
off inner bag, cut a hole in the corner and squeeze out into a cone of your mouth. 
 


Magical Masterpiece Parfaits 
Have each boy bring 1-1/2 cups cut-up fruit. 
Have on hand, milk, yogurt, granola, tall glasses, and spoons.  Let boys create 
their own masterpieces by layering fruit, yogurt, and granola.  Sprinkle  
1/4 teaspoon Jell-O powder over top for magical color changing flavor. 


 
Starry Starry Night 
For each drink you will need:  
4 ounces papaya juice 
2 ounces pineapple juice 
4 ounces ginger ale 
Lemon and lime peels cut into star shapes with a small cookie cutter 
Ice (optional) 
Maraschino cherry (optional) 
 
In a tall glass mix together juices and ginger ale.  Add ice and lemon and lime peel stars to 
garnish.  (Optional: add maraschino cherry in between two stars on a fancy toothpick and add to 
drink.) 
 
Peas on Earth Cupcakes 
1 cooled cupcake 
Chocolate frosting 
Crushed Oreo cookie 
3 or 4 green candy peas, mini  
jaw breakers, or Skittles 
Half a gummy worm 


 


Frost cupcake; sprinkle Oreo “dirt" on top.  
Draw a line through the frosting with a 
butter knife across the top of the cupcake.  
Plant a row of peas across the cupcake and 
stick the gummy worm in the garden soil.  
You can also make a “Peas” Sign with a 
piece of paper and a popsicle stick to stake 
in your garden row. 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 


Pigskin Crescents 
 
As the boy’s thoughts turn to football, these biscuits with smoked sausages in them are a great 
game-time treat.  Have them whip up a batch and while they are baking, play flag football or 
even tabletop football. When the biscuits are done, serve hot with mustard or ranch dressing. 
 
3 cups all-purpose flour 
1 tablespoon sugar 
2 teaspoons baking powder 
1/2 teaspoon baking soda 
1/4 teaspoon salt 
4 tablespoons butter, cut into 1/4” pieces 
1/2 cup finely grated cheddar cheese 
3/4 cup buttermilk 
18 mini smoked sausages 
 
Pre heat oven to 400 degrees.  Grease a large baking sheet and set aside.  Sift first 5 ingredients 
into large mixing bowl.  Scatter butter pieces over dry mixture and using fingertips, rub the 
butter into the flour mixture until it becomes crumbly.  Gently toss in the cheese to evenly 
distribute.  Make a well in the dry mixture and pour buttermilk into it.  Stir well with a wooden 
spoon.  Let dough sit for 3 minutes.   Sprinkle some extra flour over the dough, then stir it once 
or twice, and turn it out onto a floured board.  With floured hands, pat the dough into a 15”x17” 
rectangle, handling as little as possible so the biscuits will be tender.  Slice the rectangle into 
thirds first horizontally then vertically.  Then slice the 9 smaller rectangles diagonally to create 
18 triangles.  One at a time, roll up the little sausages in the triangles starting with the wide side 
working toward the point.  Place the wrapped sausages pointy end down on the baking sheet and 
bake for 12-13 minutes.  Let cool slightly. 


 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


A list of possible midway activities and 
the requirements they fulfill can be 
found on the next page in the POW 
WOW diskette 


Making Fun Bean Bags 
This is a fun way to make bean bags and teach 
about recycling. 
1. Have each boy bring several CLEAN worn 


out socks from home. 
2.   Cut the sock horizontally. (tube shape) 
3. Sew the bottom edge. (It is okay to leave the 


raw edge out) 
4. Fill the sock with beans, rice or sand. Leave a 


little space to sew the top. 
5. Sew the top edge. 
6. Have them decorate the bean bags with fabric 


paint. 


THEME MIDWAY 
 


Get Everyone Involved 
· Have each den plan, set-up, and staff one midway activity. 
· Ask others in the scouting organization to help. The Cub Master, Cub Committee, and COR 


Representatives can each set-up a midway activity. 
· Have families in the den prepare a midway activity. 
 


Teach about Scouting 
• ·Ask each midway to incorporate one of the 12 Core Values in their midway. 
• ·Pass off requirements when doing these 


activities. 
• ·Keep in mind other requirements they 


can pass off while doing these activities, 
(sports and academic belt loops and pins). 


• ·Have the den teach something about their 
den. The Webelos could incorporate their 
20 activity badges into the activity. The Cub master could teach some of the basic thing in 
getting the Bobcat Badge. 


 


Make it Fun 
1.  Let them earn "cub money" the month/months before to be used at the 


midway. It is also nice to provide some sort of service project they can 
do at the midway to earn a little more money when they run out early. 
(pick up trash, wash windows, etc.)  


2. Have an "outdoor" themed midway. Adapt games to the outdoor. 
• Dip your bean bags in water before throwing them or make water bean bags out of 


Ziploc plastic bags. 
• Have a tug-of-war with a small 


pool in the middle. 


• Catapult water balloons. Staple 
a plastic bowl to the end of the 
catapult that will hold the 
water balloons. 


• Use water guns and make plastic plate targets with water-soluble 
markers that will run. (See 8 June 2001 Program Helps Book) 


3.  Cupcake or Popsicles walks are always fun as treats. 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 2 
 


PASSING OFF REQUIREMENTS 
 


 
Webelos  
1.Make a target board and have the scouts 
practice heaving a rope at the target board. 
(Aquanaut p 29 Webelos Leader Book, Bear 
Book page 244) 
2. Backyard obstacle course (Athlete p. 37 
Webelos Leader Book) 
3. Catapult beanbags (Engineer p. 68 


Webelos Leader Book ) 
4.  Two-Person Saw Contest (Forester p. 


84 Webelos Leader Book) 
5. Knotting contest (Outdoorsman p. 106 


Webelos Leader Book) 
6. Vinegar & Air Rockets (Scientist p. 127 


Webelos Leader Book) 
7. Musical Chairs (Showman p. 136 


Webelos Leader Book) 
8. Soccer Dodge ball, Sidewalk Tennis, 


Home Golf, Backyard Hockey, Bicycle 
Confidence Course, Bean Bag Baseball 
(Sportsman p. 139-142 Webelos Leader 
Book) 


 
 
 
 
Bear 
1. Bike course (Bear Book p. 98) 
2. Backyard golf, Sidewalk shuffleboard 


(Bear Book p. 103) 
3. Fitness contest (Bear Book p. 107-111) 
4. Make a car or boat. Set-up a small race 


at Pack Meeting. (Bear Book p. 133) 
5. Knot Tying Contest (Bear Book p. 138) 
6. Magic Tricks (Bear Book p. 204) 
7.  Back yard Gym (Bear Book p. 222) 
8.  Dart Throw with a U.S. Map, Make cards 
     with 30 cities on them, have contestant 
      try to throw the dart at the correct city. 


 
 
 
 
Wolf 
1. Obstacle Course (Wolf Book p. 39) 
2. Eagle Golf (Wolf Book p. 89) 
3. Bean Bags (Wolf Book p. 89) 
4. Pie Tin Washer Toss (Wolf Book p. 122) 
4. Marble Sharp Shooter (Wolf Book 


p. 122) 
6. Ring toss (Wolf Book p. 123) 
7. Bean Bag Toss at the correct city (Wolf 


Book p. 124) 
8. Stilt Walk (Wolf Book p.140) 
9. Puddle Jumpers (Wolf Book p. 141) 
10. Foot Racers (Wolf Book p. 141) 
11. Obstacle Race Outside (Wolf Book  
      p. 191) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Scouting the Midway  August 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES 
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Sports Extravaganza, Toughen Up National Theme – August 2002, August 2000 


 Field Day Ideas, Cub Scout Fitness 
Day, Obstacle Course Ideas, Cub 
Scout Midway Ideas, Nature and 
Outdoor & Fun in the Sun Activities 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 9-11, 
9-12, 9-25, 9-32. sect 8 & 9,  


 Field Day Ideas, Summer 
Celebration Ideas, Welcome to the 
Midway Ideas 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 6-15, 
6-18, 6-20 


 Fitness & Fair/Circus Theme Craft 
Ideas  


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 3 or 
(rev.2002) 2-5 


Ceremonies Instant Recognition Balloons, Shape 
up for Fitness Ceremony, Baseball & 
Fitness Advancement Ceremonies, 
Academic & Sports Awards 
Ceremony 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 2-4, 5-9, 
8-4, 10-3 


 Baseball, or Fitness Advancement 
Ceremonies Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 8-4 


Applauses & 
Cheers 


Baseball, basketball, bicycle, golf, 
homerun, relay 


All the Applauses We Could Find 
(alphabetical) 


 Baseball, basketball, fitness, golf, 
joggers, physical fitness, relay Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 


 Relay, baseball Crazy Cory’s pg 96, Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg 
77 


Games Games Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 2 or 
(rev.2002) sect 3 


 Frisbee Golf Game The Best of Scout and Youth Games pg 48 
Academic and 


Sports Pins 
Badminton, Baseball, Basketball, 
Bicycling, Flag Football, Golf, 
Gymnastics, Physical Fitness, Roller 
Skating, Soccer, Softball, Table 
Tennis, Tennis, Ultimate, Volleyball  


Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 
Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Webelos Athlete, Fitness, Sportsman 


Webelos Book 


 Bear Achievement 15-Games, 
Games, Games, 16-Building 
Muscles, 23-Sports, Sports, Sports 


Bear Book 


 Bear Elective 18-Backyard Gym, 20-
Sports Bear Book 


 Wolf Achievement 1-Feats of Skill, 
4-Play Games, 5-Foot Power, 9-Let’s 
Have a Party 20-Sports  


Wolf Book 


 
 
  


���


Which goalkeeper can jump higher than  
a cross bar? 


All of them.  A crossbar can’t jump! 


Why are basketball players never  
asked for dinner? 


Because they are always dribbling! 












Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Museum of Natural History:  Discover what animals roamed the State of Utah in the past. Dig 
for fossils. Try and find as many different rocks with different names as you can. How are 
insects helpful to humans? Visit with den, pack, or as a family and rediscover Utah. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
Activities: Speakers-historian, librarian, storyteller 


Make family time capsules 
Show "movies" dens have made 
"Future" skits, games 
"Future" fashion show, toy show, TV shows 


 
Menu:  "History Making" Hamburgers "Voyager" Vanilla Root Beer Floats  


 "Time Travel" Tater Casserole "Millennial" Marshmallow Treats 
"Futuristic" Fried Chicken  "Big Bang" Banana Splits  
 


 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


WHO AM I IN 2004? 
NAME________________ 
AGE _________________ 
DATE________________ 
TIME________________ 
WHERE YOU ARE NOW: 
 
YOUR FAVORITE TV SHOW: 
 
YOUR FAVORITE MOVIE: 
 
WHAT IS SPECIAL ABOUT YOU? 
 
WHAT IS YOUR MOST IMPORTANT GOAL? 
 
WHAT IS IN THE NEWS? 
 
WHO ARE THE HISTORY MAKERS OF TODAY? 


THIS CAN BE PUT IN A PACK TIME CAPSULE MADE BY EACH 
PERSON ATTENDING PACK MEETING. 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUBMASTER MINUTE--“TIDBITS” 
 


• Living on Earth is expensive, but it does include a free 
trip around the sun every year 


• How long a minute is depends on what side of the 
bathroom door you're on. 


• Birthdays are good for you; the more you have-- the 
longer you live. 


• Happiness comes through doors you didn't even know 
you left open. 
Ever notice that the people who are late are often much 
jollier than the people who have to wait for them? 


• Some mistakes are too much fun to only make once. 
• A truly happy person is one who can enjoy the scenery on a detour. 
• We could learn a lot from crayons: some are sharp, some are pretty, some are dull, some 


have weird names, and all are different colors, but they all exist very nicely in the same 
box. 


 


“WHAT WILL WE HAVE  
IN THE FUTURE?” 


Could be Gathering or opening. 
Ask everyone to think of something that will 
change in the future and tell about it 
(something that will be different in the next 
40 years).  For instance, will we all have a 
cellular phone number assigned to us at birth 
that we will keep our whole lives?  What 
about worldwide money?  Will we eliminate 
the electric cord so all appliances will be 
cordless?  Will your property be enclosed in 
a clear bubble so it will be like summer all 
year? What do you think the future will be 
like? 


These aliens make cute woggle/tie 
slides.  Cut out of thin wood with 
skill saw, paint, glue a chenille stem 
on back. 


“OTHER PLANET” 
FLAG CEREMONY 


 
Cubmaster is in astronaut gear, den 
chiefs/den leaders dressed as aliens.  The 
Cubmaster is trying to put the flag on this 
new planet.  The aliens are curious about 
what he is doing and ask him lots of 
questions.  What is that?  What is he 
doing with it?  Where he is from?  All 
questions lead to the fact that he is 
putting the flag on this planet to claim it 
for the USA and Cub Scout Pack ____.  
The last remark would be, “I hereby 
claim this planet for the USA and Pack 
____.  Please join me in the pledge. 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 


Back to the Future in a Time Capsule           By Carol Shaw Lord 


Before the meeting place the awards for 
each boy in a little “Time Capsule” (plastic 
bottle).  


Curtain opens to show a big Time Capsule 
Machine made from a big appliance box 
with Christmas lights, knobs and etc. 


Boy 1: What in the world is that? 


Boy 2: It looks cool! 


Boy 3: Whatever it is, I want one, too! 


Boy 4: I got my grandma to help me and 
we invented a back to the future 
time capsule.  That old lady is sure 
one smart cookie!  There’s a lot of 
gray matter under that gray hair. 


Boy 1: You invented a what? 


Boy 4: A back to the future time capsule! 


Boy 1: What does it do? 


Boy 2: How does it work? 


Boy 3: I want to try it! 


Boy 4: It works really slick.  You just get 
into it, I enter a few instructions 
into the modem’s programming 
sequence, and it will take you into 
the future. 


Boy 1: I’m not sure I’m ready for the 
future yet. 


Boy 2: Can we ever get back? 


Boy 3: What happens if I turn this knob? 


Boy 4: Sure you can come back.  That’s 
the genius of it.  You go way off 
into the future,  


 see what life will be like for a few 
years, and come back to just a few 
seconds after you left. 


Boy 1: Sounds really interesting. 


Boy 2: Are you sure it’s safe? 


Boy 3: Me first!  Me first! 


Boy 4: (Boy 1), you can go first.   


Each boy goes into the time capsule, the 
inventor turns some knobs, lights flash and a 
funny noise is made.  Then the boy in the 
machine comes out with a simple costume 
showing what he will be in the future.  When 
they come out they say: 


Boy 1: Oh, boy!  I always wanted to be a 
doctor. 


Boy 2: A computer programmer makes 
lots of money. 


After boy 3 goes in and the effects are seen 
and heard, the door opens and out comes a 
big frog.  Close curtain.  


Cubmaster:  Boys, that was a really funny 
skit.  I am glad that we don’t have to worry 
about any of you turning into a frog.  You 
will all be great men because you are 
making good choices now.  Your future will 
become what you make of it by the things 
that you learn and the choices you make.  
Tonight we want to honor some boys who 
have made good choices and worked hard.   
 
 
 FUTURE  
 
 BACK  


 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


SPEAK AND DO THE OPPOSITE 
 


Each team sends a person to challenge a member of another team. The 
person challenging says something like, “I AM PATTING MY HEAD” but 
in fact they are rubbing their tummy. The person being challenged has to say 
in reply  “I AM RUBBING MY TUMMY,” while at the same time patting 
his head. If he fails to do it property in a given time, or gets it the wrong 
way round, then the challenging team wins a point. 


 
 


KEEP TALKING 
 
This is a knockout competition.  It is played in twos. Each person has to keep talking to the other 
person. It doesn’t matter what they are talking about, but there must be no repetition or pauses. 
You will need a referee to decide the winner of each pair. Often the younger scouts do much 
better than the older scouts in this game. 
 
Just a few ground rules. The pauses have to last at least 2 seconds.   “Common strings,” like 
letters, numbers, months. etc., can only be a maximum of 12 in a row.  You can’t touch your 
competitor.  ONLY the (adult) judge can call a boy out for repetition. This is a great “I need it in 
a hurry” game! 
 
 


CUB 2004 
 


You will need • A sheet of paper fan folded into 6 sections 
(for each den or patrol): • a pen or pencil 
 
The cubs sit in a circle in their dens. The denner is given the fan-folded sheet of paper and a pen. 
The rest of the den members close their eyes--this makes the final result more fun. The denner 
then draws, on the first section, a hat suitable to he worn by a scout in the 21st century. Paper is 
passed onto the next cub who draws the head on the second section. This is continued with the 
shoulders, body, legs, and feet. Open out the paper at the end to see the strange 21st century 
cub that the den has drawn. 
 
 


 


 


 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


 
SPACE THE FINAL FRONTIER— 


ANOTHER ADVENTURE WITH STAR TREK 
 
NARRATOR—Space the final frontier.  These are the voyages of 
the _____ Den from _________________, United States of America, 
Earth.  Its mission: to explore strange new worlds, seek out new life 
forms and new civilizations, to boldly go where no Den Leader has 
ever dreamed of going. 
Capt. Kirk, Dr. McCoy, Mr. Spock enter with several Cub Scouts. 


 
Dr. McCoy—Jim, when you had me beam down, I didn’t know that you needed help with your 


Cub Scouts!  
Capt. Kirk—But I need help with this.  Besides, you’ve already beamed down. 
Dr. McCoy--We have been through a lot together, but this is really beyond reason. 
Capt. Kirk—Look, these Cubs are all signed up for Cub Scout Day Camp, and no one else 


could go.  All I want is a little assistance. 
Mr. Spock—Sounds logical to me. 
Capt. Kirk—Then you’ll try it? 
Dr. McCoy—Well, I suppose.  We are already here.  How hard can it be?  
 
NARRATOR--A few hours later. 
 
Cub Scout #1—Can’t we go to the snack bar, I’m hungry. 
Dr. McCoy—We just barely ate lunch. 
Cub Scout #2—I need to go to the bathroom and that place smells. 
Mr. Spock—It is illogical that Tommy can’t stay with us.  Where is he---again? 
Cub Scout #1—Can’t we go to the trading post?  This is boring.  
Cub Scout #3—Look at this pretty plant I picked.  It has three leaves and it is pretty and glossy.  


Can we eat the white berries? 
Dr. McCoy—Good grief! It’s Poison Ivy!  Throw it down.  Darn it Jim, I’m a Doctor, not a Den 


Leader.  I can’t do this any more. [Presses chest], Scotty, beam me up, beam me up right 
now. 


Mr. Spock—For once I have to agree with the Dr., [hits his chest] Scotty, beam me up too. 
Capt. Kirk—Hey, wait a minute, you guys—


you can’t desert me in the middle of this….. 
 


By Val Chatwin 
 
 
 
 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 2 
 


BRAGGING SCIENTIST 
 
US SCIENTIST—We put a man on the moon in 1969. 
RUSSIAN SCIENTIST—Big deal we put Sputnik up in 1961, and we are 


going to send a team to the sun. 
US SCIENTIST—You’re mad!  They will burn up before they even get 


close.  
RUSSIAN SCIENTIST— Don’t worry, we have things under control.  
We’re sending them at night, so it isn’t so hot. 
 


BEAM ME UP 
 
Scout walks on stage, looks around slowly, then says: 
“Scotty, the aliens are very unfriendly!  Quick!  Beam me up! 
Scout 2 walks around, drops a 2x4 beam on the ground with a loud ‘thunk’. 
 


LEAVING 
 
Scout 1 walks across the area scattering handfuls of leaves that he takes from a big bag.   
Scout 2 approaches and asks:  ‘What are you doing”. 
Scout 1:  ‘I’m leaving!” 


 
CLIMB THAT 


 
Two scouts meet, and the first scout begins to brag that he can climb 


anything.   
Scout 1:  Can you climb that tree?  
Scout 2:  Sure, I’ve done it lots of times. 
Scout 1:  Can you climb the steep hill over there? 
Scout 2:  No problem for me. 
Scout 1:  How about the Empire State Building? 
Scout 2:  Did it! 
Scout 1:  How about Mount Everest? 
Scout 2:  Boy that was a cold day.  I’ve done that to.  I told 


you, I can climb anything. 
Scout 1: I’ll bet you ten bucks I can show you  something you 


can’t climb. 
Scout 2:  You’re on! 
Scout 1 pulls out flashlight and shines the beam up into the 


sky.  “All right.  Climb that!” 
Scout 2:  Are you crazy?  No way! 
Scout 1:  I know you would back out.  Now pay up! 
Scout 2:  I won’t pay because it’s not fair.  I know you!  I’d 


start climbing, and when I get halfway up you’d turn the flashlight off!  







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 
WOOD FRAME 
 
Materials 


Wood frame 
Tissue paper or Acrylic paints 
Mod Podge 
Ribbon for hanger 


 
No. 1: Get wooden frame from craft store. Tear yellow and blue tissue paper into small pieces. 
Cover frame with mod podge. Place tissue papers onto frame. Cover tissue paper with mod 
podge to seal. When tissue is done, let dry.  Glue ribbon on back for hanger. Use acid free scotch 
tape to secure picture in place. You can write on frame when dry. 
 
No. 2: Use acrylic paint to paint your frame. Glue ribbon on back for hanger. 
 
 


ROCKET:  
 
Materials:  


Toilet paper tube (empty)  
Card stock 
Glue 
Other assorted items to decorate 


 
Take toilet paper tube and paint or cover with colored paper of your choice.  Cut 
out fins and cone of rocket. Glue together and decorate as desired. 


 
 
 
SPACE RING TOSS GAME:  
 
Materials: 


Wire hanger 
Paper plates 
Sequins 
Stapler 
Glue 


 
Begin by placing 2 paper plates together.  Staple it or glue them together.  Decorate the 
spaceships with sequins. Take your hanger and stretch it out forming a circle. Hang your hanger 
where you can throw the space ships through it. 
 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 


 
FLOWER GARDEN 


 
Cut bottom 4 1/2" x 4 1/2" from 1/2 inch wood. 
Use Craft sticks for fence. Length of sticks  
is determined by height of pot. Glue 3/8” 
popsicle (craft) sticks horizontally for fence rail. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


   GARDEN OF WEEDIN’ SIGN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enlarge on cardstock, then have scouts color.  Laminate, then staple on top of a paint stick. Put in 
the Garden and use as an excuse for not weeding. 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 


 
SONG  THE ASTRONAUT’S PLEA 
Tune: “My Bonnie Lies Over the Ocean”  
 
I went for a ride in a spaceship, 
The moon and the planets to see. 
I went for a ride in a space ship, 
Now listen what happened to me. 
 
Chorus 
Bring back, bring back, 
O bring back my spaceship to me, to me, 
Bring back, bring back, 
O bring back my spaceship to me 
 
2nd Verse 
I went for a ride in a spaceship, 
The capsule was crowded and I, 
Developed a cramp in my muscles, 
So decided to walk in the sky, Chorus 
 
3rd Verse 
I went for a walk in my spacesuit 
The ship was controlled from the ground, 
And someone in charge down at NASA, 
Forgot I was walking around. Chorus 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
JET: Swish your hand across in front of you like a jet, and clap your hands  twice very fast.  
SATELLITE: Move right hand in circle overhead, opening and closing fist while saying in high 


voice, “Gleep, gleep, gleep, gleep!” 
MAN IN THE MOON: Circle face with hands and say, “I eat green cheese.”  
UFO:  Open and close your fingers and say, “Blink, blink, blink”. 
SPOCK:   “Very logical.” 
CAPTAIN KIRK: A panicky Cubmaster yells, “Beam us aboard, Scotty, beam 
us aboard!”  Assistant Cub Master pushes a wooden board onto floor.  CM has 
everyone say, “Oh, Great!” 
 


RUN-ON FUN 
 
1. Why did the robot cross the road? 
2. How fast does light travel? 
3. My teacher wants us to watch the 


eclipse of the moon tonight. 
4. What did the launch director say to the 


astronaut after he blasted into space? 
5. Why do astronauts go to the Doctor 


before going into outer space? 
6. What do moon people do when they 


get married? 
7. How did the astronauts serve dinner in 


outer space? 


ANSWERS 
1. Because the chicken told him to. 
2. I’m not sure but it gets here too 


early in the morning. 
3. What channel is it on? 
4. You’re fired. 
5. To get their booster shots. 
6. They go off on their ‘honeyearth.’ 
7. On flying saucers. 


 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 


 
MORE CHEERS 


 
MERCURY:  Say, “Mercury is the closest planet to the sun.  
One day is 88 days long.  The shaded side is 350 degrees below 
zero.  The sunny side is 770 degrees.”  Everyone jump up and 
down like your feet are burning. 
 
VENUS—2nd closest to sun.  It is very hot, covered with clouds 
and has lightning  storms.  Fan yourself, jump, pretend to dodge 
the lightning, Say, “That was a good one.”  
 
SATURN—Second largest gaseous planet, surrounded by rings 
of ice & gravel.  Has 9 moons, some as big as Earth, and they 
are more habitable than the planet.  It is very beautiful. Say, “Beautiful.” 
 
 
 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 


September 2 - Race Your Bathtub Day 
September 22 - Elephant Appreciation Day  
 
Back To School Cookie Exchange 
For back-to-school lunch box treats and ideas,  have each boy bring 2 dozen cookies and the 
recipe on a 3x5 card.  1/2 dozen to eat and 1-1/2 to exchange.  (Be sure to have extra cookies on 
hand in case a boy forgets.)  Let the boys take home the cookies and the next den or pack 
meeting, supply them with a copy of the recipes. 


 
Caramel Turtles 
These make a great gift idea for the hard-to 
please dad or a service project.  Wrap 
individually in green plastic for turtle effect, 
or between layers of waxed paper in a 
covered container. 
 
1 1/3 cups pecan halves 
18 squares caramel candies, individually 
wrapped 
1/2 cup semisweet chocolate chips or 
chopped chocolate 
 
Preheat oven to 350 degrees.  Slice or break 
pecan halves lengthwise to make slivers for 
four feet, head and tail.  For each turtle, 
arrange six nut pieces as shown here on a 
foil lined cookie sheet.  Unwrap one caramel 
square and cut it in half.  Set one half on top 
of each cluster of nut pieces.  Without 
disturbing the arrangement, place cookie 
sheet in oven for 3-4 minutes.  Watch 
carefully so nuts don’t burn.  The caramels 
will melt onto the nuts forming the turtle’s 
shell.  Remove tray from oven and set a few 
chocolate chips on each “shell.” return to the 
oven for a few seconds to melt the 
chocolate.  Spread the chocolate with the 
back of a spoon.  Remove foil from baking 
sheet and let turtles cool completely.  Makes 
36 turtles. 
 


 
Individual Baked Alaska 
In the Dog Days of September when school 
has started and its too hot to do anything, 
Baked Alaska will awaken the curiosity 
within.  (How can you put ice cream in a hot 
oven and not have it melt??) 
 
4 cupcakes 
1/2 pint ice cream 
4 egg whites 1/4 cup sugar 
 
Fill hollowed-out cupcakes with ice cream; 
freeze at least 4 hours.  Make meringue by 
whipping egg whites until stiff.  Then, still 
whipping, add sugar until the mixture is the 
consistency of marshmallow cream.  Spread 
the meringue on the cupcake with a knife, 
and then quickly brown for three minutes 
under the broiler.  Serve immediately. 
 
Caramel Apple Cider 
1 package caramel apple wraps  
(sold in the produce department  
of grocery stores), Lollypop sticks  
(sold in craft stores), 1 gallon apple cider 
 
Cut each wrap into thirds and wrap around a 
lollypop stick wide end to point.  Heat up 
cider and pour into mugs.  Drop caramel 
swizzle stick in and stir gently.  Top stick 
with fresh apple chunk. 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 
 


Apple Candle Holders 
 


apple corer 
large red apples (try to pick apples that will sit straight on the table)  
candles 
waxed paper  
potato peeler  
lemon juice 
 
Using the apple corer, make a hole halfway through the middle of the 
apple, trying to keep it as straight as possible and remove the core 
piece.  The candle should fit tightly; if the hole is too large, wrap 
waxed paper around the candle end.  Carve designs into the apples 
with the tip of the potato peeler.  To prevent carved parts from turning 
brown, rub with lemon juice.  For a base, use plate or cutting board.  
Discard within 2-3 days. 


 
 
 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 


THEME MIDWAY 
 


Time in a Capsule is …  a moment in time ...a memory ... memorabilia ...Time capsules... 
 
You can capture your own time in a capsule by: 
 


• Have your boys write a poem about their feelings regarding something in their life. 
 
• Make a poster collage of pictures that say something about who they are. This can fulfill 


Bear Elective 9 or Webelos Art achievement. 
 


• Have the boy’s parents write a letter to the boy to be opened at a later date. You could 
mail it back to them in five or ten years. 


 
• Fulfill all requirements for Bear Achievement # 8. Video or tape record conversations on 
 Requirements b & d.  


 
• Collecting information and items then creating a time capsule. 


     To create your own capsule to put things in, take two   plastic 
soda bottles and cut the tops off.  Then fill the capsule.  
     Some of the things you might want to include are: your name, 
personal description of  yourself as you are now (your height, 
weight, color of hair and eyes etc.), your age, school 
that you attend, who your family is, (include full 
given names as well as nicknames)  List some of 
your favorite things, such as teachers, friends, 
foods, songs, games, sports, T.V. programs, and 
movies.  Other things might be personal, such as  a 
letter from yourself about what you hope for the 
future. Perhaps some mementos of special people or 
events in your life could be added. 
     When the capsule is full, (the fuller the better so 
there is less oxygen in the capsule), slide one open 
end of the soda bottle into the open end of the other 
and have someone hold it while you seal it with 
duct tape. Then, take some white glue and thin it 
with water. With a brush, cover the outside of the 
soda bottle capsule.  Roll the capsule in wrinkled 
aluminum foil to give it a real space age look.  
Don’t forget to put a label on the outside of the 
capsule identifying who it belongs to and when it 
should be opened. 


 


 







Time In A Capsule  September 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
 


CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 
(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 


Extra Ideas Turn Back the Clock, Discover our 
Family Heritage 


National Theme – February 2000, November 
1999 


 Western Festival Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 9-28 
 Communicating Your Pack’s Story Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 12 


Ceremonies Our American Heritage Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 5-5 
 History of Cub Scouting 


Advancement Ceremony, Cub Scout 
Spirit Opening Ceremony, Scouting 
History Closing Ceremony 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 8-9, 5-7, 
6-2 


Belt Loops & 
Pins Heritages Cub Scout Academic and Sports Program 


Guide 
Cub 


Requirements 
Bear Achievement 8-The Past is 
Exciting and Important Bear Book 


 Bear Elective 18-Jot it Down Bear Book 
 
 


MAKE A CUB SCOUT TIME CAPSULE 
 


Have each of the boys write an illustrated short essay about what his life is like now.  
Cub Scout aged boys are most apt to do meaningful creative writing if you give them some help.  
Give them a paper with open-ended questions on it and room to write under each question.  
Some good questions could be:  


 “What is the most fun thing that you like to do?”   
“Tell a funny thing that happened to you.”   
“If you could change one thing in your life, what would you change?”  
“What do you think your life will be like 10 years from now?”   
“What goals do you have for this school year?”   


 
 Make a copy of each essay for the Cub Scout Time Capsule and give the 
originals to the parents to keep (or the other way around).  Then ceremoniously put 
the essays in a time capsule during pack meeting, to be opened in X number of 
years, when you all get together again for a reunion party.  (It could be as little as 
one year or as much as 5 years.  Just remember, the shorter the time, the more 
apt it is to actually happen.)  The “time capsule” could be as simple as a seal-able 
plastic box with a few stickers to decorate it.  Add some pictures of the boys.  
When you have the reunion party and open the time capsule, the boys will be 
surprised to see how much their attitudes and ideas have changed in a year or 
two. 
 


 












It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Idea 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


 PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Conservation Good Turn:  This is an opportunity for Cub Scout packs to join in conservation 
or environmental organizations (federal, state, local, or private) to carry out a Conservation Good 
Turn in their home or communities. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
Activities: Speakers-clown, magician, entertainer 


"Clown college" 
Face Painting 
Den stunt shows 
Pet tricks 


 
Menu:  "Three Ring" Ravioli   "Cracking Whip" Caramel Corn 


"Trapeze" Turkey Dinner  "Performing" Peanut Butter Cookies 
"Clown Car" Cheesy Potatoes "Tight Rope" Turtle Pie 
  


 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


PEANUT SLIDE 
Use whole, shell peanuts. Spray peanuts with clear spray 
paint for a shiny finish. Glue a ring or pipe cleaner on 
back for slide. Families can decorate as desired.. 


FAMILY CIRCUS 
Have each family come up with their own circus 
act.  This can be performed during pack 
meeting.  Or, weeks before the pack meeting ask
families to prepare circus acts to perform. You 
will find some real talent and imagination. 


GET TOGETHER GAME 
Assign each person the name of a different thing found in the 
circus, such as: clown, elephant, trapeze artist, ring master, 
acrobats, etc. When leader says, “Go!” all call out what they are and
gather in a groups (animal or people) as fast as they can.  The group 
gathered first wins.  Use this to divide into teams for the next game. 


 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GATHERING 2 
 


         CIRCUS PEEP SHOW—GATHERING ACTIVITY 
 
Have the following set up around the room as families arrive.  Use shoeboxes 
that are close to the same size.  Have a hole in the front and Christmas lights so 
that there is a light in each box so it can be seen.  Have a label on the front of 
each. 
  


 


1. Rare invisible fish = bowl of clear water  
 
2. Hairless dog = frankfurter 


 
3. Swimming match = match floating in water 
 
4. Ancient Instrument of Torture = hairbrush 


 
5. Ruins of China = Broken glass dishes  


 
6. Diamond Pin = A Dime and a pin 


 
7. Ocean Liner = Sand 
 
8. The five senses = 5 pennies 
 
9. World’s hardest head = Hammer head 


 
10. Famous conductor = Electric plug 


 
11. Big Foot = Ruler 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


‘GIANT’—Costume Idea 
One boy sits on the other’s shoulders.  Use a 
blanket for the lower robe to hide the head 
and body of the boy on the bottom.  Make a 
clown neck ruffle to hide the blanket. Put 
pom-pom buttons down front.   







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GATHERING 3 
 
 
CIRCUS CLOWN DOT-TO-DOT 
 
 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 


“CIRCUS PERFORMERS” FLAG CEREMONY 
 
(Idea:   have boys or leaders dress up as the following circus performers; 
or, have pictures of each) 


It is so fun to go to the circus when it comes to town.  The people 
that perform have jobs and specialties that we find extraordinary. These 
people are all citizens of the United States, just as we are: 


The CLOWNS make sure that they vote at every election.  A lot 
of times it is by absentee ballot, because they are on the road.  But they 
know a good citizen of the US studies the issues and votes.  


The AERIALISTS are strong, agile, and brave-- but they obey the 
traffic laws in each city because a good citizen of the US doesn’t break 
the laws. 


The LION TAMER was called up to go to fight in Iraq.  The circus misses him, but he 
left because a good citizen of the US defends his country when needed. 


The RINGMASTER always recycles his garbage and never just throws away papers, 
cans, or plastic bags, because the US doesn’t need a citizen that destroys or trashes the land.   


The DOG TRAINER makes sure his dogs don’t run lose through the neighborhood, 
because a good citizen of the US takes care of his property and respects the rights of others. 


All the performers are good parents, educate their children, and prepare them to work and 
be good citizens, because a good citizen of the US is also a good parent. 
To be a circus performer takes unusual talents.   
To be a good citizen takes love for country.  Let us pledge allegiance to the flag of our country. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUBMASTER MINUTE—“GOD LOVES YOU” 
 
If God had a refrigerator, your picture would be on it. 
If He had a wallet, your photo would be in it.  
He sends you flowers every spring, and He sends you a sunrise every morning, 
He gives you forests to walk through and mountains to look at and seashores to marvel at. 
Whenever you want to talk, he listens. 
Sometimes you do things that He shakes His head over, 
But He puts His arms around you anyway. 
Face it friend, he is crazy about you! 
God didn't promise days without pain,  
Laughter without sorrow,  
Sun without rain,  
But he did promise  
Strength for the day,  
Comfort for the tears,  
And light for the way. 
 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 
                    THE CLOWN’S VISIT                         by Carol Shaw Lord 
 
Clown: Good morning, kiddies!  I’m happy to see you this bright, 


beautiful morning!  (Doffs hat and bows with a flourish.) 
 
Cubmaster: Psst!  It’s not morning! 
 
Clown: (Puts hat back on.)  Oh, pickle smoke!  I must be mixed up again!  Let me start 


over.  (Doffs hat and bows again.)  Good evening, kidlets!  I’m really sorry to 
disturb you in the middle of the night.  (Cubmaster: shakes his head, but doesn’t 
say anything.)  What a nice looking group we have here.  I love to see families 
together – boys and gerbils, with their parrots. 


 
Cubmaster: That’s boys and GIRLS with their PARENTS. 
 
Clown: Whatever!  It’s the thought that counts.  Your Cubmaster: here tells me that you’ve 


been very malodorous lately. 
 
Cubmaster: No!  Not malodorous!  That means stinky.  I didn’t say malodorous. 
 
Clown: Oops!  Sorry!  I didn’t mean malodorous.  Even if you ARE stinky it would be 


really rude of me to say so, now wouldn’t it?  He said that you’ve all been very 
preposterous.   


 
Cubmaster: No, no!  I didn’t say they were preposterous!  That means silly.  They haven’t been 


VERY preposterous. 
 
Clown: Oh, excuse me!  I can never get things right.  I didn’t mean you have been 


preposterous.  I’m the one who’s preposterous.  I meant to say that he said you were 
all very rambunctious.   


 
Cubmaster: Rambunctious?  I didn’t say rambunctious.  That would mean that they are wigglely 


and noisy.   
 
Clown: (Dolefully) Oh, I would never say that boys could be wigglely and noisy.  


(Scratches head.)  What DID you say? 
 
Cubmaster: I said the boys in our pack are very GENEROUS. 
 
Clown: Germ-erous?  Oh, no!  I have been sick enough.  (Pulls out a big hanky and covers 


his mouth and nose.)  I should have worn a surgical mask.  I shouldn’t even have 
come here.  Germ-erous!  I hate germs!  I’m outta here!  (Leaves, dropping his hat.) 


 
Cubmaster: (Shakes head and shrugs.  Then picks up the hat.)  What can I say?  Anyway, all 


Clowning aside, we do have some awards to give to some special boys this month.  
(Pull awards out of the Clown’s hat.) 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


GAMES 
 


ELEPHANT HUNT 
 


    You will need: 
Colored wool (yarn) to match up with the den’s colors 
Talcum powder 
Plastic plant identification labels 
TIME to lay the trail 


Tell a story to the pack about the elephants who have escaped from the local circus, and the 
circus has asked for the cub’s help in getting the elephants back. The circus tell us that each 
elephant is wearing a colored mat on its back, and each mat matches one of the den’s colors.  
Each den must look for the elephant wearing the den’s color on it’s back. The cubs then follow a 
trail of wool, picking up their colors as they go. They must not pick up any other colors. You 
could tell them how many pieces they should find. The trail divides and finally the colored wool 
disappears. All that can be seen is large (talcum powder) elephant footprints on the ground. 
These all lead to one place where the elephants can clearly be seen, wearing ragged mats on their 
backs, (parents or leaders). But the elephants have been caught by a gang of thieves who will sell 
them back to the Cubs for $200--no more, no less. The cubs are then told that they can gather 
this money from around a certain bush. (This money is the plastic plant tab, stuck into the ground 
around the bush. Each label is marked with an amount of money.) Each den must only take 
labels to equal exactly $200 to pay the thieves for their elephant. Then they take their elephant 
back to the circus where there is sure to be a reward. 
 


CIRCLE THE CIRCLE 
 
Equipment:  two hula hoops, one slightly smaller than the other. 
Scouts must move the hoops around the circle in opposite directions. 
 
Have the boys form a hand-in-hand circle. Place two large hoops together 
between two boys (resting on their grasped hands). See how quickly they can 
cause the hoops to travel around the circle (over the people) in opposite 
directions, through each other (hoop through hoop) and back to the 
originating point. 


 
KANGAROO RELAY 


 
Equipment: balloons, one per team. 
 


Blow up one balloon per group and tie it off at the neck. Form groups of  5-10 and have them 
stand in a single line, front to back facing the same direction. Give the first person in line the 
balloon. Pass the balloon overhead backwards, from the front to the rear of the line. The last 
person carries it back to the front of the line while holding it in between their knees and hopping 
like a Kangaroo. Pass it on and continue until the first person is back at the front of the line. If 
the balloon falls out, put it back and begin hopping again. You may not hold the balloon in place 
with your hands while hopping. 


 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION-- THE TWO CLOWNS 
 
WOULDN’T--   “Do I Have To?”(shrug shoulders, palms out) 
SHOULDN’T—For shame (rub other finger) 
CALLIOPE—Pull an imaginary cord and say “Toot, toot!” 
 
Once there was a well-known circus that had working with them two 
clowns who were always creating problems.  One of them was named 
WOULDN’T and the other was named SHOULDN’T.   


WOULDN’T would never perform and do what he should.  
SHOULDN’T performed and acted when he wasn’t supposed to and 
even when it wasn’t his turn.  


The signal for the clowns to start performing was when the 
CALLIOPE music started.  But what a problem!  WOULDN’T could never be shoved out to do 
his part, and SHOULDN’T couldn’t be pulled out of the ring when it was time to end.  As a 
result, everyone dreaded the sound of the CALLIOPE music.  


Then one day SHOULDN’T got sick, and when the CALLIOPE music started, he was 
lying on his bed.  There was nothing for WOULDN’T to do but go out and perform.  


As he finished his act, the sound of the overwhelming applause reached SHOULDN’T.  
He realized he had always hogged the show.  WOULDN’T hadn’t wanted to perform because he 
couldn’t compete against that.   
As soon as SHOULDN’T was well again, and the CALLIOPE music started, SHOULDN’T 
waved WOULDN’T out to the center of the ring to perform.  This was his way of telling 
everyone that he wasn’t going to hog the limelight any more.  


So now when the CALLIOPE music starts, everyone looks forward to the fine 
performance of WOULDN’T and SHOULDN’T, two of the best Circus clowns 


 
THE STRONG MAN—A PANTOMIME 


 
The strong man enters with a powerful walk, arms flexed, bows to 
audience, and displays arm muscles one at a time. 
Bends down and grasps an imaginary barbell with trembling arms, 
lifts it overhead, lowers it, bows to audience. 
Adds a weight to the end, bends down and grasps barbell, strains to 
lift it, only gets it off the floor a couple of inches, drops it, looks 
disappointed. 
Cups mouth with hand and pretends to call to an assistant off stage.  
Assistant easily, with one hand, carries out box with VITAMINS 


printed on the side, puts it on floor and leaves. [It is funny if the assistant is very small.] 
Strongman scoops several handfuls of imaginary vitamins into mouth, wipes hands on sides, 
leans over and lifts the barbell with great struggle, then lowers it. Bows to audience left and 
right, flexes muscles high above, bows again. 
Strongman turns to go, tries to pick up the vitamin box to take with him.  Amazingly, he can 
barely lift it, and finally struggles off stage with it. 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME CRAFTS 
 


What Circus is complete without costumes and puppets?  Simple costumes often work the best 
and, if well done, are quite impressive. 
 
Moustaches:  There is probably no other disguise that can 
change a person's appearance so quickly as a fine moustache. 
Choose a moustache pattern, draw it on heavy paper or foam, and 
cut it out. Try it on for size. Experiment until you get the hooks 
just right so the moustache will stay in place. 


 
Clown Shoes:  Cut 
shapes from poster-board as 
shown. Cut the centers 
bigger than your ankles, 
then cut slit.  Punch the holes as shown. Decorate your 
shoes. Thread ribbon down through one hole, under your 
shoe, and up through the other hole. Tie in a large bow. 


 
Orange Smile:  Peel an orange, trying to have pieces a little larger than your 
smile. Cut the orange peel into an oval. Cut a slit in the center. Snip up and down 
the slit to make teeth. Put in your mouth between your teeth and your lips.  Smile! 
 
Face Paint:  1 spoonful of soft shortening, 2 spoonfuls of 
corn-starch, food coloring or craft quality acrylic paint. Mix the 
shortening and cornstarch until creamy, add coloring and paint 
your faces. 
 
Shadow Puppets:  The puppets are used in 
front of a white sheet, screen or wall. When 
a light shines on them, they cast 
shadows on the screen, 
Moving parts and 
punched 
holes 
give 
them 
extra 
details. 
 
 
 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 
 


SPIDER 
 
Supplies Needed: Empty egg Cartons 
 Black acrylic paint 
 Wiggle eyes 
 Black pipe cleaners 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Directions: 
1. Cut the cups off an empty egg carton. 


Paint these black with the acrylic paint. 
2. Use a paper clip end or a pushpin to 


poke four holes along the bottom edge 
on one side of the cup. Poke matching 
holes on the opposite side of the cup. 


3. To make fuzzy legs, cut four black pipe 
cleaners into 7 inch lengths. Thread a 
pipe cleaner through one of the holes, 
into the cup, and out the corresponding 
hole on the other side. Make sure the 
ends protrude an equal length from both 
sides of the cup and bend them upward 
at the base of the spider's body. Fold in 
the opposite direction midway down the 
legs to create the knees and bend the 
pipe cleaners to make feet. 


4. Finally, glue on wiggle eyes. 


FLYING BAT 
 
Need:      Black poster board, clothespin, red or yellow construction paper, hole punch, and 
glue. 
 
Directions: Cut a bat shape from the black poster board.  Punch a dot from the construction 
paper and glue to the bat for eyes.  Glue the bat to the clothespin. Hang on a curtain. 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS  
 
 


SONG: FOUND A PEANUT 
   Tune: “Clementine” 
 
1. Found a peanut, found a peanut, 
Found a peanut just now. 
Just now I found a peanut,  
Found a peanut just now. 
 
2. It was rotten, it was rotten, 
It was rotten just now. 
Just now it was rotten, 
It was rotten just now. 
 
(Continue in similar manner 
 with the following verses)  
Ate it anyway…. 
I got sick… 
Called the doctor… 
Had surgery… 
Died anyway… 
Went to heaven… 
Didn’t want me… 
I came back… 
Found a peanut… 
It was rotten… 
Threw it away…  
 
APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
ELEPHANT: Make sound of trumpeting elephant with lips, then use arms 
as trunk and sway them from side to side. Open and close fingers and say, 
“I work for peanuts”   
RINGMASTER:  Leader says “And now, behind me in the center ring, 
the Cubs.” All Cubs respond by yelling “YEOOOOOOOOOOOW.” 
TRAINED CIRCUS FLEA:  Have everyone raise his hands above his 
head.  Applaud by clicking the nails of the thumb and forefinger on each 
hand. 
TRAPEZE ARTISTS: Swing your arms up and down like you are on the bar waiting for  
    someone to swing to you.  Open hands, you catch them successfully.  Smile big, suddenly they  
    fall..  Scream, then smile.  They landed in the net safely.  “Good!”  
CIRCUS TRAIN:  “Chug, a chug, toot, toot.”  Make sounds of the animals on the train. 
LION TAMER:  Have a chair and whip, get the lions on their perches, turn to the audience and 
bow, and then grab bottom when one of the lions comes over and bites you on the bottom. 
CLOWNS:  Boys jump up and down and laugh like crazy. 
JUGGLER: Take out pretend things to juggle, such as eggs, bowling balls, pies, etc.  Drop one 
with a yell. 


RUN ON FUN 
 


1. Why did the turkey join the circus band? 
2. What must you know before you can teach 


a dog new tricks? 
3. How do you get an elephant to follow you? 
4. What side of a leopard has the most spots? 
5. Why did the vampire attack the clown?  
6. Why was Sunshine the clown staring at an 


orange juice can?  
7. Why can't clown noses be 12 inches long?  
8. Why was Sparkle the clown holding a 


mirror in front of her face with her eyes 
closed?  


9. Why did Silly Willy hold his ears when he 
walked by the hen house?  


 
  ANSWERS 


1.   He wanted to use his drumstick. 
2. More than the dog. 
3. Act like a nut. 
4. The outside.  
5. He wanted the circus to be in his blood.  
6. Because it said, "Concentrate."  
7. Because then they would be a foot.  
8. She wanted to see what she looked like 


when she was sleeping.  
9. He didn't want to hear the fowl language. 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
 


SONG  THREE HAPPY CLOWNS 
Tune:  Three blind Mice 


 
Three happy clowns, three happy clowns, 


See how they smile, see how they smile, 


They run and play all around the ring, 


And teach all the people to laugh and sing, 


Have you ever seen such a sight in a ring?  


As three happy clowns.  


 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
October 2 - Name Your Car Day 
October 10 - National Dessert Day 
Last week in October - National Magic Week  
 
Flavored Popcorn  
No circus would be complete 
without popcorn.  Here are some 
wonderfully flavored popcorns for 
crunching and munching. 
 
Tex-Mex Popcorn 
Add a pinch of chili powder to melted 
butter, pour over popcorn and toss. 
 
Pizza Popcorn 
Top with oregano, basil and parsley stirred 
into melted butter. 
 
Cinnamon Popcorn 
Shake popcorn with cinnamon-sugar 
 
 
Tomato Soup With Goop 
Each boy will need: 
1 bowl tomato soup (any kind will do) 
1 1” chunk mozzarella cheese 
1 1-ounce string cheese stick 
 
Heat soup and ladle into bowls.  Have boys 
slide chunk into bowl and tear string cheese 
into strings and drop into soup.  While soup 
is cooling, strings and chunk can be lifted up 
and played with. 
 
 
Arachnid Treats  
2 round crackers 
2 teaspoons peanut butter 
8 small pretzel sticks 
2 raisins 
With peanut butter, make a cracker 
sandwich.  Insert pretzel legs into the filling.  
With a dab of peanut butter, place two raisin 
eyes on top.   


 
 
 
 
Mini Witches Brooms 
Thin pretzel sticks 
Fruit-by-the-foot 
Scissors 
Several drops of water 
 
Cut a 2” length of fruit-by-the-foot.  Make a 
fringe along the length of it, leaving a 1/4” 
border at the top to create broom bristles.  
Dampen finger and run it along the border.  
Twist around the pretzel “handle" wet side 
in. 
 
 
Vanishing White Chocolate Ghosts 
1 12-ounce package white chocolate chips or      
dipping chocolate 
12 popsicle sticks 
24 red hot candies  
 
 
 
Pour chips into a resealables bag and seal. 
Microwave for 1-2 minutes, squishing the 
bag every 30 seconds (watch closely; chips 
burn fast in the microwave).  Or, place the 
bag in a pot of simmering water until the 
chips melt.  Line a cookie sheet with waxed 
paper and place the popsicle sticks on the 
paper leaving 2” between them.  When the 
bag of melted chips feels warm but not hot, 
snip a hole in one corner of the bag and 
squeeze oval shaped ghosts onto the top of 
the sticks, smoothing the chocolate with a 
table knife.  Add two red hots for eyes.  Let 
harden in the refrigerator.  Give them to the 
boys and watch them vanish. 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME MIDWAY 
 
 
Barbell 


 
The world’s strongest man needs something to lift. 
Make a barbell by covering a wrapping paper tube 
with duct tape, then taping a black balloon to each 
end. If your own muscles aren’t as impressive as 
you’d like, put plastic-foam balls or balloons inside 
your sweatshirt. 


 
 


Clown Shoes 
 
Clowns look funnier when they wear things that are way too big. Your clown could wear swim 
fins or oversized tennis shoes, or you could make some big shoes from shoeboxes or tissue 
boxes. Decorate the shoes with paints, colored tape, markers, stickers, and pom-poms. It’s a little 
harder to walk in shoes that are too big, so practice walking carefully in your shoes before your 
performance in the circus. 
 


 
Crazy Clown Car 


 
Build a colorful clown car from a refrigerator box. Have your clowns line 
up behind the car so the audience can’t see them. Then, as fast as you can, 
have them pop out of the car, one right after the other. It will look like all 
those clowns were inside the car! 
 
 


 
 Bucket Switcheroo 


 
Fill a bucket with water, and hide an identical one filled with 
confetti. Two clowns chase each other with the water bucket, 
then run out of sight, where they switch to the confetti 
bucket. As they keep chasing each other, one clown ducks 
just as the other one throws the confetti, which lands on the 
audience. 


 
 
Squirting Flower  
 
Wash a plastic squirt bottle thoroughly and fill it with water. Glue an 
artificial flower onto the end of the bottle, and squirt your friends (with 
their permission) for a funny clown gag. 







It’s a Circus of Stars  October 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council  


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Lights, Camera, Action; Once Upon 


a Time; Abracadabra; Our Gifts and 
Talents 


National Theme – May & October 2003, 
May 2002, October 2000 


 Skits and Costumes; Puppets; Songs, 
Stunts and Stories; Tricks and 
Puzzles 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 4, 
5, 6, & 7 


 Fair/Circus Theme Craft Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) sect 3 
 Puppet Ideas, Skit Ideas, Music & 


Instrument Ideas, Stories, Tricks & 
Magic Ideas 


Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 5-12, 
5-27, 5-37, 5-43, 5-49 


 *Great Magic Tricks* Cub Scout Magic Book 
Thank Yous or 


Awards Hat “Hats off to . . .”  


 Magic Wand “You worked 
Magic____”  


Ceremonies Magic Opening Ceremony Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg. 5-8 
Games Ring Toss Board Games, Juggler toss 


& Ring Toss Games 
Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) pg 2-22, 
2-29 


 Zoo Game Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 3-35 
Applauses & 


Cheers 
Clown, drum, drummer, elephant, 
every man a tiger, jugglers, lion 
tamer, Leo the lion, magic, 
magicians, ring master, strong man, 
tightrope walker 


All the Applauses We Could Find 
(alphabetical) 


 The photographer, the 
cinematographer, magic & messy 
magician  


Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg. 82 & 83 


 Clown, drum, Ferris wheel, fanfare, 
juggling, lion tamer, magic, 
magician, tightrope walker 


Need a Cheer? Find it Here! (alphabetical) 


Songs  “The Cub Scout Show” & 
“Commercial Mix Up” 


Crazy Cory’s vol. 2 pg. 50 & 51 


Cub 
Requirements Webelos Showman Webelos Book 


 Bear Achievement 4-Tall Tales Bear Book 


 Bear Elective 8-Cub Scout Band, 10-
Masks, 13-Magic Bear Book 


 Wolf Elective 2-Be an Actor, 11-
Sing Along Wolf Book 


 
 
 


 


Q: Why did the clown cross the road? 
A: To find his rubber chicken.  


Q: How do you catch a circus elephant? 
 A: Hide in the grass and make peanut 
      noises.  












Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Activity Patch of Month 
Blue & Gold Ideas 
Gathering/ Pre-Openers 
Opening & Closing 
Advancement Ceremonies 
Games 
Skits & Storytelling 
Theme Crafts 
Holiday & Seasonal Crafts 
Songs, Sparklers, Cheers 
Cubs in the Kitchen 
Theme Midway 
Theme Resources 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PATCH OF THE MONTH 
 


Utah Fire Firefighters' Museum & Memorial Tour:  A great place to go to learn about fire 
safely, various types of fire equipment, fire transportation, and modes of communication. 
 
 
 


BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
  
Activities: Speakers-rock collector, postal worker, entomologist 


Collection show & Tell Fair 
Treasure hunt 
"Guess what's in the bag" game 


 
Menu:  "Treasure Hunter" Hoagies  "Postage Stamp" Pudding 


"Collectors" Chili   "Display" Double Fudge Brownies 
"Buggy" Baked Potato Bar  "Card Collection" Cake & Ice Cream 
  


 
 
 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 
 
 


                 TREASURE DIG  
 
Supplies needed:  


• A bucket of sand 
• Objects people would collect, such as shells, leaves, rocks, etc.  


Have each person dig to find the treasure, one per person, then 
encourage him to take their treasure and start a collection. 
 
 
 
 
                                 COLLECTION CONTAINERS 
 
Have either shoeboxes or egg cartons available to decorate.   
Supplies needed: glue, markers, crayons, construction paper, and anything else you want. 
Use your imagination! 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GATHERING/PRE-OPENERS 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 COLLECTIONS LOGIC PUZZLE 
 
The Cubs in pack 3999 have some interesting collections.  Find out  
what each boy collects what and what rank they are in Scouts. 


1. John went over to Jim’s house and took his collection.  He did not like sports much so 
wasn’t interested in baseball players.   


2. John wanted Jim to help him with the Elective where they fingerprint,  
       since Jim had already passed that off the year before. Jim found and ink 
       pad and helped him.   
3. Then he told him about he and his Dad’s collection.  He said he wanted to start collecting 


Baseball cards like the Wolf because his Dad never let him take his collection out of the 
safe deposit box at the bank. 


4. They went over to Randy’s house, his collection took the most knowledge even though he 
was the youngest Scout. 


5. Scott and the Webelos are brothers and didn’t have rocks or butterflies as their collections.


 
ANSWERS TO LOGIC PUZZLE 


John collects coins and is a Bear 
Scott collects baseball cards and is a Wolf 
Jim collects rocks and is a Webelos 
Randy collects butterflies and is a bobcat 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OPENING, CLOSING, AND FLAG CEREMONIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


FLAG CEREMONY    “AN AMERICAN” 
(The following was written by a dentist in Australia) 


 
     "You probably missed it in the rush of news last week, 
but there was a report that someone in Pakistan offered a 
reward to anyone who killed an American, any American. 
So I just thought I would write to let them know what an 
American is, so they will know when they have found one. 
     An American is English, or Italian, Irish, Spanish, Polish,
Russian or Greek. He may also be Mexican, African, Indian, 
Chinese, Japanese, Australian, Iranian, Asian, Pakistani, or 
Afghan. An American may also be a Cherokee, Osage, 
Blackfoot, Navaho, or Apache. 
     An American may be Christian, Jewish, Buddhist, or 
Muslim. In fact, there are more Muslims in America than in 
Iraq. The only difference is, in America each is free to 
worship as they choose. 
     An American is generous.  Americans have helped out 
almost every other nation in the world. When Germans in 
World War II overran France, many Americans died to 
reinstate a free government. As of the morning of 
September 11, Americans had given more than any other 
nation to the poor in Afghanistan, Africa, or Europe.  
     Americans welcome the best, but they also welcome the 
least. The national symbol of America welcomes your tired, 
your poor, the wretched refuse of your teeming shores, the 
homeless, tempest tossed. These, in fact, are the people who 
built America. Some of them were working in the Twin 
Towers on the morning of September 11, earning a better 
life for their families 
     You can try to kill an American if you must. Hitler did. 
So did General Tojo, Stalin, and Mao Tse-Tung, Osama, 
and every bloodthirsty tyrant in the history of the world. 
But, in doing so, you would just be killing yourself, because 
Americans are not a particular people from a particular 
place. They are the embodiment of the human spirit of 
freedom. Everyone who holds to that spirit, everywhere, is 
an American. 
So look around you. You may find more Americans in your 
land than you thought were there.  One day they will rise up 
and overthrow the old, ignorant, tired tyrants that trouble too
many lands. Then those lands, too, will join the community 
of free and prosperous nations.  
And America will welcome them! 
 


“MAP OF THE 
WORLD” 


CUBMASTER MINUTE 
 
A Wolf Cub Scout was at a 
hobby show with his Father 
and Grandfather and their 
coin collections. The Wolf 
became restless after a 
while. Wanting to keep him 
occupied for a little while 
longer, the father opened a 
magazine he had with him.  
He removed a picture of a 
map of the world, tore it 
into small pieces, and told 
him, "Go over there on that 
table and see if you can put 
this puzzle together.”    
After a few minutes the 
Cub returned and handed 
him the map correctly put 
together. The father and 
Grandfather were surprised 
and asked how he had 
finished so quickly. "Oh," 
he said, "on the other side 
of the paper is a picture of a 
family.  When I got the 
family put together, then 
the world came together by 
itself." 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ADVANCEMENT CEREMONIES 
 


The All Purpose, All Occasion, Do Anything, Generic Ceremony Creator 
 


Choose one or more phrases from each list. Add your own personal words for each occasion.  
Assemble appropriate props. 
 
Would the following please come forward: 
 
 Cub Scout(s)   Leader(s)   Den(s)   
 Webelos Scout(s)  , Parent(s)   and Special Guest(s)   
 
Before you is: 
 
 A Candle  A Tripod  A Picture  A Bridge  A Ladder A Stream 
 A Trail  A Branch  A Bucket Akela  A Trail  A Scout Book 
 The Pack  A Box  A Bolt  A Torch  A Flashlight  A Neckerchief  
 Your Leader  A Key A Rock A Drum Your Parents  Other   
 
This Represents: 
 
 The Family  Our Pack The World  Courage The Spirit of Scouting  
 Character Honesty Friendship Good Deeds  Your Advancement  
 Dedication  Your Den The World Our Church  Fun and Adventure 
 Fitness Your Future Our Community Accomplishments Other   
 
You have earned this Award by:  


 
Completing Achievement  Doing Your Best  Selling the Most   
Setting a Good Example  Serving for   years Helping with   
Helping Others  Helping Our Pack   Helping Boys Grow 
Being a Denner  Having the Best Collection  Other  


 
Please accept this award and continue to: 


 
Do Your Best  Work Hard  Grow Strong Follow Akela 
Come To Meetings Help the Pack Go Give Goodwill Follow the Trail 
Help Your Son Be Your Best Make Good Choices Other   


 
Would the rest of the Pack join me in congratulating   for this award? 
Add an appropriate applause. 
 
 
 


SCOUTERS’ TIPS: 
 •  Make sure that you have everything assembled ahead of time and that everything works.   
 •  Have the awards organized so that you can give each boy his without any fumbling around. 
 •  Practice all stunts.  •  Enlist an assistant to help you make things run smoothly. 
 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GAMES 
 


       BLOOP 
 
Equipment: balloons 
Scouts will need to work together to keep the balloon off the floor. 


 
Blow up one balloon per group and tie off the neck.  Scouts gather into groups 
of 4-6. They join hands to form a circle and try to keep the balloon aloft (off 
the floor) by batting the balloon with different body parts including their 
hands, which must remain clasped. If the balloon touches the ground, the 
group can no longer use one of their hands. As this continues, balloons will 
inevitably fall to the floor. Keep removing body parts that are allowed to strike 
the balloon, such as elbows, shoulders, head, thigh. The group that loses their 
feet may recycle to any point of the game that they choose. Another variation 
is to remove all body parts and only use air pressure (blow). Have a scout call 
out Bloop commands; for example: heads only (clockwise), sit down and use 
feet only, etc. 


 
POTATO RACE 


 
Two teams. Give each starting player a fork and a potato. He tosses the 
potato into the air and catches it on the fork, takes it off, and hands it to the 
next player. First team through wins.  
 
 


CANDY COLLECTION 
 


You will need: 
• Drinking Straws 
• Several Bowls (one for each team) 
• M&M~ candies, or some other type of candy with a similar shape 
• A stop watch or watch with a second hand. 


 
Object of the game is to collect as many pieces of candy as possible in a 15 second time limit. 
 
Divide the boys into groups, at least 4 to a group. Give each group a bowl full of candy. Each 
player also needs a straw. When the timer says “GO,” one boy is to place the straw in his mouth 
and suck through the straw, picking up the candy and dumping it on the table in front of him. 
When “Time” is yelled, pass the bowl to the next player. Begin again. The scoring can be done 
individually or as a group. If scoring individually, allow a specific number of opportunities per 
boy. If scoring by group, begin the game, and when time is yelled, the boy must quickly pass 
bowl to the next player, who continues. Discontinue the game after 1 or 2 minutes, depending on 
the number of individuals in the groups. After the game, allow the boys to eat the candy. 


 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


SKITS AND STORYTELLING 
 


 
VEGETABLE PUPPET THANKSGIVING SKIT 


 
Make puppets. 
Pilgrim women--Use a yellow squash, corn silk for hair,  paper towel 
for hat. Draw features 
Pilgrim man—Use Zucchini squash, paper for hair & hat brim, paper 
cup for crown. 
Indian—Ear of corn, paper headband, feathers.  
Turkey—White squash, paper tail. 


 
She:  (crying)   I don’t know what I’m going to do. You’ve invited 150 people for Thanksgiving.  


I don’t have enough dishes.  I don’t know what to serve.  I have nothing to wear.  
 
He: There, there dear.  I’m sorry, it was just one of those things.  I invited a few people and 


before you knew it, word got around and everyone wanted to come.  Even the Indians asked if 
they could come.  I didn’t know what to say. 


 
She:  You could have said, “No!”  150 people!  What am I going to do? 
 
Indian:  [enters] Say, I want to thank you for inviting all the Indians on Thanksgiving. 
 
She:  [Cries]  
 
Indian:  What’s the matter?  Did I say something wrong? 
 
He:  Oh, no.  She is a little upset about Thanksgiving dinner.  There are 150 people coming and 


she doesn’t know what to do. 
 
Indian:  Tell her not to worry about a thing.  Just leave everything to the old “Kernel” here!  I’ll 


help you fix a dinner that’s finger licking good. 
 
He:  You will? But how? 
 
Indian:  It’s easy!  I’m the owner of Plymouth Rock Catering. I will serve my specialty of 


southern fried chicken.  
 
She:  Southern fried chicken. I’ve never heard of it before. How 


does it taste? How do you make it? 
 
Indian:  That’s an old tribal secret, but I promise you will love it.  


Now that’s settled.  A southern fried chicken dinner for 150 on 
Thursday.  Right? 


 
Indian:  Okay, and don’t worry about a thing. 
 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME CRAFTS 
 
 


CUB SCOUT SCRAPBOOK 
 
Materials 
 ¼” wood (9-½” x l2”) 
 2 brass hinges 
 Sand paper 
 Acrylic Paint 
 Leather lacing 
Cut the wood out for boys or have boys assist with adult supervision. Drill two holes for 
fasteners.  Sand edges smooth before painting. Have boys design and decorate covers as wanted. 
Fasten hinges onto front pieces of cover. Use extending fasteners or leather lacing to hold scrap- 
book together. 
 
 
LEAF COLLECTION 
 
Materials 


Leaves 
Cardboard 
Heavy book 
Glue 
Inexpensive 3 Ring binder 
Card Stock 


 
Lay your leaves between layers of cardboard. Put heavy book on top to press the leaves until 
they are dry. Check on them once in a while to make sure they are ok. When completely dry, 
mount them on pieces of cardstock that have holes punched in them. Place pages into your 
binder. Another way to protect your leaves on the cardstock is to get plastic sleeves to slide the 
cardstock into. 
 
 
 
COLLECTOR’S PLATES 
 


Materials: 
Old magazines 
Scissors 
Paper plates, cardboard, wood circle, plastic or play plates 
Gold or silver string 
Glue 


 
Cut out pictures of collector’s plates found on many magazines. Glue these to the paper plates or 
cardboard or wood circle. Then glue the string on the plate for hanger. 


 


 


 


 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


HOLIDAY AND SEASONAL CRAFTS 
 
 


PILGRIM PLACEMATS 
 
For parents, grandparents or a special friend 
 
Materials:    large construction paper in tan, white, yellow, pink and brown. 
Markers, Glue, and clear contact paper 
 
Instructions: Enlarge the following patterns,  then make them from paper.  Cover with contact 
paper. 
 


 
MAYFLOWER CENTERPIECE 


 
Materials Needed: ~A gallon milk or juice carton, X-acto knife, paper bag, white glue, 2 
bamboo skewers, 2 apples, white paper, colored construction paper. 
 


Close and tape shut the opening of a clean carton. Then lay 
it on its side. Using an X-acto knife {a grown up job}, cut out the 
side of the carton that's facing up. Cut 1- inch strips from the paper 
bag and then dip them into a glue mixture {made from 1 part white 
glue mixed with 4 parts water}.  Wrap the strips around the carton.  
Repeat until carton is covered with paper bag panels 


Stick one skewer in each apple and attach white paper sails 
{made by cutting out large white triangles, then cutting the top off 
them}. Attach a triangle flag to the top of each sail.  Set the 
skewered apples in the boat. Invite guests to write down on paper 
slips something they are thankful for. Fold and place the strips in 
the Mayflower for reading before or during your Thanksgiving 
feast. 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 
 
 


SONG:  “IT’S A BUGG-GY WORLD” 
        Tune: “It’s a Small World” 
 
If you’re long and thin and you lay green eggs, 
And you have four eyes and a hundred legs 
Then I guess we’re agreed you’re a small centipede 
In a bug-gy world.  
 
Chorus 
It’s a bug-gy world after all 
It’s a bug-gy world after all 
It’s a bug-gy world after all, 
 It’s a bug filled world. 
 
If you suck the juice of a fly you’ve caught, 
In a web you wove in a shady spot, 
Then with aphid hor d’oeuvre, 
Spider’s dinner is served  
In a bug-gy world 
 
 
SONG: KING ON THE CAMP 
  Tune: “King of the Road” 
 
Flies, Bugs and bumblebees 
Chigger bites on my knees 
Band-aids from head to toe 
Gotta sunburn on my nose 
I’ve got sand in the food I eat 
I’ve got blisters on both my feet 
I’m in pain but can’t complain 
I’m king of the camp. 


 
 
                APPLAUSES/ CHEERS 
 
BEE: Make a buzzing sound while watching an imaginary bee in flight, then 


quickly duck your head as the bee passes over. 
MOSQUITO:  Follow an imaginary mosquito around with your index finger, saying 
“BUZZZ!” As the mosquito lands on your arm, make a “click” with your tongue.  As 
the mosquito sucks, say “SLUUUUUUUURRRPPPPPPP.” Then smack the 
mosquito with the other hand and say “Smack.” 
COIN FLIP: Flip a coin.  When it is heads, clap.  When it is tails, cheer.  
STAMP OF APPROVAL: Pound right balled up fist in open palm of left hand. 
 


RUN ON FUN 
 


1. What do you call a bee that can’t 
make up its mind? 


2. What is a caterpillar? 
3. Why did the Javelin thrower 


practice in the music store? 
4. How many boiled eggs can a Cub 


Scout eat on an empty stomach? 
5. Why did the Cub Scout throw out 


his new Sunday shoes? 
6. Why do tired Cub Scouts have to 


go to school?  
7. How do you keep a bull from 


charging? 
8. What do you call a sleepy bull? 
9. What holds the sun up? 


ANSWERS 
1. A May bee. 
2. A worm rich enough to buy itself a 


fur coat. 
3. He wanted to break a record. 
4. One—after that his stomach is no 


longer empty 
5. He saw them sticking their tongues 


out at him 
6. Because the school won’t come to 


them.  
7. Take away his credit card 
8. Bull dozer  
9. Sunbeams 
 


 


JOKE 
#1  I just saw a moth 
crying. 
#2 That’s impossible 
#1  Haven’t you ever 
heard of a moth bawl? 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 2 
 
 


 
MORE CHEERS 


 
NUTTY:  Say, “This is a nutty applause. Everyone yell 
‘Cashew’, three times.” 
After they do that, you reply, “God, bless you!” 
 
OKAY:   Divide into two groups.  One group yells, “O!” the other 
“Kay!” 
 
TONY THE TIGER:  Yell, “Greeaaaaatttt!”  
 
DRUM:  Beat on legs and say, “tat-a-tat-tat.”  Beat twice on stomach and say “Boom, Boom!” 
 
MOVIE STAR: Stand, sway hips back and forth and say, “Hip, hip, hooray!”  







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SONGS, SPARKLERS, AND CHEERS 3 
 


MAGIC CANDLE TRICK 
 
Carve a candle out of carrot, potato, apple, etc.  Place half 
a shelled walnut for the wick so it resembles a real candle.  
Light the candlewick, there is enough oil in the walnut to 
keep it burning for awhile.  At the logical tense moment, 
blow out the flame and eat the candle, wick and all.  The 
audience will think you are eating a real candle.  
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


ENGLISH SPELLING 
No wonder English is so confusing   


 


If GH stands for P as in Hiccough 


If OUGH stands for O as in Dough 


If PHTH stands for T as in Phthisis 


If EIGH stands for A as in Neighbour 


If TTE stands for T as in Gazette 


If EAU stands for O as in Plateau 


The correct way to spell POTATO should be: 


GHOUGHPHTHEIGHTTEEAU 


 


 


BONE BENDER 
 


Put a wing bone from a turkey or chicken in a glass jar with ½ c. 
vinegar and 3 T. salt.  Let it sit for a few days.  It should soften 
the bone so you can bend it with ease. 


 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 
 
November 2 - Dia de los Muertes; Day of the Dead  
November 17 - Homemade Bread Day  
 
Pumpkin Ice Cream Pie 
1 quart vanilla ice cream or vanilla frozen 
yogurt.  (Allow to get soft before adding) 
1 cup plain canned pumpkin 
1/4 cup sugar 
1/4 teaspoon cinnamon  
1/4 teaspoon ginger 
1 large or 8 small graham cracker crusts 
 
Put everything except crusts into a bowl and 
mix thoroughly.  Pour into crust and let sit 
on level place in the freezer to harden 
overnight.  Serves 8.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Snack Art 
Let the boys make a collection of these 
unique things.  You provide the materials, 
let them provide the creativity (and 
appetite). 
 


The foundation: 
Celery, carrot, zucchini, cucumber (cut into 
sticks and rounds); banana, apple, pineapple 
slices; melon balls; lettuce leaves; orange 
sections 
The cement: 
Peanut butter, cream cheese, cheese spread, 
yogurt, jam, pizza sauce, ranch dressing 
The appendages: 
Seeds, nuts, grapes, raisins, olives, frozen 
peas, beans 
Lay out the materials and give each boy 
plastic utensils and a plate “canvas”.  
Suggest they build sharks, monsters, cars, 
flowers, bugs, etc. 


 
Edible Folded Paper  
Make amazing, folded paper creations to 
amaze your friends; then amaze them further 
by eating them!! 
Large sheet of rice paper (found in Oriental 
grocery stores) 
Two damp towels  
Exact-o knife or razor blade knife  
Peanut oil for frying 
Skillet 
Book on paper folding (optional) 
 
 
Cut sheet to desired size.  Make the star as 
big as you want, remembering it has to fit in 
a frying pan.  Place the cut paper between 
two damp towels for about 90 seconds.  The 
rice paper should soften up just a little so it 
becomes workable and holds its shape.  If 
you soak the paper too long it will become 
rubbery and will not hold its shape.  Check 
the paper every 15 seconds or so to make 
sure.  If necessary, toothpicks or thread can 
be used to help the paper hold the shape you 
fold until you cook it.  On your paper draw a 
5-pointed star, then cut out.  Using the knife, 
score with light pressure lines from each 
point to the common meeting place in the 
center.  (Fig. 1)  Don’t cut all the way 
through.  Turn the star over and score 5 lines 
from the crotch to the center.  (Fig. 2)  Using 
both hands, fold the long score lines up and 
the short ones down.  Fry in hot peanut oil 
until golden, which takes only a minute.  
Dust it with a little powdered sugar or edible 
glitter and let cool.  Get a book on paper 
folding and make some truly fabulous 
creations to decorate with and then eat.  
Edible glitter is available at baking supply 
stores like Orson Gygi or Baker’s Cash and 
Carry. 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBS IN THE KITCHEN 2 
 
 
 


Porridge a la Three Bears 
 
1 bowl of oatmeal per boy, or three small ones if you want them to try them all. 
 
 
 
Mama Bear Porridge 
Stir in 1 tablespoon whipped cream, 1 teaspoon orange zest, and 1/2 teaspoon honey 
 
 
 
 
 
Papa Bear Porridge 
Add 1 tablespoon chopped walnuts, 1/4 teaspoon molasses, and a pat of butter. 
 
 
Baby Bear Porridge 
Mix in 1 tablespoon mashed banana, 1 tablespoon plain yogurt, and a drop of vanilla extract.  
 
 
 
 


 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME MIDWAY 
 


Things that Cubs can collect: 
• Matchbox cars 
• Models 
• Stamps 
• Post Cards 
• Books 
• Rocks 
• Coins 
• Music 


• Bugs 
• Plants 
• Neckerchief Slides 
• Games 
• Newspaper Articles 
• Fuzzy things 
• Things that move 
• Things that are round 


 
 
 
 
 
Collection activities that can be done as a group: 
 
Collect used items that can be built into other things.  Encourage cubs to use their imagination. 
 Examples:  


• Create an owl using old wood, an egg carton, plastic meat tray, twigs, and beads. 
• Design a kaleidoscope using a toilet paper roll, tape, aluminum foil, and light film. 
• Make a snake using a man's old tie, beads, and string. 
• Wrap a gift using old newspaper comics. 
• Use a rock to make a bug or animal with string, paint, and scrap material. 
• Make a bubble blower using an empty film canister, piece of plastic canvas, dish 


detergent, and water. 
 
Ask cubs to collect something that reminds them of themselves and display it at pack meeting. 
 
Collect items on a scavenger hunt that can be used in a first aid kit. 
 
Have the boys wear pockets.  Then have them collect things that would fit in their pockets and 
see who can find the most items.  Example:  fuzzy things, round things, etc. 
 
Hike in the woods to collect leaves and identify them. 
 
Collect twigs and make letters or objects and have the other boys/family members guess what 
they are. 
 
Collect cans and take to recycle center. 







Cub Scout Collectors  November 2004 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


THEME RESOURCES  
CATEGORY NAME BOOK OR REFERENCE 


(Note: All books can be found at Scout Shop) 
Extra Ideas Pockets National Theme – September 2000 


 Pack Treasure Hunt Ideas Cub Scout How To Book (rev.1999) 9-
7 


 Pockets Cub Scout How To Book (rev.2002) pg 
5-9 


Ceremonies Den Award & Appreciation Ideas, 
Cub Scout Pocket Ceremony 


Ceremonies for Dens and Packs pg 3-2, 
5-7 


Applauses & 
Cheers Stamp Collectors All the Applauses We Could Find 


(alphabetical) 
Belt Loops & 


Pins Collecting Cub Scout Academic and Sports 
Program Guide 


Cub 
Requirements Bear Elective 22-Collecting Things Bear Book 


 Wolf Achievement 6-Start a 
Collection Wolf Book 


 
 


COLLECTORS FAMILY QUIZ 
 
Use the following as a pre-game for families to do together during the gathering time at pack 
meeting.  Afterwards give them the answers and provide a small treat (such as a foil covered 
chocolate coin or a piece of “rock candy”) for all who participated. 
 
With your family, see how many collectors you can match up with what they collect. 


1. Geologist  a. Fish 


2. Ichthyologist b. Precious stones 


3. Ichnologist c. Insects 


4. Philatelist d. Ancestors 


5. Numismatist e. Stamps 


6. Entomologist f. Fossil footprints 


7. Genealogist g. Rocks 


8. Gemologist h. Money 
 


Answers:  1-g, 2-a, 3-f, 4-e, 5-h, 6-c, 7-d, 8-b. 
Scoring: 7-8 Wow!  You are a real lexicologist (specialist in the meaning of words) 
 4-6 Great job!  You know a lot!  
 1-3 Good going!  You are learning! 
 0 Thanks for being a good sport! 
 












  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 



robertsh

Start Menu



robertsh



robertsh

Table of Contents



robertsh

Navigation Instructions



Paula

Text Box

Click here to go backto the "books" menu.  







  


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Copyright 2003 
Great Salt Lake Council 
Boys Scouts of America 


Salt Lake City, Utah 84113 
 
 This book consists of contributions from a variety of sources.   


The Great Salt Lake Council is not responsible for any errors. 
The council does not endorse any products or services. 
References to scouting materials are from the most recent editions, 
unless otherwise noted. 







  


DECEMBER – A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill 
 
 


JANUARY – Home Alone 
 
 


FEBRUARY - Fiesta 
 
 


MARCH – Walk In My Shoes 
 
 


APRIL - Cubservation 
 
 


MAY – My Home State 
 
 


JUNE – Cub Rock 
 
 


JULY – Fin Fun 
 
 


AUGUST – Scouting The Midway 
 
 


SEPTMEBER – Time In A Capsule 
 
 


OCTOBER – It’s A Circus Of Stars 
 
 


NOVEMBER – Cub Scout Collectors 
 
 


WEBELOS 
 
 


CUB SCOUT ACTIVITIES 
 
 


CUB SCOUT CREATIONS 
 
 


LEADER HELPS & HINTS 
 
 


UNIT LEADER BASIC TRAINING 
 
 


OTHER RESOURCES 
 
 


INDEX 
 


 


COVER:  Cubs of Pack 3959 (Daniel Bradshaw, Eric Butterfield, 
Jeff Butterfield, Ricky Fotofilli, Benjamin Ricks, Conner Saxton). 



robertsh

Start-up Menu



robertsh

Navigation Instructions







  


  
 
 
As a youth, I remember going to the circus and 


experiencing all the exciting sights and sounds. 


There was the big top tent, with its three rings of 


activities, the animals, the different acts, and, of 


course, the clowns.  It was great fun and an 


experience that will never be forgotten.  That is 


exactly what Cub Scouting should be for a young 


boy. 


 


Thanks to all who have worked so hard to ensure 


that we have a great Pow Wow!  I hope this book 


and CD will help you as you lead young boys through the great experience of Cub Scouting. 


 


Have a great day at Pow Wow and remember, just like a circus, Cub Scouting should be fun and 


memorable. 


 
 
 
    Richard Dorsey, Inc. 
 
    Pow Wow Chairman 2003 
 
 
 







  


 


 


 


When we hear ‘circus’, we usually think of the performers—


the acrobats, animal acts, and clowns.  But the circus couldn’t be 


performed without the hundreds of backstage workers. From the 


producer to the ushers, the vendors to the roustabouts, animal care 


experts to riggers—every one of these is essential for a successful 


circus! 


Putting together the Pow Wow Book has also required 


literally hundreds of unseen and unheralded workers, including the Steering Committee who 


recruited the teachers, the instructors who created the pages, and a book committee who spent 


hundreds of hours proofreading, converting pages to electronic format, and in many cases 


writing pages to fill in the gaps.  Thank you, thank you, to the greatest Pow Wow Staff on the 


earth!  Your support was wonderful. 


Of course, the most important part of a circus is its audience.  Without it there would be 


no show.  So here’s to you, our wonderful Cub Scout leaders—our audience.  We hope you 


laugh, and cheer, and enjoy the day at Pow Wow.  And then, when you go home, we hope this 


book and CD will be resources and reminders of a wonderful day at our ‘Circus of Fun’. 


May all your days be Cub Scouting days. 


 
 


Sincerely, 
The Pow Wow Book Committee, 
GSLC Pow Wow, 2003 
 
Kathi Robertson, Book Chairman 
Ray Chatwin, Book Sales 
Val Chatwin, Section Leader 
Clay Crowley, Section Leader 
Dean Hansen, Computer Specialist 
LaDessa Hansen, Section Leader 
Lore Lake, Section Leader 
Homer Robertson, Cover, CD-ROM 
Aralee Scothern, Section Leader 
Jennifer Shaw, Theme Resource Pages 
Alan Trowbridge, CD-ROM 



robertsh

Kelli Robertson, Artwork







  


 
POW WOW STEERING COMMITTEE 2003 


 
 


 
 
 
Chairman    Richard Dorsey   254-3490 
Vice-Chairman   Ken Mitchell   435-336-3423 
Vice-Chairman   Michelle Ekins   435-882-9919 
 
Physical Arrangements  LaMonte Hansen   255-8686 
Pow Wow Book   Kathi Robertson   963-0872 
Promotion    Lon and Diane Elwood  250-8150 
Support Services   Kevin Powell   250-1022 
Theme Enrichment   Tammy Melzer   942-0905 
Training    Mary Jo Page   253-3146 
Lunch     Launie Severinsen   255-6598 
Commercial Midway  Dave and Cathy Rose  250-1139 
Theme Midway   Nancy McQuillan   262-3470 
 
Activity Fun    Richard Ekins   435-882-9919 
Ceremonies    David Hendrickson  254-3635 
Den and Pack Pizazz  Nita Orgill    254-7010 
Quality Program   Rexene Boyd   967-0780 
Themes    Phyllis Patterson   973-6427 
Unit Leader Basic Training Mary Jo Page   253-3146 
Webelos    Ronda Archibald   944-9644 
 
Pow Wow Advisor   Tim Gillie    582-3663 
Council Cub Program Chair Garth Briggs   277-4646 
 
 
       We extend our appreciation to all who made possible 


this year's Pow Wow, including those whose names were 


not available at the time of printing.  A special thanks to 


the spouses and families who provided wonderful support 


to our staff members! 


 







  


 
 


POW WOW SUPPORT STAFF 2003 
 
 
OPENING TRAINING: 
Mary Jo Page   
Leo Beecher   295-5316 
 
POW WOW BOOK and CD: 
Kathi Robertson  963-0872 
Alan Trowbridge   964-8276 
Homer Robertson  963-0872 
Dean Hansen   968-5599 
Val Chatwin   254-3357 
Clay Crowley   292-0344 
LaDessa Hansen  968-5599 
Lore Lake   255-0582 
Aralee Scothern  571-2589 
Jennifer Shaw   982-0551 
 
Book Sales: 
Ray Chatwin   254-3357 
Dawna Holt   298-0818 
Rona Bresnahan  562-5362 
 
THEME ENRICHMENT: 
Tammy Melzer  942-0905 
Allison Birrenkott  572-3210 
Kathryn Warner  572-1462 
Aralee Scothern  571-2589 
Marilyn Golding  561-1795 
Ann Mecham   571-1820 
 
THEME MIDWAY: 
Nancy McQuillan  262-3470 
 
COMMERCIAL MIDWAY: 
Dave and 
Cathy Rose   250-1139 
 
PROMOTION: 
Lon and    
Diane Elwood   250-8150 
 
 


 
 
SUPPORT SERVICES: 
Kevin Powell   250-1022 
 


Trading Post: 
Joyce Beverly   524-0592 
Tharry Jackman  467-1230 
Debbie Mitchell  467-3759 
Cathy Richards  467-9086 
Carma Sagers   485-2449 
 
First Aid: 
Alex Aerts   968-0061 
Nancy Faldmo   566-6729 
Andrea Taylor 
 
PHYSICAL ARRANGEMENTS: 
LaMonte Hansen  255-8686 
Danny Fullerton 
Mary Fullerton 
Carol McWherter 
Eugene McWherter 
 
LUNCH: 
Launie Severinsen  255-6598 
Lynn  Severinsen  255-6598 
Laurie Severinsen  255-6598 
Rob Severinsen  255-6598 
Judy Martin   292-6612 
Heidi Sugden   292-4835 
Gail Jordison   295-6458 
Duane Jordison  295-6458 
Paul Olsen   595-6458 
Jared Elwood   250-0415 
Tanya Elwood   250-0415 
Dorothy Cummings  435-783-5318  
Brant Ipson   572-4603 
Charla Ipson   572-4603 
Shaley Ipson   572-4603 
Laura Anderson  250-5470 
Craig Anderson  250-5470 
 
 



robertsh

Kelli Robertson







  


    
  POW WOW INSTRUCTORS 2003


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Academics & Sports: 
Richard Thomas  968-8006 
Ralph Bahr   967-0929 
 
Advancement Ceremonies: 
Carol Lord   328-4241 
Jeannie Huff   292-0882 
Jennifer Shaw   982-0551 
 
Arrow of Light/Graduation: 
Reinhard Haidenthaller 967-2077 
Howard Reed   467-9694 
Jeanette Featherstone  486-9800 
 
Best of Blue and Gold: 
Melody Andersen  435-843-5493 
Tami Searle   435-843-0327 
 
Character Development: 
LaDawn Tracy  435-884-6878 
Angie McDonald  435-882-5533 
 
Committee Basic Training: 
Venetia Wilhelmsen  966-8955 
Sarge Gallegos  296-6229 
 
Crafts--Holiday (Dec to May): 
Janae Tavoian   352-9431 
Trisha Judd   561-7747 
 
Crafts--Holiday (June to Nov): 
Beverly Ouzts   359-5811 
Twila Gutieros  435-654-2878 
 
 
 


Crafts--Theme (Even Months): 
Ramona Braunberger  295-5229 
 
Crafts--Theme (Odd Months): 
Becky Prater 
Ken Prater 
 
Cub Scouts with Special Needs: 
Tim Young   282-6878 
Veon Steele, pages  966-7899 
 
Cubmaster Basic Training: 
Bruce Mitchell  572-2105 
Bruce Burkhart  571-5937 
 
Cubs in the Kitchen: 
Beverly Turney  572-4119 
 
Den and Pack Recognition Ideas: 
Maurine and 
Spencer Gold   274-0983 
JoAnne Udy   277-1788 
Chelsey Martin  292-6612 
 
Den Leader Basic Training: 
Marilyn Mitchell  572-2105 
Karla Burkhart 
 
Den Leader Helps and Hints: 
Katheryn Berry  963-9228 
April Carpenter  298-8253 
 
Derbies: 
Devon Simper   694-8973 
 
 
Family Program: 
Tim and    
Pat Wilson   530-0880 
Gaylon Smith   328-2602 
Peggy Smith   328-2602 
 
 







  


 
 
Games, Games, Games: 
Karen Parkinson  435-882-7549 
 
Gathering and Pre-Openers: 
Tim Booth   435-843-1049  
Merrilly Dombrowski  435-843-1418 
 
Internet Resources: 
Laura Dahl   963-6197 
 
Leather Crafts: 
Beck Leather 
 
Open/ Close, & Flag Ceremonies: 
Val and    
Ray Chatwin   254-3357 
Craig Blaimires  446-5258 
Karen Perry   302-1120 
 
Outdoors and Camping: 
Kenyon Eastin   435-843-1892 
Allan Powell   435-882-8468 
Shannon Seamster     435-843-5012 
Matt Palmer   435-882-6466 
Joe Mann     435-843-5597 
 


 Plaster Crafts: 
Alan Trowbridge  964-8276 
 
Props and Ceremony Equipment: 
Debi and    
Jesse White   254-3871 
Kristi Jager   254-7221 
Torey Carroll   254-9725  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Skits and Storytelling: 
Ed Wanless   435-884-6715 
Dar Butcher    435-884-0752 
Val Chatwin, Pages  254-3357 
  
Songs, Sparklers, and Cheers: 
Brian Young   254-4493 
   
Theme Resource Book Pages: 
Jennifer Shaw   982-0551 
 
Tiger Leader Basic Training: 
Val Bunting   495-0473 
Pennie Gaillard  296-6979 
 
Uniforms and Insignia: 
Carla Stephens  967-5077 
 
Webelos and Community: 
Shane Moncur   298-8459 
 
Webelos and Outdoors: 
Mike Wimmer   969-1235 
 
Webelos and Mental Skills: 
Ralph Driggs   298-2010 
 
Webelos and Physical Skills: 
Robin Farnsworth  966-1709 
  
Webelos and Technology:  
Dale Whitaker   974-5643 
Clay Crowley,  pages  292-0344 
 
Webelos Leader Basic Training: 
Harold Adams   254-3054  
Crystal Nebeker  569-1341 







  


 
 


Webelos Leader Helps and Hints: 
Canela Oldroys  440-6223 
Marilyn Rees   966-9239 
 
Woodcraft 1: 
Vaneta Bodine   435-843-1314 
Cindie Williams  435-882-4859 
 
Woodcraft 2: 
James and   435-882-3572 
Debbie May    
 
Youth Protection: 
Keelee Powell   250-1022 
Shaun Gaillard  296-6979 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WEBELOS MIDWAY 
   


  Community: 
   Joyce Hagins  968-5961 
   Don Pannier   266-9882 
 
  Mental Skills: 
   Marie and   250-7509 
   Richard Cox    
 
  Outdoor: 
   DeRay and 
   Nancy Culley  250-0521 
 
  Physical Skills: 
   Del Roy Guymon    580-4093 
 
  Technology: 
   Kristy Wiggins  968-4481 


 
 
THEME MIDWAY 
 


  December: 
   Zane and 
   Sara Rasmussen  352-0452 
 
  January: 
   Rebecca Gallacher  294-4484 
 
  February: 
   Mattie Mix   968-2866 
  Jeanine Nichols  964-8645 
 
  March: 
   Veon Steele   966-7899 
 
  April: 
   Jeff and    
   Sheryl Confere  981-1821 
 
  May: 
  Lee McQuillan  262-3470  
  Clyde Ashcroft  261-0572 
 
  June: 
   Linda Druce   943-1334 
   Sandra Bruening  475-6542 
 
  July: 
   Martie Geisler  262-3470 
   Nancy Erekson  268-3509 
 
  August: 
   Sandy Thornock  446-9621 
   Kristie Kochevar  446-9621 
 
  September: 
   Joy Bateman   250-3761 
 
  October: 
   Barb Bonke   261-1518 
 
  November: 
  Mindy McDonald  261-1284 
  Lore Lake, Book Page 255-0582 












Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Community Group 
    Citizen  
 Communicator  
 Family Member  
 Readyman 
Mental Skills Group 
 Artist   
 Scholar    
 Showman   
 Traveler   
Outdoor Group 
 Forester   
 Geologist 
 Naturalist   
 Outdoorsman   
Physical Skills Group 
 Aquanaut   
 Athlete    
 Fitness    
 Sportsman   
Technology Group 
 Craftsman   
 Engineer   


Handyman   
 Scientist   
Webelos Helps & Hints     
Arrow of Light & 
    Graduation Ceremonies        



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


AQUANAUT 
Physical Skills Group 


 


 
OBJECTIVES:  To teach safety precautions near the water.  To increase the  
boy’s swimming skills and endurance.  To introduce Webelos to snorkeling.  
 
 
ACTIVITIES 
Scuba:  Invite a member of a scuba diving team to your meeting to demonstrate his equipment.  
Competition:  Go to see a swim meet, water polo or diving competition. Talk with the Coach.  
Boy Scouts:  Invite some Boy Scouts to your meeting to talk about earning water merit badges.   
Search and Rescue:  Visit your local police station and talk to the water search and rescue team.  
How often are they called out?  What are the circumstances?  What equipment do they take? 
Lifeline throw:  Tie a beanbag onto a 25 foot rope.  Mark a circle on the floor with chalk.  
Throw the beanbag for accuracy. 
 
 
WHERE TO GO AND WHAT TO DO: 
Have a pack meeting at a local pool.   
Have a splash party for your Webelos.  Following swim tests and 
instructions have a parent(s) and scout swim using fins, mask and 
snorkel.  
Demonstrate boat safety and practice at a local body of water.  
Ask Boy Scouts to demonstrate and teach water rescue techniques.  
 
 
AQUANAUT GAMES 
Nuts And Bolts  
Toss a large bolt with a nut on it into waist deep water.  Each boy must bend down to find the 
bolt and unscrew the nut while he is under the water.  If he can’t finish the job, he must drop the 
bolt, come up for air and go down again until you he has separated the two.  When they are 
separated, the boy should show the leader, then throw them in again and go under to replace the 
nut on the bolt.  
Towel Rescue  
Play this game in chest deep water.  Divide group into teams.  Put one member of each team 


some distance from his teammates and give him a towel.  On signal, he walks or 
swims to his team, tosses the end of the towel to a teammate, and tows him back 
to the position from where he started.  The rescued boy then becomes the 
rescuer and repeats the actions “saving” another team member.  Continue until 
every boy has been saved and has saved.  


 
 
CAREERS/ SPEAKERS 
Scuba diver, seaman, marine photographer, fish hatchery worker, oceanographer, 
boat repairman, community pool operator, lifeguard, member of the Coast Guard, 
Marines, or Navy. 


Aquanaut 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Aquanaut Midway 
 
 


THE THREE BASIC RULES are DON’T PANIC, THINK, SAVE YOUR 
STRENGTH.  These rules help you know what to do for cramps, currents, undertow, and 
weeds; how to disrobe in the water, use clothing for floatation, and use survival-floating 
techniques.  The following are good games for beginners: 
 


1. Catching a ball in shallow 
water. 


2. Passing water ball while 
standing in the water. 


3. Tunnel ball-passing a ball 
back and between the legs. 


4. Cat and mouse-cat outside 
circle, mouse inside. 


5. Spoon and ping-pong ball 
relay. 


 
 
 
 


DEN ACTIVITIES 
 


1. Assign buddies and explain the importance of the buddy system. 
2. Make a simple buddy board and have buddy tags for all the boys and insist that they are used 


each time they go swimming. 
3. Have a demonstration of mask, fins, and snorkel by an expert.  People who have completed a 


scuba class and are certified divers would be good for this. 
4. Take the den swimming. 
5. If a rowboat is available, have boat safety methods and rowing techniques demonstrated by 


an expert.  Give boys a chance to practice 
these methods. 


6. Take the boys to a swim meet or diving 
exhibition. 


7. Invite an expert to explain to the boys how to 
handle emergencies in the water.  Contact a 
swimming instructor. 


8. Learn about water pollutants in the lakes and 
rivers in the area.  How do they affect water 
used for consumption and recreation? 


9. Study the Safe Swim Defense Plan. 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ARTIST 
Mental Skills Group 


 
•  
 


The artist activity badge gives the boys a chance to explore their creativity.  It is also one of the 
easiest ones to combine with other activity badges.  For example, you could use a computer 
design on a Craftsman project.  There are eight items to choose from, five are needed for the 
badge.  There are a number of different media to work in for the art projects.   
 
 


FUN THINGS TO DO 
 
One of the requirements is to explore primary and secondary colors.  A fun thing to do is make 
sugar cookies and white frosting.  Separate the frosting into three bowls and use food coloring to 
create the three primary colors.  Spread two dabs on one of the cookies and mix them together to 
make the secondary colors.  This can be part of Cubs in the Kitchen.  It will also be the treat after 
the den meeting.   
 
Play dough can be used for sculpting.  The play dough can be home- 
made.  Another fun thing to do is to use food to sculpt.  Use cookies 
as a base, frosting to sculpt with, and decorate with cake decorating 
items.  Another way to sculpt is with the cookie dough itself.   Sculpt 
flowers, animals, bugs or whatever they can think up. A really fun thing 
to use is string licorice, the kind that pulls apart.  It can be used as hair if a 
face is made.  A smiley face is easy with string licorice.  (String licorice can also be used to teach 
the boys their knots for Outdoorsman.  When they master the knot they can eat it.) 
 
For a collage, have the boys bring some old magazines they can cut up.  The boys will have fun 
cutting out pictures that have something to do with their lives.  Have the boys paste the collages 
on to fun shaped pieces of cardboard and then make them into a mobile.  This will fulfill 
requirements 6 & 8. 
 
From candy supply stores you can get chocolate molds.  By using Plaster of Paris and a small 
ring set in the back, you can make neckerchief slides.  Have them paint the neckerchief slide to 
fulfill requirement #7.   
 


 
          VALUES OF SCOUTING 
 


As they are working on their badges, the values of scouting can be 
taught such as helpful, friendly, courteous, kind, obedient, thrifty and 
CLEAN.   
 


Artist 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Artist Midway 
 
Make an Art Construction using your choice of materials.  One idea?  See below: 
 
Put together a genius kit for each boy and let him take it home. The following materials would 
be given to each boy. His job is to see what amazing, fantastic, construction he can create! 


 
    GENIUS KIT 


 
Using only the following items, plus paint, glue, tape and your imagination, 


construct something recognizable.  
 
 
 


 
Suggested Materials: 
2 pipe cleaners 4 toothpicks 


1 yd. yarn   1 piece of construction paper 


1 yd. string     1 piece of cloth 


4 popsicle sticks 2 clothes pins 


1 large can 1 board 4" X 12" X 1/2" 


1 tuna can 2 rubber bands  


1 paper towel roll end paper clip  


2 toilet paper roll ends 1 safety pin 


1 coat hanger 6 nails 


1 lg. empty spool 2 straws 


1 golf tee   1 soda pop can 


2 milk bottle caps 


 
A sack to put them in.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


Artist Midway 2 
 


 
Ideas for Artist 
Do Five of These: 
 


 
 


1. Draw or paint an original picture, using the art material you prefer.  


Frame the picture for your room or home.  


 


 


2.  List the primary and secondary colors.  Explain what happens when you 


combine colors. 


 


2. Using a computer, make six original designs using straight lines, 


curved lines, or both. 


 


 


3. Draw a profile of a member of your family.  


 


 


4. Use clay to sculpt a simple object.  


 


 


5. Make a mobile, using your choice of materials.  


 


 


6. Create a collage that expresses something about yourself.  


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ATHLETE 
Physical Skills Group 


 
 
Read the Athlete section of the Webelos Scout Book with the boys. Help them set up a regular 
schedule of exercising with a chart for keeping a record of improvement.  
 
 


STRENGTH AND BALANCE EXERCISES 
 
LIFT:  Sit in a heavy chair with arms you can grasp.  Bring both legs straight up. 
Straighten your arms to lift you off the seat.  Try to hold this position for 2 
seconds.  Take a rest between lifts.  
     
ONE LEG PEDAL:  Hold hands out from your sides.  Pedal with 


your kicking foot as though pedaling a bicycle.  10 times without losing your 
balance is a good start.  When you can pedal 50 times, you are well balanced.   
 
JUG WEIGHTS:  Fill plastic bleach containers with sand (as heavy as you can lift).  
Cap.  Do arm curls and front and lateral raises. 
 


AGILITY EXERCISES 
 
These exercises would be a good warm-up before your den meeting begins or an ice breaker 
during the meeting.  Perform these exercises within the time limit.  Rest for 2 minutes between 
each set of exercises.  
 
SET 1: 8 Minutes  
Fish Flops:  Lie flat on your stomach, arms and legs extended and off the ground. Rock back and 
forth.  (2 minutes) 
Grass Drill:  Run in place, drop to the ground and bounce up again.  (2 minutes) 
Quick Foot-Knee Touch:  Drop quickly to one knee and bounce up again.  Alternate knees.  (2 
minutes) 
Rock Drill:  You need a partner for this one.  Square off on all fours, locking right shoulder to 
right shoulder.  Try to rock your opponent back off his feet. (2 minutes)  REST TWO MINUTES  
SET 2: 6 Minutes  
Crab mirror:  Two players on all fours.  One moves at random to the left, right, back, or forward.  
The other mirrors (or copies) his moves.  Switch leaders and 
repeat. (2 minutes) 
Bear Hug Take-Down:  Two players, one standing behind the 
other.  Player in rear grasps other player around arms and chest 
and tries to pull him down.  Reverse positions and repeat.  (3 
minutes)  
Sit-ups:  Lie on back, feet together, hands clasped behind head.  
Raise up and touch elbows to knees.  Do as many as possible.  (1 minute)   Rest 2 minutes.  
 
NOTE:  Flexibility Exercises described on the Pow Wow 2003 CD-ROM 


Athlete 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
ATHLETE BADGE (cont) 


 
 


FLEXIBILITY EXERCISES 
 
 
Fingers:  Extend arms to the side, palms down.  Quickly flex fingers by alternating between fist 
and open hand position. (30 seconds) 
 
Palms:  Extend arms to the front, palms down, wrists locked.  Turn palms inward and outward in 
quick, short movements.  (30 seconds) 
 
Wrists:  Same position as palms (above).  Rotate wrists clockwise, then counterclockwise.  (30 
seconds) 
 
Forearm Twist:  Arms extended sideward and parallel to the ground.  Flex at elbow bringing tips 
of fingers to shoulders, Return to starting position.  Perform both palms up and palms down.  (1 
minute) 
 
Shoulder Stretches:  3 part exercise. (a) Rotate one arm over your head and down slowly.  Repeat 
with other arm.  (b) Shrug your shoulders slowly in complete circle starting the movement by 
moving up and back.  (c) Lock your hands behind your head and pull back slowly from 
shoulders.  (2 minutes) 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Athlete Midway 
 
 


NEWSPAPER GYM 
 
Many great athletes use tricks and stunts as specialized body-building exercises. So can Webelos 
Scouts. Here's one trick you can use. 
 
Activity 1.  Take a large double sheet of newspaper in one hand and hold it by one edge. Using 
only the fingers of the hand that is holding it, and without allowing the paper to touch any other 
part of your body, work it up into your palm with 
your fingers and hand until it is a ball. 
See how hard it makes your fingers work and how 
your forearm muscles wriggle and ripple as you 
try to get the newspaper into a ball. You may want 
to try a paper in each hand for a double workout. 
 
Activity 2.  Take two double sections and fold 
them in half until you have a flat section with one 
edge that is a foot wide. Roll that piece up to form 
a baton. Use this baton for exercises. First, try to 
pull it apart as you hold it in front of your chest. 
Then try to pull it apart as you hold it behind your back. Finally, see if you can break it by 
twisting it, clockwise with the right hand and counterclockwise with the left hand. Then see if 
you can jump over the paper baton without letting it go.  Then try jumping back through it. 
 
 


ROPE GAMES 
 


A rope is a "gym" that can be carried and used for all kinds of physical fitness 
activities. 
 
To exercise alone, tie the rope to a tree or pole and pass the end over the shoulder. 
Now pull as hard as possible. This will give the leg, stomach, and back muscles 


some tough exercise. 
 
 
Tractor Pull is a game, but also a good workout. Loop a rope 


around the back of the neck and under the armpits of two players 
facing in opposite directions. On all fours, they try to drag each other 


across a dividing line. 
 
One of the toughest rope games is TUG-OF-WAR.  Decide on a mid-line.  
Divide the den into two teams, put one team at each end of a stout rope, and 
see which team can pull the other across the mid-line.   
 
Try one of these games at your Den Meeting.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Athlete Midway 2 
 


 
PACK ACTIVITIES 


• Plan a physical fitness demonstration for pack meeting 
• Exhibit individual fitness record. 
• Demonstrate fitness tests, exercises, and dual contest. 
• Put together a Pack physical fitness fair. 


 
AGILITY EXERCISES 
Perform these exercises within the designated time limits.  Rest two minutes between each set of 
exercises. 


FISH FLOPS-Lie flat on your stomach, arms and legs extended and 
off the ground.  Rock back and forth (2 minutes). 
GRASS DRILL-Run in place, drop on to the ground and bounce up 
again (2 minutes). 
QUICK FOOT-KNEE TOUCH-Drop quickly to one knee and bounce 
up again, alternate knees (2 minutes). 
ROOT DRILL-You need a partner for this one.  Square off on all fours, 
locking right shoulder to right shoulder.  Try to rock your opponent 
back off his feet (2 minutes). 


REST TWO MINUTES 
CRAB MIRROR-Two players on all fours, one move at random to the 
left, right, back, or forward and the other mirrors his moves.  Switch 
leaders and repeat (2 minutes). 
BEAR HUG TAKE-DOWN-Two players, one standing behind the 


other, player in rear grasps other player around arms and chest and tries to pull him down.  
Reverse position and repeat (3 minutes). 
SIT UPS-Lie on your back, feet together, hands clasped 
behind the head.  Raise up and touch elbows to knees.  Do as 
many as possible for one minute. 
 


REST TWO MINUTES 
 


FLEXIBILITY EXERCISES 
FINGERS-Extend arms to the side, palms down.  Quickly 
flex fingers by alternating between fist and open hand position 
(30 seconds). 
PALMS-Extend arms to the front, palms down, wrists locked, 
turn palms inward and outward in quick, short movements (30 
Seconds). 
WRISTS-Palms same position as above.  Rotate wrist 
clockwise, then counter clockwise (30 seconds). 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CITIZEN 
Community Group  


 
 


Trivia Questions about the United States of America: 
 


1. America was once ruled by the King of England.  His name was King ____________ the III.  
 
2.  Name the thirteen original states or colonies?  D_______________, P__________________, 
      N________J__________, G_____________, C________________, M_________________, 
      M_________________, S_________C______________, N________H_________________, 
      V__________, N_____ Y_______, N__________ C__________, R_________ I_________. 
 
3. America rebelled against England in the year ___ ___ ___ ___. 
 
4. Name the three countries that were hoping the American Colonies would fall apart. 


E___________________, F___________________ and S__________________. 
 
5.  The war the colonists fought with England to gain their freedom was called the  


___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ War. 
 
6. Who wrote the Declaration of Independence?  _______________  _______________. 


 
7. We sometimes refer to George Washington as the ____________ of our ________________. 


 
8. What do we call the document that is the foundation of our government? 


The  ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___  ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___. 
 
9. What do we call the men who wrote the Constitution? 


____________________    ______________________.  (Both words begin with “F”) 
 
10. The Constitution was written in what city? _____________________________. 
 
11. What was the name of the first official flag of the United States?  (June 14, 1777)  


_________    ______________.  How many stars and stripes did it have _______? 
 
12. During the battle of the War of 1812 against England, ____________  ____________  
_________ wrote the National Anthem, “The Star Spangled Banner.”  
  
13. The 50th star was added to U.S. flag on July 4, 1960.  Which state did the star represent? 
_______________________. 
 
14. Name the three branches of Power in the Government?  E____________, L______________ 
      and J____________.    
 
15. What two divisions make up the Legislative Branch?  S____________ and H____________. 
      Together, they are called C______________. 


 
 


 (Answers are on the Pow Wow 2003 CD-ROM) 


Citizen 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CITIZEN (cont) 
 


Answers to Trivia Questions about the United States of America 
 


1. America was once ruled by the King of England.  His name was King George the III.   
 
2. Name the thirteen original states or colonies?  Delaware, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, 


     Georgia, Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maryland, South Carolina, New Hampshire, 
      Virginia, New York, North Carolina, Rhode Island.      
 


3. America rebelled against England in the year 1776. 
 


4. Name the three countries that were hoping the American Colonies would fall apart? 
England, France and Spain. 


 
5. The war the colonists fought with England to gain their freedom was called the  
R    E   V   O   L   U   T   I   O   N   A   R   Y   War. 
 
6. Who wrote the Declaration of Independence?  Thomas Jefferson. 


 
7. We sometimes refer to George Washington as the Father of our  
Country. 
 
8. What do we call the document that is the foundation of our government? 
The C   O   N   S    T   I   T   U   T   I   O   N. 
 
9. What do we call the men who wrote the Constitution? 
Founding Fathers.  (Both words begin with “F”) 
 
10. The Constitution was written in what city? Philadelphia. 


 
11. What was the name of the first official flag of the United States?  (June 14, 1777)  
Old Glory.  How many stars and stripes did it have?  13 
 
12. During the battle of the War of 1812 against England, Francis Scott Key wrote the 


National Anthem, “The Star Spangled Banner.”  
 
13. The 50th star was added to U.S. flag on July 4, 1960.  Which state did the star represent?  


Hawaii 
 


14. Name the three branches of Power in the Government?  Executive, Legislative and 
Judicial.    


 
15. What two divisions make up the Legislative Branch?  Senate and House. 


      Together, they are called Congress. 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Citizen Midway 
 
The United States One-Dollar Bill  


Take out a one-dollar bill, and look at it.  (See CD 
for larger size). 
 The one dollar bill you’re looking at first came off the presses in 1957 in its present 
design.  This so-called paper money is in fact a cotton and linen blend, with red and blue minute 
silk fibers running through it.  It is actually material.  We’ve all washed it without it falling apart.   
A special blend of ink is used, the contents we will never know.  It is overprinted with symbols 
and then it is starched to make it water resistant and pressed to give it that nice crisp look. 
 If you look on the front of the bill, you will see the United States Treasury Seal.  On the 
top you will see the scales of a balanced budget.  In the center you have a carpenter’s square, a 
tool used for an even cut.  Underneath is the Key to the United States Treasury.  That’s all pretty 
easy to figure out, but what is on the back of the dollar bill is something we should all know. 
 If you turn the bill over, you will see two circles.  Both circles, together, comprise the 
Great Seal of the United States.  The First Continental Congress requested that Benjamin 
Franklin and a group of men come up with a Seal.  It took them four years to accomplish this 
task; another two years to get it approved.  
 If you look at the left-hand circle, you will see a Pyramid.   Notice the face is lighted, and 
the western side is dark.  This country was just beginning.  We had not begun to explore the 
West or decided what we could do for Western Civilization.  The Pyramid is uncapped, again 
signifying that we were not even close to being finished.  Inside the capstone you have the all-
seeing eye, an ancient symbol for divinity.  It was Franklin’s belief that one man couldn’t do it 
alone, but a group of men, with the help of God, could do anything. 
 “IN GOD WE TRUST” is on this currency.  The Latin above the pyramid, ANNUIT 
COEPTIS, means, “God has favored our undertaking.”  The Latin below the pyramid, NOVUS 
ORDO SECLORUM, means, “a new order has begun.”  At the base of the pyramid is the Roman 
Numeral for 1776. 
 If you look at the right-hand circle, and check it carefully, you will learn that it is on 
every National Cemetery in the United States.  It is at the Parade of Flags Walkway at Bushnell, 
Florida, National Cemetery, and is the centerpiece of most heroes’ monuments.  Slightly 
modified, it is the seal of the President of the United States, and it is always visible whenever he 
speaks, yet very few people know what the symbols mean. (Continued on CD-ROM) 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CITIZEN MIDWAY (cont)  
  


 
 
 
 
 
The Bold Eagle was selected as a symbol of victory for two reasons:  First, he is not 


afraid of a storm; he is strong, and he is smart enough to soar above it.  Secondly, he wears no 
material crown.  We had just broken from the King of England.  Also, notice the shield is 
unsupported.  This country can now stand on its own.  At the top of the shield you have a white 
bar signifying congress, a unifying factor.  We were coming together as one nation.  In the 
Eagle’s beak you will read, “E PLURIBUS UNUM”, meaning, “one nation from many people”. 
 Above the Eagle, you have thirteen stars, representing the thirteen original colonies, and 
any clouds of misunderstanding rolling away.  Again we were coming together as one.  Notice 
what the Eagle holds in his talons.  He holds an olive branch and arrows.  This country wants 
peace, but we will never be afraid to fight to preserve peace.  The Eagle always wants to face the 
olive branch, but in times of war, his gaze turns toward the arrows. 
 They say that the number 13 is an unlucky number.  This is almost a worldwide belief.  
You will usually never see a room numbered 13, or any hotel or motel with a 13th floor.  But 
think about this: 13 original colonies, 13 signers of the Declaration of Independence, 13 stripes 
on our flag, 13 steps on the Pyramid, 13 letters in the Latin above, 13 letters in “E Pluribus 
Unum”, 13 stars above the Eagle, 13 bars on that shield, 13 leaves on the olive branch, 13 fruits, 
and if you look closely, 13 arrows.  And, for minorities: the 13th Amendment.  (Also, Christ+12 
Disciples=13) 
 I always ask people, “Why don’t you know this?”  Your children don’t know this, and 
their history teachers don’t know this.  Too many veterans have given up too much to ever let the 
meaning fade.  Many veterans remember coming home to an America that didn’t care.  Too 
many veterans never came home at all.  Share this page with everyone, so they can learn what is 
on the back of the UNITED STATES ONE DOLLAR BILL, and what it stands for... Otherwise, 
they will probably never know. 


MAY GOD ALWAYS AND ALL WAYS, BLESS AMERICA!! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


COMMUNICATOR 
Community Group 


 
 


 
“Talking Back” Assign each boy to write a paragraph about something that they have 
participated in recently, i.e. summer vacation, favorite hobby, movie or book.  
Many boys have not heard themselves on videotape or cassette tape before.  
Make a short recording of each boy sharing his information and then play it back 
to the den or pack.  Review the tape recording or videotape.  Ask the boys to 
notice hand and facial gestures they used during the recording.  Did their voice 
sound like they expected it to?  Did they notice different pitches or tones in their 
voice when they talked?  Have fun with this activity. 
 
“Animal Sounds” Obtain a tape of animal sounds.  You can make a recording of your own or 
check out a tape of animal sounds with your local library.  Listen to the sounds of the animals 
and guess what animal is making the sound.  Also, invite the boys to make sounds of certain 
animals.  
 
“Hand Signals” There are various types of hand gestures used in different sports.  Review some 
of the hand signals used by referees, umpires or officials and guess what they mean.  Check out 
an “Officiating Book” for a sport from your local library, look on the Internet or watch some 
sport contests for different hand gestures. 
 


“Telephone Game” for Den or Pack Meeting 
Have scouts line up in a straight line or form a circle.  The Webelos leader begins 


by whispering a message into the ear of the first boy.  This boy repeats the 
message to the next boy, and so on.  After the message has been repeated to 
everyone, the last boy repeats the message out loud to the group.  It’s interesting to 


find out that the message rarely begins and ends the same.  Emphasize the importance of 
listening carefully in communication. 
 
“Zoom-Urk” Game 
Have scouts stand in a circle facing each other.  The object of the game is to remain standing 
last.  Only two words are spoken in this game, “Zoom” and “Urk.” When you use the word 
“Zoom,” your head always turns to the right.  When you say the word “Urk,” your head always 
turns to the left.   
 
To begin the game for example, a player says, “Zoom,” and his head turns right.  The next 
player elects to either say “Zoom” or “Urk” and so on…. The game advances until a player 
makes a mistake.  
 
A player that says, “Zoom” and turns his head to the left is out of the competition and leaves the 
circle.  The player standing on the right side of the previous player (who was disqualified) starts 
up the game again.  The game continues until one person is left in the circle.  This is really a fun 
activity. 


Communicator 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Communicator Midway 
 
 
 
 Radio Messages 


 
   Are there living creatures any-
where else in the universe?  The 
question is of great concern to 
Ufologists (those who study 
UFOs). 
   There are countless millions of 
stars in the universe.  Many must 
have planets orbiting them. 
Many astronomers think there must 
be life on some of them.   
    The astronomers listen for radio 
messages from distant planets, 
which might provide proof of life 
in space. 
   The problem is much worse than 
looking for a needle in a haystack.  
There are so many very distant 
stars and planets.  Also, the 
‘people’ of other worlds might be 
very different from us and they 
certainly would not speak our 
language.  So what kind of 
messages might reach us from 
space, and what signals should we 
send? 
   One answer is to use the 
“language” of computers.  The 
computer message on the left was 
sent out in 1974 to a group of stars 
in the constellation Hercules.  It 
includes a ‘picture’ of a human 
being and information on our solar 
system.  However, the message 
will take 24,000 years to reach its 
destination, so we should not 
expect a quick answer! 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CRAFTSMAN 
Technology Group  


 
 
 


 
       As Webelos leaders, we are preparing Cub Scouts to become Boy Scouts.  When the boys 
complete the Craftsman activity badge, it would be a good idea to let them know that when they 
become Boy Scouts, they can look forward to working on such Merit Badges as Leatherwork, 
Metalwork, Model Design and Building, Painting, and Woodwork.  Other badges may include 
Basketry, Pottery, Pulp and Paper, and Safety. 
      Boys can learn so much by learning these skills, not to mention increasing their self-
confidence. 
      This badge is one that works well if projects are done throughout 
the year.  Trying to do it all in one month is tedious and expensive. 
Let the boys have fun all year long. 
 
 


Requirement 1:  Tool Safety 
 
It is important to keep in mind the guidelines found in “Guide to Safe 
Scouting.”  Also, explain that many tools come with an owner or 
user’s manual and that they should always read the warnings in the 
manual first. 
 
 


Requirement 2:  Construct two different wooden objects. 
 
Always start out with a simple project that they can easily grasp.  Don’t be afraid to ask boys 
who show an interest to do at least one project that will challenge them.  You will be surprised 
what Webelos can do with a little encouragement. 
 
 
Requirement 3:  Make a display stand or box. 
 
 Instead of making a display for a pinewood derby car, try making a shadow box 
to display Cub Scout awards and patches.  
 
 
Requirement 4: Make four useful items other than wood. 
 


One project not seen very often is a windsock made of plastic or cloth.  The 
cloth could have Scout emblems painted on it or simply be plain with 


bright colors.   
Leatherwork is another fun craft.  Let the boys tool a ‘totem’, 
or leather rounder.  Hang beads on it to keep track of their 


advancements. 
Other fun crafts include stenciling (an apron or other object for ‘mom’); making 
candles; making a bead craft or other key chain; and making paper mache` objects. 


Craftsman 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


The library has many ideas for simple crafts that can be made in one meeting. 
Craftsman Midway 


 
 


 These are some fun things you can make for Craftsman without  wood. 
 
 


1) Name card holders 
 


 
 
2) Tuna can soap dish  


 
 
 


3) Twine hammock for holding things 
 


 
 
4) Bucket bench 


 
 
 


5)  Soap dishes or candle holders made with clay targets 
 
 
 


6) Recipe card holders  
 
 
 


7) Plastic bucket tool organizer 
 


 
 


8) Bleach bottle games 
 
 
 
9) Frames using plastic or clay  


 
 
 


10)  Tin can pencil holders               


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ENGINEER 
        Technology Group 


 
 
1.  List at least 10 items engineers do or have designed. 
 
Ask the boys questions like, “What type of engineer designed your home? Car?  
TV?  Computer? Streets? Airplanes?  Paper?  Fertilizer?” 
 
 2.  Visit a construction site.  (Get permission before you visit). 
 
This is always fun and would be a good time to gather some scrap samples of 
different woods for the Forester Activity badge. 
 
 3.  Measure the property line on your house. 
 


There should be nails in your sidewalk designating your property.  Divide 
the Webelos into two groups and have each group measure the distance 


between the nails from opposite ends.  Compare their measurements with your 
surveyor’s drawing to determine which group was closest. 


 
 4.  Tell about how electricity is generated and gets to your home. 
 
Contact your power company and find out where they purchase most of their electricity.  Visit 
your city’s electrical plant, then a sub-station.  Take them outside your home and point out the 
wires and transformers used to get electricity to your house.  Make sure you 
know the difference between the electrical, telephone, and cable wires.  
Please remind them of the dangers associated with electricity. 
 
 5. Construct a simple working electrical circuit using a flashlight battery, 
switch, and a light. 
 
Give them the parts and ask them to make a circuit. Use the light and battery from a flashlight, 
plus some wire.  I use a kit from Mac’s Craft Store that uses a buzzer instead of a light. 
 
 6.  Make drawings of three kinds of bridges and explain their differences.  Construct a 


model bridge of your choice. 
 
Divide the boys into small groups of 2 or 3 and give each group two 


blocks of wood, two pieces of construction paper, and a toy car.  Ask them to 
make three different kinds of bridges. If they need help, tell them to check 
the Webelos Book, p. 273. 
 
 8.  Build a catapult and show how it works. 
 
Give each boy a small block of wood (2" X 5" X ½") and a plastic spoon 
(which has a small hole pre-drilled).  Have them attach the spoon with a screw to the wood.  
They now have a catapult.  Go outside and launch miniature marshmallows.


Engineer 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
Engineer Midway 


 
 
 
 
 


Engineering Activities 
 
 
 
Have the boys build a bridge using any of the following materials:  
popsicle or craft sticks, toothpicks, paper, and cardboard. For the 
requirement, they should first draw 3 different bridges and then choose 
one to build. Let the boys experiment with the different styles shown in 
the book and then see how many matchbox cars each one will hold.  


 
 
 
Show the boys a blueprint and teach them what some of the items on it 
are.  Then give them cardstock and ask them to make a model of what 
they see.  Encourage each boy to do his best.  
 


 
 
Why is it important for an Engineer to know how to use a computer?  
Computers are an essential part of an engineer’s job.  


 
 
 


Show the boys how to draw a plan of their house or bedroom using a ruler.  Try to 
make a rough plan of the room you meet in so they can see what that room looks like 
on paper.  


 
 
 
Borrow the program "The Way Things Work" from the library. This program 
is a learning tool and will enlighten the boys on a lot concerning engineering.  


  
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


FAMILY MEMBER  
Community Group 


 
HOME SAFETY ASSESSMENT 


 
      Column 1 (1 Point)          Column 2 (2 Points)    Column 3 (3 Points) 


      Smoke detectors in my 
home are inspected on a 
regular basis. 


 


Smoke detectors in my 
home are inspected 
occasionally.  


 


My home does not have 
smoke detectors or I do 
not check them. 


 


      All poisons and 
medicines are locked and 
or stored in child-
resistant containers 


 


Some or most poisons and 
medicines are stored in 
child-resistant containers. 


 


Poisons and medicines 
are not stored away from 
children. 


 
      To prevent burns, my 


water heater is no higher 
than 120 degrees.  


 


I do not know the 
temperature setting of my 
water heater.  


 


My water heater is set 
above 120 degrees. 


 
      My home does not have 


any guns or they are 
locked away and 
unloaded.  


 


Guns and weapons are 
some-times left exposed, 
unlocked and loaded in my 
house.  


 


Loaded firearms are not 
locked or stored away in 
my home.  


 
      The furnace filter is 


replaced every 2-3 
months with a new filter 
for heating efficiency. 


 


The furnace filter is 
replaced occasionally with 
a new filter during the 
year. 


 


The furnace filter is 
rarely or never inspected 
and replaced. 


 
      I always recycle glass, 


paper and plastic 
products.  


I sometimes recycle glass, 
paper and plastic items. 


 


I never recycle glass, 
paper or plastic products. 


 
      I always turn the lights 


off when I leave a room. 


 


I usually turn the lights off 
when I leave a room. 


 


I usually do not turn off 
the lights when I leave a 
room.  


      I am careful not to leave 
the water running when 
brushing my teeth. 


 


I sometimes leave the 
water running when 
brushing my teeth. 


 


I always leave the water 
running when brushing 
my teeth. 


 
Column 1 total:   Column 2 total:   Column 3 total:   


 
Add up your points from columns 1, 2, and 3 and record your total:  _____________ 
KEY:  8 or less = healthy choices; 9-17= somewhat risky choices; 18 or more= risky choices. 


Family 
Member 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Family Member Midway 
 


Discuss the meaning of “family,” “duty of family,” 
and “family meeting.” 
 
Make a chart of family responsibilities or 
a poster of “family trees” using  
snapshots of close family members. 
 
Discuss ways to conserve home energy and 
how to develop an energy-saving- plan. 
 
Have an energy-wasters hunt. 
 
Plan well-balanced menus. 
 
Discuss the home safety checklist found in the 
Webelos Scout Book and talk about ways to 
provide home security. 
 
Identify safety hazards inside and outside. 
 
Invite a representative from the Sanitation and Refuse 
Disposal Service to explain how trash is disposed of  
and why proper disposal is important. 
 


 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


FITNESS 
Physical Skills Group 


 
 
CAREERS/SPEAKERS:  YMCA director, health class teacher, personal 
trainer, coach, and CPR instructor. 
 


• Arrange a visit to the YMCA or local fitness center.  Tour the facility, 
looking at all the machines.  Meet briefly with various instructors to find out 
what they do.  Get some fitness tips from a personal trainer.  Ask what to do for emergencies.   


• Find out if there is a nurse or doctor in your pack who would be willing to meet with your 
den to answer questions.  (Have boys write the questions on cards so they are anonymous.) 


• Have the boys read a story in the newspaper or magazine about a drug or alcohol related 
incident.  Have them report back to the den and discuss what happened.   


• Invite a nurse, doctor, or EMT to talk about the effects of tobacco, drug or alcohol abuse as 
well as the positive effects of eating a healthy diet.  


 
WHERE TO GO/WHAT TO DO: 


• Visit with a dietician and talk about planning meals and the four food groups.  
• Visit a dentist’s office and talk about dental health.  
• Talk with an aerobics instructor about exercising.  
Keep a chart of what you eat for a whole week and record the foods in columns 
for the four food groups and one more for “junk  
food.”  
• Have a pharmacist visit your den and talk about use and abuse of drugs and safe handling of 


medicines.  
• Let boys design posters that say no to drugs, cigarettes and alcohol.  Display at Pack meeting.  
• Have the boys collect advertisements for tobacco and alcohol.  Help the boys see that the 


activities in those ads have nothing to do with tobacco or alcohol.  Have them read the 
warning labels on cigarette ads and note the size of the warning in relation to the ad.  Can 
people do the activities depicted in the ads without smoking or drinking? 


 
                                JUMPING ROPE  


Jumping rope is a wonderful aerobic exercise.  Professional athletes, like boxers, use 
skipping rope to build endurance and coordination. See how many jumps you can do 
before making a mistake. How long can you jump rope?  The world record is over 12 
hours.  How fast can you jump rope? Can you jump backwards? 
 


 
TEST YOUR HEARTBEAT  


Did you know that you can’t actually hear a heartbeat?  The heartbeat itself is just a contraction 
of muscle and is perfectly quiet.  What you hear is the sound of heart valves snapping shut.   
To test your heartbeat:  Press the first two fingers of one hand over the radial artery in the 
opposite wrist.  Sit quietly and move your fingers until you can feel the pulse of blood.  Using a 
watch or clock with a second hand, count the number of beats in 10 seconds. Multiply by 6.  
Now you know the number of beats per minute.  Run, exercise, or jump rope for 10 minutes, 
then take your pulse again to see how much faster your heart is pumping. 


Fitness 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Fitness Midway 
 
 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


FORESTER 
Outdoor Group 


 
 


Loggers’ Field Day 
 
Here is a day of fun that painlessly combines education on forestry with fun. It’s a day in the 
woods that includes several games and contests, such as:  
 


Leaf identification Contest:  Boys try to identify leaves that are around the area.  
Then they can: cut the leaf off the tree and place on a Loose-Leaf Page and cover 
with clear contact paper;  OR, use a crayon to trace the leaf’s design onto a piece of 
paper.  Whichever way they choose, put the name of the tree by the leaf and the boys 
name at the top. 


 
How do you measure up?  Have one boy stand by a tree.  Next, have the other boys step back 
until they can sight the boy between their thumb and first finger.  Now, keeping their fingers the 
same distance, measure the tree’s height. (For e.g., “3 Tommys  
Tall.”) 
 


Plaster Cast of Animal Track:   
MATERIALS NEEDED:  Shoe Box, Sand, Plaster of Paris, stirring stick, Marker  
Study the track, then put down ¼-inch of sand in bottom of  
1. shoebox. 
2. Use knuckles of hand in sand to form animal foot. Use fingers to form claws. 
3. Mix plaster and pour in box.   Let stand for about 15 minutes.  Remove the cast. 
4. Scratch off any debris.   Mark on the plaster the animal’s name and date. 
 


Make a HUG A TREE Poncho Pack: 
2. Take a tall plastic garbage bag.  Fold it in half.  Cut slits in the middle for the head and on the 


sides for the arms. 
Fold back up and place in a quart-sized ziploc bag.   Also in the bag place a whistle with brightly 
colored boondoggle tied to it and a piece of individually wrapped hard  
3. candy. 
4. Tell the boys to take this emergency kit with them on hikes and field-trips.  Also, tell them 


the importance of NOT MOVING if they feel they are lost.  If they must move, then tie the 
brightly colored boondoggle to a branch of a tree that can be seen easily by searchers. 


 
Let’s go on a Hike -- Besides the Poncho Pack, what else is needed? Say, “We don’t 
want you to get lost -- however you should plan as if you ARE lost for 12 to 24 hours.” 
Items to take are: Water, food, small radio, flashlight, waterproof matches, toilet paper, 
medication and other needs.   Remind the boys to use the Buddy System.  
 
What products do we get from trees? 
Ask the boys to name some of the products we get from trees.  Some answers could be 
newsprint, paper bags, books, tissue, boxes, cabinets, furniture, musical instruments, 
shelves, baskets, dowels, telephone poles, wood fencing, paint, varnishes, stain, soaps, 
greases, oils, insulation, ink & dye, waxes, polish, adhesives, gum. 


Forester 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
FORESTER (cont) 
 
 
The Shape of Things to Come: 


Choose a shape like a football and ask the boys if they can see this same 
shape in nature. (Turned flat, up-and-down, sideways, etc)  List what 


they found.  
 


 
 
15 Seconds of Nature Sounds:  Have the boys sit and listen for 
15 seconds to the sounds of nature. Have them tell what they 
heard. 
(Try to not hear the sounds of man, such as cars, airplanes and 
other such noises that man makes)  
 
 
Colors of Nature 
Have the boys list everything around them that is Red, White, and Blue. (If these colors are not 
close to you, choose other colors that are).  
 
 


 
 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


FORESTER 2 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Forester Midway 
 


Match the following trees with their leaves. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ash – Food, paneling, baseball bats    Birch – Food, Canoes, Baskets 


Elm – Food, Shade      Juniper – Food, boats, Shingles 


Mulberry – Food, Silkworms     Oak – Food, Shade, Furniture 


 
Answers – 1f, 2e, 3d, 4c, 5b, 6a







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GEOLOGIST 
Outdoor Group 


 
 
For Geologist, the following information will be helpful as you teach the boys: 
 
THE BIG THREE:  There are three rock types determined by the manner in which they are 
formed.  Every rock you handle - whether it is a heavy stone, a pebble, or a handful of sand - 
belongs to one of these Big Three groups:  Igneous, Sedimentary, or  
Metamorphic. 
 
ROCK CYCLE: 
• IGNEOUS rocks are formed by cooling and solidification of molten 


matter or magma that originates within the earth.  Weathering and erosion reduce rocks to 
unconsolidated sediments like mud, sand, clay, or gravel. 


• Sediments are washed into oceans and seas in enormous quantities.  There they form vast 
layers of sediments.  Hardened later by the pressure of more and more layers, they become 
SEDIMENTARY rocks. 


• As pressure builds, it warps and twists many rocks. Heat from this pressure bakes, hardens 
and re-crystallizes the Igneous and sandstone rocks.  Rocks, which forces have changed in 
form, appearance and sometimes composition, are called METAMORPHIC rocks. 


 


IGNEIOUS ROCK—Granite  
In the mountains of Utah are large deposits of Granite.  Many of the earliest buildings in Utah 
were made of granite and are still standing today. 
  
IGNEOUS ROCK—Lava Rock 
Some lava rock has holes in it because, when it was hot, air bubbles were trapped inside it.  (For 
example, Pumice, a type of lava, floats in water.) Lava is used in fireplaces and grills because it 
won’t melt when it is reheated.  It’s used in landscaping for color, and because it is durable. 
 
SEDIMENTARY ROCK—Sandstone 
This is the most common rock in all the earth.  You are probably standing on it.  It is used in 
roads and gardens.  Its basic mineral is quartz which, when heated, becomes glass and is used in 
windows and eye-glasses. 
 
METAMORPHIC ROCK—Marble 
This is used to make counter tops, walls and floors.  It is well liked because of its variety of 
colors and patterns.  Other rocks that are used in home building include: Coal (tar for roofs), 
Sandstone (formed into bricks, or heated to make window glass), Tin or Aluminum (siding), 
Brass (doorknobs), Copper & Gold (wires and pipes), Limestone (wallboard). 
 


VOLCANOS and EARTHQUAKES 
The earth’s core is made of molten rock. There are many ways the earth can move.  
It can shift up or down, it can fold due to the squeezing of the land, and lava can 
push upwards to form a volcano. There are many active volcanoes today.  
Sometimes a fissure is formed, lava leaks onto the surface, and forms land 
masses.  These pressures in the earth cause earthquakes. 


Geologist 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GEOLOGIST (Cont) 
 


 
 
FOSSILS 
Sometimes animals and plants are trapped into rock and become fossilized.  Paleontologists 
study these fossils. Sometimes all they find is one bone, and have to re-construct the rest. They 
have to use their imagination to piece together facts on how the animal originally looked.  As 
more and more fossils are found, the shape of these animals frequently changes. 
 
MINERALS 
Utah has three important minerals -- Coal, Salt, and Copper. 
 


 
COAL is found in Price.  It is dug out of a mine and is placed in railroad cars 
to be shipped throughout the world.  
 
 
 
 


SALT is found in the Great Salt Lake.  It is taken from the shore, cleaned, and 
processed for table salt.  
 
 
 


COPPER is found in Bingham, primarily at Kennecott Cooper 
Mine.  It is dug out of a pit, put into large ovens to melt and refine, 
and then cooled in blocks.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GEOLOGIST 2 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Geologist Midway 
 


ROCKS are the materials of which mountains, cliffs, and 
the ground are made. All rocks are made up of one or more 
minerals.  
 
MINERALS are naturally occurring substances in the 
ground that are not part of an animal or plant. Minerals 
nearly always form crystals.  
 
WORD SEARCH 


Find the words from the word list in the appropriate word search puzzle. 
 


ROCKS 
N C L A Y G T J 
R L I Z K R L S 
L E M V C A A F 
B L E Y H N S G 
O B S I D I A N 
I R T N U T B E 
P A O C A E R I 
Y M N S K X D S 
T W E T A L S S 


     
1. Basalt  2. Clay   3. Copper  4. Feldspar  
   


 5. Gemstones  6. Gold  7. Gneiss  8. Granite 
 
 9. Limestone  10. Marble  11. Mica  12. Obsidian 
 
 13. Opal  14. Pyrite  15. Quartz  16. Sand 
 
 17. Slate  18. Sulfur   
 


MINERALS 
E G V O L D Q S 
R E B P J U U R 
H M Z A O L A E 
X S P L F P R P 
C T T U S Y T P 
Q O R D M R Z O 
G N L L I I N C 
W E A O S T C F 
F S K G M E Y A 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


HANDYMAN 
Technology Group  


 
 


      
The Handyman activity badge can be completed in as little as two weeks.  There are 14 total 
requirements, but only 6 are necessary to earn the badge. 
 
Requirement #8, changing a bulb, can be done anytime a light needs changing around your 
house.  Be sure and sign the boy’s book and make a note in your records which boy changed it. 
Or, make certain the parent lets you know. 
 
 I ran across some good information for use when teaching requirement #9. 
 
 Storing Gasoline Safely 
 


Store gasoline containers in a well-ventilated place inaccessible  
to children and pets.  Do not store gasoline inside your house. 
 
Store containers away from ignition sources (gas pilot lights or 
flames, electric motors, stoves, heaters, etc.) and combustibles 
(paper, rags, cardboard, etc.). 


 
With  
two-deep leadership, it is easy to teach requirements 1 through 4.  
Simply have both leaders use their cars and divide the den into two 
groups, then switch.  This way both cars get washed. 
 
Try this little quiz to help the boys learn what is under the hood of a 
car.  You can either show them on the car or have little plastic bottles 
filled with the liquids. 
 
            What is the color of: Answers 


 
Windshield washer fluid? _______________________ Blue or Pink 
 
Brake fluid? __________________________ Clear 
 
Engine Oil? __________________________ Golden or Black 


 
Transmission fluid? ____________________ Red 


 
Battery fluid? ______________________ Clear (water) 
 
Power Steering fluid? _____________________ Clear 
 
Radiator Anti-freeze? _____________________   Green  


Handyman 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Handyman Midway 
 


 


 
 


Have a Car Care Day  
 


 Arrange with the parents to bring their cars in to be washed, and check the tires and the 
oil. Also, arrange to have a car there and a helper if necessary so you can show the boys how to 
change the bulb for a taillight or turn signal.  Show them the difference between a taillight and a 
headlight.  If possible have two cars for changing a tire, one that has the spare in the trunk, and 
one that has the spare suspended under the car, so they can experience both. 
 
 Talk with Havoline or Jiffy Lube and see if they will show the boys what is done with old 
oil and anti-freeze.  See if they can observe an oil change and a flush and fill. The boys need to 
understand the importance of doing this to a car. 
 


 
 


      Simple Bicycle Repairs 
 


 Checking and oiling the chain   
 Moving the seat up and down. 


 Knowing how to fill and repair a bike tire.  
 How to adjust the handlebars. 


 
 
 


Tool Identification 


 
 


 This can be done at the store or at a den meeting site. If you don't have the tools, places 
like Lowe's and Home Depot are available. Also, there is usually a specialist there to answer 
questions if you have no idea what things are or what they are used for. Home Depot also offers 
classes to kids on the use of tools.   







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


NATURALIST 
Outdoor Group 


 
 
A Five-Area Walk:  Have each of the following areas set up, with the questions on posters or 
on a handout for the boys.  Take the boys on a hike and help them ‘discover’ the answers to the 
following questions. NOTE:  Answers are on the CD-ROM. 
 
Area A:  REQUIREMENT #5:  Bird Flyways 


1. What is Migration? 
2. Do you think that it’s the earth’s MAGNETISM that is directing the birds?  
3. We say that birds fly South in the fall to go to warmer places and then fly North during 


the spring to come back – but are they strictly going just North and South? 
 
Area B:  Requirement #6a:  Venomous Reptiles 
Have any of you slept outside your tent? -- If you did, a snake might have crawled in with you!  


1. What kind of poisonous reptiles are found in Utah?  
2. Choose one boy to act out what to do if thinks he has been bitten by a snake.    
      Ask boys what they should do. 


 
Area C:  Requirement #6b:  Poisonous Plants  


1. What kind of poisonous plants are found in Utah? 
2. Complete this sentence: Its time to flee, if you find leaves of_____.   
3. Choose 1 boy to act out what to do if he comes in contact with these plants.  


 
Area D:  Requirement #3:  Nature Center 
 


Show the boys the nature center.  Say, “I want you to tell me all of the kinds of 
nature you find around here by using “THE 5 SENSES OF NATURE.” 


1. HEARING: Close your eyes, listen to nature for 30 seconds, tell me what you heard 
2. TOUCH: Now touch this pine tree and tell me, “what do you feel?” 
3. SIGHT: Look for something ‘football shaped’ in nature -- What can you find?  
4. SMELL & TASTE: Did you know that if you smell one thing and taste another 


your NOSE wins!  Close your eyes, & smell this (Orange) and taste this (Lemon)  
Now try the reverse –(Smell Lemon, taste Orange). What do you taste and smell?  


 
Area E:  Requirement 8a, b, c:   
1.  What is an Ecosystem?     2.  What items are Producers 
3.  Name three types of Consumers   4.  What do Herbivores eat?  
5.  What do Carnivores eat?    6.  What do Omnivores eat? 
7.  What is a Food Chain?    8.  What happens if the eagle is extinct? 
9.  What happens if we eliminate all mice?     10. Why balance the food chain? 
11. How have humans changed nature’s balance? 12.  How can we protect this balance? 
 
Say, “Please raise your arm in the Cub Scout sign and recite with me the Outdoor Pledge.” 


Naturalist 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


NATURALIST (Cont) 
 


 
 


ANSWERS TO FIVE-AREA WALK 
 
 
Area A:  REQUIREMENT #5: -- Bird Flyways 


1. What is Migration?  Animals moving to a different area to get food. 
2. Do you think that it’s the earth’s MAGNETISM that is directing them? 
3. We say that Birds fly South during the Fall to go to warmer places and then fly North 


during the Spring to come back – but are they strictly going just North and South? 
Follow the Pacific Line down through South America. They seem to curve South-West 
for winter and North-East for summer – so if they are NOT following Magnetic North 
what must they be following?  


 
 
Area B:  Requirement #6a: -- Venomous Reptiles 
Have any of you slept outside of your tent? -- If you did, a snake might have crawled in with 
you! 


1. What kind of poisonous reptiles are found in Utah?  Gila Monsters and Rattle Snakes. 
2. Choose one boy to act out what to do if he thinks he has been bitten by a snake.   


Try to get the following answers: 
a.  Do not try to catch the snake -- but get a good look at it 
b.  Make sure the snake has actually bitten you 
c.  Do not try to treat the wound yourself  
d.  Call a doctor 
e.  It is best to stay still 
f.  If you must travel: Do not Run -- Walk slowly to the Doctor 


 
 
Area C:  Requirement #6b: -- Poisonous Plants  
1.  What kind of poisonous plants are found in Utah?   Poison Ivy, Western Poison Oak 
2.  Complete this sentence:” Its time to flee, if you find leaves of THREE” 
3.  Choose 1 boy to act out what to do if he comes in contact with any of these plants 


Try to get these answers:  
a. Wash your hands 
b. PAT on Rubbing Alcohol 
c. Spread on some Calamine Lotion  
d. Trying not to scratch 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


NATURALIST—ANSWERS TO 5-AREA WALK (cont) 
 
Area D:  Requirement #3: -- Nature Center 
This area has been set-up as a small nature center.  I want you to tell me all of the kinds of nature 
you find around here by using THE 5 SENSES OF NATURE 
HEARING: Close your eyes, take 30 seconds to listen to nature, then tell me what you heard. 
TOUCH: Now touch this pine tree and tell me, “what do you feel?” 
SIGHT: I want you to look for something football-shaped in nature -- What can you find? 
SMELL & TASTE: Did you know that if you smell one thing and taste another your nose wins!  
(Don’t actually tell them what you use until after they have smelled and tasted them.) 


Close your eyes and smell this (Orange) and taste this (Lemon)  
Now what did you taste?    ORANGE 
Now try the reverse -- Smell (Lemon) Taste (Orange) 
What do you taste?    LEMON 


 
 
Area E:  Requirements 8a, b, c:   
1.  What is an Ecosystem?    Producer, Consumer, and a Decomposer 
2.  What items are Producers?    Trees, Plants, Flowers 
3.  Name three types of Consumers:  Herbivore, Carnivore, and Omnivore 
4.  What do Herbivores eat?   Plants 
5.  What do Carnivores eat?   Meat 
6.  What do Omnivores eat?   Plants and Meat (everything) 
7.  What is a Food Chain?  Something eating something else, and so forth 
8.  What happens if the eagle is extinct?  More snakes and frogs 
9.  What happens if we eliminate all the mice?  Weasels and Hawks go hungry and die 
10. Is a balanced food chain important?   YES 
11. How have humans changed the balance of nature?  Discuss building on mountains, river  


banks, changing water courses, killing large populations of animals, pesticides. 
12.  How can we protect this delicate balance? Have discussion with boys on conservation. 
 
Say, “Please raise your arm with the Cub Scout sign and Recite with me the Outdoor Pledge.” 


 


THE OUTDOOR PLEDGE 
 


As an American, I will do my best to – 
Be clean in my outdoor manners,  


Be careful with fire,  
Be considerate in the outdoors,  


and be conservation minded. 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


NATURALIST 2 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Naturalist Midway 
 


Scientists have identified more than 750,000 insect species.                      
 
Scientists discover up to 10,000 additional insect species each year. 
 
Scientists believe there could be up to 8 million different insect species in the world today. 
 


Insects – Must have three body parts, and six legs. 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


Insect or Not Insect 
 


Which of the following are insects? 
 
1. Ant     2. Bee    3. Butterfly 
 
4. Centipede    5. Cricket   6. Dragonfly 
 
7. Earwig    8. Fly    9. Grasshopper 
 
10. Ladybug    11. Leech   12. Lice 
 
13. Mosquito    14. Potato bug   15. Praying Mantis 
 
16. Scorpion    17. Snail   18. Spider 
 


Answer: Insects – 1,2,3,5,6,7,8,9,10,12,13,15 


Thorax 


Head 


Abdomen 


Leg 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OUTDOORSMAN 
Outdoor Group 


 
The OUTDOORSMAN program runs like a thread through the Scouting program. 
(See How-To Book and Cub Scout Leader Guide for nature and outdoor activity ideas.) 
• Cub Scouts are introduced to the outdoors through den and pack activities, day camps and    


family camping. They learn proper methods for hiking, conservation, and outdoor cooking. 
• Webelos Scouts learn outdoor skills through activity badges and are introduced to overnight    


camping skills with a parent. 
• Boy Scouts enjoy week-long camping, camporees, etc. while still learning outdoor skills. 


Varsity and Venture-age boys use the skills they have learned in a high-adventure setting. 
• Each step in the outdoor program is a foundation for the next. Start with easy camping 


experiences and work up to more challenging ones. 
• Cub Scouts like to explore. The outdoor program opens up the world around them. 
• As boys hike, explore, run, and romp, they are learning about God’s beautiful world and the    


importance of conserving natural resources. 
• As they have fun in the outdoors or play sports and games, they learn the value of physical 


fitness and good sportsmanship.   
 
 
 
SUGGESTED OUTDOOR ACTIVITIES 
1. Outdoor games and activities. Try to hold Den and Pack meetings outdoors as much as 


possible.  Remember Cub Sc-outing is 3/4 Outing! 
2. Cub Scout Sports. Fun and fitness are combined in the Cub Scout sports program. Every boy 


can learn the basic skills of a sport while learning good sportsmanship and fitness habits. 
(See Academics & Sports Program Guide.) 


3. Hiking. A journey on foot with a purpose and destination. Cubs enjoy short hikes, and 
Webelos will have hikes related to activity badges. (see Cub Leader Book for  hike ideas.) 


4. Cub Trips and Outings. Field trips are a recognized part of the Cub Program. Please follow 
guidelines and get needed permission and tour permits. (See Cub Leader Book.) 


5. Outdoor Ceremonies. These take on an extra meaning in the outdoors. (For ideas and 
guidelines see Cub Leader book, Sparklers for Cub Scouts.) 


6. Campfires. These can be an exciting and inspirational way to end a meeting. Include songs, 
stunts, opening, closing, and stories. (For ideas see How-To book, & Cub Leader Book.) 


7. Webelos & Dad Overnight Camping. This introduces the boy and his parent to camping 
under the direction of the Den Leader.  Each boy needs a parent or other approved adult.  
One leader attending must have Youth Protection Training.  A Tour Permit is required. (See 
GSLC guidelines.) 


8. Day Camp. ‘The camp that comes to the boy.’ These are camps, run by a district or council, 
that provide supervised and established outdoor activities. Directors are certified and camps 
must pass inspection. 


9. Resident/Family Camping. An organized camping program covering at least two 
nights and located at an established Council Scout Camp. Cubs and a parent participate in a 
theme-related outdoor program.  Council Family Camps have activities for the entire family. 


 


Outdoorsman 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Outdoorsman Midway  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Fire Safety Word Scramble  
 


1. LREUS 
Follow all ____________ of the campsite. (Hint: regulations) 
 


2. CELCRI 
Clear all burnable materials within a ten-foot fire ____________.    
 (Hint: Round geometric shape) 


 
3. NRCSBHAE 


No fire under overhanging tree ___________ or shrubs. (Hint: Tree limbs) 
 


4. OTROS 
No fire near __________ of trees. (Hint: Bottom of tree) 
 


5. TDANUTEEDN 
Never leave a fire ____________. (Hint: Not paying attention to) 
 


6. TAEWR 
Keep a bucket of __________ nearby. (Hint: Liquid) 
 


7. IFER 
Make sure the __________ is completely out. (Hint: Flame) 
 


8. SHEAS 
Spread out coals and _____________. (Hint: The end result of burned materials) 
 


9. KLSIEPNR 
___________ with water. (Hint: A light rain shower) 
 


10. DOCL 
Stir and sprinkle with water until site is __________. (Hint: Not hot) 


 


Outdoor Code 
 
As an American, I will do my best to  
 
Be Clean in my outdoor manners, 
Be careful with fire, 
Be considerate in the outdoors, and 
Be conservation-minded. 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


READYMAN 
       Community Group 


 
 
First-Aid Neckerchief Slide: 
Use a plastic 35-MM film container.  Ask your local photo shops for available film containers. 
They will have lots of free containers to give you.  Punch two holes in the back of the container 
approximately ½” apart.  A hand-held paper punch works great!  You can also use the end of a 
hot glue gun.  Thread a 3” pipe cleaner through the holes and twist together inside the container.  
Cut two pieces of white or red tape to form a cross on the front of the container.  The following 
items are possible things you can place inside the container: two quarters for a phone call, one 
piece of hard candy, a couple of safety pins, two Band-Aids, 2-3 antiseptic wipes, an iodine 
wipe, 2-3 Tylenol or aspirin, 2-3 stick matches, needle and thread, and a small address card with 
emergency numbers.  Place the flat items on the sides of the container.  Place the quarters in the 
lid and on the bottom of the container. 


 
Important facts you need to remember: 
� Protective helmets reduce the risk of head injury by 85% and brain injury 


by 88%. 
� Each year in America, approximately 3,000 children die from traumatic 


brain injuries.  The 29,000 who survive may face lifelong problems.  
 
ReadyMan Skit: 
Divide boys into teams of 2-3.  Write the following topics on a piece of paper: cuts, burns, 
poisoning, shock, choking, breaks, etc.  Each team draws a First Aid topic.  Teams have five 
minutes to prepare a skit showing an accident and the First Aid they would provide.  Present 
skits during Den Meeting and Pack Meeting. 
 
First Aid Question and Answer game: 
One way to help boys prepare for an emergency is to provide ways to practice possible 
emergency situations.  Type some questions and scenarios on paper or 3” X 5” cards.   Fold up 
each question and place in hat, or shuffle cards and place upside down.  Boys take turns drawing 
cards out of the hat and answering the questions.  Encourage additional discussion when the 
player has finished answering the question.  Give out pieces of candy for answering a question.  
This can be played in Den Meeting or Pack Meeting. 
 
Possible questions: 
� What does “First Aid” mean? 
� What are some “Safe Swim Defense” rules you should follow? 
� What are some bicycle safety rules you should follow? 
� What kind of First Aid should be administered for a sprained ankle? 
� While eating lunch in the cafeteria at school, you notice a student 


turning blue.  He or she is choking.  What should you do? 
 


Readyman 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Readyman Midway 
 
 
 


FIRST AID QUIZ 
 


1.  When you come upon an injured person, if you are trained in what to do, you first treat                         
      to___________. 
 immobilize broken leg  stop bleeding 
 restore stopped breathing  expel poisonous substance 
 
2.  The most important single piece of information you would give to the emergency medical 
squad dispatcher by phone is____________.             
  the extent of injuries   the location  
 the time of the accident  your name 
 
3.  Every injury to a person is accompanied by some degree of __________. 
 fainting    shock 
 exhaustion    unconsciousness   
 
4.  Treatment for a conscious heatstroke victim includes ________________. 
 getting him to run   drinks of hot liquids 
 cold cloths on his body  blankets over his body 
 
5.  One part of treatment for any case of shock would be to place the victim’s ______. 
 head higher than his feet  hands crossed on chest 
 head and feet on same level  feet higher than the head 
 
6.  Usually, present day first aid for most serious bleeding would be the application of  
___________. 
 a tourniquet    direct pressure on wound 
 a constriction band   finger pressure on an artery 
 
7.  The worst kind of burn chars skin and exposes the victim to serious infection.  It is the 
__________-degree burn. 
 first     third  
 second     fourth  
 
8.  If during rescue breathing you don’t hear air escaping from the victim’s mouth or noise and 
don’t see his chest rise, you must __________. 
 start CPR    use back prone pressure 
 clear the airway   breathe easier 
 
 
Answers:  1.  restore stopped breathing   2.  the location    3.  shock    4. cold cloths on his body   
5.  feet higher than his head   6.  direct pressure on wound   7.  third   8. clear the airway   







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SCHOLAR 
 Mental Skills Group 
 
   
 
 
The Scholar activity badge helps the boy realize the importance of education.  As they complete 
the various requirements for the badge, the goal is help the boys realize what their education has 
done for them and what it can do for them in the future.  The cub scout motto of ‘Do Your Best’ 
certainly applies here.   


 
THE ASPECTS OF EDUCATION 


 
The activity badge gets the boys looking at education in a new light.  One of the requirements is 
to trace the history of education.  The boys will hopefully realize that historically very few 
people got an education.  But in America the value of education for everyone was important.   


 
There are many things that the boys have learned in school already such as 
reading, math, science, history and art.  Have the boys imagine what it would 
be like to have no education at all.  They wouldn’t be able to read or write.  
They wouldn’t know anything about history and they wouldn’t even know 
what button to push on their ‘Nintendo’. 
 


THE EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM 
 
There is more to the school system than the principal.  Have the boys chart the school system.  
They will probably be surprised to learn the school system is run by the school board. The school 
board is made up of members who are elected by their parents.   
 
No system is perfect.  Have the boys find out what the strengths and weaknesses of the school 
system are.  By interviewing some adults the boys will learn what is working and what the 
problems are at their school.  One way to interview adults is to invite the parents to a den 
meeting and interview them there. 
 


CAREERS 
 
There are more careers in education than teaching.  There are librarians, speech therapists and 
counselors.  Have the boys list what the various careers do. 
 
****************************************************************************** 
 
 
 
 
 


One thing that is good to learn is the scout law.
An easy way to remember the law is to
remember Lions and tigers and bears. (The
tiger is like Tigger who bounces like a
kangaroo.) 


Trustworthy Lions help friends. 
Courteous kangaroos obey 
cheerfully. Thrifty bears are clean 
and reverent. 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Scholar Midway 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


See what king of Scholars are in your den.  Help them solve these BRAINTEASERS: 
 
Two Cars - Two cars start from Denver and drive to Colorado Springs, a distance of 
approximately 80 miles.  They are both the same make of car, and both are being driven at the 
same rate of speed.  However, one of the cars makes the distance in 80 minutes, but it takes the 
other car one hour and 20 minutes. Can you explain the reason? 
 
Answer:  80 minutes, and one hour and 20 minutes, are the same.  
 
Windows - I walked to the top of the hill and counted 50 windows on my right. I turned around, 
walked back down, and counted 50 windows on my left. How many windows did I count? 
 
Answer:  Fifty. The windows on my right going up were the same fifty that were on my 
left going back. 
 
Baby Duck - Papa Duck, Mama Duck and baby duck went for a swim. Baby duck 
said, "Aren't we all four having a lot of fun?" Why did Baby Duck say four instead of three? 
 
Answer: Baby duck was too young to count. 
 
Dog in the Woods - How far can a dog go into the woods? 
 
Answer:  Only halfway. When he gets halfway in, he starts coming out again. 


SEVEN WAYS TO IMPROVE YOUR GRADES 
 
1. LEARN TO LISTEN.  Look at the speaker and concentrate on his words. Teachers 


often review important facts many times. 
2. DEVELOP GOOD STUDY HABITS. Have a study place at home away from 


distractions. Have supplies handy. Do homework at the same time every day so it 
becomes a habit. 


3. USE THE RIGHT READING TECHNIQUES. Learn how to skim by glancing 
through whole paragraphs at a time. 


4. IMPROVE YOUR VOCABULARY. Look up words you don't know. Write them 
down. Note the spelling, pronunciation and meaning. 


5. SHARPEN YOUR WRITING SKILLS  Organize your thoughts. Keep your sentences 
short. Don't start every sentence with the or I. 


6. LEARN HOW TO TAKE TESTS. Study for a test well ahead of time, carefully and 
calmly.  Do not "cram." Then, relax, and face it. Read all directions. Answer the 
questions you are sure of first. Pace yourself. If there is an answer you don't know, skip it 
and go on, you can always fill it in later. Double-check your work for careless errors. 


7. DEVELOP A POSITIVE ATTITUDE. You are what you think you are. If you think 
you are going to pass, you probably will. 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Scholar Midway 2 
 


 
To Earn Scholar, Do Three of These: 
 


1. Have a good record in attendance, behavior, and grades at 


school. 


2. Take an active part in a school activity or service. 


3. Discuss with your teacher or principal the value of having an 


education.  


4. List in writing some important things you can do now because 


of what you’ve learned in school. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
And Do Three of These: 
 


5. Trace through history the different kinds of schools.  Tell how our present public school 


system grew out of these schools. 


6. Make a chart showing how your school system is run.  


7. Ask a parent and five other grown-ups these questions:                                                                                


• What do you think are the best things about my school?  


• What are its main problems? 


What do you think were the best answers?  Why?  


8. List and explain some of the full-time positions in the education field. 


9. Help another student with schoolwork.  Tell what you did to help.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


SCIENTIST 
Technology Group 


 
 
• Bernoulli’s Principle.  Air travels faster over an airplane wing causing a lower pressure, 


which gives it lift. 
 
Using the blower component of a vacuum, suspend a ping-pong ball, 
balloon, or an air filled ball.  Tilt the hose to show that the ball follows 
the airflow because of Bernoulli’s Principle. 


 
 
• Pascal’s Law.  The pressure on a liquid or gas in a closed container is equal in all 


directions. 
 


Place a glass in a pail of water and turn it upside down.  Slowly lift the glass out of the 
water without breaking the surface. The water will rise with the glass because there is 
pressure pushing on the water outside the glass. 
 


 


• Inertia.  Objects remain at rest unless acted upon by an external force. 
 
Follow the directions in the Webelos manual.  Flip a card.  Quickly pull a card or 
 heavy strip of paper.  Boys love the pail of water twirling over the head. 


  
 


• Atmospheric Pressure. 
 


Fill a can with water to one-fourth its height.  Put the can into a pan filled with 
water, then place it on a stove.  Heat until steam rises from the can.  Remove the 
can with metal tongs, and turn the can upside down into another pan of cold 
water.  The can was crushed because the steam removed the air and, when 
cooled, atmospheric pressure crushed it. 


 
 


• Become a Rocket Scientist.  
 


Put the following ingredients in a Fuji film canister:  1 tsp water, 3/4 tsp. vinegar, and 1/4 tsp. 
baking soda.  Put lid on quickly and place on ground.  Stand back.  It will fly up to 12 feet. 
(Use film canisters that have the lid fit inside, rather than outside. They work better!) 


 
 


• Some fun ideas on how your eyes work together. 
 


Drop a two-dollar bill  between two fingers. 
   


One-foot trick: Time each boy standing on one foot with his eyes open.  Then 
have them change feet and time them standing on one foot with their eyes 
closed.  What a difference! 


 


Scientist 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Scientist Midway 
 


Recipes for Crystals 
 


Crystal Garden 
 


Charcoal Briquettes: about 4 
Around the charcoal [not on top] put: 


6 T. of Water 
6 T. of Salt 


6 T. of concentrated Laundry Bluing 
2 T. of Ammonia 


2 T. of food coloring 
 


Put them in a deep dish. 
Crystals will form in two or three days. 


 
 


Large Crystals 
 


1 cup Water 
3 T. of Alum 


clear glass or jar  
wax paper 


 
Heat the water to boiling. 


Stir in the alum until it dissolves. 
Rinse the glass/ jar with hot tap water. 


Pour the alum solution into the glass/ jar. 
Set it some place where it will not be disturbed. 


Place a piece of wax paper on top to keep out the dust. 
 


Check your solution every day.  
 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 SHOWMAN 
 Mental Skills Group 
 
 
 
 
The showman activity badge is one badge where the boys can really have some fun.  There are 
many possibilities. There are three main areas that can be chosen in the showman:  puppetry, 
music and drama. Whichever area is chosen, it can involve puppets, music, acting, script writing 
and just plain hamming it up.   A good idea is to have whatever area is chosen to then be 
performed at pack meeting.   
 
 


Puppetry 
 
Puppets are always fun to make and play with.  Marionettes are more 
difficult to make.  Sometimes a simple sock or bag puppet can be just as 
much fun.  Stage sets can be as simple as a card table turned on edge, or a 
doorframe with a curtain will also work.  Have the boys write their own play. 
 
 


Music 
 
It is always a good idea to ‘piggyback’ activity badge 
requirements.  One way to do this is to have the boys make 
an instrument and have them play it at pack meeting.  One 
of the easiest instruments to make is bell chimes. These 
can be made by cutting copper pipe or conduits.  See page 
on the CD-Rom for details.  By cutting the pipe different 
lengths, different tones can be made.  Each boy can have a 
different note and, by pointing to the boys, you can have a 
bell choir.  


 
 


Drama 
 


There are many possibilities to give the boys a taste of the theater.  Take 
them to a play such as a local or high school production.  Show them 
stage directions, have them make a stage set, or put on a one- act play.  
Or, have them write a one-act play for themselves.  Eight to eleven year 
olds can have quite an imagination.  
 


Showman


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SHOWMAN 2 


PIPE CHIMES 
 
Pipe chimes can be made from two ten foot lengths of 1/2" galvanized conduit pipe or copper 
pipe. For best results, use a pipe cutter to cut the pipe.  Cut the pipes to exact measurements. An 
1/8" off will change the pitch. Use a drill press, if possible, to drill the holes in the top of the 
pipe. Drill about a 1/16" hole in the top of the pipe for hanging the pipes. 
 
Build a frame out of PVC sprinkler pipe or wood. Use fish line or dental floss to hang the 
chimes, or just have two cubs hold the pipes on a broom stick or dowel. Or, you can hand out a 
pipe to each cub and have a bell choir. This would be GREAT for the Showman Activity Badge. 
Strike the pipes with a large nail or butter knife or other metal implement. 
 
FIRST OCTAVE     SECOND OCTAVE 
 
Note  Pipe Length   Note  Pipe Length 
A 13"- 6/8"  A  9 - 5/8" 
B flat 13 - 3/8"  B flat  9 - 3/8" 
B 13"  B  9 - 1/8" 
C 12 -5/8"  C  8 - 7/8" 
C sharp 12 - 1/4"  C sharp 8 - 5/8" 
D 11 - 7/8"  D  8 - 3/8" 
E flat 11 - 1/2"  E flat  8 - 1/8" 
E 11 - 1/4"  E  7 - 7/8" 
F 10 - 7/8"  F  7 - 5/8" 
F sharp 10 - 5/8" 
G 10 - 1/4" 
A flat 9 - 7/8" 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Showman Midway 
 


MAKE MUSIC AND MESSAGES 
 
With this code, you can send a musical message to a friend. First, use a ruler to draw lines of 
music like those below. Then, substitute the notes in the code for the letters or the numbers in 
your message. Put a vertical line (called a bar in music) after each word or number. 
 
Don't forget to include a copy of the code with your message. Your friend can decode the 
message and send you a noteworthy reply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


HORN 
 
Materials: Waxed paper 


Rubber Band 
Empty roll from paper towels 


 
 
 
 
Directions:   


• Ask Mom or Dad to punch holes on one side of the paper towel roll. 
• Cover one end of the roll with piece of waxed paper. 
• Fasten the paper tightly around the roll with a rubber band. 
• Sing into the open end. 


 
 
 
Hang a metal horseshoe from a wire or string. Play it with a spoon. 
 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Showman Midway 2 
 


Choose one set of requirements for this badge:  PUPPETRY, MUSIC, or DRAMA 
 
PUPPETRY--Do Four of These: 
 


1. Write a puppet play about one of your Webelos den activities or a 
subject of your choice. 


2. Make a set of puppets or marionettes for the play you have written or 
for another play. 


3. Build a simple stage for puppets or marionettes.  
4. Alone or with help from others, put on a puppet show for your den or pack. 
5. Make a set of four paper bag puppets for a singing group.  With the help of three other 


Den members, sing a song with the puppets as the performers.  
6. There are sock, stick and finger puppets.  There are paper bag puppets, and marionettes.  


Explain the differences and show any puppets you have made for this badge. 
 
MUSIC--Do four of these: 
 


1. Play four tunes on any band or orchestra instrument.  
Read these from music. 


2. Sing two songs alone or with a group. 
3. Make a collection of three or more records, tapes, or 


compact discs.  Tell what you like about each one. 
4. Tell what folk music is.  Hum, sing, or play a folk tune on a musical instrument. 
5. Name three American composers.  Name a famous work by each. 
6. Draw these: a staff, a clef, sharp, flat, natural, note, rest.  Tell what each is used for. 
7. Show the difference between 2/4, ¾, and 4/4 time by beating time or playing an 


instrument. 
           


DRAMA--Do four of these: 
 


1. Give a monologue (a talk) on patriotic, humorous, or holiday subject, or another 
subject of your choice. 


2. Attend a play.  Describe the story.  Tell what you liked about it. 
3. Read a play.  Make a model stage setting for one of 


the acts. 
4. Write, put on, and take part in a one-act play. 
5. Make a list of stage directions.  Tell what they 


mean. 
6. Describe a theater-in-the-round.  What are its good 


and bad points? 
7. Explain the difference between a grand opera and a 


light opera.  Explain the difference between a musical and a play. 
8. Read about William Shakespeare.  Draw a picture of his Globe Theater. 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SPORTSMAN 
Physical Skills Group 


 
     Sports are high on the list of favorites of Webelos-age boys.  Most members of your den 
already participate in organized sports and neighborhood games.  Most can probably already pass 
off the requirements for knowing the rules, scoring and techniques of many sports.  However, 
that is not enough.   
     One of the purposes of Scouting is encouraging good sportsmanship and pride in growing 
strong mind and body. If the boys learn all the skills and rules involved in every sport this month, 
but they don’t have an inkling of what good sportsmanship means, then everyone has wasted 
their time.   
     Agree on the importance of learning sportsmanship.  What does it mean in practice?  It means 
the least skilled gets just as much instruction and encouragement as the best athlete.  It means the 
better athletes learn not just to tolerate the awkward boy, but to help him.  It means all boys can 
win and lose with grace and good sportsmanship.  The leader’s example will help to achieve 
these goals.  Stress the fun of the game, not winning.  Choose teams where ability is equally 
divided.  Discourage belittling criticism and encourage all players.  The leader’s responsibility is 
to conduct the den meetings so that every boy in the den becomes sufficiently skilled to meet all 
the requirements of the badge.  Participation is not enough; the boy should be able to 
demonstrate skill and knowledge in his four selected sports.  


 
                           FIELD TRIPS 


Go roller-skating or ice-skating  
Have a den outing to a sports event.  
Explain rules of etiquette and play to boys first so as not to 
disturb other players.  


 
              DEN ACTIVITIES  


Invite a referee or official to teach signals and talk about teamwork, fair play and 
sportsmanship. 
Hold a parent/son sports tournament, such as bowling, tennis, volleyball, 
basketball, etc.  
Have a den board game marathon.  Allow time for rotation to different games.  
Use the Sports and Academic Belt Loop Program.  
Have the Webelos figure out a football play or basketball play and diagram it.   
Give Webelos a list of famous sports figures and have them name the sport involved.  
Play some backyard games such as horseshoes, croquet, or badminton.  


 
SPORTS INJURIES  


Include safety demonstrations and stress the use of proper protective equipment with 
all your den activities this month.  The sports with the largest number of injuries 
are bicycling, then football, on the playground, baseball and 


basketball.  Invite a sports trainer or orthopedic doctor to visit your den 
and talk about the kinds of injuries that are common in the various 


sports.  How can they be prevented? 


Sportsman 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Sportsman Midway 
 
 
 
Have a BALL trying some new sports activities.  Boys who normally don’t do 
as well at some more established sports frequently ‘shine’ at some of 
these games. 
 
Some different INDIVIDUAL sports you may want to consider include: 


 
Darts 
Croquet  
Bocce 


 
 


Some unusual TEAM SPORTS which the boys may like include:  
 
Broom Hockey Have each boy bring a broom from home.  Mark 


the field boundaries with nylon rope.  Goals can 
be small nets or marked with small orange cones.  
The puck should be a light-weight ball 10-12 
inches in diameter.  Do not use a basketball as it 
would probably destroy  the brooms.  To play, 
use hockey rules. 


 
 
 
Water Baseball Use a wiffle ball and bat.  (A wiffle ball is lightweight and full of  


holes.)  The bases are large plastic rectangular tubs about 18 X 24 inches 
and 6 inches high.  Fill each base half full of water.  Each player in the  
outfield has a wet sponge. 


 
When the batter hits the ball, the person who picks up the ball can either 
throw his sponge at the runner and get them out, or throw the ball to 
another player, who then has the option of throwing their sponge at the 
runner.  You must have the ball in order to throw a sponge.  If the runner 
does not get out, they must stand on their “base” with one foot in the 
water. 
 
Between 3rd base and home plate, put ‘visqueen’, a 
lightweight plastic, on the ground and wet it.  “Slip-    
n’-Slides” work great!  A runner must slide into 
home plate to score.  This is a fun game for both 
boys and adults.  We have often used it at a 
summertime pack meeting.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Sportsman Midway 2 
 
 


 
Sports are high on the list of favorites of Webelos Scout-age boys.  You can be certain of instant 
interest by most members of your den.  Chances are that they spend much of their leisure time in 
organized sports and loosely organized neighborhood games.  Some of them probably know 
enough already about rules, scoring,  and techniques for several sports so that they can pass those 
requirements immediately. 
 


 
But that’s not really enough!  One of the prime 
purposes of Cub Scouting is encouraging good 
sportsmanship and pride in growing strong in mind 
and body.  If your boys learn all the skills and rules 
involved in every sport this month, but didn’t get an 
inkling of what good sportsmanship means, then the 
den and you have wasted your time. 
 
 
Agree on the importance of learning sportsmanship.  
What does that mean in practice?  It means that the 
least skilled gets just as much instruction and 
encouragement as the best athlete.  It means that the 
best athletes learn not just to tolerate the awkward 
boy, but to help him.  It means that all boys can win 
and lose with grace and good sportsmanship. 


 
 
 
Your own example will help to achieve those goals.  Put stress 
on the fun of the game, not on winning.  When you have intra- 
den competition, make up the teams so that the strength is even.  
If you let boys choose teammates, there is a good chance that 
most of the best players will wind up on one team.  Encourage 
the less skillful players.  Discourage others from belittling them.  
Sports in a Webelos den should be fun for all. 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 TRAVELER 
 Mental Skills Group 
 
 


 
 


 
 
The traveler is an activity badge where the boys can have fun planning 
and taking a trip.  Whether by car, plane, boat or train, travel can be 
exciting and fun.  Sometimes the planning can be as fun as the trip.  
Each form of travel has its own form of planning.  For a car trip, get a 
road map and show the boys how to read the scale of the map and 
determine how far the planned trip is going to be.  Figure out how 
much the cost per mile is going to be by figuring out the car’s miles per 
gallon and dividing it by the distance of the trip.  This will tell how many gallons of gas are 
needed.  Times this by the cost of a gallon of gas.  Dividing this cost by the total miles driven 
will give the cost per mile for the trip.   
 
 


Planning a Trip by Car 
 


Have the boys plan four different trips.  There are many places close by that 
can be interesting to visit.  There are national parks, many campsites, 
museums, and interesting places like Wheeler Farm, Kennecott Copper 


Mine and other places.  Have the boys plan the trip after they decide 
where they want to go.  The cub then needs to act as navigator for the trip. 
 
 


Public Transportation 
 
If you use public transportation, you need to use a timetable.  Get 
a timetable for a bus or train; or, if you have an airplane ticket, 
show the boys how it works.  Have them plan a theoretical trip 
using the timetable.  Be sure to allow enough time for transfers.  Since 
it is only for fun, let them go to New York or Los Angeles or wherever they want. 
 
 


Getting Ready and Packing Up 
 
Part of getting ready is packing up.  Have the boys pack a suitcase.  Have 
them pack for overnight.  Remember toiletries, a towel, and underwear 
along with other clothes.  Remember Ziploc bags are great for just about 
everything.  Plastic grocery bags are great for dirty clothes and putting 
shoes in so they don’t get other things dirty.   


Traveler Traveler 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 Traveler Midway 
 


 
Through the Traveler Badge requirements, Webelos will learn to read maps and 


timetables of railroads, buses, or airlines serving their area. They will learn how to 
use highway maps and plan trips. 
Please note that the trips listed in the requirements are family trips and not Webelos Den 
activities. You can help the boys secure some of the travel items they will need and teach them 
how to read maps and timetables as they prepare for the family trips. Then, teach them some fun 
TRAVEL GAMES to help pass the time! 
 


 
TRAVEL GAMES  


 
ADD ELEVEN - Find numbers on license plates -- but not just any numbers. Start with 01, then 
add eleven to 01 and look for 12. Search in turn for 23, 34, and so on, adding eleven each time. 
The two digits on each plate must be next to each other and in the right order. The first one to 
reach 89 wins. 
 


COUNT THE STATES - When you take a trip, make a list of 
the states and Canadian provinces you spot on the license plates 


of passing cars. (Trucks often have so many plates, they make the 
game too easy.) At the end of the day, add up the total. Start a new 


list the next day. Try to find even more. 
 


GEOGRAPHY - The first player begins by saying the name of a 
city, state or country. Each person that follows must give a geographic name that 
begins with the last letter of the place immediately preceding. For example, the first 
person says "Utah." The next might say, "Houston," the next "New York," and so on. 
No name can be used more than once. A player is out when he can't think of a 
suitable name. The last remaining player is the winner. 
 
FIND THE MYSTERY CITY - Divide the den into two teams. Give each team 
captain a state highway map. Call out the names of various cities in the state and have the teams 
locate them on the map. The first team to locate the city wins the round (win or lose, make sure 
that both teams locate the town before moving on to the next). The team that locates the most 
towns wins.  
 
FIND THE MOST - The point is to see who can count the most of something before reaching 
your destination or within a specified time limit. People choose different objects to count: green 
cars vs. red cars, cows vs. horses, Chevrolets vs. Fords, etc.  
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Traveler Midway 2 
 


TRAVELER REQUIREMENTS 
 
Do Five of These: 


 
1. Get a map or timetable from a railroad, bus line, airline, and 


subway or light rail.  The line should serve the place where you 


live or where you live.  Look up some places it goes. 


 


2. Use a timetable to plan a trip from your home to a city in 


another state by railroad, bus, airline, or ferry.  


 


 


3. With your parent or guardian, take a trip to a place that 


interests you. 


 


4. Figure out what it costs per mile for the trip you have 


taken in requirement 3. 


 


5. List four nearby trips you would like to take with your parents or guardian.  Lay out the 


trip on a highway map.  Using the map, act as navigator on one of these trips.  It should 


start at your home, be at least 25 miles long, and have six or more turns. 


 


6. Pack a suitcase for a trip.  


 


7. Check the first aid kit in the family car to see if it 


contains what is needed.  


 
 


 
  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS 
 


 
 
At first, Webelos may seem overwhelming and confusing.   However, with a little 


advanced planning and a lot of help from our Scout Friendly Community, it can be a lot of fun 
even for the Leaders.  As leaders we have so many opportunities to learn and to teach!  As 
leaders we need to learn to use our resources.  It can be very overwhelming trying to do it all by 
yourself!   


Find out what your boys are learning in school and keep in contact with their teachers.   
There is a lot of material covered in school that meets requirements.  Have patience!  Good 
leaders don’t happen overnight.   It may take a full year to feel like you know what you’re doing!  
Believe it or not, there are thousands of people around who are willing to help.   


Ask for help, and you will be surprised at how many people will say ‘yes’.  Give 
someone else the chance to help, and you may even learn something yourself.  Use the themes 
for Pack Meetings to help you plan your meetings!    


Don’t forget to Piggyback – there are requirements that, with an additional step or two, 
may also meet requirements for other badges.  Within the next several pages you will find more 
resources and ideas in addition to the resources we gave you last year to help make your job 
easier.  (2003 Pow Wow Book is also found on this year’s, 20003, CD-ROM.  JUST HAVE 
FUN !!!        


 
 


Uniforms – ‘Experienced’, or used uniforms can often be found at thrift stores  
 such as Goodwill, Deseret Industries, or similar. 
    
Books, Charts & Software: 


Pow Wow Rom   www.misite.com 
800-949-5860 or 801-491-7676 P.O. Box 51373 Provo, UT 84605-1373 


Family Fun Magazine   www.familyfun.com 
800-289-4849    P.O. Box 37032  Boone, IA 50037-0032 
$14.95/year US 


Oriental Trading Company, Inc. www.orientaltrading.com 
800-228-0475    P.O. Box 2654 Omaha, NE 68103-2654 


Pack O-Fun Magazine   www.craftideas.com 
$21.97/year US   P.O. Box 420975  


Palm Coast, FL 32142-0975  
The Mailbox Magazine  www.themailboxcompanion.com 
 800-334-0298 
Clipart: 


http://clipart.usscouts.org/ 
www.benzfamily.net/Scouts/SP_Home.htm 
Cub Scout Ranks (badges.zip) , Cub Scout Sports and Academic Pins (sports.zip) 
Webelos Activity Pins (webelos.zip)   
Clip Art for Cub Scouts and Boy Scouts CD’s available at the Boy Scouts of 
America Great Salt Lake Council Scout Shop $6.95/each  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS (cont) 
 


Community 


 
   Citizen 


Food Bank  
US District Court  
Marc Mathis  524-6139  


 (To Schedule Scouts for Flag Ceremonies for Naturalization) 
    American Legion National Headquarters 


 Flag Education and Etiquette Michael D. Buss 317-630-1249 
 Citizenship Belt loop & Pin 
 America My Home Patch 


    December’s Theme 2003 “A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill” 
 
 
Communicator 
 Computer Belt loop & Pin 
 Communicator Belt loop & Pin  
 March’s Theme 2004 “Walk in My Shoes” 
 Word Doodles     http://members.aol.com/Ifenech/index1d.html 
 September’s Theme 2004 “Time in a Capsule” 
 Ability Awareness Patch 
 Languages and Culture Belt loop & Pin 
 


 
Family Member 


January’s Theme 2004 “Home Alone” 
http://www.visitsaltlake.com/backyard/index.html#freebees 


     www.visitsaltlake.com 
     Heritages Belt loop & Pin 
 


Readyman 
American Red Cross www.redcross.org/services/disaster/beprepared/familyplan.html 


 BAT 
US Department of Homeland Security http://www.ready.gov/ 
Violence & Injury Prevention 


 Gary Mower  535-2753  Bike Smart & Scooter Safety 
January’s Theme 2004 “Home Alone”  


 
 
 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS (cont) 
 


 Mental Skills 


Artist 
Photography Club of Taylorsville Lauri Royall 968-9459  


 Art Belt loop & Pin 
 December’s Theme 2003 “A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill”  
 
 
Scholar 


www.archives.state.ut.us/referenc/xml/agencies/1089.html 
 www.onlineutah.com/edhistory.shtml 
 Salt Lake County School Districts and School Boards 


www.granite.k12.ut.us/ 
www.jordandistrict.org 
www.slc.k12.ut.us  


 Utah Board of Education  www.usoe.k12.ut.us/board/ 
Utah State office of Education www.usoe.k12.ut.us/ 


 
 
 


Showman 
Drama Club of Taylorsville Merrill Dodge  964-6188 
Vocal Music Club of Taylorsville Julie Clemens 450-7056 
Dance Club of Taylorsville  Bettyna Cuya 968-3098 
October’s Theme 2003 “Once Upon A Time” 
http://www.ci.murray.ut.us/recfac/parkspools/cultarts.htm 


 October’s Theme 2004 “It’s a Circus of Stars” 
 Music Belt loop & Pin 
 


 
 


Traveler 
UTA & Trax  RIDE UTA (743-3882) www.Rideuta.com 


 Schedule Request Line 287-7246 
 May’s Theme 2004 “My Home State”  
 Hometown Discovery Patch 


Benson Gristmill Patch 
 Geography Belt loop & Pin  


www.momsminivan.com  
 www.mapquest.com 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS (cont) 
 


Outdoor 
 
Forrester 
 April’s Theme 2004 “Cubservation” 


November’s Theme 2004 “Cub Scout Collectors”  
 


  Geologist 
Department of Public Safety 
Division of Comprehensive Emergency Management 
Maralin Hoff 538-3166 or 538-3400  
 State Office Building #1110 S.L.C 84114 
 email: mhoff@utah.gov        “Earthquake Lady” 


    Kennecott Bingham Canyon Mine Tour Patch    
   www.kennecott.com/visitorscenter.html 


June’s Theme 2004 “Cub Rock” 
November’s Theme 2004 “Cub Scout Collectors” 
Collecting Belt loop & Pin 
Geology Belt loop & Pin 


 
Naturalist  


www.treeutah.org 
www.birding.com 
www.birdwatching.com  
www.wildbirds.com 
www.BaltimoreBirdClub.org 


 Wildlife Conservation Belt loop & Pin 
 Industrial Container and Supply www.industrialcontainer.com 
  801-972-1561 or 800-748-4250 3756 West 1820 South S.L.C., 84104 
  They have 2-gallon jars with lids for Fish bowls and Terrariums 


Wheeler Farm Patch  http://www.wheelerfarm.com/ 
Cub Zoo Trail Patch  www.Hoglezoo.org 
http://parks.state.ut.us/parks/www1/ante.htm 


 April’s Theme 2004 “Cubservation” 
 July’s Theme 2004 “Fin Fun” 


Outdoorsman 
 Leave No Trace Patch 
 April’s Theme 2004 “Cubservation”  


Activities to do with 11-Year-Old Boy Scouts  
Map & Compass Belt loop and Pin 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS (cont) 
 


Physical Skills 
Athlete 
 Physical Fitness Belt loop & Pin 
 
Fitness 


Utah State University 
Expanded Food & Nutrition Education Program (EFNEP)  468-3182 
2001 South State Room S-1200 Salt Lake City, UT 84190-2350 


www.nal.usda.gov/fnic/etext/000045.html 
 


Aquanaut 
 Swimming Belt loop & Pin  


July’s Theme 2004 “Fin Fun” 
 
Sportsman 


Violence & Injury Prevention 
Gary Mower  535-2753 Bike Smart & Scooter Safety 


Bike Racing Club of Taylorsville Reid Baumgartner 966-1852 
Hiking Club of Taylorsville Ed or Kathleen Deffner 281-2523 
September’s Theme 2003 “Soaring to New Heights” 
Soccer Belt loop and pin 
Ultimate Frisbee Belt loop and Pin  


 Archery Belt loop & Pin 
Badminton Belt loop & Pin  
Baseball Belt loop & Pin 
Basketball Belt loop & Pin 
BB-Gun Shooting Belt loop & Pin 
Bicycling Belt loop & Pin 
Bowling Belt loop & Pin 
Fishing Belt loop & Pin 
Flag Football Belt loop & Pin  
Golf Belt loop & Pin 
Gymnastics Belt loop & Pin 
Marbles Belt loop & Pin 
Physical Fitness Belt loop & Pin 
Ice Skating Belt loop & Pin 
Roller Skating Belt loop & Pin 
Snow Skiing and Board Sports Belt loop & Pin 
Softball Belt loop & Pin 
Swimming Belt loop & Pin 
Table Tennis Belt loop & Pin 
Tennis Belt loop & Pin 
Volleyball Belt loop & Pin  


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS HELPS & HINTS (cont) 
 
 


Technology 
 
 
 
   Craftsman  
    December’s Theme 2003 “A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill” 


   February’s Theme 2004 “Fiesta” 
   August’s Theme 2004 “Scouting the Midway” 
 
 
 


 
 
Engineer 


September’s Theme 2003 “Soaring to New Heights”  
 Paper Airplanes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Handyman 
     December’s Theme 2003 “A Cub Scout Gives Goodwill” 


 


Scientist 
 www.guidezone.skl.com/i_kb_scitech.htm 


www.pbskids.org/zoom/phenom 
www.family.go.com/raisingkids/learn/activities/feature/famf119wierdsci  


 Science Belt loop & Pin 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ARROW OF LIGHT & GRADUATION CEREMONIES 
 


 
The Arrow of Light Ceremony is an important part of a 
Cub Scout’s life. It is the crowning achievement of his 
career in Cub Scouts as a Webelos Scout and will largely 
determine if he continues in Boy Scouts.   


The ARROW OF LIGHT badge is one of two awards earned as a 
Cub Scout that can be put on his Boy Scout uniform.  It says he did 
something wonderful as a Cub Scout. 
It is important that he receive this award in a manner that will remind 
him of the rich symbolism associated with this award. In later years, 
as an adult leader, he can proudly wear the Arrow of Light knot, 
knowing he accomplished a great thing as a boy. 


 
Benjamin Franklin said, “Well done is better than well 
said.” If you promise a boy or parent something, follow 
through with it. It won’t matter 20 years from now what sort 
of person you said you were. What matters is if you came 
through with your promises. The boy who was served by you 
will remember that sort of consistency many years from now. 


 
 
 
Some ideas for effectively awarding the Arrow of Light include: 
 


Timely: The Cubmaster and Pack Committee Chairman need to insure 
that he be properly recognized for this accomplishment, in a timely 
manner. There are some ways in which the boy will feel he has been 
cheated out of the recognition for having earned this award. If a boy 
receives his Arrow of Light a month after he earned it, the value of it will 
be diminished. An untrained leader will miss the opportunity to properly 
recognize the boy because of the lack of training on his part.  


 
Dignified: The occasion should be one of dignity. The leader should be 
in uniform and it might be best if the ceremony could be the last one of 
the pack meeting, so it can be the focal point for the boy receiving the 
award. There are instances where an untrained leader will bring the boy 
in front of his peers and award the Arrow of Light without setting the 
proper example for the rest of the boys. The leader will say something 
like “Yes, Scotty, today you’re receiving the Arrow of Light, the 
highest award a Cub Scout can earn. You can proudly wear this award 
on your scout shirt.” At the end of this utterance, the leader will simply 
give the boy his arrow, his patch, and his certificate and think he has 
done all he needs to do.  







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 ARROW OF LIGHT/GRADUATION (cont) 
 
Brevity: The ideal ceremony should last about 10 – 15 minutes. 
Studies have shown that the attention span of most adults with a 
college education is about 18 minutes.  Unless the ceremony is 
really exciting, most people will lose interest in about 18 minutes. 
Imagine the attention span of a 10-year-old boy. There are other 
siblings that usually come with the parents that can be an 
unexpected distraction also. 
 
 
 
 
 
Combining with Graduation: The graduation from Cub Scouting, 
while not a part of the Arrow of Light ceremony, often occurs at the 
same time. The Cub Master, in uniform, can escort the boy to the Boy Scout leader, also in 
uniform, who should have been invited to this ceremony at the pack meeting. This lets the boy 
know that he is being welcomed into the next area of development in his scouting career and that 
he is important. The troop neckerchief and/or patrol emblem patch can also be presented at this 
time.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Creative Ceremony: There are many excellent ways of awarding the Arrow of Light that will 
make the boy’s experience memorable. The presenter may choose to do a skit, dress up in a 
costume, involve many participants or perform the ceremony alone. The book Ceremonies for 
Dens and Packs, pp. 8 – 12 has sample ceremonies. These can be used or you can write your 
own.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


The sky is the limit 
Let your imagination flow ! 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ARROW OF LIGHT/GRADUATION (cont)   
 
Involve Others: You may be thinking at this point, 
“I’ve never seen an Arrow of Light ceremony done 
before. Where do I begin? Who can I turn to for help 
with my situation?” Don’t fear – you’re not alone. 
The experienced leaders, parents, and pack 
committee members can help. 
 
A famous man once said, “I’d rather ask twice than get lost once.” The same philosophy 
applies in this case. I’d rather see a new leader ask twice or even three times rather than do 
something wrong and possibly lose a boy from the program. 
 


 
Graduation Ceremony Resources: The book Ceremonies for Dens and 
Packs has many great ideas. Chapter 9 is devoted to graduation 
ceremonies, including suggestions on presenting and some ideas for 
ceremonies.   
 
 


Other Resources: An excellent source for Arrow of Light ceremonies is 
the Order of the Arrow. These junior leaders are still young enough to 
have the boy(s) relate to them easier and they represent the potential and 
excitement of remaining in the program.  
  


 
Leader Prepared: A common mistake is that the leader says, “I was trained 
15 – 20 years ago and I know how to do these ceremonies. Besides, it can’t be 
that hard, can it?” This error leads many to the false belief that BSA does not 
constantly upgrade training and procedures as times and circumstances 
change. The need for constant updating of skills and knowledge is constant. 
The BSA of 20 years ago is not the same BSA of today.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Remember: 
If you feel inadequate about doing an Arrow of Light 


Ceremony or setting one up, don’t panic. 
You’re not the first person with such concerns, 


nor will you be the last. 
Do your best, learn from the experience. 


Most of all, enjoy yourself. 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ARROW OF LIGHT/GRADUATION (cont) 
 


Sample Arrow of Light Ceremony 
 


SETTING: A room large enough to do the ceremony without feeling crowded; a 
table, possibly two; enough chairs in a row in the front for the recipients of the 
Arrow of Light award. 
 
Presenter: “It’s an honor to be here tonight to award the Arrow of Light award to 
the boy who has earned it. Could I have [name] come up and sit in this chair?”  
 
After the boy is seated in front, the presenter says, “We’re here to honor [boys 
name]. He has earned the highest award a Cub Scout can earn and it is one of two 
awards they can wear on their Boy Scout uniform. It shows that he has 
accomplished something great and wonderful.”  
 
The presenter shows the boy and the audience the arrow and points out the 
seven rays that represent the seven virtues.  
 
 The presenter says, “The Arrow in the symbol is straight. It shows us that 
our lives must be guided by the principles of living a good life. Our lives need to 
be as straight as the shaft of the arrow.  
 
The seven rays represent the seven virtues that we should practice in our lives.  


The first virtue is wisdom. Wisdom is not that you’re any smarter than 


other people; it’s having knowledge and using it wisely. 


The second virtue is courage. Courage does not mean we aren’t afraid.   


Courage means we do something in spite of the fear. 


The third virtue is self-control. It means that we don’t do something we’d 


really like to do when we know we shouldn’t; and knowing when not to start or 


say something.  


 The fourth virtue is justice. Justice is when we treat others as we would 


like to be treated and show fairness in everything we do. 


The fifth virtue is faith. Faith is a belief in something that we can’t see but 


we know is true. This virtue causes us to act on our belief. 


The sixth virtue is hope.  Hope is when we seek a better world, a better 


community and do something about it. 


 


 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


ARROW OF LIGHT/GRADUATION (cont) 


 


 The seventh, and the last, is love.  There are many kinds of love:  


love for family, church, country and self.  We need to love ourselves 


before we can show love for others.  We need to show love for our 


country.  Without it, we don’t show what’s important to us.”  


 


The presenter invites the parents of the boy to stand behind their son.  
The presenter approaches the boy with the arrow, the Arrow of Light 


patch, the mother’s pin and a certificate(s).  The arrow is given to the father so he can award it to 
his son.  The Arrow of Light patch is given to the mother who then awards it to her son.  The 
presenter gives the mother’s pin to the boy and asks the boy to pin it on his mother.  At this 
point, the boy is encouraged to give his mother a hug and give the father a hug or a handshake.  
 
The presenter gives the boy his certificate(s), shakes his hand and says, “Congratulations (use the 
boy’s name).”  The parents are excused to return to their seats but the boy stays. 
 
Presenter, standing behind the Webelos scout who received the Arrow of Light award, 
points to the younger boys seated in the audience:  
 
“I want you to look around at the other Cub Scouts in the room. They’re looking up to you as an 
example of how far you can go as a Cub Scout. It is your responsibility to show them by example 
what you have achieved and what your behavior should now be.”           
 
This is the end of the ceremony.  Any socializing and photos can happen at this time 
 


By Reinhard Haidenthaller 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
  


 
 







Webelos 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS ACTIVITY BADGE TRACKING SHEET 
 
Name________________________________________ Birthday_________________________ 


Address______________________________________ Phone #__________________________ 
 


Activity Badge 
(** Required) 


Total 
Needed 


Do  All 
These 


Do 
(#) 


Of These Received 


Aquanaut 5 1 2 3 3  4  5  6  7  8  
Artist 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8    
Athlete 7 1 2 5 3  4  5  6  7  8  9  
Citizen** 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 2 8  9  10 11 12 13 14 


15 16
 


Communicator 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7  8 9   10  11  12  13  14   
Craftsman 4 1 2  a b   3 4 a b c d  
Engineer 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9  10  
Family Member 8 1 2 3 4 5 6 2 7  8  9  10  11  12  
Fitness** 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    
Forester 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8  9 10   
Geologist 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    
Handyman 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9  10 11  12  13  14    
Naturalist 4 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    
Outdoorsman 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8    
Readyman** 8 1 2 3 4 5 6 2 7  8  9  10  11  12  
Scholar 6 1 2 3 4 3 5  6  7  8  9  
Scientist 9 1 2 3 6 4  5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


12
 


Showman     (Do one Group)    
        Puppetry 4 1 2 3 4 5 6    
        Music 4 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    
        Drama 4 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8    
Sportsman 4 1 2 3 4    
Traveler 5 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    


 
Received Religious Award (date) ____________________________ 


Received Webelos Badge (date) _____________________________ 


Compass Patch Received (date) _____________________________ 


Compass Points Received (dates) 1. _____________ 2. _____________3. _______________ 


Arrow of Light Received (date) ___________________________________________________ 


 












Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Academics & Sports      
Best of Blue & Gold   
Character Development  
Derbies    
    Pinewood Derby   
    Raingutter Regatta   
    Space Derby    
Outdoors & Camping   
Leave No Trace Award  
Service Projects   
Boys’ Life     
Ability Awareness



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
ACADEMICS AND SPORTS PROGRAM 


 
 


Academics 
The Cub Scout Academics Program is a great way to help fulfill the aims of Scouting:  building 
character, developing citizenship and encouraging mental and physical fitness. 
Scholarship leads to adventure when learning is fun, and knowledge encourages exploration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Art Astronomy  Chess Citizenship  Collecting    


Communicating  Computers  Geography  Geology  


Heritages  Language & Culture   Map & Compass 


Mathematics        Music        Science     Weather     Wildlife Conservation 
 
 
Sports 
Cub Scout sports provide the opportunity to become acquainted with and participate in all kinds 
of sports. This includes individual, team, winter and summer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Archery * Badminton         Baseball        Basketball       BB-Gun Shooting 
 
Bicycling      Bowling        Fishing       Flag Football         Golf      Gymnastics       
 
Ice Skating    Marbles     Physical Fitness    Roller Skating      Snow Ski & Board 
 
Soccer     Softball     Swimming      Table Tennis     Tennis     Ultimate     Volleyball 
 
* Loops & Pins for Archery & BB-gun shooting can be earned only at Council approved camps. 
 
 
Resource—Cub Scout Academics and Sports Program Guide. Can be found at local BSA Scout 
shops. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


Recognition 
A variety of recognition items are available for the boys who participate in the Cub Scout 
Academics and Sports program. (Adults are not awarded Belt loops or Pins.) 
 
Belt Loops 
Belt loops have three requirements that give a general knowledge of the sport or activity. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


Pins 
After earning the belt loop a boy can earn the pin by completing additional requirements for that 
sport or activity. These requirements take more effort and give a more in-depth knowledge in 
that specific area.  
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


Other recognitions are available but not necessary. 
 
Academics and Sports Letter—(C stands for Cub Scout.)  This is worn on a sweater or jacket or 
displayed on a backpack or frame. It does not go on the Uniform. There are no requirements for 
earning the letter as it is only used to display the pins.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Participation Emblems—(round patch above right).  Available to all boys and adults who 
participate in the activity. 
 
Pocket Certificate—Provides immediate recognition. 
 
Activity Medals and Trophies—Provides special recognition and is decided on by individual 
packs. 
 
For information on Belt Loops & Pins' requirements, see Cub Scout Academics and Sports 
Program Guide, 2002 revision (#34299) or go to Cub Scout Activities at www. gslc-bsa.org. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BEST OF BLUE & GOLD 
 
WHY DO WE HAVE A BLUE & GOLD EVERY YEAR? 
 
It’s to commemorate and celebrate the organization of the Boy Scouting 
program. It also allows us to celebrate the birthday of Lord Baden-Powell, the 
Founder of the Boy Scouts of America. Besides, everyone likes to have a party!  
 
WHY DO WE HAVE IT IN FEBRUARY? 
 
February is the actual month of the organization of the Boy Scouting program, February 8, 1910. 
It is also the birth month of Lord Baden-Powell, February 22, 1857. This is the BSA 


recommended month to hold your Blue & Gold.  However, if your circumstances 
require it to be held at a different time, that’s acceptable too. As long as the boys and 
their families know what and why you are celebrating, do what needs to be done to 
make it successful. 
 


HOW DO I PUT IT TOGETHER AND MAKE IT SUCCESSFUL?  
  
There are a few things you must understand first:      


• It’s YOUR Blue & Gold. Plan your Blue & Gold for YOUR pack. Every pack is different 
and has different needs. Customize it to meet YOUR needs and resources. 


• It will turn out exactly like you plan it! Only those who are in on the actual planning 
know how it was “supposed” to be. The people who attend only know how wonderful it 
turned out! Take advantage of this knowledge and just smile and say “thank you.” But, 
don’t forget – If you fail to plan, you plan to fail.  


• Keep It Simple, Make It Fun! This is what makes it the best                                   
Blue & Gold ever held. 


• According to the Cub Scout Leader Book, the boy’s entire family should be invited to 
this event. It’s a celebration, a birthday party, where all are welcome. 


 
Now, let’s roll up our sleeves and get started! 
 
In a perfect world the following time line would be the best way to go about 
planning: 
 
8-12 Months Decide when, where, theme and expected budget. Make required 


reservations. 
 
6-8 Months Brainstorm activities, speakers, and menu. 
 
4-6 Months Confirm reservations and guest speakers. Finalize program ideas, plan 


decorations, order or make handouts. 
 


 


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BEST OF BLUE & GOLD (cont.) 
 
 
2-4 Months Assign Den responsibilities, complete invites and advertising, confirm 


reservations, confirm speaker, draw up guest list, make arrangements for set-up 
and clean-up. Gather all items needed for activities, gather decorations, finalize 
menu, get leader recognition items, decide on emcee and give them the date, time, 
place and exactly what you expect from them. Give them a copy of the program 
outline. 


 
1-2 Months Confirm reservations, confirm speakers including date, place, and time reminders. 


Make Den assignments for decorations or displays. Address invitations, send to 
special guests at least 3 weeks prior to event. Put all items for event in same place, 
finalize who will be cooking, serving, clean-up, etc. Place advertising. 


 
3-4 Weeks Do a walk through to double check facility amenities, confirm 


speakers and reservations. Double check count and completion 
of invites, handouts, leader recognitions and place setting 
requirements. Finalize food quantities. Meet with den leaders 
and committee members to finalize all plans. 


 
2-3 Weeks Check on advertising, confirm date, time and place with speakers & emcee. Give 


emcee any changes. Confirm facility. Buy food, confirm set-up and clean-up. 
Handout invitations and final food assignments. Purchase tableware and any 
additional items required. 


 
1-2 Weeks Check advertising. Confirm, confirm, confirm! Distribute recipes, food, etc. to 


cooks. Make sure invites made it to all the boys. Assign rides if necessary. Pick 
up any awards or leader recognitions not already acquired. Begin writing thank-
you notes. 


 
3 Days Check food, confirm time to be at facility. Finalize instructions to set-up group, 


make final agenda and get copy to emcee and leaders, call leaders and confirm 
responsibilities. Make a “To Take” list and put in prominent place. Prepare any 
awards or recognitions. Acquire key for facility. 


 
Day Before Pack stuff to take in car. Decorate if possible or as much as possible. Pick up any 


last minute items. Iron uniform. Take 3 deep breaths and remember if you have 
fun then it is a success. 


 
Day Of Check facility for readiness as least 5 hours before scheduled set-up time. Drop 


off gathered items from car. Open facility for set-up group at confirmed time. 
Remind food people to arrive at scheduled time of no later than 30 minutes prior 
to start time. At least 2 hours prior to start time, get yourself ready so you are in 
place to greet guests, speakers, emcee, etc. Have fun at the party and know you 
live the motto: “Do Your Best.” 


    
Day After Mail thank-you notes. 
   


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
BEST OF BLUE & GOLD (cont.)  
 
Now for those of us who live in a less-than-perfect world the following usually 
 applies: 
 
2-3 Months Discuss where, when, theme, budget, menu, decorations, activities and speakers. 
 
1-2 Months Make den assignments. Finalize menu. Think about leader recognitions, confirm 


facility. 
 
3-4 Weeks Advertising, food assignments, new speaker, different 


activities, decorations together, collect invites. 
 
2-3 Weeks Put together decorations, awards and think more about 


leader recognitions. 
 
1-2 Weeks Pass out invites, change menu, call den leaders and other 


committee members for help. 
 
2-4 Days Finish passing out invites. Buy food and enlist help of others to cook and serve. 


Confirm facility, buy additional awards, make tentative agenda. 
 
Day Before Get key to facility (sometimes pushed to day of). Buy additional food, decorations 


and something for handout. Grab something for leader recognitions. 
 
Day Of Invite your family to dinner. Buy tableware, additional items for dinner. Make 2 or 3 


trips home for things you forgot. Arrive at facility 2 hours prior to event to set-up, 
decorate and start warming food. Find microphone and place to plug it in, get call 
from leader that family is sick and won’t be there. But, they’ll bring their stuff over. 


When guests start to arrive do the 50 yard dash to get uniform on, 
discover button missing, rummage for a safety pin, grab a mint, go 
greet guests, hope the kitchen staff are really there. Grab a boy and a 
flag and have them lead the Pledge of Allegiance while you see what 
the smell from the kitchen is. Come back in time to realize there was 
no place to post the flag so it’s laying on the table in front of the boy. 
Serve dinner, Oh yeah–ICE! Appear to listen to speaker, ‘kinda’ do 
activities, send people away, clean-up and go home around 10 p.m. 
Drop into the tub with something chocolate and promise yourself that 
next year will be more organized. 


 
Day After Prepare and send thank-you notes. Start planning next years Blue & Gold! 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BLUE AND GOLD (cont) 
 


But to strive for a middle ground, on the way to a perfect world, the 
following checklist should help:  


 
 


Decide with the entire committee on 
• When 
• Where 
• A Theme (If you’re not 


using February’s) 
 


Set your budget. Decide where the bulk of the money is going to go. For 
example, more to food and less to decorations or more to handouts and less to 
food. 
 
Decide on the program. It can include any of the following or other items 


• Guest Speaker 
• Games 
• Songs     
• Skits 
• Crafts 
• Flag Ceremony 
• Uniform Inspection 


 
Make necessary reservations and/or deposits for 


• Facility 
• Guest Speaker    
• Items for activities 


  
Draft a backup plan, at least 1 but 2 is better 


• Different facility 
• Different menu    
• Different Program 


  
Plan the menu         


• What to eat 
• How to serve it 
• Do we need a kitchen, running water, stove/oven? 
• What type of preparation are is needed? 


  
Plan the decorations 


• Centerpieces/Table decorations 
• Tablecloths 
• Placemats     
• Den assignments 


 


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BLUE AND GOLD (cont) 
 


Plan advertising. One or all of the following can be used 
� Invitations 
� Posters 
� Flyers 
� Phone Calls 
� Visits 


 
Attendance 


� Do your best to come up with a working number. It is always better to 
have too much than not enough. 


� Don’t assume anything! The family that never comes to anything 
WILL be there and they’ll bring extra people! 


� Special guests. (It’s always a good idea to invite a representative from 
your sponsoring organization.) 


  
Make assignments 


� Decorations 
� Food 
� Program 
� Advertising/Invitations 
� Facility/Set-up/Clean-up 
� Emcee (The Cubmaster or Pack Committee 


Chairman doesn’t have to do this job! Give 
someone else a chance and you can participate in 
the evening.) 


  
Miscellaneous 


� Handouts 
� Awards 
� Leader Recognition 
� Advancements  
� Thank you notes 
� Tableware 
� Most important 


 
Most important 


� Take deep breaths/ Relax 
� Have backup plans 
� Have fun 
� Remember this is for the boys. It’s not a state 


banquet or a Hollywood production. Do what 
will work for YOUR pack. 


 
 
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BLUE AND GOLD (cont) 
 


FEBRUARY BLUE & GOLD IDEAS 
 
 
 
 
 


Decorations:  
Paper sombreros and brightly colored paper mache items (ie. Chiles, bulls) made by dens. 
Pinata. Serapes. Mexican music. Brightly colored streamers. 
 


Program:  
� Prayer      
� Flag ceremony 
� Dinner      
� Special Guest  
� Marionette Show 
� Den songs learned in Spanish 
� Leader recognitions 
� Break the pinata 
� Thank-you’s and handouts 


 
Menu:         


� Chicken Enchiladas 
� Mexican Rice 
� Refried Beans 
� Chips & Salsa 
� Crisp flour tortillas with cinnamon/sugar 
� Lemonade 


OR 
� Taco Bar with lettuce, cheese, olives, tomatoes, meat, taco shells, flour tortillas, 


guacamole, salsa and lime wedges. 
� Mexican Rice 
� Refried Beans 
� Cherry and Apple Chimichangas 


� Red Punch 
 
Handouts: 
Pinata sticks with hang tag that says: “Stick” to the Cub Scout oath and you’ll 
always “Do Your Best”! 
 


How to make pinata sticks: 
Wrap 6" x ½" dowel with brightly colored fabric scraps. Secure 


and apply ‘hang tag’ with ribbon. 
 


 


WHEN:  February 22, 2004  PLACE:  The Old Town Hall 
TIME:   6:00 P.M.   THEME:  Fiesta 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT 
CAN WE BUILD IT?  YES WE CAN!!! 


 
Why do we need character development?  Won’t the boy develop it on his 
own?  Isn’t it the parent’s job?  Isn’t that what scouting is all about?  YES 
IT IS!!  We are here to help the boy learn new skills.  Develop talents.  Be 
a better leader.  And yes, DEVELOP HIS CHARACTER!  The scout 
promise, oath, and law, are just that. 


 
Cub Scout Promise 


I (your name) promise to do my best, 
To do my duty to God and my country, 


To help other people, 
And to obey the law of the pack. 


 
 


 Boy Scout Oath 
On my honor, I will do my best 


To do my duty to God and my country, 
And to obey the scout law; 


To help other people at all times; 
To keep myself physically strong, 


Mentally awake and morally straight. 
 
 
 


Scout Law 
A Scout is Trustworthy 


Loyal 
Helpful 
Friendly 


Courteous 
Kind 


Obedient 
Cheerful 
Thrifty 
Brave 
Clean 


Reverent 
 


If we live by these values, we are building characteristics of a better Cub, then a Boy Scout, then 
a man, then a husband, then a community leader.  Everyone has different values and religious 
beliefs.  But we all have one thing in common--we want our children to be better than we are!  
Parents are doing everything they can.  But everyone needs to help, including teachers, 
neighbors, and friends.  And you, YES, YOU, have the very important job of helping build a 
Cub’s character.  You are a very key element.  Why?  Because you get to be with him, when he 
is young and very impressionable.







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT (cont) 
 


Sorry!  I did not mean to stress you, but it is true.  You have a positive or a 
negative effect on these boys.  The choice is yours.  But one way or another you 
will leave your mark.  It will stay with these boys for the rest of their lives. 


 
A SCOUTERS GOLDEN OPPORTUNITY 


 
I took a piece of plastic clay     You come again when days are gone: 
And idly fashioned it one day:  It is a man you look upon.    
And as I pressed it, still   Your early impress still it bore, 
It bent and yielded to my will.  And you could change him never more. 
 
I came again when days were past:  You are dealing with a boy 
That bit of clay was hard at last.  Who must be guided unaware: 
My early impress still it bore,   Must be shown, but oh so gently 
And I could change its form no more. How to live both true and fair. 
 
You take a piece of living clay  Pins and badges aren’t our aim. 
And gently form it day by day,  Character building is our goal. 
Molding with your power and art  But not to lose your courage now, 
A young boy’s soft and yielding heart. For you are piloting a soul. 
  
 
Having said that, let’s show you some fun ways of developing character.  It is not hard, and the 
boys will not have a clue as to what you are really doing. 
Make some dice from foam, wood, or whatever you want.  Number one of them 1-6 and the 
other 7-12.   
At the beginning of each month, have one of the boys roll the die.  Do not repeat.  If you have 
already done that number, roll until you get one that you haven’t had yet.  That is the 
characteristic you will work on that month.  At the end of each month, have a special treat or 
certificate, or both, for pack meeting.  In the den, make a den doodle, only we call it: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Get a big tongue depressor, drill holes on one side.  Put string or lanyard through the holes.  
Make sure the boys name is on the stick.  Have some beads, so that each week you can add a 
bead on, if they have done their task. 
 


JUST 
THINK 
ABOUT 


IT! 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT (cont) 
 


What is this task you say?  Well let us begin.  Have the boys do some of these or 
make up your own. 
 
 
 


 
#1. CITIZEN- Contributing service and showing responsibility 
to local, state, and national communities.  Have them sing the 
“Star Spangled Banner,” and memorize the names of the 
president and vice-president of the United States.  Have them tell 
you how they respect our flag.  Make a bicycle obstacle course 
and have them obey all the laws [including proper gear].  Do a 
service project for a school or senior center.  You see where this 
is going!  Have fun! 
 
#2. COMPASSION- Having consideration and concern for the well being of others. 
Have the boys go to a senior center and adopt a grandparent for a month [or longer]. Make a new 
friend this week. Give someone a hug everyday for a week [but not Mom or Dad].  Pick a secret 
friend and do something nice everyday for a week.  Smile everyday and see if it passes on. 
 
#3. COOPERATION- Working together with others towards a common goal. 
If someone needs help, do not wait for him or her to ask, just do it.  Do not be selfish--share.  If 
mom or dad asks for your help, jump up right away [that will surprise them].  Instead of you 
talking all the time, you be the one to listen.  If you lose at a game, be happy that you played.  
Develop a new talent and share it.  Have a talent show and include everyone.  Be friendly to 
someone you do not know. 
 
#4. COURAGE- Doing what is right regardless of how hard it is or what the consequences are.  
Try a new food or activity.  Tell the truth no matter what for a week.  Do not be afraid to make a 
mistake [even parents make them].  When you make a mistake, admit it.  If your friends are 
doing something wrong, tell them you will not do that and leave. 
 
#5. FAITH- Have inner strength or confidence based on our trust in a higher power. 
Do not make fun of other people’s religion [everyone is different].  Explain what your duty to 
God is.  Tell someone else about your religion.  Everyone has good in them.  Tell your den 
members what you like about them.  Everyone has problems.  Think, “What can I do,” not, “I 
can’t do anything.”  Show reverence for holy places.  Visit a church or holy place. 


 
#6. HEALTH AND FITNESS- Being personally committed to caring for 
our mind and body.  Go one week without eating junk food.  Go on a hike.  
Play a sport.  Ride a skateboard, scooter, or bike [with proper gear].  Practice 
tennis or swimming.  Try something new like miniature golf.  Throw a 
frisbee with a friend.  Have a water fight.  Make a chart to see how many 
times you take a bath in a month.  


 


JUST 
THINK 
ABOUT 


IT! 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT (cont) 
 
 
#7. HONESTY- Telling the truth and being a person worthy of trust.  If you say you will do 
something, do it.  Tell someone how you are loyal to your country, friends or family.  If you lie, 
it is hard to regain trust.  When playing a game, do not 
cheat, just have fun playing.  Play the gossip game, then tell 
someone why you should not spread rumors.  Return what 
you borrow, making sure it is in the same shape as you 
borrowed it.  Do not take what is not yours. 
 
#8.  PERSERVERANCE- Stick with something and not 
give up, even if it is difficult. 
Start a chore and finish it.  Find a magic trick you want to 
do and have fun learning it.  Set a personal goal and finish 
it.  If you are bad at something, work hard to get better at it. 
Try something new.  Try to put together a 500 piece puzzle.  
Remember never give up!  Always do your best. 
 
#9. POSITIVE ATTITUDE- Setting your mind to look for and finding the best in all situations.  
For one week, do not say, “I can’t”.  Tell a joke to someone every day for a week.  Write a letter 
to someone tell them something positive.  Write fun notes and leave them around your house, [I 
like your smile, I like your cookies].  If your friends are saying bad things, think of something 
good to and say it.  Say, “You bet,” instead of “Oh, do I have to.”   Smile, smile, smile. 
 
#10.  RESOURCEULNESS- Using human and other resources to their fullest. 
Write a list of things you can recycle.  Fix up your old bike and give it to someone who does not 
have one.  Find things around your house and give it to Good Will.  Have a yard sale.  Make a 
genius kit and take it to Pack meeting.  There are people worse off then you.  Make a list of 
things you have.  Tell your parents how much you appreciate them. 
 
#11. RESPECT- Show regard for the worth of someone or something.   For one week, say 
“please” and “thank you.”  For a week, mow the lawn or shovel snow for someone without pay.  
For one week don’t insult your brothers or sisters.  For one week do not boss people around.  Be 
careful of your language.  Tell your leader how you show respect for your parents. 
 
#12. RESPONSIBILITY- Fulfilling our duty to take care of ourselves and others.  Make a 
chore chart and do it for one week without being told.  Do all your homework without being told.  
Keep your room clean for one week.  Ask your parents, “Is there something I can do to help 
you?”  Then do it.  Play a game with your brothers and sisters without fighting.  If you do 
something wrong, tell your parent right away, and tell them you are sorry. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT (cont) 
 
 


Well, without the boys knowing, and maybe without you knowing, you have just 
put into effect the: 
 


CHARACTER CONNECTONS 
 


#1.What do I think or know? 
About the core value, 
About the experience, 
About the context, etc. 


 
#2. How do I feel generally?  How do I feel about this value? 


What makes this difficult to carry out? 
How did this experience make me feel, etc. 


 
#3. What can I do?  How can I practice this value in the future? 


At school, at home, with friends, etc. 
 


Each task they undertake, they think, feel, and do, 
Just like you! 


 
Now that we have you, 


THINKING 
AND 


FEELING 
It is time for you to go 


DO! 
 


AND REMEMBER, 
CUBS JUST WANT TO HAVE FUN!!! 


 


JUST 
THINK 
ABOUT 


IT! 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DERBIES 
 
 
 


Pronunciation: dũr-bē 
Function: noun 
Inflected Form(s): plural derbies 
a race or contest open to all comers or to a specified category of 
contestants <bicycle derby> 
  
Cub scouting through the years has become famous for a few 
things. The Cub Scout derbies are one of the major items that the 
boys look forward to. But how many derbies can you name?  
 


Pinewood derby? Rain Gutter Regatta?  Space Derby? How about a Vegetable Derby?  Kite 
Derby? Bicycle Derby? Or maybe even an Egg Derby?  
 
There are endless possibilities, and this section is designed to give you additional ideas to spice 
up your derby events.  
 
The basic rules, and track designs  for the 3 major Derbies (Pinewood, Raingutter, and Space) 
along with the Cub-mobile, All-derby race day, Fishing, and kite derbies, are found on pages 
6-26, through 6-38 of the Cub Scout Leader How-to book (#33832 A). 
 
 
 


PINEWOOD DERBY 
 
The format of the race is very simple. However, here are a few ways to spice up your event.  
 


#1 Have the boys paint or shape their cars to match 
the theme of the month.  
For example, if your theme for the month is “Cub 
Pet Pals,” boys might want to paint/shape their car 
to resemble their favorite pet/animal.   
 
#2 Divide the pack into “divisions” by age/rank so 
that you have 4 or 5 first place cars and, if you’d 
like, hold a finals race of those winners for a grand 
champion. 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PINEWOOD DERBIES (Cont) 
 
#3  As a service project and Art Belt Loop project, 
have each of the dens make medals for different 
awards. (i.e. Best paint job, fastest looking, slowest 
looking, best of show etc.). 
  
Award with instructions may be found on the final 
page of this section, p. 214. 
 
#4  Hold an ‘Open Class Race’ with very limited 
rules for the rest of the family.  This gives dad a 
chance to build his dream car. 
 


#5  Hold a Leaders’ Race. (What good is it to be a leader and not have fun as well.)  
 
#6  The more awards the better. 
 
#7  So that no one is left out, be sure that your scoring system is fair and accurate.  You do not 
want a boy to feel that he had been cheated. There are several methods designed to avoid this, 
along with software programs for the computer expert.  On the internet, go to 
http://pack146.nova.org/pinewood/software.html.  This a great free download created just for 
Pinewood Derby Management. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
RAINGUTTER REGATTA  
 
There are many ways to spice up this event.  
 
#1 Instead of a typical rain gutter approach, you may 
want to use a local swimming pool and turn the event 
into a pool party.  
 
#2 Instead of your typical boats, use various vegetables, such as summer squash, zucchini, or 
other vegetables. Just add a sail!  Note: watermelons, though buoyant, are not recommended for 
this activity. 
 
#3 Objects around the house that float are a lot of fun and give the boys an opportunity to be 
creative. 
 
#4  AWARDS, SKITS, AND FOOD are always an excellent combination for this event.  
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DERBIES (cont) 
 


SPACE DERBY 
 
This event is a little more difficult to spice up, but it can be done.   


Some ideas: 


#1 Arrange the track so the starting line is close to the ground, and 


the finish line is as high as possible.  Then, see which rocket goes the 


farthest. 


#2 Using a theme always works. A Sci-Fi theme is always a favorite. 


#3 Make AWARDS that are out of this world, such as Planet Awards (made from Styrofoam, tin 


cans), or Alien Awards.  (Old computer parts are easily turned into trophies).   


Food Ideas: Moon Pies, Moon Cheese Sticks, Martian Logs (Celery with cheese filling).   


Location Idea:  Hold the event outside, and see which scout sees the first star. 


 
OTHER DERBIES 


 
As stated before, a derby isn’t just a race; it’s a contest. Try these other derbies at a pack meeting 
near you!! 


 
Kite Derby! Let’s go fly a kite.  With this derby, scouts have the opportunity to 
see who can make a really awesome kite, or fly a purchased one the highest, have 
it stay in the air the longest, or have the best crash! The sky’s the limit. 
 
 


 
  Bicycle Derby! On your mark, Get set, GO! Obstacle courses 


    can be fun.  Use this event to teach bicycle safety. Decorate your 
    bikes for a Scout Parade. 


 
 


      Egg Drop Derby! Can you build a crash-proof box? See how 
many ideas you can develop to allow an egg to be dropped from 
the highest point imaginable! 


 
 


 
 
   Olympics! Combine all of the derby events for one 
    HUGE day of Derby Olympics.   


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DERBIES (cont) 
 


THE AWARDS 
 
Sometimes the Best Awards are the ones you make. Here are some inexpensive ways to 
recognize your boys!  Following are ideas for 2 different types of awards:  


• The Medal 
• The Trophy 
• The Certificate (Make a simple, generic certificate. 


       See ideas in class) 
 
The Medal 
Of all of the homemade awards, the easiest is the Olympic medal. 
All you need is: 
1 Package of canning lids 
18” of red/white/blue (or what ever color you’d like) 2” wide ribbon  
Hot glue gun 
Hot glue sticks 
Gold Spray Paint 
Bronze Spray Paint  
Silver Spray Paint 
• Paint your lids the appropriate color and allow to completely dry before continuing.  
• Form the 18” of ribbon into a pear shape so that you form a loop that will comfortably rest 


around your neck. Align the ends of the ribbon so that they are square and flush on all sides. 
With the Hot Glue Gun, attach the medal.  


• Other variations: create round stickers to use for logos in the lids or toll paint the event name 
in the center. 


 
 
The Trophy is one of the easiest award craft projects.   
Supplies: 
1 10 oz. soup can 
1 can silver spray paint 
Pipe cleaners  
Hot glue 
Wash and remove the label from the soup can. Spray paint the can silver (this creates an even 
coat and covers up the glue resin from the label.  Place the can with the open end down and use 
this for the base of your trophy.  Shape the pipe cleaners into a desired shape that reflects the 


award’s purpose. Other items to decorate may include laminated paper cutouts from 
a scrap booking store, small action figures, matchbox cars, etc.   Use your 


imagination. For those who like to personalize things, tole paint may be used to 
paint the name of the award and the recipient’s name.  Computer labels may 
also be used.   HAVE FUN!! 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SPACE DERBY 2 
 
 


HOW TO HAVE A ‘STRESS FREE’ 
 SPACE DERBY 


 
1. Get the SPACE DERBY kits from the Scout Shop. 
 
2. Make sure you have the CARRIERS KIT that the rockets hang on the line 


with. It is a separate kit. 
 


3. Set up the track by using FISHING LINE stretched between long 
BANQUET TABLES. (You can have as many lanes as you want, they 
are at eye height, and you can have them as long as you want.]  Put one 
table on the floor, on all four legs.  Put the 2nd table, on its side, on top 
of the first..  Put the CARRIERS on the line and wind the line around 
the top table legs.  Some FOAM RUBBER can pad the table the rockets 
are coming to so they don’t get broken on impact.  


 
4. Go for accuracy instead of distance. Put pictures of planets on the 


floor and have the racers race to Mercury, then to Saturn, etc. Give 1st, 
2nd, and 3rd place ribbons to the ones who get closest to the planet. 


 
5. As boys arrive with their rockets, let them have some trial runs on the lines.  Have them 


wind up their rocket 100 times and see how far it goes.  
 


6. Make your own ribbons.  Buy 3 rolls of red, yellow, blue 3-inch ribbon from a craft store.  
Fold the top of the ribbon down over some card stock, get some yellow string to hang 
them from, and write on them with magic markers. Have a lot for the races.  (My Cubs 
went home with a handful of ribbons, we didn’t have any broken rubber bands, and they 
loved it.) 


 
Submitted by Val Chatwin 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OUTDOORS AND CAMPING 
 


The Value of an Outdoor Program 
 


Natural Resources: The outdoor program uses the resources of the natural 
surroundings to make a significant contribution to the growth of a boy.  
         
Good Health: Outdoor program activities contribute to good mental and physical health through 
supervised activities, sufficient rest, good food, and wholesome companionship.  
 
Spiritual Growth: It aids in the spiritual growth of a boy by helping him recognize and appreciate 
the handiwork of God in nature.  
 
Social Development: It contributes to social development of the boys by providing real-life 
experiences where boys learn to deal with situations that require living with other people.  
 
Self-Reliance: It helps boys develop self-reliance and resourcefulness.  
 
Citizenship Training: The outdoor program provides an experience in citizenship training 
through opportunities for democratic participation in outdoor games and other activities.  
      
 
 


Campfire Safety 
 


Build campfires away from overhanging branches, steep slopes, rotten 
stumps, logs, dry grass, and leaves.  Pile any extra wood away from the 
fire.  
 
Keep plenty of water handy and have a shovel for throwing dirt on the fire if it gets out of 
control.  
  
Keep the campfire small.  A good bed of coals or a small fire gives plenty of heat.  
 
Scrape away litter or any burnable material within a 10-foot diameter circle. This keeps a small 
campfire from spreading.  
 
Be sure your match is out.  Hold it until it is cold.  Break it so you can feel the charred portion 
before discarding it.  
       
Never leave a campfire unattended.  Even a small breeze could quickly cause the fire to spread.  
 
Drown the fire with water.  Make sure all embers, coals, and sticks are wet.  Stir the remains, add 
more water, and stir again.  Be sure all burned material has been extinguished and cooled.  If you 
do not have water, use dirt.  Do not bury your coals.  They can smolder and break out into flame.  







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OUTDOORS AND CAMPING (cont) 
 


  
      


Lightning Safety 
      
Don’t work on fences, telephone lines, power lines, pipelines, or structural steel.  
     
Don’t handle flammable materials in open containers.  
 
Don’t use metal objects such as fishing rods and golf clubs. Golfers wearing shoes with cleats 
are particularly good lightning rods.  
 
Get out of the water and off small boats.  
 
Stay in the car if you are traveling. Automobiles offer excellent lightning protection.  
 
When no shelter is available, avoid the highest object in the area.  If only isolated trees are 
nearby, the best protection is to crouch in the open, keeping twice as far away from isolated trees 
as the trees are high.  
 
Avoid hilltops, open spaces, wire fences, metal clothesline, exposed sheds, and electrically 
conducted elevated objects.  
  


                Cooking Safety 
 
 
 
 
 
 


   
 
S - Sharp knifes are safer to use than dull knives.  When using a knife, cut  
      away from you and  use a cutting board.  
 
A- Always wipe up spills off the floor immediately to prevent falls and slips.  
 
F- Fires that start from grease cooking can be extinguished by covering with baking soda,  
     NOT WATER!    
 
E- Easy to reach pot holders or oven gloves near the stove are a must.  
       
T- Turn handles of saucepans and pots toward the center of the stove.  This will help prevent  
     pans from being bumped and falling.  
 
Y- You should always get permission from your parents or an adult before you cook with heat.  
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OUTDOORS AND CAMPING (cont)         
 


Water Safety 
 
A Tour Permit is required.  Return it to your council.  (It can be faxed.) 
       
Qualified Supervision: An adult who is experienced in the water,  
confident in his ability to respond in an emergency, and has  
completed CPR training.  


Safe Area Lifeguards and swimmers examine the bottom of the swimming 
area to determine varying depth, deep holes, rocks and stumps.  
  
Buddy System:  Pair every youth with another in the same ability group.  
 
Discipline:  Be sure everyone understands and agrees that swimming is 


allowed only with proper supervision and use of safe swim defense.  
  
 


Belt Loop Day Camp 
          
Overnight Family Camp: 1 night & 1 day.  
Have pack meeting and Flag Retirement Ceremony in the evening.  
Breakfast as a pack the next morning and have Flag Ceremony.  
Attend classes throughout the day.  
 
Classes run for 50 minutes with 10 minute breaks/or change in classes.  
9:00-  9:50  Class  1:00-1:50 Class 
10:00-10:50  Class  2:00-2:50 Class 
11:00-11:50  Class  3:00-3:50 Class 
12:00-12:50  Lunch  4:00-4:50 Class 
 
Have food prepared prior to lunch break if having cold cuts and chips, or have cooks start 
making lunch one hour prior to the break if serving hot food.  
          
Awards: Purchase awards prior to Belt Loop Day Camp. In order to do this, you will need to 
have an RSVP on who is attending.  


 
Belt Loop Classes may be based on Themes. (For example, if doing 
Academics, assign 2 to 4 leaders per topic. Two leaders would take 25 minutes 
per activity while other two leaders assisted the boys in the activity, and then 
they would switch.  This way, two belts loops could be accomplished in one 
class.) 
         


If doing sports, break up group into teams.  This may affect time slots.  You may need to 
combine two 50 minutes classes together.  
 


The key to success is having fun.  Let the boys create their own ideas. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
OUTDOORS AND CAMPING (cont) 


 
Favorite Outdoor Recipes 


      
          
       
 
Chicken Thighs ALA Coke 
 
When I asked my Scoutmasters if they had a favorite recipe, this is the one that Allan Powell 
from Troop 4139 gave me.  He said it was the easiest one he had ever cooked and the boys loved 
it.  Put enough chicken thighs in a 12" Dutch oven to feed the boys, 2 or 3 each.  Add a big bottle 
of catsup and 1 3/4 cans of coke.  Cover and cook at 350 degrees for 35 minutes. Drink the rest 
of the can of coke, and wait for the chicken to cook.  Meat will pull from the bones when done.  
Very simple and easy but tastes great.      
  
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
Banana Boat 


 
Take a banana and cut out the inside peel.  Leave the rest of the peel around the banana.  Then 
hollow out a portion of the banana so that it looks like a boat or canoe.  Be sure to leave most of 
the banana, but take out just enough to add the goodies!!   This will leave room for you to put in 
chocolate chips and marshmallows. Then cover it back over with the peel you have removed.  


Wrap the banana in tin foil and cook in the fire or on the grill.  The 
chocolate and marshmallows will melt.  Unwrap the tinfoil and use it 
for the plate or bowl. The chocolate and marshmallows will be oozing 
everywhere!!!  Cooks in just a matter of minutes.  


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


OUTDOORS AND CAMPING (cont)  
 


                   Cub Scout Hike 
      
Before setting out on any hike with your pack, be sure to consider each 
boy’s hiking ability and plan your hike accordingly.  
 
When we had our family/belt loop camp, we had a time limit on how long 
we wanted our hike to last.        
  
Two of our adult leaders scouted the area that we wanted to hike, along 
with the denner and assistant denner.  We felt that this would be a good 
idea to see how long it would take a typical nine-year-old boy to hike the 
route that we had planned.  


  
Be sure to encourage your pack to wear good sturdy hiking shoes.  
Sandals should be discouraged.       
Also, make sure that everyone brings sunscreen, and enough water to 
drink.  Hydration is probably the most important thing to remember.  
        
Once we started our hike, we instructed the boys to stay on the trail whenever possible to avoid 


snakes and other unseen hazards such as holes, fallen logs and sticks that 
they might trip over.  This also helps to preserve nature.  We also pointed 
out landmarks or anything that the boys might use to find their way back 
to camp.  Be sure to stress that if they do get lost, to stay put and someone 
will find them.  
    
 


Hike Pre-Openers: When all of the boys were assembled and ready to go, we had them put 
together a miniature first aid kit.  We explained what each item would be used if someone got 
injured.  The cost of this kit is less than $1.00 each. Listed below are items needed to build your 
own first aid kit:  
 
1.  Film canister or prescription bottle.  (Wal-Mart donated both of these items to our pack) 
2.  2 adhesive bandages       
3.  1 wet wipe  
4.  1 Pack of Neosporin or generic triple anti-biotic ointment.   
5.  1 piece of hard tack candy 
6.  2 quarters 
7.  3 or 4 matches (optional, depending on age) 
8.  1 piece of boondoggle (vinyl lacing), long enough to put around their neck or short enough to 
make into a Neckerchief slide.  (Drill two holes on one side and thread boondoggle through.) 
          
 Keep It Simple Make It Fun 


K-I-S-M-I-F 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 


LEAVE NO TRACE 
 FRONTCOUNTRY GUIDELINES 


 
 As more people use parks and recreation facilities, LEAVE NO TRACE guidelines become even 
more important for outdoor visitors. 
 Leave No Trace is a plan that helps people to be more concerned about their environment and to 
help them protect it for future generations.  Leave No Trace applies in a backyard or local park (front 
country) as much as it does in the wilderness (back country). 
 We should practice Leave No Trace in our attitude and actions--wherever we go.  Understanding 
nature strengthens our respect toward the environment.  One person with thoughtless behavior or one 
shortcut on a trail can spoil the outdoor experience for others. 
 Help protect the environment by remembering that while you are there, you are a visitor.  When 
you visit the outdoors, take special care of the area.  Leave everything just as you find it. 
 Hiking and camping without a trace are signs of a considerate outdoorsman who cares for the 
environment.  Travel lightly on the land. 
 


Six Leave No Trace Guidelines for Cub Scouts 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
PLAN AHEAD 


Watch for hazards and follow all rules 
of the outdoor facility.  Remember proper 
clothing, sunscreen, hats, first aid kits, and 
plenty of drinking water.  Use the buddy 
system.  Make sure you carry your family's 
name, phone number, and address. 
 
 
 


STICK TO TRAILS 
 Stay on marked trails whenever 
possible.  Shortcutting trails packs and erodes 
soil, which eventually kills all vegetation and 
takes years to recover.  Stick to Trails! 
 
 


MANAGE YOUR PET 
 Managing your pet will keep people, 
dogs, livestock, and wildlife from being 
threatened.  Your pet should be on a leash and 
controlled at all times.  Do not let your pet 
approach or chase wildlife.  When animals are 
chased or disturbed, they change eating 
patterns.  This may result in poor health or 
death.  Take a small scoop and bag to pick up 
your pet's waste, then dispose in a trash can. 


 
LEAVE WHAT YOU FIND 


 Try to leave any outdoor area the same 
as you found it.  The less impact we each make, 
the longer we will enjoy what we have. 
Use established restrooms.  Graffiti and 
vandalism have no place anywhere and spoil it 
for others.  Leave your mark by doing an 
approved conservation project. 
 
 


     RESPECT OTHER VISITORS 
 Be courteous and make room for others. 
Control your speed when biking or running.  
Pass with care and let others know before you 
pass.  Avoid making noise or playing loud music. 
Respect "No Trespassing" signs.  If property 
boundaries are unclear, do not enter the area. 
 
 


TRASH YOUR TRASH 
Make sure all trash is put in a bag or trash can. 
Trash is unsightly and ruins everyone' s outdoor 
experience.  Trash can kill wildlife.  Even such 
things as orange peels, apple cores, and food 
scraps take years to break down and often 
attract unwanted pests that could become a 
problem. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Cub Scouting's Leave No Trace Awareness Award 
 
Tiger Cub, Cub Scout, Webelos Scout 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Want To Do More? Take The Pledge! 
 
You can take the pledge to practice the  
Leave No Trace frontcountry guidelines 
Wherever you go.  Just review the guide- 
Lines once more and sign the pledge.   
Carry it with you as a reminder of your 
Promise. 
 
 
 
 


1. Discuss with your leader or 
parent/guardian the importance of the 
Leave No Trace frontcountry 
guidelines. 


2. On three separate outings, practice the 
frontcountry guidelines of Leave No 
Trace. 


3. Tiger Cubs do Ach. 5, Let's Go 
Outdoors; Wolfs do Req. 7 Your 
Living World; Bears do Req. 12 
Family Outdoor Adventures; Webelos 
earn Outdoorsman Badge. 


4. Participate in a Leave No Trace-related 
service project. 


5. Promise to practice the Leave No Trace 
frontcountry guidelines by signing the 
Cub Scout Leave No Trace Pledge. 


6. Draw a poster to illustrate the Leave 
No Trace frontcountry  guidelines and 
display it at a pack meeting. 


Cub Scout Leader 
 
1. Discuss with your leader or 


parent/guardian the importance of the 
Leave No Trace frontcountry 
guidelines. 


2. On three separate outings, practice the 
frontcountry guidelines of Leave No 
Trace. 


3. Participate in presenting a den, pack, 
district, or council awareness session 
on Leave No Trace frontcountry 
guidelines.. 


4. Participate in a Leave No Trace-
related service project. 


5. Commit yourself to the Leave No 
Trace frontcountry guidelines by 
signing the Cub Scout Leave No Trace 
Pledge. 


6. Assist at least three boys in earning  
Cub Scouting's  Leave No Trace 
Awareness Award.. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUB SCOUTS ‘AT YOUR SERVICE’ 
 
 


Service Project Ideas and Information 
 
Service has a long tradition in scouting.  The Promise suggests we 
"help other people"; the Law of the Pack encourages us to "give 
goodwill".  Good citizenship is best taught by service in action. 
 
 
As leaders, we need to provide opportunities in the den and the pack 
for service projects.  Some project ideas are below: 
 


• Spring clean up.  Assist an elderly person with yard work or home repair.  This could be a 
yearlong commitment or a one-time project. 


 
• Provide a clean up or other service project for the chartered organization. 
 
• Adopt a stream or other water area by keeping it clean and free from litter.  
 
• Adopt a park. Clean it up, make minor repairs, paint benches, plant 


shrubbery, etc. (Be certain to get permission). 
 
• Shovel snow.  Keep neighborhood fire hydrants clear of snow. Shovel snow 


from driveway of the chartered organization or from the home of an elderly 
neighbor. 


 
• Take part in a community tree-planting program. 
 
• Collect items for recycling. 
 
• Hold a leaf-raking party for neighbors or chartered organization. 


 


 
"Life is like a game of tennis. 


He who SERVES, 
 usually wins." 


 
 


 
 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SERVICE PROJECT IDEAS (cont) 
 
Some Advancements Related to Service Projects 


 
WOLF:  Requirement 7c--pick up litter in neighborhood.  
 
 
BEAR: 


Requirement 6a--recycle 
Requirement 6b--plant a tree 


 Elective 14a--Care for building 
 Elective 14c--Project to beautify 
 Elective 15e--Clean up water area 
 
 
WEBELOS:  
 Citizen 7--Do a good turn project. 
 Family Member 3--Correct problem in home or surroundings.  
 Handyman 9--Arrange a storage area for cleaning materials. 
 
 
 


Scouting Awards with Service Project Requirements 
 
The following Scouting awards/activity patches require service projects: 


 


• World Conservation Award:  Participate in den or pack conservation project. 
 
• National Den Award #7:  As a den, participate in a den conservation/resource project. 
 
• BSA Family Award 5:  Do a 'Good Turn' for a group, 


community, or individual. 
 
• America My Home #2:  Do a neighborhood or community 


service project. 
 
• Hometown Discovery #5:  With your den, pack, or family 


plan and implement a community service project to help 
your community. 


 
• Conservation Good Turn:  As a pack, join with another organization to carry out a Good 


Turn project. 
 
• Cub Power:  


New requirements, the same for all Cub Scouting groups, including leaders.  See Great 
Salt Lake Council Patch and Activity Guide 2001 for details. 


 


 


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BOYS’ LIFE PATCH  
 


To complete the requirements, several Boys' Life magazines may 
be needed.  Family members, friends of Cub Scout leaders may 
help boys in reading articles.  In some of the following 
requirements, other Cub Scouts advancement requirements might 
be earned, depending on the work that is accomplished.  On 
completion of this patch, the communication belt loop may also be 
earned.  


Do three of the following:  


1. Subscribe to Boys' Life for at least one year. If you are 
unable to have Boys' Life in your home go to the library, or borrow from a friend.  


2. Find another Cub Scout boy who doesn't take the Boys' Life magazine and tell him about 
how much fun you had reading it.  


3. Enter the Boys' Life Reading Contest with a one page book report on "The Best Book I 
Read This Year" and receive the free Pedro patch from Boys' Life.  (Mail to Boys' Life 
Reading Contest, S204, 1325 W. Walnut Hill Lane, P.O. Box 152079, Irving, Texas. 
Contest rules are found in the current Scouting Magazines.)  


4. Read the article "A True Story Of Scouts In Action". 
a. Tell an adult about the story and find out ways you can become prepared for accidents.  


5. Read a fiction story from any issue with your family. 


Do four of the following: 


6. Read two comics with family members or a friend. 
a. Tell an adult about the comics you read.  


7. Read a "Think And Grin" page with a family member or a friend. 
a.  Prepare one of the jokes for a family, den or pack meeting.  


8. Read an article on "Sports" or "Science". 
a.  Try the sport or experiment out for yourself.  


9. Read an article on "Safety" or "History." 
a.  Practice the safety rules or if doing history tell an adult what you have learned.  


10. Read an article on "Hobby Hows" or "Codemaster." 
a.  Try one of the hobbies or learn one of the codes and show it to a parent, den member 
or leader.  


11. Read an article of your choice, different from what you have read previously. 







Cub Scout Activities 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 ABILITY AWARENESS PATCH 
 


Objectives: 


• To provide opportunities for Scouts and leaders to promote 
disability awareness. 


• To encourage Scouts and leaders to increase interaction with 
people who have disabilities. 


• To help Scouts and leaders better understand the meaning of 
“disability.” 


• To provide experiences for Scouts with disabilities to interact with other Scouts. 


 


Patch Requirements for Cub Scouts, Boy Scouts, 
Varsity Scouts, Venturers, and Leaders 


Complete 8 of the following requirements to earn the Ability Awareness Patch: 
1. Visit an agency that works with disabilities (physically, sensory, or mentally).  Collect 


available literature.  
2. Make a display about one or more disabilities for a Scout meeting.  
3. For a one-hour period, go about your normal routine doing chores, watching television, 


studying, etc. by adapting one of these experiences:  
• Hearing Impairment: Muffle your ears with bandages or earmuffs.  
• Sight Impairment:  Blindfold one or both eyes so your sight is obscured.  
• Physical Impairment:  Immobilize arms or legs so that they cannot be used.  
• Choose one of your own  


4. Using Sign Language, learn a Scout promise, motto, or oath.  
5. Learn about the Braille alphabet.  Spell out 10 words, including your first name.  
6. Talk to a youth who has a disability and learn about the disability and its affect on that 


person.  
7. Learn about wheel chairs.  Discuss the differences in wheel chairs in their use and 


purpose.  
8. Be a “buddy” to a youth with a disability for an activity at a Scout meeting or at school or 


in a church or community activity.  
9. Read a book about a person who has a disability.  This may be fiction or nonfiction.  
10. Invite a special education teacher or disability specialist to visit a Scout meeting to talk 


about disabilities, therapy, mainstreaming, and/or interacting with youth with disabilities.  
11. Do a service project for people with disabilities. 
12. Attend a class about a specific type of disability.  
13. Teach a family member the main points that you have learned about disability awareness.  
14. Assist with the Special Olympics.  












Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Fun With Leather  
Fun With Beads  
Plaster Craft   
Woodcraft I   
Woodcraft II   



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
LEATHERCRAFT 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


LEATHERCRAFT (cont) 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


LEATHERCRAFT (cont) 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


LEATHERCRAFT (cont) 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


LEATHERCRAFT (cont) 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


LEATHERCRAFT (cont) 
 


 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PLASTER CRAFT 
 
 


 
Where to find molds: 
 


Most craft stores in the area have soap molds, candy molds, 
sucker molds, and clay molds that can be used as plaster molds.  
Care should be taken that the molds are not too large or too small 
to be used as neckerchief slides, if that is what the finished 


product is intended to be.  A 12-inch diameter plaster Christmas wreath will not stay on a 
neckerchief, but might make another fun project!  There are a few plaster-specific molds 
available at the craft stores, but they are usually for larger projects.  These can be very fun, so 
look closely.  Another terrific source of molds is a store that sells candy-making supplies.  Craft 
stores almost always have these, as well as party supply stores. 
 
Mold preparation:  
 
With plaster, the first and most important thing that needs to be done 
with the mold is to ensure that it is clean and dry before starting.  If the 
mold is intended for suckers and has a trough for the sucker stick, it is 
probably a good idea to use a small blob of silicone caulking to block the 
plaster from filling the stick trough.  It is usually NOT a good idea to use 
some sort of lubricant on the molds because this will change the 
chemistry of the plaster, and could cause problems painting the plaster 
later.  
 
Sources of “Plaster”: 
 


There are three different types of material that can be used in molds as 
“plaster.”  The first it the good old-fashioned Plaster of Paris.  This is easy 
to work with, but has a few drawbacks.  When storing Plaster of Paris, 
great care must be taken that it is kept in a tightly sealed container.  Plaster 
of Paris can easily pick up moisture from the atmosphere and harden on its 
own.  Also, when cleaning up, Plaster or Paris must NEVER be put down 
your drains because it will harden in your drainpipes and eventually block 
them. 
 


Next is a product designed for patching drywall that works nicely for small plaster crafts.  It’s 
called Fix-All.  It can be purchased at home improvement stores, and comes in a one-pound box 
or a 25-pound bag.  The 25-pound bag usually costs about $7.00, so it is rather inexpensive.  Fix-
All doesn’t pick up atmospheric moisture, hardens on its own, and can safely be disposed of in 
your drains, provided you use a LOT of water while cleaning. 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PLASTERCRAFT (cont) 
 
The third product is called Hydrocal®.  This is used heavily in the professional sculpting and 
metal foundry industries.  It is extremely hard when cured, and a sharp needle or knife may be 
used to scratch in additional details after the project is taken out of the molds.  I have found two 
reliable sources of Hydrocal® in the area.  They are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Care and clean up are the same as with Plaster of Paris, but the finished product is much more 
resistant to abuse and handling. 
 
Mixing and pouring:  
 
All types of “plaster” mix and pour nearly identically.  The amount you 
use is a direct result of experience and the size of the molds.  There really 
isn’t a reliable formula to the amount of dry plaster-to-water to use.  Add 
the dry plaster first to a container you don’t care about (if the plaster 
hardens all the way, the container goes in the trash!).  Add just a little bit 
of water first, and mix it in until the dry plaster is about the consistency of 
thick mud or cement.  At this point, all of the dry plaster should have been 
moistened.  Then slowly add water in small amounts until the plaster is the 
consistency of pancake batter.  Not just any pancake batter, but the type 
that will instantly run out to a perfectly shaped pancake when you pour it on the griddle.  With 
the plaster at the slightly runny pancake-batter consistency, tap the container a few times on the 
counter or table.  This will cause any large air bubbles to come to the surface. 


 
Carefully spoon the plaster “batter” into the mold.  Make sure that the entire mold 
is filled, but not over-filled.  Once all of the mold spaces are filled, and if you are 
using a clear mold, hold the mold over your head, and used a sharpened Popsicle 
stick or a plastic fork with only one tine remaining to chase the visible air bubbles 
away from the surface of the mold. 


 
Neckerchief slide ring material:  
 
There are a lot of tried-and-true neckerchief slides that can be used with 
plaster.  A lot of people swear by the handles of gallon milk jugs.  Others 
like cheap rings (like those given away at bridal showers).  The author 
likes to use 16-gauge floral wire twisted around a ¾” dowel and cut into 
rings.  If the plaster mold is thin, it is a good idea to use a pair of pliers to 
flatten the rings into the shape of a capital ‘D’, and put the flat part in the plaster. 
 
Wait about 2-3 minute, but no longer, before placing a slide ring into the plaster.  Any sooner 
and the ring will fall over, any later and the ring will not go into the plaster.  Again, experience 
is the best guide as to when to insert the ring. 


Special Effect Supply Corp. 
164 East Center ST · North Salt Lake, UT 84054 
(801) 936-9762 · FAX: (801) 936-9763 
http://www.fxsupply.com/ 


Larson Foundry Supply, Inc. 
860 W. 2600 S. 
Salt Lake City, Utah     84119 
Phone:  801-972-1111 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
PLASTERCRAFT (cont) 
 
Removing plaster from the mold:  


 
It’s easy to remove the plaster from most candy, soap, clay, and plaster 
molds.  Simply wait at least 20-30 minutes for the plaster to harden, turn the 
mold upside-down, and gently flex the mold until the plaster releases.  Do 
not use a great deal of force or the mold will break.  If the plaster will not 
come out, wait an hour more for the natural shrinkage process to release the 
plaster from the mold.  Patience is your friend at this step. 
 
 


 
 
Sanding and painting plaster: 
 
The best material to sand plaster with is drywall-sanding screen.  This 
can be obtained at most home improvement stores, and doesn’t load 
down with plaster like normal sandpaper.  Wait until the plaster has 
cured for at least 24 hours before trying to sand it.  Trying to sand 
wet plaster can easily break it.   
 


Most plasters are very absorbent, so priming before spray painting is a good 
idea.  A white auto primer usually works best, but gray primer works, too.  
Multiple light coats of spray paint always work better than a thick coat.  Thick 
coats have a tendency to hide details.  If you are painting by hand, the primer 
step may not be necessary.  Use your imagination in painting.  Cubs love 
fluorescent colors, glow-in-the-dark colors, and bright colors.  KISMIF!  
 
 
 


 
 
Have Fun!   
 
After you are experienced, try new molds, new ideas, and new methods.  
Then, enjoy your success as a PLASTER-CASTER.  


 
 


 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


WOODCRAFT 1 
 
 
Here are some ideas to help pass off some achievements and electives in the 
Wolf, Bear and Webelos books as well as other fun and easy woodcraft 
projects. 
 


TEEPEES 
(Wolf and Beat' Elective) 


 
Use twigs or bamboo skewers and form a teepee shape. Use hot glue to hold 
together. You can make a door and add feathers, leather or other decorations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
WOOD MODELS 


(Elective for Wolves and achievement for Bears) 
 
Wood models can be purchased at craft stores, model stores, and at Wal-mart. 
Put the models together according to the instructions and then paint and add 
other decorations such as stickers or woodsies. 
 
 


WOOD NECKERCHIEF SLIDE 
                                                 (Webelos Forester) 
 
Cut a small section of a tree or branch so that 
The rings  show. Let the wood dry, then coat 
 with acrylic spray.   Glue onto a ring made 
 from PVC pipe or other material. 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WOODCRAFT 1 (cont) 
 


BOOKMARKS 
(Wolf and Bear elective) 


 
Glue different shapes of felt, craft foam, buttons or woodsies onto a craft stick. 
You can also use paint. You can make bugs, flowers or any other design you 
would like. 
For a bird bookmark, paint the craft stick the color you want your bird. Cut a
small triangle of yellow or orange felt or craft foam and glue it on the stick
where you want the beak. Glue on wiggle eyes and turn the stick over and glue
on a feather. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


GARDEN STAKES 
 
To make garden stakes, cut the craft stick so it forms a point on the end and 
glue on pictures of vegetables made from craft foam. (Use large craft sticks) 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WOODCRAFT 1 (cont) 
 
 


MILK CARTON BIRD FEEDER 
(Wolf Achievement andElectives, Bear Achievement, Webelos Naturalist) 


 
 
Get an empty paper half-gallon milk carton. Open up the top and wash and 
rinse it thoroughly.   Let it dry. 
 
Re-close the milk carton and staple it shut close to the carton. Glue on craft
sticks to form a roof. (May cut off top of carton if desired. 
 
Get a roll of masking tape. Tear off 1 one to two inch pieces of the tape and 
cover the entire milk carton. Overlap the pieces so that none of the carton 
shows. 
 
Get brown shoe polish and a paper towel. Rub the polish over all of the tape to
make it look like brown bark. Let it dry thoroughly. 
 
Cut an entrance hole in the birdhouse. 
 
Using a pencil, make several holes in the bottom of 
the carton for any rain to drain out. Also make 
several holes near the top of the carton under the  
roof to let heat and condensation escape. 
 
Place a wooden dowel through two holes near the 
 bottom of the carton for a perch. 
 
Make a hole through the top of the house near the 
 staples. Put a short piece of wire through the hole  
to make a loop. Hang the birdhouse on a tree branch. 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


WOODCRAFT 1 (cont) 
 


CLOTHESPIN MAGNETS 
(Wolf and Bear elective) 


 
Glue shapes of craft foam, woodsies or felt onto a clothespin.  Put a strip of 
magnet on the back. You can also glue on buttons, wiggle eyes, feathers, or 
anything you can think of! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


PINE CONE SKIER 
You need: 
Pine Cone 
Craft sticks 
Wooden Ball Head 
Pipe Cleaners 
Toothpicks or bamboo skewers 
Wiggle eyes 
Felt 
Glue 
Pom Pom 
 
Attach the pine cone to two craft sticks for the skis. Use tooth picks for the 
poles. 
Bend the pipe cleaners for the hands and arms. The head is a wooden ball with
wiggle eyes attached.   A cap of felt with a pom pom on top completes the
skier. 


Just For Fun !







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WOODCRAFT II 
 
 


   TIPS FOR USING A SCROLL SAW 
 
As a general rule, always select the narrowest blades recommended for 
the intricate curve cutting and widest blades for straight and large curve 
cutting operation.  The scroll saw accepts a wide variety of blade widths 
and thicknesses.  The blade width and thickness and the number of  
teeth per inch are determined by the type of material and the size of the 
radius being cut.  See the following chart. 
 


Teeth/Inch Speed Material Cut 


10 Fast Popular for cutting hard and soft 
woods 3/16” to 2” thick. 


15 Medium Extremely thin cuts on materials 
3/32” to ½” thick. 


18 Slow For tight radius work in thin  
Materials 3/32” to 1/8” thick. 


 
The only place I have found that sells Baltic Birch Plywood is SLOAN’S Woodshop 
1-888-615-9663 or www.sloanswoodshop.com.   


 
Be sure to always sand projects so they have smooth edges.  
 
 


PENCIL/CRAYON PHOTO FRAMES 
Materials: 
1/8” Baltic Birch 
Acrylic paints (your choice) 
Permanent Black marker 
Magnet 
Glue gun or tacky glue 


 
Directions:  Enlarge pattern.  Trace pattern onto wood and cut out.  Paint as a pencil or crayon. 
Outline with black marker. 
Spray project with clear spray paint for a shiny finish.  Glue the magnet on the back.   
Tape a picture on the backside. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WOODCRAFT II (cont) 
 


BEST DAD I EVER SAW 
 


Materials: 
Toffee Brown, Drizzle Grey, Black, White acrylic paint.  Wood-- ¾” Pine.  


 
Directions: 
Paint the handle and wood cross piece toffee brown.  Paint the blade of the 
saw ‘Drizzle Grey.’  
Dry brush the blade with white.  Write “The Best Dad I Ever Saw” with a 
black permanent marker.  Dot the letters with black paint.  Spray clear spray 
paint on the saw and cross piece. 
 
Tape a picture of Dad on the back of the saw handle. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WOODCRAFT II (cont) 
 


COW RECIPE CARD HOLDER 
 


Materials: 
¾” wood 
Clothes pin 
Jute (string) 3” long 
White, brown, black, & tan acrylic paint 
Black permanent marker 
Glue gun or tacky glue 
Clear spray paint 
 
Directions:  Trace, cut and sand all pieces; paint with acrylic paints as desired.  Drill a small 
hole in the back of the body for the jute tail. Glue the head and legs to the body.  Glue the 
clothes pin on the top of the body behind the head.  Glue the jute tail in the hole.   
Spray all pieces with clear spray paint. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Cub Scout Creations 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
WOODCRAFT II (cont) 


 
PADDLE BOAT 


 
 


Materials: 
¾” wood 
¼” wood 
½” wooden dowel 
2 small screws 
Waterproof glue 
Paint (your choice) 


 
Directions:  Trace boat on ¾” wood and cut it out.  Trace 2 paddle wheels on the ¼” wood and 
cut it out.  Cut a 1” length and a ½” length of the dowel.  Sand all pieces smooth.  Glue the 
dowels on the boat where indicated on the pattern.  Slip the two pieces of the paddle wheel 
together along the slots. Fasten them securely using a little glue.  Screw the small screws into 
each side of the back end of the boat.  Paint the boat and allow it to dry for 24 hours.  Slip the 
rubber band over the screws.  Place the paddle wheel inside the rubber band.  Twist the paddle 
wheel around tightly.  Place the boat in the water and watch it go. 


 












Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Cubs with Special Needs  
Den Leader Hints    
Den & Pack Recognitions  
Props/Ceremony Equipment  
Ceremony Helps/Flag   
Building Parent Participation  
‘Volunteer’s Dilemma’   
Council Cub Guidelines  
Guidelines/Permission Slip  
GSLC Tour Permit   



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUB SCOUTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 
 


The following Den or Pack “disability awareness” games are fun in themselves, but they also 
show boys without disabilities the problems of boys who have disabilities. 
 
MIRROR WRITING: Make a copy of the double star  (see right). 
Enlarge or shrink it as needed. While they look in a mirror (not at their 
hands), have the boys write their names at the top of the page, trace 
between the lines of a double star, and write at the bottom the page ‘DO 
A GOOD TURN DAILY’. Discuss how some people with disabilities 
perceive things differently. Objects in one place may appear to be in 
another, completely different place. Is this confusing? How did this 
make you feel? How would you feel if you perceived everything this way?  
 
OBSTACLE COURSE CHALLENGE:  
Equipment: wheelchairs, crutches, canes, furniture (table/chairs), traffic cones, water pitcher/cup, 
Nerf basketball. 
Description: Give each participant a better understanding of the challenges faced by physically 
disabled persons in their daily lives. 
Activity: Set up an obstacle course, where the participants attempt to negotiate traffic cones or 
furniture via wheelchairs/canes/ crutches. 
• Wheelchair seated participants wheel themselves to a table. They try to turn off and on light 


switches, open and close doors, play Nerf  basketball at regular level, etc. 
• Participants with canes or crutches seat themselves at a table.  
• All participants try to pour beans or water from a pitcher into a cup. Participants may also use 


other medical equipment that is available.   
Reflection/Discussion: Are there physically challenged students or adults in your school? Do you 


know anyone with a physical disability? How did you feel while you were in a 
wheelchair or using a cane or crutches? Was your mobility different using each piece 
of equipment? Did you become frustrated? What modifications could have been made 
to make each activity easier? Can you think of any ideas that would make it easier for a 
physically challenged boy to participate in your Pack? Do you feel this activity will 
help you to better understand the challenges of having a physical disability? 


 
EATING CHALLENGE:  
Equipment: Blindfold, crackers or bread, peanut butter, plastic knife, water, cups, tape.  
Activity: Have boys close their eyes or wear a blindfold. Ask them to spread peanut butter on a 
cracker or slice of bread and pour a cup of water. Have the boys repeat the activity; however, this 
time tape their thumbs down and tape the little finger to the ring finger. Have them pour a cup of 
water. 
Discussion: Was it easier to do the activity blind or physically disabled? How much practice 
would it take before you would be able to accomplish these tasks? Did the cracker crumble or the 
bread tear a hole in it?  Was there enough peanut butter on the bread or cracker? 
Other activities with the fingers taped or blindfolded: pour water, beans or sand, tie shoes, find a 
beeper in a roped off area, zip a zipper, make a paper airplane, dial a phone, write your name, 
open a jar, put on a twist tie on a garbage bag, put a puzzle together, identify household items. 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
CUB SCOUTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS (cont) 
 
BUDDY SYSTEM NATURE TRAIL:  
Equipment: rope, blindfolds, feely bags. 
Description: Boys are divided into pairs. One boy is blindfolded, the 
other boy is the “sighted” guide - the buddy. A trail is marked by a 
waist high rope. The trail has various stations where the sighted boy verbally instructs the 
blindfolded buddy to perform a task such as touching a tree, tying a knot, feeling nature items 
and stating what they are, or identifying an item in a feely bag. An alternate trail is laid for the 
buddies when they change roles. 
Discussion: How did the non-sighted boys feel walking on an unfamiliar trail, not knowing 
where they were going? Did they feel more secure having a sighted buddy? How did the sighted 
buddy feel? Did they feel a responsibility for the non-sighted boy? How important was it for the 
non-sighted boy to receive specific directions/instructions? 
 
NON-SENSELESS NONSENSE: 
Equipment: Blindfolds, mittens, ear muffs or cotton balls, goggles with Vaseline on the lenses, 
paper bowls, condiments: salt, vinegar, lemons, sugar, pine scent (check for allergies), paper & 
pencil, toy phone, paper bags or feely bags, wooden craft sticks, Braille cards, coins.  
Activity: Boys proceed in a “round-robin” fashion to various stations set up for each of the five  
senses. 
1. Boys are blindfolded or use goggles and attempt to dial a phone and write their 


name.  Alpha/numeric Braille cards may be utilized for a hands-on demonstration.  
  
2. Boys have their hearing muffled with ear muffs or cotton balls or both. Speaking in 


a normal voice, another boy from across the room directs the first boy to perform 
various activities i.e.: sit down at a table, write their name, call a friend, etc. 


 
3.  Boys keep eyes closed or are blindfolded, and a small amount of each 
     condiment is placed on the boy’s tongue. The boy is asked if they can 
     recognize the condiment by taste.   
 
4. Same condiments are used and boy, still with blindfolds or closed eyes, try to identify the 


condiment by smell only. 
 
5. Boys put on mittens and try to pick-up coins or take coins out of a bowl of rice.  
 
Discussion: How did the boys feel during this activity? Is it difficult to imagine the 
permanent loss of one of your senses? Which sense would be most difficult to lose? 


Why? What can we do to prevent this loss of sight, sound, or touch.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  


RESOURCES: 
Scouting for the Learning Disabled S33065A; Scouting for the Physically Disabled
S33057B; Scouting for the Visually Impaired S33063B; Scouting for the Emotionally
Disabled  S32978A; Scouting for the Mentally Retarded S33059A; & Scouting for the
Hearing Impaired  S33061A  
Cub Scout Leader How-To Book, Chapter 17 - Cub Scouts with Disabilities 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
CUB SCOUTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS (cont) 
 
 
Braille Alphabet  - An arrangement of raided little bumps [sometimes called dots] grouped in 
lines of boxes called cells. Developed by a blind scientist and music teacher living in France - 
Louis Braille (1809-1852). A cell can show a sign for a letter of the alphabet, a part of a word 
[like -ed] or a number. Other dots stand for punctuation marks. An experienced reader can read 
about 80-90 words a minute. Books for the visually challenged can also contain raised 
illustrations so the reader can “see” them by touch.  
 


 a  b c d e f g h i j k l m 
•o 
oo 
oo 


•o 
•o 
oo 


•• 
oo 
oo 


•• 
o• 
oo 


•o 
o• 
oo 


•• 
•o 
oo 


•• 
•• 
oo 


•o 
•• 
oo 


o• 
•o 
oo 


o• 
•• 
oo 


•o 
oo 
•o 


•o 
•o 
•o 


•• 
oo 
•o 


n o p q r s t u v w x y z 
•• 
o• 
•o 


•o 
o• 
•o 


•• 
•o 
•o 


•• 
•• 
•o 


•o 
•• 
•o 


o• 
•o 
•o 


o• 
•• 
•o 


•o 
oo 
•• 


•o 
•o 
•• 


o• 
•• 
o• 


•• 
oo 
•• 


•• 
o• 
•• 


•o 
o• 
•• 


 
 
 
Signing: is a means of communication used by 
people with hearing impairment. Letters, words 
and ideas are expressed through different 
positions of the fingers, hands and arms. 
Another method for the hearing impaired 
person is lip reading. A person can tell what is 
being said by watching how the lips move, and 
by the shape of the person’s mouth. 
 
 
In the Den or Pack, use the Braille alphabet to 
send messages to each other. It would help the 
boys understand the challenges that non-seeing 
people face each day. Remind the boys that the 
challenged person cannot open his eyes and 
see.  
Use the manual alphabet to send short 
messages. Spell the letters individually until 
each letter is understood. It is harder that it 
appears. 


The Manual Alphabet:  
 


 
  
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUB SCOUTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS (cont) 
 
Attention Deficit Disorder (A.D.D.) is a very common Learning Disability, perhaps the most 
common disability encountered in Cub Scouting.  
 


AN A.D.D. CHILD’S BILL OF RIGHTS 
 
“Help me focus.” Please teach me through my sense of “touch.” I need “hands-on” and body 
movement. 
 
“I need to know what comes next.” Please give me a structured environment where there is a 
dependable routine. Give me advanced warning if there will be changes. 
 
“Wait for me. I’m still thinking.” Please allow me to go at my own pace. If I rush, I get confused 
and upset. 
 
“I’m stuck. I can’t do it.” Please offer me options for the problem solving. I need to know the 
detours when the road is blocked. 
 
“Is it right? I need to know NOW!” Please give me right and immediate feedback on how I’m 
doing. 
 
“I didn’t forget. I didn’t hear it in the first place.” Please give me directions one step at a time 
and ask me to say back what I think you said. 
 
“I didn’t know I WASN’T in my seat!” Please remind me to stop, think, and act. 
 
“Am I almost done now?” Please give me short work periods with short-term goals.  
 
“What?” Please don’t say “I already told you that.” Tell me again in different words. Give me a 
signal. Draw me a symbol. 
 
“I know, it’s ALL wrong, isn’t it?” Please give me praise for partial success. Reward me for self-
improvement, not just for perfection. 
 
“But, why do I always get yelled at?” Please catch me doing something right and praise me for 
my specific positive behavior. Remind me (and yourself) about my good points when I’m having 
a bad day.    


 


 
Taken from an e-mail message from 


Elizabeth A. Stiles    
Utah National Parks Council    
Pow Wow Book    1999-2000 


 


 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
DEN LEADER HELPS AND HINTS 


         
 
 


Tiger Cubs 


 
Tiger Cub Motto:  Search, Discover, Share 
 
Tiger Cubs is for boys who are 7 years old and an adult partner (Team).  This program 
requires a lot of Family Involvement!  The pack meets twice a month (1 Den meeting and 1 Go 
See It).  Each month the Den Leader works with one of the teams to plan the activities and outing 
that will be held the next month.  Responsibility falls to the teams to make this program work.  
Tiger Cubs participate in Pack Meeting. 
 
 
 


The Wolf Trail   
 
Boys who are 8 years old may join a Wolf Den.  This program requires a lot of Family 
Involvement!  Each boy must achieve the Bobcat rank before starting on the Wolf Trail.  In 
order to advance to the rank of Wolf, each boy must complete all 12 Achievements.  After 
receiving the rank of Wolf, the boy may work on all other electives to receive Arrow Point 
Awards. 
 
 


 
The Bear Trail  


 
Boys who are 9 years old may join a Bear Den. This program requires a lot of Family 
Involvement!  Each boy must achieve the Bobcat rank before starting on the Bear Trail.  In 
order to advance to the rank of Bear, each boy must pass off 1 Achievement for God, 3 
Achievements for Country, 4 Achievements for Family and 4 Achievements for Self.  After 
receiving the rank of Bear, the boy may work on all other achievements or electives and receive 
Arrow Point Awards. (See GSLC policy ‘Earning Arrow Points’ in this book). 
 
It is the parents’ responsibility to see that their boy advances.  Den Leaders give the boys the 
opportunity to pass off as many Achievements as possible during the year.  The Den Leader, 
Assistant Den Leaders and Den Chiefs run Den Meetings.  Each month’s activities are based on 
a monthly theme.  Different themes help move the program more smoothly. 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER HELPS AND HINTS (cont) 


                                 Record Keeping  
 
Record keeping is an essential part of a den and pack.  As each boy passes off an Achievement, 
you, the Den Leader, will need to be able to keep a record each week for each boy.  It will help 
you if a boy happens to lose his book.  It will also help you to know what you need to work on in 
your den.  If a new leader comes into your den, it will be easier to orient them to your system.  
Check the back of the Tiger, Wolf and Bear books for a listing of requirements to help keep 
track.  There are also forms and charts in the Cub Scout Leader Book that you can copy for each 
den.  (See Pages 10-1 & 10-2 and 34-13 through 34-27 in the Cub Scout Leader book, copyright 
2001) 
 
 
 


 
Den Doodles 


 
Den doodles make an excellent Den project and serve a double purpose. They are interesting to 
make and can be used as a continual incentive for Cub Scouts to earn their advancement.  
A den doodle is an emblem - a figure, or ‘totem’, chosen by the den and placed on a stand or 
hung on a wall to show each boy's advancement status.  Using a leather thong, string, or 
shoelace, suspend circles of cardboard, wood, tin, or other devices from the totem as 
achievements are earned.  A doodle stick dates back to the Indian coup stick and totem pole. 
Den doodles are simple to make.  When making a den doodle, first cut out and prepare the 
stand (or whatever they will be hung on.)  Then, let each boy design and make his own ‘totem’ 
(use leather shapes, craft foam, or even cardstock with the boy’s picture.  Punch or drill a hole in 
the top and bottom of each totem, and thread a leather thong or string through holes.  Attach to 
stand.  Cub Scouts will enjoy making den doodles and watching their string of conquests grow.  
Boys falling behind take notice of their bare strings and work harder for their advancement.  Den 
doodles should be on display at each pack meeting as a part of the den table exhibits. 
(www.powwow-online.net) 
 
 
 


Den Flag 
 
A Den Flag helps bring the boys together on one project and shows something unique about each 
boy.  The boys may want to put either their names or other items that represent them on the flag.  
If they do this, the flag should be large enough so that as new boys come into the Pack, they can 
also be added.  This flag should be displayed at Den Meetings and Pack Meetings.   


 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER HELPS AND HINTS (cont) 
 


 
 
 


Den Discipline 
 


Cub Scouts are ready to go as soon as they get to the meeting and, if they have nothing to 
do or they get bored, they don’t always choose appropriate things to do.  Having enough 
activities will greatly improve behavior. As they get finished with something, move on to the 
next thing. Plan several activities for each meeting. Quiet activities are great, as well as some of 
the louder ones. 


Plan more activities than you can actually use in case one of them doesn’t work out or the 
boys finish an activity faster than you think they will. 


Also, use a variety of activities: crafts, games, field trips, service projects, skits, songs, 
etc. This will keep den meetings interesting, and the boys will be less likely to get bored. 


• Use the Cub Scout Sign to get the boys’ attention and as a signal for quiet. The boys 
should stop what they are doing, be quiet and look at you, and put their own arms up in 
the Cub Scout Sign. Wait until they put their hands up and are listening before you start 
talking, and you won’t have to talk over them. 


• Be an example. The boys will watch you and also your den chief. If you treat the boys 
with respect and show them what you expect of them, their behavior will be better. You 
can be friendly and firm at the same time. 


• Get everyone into uniform. A uniformed den and den leader have better discipline and 
pride. Small uniform inspections with prizes in den meeting can really make a difference 
in how well the boys wear their uniform. 


• Use two-deep leadership. Having another leader there can make a big difference in the 
boys’ behavior, and will help you keep everything under control. 


• Remember KISMIF--Keep It Simple, Make It Fun. 
• Be flexible—always have a “plan B” in case “plan A” doesn’t work out. 
• Make a “talking stick” or other important object for speaker to hold when it is their turn 


to talk. Everyone must be quiet unless they have the “talking stick”. 
• Have a big clear jar to fill with marbles. When they are 


following the rules, reward them with a certain number of 
marbles. If they break a rule, take marbles away. When they fill 
the jar, reward the whole den with a treat, field trip, award, etc. 


• Use colored beads for your den doodle, and give a certain color 
for each thing they accomplish: showing up, bringing their 
books, wearing their uniforms, good behavior, and passing off 
achievements. 


• A Den Code of Conduct may be another way to get the boys to 
be responsible for their own actions.  (This is a set of rules the 
boys create themselves.  Write them down so they remember 
each week.  Review them as needed!)  


 


RULES 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER HELPS AND HINTS (cont) 
 


 
   Denners and Assistant Denners  


(Not in Tiger Cubs)  
 
Denners and Assistant Denners are boys in your den that are the designated “helpers”.  Their 
responsibilities are to be to Den Meeting or Pack Meeting a few minutes early to help set up.  
They also are the ones who get to pass things out and help clean up.  They get to wear a cord on 
their sleeve during the time they are Denner or Assistant Denner.  This can be presented in a 
ceremony or just given for a time. 
 
 
 


         Den Chief  
(Not in Tiger Cubs) 


 
A Den Chief is a boy who has earned the rank of First Class.  Having a Den Chief can ease your 
burden during Den Meeting.  The responsibility of a Den chief is to gather the boys and get them 
ready to start Den Meeting.  There is a Den Chief Handbook available as well as trainings that 
you can attend with your Den Chief. 
 


National Den Award  
 
The National Den Award is given to Dens that have conducted a quality program throughout the 
year (12-months).  Some things that are included in the requirements are Service projects, field 
trips, character development, etc.  Each den that earns this award receives a ribbon to be 
displayed on the den flag or den doodle. (See Cub Scout Leader Book 29-1) 
 
 


Combining Monthly Themes with Achievements, 
Arrow Points, Patches, and Belt Loops 


 
Themes are a fun part of Cub Scouts. There are many theme ideas you can get from monthly 
roundtable meetings and your Program Helps. In each month of the 2003 Pow Wow Book 
THEME pages, look on the page for THEME RESOURCES.  It lists achievements that fit  each 
theme.    







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


MORE HINTS FOR CUB SCOUT LEADERS 
 


1. Plan your meetings far enough ahead to allow time to gather 
materials needed. Set goals that you want to accomplish 
during the year. Outline your program for the year and plan 
ahead to involve as many people as possible. Plan each 
meeting ahead of time. You might find it valuable to plan next 
week’s meeting after just completing a meeting.  


2. Always have a plan B.  Each group of  boys will be different.   
Activities that thrilled one den may bore another, and when they get bored they get rowdy. If 
they are showing signs of boredom, drop the activity, go to plan B, and you will rarely have 
discipline problems.  


3. If you plan an outdoor activity, always have an alternative indoor activity planned.  


4. Transitions from one activity to the next are easiest if the meeting is planned so that the next 
activity is always preferred to the current one. For example, we begin with opening 
ceremonies that reinforce the values of Scouting (boring to the boys), then go to 
advancement activities (less boring but not as much fun as games which come next). After 
games we go to snack time (they are always willing to stop what they are doing for snack)! I 
use the fact that they have their hands full and their mouths full as the best opportunity for 
announcements and reminders. Their parents are beginning to show up, and it doesn't hurt 
that parents are also hearing the announcements and reminders.  It also helps to keep those 
impatient parents from grabbing the Cub and leaving before the closing ceremony, since they 
intuitively understand that they should not take their child away during announcements.  


5. Don't try to carry the entire load yourself. In Tiger, Wolf and Bear dens the family unit is 
central to the forming of the Cub Scout Den, and activities revolve around the family unit. 
Get other parents involved. Help them realize it is their program and then depend on them to 
lend expertise on aspects of the program. Invite them to attend by determining their interests 
and using them.  


6. Leadership is developed and learned. You can become an effective Cub Scout Leader if you 
will prepare yourself and take the time to learn. Remember to be flexible in your planning. 
There are no set answers to handling boys. Don't be afraid to experiment.  


7. Get trained! Start out with the Cub Scout Den Leader Fast Start video. It is very short and 
enjoyable to watch. After you get settled in, attend the Cub Scout Den Leader Basic Training 
in your District or Council. It is the best place to go to learn  Cub Scouting fundamentals.  


8. Understand the Cub Scout program so you can help the boys grow throughout the program. 
There are a lot of resources available to help you. One of your best resources is the monthly 
district Cub Leader Roundtable, where you can exchange ideas with other Cub Scout 
Leaders.  


9. Do your best and have fun!!! 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER HELPS AND HINTS (cont) 


 
Program Resources for Cub Scout Leaders 
(BSA document number in parenthesis)  


• Bear Cub Scout Book (33228)  


• BSA Family Book (33012)  


• Cub Scout Fun Book (33215)  


• Cub Scout Leader How-To Book 
(33831)  


• Cub Scout Magic Book (33219)  


• Cub Scout Songbook (33222)  


• Den Chief Handbook (33211)  


• Group Meeting Sparklers (33122)  


• Guide to Safe Scouting (10212)  


• Insignia Guide (33064)  


• Cub Scout Den Leader Fast Start 
(video) (AV-015)  


• Cub Scout & Webelos Scout 
Program Helps  


• Staging Den and Pack Ceremonies 
(33212)  


• Wolf Cub Scout Book (33234)  


• Webelos Den Activities (33853)  


• Webelos Scout Book (33235)  
(See www.usscouts.org/cubscouts) 


 
 
 


Den Leader Survival Kit 
 


• Tea Bag  to let you know you are “Tea-riffic” 
 


• Bandaid  for all the aid you provide 
 


• Lifesaver to remind you that you’re appreciated a 
“hole” lot 
 


• 2 Pennies so you have the “cents” to realize how  
valuable you are 
 


• Mint  to remind you that we’re thankful for 
your commit-“mint” 
 


• Tootsie roll for the important “roll” you play 
 


• Paper Clip for keeping things organized 
 


• Crayon  to color your days cheerful and bright 
 


• Rubber Band to remind you to stay flexible 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN & PACK RECOGNITION 
 
 
Recognition is the acknowledgment of the validity of someone’s 
contribution! 
 
In scouting we build boys into men by helping them gain self-esteem, 
character, self-reliance, self-confidence, and self-respect by recognizing 
them for their accomplishments. In this same way we can recognize adult 
leaders and receive the same results. 
 
Many behavioral studies have indicated similar results. People want and 
need two things. First, people need recognition from those in charge (their leaders) and second, 
they need recognition in front of their peers. Interestingly enough, people don’t care what this 
recognition is, as long as the two needs are met. People like to be recognized for their 
achievements and involvement. It gives them a sense of worth as an individual and helps give 
them ownership in the success of the program. 
 
Cub Scouting would not be in operation if we didn’t have adults involved in the program. When 
we recognize these adult leaders, we are letting them know that we appreciate their service. 
Often these leaders will go beyond the regular service asked of them and earn awards for their 
position (a.k.a. Den Leader award, Cubmaster award, or Cub Scouter award). Let’s not keep it a 
secret. Let’s share the good news with those they are involved with. Most important, let’s tell our 
leaders “THANK YOU” FOR A JOB WELL DONE. Boys like to see their leaders receive 


recognition. What a great example!! 
 


WHO---WHAT---WHERE---WHEN---DO WE RECOGNIZE? 
 


We should recognize all leaders involved in the program! We should make sure that all leaders 
receive their recognition for the position they hold . They may be recognized for their 
achievements by serious awards: plaques, certificates, medals, trophies, pins, scout items, 
ribbons; or not so serious (pun and fun) awards: stickers, play on words, homemade items, or 
whatever materials are at hand. We may recognize these leaders at any scout meeting (pack 
meeting, roundtable, district or council events), community meetings, church meetings, or 
through the news media. We should recognize these leaders immediately. The best recognition 
is when the fire is hot, so don’t wait! When leaders are given recognition, they will feel part of 
the group, want to stay involved, and will want to do a better job in the future.  
 
One small word of warning . When recognition is given in profusion or when it is undeserved,d it 
loses its meaning. 
 
Not so serious recognition is fun and very easy to make. This type of recognition is usually 
presented in a quick, non-formal setting in front of a group. These include stickers, play on 
words, homemade items, or just about anything you may have on hand. You can open a drawer 
or look around the house and find something you can put a saying to, then go to 
the computer or write on a card the saying, and there you have a quick and easy 
recognition. On the following pages, in alphabetical order, are examples. 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN & PACK RECOGNITION (cont) 
 


Recognition A to Z 
 


A W A R D   T I T L E    H O W   T O   M A K E   I T 
Apple – You have great “APPEAL”    Real or plastic apple 
Airplane – You really helped us fly    Airplane  
Ball – You’re on a roll     Ball 
Car – Thanks for providing transportation   Toy car or van 
Chair – Thank you for chairing the event   Doll chair 
Chair – Thank you for chairing (caring)   Doll chair 
Chips – For being there when the chips were down  Bag of chips 
Cookie – We’re fortunate to have you   couple fortune cookies 
Cream – You are the cream of the crop   Can of whipping cream 
Deck of cards – We like the way that you dealt 


 with the situation     Deck of cards 
Dew – Dew your best      Can of Mountain Dew 
Diamond – Diamond in the rough    Piece of charcoal 
Donut – We donut know what we’d do without you  Box of donuts 
Elephant – You never forget     Elephant toy, picture  
Fan – You’re Fantastic     Fan 
First class – First class job     First class envelope 
Flashlight – You’re a shining example   Flashlight 
Fur – You give us that warm fuzzy feeling   Piece of fake fur 
Gem – You’re a gem      Gem or rock 
Glue – Thank you for sticking with it   Tube of glue 
Good and plenty – You have plenty of good ideas  Box good and plenty candy 
Grater –You’re Great     Cheese Grater 
Heart – Thank you from the bottom of my heart  Heart – Thank You at bottom 
Heart – You’re the heart of cub scouting   Blue & Yellow heart beads 
Heart of Gold – You have a heart of gold   Heart made of gold paper 
Hugs – We all wanted to give you hugs   Bag of Hershey’s hugs 
Ice Cream – I scream without your help   Container of ice cream 
Jigsaw Puzzle – With you everything fits together  Puzzle pieces 
Key - You’re the key to our success    Key 
Kiss – Kiss of perfection     Bag of Hershey’s kisses 
Lifesavers – You’re a lifesaver    Roll of lifesavers 
Light Bulb – Thank you for your good ideas  Light bulb  
Magnet – Magnetic personality    Magnet 
Match – You’re matchless     Matchbox 
Mirror – Reflection of the best    Mirror 
Needle and thread – You keep us in stitches  Needle and thread 
Newspaper – Thanks a bundle    Newspaper bundle 
Owl - You give a hoot     Owl figurine, picture 
Pail – Others pale by comparison    Small pail 
Pencil – You’re sharp and to the point   Sharpened pencil 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN & PACK RECOGNITION (cont) 
 
Pennies – Thanks for putting in your two cents  Two pennies 
Pepsi – You’re full of Pep     Pepsi bottle 
Picture – Picture perfect job     Framed picture 
Price Tag – You’re Priceless     Use a blank price tag 
Queen – You did a royal job     Crown 
Range – Thanks for making all the A-range-ments  Toy range or stove  
Rock – You rock      Rock 
Sewing kit – You hold the pack together   Small sewing kit 
Shoe – You keep us in step     Toy shoe (or shoe from DI) 
Shoelace - You tie it all together    Shoelace 
Soup – You did a “soup” er job    Can of soup 
Spatula – Good Turn      Miniature spatula 
Spark plug – You’re a champion    Champion spark plug box 
Stamp – Stamp of Approval     Use a postage stamp 
Tack – You’re sharp as a tack    Tack 
Tees – You’re above par     Use colored golf tees 
Treasure –You’re a treasure     Bag of chocolate gold coins 
Two liter – You do the work of two leaders   2 liter bottle 
Uno – You know your stuff     Uno candy bar 
Whopper – A whopper of a job    Whopper candy  
Wonder Bread – You’re wonderful    Loaf of wonder bread 
World – You’ve done a World of good   Small globe 
Zoo – You’re zoo-pend-ous     Miniature zoo animals 


 
 


 
 


O T H E R  C R E A T I V E   W A Y S   O F   
 S A Y I N G “T H A N K   YO U!” 


 
 


BIG SIZE CANDY BAR – An “Enormous” Thank you to you! You did a great job 
SYMPHONY CANDY BAR – Just a “Note” of Thanks! We love having you on our “Staff”!!  
JAM – Thanks for helping out when I was in a “Jam” I really appreciated it!!\ 
POPCORN BALLS – You are really on the “Ball”! Thank you for all your help!! 
M & Ms – Thanks for a “Marvelous” and “Most” wonderful job well done!! 
100 GRAND CANDY BAR – A “Grand” Thank you for all you do! You’re worth a million!! 
HEART SHAPE (card, cookies, etc.) – Thank you from the bottom of my “Heart”! I love 
everything you do for me!! 
BERRY PIE – Just stopping by with a ‘Pie’ and a ‘Berry’ big ‘Thank you’ for all you do!! 
JELLY BEANS – Thank you for ‘Bean’ there when you were needed! I really appreciate all 
your help!! 
 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN & PACK RECOGNITION (cont) 
 


 
NUTS, NUT ROLL, OR NUT CLUSTERS – There’s “Nuttin” like 
good help! Thank you so much for all you do!! 
RICE KRISPIE TREATS – Snap, Crackle, Pop, I really think you’re 


tops! Thanks for all your help!! 
FUDGE – I’m not ‘Fudge In’ when I say you’re Great! Thanks for all you do!!  
NUTTER BUTTER COOKIES – There’s “Nutter Butter” friend around! Thanks for always 
being there!! 
MINTS, JUNIOR MINTS, OR YORK PATTIES – These are “Mint” to thank you for 
everything! You’re great!! 
LIFESAVERS – You’ve been a real “Lifesaver”! I couldn’t have done it without you! Thanks 
so much!! 
ANY LITTLE SOMETHING – Here’s a little something for a friend who’s 
really great.  You are extra special and I think you’re first rate! Thanks for 
all you do!! 
ALMOND JOY CANDY BAR – You are a “Joy” to be around  
and so easy to work with! Thanks for all your help!! 
MOUNDS CANDY BAR – “Mounds” of Thanks for a job well done!! 
LOAF OF BREAD – You never “Loaf” around! You get in and get the job done! Thank you!! 
ANYTHING SCENTED – Thank you for a “Scent-sational” job well done!! 
CANDLE – “Bright” idea you had! Thanks for all your help!! 
PACK OF GUM – Thanks for helping me out of a “Sticky” situation! I really appreciate it!! 
BUNCH OF ANYTHING (flowers, balloons etc.) – Thanks a “Bunch”! You were a big help!! 
SODA POP – You “Popped” right to it, so I’d “Soda” like to Thank you! 
DOUBLE STUFF OREOS – Thanks for letting me borrow your “Stuff”! It really helped me 
out!! 
BUBBLE BATH – I’m “Bubbling” over with praise for you! You did an exceptional job!! 
Thank you!! 
DONUTS – “Donut” you know what a “Sweetie” you are! Thanks for all you do!! 
NESTLE TREASURES – I “Treasure” your friendship! Thanks so much!! or I “Treasure” how 
willing you always are to help out! I really appreciate it!! 
CINNAMON OR ORANGE ROLLS – You “Rise” to the occasion every time! We couldn’t do 
it without you! Thanks for all you do!! 
STARBURSTS – You “Burst” on the scene every time! Thanks for your help!! 
LOOK – “Look” what a great job you did! Thanks for taking over and getting the job done!! 
REESES PEANUT BUTTER CUPS – There are many “Reeses” why you need to be Thanked! 
You’re the best!! 
IDAHO SPUD – “Ida-hoped” that you would know how much I appreciate you! Thanks for all 


you do!! 
ANIMAL CRACKERS – This place would be a “Zoo” without you! 
Thanks for being such a great teacher!! 
HERSHEY’S HUGS – You deserve a big “Hug” for all you do! “Hugs” 
and Thanks to you!! 


HERSHEY’S KISSES – Lots of “Smacks” for all you do! Thank you!! 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN & PACK RECOGNITION (cont) 
 
TOOTSIE ROLLS – We are on a “Roll” because of you “Tootsie”! Thanks for all your great 
ideas!! 


SNICKERS – We can’t “Snicker” at the great job you did! Thanks for a job well 
done!!  
POPCORN – Thanks for “Popping” right to it and getting the job done!! 
MILKY WAY CANDY BAR – No “Way” could we have done it without you! 
Thanks for all of your help!! 


BAG OF PRETZELS STICKS – You “Stick” to a job and really “Crunch” it out in 
style! Thanks for all your time!! 
ANYTHING COLD – You are really “Cool”! Thanks for all you do, I really appreciate it!! 
COOKIES – I would have lost my “Cookies” had you not stepped in and helped out! Thanks so 
much!! 
FIDDLE FADDLE POPCORN – I’m not “Fiddling around when I say Thank you! You are so 
sweet!! 
BUTTERFINGER CANDY BAR – You “Butter” know how great we think you are! Thanks 
for sharing your time and talents with us!! 
NESTLE PRETZEL FLIPZ – We “Flipped” over the great job you did! or I “Flip over” the 
great job you do!! Thanks for all your help!! 
ORANGES OR CHOCOLATE ORANGE – “Orange” you the greatest! Thanks for all you 
do!! 
BUNDLE OF ANYTHING TIED UP – Thanks a “Bundle”!! 
SLICE SODA OR CHOCOLATE ORANGE – Any way you “Slice” it, I really think you’re 
great! Thanks for all you do!! 
ROOTBEER – I’m “Root’in” and “Hoot’in” with praise for you! 
You did a great job! Thank you!! 
PIZZA – You add “pizz-az” to everything you do! Thanks for all 
you do!!  
BAGELS AND CREAM CHEESE – I’m “Spreading” lots of praise around because you’ve 
done such a wonderful job! I can’t Thank you enough. 
CRUNCH CANDY BAR – You “Crunched” it out so fast and with such class! Thanks … 
you’re the best!! 
SMARTIES – You are a “Smartie”! Thanks so much for all your help!! 
CARMEL APPLES OR CARMEL APPLE POPS – You did an “Apple-ing” job! You 
“Popped” right to it! Thank you!! 


SPRITE – You are “Sprite” in so many ways! I couldn’t have done it without 
you! Thank you!! 
7-UP – There are 7 reasons why you are on the top of my list! (list 7 reasons) 
Thanks for all you do to help out. 
BOUQUET OF COOKIES OR FLOWERS – Here’s a “Bouquet” of 
appreciation “Blooming” with a big Thank You for all you do!! You’re great!! 
TWIZZLER LICORICE – I would have had a “Twizzy” fit had you not 
stepped in and helped me out! Thank you so much!! 
CHOCOLATE CHIP COOKIES OR POTATO CHIPS – When the “Chips” 
are down, you always pitch in and help out! Thanks so much!! 


 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PROPS AND CEREMONY EQUIPMENT 
 


ACHIEVEMENT STAND 
Base 


 
 
 
Supplies 
  
• ½" or 3/4" thick plywood 
• 1 - 2" x 2" board 48" long 
• 1 - 2" x 4" board 8 foot long                  
• 2" x 4" - 6 feet long 
• Nails or deck screws 
• Paint 
• Bobcat, Wolf, Bear, Webelos and 


Arrow of Light decals (available at 
the Scout Shops) 


 
 
Instructions 
 
• Cut one 24" x 25" piece out of plywood for the top. 
• Cut four 12" x 24" pieces out of plywood for the front, back, right and left side. 
• Cut four 2" x 2" boards 8 ½" long for corner bracing. 
• Attach 2" x 2" to 12" side pieces edge, flush with edge and even with bottom edge. 
• Use screw or nails--deck screws can be tightened if they come loose. 
• Attach the front piece to the 2" x 2" (attached to the sides) with the corner even with the 


plywood to create a nice square corner. 
• Screw or nail together. 
• Attach the back 12" x 24" piece to the three other pieces at the 2" x 2" and secure with 


screws. 
• Cut 3 - 2" x 4" x 23" long piece for bracing on top of 2" x 2" and secure one end to each 24" 


side of front and back pieces. 
• Now from the side of the box, screw into the middle ends of the 2" x 4". 
• Cut a hole in top of the 24" x 25" piece at the rear and center; cut the hole rectangular to fit 


the upright 2" x 4" approximately 1 ½" x 3 ½" with the long way to the front of box. 
• Test the fit of the 2" x 4" mast.   
• Attach top down to sides and front and now cut one 2" x 2" and attach to the bottom edge 


inside box and align with hole and attach mast piece at bottom.  







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PROPS AND CEREMONY EQUIPMENT (cont) 
 


 
ACHIEVEMENT STAND 


Mast 
 
 


• Cut one 2" x 4" piece 6 feet long. 
• Drill holes at 20 degree angle 1 1/4" deep. Use a 3/8" drill bit for the holes for 


the arrows to fit in. 
• Start drilling holes 16" down from top of mast. 
• Drill ½ the # of your largest den on one side, the other ½ on the opposite side. 
• Use the 1 ½" wide side of the 2" x 4" 


to drill the holes in. 
• Using the same board 8" lower, drill 


same # of holes again. 
• Repeat four times on each side of the 


1 ½" wide side. One side to represent 
each den. 


• You can drill your holes double wide 
for more arrows if needed. 


 
Attach Mast to Base  
• Attach mast through hole in base and 


secure with glue and screws to the 
inside of the 2" x 4" and 2" x 2" at the 
rear. 


• Cut 4 - 8" x 8" square pieces of 
plywood. Attach these pieces to the 
mast in the area of the drilled holes 
on the front edge. 


• Screw into place with the first 
diamond shape tip touching the 2nd 
diamond shape and so on until all 4 
are in place on mast. 


• These diamond shapes can be painted 
and then use the den decals to 
represent each den. 


• Cut 1 - 8" x 16" piece of plywood.  This piece will 
have the arrow of light decal on it. 


• Drill holes across the bottom edge of wood 1" apart 
and attach with screw to center front of mast. 


• Tie through hole, using leather stripes or boondoggle, 
anything you like to represent the boys that have 
earned their arrow of light award. 


• Paint achievement stand. 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 PROPS AND CEREMONY EQUIPMENT (cont) 
 


STAND FOR FLAG 
 
 
Supplies  
• 3/4" thick plywood 
• 12 - 2" deck or sheet rock screws 
• Paint 


 
 
 
Instructions 
• Cut four pieces out of 3/4" 


plywood from pattern for 
sides. This thickness is 
used for the base weight to 
keep flag from tipping 
over. 


• Drill 1/8" holes, 1" from 
both top and bottom edges 
and 1 ½" in from the 8" 
side. 


• Drill one more hole in the 
middle 1 ½" measurement 
from each of the two holes 
you just cut and 1 ½" in 
from the 8" side. 


• Use deck or sheet rock 
screws (deck screws are 
preferred). 


• Use 12 - 2" long screws in 
pre-drilled holes. 


• Attach two boards 
together, one board 1 1/4" 
from the 8 inch edge of 
the second board.   


• Continue with other 
boards to create four feet. 


• This will allow 1 1/4" 
square in center for flag 
pole. 


• Paint flag stand. 
PROPS AND CEREMONY 
EQUIPMENT (cont) 


 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


                                          BONFIRE 
 


Supplies     
• ½" or 7/16" thick plywood 
• 1 small dead wood log about 1 ½ " wide for legs to 


hold 
• fire off the ground     
• 1 - 110 volt electric desk fan (Plastic) 
• 4 - 6 dead wood logs 2 ½" to 3 ½ " in diameter 
• Black paint 
• 1 small strand of flashing Christmas lights  
• (any type) 
• Light switch (optional to turn on fan and lights) 
• Cellophane in 3 different colors (yellow, orange, red) 
• Twinkle trim fine orange tinsel* * 
• Deck strews 
• Staples and staple gun 
• Hot glue gun and hot glue 
 


Instructions 
• Cut one 12" x 12" square piece from plywood for base of  fire.      
• Drill 10 - 3/4" holes in a circle to allow ventilation for the fan. 
• Cut plastic clamp off of fan near motor to allow mounting to base of plywood. 
• Use deck screws to secure fan to center base of plywood.  Do not let screws go all the way 


through and stick out.  (This is a sharp edge!) 
• You will need 4 small logs 1 ½" in diameter that have been sawed in 1" long stubs. 
• Drill one 1/8" hole through the middle of all 4 logs and tighten screw to base of plywood on 


bottom, one log on all 4 corners for legs. 
• Cut 4 each of logs 9", 12" and 15" lengths. 
• Paint logs with watered down black paint to look like the logs have been burnt by the fire. 
• Assemble in log cabin form, three rows high. 
• Place the four 15" logs flat on base of plywood, creating a square. 
• Put screw in the end of log corners to hold tight to plywood base. 
• Repeat for row 2, using 12” logs,  and row 3 using 9” logs.  Secure each row to the previous 


row using deck screws. 
• Staple the Christmas lights wiring to inside of logs with cord to outside for plug. 
• Staple cellophane flame shapes around the outside of the fire to the logs and the inside top 


rim of the top row of logs. 
• Use orange twinkle trim tinsel to resemble ash to fill in gaps at bottom of fire. 
• Attach with hot glue or staple gun. 
 
Optional Uses:  Put a camp grill over the top of the campfire for the appearance of cooking in 
the outdoors, or place a hook in one of the logs and attach a Dutch oven over the fire. 
 
** Twinkle Trim, called ‘Boobats’,  is usually only available at Halloween at craft stores such as 
Mac’s or Robert’s.  Another option is to buy orange metallic gift wrap and cut it yourself. 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PROPS AND CEREMONY EQUIPMENT (cont) 
 


CEREMONIAL CAMPFIRE 
 


Supplies     
• ½" or 7/16" thick plywood 
• 1 small dead wood log about 1 ½ " wide for legs 


to hold fire off the ground  
• 1 - 110 volt eclectic desk fan (Plastic) 
• 4 - 6 dead wood logs 2 ½" to 3 ½ " in diameter 


and at least 15” long. 
• Black paint 
• 1 small strand of flashing Christmas lights  
• (any type) 
• Light switch (optional to turn on fan and lights) 
• Cellophane in 3 different colors (yellow, orange 


and red). Cut in flame shapes. 
• Twinkle Trim fine orange tinsel (**see 


‘Bonfire’ for further details on where to buy.) 
• Deck strews 
• Staples and staple gun 
• Hot glue gun and hot glue 
 
Instructions 
• Cut one 15" x 15" square piece from plywood for fire base.     
• Drill 10 - 3/4" holes in a circle to allow ventilation for the fan. 
• Cut plastic clamp off of fan near motor to allow mounting to base of plywood. 
• Use deck screws to secure fan to center base of plywood.  Do not let screws go all the way 


through and point out, this is a sharp edge! 
• For the legs, you will need 4 small logs 1 ½" to 2 ½”in diameter.  Saw into 1" long stubs. 
• Drill one 1/8" hole through the middle of all 4 logs and tighten screw to base of plywood on 


bottom, one log on all 4 corners for legs. 
• Cut four logs, 2 each of  9" and 15" lengths.   
• Place the 9" and the 15" logs on opposite sides from each other, ends meeting, flat to base of 


plywood (see picture above). 
• Put screws in end of log corners to hold tight to plywood base. 
• Cut eight logs varying in length from 6” to 15" in length, then split them with an axe the long 


way to make 15-16 logs. 
• Paint logs with watered down black paint to look like the logs have been burnt by the fire. 
• Place the split logs around sides in a teepee shape on top of base logs. 
• Use screws to secure each log to base log and to secure top log ends to each other.  
• Make sure to leave a few logs off until you have installed the Christmas lights inside. 
• Staple the Christmas lights wiring to inside of logs with cord to outside for plug. 
• Attach the remaining logs to complete the fire. 
• Staple cellophane flame shapes around the outside of the fire to the logs.  
• Use orange twinkle trim tinsel to resemble ash to fill in gaps at bottom of fire. 
• Attach with hot glue or staple gun. 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CEREMONY HELPS FOR LEADERS 
 


Tips for Building Good Ceremonies 
 
 
COORDINATION:  Plan ahead.  Anticipate each step in the ceremony, prepare props, tell each 
person involved what to expect. 
 
CREATIVITY: Relate your ceremony to the theme of the month.  Have the participants identified 
with the theme through action, narration and costume.  
 
DELEGATION:  Don't try to do everything yourself.  Rely on others to help, but be aware of what 
they are doing. 
 
DIGNITY:  Maintain dignity to show respect for Scouting and to hold the attention of the audience. 
 
IMAGINATION:  Get showmanship into the act.  Use dramatic flair in producing your ceremonies 
and props. Use lighting, music, props, & other means to get the audience into a receptive frame of 
mind. 
 
INSPIRATION:  Use inspirational thoughts, related to Scouting's ideals, in your ceremonies. 
 
PARTICIPATION:  Bring parents into the ceremony with their sons.  It is through participation 
that boys develop poise, self-reliance, and confidence. 
 
SIMPLICITY:  KISMIF.  Keep it simple, make it fun.  This is as appropriate for ceremonies as for 
all parts of scouting. Use low cost, easily found materials and costumes. (For example, a blanket and 
feather easily create an Indian Brave).  
 
SPECIAL:  Honor one boy at a time, ensuring that he feels it was his special recognition. 
 
STAGING:  Imagine how the ceremony looks from a seat in the audience.  Recipients of awards 
should be centered.  Use a public address system if possible.  Make certain all can see (use a stage if 
possible at Pack Meeting.) 
 
SYMBOLS:  Use props to represent deeper meanings or values.  A light can be the spirit of 
scouting; a paper chain can be unity; a target can represent "hitting the mark". 
 
VARIETY:  Avoid repeating the same ceremony meeting after meeting, either in the den or in the 
pack, no matter how well it seems to be received. 
 
 


 
 


 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CEREMONY HELPS (cont) 
 
SUGGESTED BASIC FLAG CEREMONY 
(Modified from Cub Scout Ceremonies for Dens and Packs, page 4-4.  
by C. Clay Crowley) 
 
     Narrator’s Command                                     Actions                                            
 


     The U.S. flag should be at the back of the room on the right of 


    the audience with the pack flag on the left.  If the flags are 
    coming down the center isle, then the U.S. flag is followed by 
    the pack flag and then the flag guards.  Flag bearers always go 
    first. 


 
Color guard, attention.      The color guard comes to attention at the back of the room and 


     waits for the audience to be quiet. 
 
Will the audience please rise.   Wait for the audience to stand and be quiet. 
 
Color guard, present colors.     The flag bearers and guards march down the isles and cross in 


     front of the audience, which puts the U.S. flag on the speaker’s 
     right.  They stand near their flag stands facing the audience and 
     holding the flags vertically with the pack flag slightly lower 
     than the U.S. flag.  


 
Hand salute.      Everyone except the flag bearers and guards salutes.  


     Only those in uniform salute with the fingers of the right hand 
     touching their eyebrow or brim of Boy Scout hat.  All others 
     place their right hand over their heart. 


 
Please repeat with me the      Everyone except the color guard repeats the Pledge of 
Pledge of Allegiance.      Allegiance.  Try to say it in the five phrases as written: 


      I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, 
      and to the republic for which it stands, 
      one nation under God, 
      indivisible, 
      with liberty and justice for all. 


 
Two.      Everyone drops their salute.  The pack flag returns to its vertical 


     position. 
 
Color guard, post colors.      The pack flag is placed in its stand first and the bearer steps 


     back into place.  The U.S. Flag bearer then posts his flag, steps 
     back into place, and both he and his guard salute the flag. 


 
The audience may be seated.    The audience sits down. 
 
Color guard, dismissed. The U.S. flag guard leads the procession to the back of the 


room,  with the narrator following last.  
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BUILDING PARENT & FAMILY PARTICIPATION 
 
"Parents won't cooperate is an oft-repeated statement.  In some cases this 
may be true, but most parents will cooperate.  In fact, most of our parent 
trouble is our own fault.  Believe it or not, parents want to help.  You must, 
however, tell them specifically what you want them to do, and what you 
expect of them. 


 
How do we communicate pack needs?   
We can do this in three ways: 


1. Orient families of new cub scouts as they come into the pack (See Orientation Packet 
Ideas below) 


2. Keep parents informed through monthly newsletters from den and pack 
3. Hold  annual den and pack Parent's Meetings. 


 
 
Suggested Items for Orientation Packet  
(give to new boys and parents as enter pack) 
 
1. Registration form for boy and adults 
2. Parent-talent survey 
3. List of Bobcat requirements. 
4. Letter listing Pack/Parent responsibilities, uniform, 


and handbook requirements.  
5. Names and Phone #s of pack leadership 
6. Dates, times, and locations of den meeting, pack meeting. 
 
 
Sample Agenda for Pack Adults Meeting 
(Held at Pack Meeting in Sept. or Oct.  See Cub Leader Book, 2001 p. 24-11.) 
 
1. Pre-opening  (register, name tags, activities and games.) 
2. Opening (pledge, introductions, song) 
3. Adults meeting (30 minutes--Boys plays games with den chiefs or den leaders in other room) 


a. Review family responsibilities (see Sample Letter next page or Cub Leader Book p. 5-1) 
b. Review plans for year--give every family a yearly calendar 
c. Discuss leadership needs for yearly activities--sign 


parents up for various jobs.  REMEMBER, "Every family 
should have a job." 


d. Discuss other pack concerns (budget, discipline, 
uniforms, fund raiser) 


e. Possibly discuss the Family Award and Requirements. 
f. If desired, have Chartered Representative discuss needs 


and concerns 
g. Question and Answer period. 


4. Boys return, continue Pack Meeting format. 
5. Closing 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BUILDING PARENT PARTICIPATION (cont) 
 


SAMPLE LETTER TO USE AT ORIENTATION OR A PARENT’S MEETING 
 
 
WELCOME TO THE WONDERFUL WORLD OF CUB SCOUTING!  Scouting is a 
Partnership, and parents and the pack together create success. 
 
PACK'S RESPONSIBILITY: 
1. Provide well-planned year-round activities to meet each boy's needs and the aims of scouting 
2. Provide qualified, enthusiastic leadership. 
3. Provide orientation for parents and keep them informed. 
4. Provide activities to strengthen the family as they work and play together. 
 
FAMILY'S RESPONSIBILITY: 
1. Help your son pass off his achievements and electives, then sign his book and have him bring 


it to den meetings. (Parent’s don’t sign Webelos books; however, be aware of progress.) 
2. Help your son attend scout activities; have him arrive and leave on time. 
3. Attend monthly Pack Meetings with your son. 
4. Participate in advancement ceremonies at Pack Meeting.   
5. Support pack and den activities (help with transportation, refreshments, den & pack 


activities, or serve on the Pack Committee.) 
6. Encourage your son in fund-raising.  This will help him attend a great summer camp! 
 
COST OF SCOUTING:  There is a national registration fee. (Some chartered organizations 
cover this cost.)  Packs will pay for advancements and other needs through den dues or Chartered 
Organization funds. Your boy will need to earn the cost of his summer camp, either on his own 
or through a fundraiser, unless this cost is covered by the Charter Organization.  You will need to 
help your boy get a uniform and handbook as soon as possible. Uniforms should be worn to all 
den and pack activities . 
 
PACK UNIFORM: Our pack uniform includes the blue shirt with patches (council strip, Pack 
numbers, and Den #).  Also, blue denim pants, Cub Scout belt, and neckerchief (gold/wolf, 
blue/bear, plaid/Webelos).  Uniforms and books are available at the Boy Scout Service Centers. 
 
Your son is in Den _________, Pack _________________,  


District ____________________________,  #______, Great Salt Lake Council. 


The Den Leader is _____________________________Phone #_______________  


Den meetings are held at _____________________________________________.   


Pack meeting is held________________________________ at ___________P.M.   


Pack Meeting location is _____________________________________________ 


 


WE ARE EXCITED TO HAVE YOU IN OUR PACK!! 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


BUILDING PARENT PARTICIPATION (cont) 
 


PARENT INVOLVEMENT IN THE PACK 
 


1. Easy come, easy go--some packs require at least one parent registered and on the committee 
or at least accepting an assignment.  Hold a parent's meeting as soon as possible to orient 
parents to their responsibilities and to enlist help. 


2. Dad and Badge--they go together.  Dad and/or mom pins the badge on 
the boy during induction and advancements. 


3. Ignorance is not bliss--discuss pack problems at regular parent's 
meetings. 


4. Everyone works--appoint parents to committees developing monthly 
themes or other assignments so they are all involved at least once a year. 


5. A stitch in time--contact 'delinquent' parents quickly. 
6. No gems in the rough, shining unseen--checkup on talents and trades of parents and use 


them (use Parent-Talent Survey Form). 
7. Foresight is better than hindsight--look ahead, plan your program a year in 


advance. 
8. Blow your own horn--it pays to advertise.  Be sure people know about your 


pack program.  Use local papers, your Chartered Organization Newspaper, or 
start your own Pack Newsletter. 


9. It’s sugar that attracts flies--keep pack meetings lively, creative, and recognize parent 
attendance; also recognize parents who help with various events and projects. 


 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT IN THE DEN 


 
1. 1. Recruit in haste, repent at leisure--have the parent of a new Cub Scout   


come with him to one of the first den meetings he attends.  The parent will 
appreciate you, the Den Leader, much more. 


2. What you don't know may hurt you--get acquainted with parents.  Knowledge and 
friendship lead to respect, understanding, and loyalty. 


3. Misery loves company--Make certain to invite parents to come along on den outings. 
4. In members there is strength--promote social meetings for parents on a den basis (at least 


once in Spring & Fall) 
5. Don't hide your light under a bushel--discuss den problems and plans at group parent 


meetings, call parents regularly to remind and inform, and send home notes periodically with 
upcoming events outlined.   


6. Don't be a dog in the manger--share the load.  Ask other parents to help in making and 
furnishing equipment and properties for den stunts, skits, etc. 


7. A group that plays together, stays together—invite parents to attend den activities. 
8. Have 'em sign on the dotted line--be sure parents are helping boys with achievements and 


signing their books. (Remember, Webelos must have their books signed by their leader.) 
9. Strut your stuff--promote attendance of parents at pack meetings.  Strive for 100% turn out. 
10. Be specific--when they know what you want or need, then they can 


help you. 
11. It's the best show in town--when you have an organized, fun 


program, everyone will want to come and have a good time.







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 


 
                    THE VOLUNTEER’S DILEMMA 


 
I love my children, I’m telling you,  
And I know there’s a lot of work to do 
In scouts, and brownies, and PTA,  
But frankly, I just can’t get away.   
 
At the end of a day, I’m tired, you know,  
Just want to go out and see a show, 
Or watch TV or play some bridge 
I’m just too tired to mess with kids. 
 
And speaking of kids, you know that crime 
Is on the increase all the time? 
They ought to do something, maybe at school  
To teach the kids to respect the rule. 
 
Or perhaps the church should do more good 
And teach them to act the way they should. 
I can’t understand why they act that way, 
Something’s wrong, somewhere, I venture to say. 
 
I send my kids to scouts and such, 
But it really doesn’t help too much, ‘cause 
They don’t appreciate good things at all. 
I used to be a scout when I was small. 
 
They need more volunteers, you say? 
Must be plenty around—must be some way 
To interest parents in worthwhile work, 
That’s something no one has a right to shirk. 
 
Well, I hope they find someone, I’m telling you. 
My kids need a leader to look up to. 
They need someone to direct their play. 
It’s really a shame I can’t get away. 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


QUALITY STANDARD FOR CUB SCOUTING IN 
GREAT SALT LAKE COUNCIL 


(i.e. Cheers, Songs, Skits, Stunts, Games, and Ceremonies) 
 
 
The Great Salt Lake Council emphasizes “positive place” in Cub Scouting. Any Cub Scouting 
activity should be a positive atmosphere where boys can feel emotionally secure and find 
support, not ridicule, from their peers and leaders. Activities should be positive, meaningful, and 
help teach the ideals and goals of Scouting.  


1. Cub Scouting activities should reflect the aims of Scouting: character, citizenship, and 
personal fitness. 


2. Cheers, songs, skits, stunts, games, and ceremonies should be positive, build confidence 
and self esteem, and be appropriate for Cub Scout age boys. 


3. To encourage citizenship and respect for patriotic ideals, lyrics should not be changed to 
the following patriotic songs  


1. America  
2. America the Beautiful  
3. God Bless America  
4. The Star - Spangled Banner 


4. No name calling, put downs, hazing, or physical harm is permitted. 


5. During any Cub Scouting activity or presentation, derogatory references to ethnic or 
cultural backgrounds, economic situations, and disabilities, are not acceptable. Bathroom 
humor is also discouraged.  


 
References: Cub Scout Leader Book , 2001 p. 29-8 


        Guide to Safe Scouting , Ch. 1 p. 2 
        Cub Scout Ceremonies for Dens and Packs 


 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prohibiting BOBCAT CEREMONY  
of turning boys upside down to receive Bobcat pin 


 
 
Information is from Daniel R. Ruth, Associate Director of Health & Safety, National BSA:  
 
"For several years, the Cub Scout Division has been trying to discourage the use of the Bobcat 
ceremony in which boys are physically turned upside down. There are several reasons for this 
ruling:  
 


1. It has a strong possibility of being frightening to some boys.  
 
2. It smacks of adult harassment of kids.  


 
3. It makes a frivolous occasion of what should be a solemn, dignified ceremony.  


 
4. It carries a real potential for injury.  


 
5. There is no Cub Scout basis to the ceremony. "Do a Good Turn Daily" is the Boy Scout 


slogan."  
 
(From letter dated September 26, 1997.)  
 
“These concerns may seem inconsequential, but to a young boy, they can be a big deal. There are 
many simple, or elaborate, ceremonies that can be used that will make the experience last forever 
in the memories of the Cub Scout and his family, and do not involve any risk. Cub Scouting 
should be a place where a boy can have fun and learn, without being ridiculed, pressured, or 
exposed to unnecessary risks.” 
 
 
Resource:  Guide to Safe Scouting, Ch. 1 p.2 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


EARNING ARROW POINTS 
 
 
 


• When a boy has completed 12 achievements to earn the Bear Badge, he may complete the 
remaining unused achievements as electives for earning Arrow Points.  This guideline 
does not apply to the Wolf Badge. 


 
• If a boy completes a project as an ACHIEVEMENT requirement to earn the Wolf or Bear 


badge, he may not use it again to earn Arrow Points.   
 


• Only designated elective requirements may be repeated to earn Arrow Points. 
 


• A boy may earn an unlimited number of Arrow Points. Several Wolf and Bear electives 
can be done more than once, but credit should only be given when the project has been 
done better and shows improvement over the previous one. 


 
• For Wolf Achievement 1, “Feats of Skill,” the following substitution can be made:  if a 


physician certifies that a Cub Scout’s condition for an indefinite amount of time won’t 
permit him to do three of the requirements, the Cubmaster and pack committee may 
authorize substitution of any three Arrow Point projects. 


 
• At the end of the school year, and once a boy moves to the next Cub Scouting level, he 


may not ‘go back’ and earn Arrow Points from the earlier rank. 
 
 
 
Resource:  Cub Scout Leader Book, 2001, p. 20-7 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


LDS RELATIONSHIPS AND CUB SCOUTING 
 
 


The Great Salt Lake Council adheres to the policies of Boy Scouts of America. The Great Salt 
Lake Council also supports Chartered Organizations in their right and responsibility to set 
procedures in implementing BSA policy. The Great Salt Lake Council does not interpret LDS 
policies.  
 


1. General questions relating to LDS policies should be referred to the green, LDS 
relationships handbook, "Scouting."  


 
2. Specific LDS questions relating to unit procedures should be referred to the Bishop or 


Bishopric Counselor responsible for Scouting.  
 


Some Examples of Questions that arise include:  
Den Dues 
Fund Raising  
Pack Budgets  
Primary Presidency Responsibilities  
Restricted Activities  
Tiger Cubs 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


TWO DEEP LEADERSHIP IN CUB SCOUTING 
 
 
 
DEN MEETINGS: 
 
One leader is necessary. Two leaders are highly recommended. 
 
Who Is Responsible? The Cub Scout den leader is responsible for seeing that weekly den 
meetings are planned and conducted. (CSLB pp. 23-10, 11, 13)  
 
The wise den leader will involve the other members of the den leadership team (assistant den 
leader and den chief) in the planning. (CSLB p. 20-2) 
 
Minimum requirement for a den meeting is one adult and two or more youth members.  
One-on-one contact between adults and youth members is not permitted.  
(CSLB p. 27-5; Guide Ch.1).  
 
 
TRIPS & OUTINGS: 
 
“Trips and outings may never be led by only one adult.  Two registered adult leaders or one 
registered adult leader and a parent of a participant, one of whom must be 21 years of age or 
older, are required for all trips and outings.’ (GSLB, p.32-7; Guide Ch. 1 p. 4) 
Both adults do not need to be in the same vehicle; however, in each vehicle, the minimum 
requirement is one adult and two or more youth members. Never allow one-on-one supervision.   
 
Resources:   Cub Scout Leader Book , 2001 (pages 8-1, 27-5, 32-6) 


 Guide to Safe Scouting, Ch.1 p. 4 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CUB SCOUT OUTDOOR ACTIVITIES 
& OVERNIGHT CAMPING 


 
1. Cub Scouts are encouraged to enjoy a variety of outdoor experiences.  Tiger Cubs and Cub 


Scouts are introduced to the outdoors through Den and Pack activities and advancement 
requirements.  They may participate in Cub Scout day camp, resident camp, council family 
camp, and pack overnighters. (CSLB p. 32-1) 


 
2. Pack Overnighters are pack-organized overnight events involving more than one family from 


a single pack.  Overnight camping as Tiger, Wolf, and Bear dens is not approved.  (Guide 
Ch. 3) 


 
3. Overnighters should be age appropriate and conducted at council-approved locations.  BSA 


Health and Safety Guidelines apply.   
 
4. Each youth member must be under the supervision of a parent of guardian. If a parent can’t 


attend, the family must arrange for a relative or friend to supervise. (CSLB p. 33-5) 
 
5. Adults giving leadership to a pack overnighter must complete Basic Adult Leader Outdoor 


Orientation (BALOO). 
 
6. Use the principles of ‘Leave No Trace” as guidelines for your Cub Scout camping 


experience. (CSLB p. 33-7) 
 
References:  Cub Scout Leader Book , 2001 pp. 32-1,3;  33-4-7 
  Guide to Safe Scouting, Ch. 3 
 
 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


WEBELOS OVER-NIGHT CAMPING 
 
1. Camping overnight with Webelos Scouts must follow BSA policies.  A tour permit must be 


filed with the council. One leader attending must be trained in Youth Protection. 
 
2. Joint Webelos den-troop campouts are encouraged for dens of fifth-grade boys with their 


parents to strengthen ties between the pack and troop.  
 
3. Webelos overnight camping  at Boy Scout District or Council Camporees and/or events is not 


a BSA-approved activity. (CSLB 21-9).  
 
4. Pack Committees, with the direction of their chartered representatives, may determine how 


many overnights are appropriate for their Webelos Scouts to attend.  
 
5. Every Webelos Scout should have a parent, or other adult relative or friend (but not the 


Webelos leader) accompanying him on the overnight. In some cases, twins or brothers may 
need to share the same adult.  (CSLB p. 21-9)  


 
6. When staying in tents, no youth will stay in the tent of an adult other than his parent or legal 


guardian.  (CSLB p. 21-10) 
 
7. The campout should include a planned program of activities -- some just for fun and others to 


help boys with advancement requirements. (CSLB p. 33-6) 
 
8. The Webelos overnights do not include backpacking. (CSLB p. 21-9) 
 
9. Webelos scouts should be experiencing family-type camping, as opposed to the more 


challenging type of camping they will experience as Boy Scouts. (CSLB p. 21-9) 
 
10. For weekend campouts that include Sunday, a non-denominational worship service is 


appropriate and recommended.  This service should be simple and brief. (CSLB p. 21-11) 
 
11. The safety rule of four applies: No fewer than four individuals (minimum 2 adults) go on any 


backcountry expedition or campout.  (See Guide to Safe Scouting, Chapter 1.) 
 
Resources:  Cub Scout Leader Book, 2001 (pp.  21-9-11; 33-4) 


Guide To Safe Scouting, Ch. 1 p. 2; Ch. 3; Ch. 10 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


TOUR PERMIT INFORMATION AND FORMS 
 
At least one registered adult who has completed BSA Youth Protection Training must be present 
at all events and activities that require a tour permit. 
 
The Great Salt Lake Council requires the use of a local tour permit for all overnight trips and all 
activities that are outside the Tooele County, Summit County, and Salt Lake County and South 
Davis County area.  
 
A tour permit can be obtained from the Scout Office, South Valley Scout Shop and/or Scout 
Shop West, and must be filed at any of these offices at least two weeks prior to the activity.  Be 
sure to checkout all of the Cub Scout guidelines for filing a tour permit. The tour permit, as well 
as the Cub Scout informed consent authorization form, are available to print out on the Council 
web site  
 
As a council, we will begin requiring proof of youth protection training as of February 1, 2003.  
If a tour permit is done in person, they must show a copy of the card for the person who has 
received youth protection training who will be at that event.  If by fax, they can fax in a copy of 
the person’s card.  If they do not have a card and have attended training, they should contact their 
District Executive to receive one.  If they have not been trained, they should contact their District 
Executive to be trained.  We can accept a tour permit without the verification, but a permit 
number will not be issued without the verification. 
 
Youth Protection Training is available on the council web site.  Go to www. gslc-bsa.org  for a 
link to this training.  A card will be printed out at the completion of the training. 
 
Resources:  2003 Local and National Tour Permits 
        Great Salt Lake Council website (www.gslc-bsa.org) 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


GREAT SALT LAKE COUNCIL, BSA 
GUIDELINES for LOCAL TOUR PERMITS  


AND INFORMED CONSENT AUTHORIZATIONS 
 
LOCAL TOUR PERMITS: 


The Great Salt Lake Council requires the use of a local tour permit for all overnight trips and for 
all activities outside the Tooele County, Summit County, Salt Lake County, and South Davis County 
areas. In addition, activities that need trained supervision, according to BSA Guidelines, also require a 
tour permit. These activities include:  


1. Aquatic activities that include swimming or boating.  
2. Shooting Sports activities such as BB-shooting, rifle shooting, black powder, or Archery.  
3. Climbing activities such as rock climbing or rappelling.  
 


The local tour permit is obtained from the Scout Office, South Valley Scout Shop and/or Scout Shop West, and must be 
filed at any of these offices prior to the activity. At least one registered adult who has completed BSA Youth Protection 
Training must be present at all events and activities that require a tour permit. 
 


The Council affirms all activities to be conducted in accordance with the safety considerations 
listed in the appropriate unit leader's handbook and in Health and Safety Guide No. 34415B and Guide to 
Safe Scouting No. 34416C, which states the policies of the Boy Scouts of America. The Great Salt Lake 
Council will not interpret or vary any National policy of the Boy Scouts of America.  


In planning events, unit leaders should ensure that only mature drivers, with safe driving records, 
provide transportation. Their driving records should demonstrate that they adhere to the laws of the state 
and that they are safe operators of a motor vehicle.  
 
INFORMED CONSENT AUTHORIZATIONS:  


Whenever units leave their designated meeting place for any activity or field trip, the unit 
leader should obtain an informed consent authorization like the one shown below. Great Salt Lake 
Council recommends that the standards of an informed consent authorization be used for the planning 
and safety considerations of any activity.  
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


INFORMED CONSENT AUTHORIZATION 
 
Name: ___________________________________________Unit: ____________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________ City, State, Zip: ______________________________ 
  
Phone: ________________________________Cell Phone: _________________________________ 
 
Purpose of Activity: _________________________________________________________________ 
  
Destination: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of Leader in Charge: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
In Emergency Notify: ___________________________ Phone: __________ Cell Phone: __________ 
 
Health Insurance Policy & Number: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Special Health Concerns: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
In consideration of the benefits to my child, I hereby give permission for him/her to attend and participate in the described activity. In 
the event of accident/ illness when it is impossible to contact me, I give the leader in charge authority to authorize whatever medical 
attention is deemed necessary, including injections, for the preservation of the health of my child.  
 
Signed: __________________________________________ Date: _________________________ 


(Parent or Guardian)  
Signed: __________________________________________ Date: ________________________ 


Parent of Guardian) For most activities, include second signature if available.  
Second Signature is necessary for climbing and "Trek-On" activities.) 


February 13, 2003 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 
 







Helps for Leaders 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 
 












Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Pack Leader Quiz   
Tiger Cub Basic   
Den Leader Basic   
Webelos Leader Basic  
Cubmaster Basic   
Pack Committee Basic  
Leader Awards   
Baden-Powell Message  



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


SCORING:  Score 10 points for each “b” answer and any on number 5. 
 
80 to 100 You have a winning attitude and the knowledge to succeed. 


50 to 70        Basic training and on-going training at Roundtables 
  will probably help you to enjoy your Scouting 
  experience more. 
0 to 40        You’re new here, right? 


 


 
 
 


WHAT’S YOUR PACK SAVVY?  
(A Quiz for Pack Leaders) 


 
 
 
1. The best way to get parents to come to Pack Meeting is: 


a. Lay on the guilt. 
b. Get them involved. 
c. Forget it – it doesn’t happen. 


 
2. The Cub Scouts will act appropriately at Pack Meeting: 


a. In your dreams. 
b. If you KISMIF. 
c. If you are really strict. 
 


3. The purpose of the monthly themes is: 
a. To drive the leaders crazy. 
b. To add variety and fun. 
c. Very obscure. 


 
4. Cub Scout aged boys have the attention span of: 


a. A weasel on meth. 
b. About one minute per each year of age. 
c. 40 to 60 minutes. 


 
5. A summertime program is:  


a. Strictly optional. 
b. A great opportunity for everyone involved. 
c. Your worst nightmare. 


 
 
 
 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WELCOME TO  
TIGER CUB BASIC TRAINING 


 
“SEARCH, DISCOVER, and SHARE”  


 
 
The Tiger Cub Program 
 
The Tiger Cub Program was developed in 1982 especially to meet the needs and desires of the 7-
year-old boy and his family. After field testing and approval, Tiger Cubs officially became part 
of the Boy Scouts of America. Tiger Cubs is a fun and simple program for the first-grade boy 
and his partner to share. It is based on the boy and his adult partner working and playing together 
to accomplish goals and achievements as outlined in the Tiger Cub Handbook. 
 
What Is a Tiger Cub? 
 
A Tiger Cub is a 7-year-old boy, or a boy who has finished kindergarten and is going into the 
first grade. He is curious, excited and enthusiastic about the world around him and eager to learn. 
 
Who Is a Tiger Cub Partner? 
 
A Tiger Cub partner is a father, mother, uncle, aunt, grandparent,  
sibling (must be 18 or over), or even a concerned and caring  
neighbor! The boy and his partner constitute a team. The most  
important thing that an adult partner can bring to ‘his’ team is a  
genuine caring and committed attitude toward his or her young 
Tiger! 
 
Does the Tiger Team Work Alone? 
 
No! The team works in conjunction with 5 to 9 other teams which, all together, form a Tiger Cub 
den. Taking turns hosting den meetings, planning activities, and working together to ensure that 
each boy earns his advancements is the goal of a successful Tiger Cub den! A trained Tiger Cub 
den leader works together with the adult partners to organize meetings, outings and to be the 
liaison with the Cub Scout pack. 
 
Where Do the Tigers Fit Into the Pack? 
 
The Tiger Cub den is the first encounter a boy can have with Cub Scouts. He has his own 
handbook, awards and achievements. At the ‘end’ of his Tiger Cub experience he can earn his 
Bobcat, setting him on the road to Wolves, Bears, Webelos, Boy Scouts and eventually, EAGLE 
SCOUT!  
 
 
 


 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


TIGER CUB BASIC TRAINING (cont.) 
 
What Is a Den Meeting? 
 
A den meeting is a weekly meeting of all Tiger Cub teams in the den along with the Tiger Cub 
den leader. The time, day, location, and agenda of the meeting are all planned in advance by the 
adult partners and the Tiger Cub den leader. The agenda may consist of activities, craft projects, 
or field trips. Each month the boys and adult partners will attend two den meetings, one Go See 
It, and a pack meeting. The Go See It outing may fulfill part of a Tiger Cub advancement 
requirement. The pack meeting is when the Tigers meet together with the rest of the Cubs for the 
pack meeting and awards will be presented. For more information on den and pack meetings 
refer to the Tiger Cub Handbook p. 9-13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What Is the Tiger Cub Motto and What Does It Mean? 
 
‘Search, Discover, Share.’ The motto refers to the methods used to help the Tiger Cub to grow 
and learn in his den. They share experiences, they discover talents and abilities, and they search 
out the fun things that the community and Cub Scouting have to offer. 
 
 
Do Tiger Cubs Have a Uniform? 
 
Yes! Tiger Cubs have their own uniform consisting of the official Tiger Cub orange T-shirt with 
the tiger emblem on the front. It is recommended that the adult partner also have a shirt but it is 
not required. The belt and hat are also optional for the boys, although the Tiger Cub belt totem 
and badge do require a belt to hang on. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
As the Tiger Cub and his partner work on his five 
achievements, five of the core values will be 
emphasized: Responsibility, Citizenship, Health and 
Fitness, and Faith.  As he completes work on his 
achievements, he will discover that he belongs to a 
much larger organization … 
 


The Boy Scouts of America!!!!! 


TIGER CUB BASIC TRAINING  (cont) 
 
What About Advancement? 
 
To begin his path to Tiger Cub rank, first the Tiger Cub must learn the Tiger Cub motto, ‘Search, 
Discover, Share.’ 
 
He must also learn the Cub Scout sign and the Cub Scout salute. When he has done these tasks, 
he will be awarded his Tiger Cub totem at a pack meeting. The totem is a plastic tiger paw with 
space for four strands for the totem beads that he wears on his belt. A boy earns beads to wear on 
his totem by working on the five Tiger Cub achievements. After completing these five 
achievements, he will have earned his Tiger Cub rank and will then be ready to work on his 
Tiger Track beads.                                                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
How Is a Tiger Cub Part of the Cub Scout Organization? 
 
All Cub Scouts, including 
Tiger Cubs, share Cub 
Scouting’s 12 Core Values, 
which are: 
 


1. Citizenship 
2.  Compassion 
3.  Cooperation 
4.  Courage 
5.  Faith 
6.  Health and Fitness 
7.  Honesty 
8.  Perseverance 
9.  Positive Attitude 
10.  Resourcefulness 
11.  Respect 
12.  Responsibility 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


TIGER CUB BASIC TRAINING (cont) 
 
 
 
 


Tiger Spelldown Cheer 
 
 
Give me a “T”............................ (Audience yells “T”) 
 
Give me an “I”........................... (Audience yells “I”) 
 
Give me a “G”........................... (Audience yells “G”) 
 
Give me an “E”.......................... (Audience yells “E”) 
 
Give me an “R”.......................... (Audience yells “R”) 
 
Give me an “S”........................... (Audience yells “S”) 
 
What does that spell? ................ (Audience yells “Tigers”) 
 
What do they say?...................... (Audience yells “Roar”) 
 
What do they do?....................... (Audience yells “Search, Discover, Share!!!) 
 
 
 
 
Where Do I Go For More Help? 
 
More information on the Tiger Cub program can be found at the local Scout Shops in 
publications such as: the Cub Scout Leader Book, Cub Scout Program Helps, and the Tiger Cub 
Handbook. There are also many books, including this Pow Wow Book to use as a resource for 
great crafts, fun activities, and fabulous field trips to make the very best Tiger Cub den that you 
can. And last but not least ... Go to Cub Scout roundtable once a month for the best, up to date, 
ideas and helps for your area!!! 
 
 


WELCOME TO TIGER CUBS! 
AND HAVE FUN!!! 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
DEN LEADER BASIC 


 
Communication and commitment with boys and parents 
is the key to a successful den with boys who grow and 
advance.  Den leaders are the key. It’s up to you to 
show the way.  It is a rewarding experience, but you 
must organize and prepare for the job.  You need help to 
survive and thrive. 


 
To be a success, you must have enthusiasm for what you do - you do make a difference.  


Optimism—You can conquer all. 
Training—Basic, Roundtables, BALOO, Pow Wow, and any other special training that 
is available. 
Preparation—Plan from week to week and be  
prepared to help each boy achieve.  
Smile—Have fun, so they will too!  
 
 


 


HOW TO DO IT 
Plan, prepare, and listen to suggestions. 


Discipline in a positive manner, never in anger. 
Set goals—reachable ones for you and for the boys. 


Keep accurate records—all the time. 
Have everyone in uniform—including you! 


Teach by example—respect, responsibility, values, fairness, consistency, friendship. 
Get to know each boy as an individual—be interested in him and his progress. 


 


 
 
 


RESOURCES—WHAT, WHERE AND WHO 
Books—Boys—Leaders. Cub Scout Leader Book, Cub Scout Leader How-To Book, Program 


Helps, Academics and Sports Program Guide, Boys' Life, Scouting Magazine, Roundtable,  
Pow Wow, library—the list is never ending. 


 


 
 
 


HELPS 
Pack committee, parents, teachers, church, libraries, professional people, District and Council 
Cub Scout staffs—this list is also never ending. Phone calls to parents and boys.  Have a den 


newsletter / calendar and send it home each month. 
 


 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 


ATTENDANCE - BEHAVIOR CHART 
 
 Cubs Name        Month 1   Month 2   Month 3 
 


Attendance             


Wearing 
Uniforms 


            


Brought Book             


Said Prayer             


Led Flag 
Ceremony 


            


Behavior             


Attended Pack 
Meeting 


            


 
 


OTHER AWARDS 
What records do you use? 


Are you keeping track of immediate recognition? See below. 
 


Yellow – Wolf   Red – Bear 
 


  3   6   9   12 


 
 


AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 


Do you use a den doodle as a boys' visual record? 
Bring it to pack meeting. 


 
BSA AWARDS 
Religious Award  


National Den Award International Patch 
Quality Unit Award  


Summertime Pack Award  
World Conservation Award  


BSA Family Award 
Trail Patches 


 
SPORTS AND ACADEMICS 


Belt Loops and Pins 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 


CUB CALENDAR 
Helps you get organized—lets the boys know what you are doing.  


Either use a regular calendar or a weekly one like below. 
Send home with boy. 


 
MONTH________________________  THEME____________________________ 
 


DATE TIME LOCATION ACTIVITY BOY NEEDS 


     


     


     


     


     


     
 


Activity details what you will be doing and requirements being worked on. 
 
 


 
A CHALLENGE 


What am I willing to do?  
How will I help the boy to do his best?  


Will I make a difference? 
 
 
 


 
 


 
Use the following DEN MEETING PLANNER to organize your den meetings so that effective 
results happen. Keep in mind other activities, such as training and district roundtable, that need 


to be scheduled. Plan out activities and alternatives, using a variety. 
Variety is the spice of the program! 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Use the following PARENT / CUB QUESTIONNAIRE to find out about your boys and 
their parents. Use the parents as resources in teaching the boys. 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 


DEN MEETING PLANNER 
 


MONTH____________________________   THEME ___________________________ 
 


DATE WEEK 1 WEEK 2 WEEK 3 WEEK 4 WEEK 5 


Before the 
Meeting      


Gathering      


Opening      


Business      


Activity      


Practice for 
Pack Meeting      


Games &  
Fun Time      


Closing      


After the 
Meeting      


 
 
Pack Meeting Date _____________ Time ________________ Place_______________________ 
 
What We Need To Do ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Notes  ________________________________________________________________________ 


 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


DEN LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 


CUB SCOUT AND PARENT QUESTIONNAIRE 
 


 


CUB SCOUT - FILL THIS SECTION OUT. 
 
NAME   _____________________________________PHONE _________________________ 
 
ADDRESS ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BIRTHDAY _______________________________SCHOOL __________________________ 
 
FAVORITE SUBJECT _________________________________________________________ 
 
LEAST FAVORITE SUBJECT __________________________________________________ 
 
HOBBIES ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
SPORT ACTIVITIES __________________________________________________________ 
 
OTHER ACTIVITIES __________________________________________________________ 
 
FAVORITE: FOOD, COLOR,  MOVIE ____________________________________________ 
 
OTHER FAVORITES __________________________________________________________ 
 
WHAT I WANT TO BE WHEN I GROW UP _______________________________________ 
 


 
 


PARENT'S FILL OUT THIS SECTION 


PARENT'S NAMES / JOBS _____________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS ___________________________________________________ 
 
PARENT'S INTERESTS ________________________________________________________ 
 
WOULD YOU BE WILLING TO HELP? __________________________________________ 
 
SCOUTING EXPERIENCE _____________________________________________________ 
 
CAMPING / OUTDOOR EXPERIENCE ___________________________________________ 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 WEBELOS DEN LEADER 


BASIC TRAINING 
 


 


Introduction 


Welcome to Webelos Scouting! You have embarked on an adventure that is unique in 
Scouting! Boys at this age are maturing and learning to be more self-sufficient. Soon they 
will be Boy Scouts. And it is your job to help them make this transition in a fun and 
adventurous way.  


Webelos stands for "We'll Be Loyal Scouts." The major goal of Webelos Scouting is to give 
the Scouts a taste of what it is like to be a Boy Scout and to get them familiar with the 
structure of Boy Scouting.  
 
Webelos Den Organization 
 
The emphasis in Webelos scouting shifts from home-centered activities to group-centered 
activities similar to those they will be encountering in Boy Scouts. Webelos scouts do most of 
their activities as a den, parents play a new, more supportive, and less directive role in Webelos 
scouting. Webelos Scouts learn that it is their responsibility to earn the activity badges.  
 
Your Webelos den may consist of Webelos scouts who are in fourth/fifth grade (10-11 years 
old). Each den is a little different, depending on the sponsoring organization. Concentrate on the 
Webelos badge, activity badges and earning the Arrow of Light Award. 
 
Leadership 
 
As the Webelos leader, you are the key to the program, but you may have some help. Activity 
Badge Counselors (see next paragraph) and the Webelos Den Leaders are the ones who pass the 


Webelos Scout on the requirements. Encourage the parents to help with an 
activity badge. If at all possible, request a Webelos den chief—an older Boy 
Scout who works with the den. Experience indicates that a good den chief 
can make a real difference in convincing Webelos scouts to continue their 
Scouting experience as Boy Scouts. 
 
Another key resource is the pool of Webelos activity badge counselors. An 
activity badge counselor is a “Specialist” who works with the Webelos on a 
particular activity. The best sources are adult family members of the boys in 
your den and neighbors. If you have an activity badge counselor responsible 
for each activity badge included in your program for a year, your job can be 
simplified and the parents of your Webelos scouts may become more 
involved in the program. Do a resource survey of your parents to determine 
if any professions relate to the twenty activity pins. 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 
Compass Points 
 
After a boy has earned the Webelos badge, he may receive compass points 
for additional activity badges. The compass points patch is presented to a 
Webelos scout who has earned four additional activity badges beyond 
those required for the Webelos badge (a total of seven), and is worn 
suspended from the button of the right pocket of the uniform shirt. A metal 
compass point is presented for each additional four, activity badges earned. 
The compass points are to be affixed to the patch in the East, South, or West positions. A total of 
3 compass points, plus the patch, may be earned, representing 16 activity badges beyond the 3 
needed for the Webelos badge. 
 
Outdoor Program 
 


It is in Webelos that the world of outdoor Scouting begins to open 
up. A fun and exciting part of the Webelos program, it is the boy’s 
introduction to basic BSA camping skills. A Webelos scout parent-
and-son overnight campout may be included, with emphasis on 
learning the basic skills of outdoor living and having fun outdoors. 
The guidelines in the Cub Scout Leader Book should be followed 
closely to ensure that the camping experience is comfortable and 


fulfilling. The concept of participation together by the boy and his parents should be maintained. 
Use improved camping BSA facilities accessible to transportation, rather than wilderness sites. 
Fire-building, basic cooking, camp sanitation, tent-pitching, making a comfortable camping site, 
nature study, and conservation are skills, as well as “Leave No Trace” principles, that should be 
included in camp programs. Also cover subjects like the division of jobs with a duty roster that 
rotates for each campout or even at each meal. Start allowing the Webelos den, along with their 
parents, to cook some meals together as a group. 
 
Webelos Resident Camping 
 
This summer camp experience for Webelos scouts offered by your council can be a great 
resource for you in developing outdoor skills in your boys and in supporting your den's 
advancement program. Most importantly, it is fun and it builds excitement and enthusiasm for 
Webelos scouts. 
 
Webelos Scout Advancement 
 
The den conducts some projects that can be credited towards the ranks and activity badges that 
the boys earn, but not all of the requirements are addressed at den meetings. This is deliberate. 
The Webelos Scouts learn that if they wish to advance, they are responsible for meeting the 
requirements outside den meeting times. These requirements are challenging, but very reachable 
by boys in this age group. These surmountable obstacles and steps to overcome help a boy grow 
in self-reliance and the ability to help others. This is patterned after the merit badge and 
advancement process in a Boy Scout Troop. 
 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


WEBELOS LEADER BASIC (cont) 
 
The Webelos advancement plan is an important part of the program. Den meetings and pack 
meetings, as well as other activities, are usually centered around the 20 activity badges, plus the 
Webelos badge and Arrow of Light. 
 
Activity Badges 
 
Recommended Webelos activity badge schedules for the program year are included in the 
Webelos Leader activity guide. Two badges are listed for each month. While it is possible to 
rearrange the activity badge emphasis so boys can earn their Webelos badge and the Arrow of 
Light Award sooner, this is not recommended. 
 
Activity Badge Groups 
 
Under the advancement requirements, 20 activity badges are arranged into 5 groups, each 
containing 4 related badges. For both the Webelos badge and the Arrow of Light Award, the boy 
is required to earn activity badges from different groups in order to broaden his experience in 
different areas.. Four of the activity badges are required—Fitness and Citizen for the Webelos 
badge, and Readyman and Outdoorsman for the Arrow of Light Award. (Webelos Book, 2003.)  
The activity badge groups are: 
 


• Physical Skills Group  
• Aquanaut  


• Athlete  


• Fitness  


• Sportsman 
 


• Mental Skills Group  
• Artist  


• Scholar  


• Showman 


• Traveler 
 


• Community Group  
• Citizen  


• Communicator  


• Family Member 


• Readyman 


 


• Technology Group  
• Craftsman  


• Engineer  


• Handyman  


• Scientist 


 


• Outdoor Group  
• Forester  


• Geologist  


• Naturalist 


• Outdoorsman 


In short, Webelos Scouting is the senior level program in Cub Scouting. It is meant to help 
transition the boys from Cub Scouting into Boy Scouting. Webelos are under the direction of 
the Cubmaster, hold their own activities, and do many things too advanced for the younger 
boys. At the end of the Webelos program, the Scouts should have a taste for what Boy 
Scouting is all about before proceeding through to the Boy Scout program.  







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


      CUBMASTER BASIC TRAINING 
 
Ladies and gentlemen, boys and girls, Cubmasters of all ages.   
CUB SCOUTING - A CIRCUS OF FUN welcomes you to the Greatest 
Show On Earth, featuring YOU, as Ringmaster!  So, on with the show!  


 
In the Center Ring, we present thirty-five challenging, choice chapters of ingeniously 
integrated intelligent information... 
 


 CUB SCOUT LEADER BOOK!! 
The Cub Scout Leader Book (CSLB) is your first source for information on being Cubmaster and 
on how to run your pack.  Everything in Cub Scouting has its beginning in this book.  This is a 
must-have for all Cubmasters.  Use it as a starting point for all you do. 
 
In Ring Two, for your elegantly electrifying enduring edification, we present basic 
bodacious building blocks of... 


 
WHAT YOU AS A CUBMASTER SHOULD KNOW 


(And where to find it)... 
1. Aims of Cub Scouting    CSLB 2-2 
2. Purposes of Cub Scouting    CSLB 2-2 
3. Methods of Cub Scouting    CSLB 2-2 
4. Importance of proper uniforming   CSLB 12-ALL  
5. Importance of being a registered leader  CSLB 8-1 
6. How the pack is organized   CSLB 7-ALL 
7. Your role in the planning meetings held  CSLB 24-ALL 
8. Resources available to you   CSLB 34-ALL 
9. Your duties and responsibilities   CSLB 23-8 
10. Resources for Cub Scouts with disabilities CSLB 17-ALL 
11. The advancement plan and your role in it  CSLB  18.3 
12. Safe Scouting     CSLB 13-ALL/14-ALL 
13. Core values and character connection  CSLB 4-ALL 
 


All of the above should be presented to you when you attend basic training for Cubmasters. 
 
And in Ring Three, we present an illustrative, informative, indicative index of selected 
serious subjects which you will excitingly encounter as a Cubmaster! 
 


Academics and Sports Program.................... CSLB  31-ALL 
Advancement Plan........................................ CSLB  18-ALL, 34-9 
Annual Planning Conference..........................CSLB  24-3 
Applications to Join..................................... CSLB  34-5 
Ceremonies................................................... CSLB  29-3,4 
Character Development................................ CSLB  4-ALL 
 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBMASTER BASIC (cont)  
 
Chartered Organization Representative........ CSLB. 9-1,23-3 
Cub Scout Derbies........................................ CSLB  29-12  
Cub Scout Motto....................................…... CSLB  2-4 
Cub Scout Promise................................….... CSLB  2-3  
Cub Scouting and the Family..................….. CSLB  34-11 
Cubmaster and Assistant Cubmaster........…. CSLB. 23-8,9 
Cub Scouts with Disabilities......................... CSLB  17-ALL  
Day Camps................................................... CSLB. 33-4 
Den Chiefs.................................................... CSLB  10-3 
Den Chief Planning Meeting........................ CSLB  24.6 
Den Leaders and Activity Badge Counselor CSLB  23-9 thru 13 
Den Meeting Planning Guides…………….. CSLB  34-13 
Evaluating Yourself as a Leader..........…..... CSLB  34-12 
Family Involvement...............................…... CSLB  5-ALL,  34-10,11  
Glossary........................................................ CSLB  35-ALL 
Games........................................................... CSLB  29-6 
Insignia Placement....................................... CSLB  34-61 
History of Cub Scouting............................... CSLB  6-ALL 
Health and Safety.......................................... CSLB  13-ALL 
Law of the Pack............................................ CSLB  2-3 
Leader Awards.............................................. CSLB  34-67 
Leader Recruitment...................................... CSLB  10-3 
Monthly Pack Leaders Meeting.................... CSLB  24.5 
National Summertime Pack Award.............. CSLB  28-2 
Pack Committee Chair and Members.......... CSLB  23-4 thru 7 
Pack Organization Chart............................... CSLB  7-1 
Pack Management......................................... CSLB  10-ALL 
Pack Relationships........................................ CSLB  9-ALL  
Pack Trainer.................................................. CSLB  23-7 
Planning the Program.............................…... CSLB  24-ALL 
Policies of BSA and Cub Scouting............... CSLB  8-ALL 
Resources..................................................... CSLB  34-1 thru 6   
Registration.................................................. CSLB  34-7,8 
Religious Emblem Program......................... CSLB  29-2 
Seven Parts of a Pack meeting..................... CSLB  24.9 to 11 
Skits and Songs............................................ CSLB  29.7 
Special Pack Activities................................ CSLB  29-10 
The Pack Meeting......................................... CSLB  24 
Talent Survey, Parent / Family..................... CSLB  34-11 
Trips and Outings......................................... CSLB  8-1 
Tour Permits................................................. CSLB  34-37 
Uniform........................................................ CSLB  12-ALL 
Understanding Cub Scout-Age Boys........... CSLB  15-ALL 
Youth Protection.......................................... CSLB  27-ALL 
Water Safety................................................. CSLB  14-ALL 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBMASTER BASIC (cont) 
 
And-last but not least, in the sideshow, you will admire amazing, administrative addenda... 
 


CUB SCOUTING’S CORE VALUES  
 


R CORE VALUES are the basis of good character development. 
R  CHARACTER includes thinking, feeling and behavior. 
R  CHARACTER can be defined as the collection of core values possessed by an individual. 
R CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT refers to the processes by which these values are learned. 
R  CORE VALUES should be promoted throughout all phases of life. 
  
 1-CITIZENSHIP  Contributing service and showing responsibility to local, state, 


and national communities. 
 2-COMPASSION  Consideration and concern for the well-being of others 
 3-COOPERATION  Working together with others toward a common goal 
 4-COURAGE  Doing what is right regardless of its difficulty or the 


consequences. 
 5-FAITH   Inner strength or confidence based on a trust in a higher power. 
 6-HEALTH and FITNESS Personal commitment to care for our mind and body. 
 7-HONESTY   Telling the truth and being a person worthy of trust. 
 8-PERSEVERENCE Sticking with something, not giving up, even if it’s difficult. 
 9-POSITIVE ATTITUDE Setting our mind to look and find the best in all situations. 
10-RESOURCEFULNESS Using human and material resources to their fullest 
11-RESPECT   Showing regard for the worth of someone or something. 
12-RESPONSIBILITY Fulfilling our duty to take care of yourself and others. 


 


THE UNIFORM 
As a Cubmaster, you will want to wear a proper Scout uniform complete 
with proper insignia.  You do this to set yourself apart from other 
organizations, to show your support for the Scouting program and to show 
your Cub Scouts that you respect them for wearing their uniform.  A 
dedicated leader will wear the full uniform of a Scout leader.  Proper insignia 
is the council shoulder patch, unit numbers and position patch. Wear your 
uniform at all official Cub Scout activities (pack meeting, Roundtable, etc).  
If you take your pack on a tour, wear the uniform.  If you solicit a donation or other help from 
outside people or organizations, wear the uniform.  It is almost impossible to do many of the 
things Cub Scouts do unless you wear the uniform.  Wearing the uniform will allow you to work 
at the boy’s level, doing things you would not feel comfortable doing otherwise. And remember, 
though doing things like leading cheers or dressing up may seem foolish, the boys will love it!! 
 


THE PACK MEETING 
Now you know who you must be, where to find out what to do and how to dress the part, you 
need to know about the pack meeting.  Your main responsibility is to plan and conduct this 
meeting, with the assistance of other leaders, involving the families of the boys and highlighting 
the Cub Scouts themselves. Boys like attention.  They like to feel important.  They like 
recognition.  The pack meeting provides this and more.  







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBMASTER BASIC (cont) 
 
     The Cubmaster is responsible for planning and conducting the pack 
meeting to meet these requirements.  Planning is done with the pack 
committee and involves all of the leaders.  The meeting is conducted using 
the leaders to assist.  Ask the parents to help when appropriate.  Don’t do it 
all yourself—delegate.  In conducting the meeting, consider yourself a 
CIRCUS RINGMASTER.  Keep the meeting moving at a brisk pace to 
hold the interest of all. 
 
PACK PLANNING MEETING  This meeting is held several weeks before the pack meeting 
and is used to plan the meeting itself.  Other matters can be planned here, but the pack meeting is 
the main focus of the planning meeting. 
 
BEFORE THE MEETING  Set up the facility, arrange chairs, props, exhibits, displays, 
lighting, game area.  Be sure that all badges, pins and other awards are ready.  Nothing spoils the 
meeting and the fun faster than “Oops, I forgot,” or “Just a minute, I’ll be right back.” 
 
GATHERING (PRE-OPENER)  Since people never arrive all at the same time, provide an 
activity to keep them occupied until all do arrive.  This can be a simple game, a word puzzle, 
displays or some activity. 
 
OPENING  The opening sets the tone for the pack meeting. The opening should reflect the 
theme for the month.  It should always include prayer first, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
to our flag. 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  Introduce and recognize visitors and new pack 
leaders. 
 
SONG  This adds fun to the program and sets everyone at ease.  Again, follow your theme in 
selecting a song. 
 
DEN PARTICIPATION  This is where dens can do skits, stunts, demonstrate activities, and 
display projects completed at den meetings. 
 
AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS  The most important part of the meeting.  Here boys who 


have earned awards, rank advancements, trail patches, or otherwise achieved 
are recognized.  New Cub Scouts, Cubs advancing, and Webelos Scouts 
graduating to Boy Scouts are recognized.  These should be ceremonies worthy 
of the Cub Scouts and the work they have done. 
 
PROGRAM  Here is where games, activities, and special presentations and 
programs are done.  This is the fun time of pack meeting. 
 


CLOSING   Gather everyone together after all activities are done.  Briefly make 
announcements, conduct business, and summarize the meeting.  A short ceremony can be used or 
use a Cubmaster’s Minute to end the activities.  This can be followed by refreshments, if desired. 
 
After the meeting   Evaluate the evening, noting problems and successes.  Be sure to thank your 
leaders for their help. 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUBMASTER BASIC (cont) 
 


 
MORE THOUGHTS ON YOUR PACK MEETINGS 


 
• Don’t be afraid to vary from the outline above.  Have an opening and 


closing—the rest in between is optional. 
 
• Plan ahead.  Use the Program Helps and other resources.  Study them 


before your Pack Planning Meeting so you can make suggestions for 
activities, awards and other parts of the pack meeting. 


 
• Notify people involved.  If you have people who are to participate in your 


meeting, stay in touch with them to assure them they are welcome. 
 
• Use an agenda to plan, outline, and conduct your meeting.  This will help 


prevent  some of those “oops” moments that can spoil a good meeting.  
 
• Start and stop on time.  If you consistently follow a time schedule, 


everyone will be there when they should be. 
 
• Involve the families of your Cub Scouts.  Use adults to run parts of the 


meeting, such as games, activities, and refreshments.  Let younger/ older brothers and sisters 
(and maybe Mom and Dad) participate in activities.  Cub Scouting is a family affair. 


 
• Involve all leaders in presenting the advancements.  Den Leaders and the Committee 


Advancement person can help; also, parents should be presenting the advancement pins. 
 
• Have fun!  KISMIF-(Keep It Simple, Make It Fun).  “Too much fun is never enough.”  Play 


games, sing songs with silly actions, dress up in costumes, be a Cub Scout yourself.  Have 
fun and show it! 


 
• Use ceremonies for inductions, advancements awards, and graduation.  Never underestimate 


the power of a simple ceremony to make a memorable occasion out of recognizing a boy, no 
matter the accomplishment, big or small. 


 
• Use Webelos Scouts and den chiefs in your meeting.  These older boys are role models for 


the younger ones.  Let the Webelos Scouts demonstrate their activity badge work. 
 
• Be flexible.  Things don’t always go as you have them planned.  Have a “Plan B” in case the 


unexpected happens. 
 


• Recognize people for their work.  This includes leaders and parents.  Help 
your leaders get their leader awards and present them in pack meeting so 
the boys can see that they are achieving also.  This applies to you, too! 


 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 PACK MEETING PLANNING SHEET 
 
 
Date ______________Theme __________________Activity  Badges _____________________ 
 
BEFORE THE MEETING      PERSON IN CHARGE 


• Room Arrangement     ______________________________ 


• Materials and Equipment     ______________________________ 


GATHERING: 


• Greeters       ______________________________ 


• Den Exhibits      ______________________________ 


• Preopening Activity     ______________________________ 


OPENING 


• Opening Ceremony     ______________________________ 


• Song       ______________________________ 


• Welcome and Introductions    ______________________________ 


PROGRAM 


• Audience Participation Stunt    ______________________________ 


• Den Stunts and Skits     ______________________________ 


• Webelos Den Demonstration    ______________________________ 


• Game       ______________________________ 


RECOGNITION 


• Recognition of Boys     ______________________________ 


• Recognition of Leaders     ______________________________ 


• Attendance Award     ______________________________ 


CLOSING 


• Announcements      ______________________________ 


• Closing Ceremony     ______________________________ 


AFTER THE MEETING 


• Refreshments      ______________________________ 


Cleanup       ______________________________ 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 


PACK COMMITTEE BASIC  
 
 


The newest position in Cub Scouting is the position of Pack Trainer.  The pack trainer’s main 
objective is to have 100% of the pack leadership trained in their position responsibilities.  New 
leaders and adult family members should receive orientation within one week of joining the 
pack.  Leaders should receive position-specific training as soon as the training is available. 
 


Position Qualifications 
The pack trainer must: 


• Meet BSA membership requirements and be at least 21 years of age. 
• Be registered with the Boy Scouts of America as a pack trainer. 


It is recommended that the pack trainer have at least one year of experience in a leadership 
position in Cub Scouting.  Pack trainers should participate in a Trainer Development Conference. 
For new packs and those lacking experienced leaders, an experienced leader may be appointed as 
pack trainer until the new leaders gain experience. 
 


Responsibilities 
The pack trainer is responsible for: 


• Remaining current with training material and program updates. 
• Conducting orientation of new families. 
• Providing Fast Start Training to new leaders.  Fast Start Training can be used as a 


recruiting tool.  The pack trainer should contact the new leader within two or three 
days to review the information and answer questions.  Fast Start Training can be 
completed by viewing the Fast Start video or by completing the training on the 
Council’s web site: www.gslc-bsa.org 


• Conducting monthly Unit Leadership Enhancements. 
• Encouraging pack leaders to attend: 


a. Cub Scout Leader Basic Training, which includes New Leader Essentials 
Training and Cub Scout Leader Specific Training 


b. Youth Protection Training 
c. Roundtable 
d. Pow Wow 
e. BALOO 
f. Webelos Leader Outdoor Training 
g. Wood Badge 


• Encouraging den chiefs to attend Den Chief Training. 
• Keeping track of pack training records. 
 


Position Summary 
Under the direction of the pack committee chairman, the pack trainer helps leaders and parents 
understand purposes, policies and procedures of the Cub Scouting program. 
The pack trainer conducts, or facilitates, the training of leaders and parents in the pack.  The pack 
trainer promotes training to help leaders to plan and conduct pack and den meetings and 
activities.  The pack trainer orients parents and leaders, and gives guidance to pack leaders to 
perform his or her specific position.  Pack trainer is a registered pack position. 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


PACK COMMITTEE (cont) 
PACK LEADERS’ JOB DESCRIPTIONS  


(See Cub Leader Book 2001,  23-3  
for more information) 


 
 
CHARTER ORGANIZATION REP (COR):  A direct contact between the 


Pack and the Chartered Organization. Assigned by Chartered Organization. Recruits unit leaders. 
 
COMMITTEE CHAIR (CC):  Assigned by Chartered Organization; responsible for Annual 
Planning Meeting, Monthly Committee Meeting, and recruiting committee members.  Assures 
that the pack is functioning smoothly. 
 
MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE (MC):  These can be parents or other adults 


 Secretary/Membership:  Keeps records and registration up-to-date; helps recruit and  
orient new boys & parents; key member at Charter Renewal time. 


 Treasurer:  Handles pack finances, prepares budget. 
 Advancement:  Checks monthly advancement, picks up awards 
 Youth Protection/Safety:  Responsible for youth protection training in unit; collects and  


maintains health forms for each boy and leader. 
Activities: recruits other adults as needed for event chairmen; responsible for events and  
outings such as Blue & Gold, Day Camp, Scout Fair, Pinewood Derby, etc. 


 
PACK TRAINER:  Orients pack leaders and new families;  responsible to train new leaders; 
encourages ongoing training, such as Youth Protection, Roundtable, & Pow Wow. 
 
CUBMASTER (CM):  Responsible for pack meetings, assigns boy to dens, coordinates den 
activities, works closely with CC and members; works with Scoutmaster to find den chiefs. 
 
ASST. CUBMASTER (CA):  Helps Cubmaster with Pack meetings, other activities as assigned. 
 
DEN LEADERS (DL):  Responsible for weekly Den Meetings; main contact point with boys. 
 
DEN ASSISTANT (DA):  Helps den leader as assigned.  
 
WEBELOS LEADER (WL):  Responsible for weekly meetings with 
Webelos Scouts.  Encourages all boys to graduate into Boy Scout Troop. 
 
WEBELOS ASSISTANT (WA):  Helps Webelos leader as needed. 
 
DEN CHIEF:  A boy scout who works closely with the DL or WL.  He 
is the activities assistant in den meetings and is an example. 
 
TIGER CUB DEN LEADER:  Plans and carries out year-round program for Tiger Cub den;  
manages 'shared-leadership concept' where every family hosts meetings. 
 
UNIT COMMISSIONER (UC):  Assigned by the District Commissioner.  A friend to the pack 
whose main responsibility is to give service to the assigned packs and helps them succeed.  
Should present Charter to Pack at a pack meeting.  Helps units solve problems and provide a 
quality program. 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


MONTHLY PACK LEADERS’ MEETING AGENDA 
 


 
DATE: _______________________________ 
 


1.  Opening: (Committee Chairman) 


Prayer: ______________________ 


Minutes of last meeting (Secretary) 


 


2.  Unit Enhancement Training Discussion (Pack Trainer) 
 


3. Pack Meeting discussion (Cubmaster) 


1.  Review last month's meeting 


2.  Upcoming Pack Meeting Plans 


3.  Next Month Pack meeting ideas 


4. Roundtable Ideas for the theme (CM,DLC, DLs) 


 


4. Webelos Leader plans for the next month . 


 


5. Committee Reports and Discussion 


1.  Treasurer: (report on current status) 


2. Advancement: (collect den reports) 


3. Membership: (new boys coming in) 


4. Training: (upcoming training; roundtable) 


5. Youth Protection/Safety: (report on training, other needs) 


6. Activities:  (upcoming events & current status) 


7. Other 


6. Other Pack Needs/ Needs of leaders & boys 


7. Review assignments;  Date of next meeting;  Adjourn. 


 


 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUB SCOUT 
LEADER AWARDS 


 
CUBMASTER AWARD 


 
Tenure:  Complete 2 years as registered 
Cubmaster, or 1 year as registered assistant 
Cubmaster and 1 year as Cubmaster. 
 
Training: 
1. Complete Fast Start Training 
2. Complete Cub Leader Basic for 


Cubmasters 
3. Complete Youth Protection Training 
4. Participate in Pow Wow or attend at 


least 4 roundtables. 
 
Performance: 
1. As a Cubmaster or assistant Cubmaster 


in a pack, earn the national Quality Unit 
Award at least twice. 


2. Earn the National Summertime Pack 
Award at least once. 


1. Plan and conduct pack meetings during 
each year serving as registered leader. 


 
 


DEN LEADER AWARD 
 


Tenure:  Complete 1 year as a registered 
Cub Scout den leader. 
 
Training: 
1. Complete Fast Start Training 
2. Complete Cub Leader Basic for Cub 


Scout Den leaders. 
3. Complete Youth Protection Training. 
4. Participate in Pow Wow or attend at 


least 4 roundtables. 
 
Performance: (Do Five) 
1. During at least one year have a 


minimum of 50% of Cubs in your den 
earn rank for their grade or age. 


2. At least once, reregister minimum of 
75% of eligible members of den as a part 
of pack charter renewal. 


 


(Den Leader Award cont.) 
 
3. Graduate a minimum of 60% of eligible 


members of your den into Webelos. 
4. Have an assistant den leader or second 


adult who meets regularly with your den. 
5. Have a den chief who meets regularly 


with your den. 
6. Take leadership in planning and 


conducting a den service project. 
7. Conduct at least 3 den meetings per 


month, 9 times a year, or as approved. 
8. Participate with your den at  


Cub Scout Day or Resident Camp. 
9. Explore 3 Character Connection 
      activities with den members in one year. 
10. Hold regular den planning sessions with 


 assistant den leader. 
 


TIGER CUB LEADER  AWARD 
 
Tenure:  Complete 1 year as a registered 
Tiger Cub Den leader. 
 
Training: 
1. Complete Fast Start Training for your 


position. 
2. Complete Cub Leader Basic for Tiger 


Cub Den Leaders. 
3. Complete Youth Protection Training. 
4. Participate in Pow Wow or attend at 


least 4 roundtables. 
 
Performance: (Do All) 
1. Help with a Tiger Cub Roundup, help 


recruit five Tiger-Adult partner teams. 
2. Contact host team each month and 


provide support for one year. 
3. Coordinate Tiger Cub den participation 


in three pack activities. 
4. Graduate at least 60 percent of Tiger 


Cubs into a Cub Scout Den. 
5. Report progress at 75 percent of pack 


leaders’ meetings. 


 







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


CUB SCOUT TRAINING AWARDS (cont) 
 


WEBELOS LEADER AWARD 
 
Tenure: Complete 1 year as registered 
Webelos Den Leader. 
 
Training: 
1. Complete Fast Start Training 
2. Complete Cub Leader Basic for Webelos 


Leaders. 
3. Complete Webelos Outdoor Training. 
4. Complete Youth Protection Training. 
5. Participate in Pow Wow or attend at 


least 4 roundtables. 
 
Performance: (Do Seven) 
1.  During at least one year have minimum 


of 50% of Webelos advance (Webelos or 
Arrow of Light) 


2. At least once, reregister minimum of 
75% of eligible members of den as a part 
of pack charter renewal. 


3. Graduate a minimum of 60% of Den into 
Boy Scouting. 


4. Have an assistant den leader or second 
adult who regularly attends meeting. 


5. Have a den chief who meets regularly 
with your den. 


6. Take leadership in planning & 
conducting two Webelos overnight 
campouts or other outdoor den activities 
each year. 


7. Help plan & conduct a Webelos den-Boy 
Scout troop activity. 


8. Plan & conduct Webelos den service 
project. 


9. Conduct at least 3 Webelos den meetings 
per month, 9 months of the year, or as 
approved by the pack. 


10. Participate with your den in Webelos 
day camp or resident camp experience. 


11. Explore 3 Character Connection 
activities with den in one year. 


12. Hold regular planning sessions with your 
assistant leader. 


 
 


 
 


CUB SCOUTER AWARD 
(For Cub Committee Members) 


 
Tenure:  Complete 2 years as registered 
adult leader in a Cub Scout pack. 
 
Training: 
1. Complete Fast Start Training for your 


position. 
2. Complete Cub Leader Basic for any 


position. 
3. Complete Youth Protection Training. 
4. Participate in Pow Wow or attend at 


least 4 roundtables. 
 
Performance: (Do Five) 
1. Help plan a pack program that results in 


advancement in rank of a minimum of 
50% pack members each years. 


2. Serve as an adult leader related to a pack 
that earns the National Quality Unit 
Award. 


3. Serve as leader of a blue & gold dinner, 
pinewood or space derby, regatta, field 
day, picnic, or other Cub Scout activity. 


4. Give leadership to a promotional effort 
that results in at least 60% of pack 
families subscribing to Boys' Life 
Magazine. 


5. Develop a Tiger or Cub Den Activity 
book, listing places to go, cost, etc for 5 
Tiger Achievements or 12 Cub Themes. 


6. Give leadership to planning and 
conducting a pack service project. 


7. Organize pack participation in the 
Academics and Sports program. 


8. Help conduct two annual pack Friends of 
Scouting campaigns. 


9. Serve as a leader for members of your 
pack attending a Cub Scout Resident or 
Day Camp. 


Serve one year as pack trainer, during which 
time 75 percent of registered pack leaders 
complete Basic Training for their position.







Leader Basic Training 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 


 
 
ADDRESS TO  
SCOUTMASTERS,  
COMMISSIONERS,  
And CUBMASTERS 
(Lord Baden-Powell) 


 
 
 
 Brother workers, Commissioners, Scoutmasters, and Cubmasters.  I have been thinking 
of your work lately and I have come to the conclusion that you are building better than possibly 
you know; or to generate better than you know when you first took your place in what is now a 
great brotherhood of service. 
 It is a fine show, and it is growing in importance as it widens its influence day by day.  
But I noticed that as the public realizes more and more its aims and possibilities, so more and 
more they expect to see really effective results on the boys.  They judge the movement by this.  
Thus, a responsibility rests on the (leader) greater than was formerly the case for giving the right 
application of our methods to his boys. 
 To ensure this, the first essential is that Scoutmasters (and Cubmasters) themselves, as 
well as their Commissioners, should have thoroughly grasped the ideals we aim for, the reasons 
for the various steps in the training, and the meaning that underlies them. 
 To this end, to gild the opening of our Gilwell Park Training School is, to my mind, the 
most important step that has occurred in the history of the movement since the inauguration. 
 I venture to hope that every Commissioner, Scoutmaster, and Cubmaster who is unable to 
attend the Gilwell Park course himself will take steps to gain the latest particulars by availing 
himself of the help now open to him through instructors who have been through this training. 
 In addition to what I have said in aid of Scoutmastership, I should like to emphasize the 
importance of developing in the boys these two qualities:  patience and self-elimination.  I 
have seen in my time more careers wrecked through want of patience than through drink, 
gambling, or any other vice.  By self-elimination, I mean that selfless service for others of 
which you yourselves are getting so pregnant a personal example. 
 You are doing a big thing for God, for your country, and your kind, and I warmly 
wish you all further success. 
  












Other Resources 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake  Council 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Beck’s Leather 
The Patch Place 



robertsh

Main Table of Contents







Other Resources 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 







Other Resources 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake  Council 


 
 







Other Resources 


Circus of Fun  Great Salt Lake Council 


 
 

















Cub Scouting


Information Booklet


PACK 3802


Great Salt Lake Council


Lake Ridge 4th Ward


Westview District







Cub Scouting


Information Booklet







3. Help your son get to Den Meetings weekly.


************************************


To learn about Activity Patches you can work 


on with your son, go to: 


‘-->  Programs  


‘--> Cub Scouts  


************************************


Thank you to all our Cub Scout parents for 


helping us maintain a quality program.  Family 


support is essential to Cub Scouting.  With that 


support, we hope to encourage the boys to 


form positive self-esteems; leadership skills; 


respect for others and the world; a sense of 


citizenship; spiritual, mental, and physical 


strength while developing new interests, 


making goals, and achieving success.


Tiger                                                                                    


              To advance, Tiger Cubs work on 


Achievements and electives, which are described in 


this handbook [Tiger].  As a boy completes these, to 


the best of his ability, you, his adult partnre, sign in 


this handbook where it saya "Akela's OK."  Akela 


means "good leader" and is an important part of 


Cub Scouting.  Akela can be a den leader, a teacher, 


or other important adult.  As your boy's adult 


partner, you are Akela.                                                     


                                                   pg. 15 Tiger Handbook


Responsibilities of Parents: Wolf - Bear                                                            


Akela's OK                                                                          


        As you [parent] look through this book 


[Handbook], you'll see places for "Akela's OK."  That 


usually means your okay.  Akela (ah-KAY-la) is the 


boy's leader.  At home, that is you; at den meetings, 


it is the den leader; at school, it is the teacher.  


Some of the electives and achievements are done 


by you and your Cub Scout at home, not in the den 


meeting.  This book is filled with more than 200 


pages of activities for you and your son to enjoy 


together.  Once your Cub Scout has done his best, 


you can approve the completion of the requirement 


and the den leader will record his progress in the 


den records.                                                                       


                                       pg.3 Wolf and Bear Handbook


1. Assist your son with achievements (some 


achievements have to be done with parents or 


family and some achievements are "At Home" 


and given as homework ) and sign them off in 


his book after completion.


2. Bring your family to Pack Meetings to 


support your son and have fun together with 


the Pack.


Responsibilities of the Cub Scout:


1. Attend weekly Den Meetings wearing your 


uniform and bring your Cub Scout book.


2. Earn achievements and have your parents 


and leader sign them off in your book.


Webelos                                                                              


     Help your son.  Much of his work in activity 


badge areas and for the Webelos badge and Arrow 


of Light Award will be done in the den, but he'll do 


some requirements at home; particularly those 


relating to Character Connections.  Be prepared to 


help.                                                                                     


                                           pg.15 Webelos Handbook


3. Live the Cub Scout Promise.  Do your best 


and have fun!


www.gslc-bsa.org  


‘--> Acitivity and Trail Patches







Cub Scout and Webelos Scout Insignia Guide


Note: Only five medals may be worn at a time, pinned in a single row immediately above the seam of the left pocket.







The BSA Family Award


1. Learning Through Fun and Adventure


2. Strengthening Family Relationships


3. Developing Personal Strengths


4. Teaching Responsibility


5. Handling Difficult Situations


The BSA Family Award program offers activities to help strengthen all families—whether two-parent, single-


parent, or nontraditional. This program helps families accomplish worthy goals while building and 


strengthening relationships among family members. All family members are encouraged to participate and 


may earn the award.


Some packs, through a volunteer family program chair, actively encourage and support families pursuing this 


award. If your pack does not promote and support the family program, your family may still participate on its 


own. The BSA Family Activity Book (available at your local council service center) gives all the requirements as 


well as step-by-step instructions for earning the BSA Family Award.


To earn the award, a family must complete 10 activities within a 12-month period. The family chooses one 


activity in two topics in each of the following categories:


When a family has completed the requirements, all family members are eligible to receive an award 


certificate, patches for uniform wear, and/or pins for non-uniform wear.


http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Parents/FamilyProgram.aspx







Great Salt Lake Council Locations


SALT LAKE CITY SANDY CENTERVILLE


Council Headquarters South Valley North Valley


525 Foothill Blvd 8395 S. 700 West


Salt Lake City, UT 84113 Sandy, UT 84070


Council Services Council Services Council Services


(801) 582-3663 Office (801) 571-6015 Office (801) 951-0687 Office


(801) 582-7401 Fax (801) 571-2761 Fax (801) 951-0689 Fax


8:30 am - 5:30 pm Mon - Fri 10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri 10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri


Closed Saturday Closed Saturday Closed Saturday


Scout Shop Scout Shop Scout Shop


(801) 349-3760 Store (801) 571-2727 Store (801) 951-0691 Store


8:30 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri 9:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri 9:30 am - 6:30 pm Mon - Fri


9:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday 9:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday 10:00am - 5:00 pm Saturday


On-line


380 E. Pages Lane              


    (Inside Ace Hardware)


Centerville, UT 84014


www.scoutstuff.org







Price List For Parents


prices as of 7/24/13


WOLF


Item Cost Optional


Short Sleeve Blue Cub Shirt (long sleeve = $27.99) $24.99


Council Patch (Great Salt Lake Council)or $2.75 $2.45


Unit Numbers (red) [4x$1.49] $5.96


World Crest Patch $1.49


$8.99


Wolf Book (spiral bound = $14.99) $8.99


Yellow Neckerchief $6.99


Wolf Neckerchief Slide $4.99


Total $55.86


BEAR


Item Cost Optional


Bear Book (spiral bound = $14.99) $8.99


Blue Neckerchief $6.99


Bear Neckerchief Slide $4.99


Total $15.98


WEBELOS


(Webelos may continue to wear the blue Cub Scout shirt, or they may choose to wear the tan Boy Scout shirt with the blue Cub Scout belt.)


Item Cost Optional


Webelos Book (Spiral Bound = $14.99) $8.99


Webelos Neckerchief $7.99


Webelos Neckerchief Slide $4.99


Webelos Colors (holds badges) $4.99


Short Sleeve Tan Scout Shirt (nylon shirt = $29.99) $24.99


Total $21.97


NEW BOY SCOUT (11 YEAR OLD SCOUT)


Item Cost Optional


Short Sleeve Tan Scout Shirt (poplin = $24.99 polyester microfiber = $34.99) $24.99


Council Patch (Great Salt Lake Council) $2.45


Unit Numbers (tan) [3x$1.49] $4.47


World Crest Patch $1.49


Religious Award (silver square knot patch on purple) IF EARNED $1.59


Arrow of Light Award patch IF EARNED $1.59


Boy Scout Shoulder Loops (green) $2.99


$11.99


Boy Scout Handbook (spiral bound = $14.99) $9.99


Handbook Cover $9.99


Boy Scout Requirements Book $4.99


Total $49.56


OTHER OPTIONAL ITEMS


Wolf, Bear, Webelos, Boy Scout Baseball Caps $ 12.99


Cub Scout Long Sleeve Shirt $26.99


Cub Scout Shorts regular = $19.99  husky = $22.99


Cub Scout Switchback Pants $24.99


Cub Scout Socks = $5.99 


Boy Scout Long Sleeve Shirt poplin = $29.99  polyester microfiber = $39.99


Boy Scout Pants canvas convertibles = $34.99  nylon switchbacks = $39.99   canvas cargo shorts = $24.99


Boy Scout Socks reg $5.99 or $8.99 hiking scouts go up to $15.99


Troop Neckerchiefs - Troop Option ($8.99) [talk to 11-yr old leader about this item]


Badge Magic Sheets (to stick on patches and awards) $5.99


Activity T-Shirts ($ varies)


Day Camp $42.00: $10 deposit Feb 1st to April 1st; after April 1st full payment due
Cancellations or refunds of $32.00 only if council is notified before May 31st; after May 31st $0


Blue Cub Scout Belt (sm/m = $7.99  m/lg = $8.99 xl =  $9.99)


Boy Scout Belt  (sm/m = $10.99  m/lg = $11.99 xl =  $12.99)






Front

		

				Cub Scouting								Cub Scouting

				Information Booklet								Information Booklet

				PACK 3802

				Lake Ridge 4th Ward

				Westview District

				Great Salt Lake Council

				THE ABOVE IS AN EXAMPLE PAGE

				If you do not see Cub Scout Information Booklet, Pack 3802, etc.								If you do not see Cub Scout Information Booklet

				Right click on Power Pack picture								Right click on Power Pack picture

				then left click on 'Arrange'								then left click on 'Arrange'

				and then click on 'To background'								and then click on 'To background'

				that will fix the problem [it will not save as a background]								that will fix the problem [it will not save as a background]

												FILL IN YOUR PACK, ORGANIZATION, DISTRICT, and COUNCIL

												Only print the pages you want (3,5,7,9,10,12).  The file has added blank pages in it

												and you do not need to print pages 1,2 and 4.





Parents

		Thank you to all our Cub Scout parents for helping us maintain a quality program.  Family support is essential to Cub Scouting.  With that support, we hope to encourage the boys to form positive self-esteems; leadership skills; respect for others and the world; a sense of citizenship; spiritual, mental, and physical strength while developing new interests, making goals, and achieving success.				Tiger                                                                                                  To advance, Tiger Cubs work on Achievements and electives, which are described in this handbook [Tiger].  As a boy completes these, to the best of his ability, you, his adult partnre, sign in this handbook where it saya "Akela's OK."  Akela means "good leader" and is an important part of Cub Scouting.  Akela can be a den leader, a teacher, or other important adult.  As your boy's adult partner, you are Akela.                                                                                                        pg. 15 Tiger Handbook

		Responsibilities of Parents:				Wolf - Bear                                                            Akela's OK                                                                                  As you [parent] look through this book [Handbook], you'll see places for "Akela's OK."  That usually means your okay.  Akela (ah-KAY-la) is the boy's leader.  At home, that is you; at den meetings, it is the den leader; at school, it is the teacher.  Some of the electives and achievements are done by you and your Cub Scout at home, not in the den meeting.  This book is filled with more than 200 pages of activities for you and your son to enjoy together.  Once your Cub Scout has done his best, you can approve the completion of the requirement and the den leader will record his progress in the den records.                                                                                                              pg.3 Wolf and Bear Handbook

		1. Assist your son with achievements (some achievements have to be done with parents or family and some achievements are "At Home" and given as homework ) and sign them off in his book after completion.

		2. Bring your family to Pack Meetings to support your son and have fun together with the Pack.

		3. Help your son get to Den Meetings weekly.

		Responsibilities of the Cub Scout:

		1. Attend weekly Den Meetings wearing your uniform and bring your Cub Scout book.

		2. Earn achievements and have your parents and leader sign them off in your book.				Webelos                                                                                   Help your son.  Much of his work in activity badge areas and for the Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award will be done in the den, but he'll do some requirements at home; particularly those relating to Character Connections.  Be prepared to help.                                                                                                                                pg.15 Webelos Handbook

		3. Live the Cub Scout Promise.  Do your best and have fun!

		************************************

		To learn about Activity Patches you can work

		on with your son, go to:

		www.gslc-bsa.org

		‘-->  Programs

		‘--> Cub Scouts

		‘--> Acitivity and Trail Patches

		************************************



www.gslc-bsa.org



Insignia

		Cub Scout and Webelos Scout Insignia Guide

		Note: Only five medals may be worn at a time, pinned in a single row immediately above the seam of the left pocket.





Family

		The BSA Family Award

		The BSA Family Award program offers activities to help strengthen all families—whether two-parent, single-parent, or nontraditional. This program helps families accomplish worthy goals while building and strengthening relationships among family members. All family members are encouraged to participate and may earn the award.

		Some packs, through a volunteer family program chair, actively encourage and support families pursuing this award. If your pack does not promote and support the family program, your family may still participate on its own. The BSA Family Activity Book (available at your local council service center) gives all the requirements as well as step-by-step instructions for earning the BSA Family Award.

		To earn the award, a family must complete 10 activities within a 12-month period. The family chooses one activity in two topics in each of the following categories:

		1. Learning Through Fun and Adventure

		2. Strengthening Family Relationships

		3. Developing Personal Strengths

		4. Teaching Responsibility

		5. Handling Difficult Situations

		When a family has completed the requirements, all family members are eligible to receive an award certificate, patches for uniform wear, and/or pins for non-uniform wear.

		http://www.scouting.org/scoutsource/CubScouts/Parents/FamilyProgram.aspx





BSA Stores

		

		Great Salt Lake Council Locations

		SALT LAKE CITY		SANDY		CENTERVILLE

		Council Headquarters		South Valley		North Valley

		525 Foothill Blvd		8395 S. 700 West		380 E. Pages Lane                  (Inside Ace Hardware)

		Salt Lake City, UT 84113		Sandy, UT 84070		Centerville, UT 84014

		Council Services		Council Services		Council Services

		(801) 582-3663 Office		(801) 571-6015 Office		(801) 951-0687 Office

		(801) 582-7401 Fax		(801) 571-2761 Fax		(801) 951-0689 Fax

		8:30 am - 5:30 pm Mon - Fri		10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri		10:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri

		Closed Saturday		Closed Saturday		Closed Saturday

		Scout Shop		Scout Shop		Scout Shop

		(801) 349-3760 Store		(801) 571-2727 Store		(801) 951-0691 Store

		8:30 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri		9:00 am - 6:00 pm Mon - Fri		9:30 am - 6:30 pm Mon - Fri

		9:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday		9:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday		10:00am - 5:00 pm Saturday

				On-line

				www.scoutstuff.org



www.scoutstuff.org



Price Parents

		Price List For Parents

		Day Camp $42.00: $10 deposit Feb 1st to April 1st; after April 1st full payment due

		Cancellations or refunds of $32.00 only if council is notified before May 31st; after May 31st $0

						prices as of 7/24/13

		WOLF

		Item		Cost		Optional

		Short Sleeve Blue Cub Shirt (long sleeve = $27.99)		$24.99

		Council Patch (Great Salt Lake Council)or $2.75		$2.45

		Unit Numbers (red) [4x$1.49]		$5.96

		World Crest Patch		$1.49

		Blue Cub Scout Belt (sm/m = $7.99  m/lg = $8.99 xl =  $9.99)				$8.99

		Wolf Book (spiral bound = $14.99)		$8.99

		Yellow Neckerchief		$6.99

		Wolf Neckerchief Slide		$4.99

		Total		$55.86

		BEAR

		Item		Cost		Optional

		Bear Book (spiral bound = $14.99)		$8.99

		Blue Neckerchief		$6.99

		Bear Neckerchief Slide				$4.99

		Total		$15.98

		WEBELOS

		(Webelos may continue to wear the blue Cub Scout shirt, or they may choose to wear the tan Boy Scout shirt with the blue Cub Scout belt.)

		Item		Cost		Optional

		Webelos Book (Spiral Bound = $14.99)		$8.99

		Webelos Neckerchief		$7.99

		Webelos Neckerchief Slide				$4.99

		Webelos Colors (holds badges)		$4.99

		Short Sleeve Tan Scout Shirt (nylon shirt = $29.99)				$24.99

		Total		$21.97

		NEW BOY SCOUT (11 YEAR OLD SCOUT)

		Item		Cost		Optional

		Short Sleeve Tan Scout Shirt (poplin = $24.99 polyester microfiber = $34.99)		$24.99

		Council Patch (Great Salt Lake Council)		$2.45

		Unit Numbers (tan) [3x$1.49]		$4.47

		World Crest Patch		$1.49

		Religious Award (silver square knot patch on purple) IF EARNED		$1.59

		Arrow of Light Award patch IF EARNED		$1.59

		Boy Scout Shoulder Loops (green)		$2.99

		Boy Scout Belt  (sm/m = $10.99  m/lg = $11.99 xl =  $12.99)				$11.99

		Boy Scout Handbook (spiral bound = $14.99)		$9.99

		Handbook Cover				$9.99

		Boy Scout Requirements Book				$4.99

		Total		$49.56

		OTHER OPTIONAL ITEMS

		Wolf, Bear, Webelos, Boy Scout Baseball Caps $ 12.99

		Cub Scout Long Sleeve Shirt $26.99

		Cub Scout Shorts regular = $19.99  husky = $22.99

		Cub Scout Switchback Pants $24.99

		Cub Scout Socks = $5.99

		Boy Scout Long Sleeve Shirt poplin = $29.99  polyester microfiber = $39.99

		Boy Scout Pants canvas convertibles = $34.99  nylon switchbacks = $39.99   canvas cargo shorts = $24.99

		Boy Scout Socks reg $5.99 or $8.99 hiking scouts go up to $15.99

		Troop Neckerchiefs - Troop Option ($8.99) [talk to 11-yr old leader about this item]

		Badge Magic Sheets (to stick on patches and awards) $5.99

		Activity T-Shirts ($ varies)




































companions and leaders to help him along the way, just as 
Pocochee had the coyote.  Let us honor this young man as he 
completes this journey to begin a new and exciting quest. 
 
 


 
 
Eric Christiansen 
WE7-590-3-08 


 







The words of Bear set a fire in the heart of Pocochee.  He 
searched for the perfect wood to make his bow and then shaped 
and hardened it over the flame.  He braided the bowstring from 
sinew and decorated it with feathers.  He searched for his arrow 
until he heard the unmistakable rattle of the great snake and knew 
he had found it.  Capturing his prey he climbed to the top of the 
mountain, far above the trees and stood atop its highest rock.  He 
watched as the sun rose overhead, took the rattlesnake and 
straightened it out and placed him in his bow.  Drawing back the 
string he let fly his mighty arrow to the sun.  The arrow struck with 
great force. The sting of the venom made the sun let out a mighty 
cry.  It shot lightning across the sky and shook the earth with its 
thunder.  Pocochee felt something on his cheek.  It was a drop of 
rain.  Soon the heavens opened up and its tears of healing water 
covered the dry earth.  The drought was over. 
 
The two friends journeyed down the mountain and across the 
desert.  Pocochee thanked the trickster and entered the pueblo.  
Four seasons had passed and Pocochee had become a young 
man.  His face was bright and clean and the elders recognized 
the strength of his character.  They knew his quest had changed 
him and their land.  “Come,” they said, “Enter the keva and tell us 
your story.” 
 
Tonight we have a young man who has been on his own journey 
for four seasons.  He has been on a quest to gain knowledge and 
learn new skills, to improve himself and help others around him.  
He has grown in stature and strength, and is ready to enter young 
manhood.  He is ready to leave the Webelos and search for new 
experiences as a Boy Scout.  He has achieved the highest award 
in cub scouting, which like Pocochee is symbolized by the arrow 
to the sun.  It is the Arrow of Light Award, the only Cub Scout 
award that he will continue to wear on his Boy Scout uniform, and 
will wear as a knot on his uniform as an adult leader in the future.  
This journey was not easy, but he did not take it alone.  He had 







rabbit.  All were leaving to find food that was not growing in the 
dry, dry desert.   
 
Next Pocochee searched for the desert sheep, but they were not 
to be seen.  For the next season he searched until he found the 
sheep high above the foothills.  When asked why he left the 
desert he said that it was because of the absence of rain.  Without 
the rains the grass and brush would not grow, so the sheep and 
the deer would have to move to higher ground.  The animals 
could not return near the pueblo until the rains returned.   
 
The trickster told Pocochee to seek the wisdom of the Puma who 
was found above the foothills.  Puma asked him what he had 
discovered on his quest and Pocochee shared his knowledge.  
“The answer is plain if you open your eyes, for man must do as 
the other children of Mother Earth are doing and follow the food.  
Until the sky sheds its tears on the dry ground you have no 
choice.”  Sorrow filled the heart of Pocochee when he heard these 
words for leaving his pueblo and the land he loved was not the 
answer he sought.  He turned to the Trickster and asked if this 
was the end of his quest.  Trickster smiled as only the coyote can 
and said, “You still have the council of one more beast, your 
cousin who walks like man and is the strongest of all.  He is the 
watcher of all and understands both Mother Earth’s and her 
children’s needs.” 
 
Pocochee climbed far past the foothills to the tall mountains 
where the deep pine and fur trees grew.  In the den of the large 
claw he met with mighty bear and sat down in council with him.  
Bear heard his words and said, “If you want to bring tears to the 
dry earth you must first anger the sun.  Create a mighty bow and 
harden it with fire.  Find the arrow that will sting the sun and let his 
anger fill the sky.  If you discover how to do this the rains will once 
more appear.” 
 







Arrow to the Sun 
Arrow of Light Ceremony 


 
Let me tell you a story of a young man named Pocochee who 
lived in the southwest many, many years ago.  He was a young 
Native American who lived in a pueblo on a beautiful red mesa.  
He longed for the day when he could join the elders as they met 
in the keva.  He loved to hike the hills and sit under the fire of the 
night sky.  He loved the beauty of the living desert and his place 
in it.   
 
This year was different.  The spring rains were not coming and 
the winter snows in the mountains were light.  The streams in the 
canyons were drying to just a trickle.  Mother Earth was in a 
drought.  The elders met in the keva, but knew no answers, and 
the people of the pueblo wept.  Hunger was sure to come if the 
rains did not.   
 
Pocochee could see that both Mother Earth and his people 
needed help.  He decided to go on a quest to see if he could find 
some answers.  First he needed a guide and what would be better 
than the Trickster, the wise and wily coyote who said, “You must 
meet with the animals, from the smallest to the largest, for as you 
learn from them you will understand their Mother.”  Pocochee 
knew that the honeybee was missing, so he searched for most of 
the season for him.  When he finally found their small hive, he 
asked why they had left.  Honeybee told him that without the rains 
the wild flowers did not come up, and without the flowers there 
was no pollen for them to make honey.  Without the rains Mother 
Earth could not support the hive. 
 
Where were the fox and the badger?  Pocochee found them in the 
foothills.  They had left the desert to follow the mouse and the 








we must be morally straight.  The Scout law teaches us to be friendly, 
courteous and kind.   If we follow all the principles and values in the 
Scout Oath and Law we will find that no giant is too big to block our 
path, and we will always be successful on our journey in the path of life.   


This past year through the Webelos den you have also gained new skills 
and knowledge that have taught you about our environment, our world, 
our families and ourselves.  But this is just the beginning of the journey 
of scouting.  As you cross over into Boy Scouts, many new adventures 
await you with new challenges and new rewards. 


And what about the wood tick?  Well, there will always be little 
annoyances along the path, but we just toss them aside and move on. 


Tonight the path of Cub Scouting has ended for this young man (use his 
name).  At the end of this path is the highest Cub Scouting award he 
can receive, the Arrow of Light.  This is the only award from Cub 
Scouting that he will continue to wear on his uniform through scouting, 
and will be worn as a knot on his uniform as an adult leader. 


Could we please have the Webelos den rise with us and all together 
recite the Boy Scout Oath and the Scout Law. 


 


 


*The story comes directly from a website on the internet of Native 
American legends.  The site is by Paul Burke. 


Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 


 







"Maybe it's the heart." 


"So it is, friend," said Coyote, and began to cut at this mountain. 


Then the giant spoke up. "Is that you, Coyote? I've heard of you. Stop 
this stabbing and cutting and let me alone. You can leave through my 
mouth; I'll open it for you." 


"I'll leave, but not quite yet," said Coyote, hacking at the heart. He told 
the others to get ready. "As soon as I have him in his death throes, there 
will be an earthquake. He'll open his jaw to take a last breath, and then 
his mouth will close forever. So be ready to run out fast!" 


Coyote cut a deep hole in the giant's heart, and lava started to flow out. 
It was the giant's blood. The giant groaned, and the ground under the 
people's feet trembled. 


"Quick, now!" shouted Coyote. The giant's mouth opened and they all 
ran out. The last one was the wood tick. The giant's teeth were closing 
on him, but Coyote managed to pull him through at the last moment. 


"Look at me," cried the wood tick, "I'm all flat!" 


"It happened when I pulled you through," said Coyote. "You'll always be 
flat from now on. Be glad you're alive." 


"I guess I'll get used to it," said the wood tick, and he did.* 


We like Coyote walk along life’s path.  There are many giants that we 
may encounter.  Some of those giants may be such things as the 
temptation to be dishonest and not truthful.  Other giants may come in 
the shape of friends who may want you to smoke, drink or try drugs.  
They may even be smaller giants tempting you not to be nice to your 
younger family members.  Coyote used his wits to slay his giant, but we 
have something even better.  We have the values we learn in the Scout 
Oath and Law.   


We know from the Scout Law that a scout is trustworthy, and we must 
strive to be live up to that principle.  We know from the Scout Oath that 







Feeble as she was, the woman laughed. "You're already in the giant's 
belly." 


"How can I be in his belly?" asked Coyote. "I haven't even met him." 


"You probably thought it was a cave when you walked into his mouth," 
the woman said, and sighed. "It's easy to walk in, but nobody ever walks 
out. This giant is so big you can't take him in with your eyes. His belly 
fills a whole valley." 


Coyote threw his stick away and kept on walking. What else could he 
do? 


Soon he came across some more people lying around half dead. "Are 
you sick?" he asked. 


"No," they said, "just starving to death. We're trapped inside the giant." 


"You're foolish," said Coyote. "If we're really inside this giant, then the 
cave walls must be the inside of his stomach. We can just cut some 
meat and fat from him." 


"We never thought of that," they said. 


"You're not as smart as I am," said Coyote. 


Coyote took his hunting knife and started cutting chunks out of the cave 
walls. As he had guessed, they were indeed the giant's fat and meat, 
and he used it to feed the starving people. He even went back and gave 
some meat to the woman he had met first. Then all the people 
imprisoned in the giant's belly started to feel stronger and happier, but 
not completely happy. "You've fed us," they said, "and thanks. But how 
are we going to get out of here?" 


"Don't worry," said Coyote. "I'll kill the giant by stabbing him in the heart. 
Where is his heart? It must be around here someplace." 


"Look at the volcano puffing and beating over there," someone said. 







 COYOTE KILLS A GIANT 


 ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY  


A Navajo Legend 


Coyote was walking one day when he met Old Woman. She greeted 
him and asked where he was headed. 


"Just roaming around," said Coyote. 


"You better stop going that way, or you'll meet a giant who kills 
everybody." 


"Oh, giants don't frighten me," said Coyote (who had never met one). "I 
always kill them. I'll fight this one too, and make an end of him." 


"He's bigger and closer than you think," said Old Woman. 


"I don't care," said Coyote, deciding that a giant would be about as big 
as a bull moose and calculating that he could kill one easily. 


So Coyote said good-bye to Old Woman and went ahead, whistling a 
tune. On his way he saw a large fallen branch that looked like a club. 
Picking it up, he said to himself, "I'll hit the giant over the head with this. 
It's big enough and heavy enough to kill him." He walked on and came 
to a huge cave right in the middle of the path. Whistling merrily, he went 
in. 


Suddenly Coyote met a woman who was crawling along on the ground. 


"What's the matter?" he asked. 


"I'm starving," she said, "and too weak to walk. What are you doing with 
that stick?" 


"I'm going to kill the giant with it," said Coyote, and he asked if she knew 
where he was hiding. 








Wolf advancement is like the era of the biplanes.  The advancements 
are interesting with many new things to learn.  Every experience 
teaches the scout a new skill.  Just like the early biplanes, progression 
is very rapid. 


The golden age of aviation was filled with excitement, and so is the 
Bear den.  There are more new experiences and cool things to learn 
as the boys work on their rank advancement and arrow points.  The 
world is expanding at an amazing pace. 


Webelos is where the scouts really mature.  They are learning to 
become Boy Scouts, and preparing for the transition.  The activity 
badges increase their knowledge and experience.  This is the jet age 
of Cub Scouting.   


And what is space age of Cub Scouting?  What is the greatest 
achievement possible—it is the Arrow of Light.  It is the Cub Scout 
equivalent to standing on the moon.  It is the only Cub Scout award 
that can be worn on their Boy Scout uniform.  It can also be worn on 
the adult uniform as a square knot.  It is the dream that can come true 
for every Cub Scout that works hard and stays involved.  Tonight we 
are pleased to honor one such scout. 


 


By Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge ticket, WE7-590-3-08 


 







improved designs were being developed at a feverish pace.  By the 
end of the war, airplanes had entered what is known as the golden age 
of flight. 


Pioneers such as Charles Lindbergh won the hearts of the world in 
1927 as he flew his plane, The Spirit of St. Louis from New York to 
Paris becoming the first person to fly solo across the Atlantic Ocean.  
In 1931 Wiley Post flew around the world in 8 days.  Howard Hughes 
built speed planes and set world speed records.  The golden age was 
filled with romance and grand dreams. 


World War II threw the world into another race to build bigger and 
faster planes.  Germany created the first modern era fighter plane with 
the Messerschmitt Bf 109.  America answered with the P-51 Mustang.  
Germany shocked the world when they developed the first turbojet 
powered plane.  That new plane would change the aviation world.  At 
the end of the war the captured jets would spread the technology 
throughout the world.  The jets we fly around the world today came 
from that revolution.   


There was still one more dream mankind had envisioned, and that was 
space flight.  As rocket technology was developed, America joined in a 
race with the Russians to conquer the last frontier.  In 1961 Alan 
Shepard became the first American to enter the realms of space with a 
15 minute sub-orbital flight.  John Glenn became the first American in 
1962 to orbit the earth.  In the summer of 1969, just 8 years after our 
first space flight and a mere 65 ½ years after the Wright brother’s first 
powered flight, American astronauts Neil Armstrong and Buzz Aldrin 
landed and walked on the surface of the moon.   


Tonight we have a room full of dreamers, from the youngest to the 
oldest of individuals.  The young boys who have come with their 
scouting brothers are much like the stories of Daedalus and Icarus.  
They dream and wonder what it will be like when they are in scouts.   


The new Cub Scouts are like the dawn of aviation, taking their first 
steps forward.  They are learning the basics, just as the Wright 
brothers were discovering the basics of powered flight.  These are the 
scouts that are working on their bobcat advancement.   







 ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY—THE DREAM OF FLIGHT 
 


One of the things that separate man from the rest of the animal 
kingdom is our ability to dream of what might be and make those 
dreams come true.  One of the dreams man has had since the dawn of 
time is that of flight, to be like the birds in the heavens and stretch our 
wings on the currents of air to free ourselves from the bonds of earthly 
gravity.   


 
Those dreams first manifested themselves as mythological tales such 
as Daedalus and his son Icarus.  Daedalus was a master craftsman 
who created the labyrinth for King Minos which held the Minotaur.  The 
king was afraid that Daedalus might reveal the secrets of the labyrinth, 
so he and his son, Icarus were imprisoned in a tower.  In order to 
escape, Daedalus fashioned wings out of feathers held together with 
thread and wax.  He warned Icarus not to fly to close to the sun for the 
wax might melt, and not to close to the water for the feather might pick 
up moisture, and in both cases the wings might fail.  Their daring 
escape began wonderful as freedom was within their grasp.  Icarus 
became so excited with flight that he began to soar and play on the  air 
currents.  Forgetting his father’s warnings, he soared above the clouds 
where the sun melted the wax causing the wings to fall apart.  Much to 
his father’s horror, Icarus plummeted into the sea and drowned. 
 
Dreams became more than mere stories when two brothers, Wilber 
and Orville Wright set out to create powered flight.  Taking the profits 
from their bicycle shop, they started designing and flying gliders.  As 
their designs improved they built them in large scale and started flying 
them as kites.  Back in their shop they built a wind tunnel to test 
models of their designs.  In 1900 the brothers started building full size 
gliders and flying them at Kitty Hawk, North Carolina.  In 1903 the 
brothers added an engine and propellers and in December of that year 
heavier than air powered flight became a reality.   


World War I brought about tremendous advances in aviation as planes 
became weapons.  Biplanes filled the air with such famous Aces as 
Germany’s Red Baron, Manfred von Richthofen, Canada’s Billy 
Bishop, and America’s Ace, Eddie Rickenbacker.  Though the early 
planes were slow and could break apart in steep dives, new and 








and surviving in the elements.   He has practiced gaining 
physical strength and learned how to take care of his body to 
keep it healthy and strong.  He has learned about 
communications, science, engineering, safety and first aid, 
and he has learned about the arts.  His long journey has 
brought him from the blue seas of the young Cub Scout to 
the golden seas of the graduating Webelos Scout.  What 
makes his seas golden is the sun setting in the west, half 
way down on the horizon.  This is the symbol of the sun that 
is pictured on his Arrow of Light badge, the sun splitting the 
image of the arrow on the horizon.   
 
Tonight we are honored to present the Arrow of Light Award 
which he has earned over the past year.  It is the highest 
award presented in Cub Scouting and the only award he will 
continue to wear on his uniform into Boy Scouts, and will be 
recognized on his uniform as an adult leader some day as a 
knot symbol above his pocket.   
 
 
Eric Christiansen 
 WE7-590-3-08 
 
*Note:  Pictures can be downloaded from the internet of 
Thomas Jefferson, Lewis and Clark, the Pony Express, the 
telegraph, and the driving of the golden spike.  The young 
man or men can hold the pictures up during the presentation 
so they are actively involved. 


 
 


 







Express.  The telegraph would carry the messages half way 
across the country and the Pony Express riders would then 
carry the messages the rest of the way.  It was difficult work, 
for the riders had to be tough and lightweight.  One famous 
advertisement reportedly read, “Wanted: Young, skinny, wiry 
fellows not over eighteen.  Must be expert riders, willing to 
risk death daily.  Orphans preferred.” 
 
The Pony Express only ran for 18 months from 1860 to 1861 
when the Pacific Telegraph Company from the east met up 
with the Overland Telegraph Company from the west in Salt 
Lake City.  The Pony Express had held the country together.   
 
Now the country was linked where communications back 
and forth took very little time, but moving goods and people 
from coast still took a huge effort.  In 1869 in a remote area 
of Utah called Promontory, this all changed with the driving 
of the Golden Spike linking the Central Pacific and Union 
Pacific Railroads to complete the first transcontinental 
railroad. 
 
Today with modern telecommunications we can speak 
instantaneously across the country and news can be 
broadcast just as rapidly into our homes.   With jet aviation 
we can travel from coast to coast in just a few hours.  We 
are truly one country from “sea to shining sea”. 
 
The spirit of exploration still lives on today.  Tonight we 
honor a young man who has constantly looked over the 
horizon to gain more knowledge and more skills.  Just as the 
members of the Corp of Discovery stood on the Great Divide 
and looked west, not knowing what was ahead, this young 
man has summited personal peaks and looked forward with 
only his dreams to lead him on.  He has spent time in the 
outdoors and learned of nature.  He has learned of maps 







From Sea to Shining Sea 
Arrow of Light Ceremony  


 
In the patriotic song,”America” we speak of our country being 
from “sea to shining sea”.  But it wasn’t always that way.  At 
the turn of the century in 1800 our country went only from 
the Atlantic Ocean to the Mississippi River.   
 
In the early 1800’s the United States were offered the 
French holdings to the west.  President Thomas Jefferson 
authorized what was to become known as the Louisiana 
Purchase for the sum of 15 million dollars, or about three 
cents per acre.  
 
Congress authorized an expedition called the Corp of 
Discovery to explore, map and document the newly acquired 
region.  President Jefferson chose Meriwether Lewis to lead 
the expedition and Lewis chose his friend William Clark to be 
the co-leader.  From 1804 to1806 Captains Lewis and Clark 
led a company of 33 men from St. Louis up the Mississippi 
and then up the Missouri Rivers, across the Rocky 
Mountains and the Great Divide and down to the mouth of 
the Columbia River.  The expedition was both military and 
scientific in nature as the country now did stretch from sea to 
sea. 
 
With the conclusion of the Mexican War the United States 
extended clear through to California, but with the Civil War 
looming the government needed to make sure the west did 
not follow the South into rebellion.  To keep California loyal 
to the Union a communications link was created between 
Washington, D.C. and Sacramento where messages could 
be exchanged in just 10 days, and that was accomplished by 
the use of the telegraph and the newly organized Pony 








attend their meetings, they have the opportunity to earn the highest 
award in Cub Scouting, the Arrow of Light Award.  This is the only 
award from Cub Scouts that you will continue to wear on your 
uniform throughout your scouting career.  This enters you into the 
modern age of development, where all things are possible, where 
the tools are available for you to progress through the ranks of 
scouting and continue on to the rank of Eagle Scout.  Tonight we 
would like to award the Arrow of Light to _____________ and send 
on his continuing path of scouting. 
 
 


            By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 


 







capture Helen and return her to her husband, the Spartan King, 
Menelaus.  Their shields and armor, swords, arrow and spear 
heads would have all been made of bronze. 
 
The Bronze Age led way to the Iron Age.  Man discovered he could 
melt down the iron oxide he found and create an even stronger 
metal.  By adding carbon to the molten metal, it became steel, and 
steel could be hardened or tempered by cooling it quickly after 
forging.  Steel was strong enough to create not only tools and 
weapons, but even cooking pots and building materials.  From nails 
to beams, steel improved the lives of people throughout the world.  
When you think of great and tall structures such as the Empire 
State Building, they could not have been built without the steel 
skeleton made out of metal beams.  
 
In modern times we have all kinds of new metals and metal alloys.  
Aluminum is light enough to be used in the construction of aircraft, 
while alloys such as cobalt steel are stronger and harder than their 
predecessors.  We have come very far since the days of sticks and 
stones.   
 
Tonight we have a young man who has also come very far.  He 
has participated in the Cub Scouting program and grown as he has 
passed from one stage to the next.  Becoming a Scout and 
learning about the Bobcat requirements is similar to the Stone Age, 
where our tools are simple.  The age of copper would be like the 
Wolf, where the tools used to learn are becoming more refined.  
We add a little to the mix and the tools of the Bears are the Bronze 
Age of Cubbing.  Each stage offers the tools for growth and 
learning, with each having its own adventures.   
 
The Iron Age of Cub Scouting is the Webelos program, where 
great adventures and experiences prepare the young men for Boy 
Scouts.  Every activity badge they earn gives them a chance to 
learn and grow.  We learn about our duty to God, duty to our 
country and our duty to ourselves.  If the young men work hard and 







From the Stone Age to Today 
Arrow of Light Ceremony 


 
Let me tell you a story of the progress of man.  If we were to go 
into the outback of Australia just a few years ago, we would 
witness the men making spears to hunt with.  First they would find 
a certain plant with long roots that stretched out under the surface 
of the ground.  Digging it up they would have a root of fairly 
consistent diameter about five or six feet long, but it would have 
many twists and curves to it. After cleaning it up to make it smooth, 
they would hold it over a fire and start to heat it up a section at a 
time.  As the root became warm they would twist it and pull it until 
the root became straight and true.  The process took patience and 
many hours to produce a long straight shaft.  On the tapered end 
they would sharpen the spear to a point by grinding it on the 
surface of rocks.  The last thing was to harden the point over the 
fire.  Launched with a throwing stick, these spears could be 
accurate over many yards, and allowed hunting parties to supply 
meat to their village.   
 
This is a modern example of how man made tools during the Stone 
Age.  People throughout the world began by making similar tools.  
They used wood, antlers and stone to create tools and weapons.  
On this continent the Native Americans made knives, arrow heads, 
spear heads and scrappers out of obsidian, a glass like rock found 
in many areas.  Skilled craftsmen would pound the edges of the 
rock to give them shape and sharp edges.   
 
Eventually man began to take a green mineral, melt it down and 
make a hardened metal, and the age of copper began.  A 
mummified Iceman from about 3300 BC, given the name Otiz, was 
discovered with a copper axe and a stone knife.  Very quickly men 
found that by adding other minerals such as tin, the metal could be 
made much stronger and harder, and the Bronze Age began.  It 
was during this time that the Trojan War was fought, where the 
Achaeans or Greeks laid siege to the city of Troy for nine years to 








the community, for it provided the meat that sustained them through 
the year, provided the skins and furs for their clothing, their beds, and 
in many cases their lodgings.  They didn’t kill for fun or sport, but for 
their needs.  When an animal was taken, a prayer was offered giving 
thanks and honoring the noble beast.  Thus, they learned not to waste, 
so there would always be game for future years.  And what was 
harvested was always used to its fullest capacity.  When the youth 
finally brought down a large animal, it marked part of the passage into 
manhood, for he was taking care of his village. 
 
Tonight we have a room full of youth, growing into young men.  Just 
like the small boys who have only played games of pretending, we 
have boys who are entering the pack.  As a bobcat they are as the 
boys who are just learning of the animal tracks and signs.  As they gain 
more experience and learn more skills they become wolves and bears, 
much like the boys who are learning to track their prey.  All these 
experiences make them stronger and increase their knowledge.   They 
are exposed to so many different themes and activities along their 
scouting journey.  As they become Webelos, they are young hunters, 
having developed the skills through their long journey.  But not all will 
become the great hunter they desire.  It takes hard work and 
dedication to achieve the highest goal.  They must pass many tests 
and achieve many awards along the journey.  Those who do are 
qualified to receive the highest honor bestowed upon a Cub Scout.  
Like the young brave who has made his first step towards being a 
great hunter, we have a young scout who is making his first step 
towards boy scouts as he is ready to receive his Arrow of Light award.  
This is the only Cub Scout award that you can continue to wear on the 
Boy Scout uniform, and will be represented as a knot badge on your 
adult scout uniform.  It is an award of that significance.  
 
Tonight we have such a Scout in our midst.   
 
 
 
 
By Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge ticket, WE7-590-3-08 







ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY 
A HUNTERS TALE 


 
Our Native American forefathers have left us with many insights and 
examples of working with nature.  Some nations were farmer hunters, 
while others were hunter gatherers.  The nations were small in 
comparison to today’s population, making each group autonomous and 
self sufficient for food and most supplies.  Although there was a 
healthy market of trade among the tribes, items traded were small that 
could carried over long distances.  Food, shelter and skins had to be 
acquired by each group.  
 
The hunter became a very important and valuable member of the tribe, 
and many young men aspired to become a great hunter.  As small 
boys they would play games through the village pretending to stalk and 
capture prey.  These games were the beginning of their training.  As 
they grew a little older, the men would take them out and show them 
how to recognize animal signs and tracks.  They would learn the 
difference between the cottontail and the jack rabbit, fox and the 
coyote, the wolf and the bear, the deer and the elk, the sheep and the 
buffalo.   
 
The young men grew and had the chance to learn new skills.  They 
were taught to handle the spear and the bow and arrow.  For hours 
they would practice throwing and shooting, honing their skills and 
growing in confidence.  Next they would go out on small hunting 
parties, learning how to track with stealth, never making a sound.  
They learned to read the winds so to always stay down wind.  Their 
prey must never catch their scent.  They learned to use the sun to their 
advantage, never casting a shadow that would give away their 
position.  Even the calls of the prey could be learned to be mimicked to 
draw them in close to the hunters.   
 
Many years of preparation brought them to this point.  The small boys 
started hunting by taking small animals such a rabbits and prairie fowl, 
making their first contribution to the family meals.  But the large game 
was reserved for the men.  This was the prey that was so important to 








badges in Mental Skills, became a better citizen and family member as 
he earned his Community badges, experienced and dreamed as he 
earned his Technology badges, and began to experience nature with 
the Outdoor badges.  These experiences have given him the chance to 
dream, create, envision, and enjoy being a young man.  These are the 
sparks that create innovative people. 


Tonight the end of this journey is just the beginning of a new one.  This 
one ends with the highest award earned in Cub Scouting, the Arrow of 
Light Award.  It is the only award that he will continue to wear on his 
uniform through his Boy Scout journey, and will be recognized as a 
knot on his adult uniform.  Congratulations.  


 


*Have the Scout hold up pictures with each innovator.  Galileo/solar 
system, Franklin/kite with lightning, Edison/light bulb, Ford/model T on 
assembly line, Einstein/E=mc2, Disney/Mickey Mouse, 
Farnsworth/television, Baden-Powell/his picture.  All are found on the 
internet. 


 


By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 







meager military salary he began to write books.  His subjects would 
cover military themes to hunting.   
 
Eventually his service took him to South Africa where he served during 
the Second Boer War.  During his African campaign he realized that 
many of the young soldiers were very poor at reconnaissance and 
decided to write a book on scouting.  It covered how to be stealth when 
observing, how to find your way through the wilderness, and how to 
survive in the wild.  His manuscript was sent back to England for 
publication. 
 
During the Boer War Baden-Powell found himself defending a city that 
was surrounded and under siege.  He needed to make the enemy think 
they were a larger and more powerful force than they actually were.  
This is where his experience with theater came into practical use.  He 
marched men around in large circles to make his force look larger, 
created fake gun emplacements and had his men stretch out imaginary 
coils of barbed wire far away enough from the enemy lines that they 
assumed they just couldn’t see the actual wire.  News accounts 
followed the siege in England.   
 
After 217 days the city was relieved having never fallen.  When Baden-
Powell returned home he found himself a hero.  Another unexpected 
turn was that his book on scouting was not being purchased by young 
military men, but by young men longing to be in the outdoors.   They 
were forming groups and working together.  Baden-Powell saw the 
need and the potential of a youth organization and founded the Boy 
Scouts organization.   
 


Today we are the result of that vision.  The Boy Scouts of America has 
a mission to prepare young people to make ethical and moral choices 
over their lifetimes by instilling in them the values of the Scout Oath 
and Law.  Tonight we have a young man who has who has been on a 
journey for the last year to complete his Cub Scout experience and 
move on to Boy Scouts.  During this year he has learned about himself 
as he has earned badges in Physical Skills, challenged himself earning 







One of the greatest minds of the last century was Albert Einstein.  Born 
in Germany in 1879, he was a theoretical physicist who revolutionized 
his field.  Often called the father of modern physics, he was a Nobel 
Prize winning scientist.  He left Europe because of the start of the 
Second World War.  He immigrated to the United States where he was 
free to continue his work. 
 
A name we are all familiar with is that of Walt Disney.  Born in 1901, he 
was an artist and cartoonist, and a pioneer in the field of animation.  
He invented the multiplane camera which gave depth to his animated 
films.  His was the first studio to produce a full length animated film, 
Snow White and the Seven Dwarfs.  Everyone said it was folly and that 
it would never succeed, but it did and became the most successful film 
of the year.  Upon that success he built up a film and entertainment 
empire that included theme parks around the world.  Walt Disney’s 
imagination and creativity has put smiles on the faces of children and 
adults everywhere.   
 
An inventive person very close to here was a man born in Beaver, 
Utah in 1906 named Philo T. Farnsworth.  As a young man his family 
moved to Rigby, Idaho where the family had a house wired for 
electricity and a generator.  Philo was fascinated with anything electric 
and started rebuilding old motors, and even attached one to his 
mother’s washing machine.  While working in the fields he began to 
design electron tubes in his mind.  At high school he drew them out on 
the chalk board for his science teacher.  These were the tubes that 
would lead to his invention of the television tube and the modern day 
television.  Thus Philo is the father of television. 
 
The visionary man I want to talk about now is very important to all of 
us.  Robert Baden-Powell was born in England in 1857.  The youngest 
of many siblings, he loved to be outside to play, to stalk animals 
through the woods, to hide from others and be as one with nature as 
much as possible.  Upon completion of school he joined the army and 
was stationed in India.  He loved working on horseback and playing 
polo, but also excelled in theatrical productions.  To supplement his 







ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY 
INNOVATIVE PEOPLE 


 
Throughout history and even around us today are innovative people.  
These are people who are dreamers, thinkers, inventors and 
visionaries. 
 
One such person was an Italian man born in 1564 by the name Galileo 
Galilei.  He was a physicist, mathematician, astronomer, and 
philosopher.  He is considered the father of modern physics, the father 
of science, and the father of observational astronomy.  He made 
improvements to the telescope and through observation of the sky 
announced to the world that the earth and other planets revolved 
around the sun rather than everything revolving around the earth.  For 
that pronouncement he was forced to spend the rest of his life under 
house arrest where he was still able to write about his research. 
  
Benjamin Franklin was another very inventive person.  Born in 1706, 
he was an author, printer, politician, postmaster, scientist, musician, 
inventor, statesman and diplomat.  He studied electricity, invented the 
lightning rod, bifocals, the Franklin stove, and even a carriage 
odometer.  He was a founding father of our nation, and helped to 
shape the country in which we now live.   
 
One of the best known American inventors was Thomas Edison.  Born 
in 1847, he gave the world such things as the phonograph, the motion 
picture camera, and the long lasting light bulb.  He is known as the 
fourth most prolific inventor holding over 1000 patents.  He was a wise 
business man who hired a team of people to work on his concepts and 
projects. 
 
Modern industry owes a great deal to Henry Ford who not only created 
a line of practical automobiles, but developed the concept of the 
assembly line in manufacturing.  Born in 1863, he built one of the 
largest and most successful auto companies in the world. 
 








our beacons, our guiding lights, we can navigate through the dangerous 
waters of life.   
 
The Arrow of Light is one of those beacons.  It guides Webelos towards 
goals, learning experiences, and good values.  In order to earn this 
award the Webelo scout has had to learn about conservation, family life, 
community service and personal fitness.  He has also learned skills in 
arts and crafts, sports, home repair and outdoor life.  He has learned 
about communications, engineering, and science.  He has also learned 
how to handle the American flag with proper respect and love and 
respect for his country.   
 
This award is the passage way into Boy Scouts, preparing for the 
transition into the scout troop.  He has learned the scout oath and law 
as well as the requirements to earn the first rank, the Tenderfoot badge.  
The journey continues with the foundation built in the Cub Scouting 
program.  The Arrow of Light is a bright light that will adorn his uniform 
as long as he is involved in scouting.  It is the only patch from Cub 
Scouting that is worn on the scout uniform, and is worn as a knot 
emblem on the uniform as an adult.   
 
(Addressed to the scout) 
As the lighthouses on the shores, this Arrow of Light award is that 
beacon you have followed helping you to find safety as you continue on 
the path of life. 
  
 
 
 
*Note—the presenter can wear a costume such as a navy p-coat or 
yellow rain slicker with a dark knit hat.  If wanted, a model of a sailing 
vessel can be displayed, and at the talk of lighthouses the house lights 
dimmed and a flash light beam flashed on the ship. 
 
By Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge ticket, WE7-590-3-08 







ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY 
MARINER’S TALE 


 
From ancient times mariners have crossed vast bodies of water; some 
involved in trading, some as fishers of the sea, others as adventurers 
seeking new lands, treasures and fortunes.  Unlike those who travel by 
land, when it became dark they could not just stop, set up camp and fall 
asleep.  While on the water they were constantly moving, so they 
always had to be aware of hidden dangers.  The key to safety was light.  
By day the sailors were guided by the sun.  At night they had the moon 
and the stars to follow.  Members of the crew were always on watch.  At 
night the pilot was at the helm, one on watch with a keen eye was high 
on the mast to assure clear passage, and when moving in shallow 
waters with hidden reefs, a spotter would be set on the bow (the front of 
the boat) to help guide the boat safely through.  The most dangerous 
times were rough waters when storm clouds filled the skies, blocking out 
all light from the celestial bodies.   
 
The ocean floors are littered with the remains of ships that lost their way 
in dangerous waters.  The new world had many inviting islands and 
coastal shores that were buffered by reefs and shallow rocks.  Narrow 
passages would allow the mariners to navigate safely through them, but 
these passages were not always apparent.   
 
To help vessels find their bearings and avoid dangerous shores, 
lighthouses were built to guide the mariners.  Lighthouses were there to 
guide them and keep them safe. 
 
We have lighthouses in our lives to keep us safe.  Those beacons are 
such things as our families, our faith, and scouting.  The dangerous 
shores are such things as tobacco and alcohol, cheating or being 
dishonest, giving in to peer pressure to do things you should not.  Other 
dangerous waters may be such things as being unkind to those who 
may be different than you, or not helping those who really need a friend 
or a kind word.  Wasting our natural resources or being disrespectful of 
the outdoors could be a dangerous reef we need to avoid.  By following 








under ground, he has been on a path of discovery during this past 
year.  Some of the nuggets he has acquired are knowledge about 
the outdoors, about being a citizen of this great country, about 
physical activities and sports, about scholarship and about service.  
The collection of these nuggets has given him a wealth unlike any 
other, and now the light at the end of his tunnel looks like a sun 
burst over an arrow.  It is the highest award in Cub Scouting, the 
Arrow of light award.  It is the only Cub Scouting award that he can 
wear on his Boy Scout uniform and later on as a knot on his adult 
uniform.  Let us honor him now. 
 
By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 







east of Big Cottonwood Canyon, descended down the other side 
and crossed what is now called Bonanza Flats.  As they reached a 
small peak across the valley, they saw what they recognized as an 
outcropping of ore in a rock formation.  But, as they looked to the 
northwest, they could see a storm front approaching.  Not wanting to 
become stuck in the first winter storm of the season, a bandana was 
tied to a staff, and the pole was placed upright with a pile of stones 
around it.  They beat it back across the flats and over the ridge 
before the storm trapped them.  The next spring an expedition was 
led back to the marker, where mining began in Park City.  The peak 
of the discovery of silver is Flagstaff Mountain at Deer Valley Resort 
in Park City. 
 
Mining really hit its boom after the war when men were free to start 
going out on their own again.  So, what was it like to be a miner?  
First of all, it was very hard work.  The shifts were much longer than 
just eight hours, and they would often work ten to twelve days in a 
row before getting just one day off.  They would go down in the mine 
shafts down elevators that were wire cages, just big enough for a 
few men.  Once down in the mine it was cold and often very wet.  
They lit candles for light and worked in almost pitch darkness.  They 
would drill holes in the rock with a hammer and chisel.  When the 
holes were deep enough they would place explosives in them and 
light the fuse before running around the corner to a safe place.  
When the dynamite exploded, they would use picks and shovels to 
remove the debris and haul out the ore.  It was back breaking work 
and took a lot of strength and endurance to do the job.   
 
The time the men looked forward to the most was their assent out of 
the mine at the end of their shift.  Their hearts would be full when 
they would finally see the daylight breaking at the entrance to the 
tunnel.  This was known as the light at the end of the tunnel. 
 
We have a young man who has been deep in the tunnel of Webelos, 
and tonight he is seeing the light at the end of his tunnel.  Just as 
the miners made discoveries of ore and nuggets while working deep 







Arrow of Light Ceremony  
Our Mining History 


 
As we look back on our local history we find that it is full of rich and 
colorful individuals.  There were the Native Americans that inhabited 
these mountains and valleys, followed by mountain men, pioneers, 
soldiers and miners.  Each one left their mark on the land and had a 
story to tell.   
 
When the Civil War broke out in 1861, the nation was concerned 
about the west and particularly how Utah would side in the conflict.  
President Lincoln had already sent Union troops to Maryland and 
Delaware to make sure they didn’t side with the South.  Being 
unsure of where Utah stood, he decided to organize a company of 
volunteers out of California and send them east to Salt Lake City.   
 
Once the troops arrived under the command of Colonel Patrick E. 
Connor and set up Fort Douglas, they found they were an army 
without an enemy to fight.  With all this time on their hands, the 
directive was given the troops to search for precious metals to help 
the treasury finance the costly war.   
 
So, who were the soldiers of the California Volunteers?  Most had 
traveled across the country from 1849 through 1860 in hopes of 
making their fortunes in the California Gold Rush.  These were the 
49’ers.  When asked to prospect in the Great Basin, this company 
had a wealth of experience from which to draw.  They found copper 
up Bingham Canyon, now the sight of the largest open pit mine in 
the world.  They went up Little Cottonwood Canyon to set up a saw 
mill to produce lumber, and while there discovered silver.  This was 
at the present site of the Alta Ski Resort.   The soldiers were 
becoming quite successful. 
 
One cold October day in 1868, soldiers from Alta decided to do a 
little exploring.  They headed north and crossed over the ridge just 








 
The 1900’s brought the final quest for the highest peaks on the planet.  In 
1913 the American, Hudson Stuck ascended Mount McKinley in Alaska 
which, at 20,320 feet is the highest peak in North America.  It was followed 
by numerous explorers, adventurers and mountaineers who went on to 
climb the highest peaks on each continent.  The toughest challenge was 
the granddaddy of them all, Mount Everest.  The British made several 
attempts in the 1920’s, but none were successful and many fatal.  Finally, 
on May 29, 1953, the world’s highest peak was reached at 29,029 feet by 
the New Zealander, Sir Edmund Hillary and the Nepali Sherpa, Tenzing 
Norgay.  They truly stood on the top of the world. 
 
Tonight we have with us a young man who has also climbed to the top of a 
mountain.  That is the mountain of Cub Scouting.  On his shoulder he 
proudly displays his Webelos Colors, which hold his Activity Badges.  Each 
one represents a mountain he has climbed.  We are going to ask him to 
describe his two favorite badges and what he did to earn them. 
 
Each of these climbs prepared him for higher ascents, his Webelos rank 
and tonight his highest ascent, the Arrow of Light Award.  This is the 
highest summit in Cub Scouting, but is it the highest summit you will reach 
in Scouting?  (Response) 
 
Many summits still stretch out before you, with the Mount Everest of 
Scouting at the end, the rank of Eagle Scout.  We congratulate you tonight 
and wish you well on your further journey. 
 
(Props: ropes coiled around the scout’s shoulder, climbing pick or ice axe, 
Alpine hat if available)  
 
Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge WE7-590-3-08 







Mountaineering Arrow of Light Ceremony 
 


Tonight we are going to climb mountains. (give props to boys) Throughout 
the ages, man has had the desire to climb mountains.  Many have risen to 
the challenge, taking great risks and enduring great physical hardships to 
achieve their goal.  Many have tried, and a select few have succeeded.  
And what did they achieve?  A chance to stand on the top of the world. 
 
We know that early man climbed the slopes of mountains.  The body of 
one such climber was preserved in a glacier in the Alps at about 10,000 
feet.  The man dates back to about 5,300 years ago. 
 
We know that Moses climbed the mountain in the wilderness to speak with 
the Lord and receive the Ten Commands.   
 
The first recorded mountain ascent since the meridian of time was in 
A.D.121 the Roman Emperor Hadrian made his ascent up Mount Etna at 
almost 11,000 feet, and why?  He wanted to see the sun rise. 
 
Peter III of Aragon climbed to the top of Canigou in the Pyrenees in the last 
quarter of the 13th century, while at about the same time in the new world, 
members of a local tribe in Mexico made their ascent up the 17,800 peak 
of Popocatepetl.   
 
In the mid 14th century the peaks of the Italian Alps were being summited, 
while in the late 14th and early 15th centuries in the new world the Incas 
climbed all through the Andes, building platforms, houses and alters.  The 
highest peak known that they summited was 22,110. 
 
In 1642, Darby Field made the first recorded ascent up what is now known 
as Mount Washington, New Hampshire.  During that same century the use 
of ropes and ice axes were first used in the Swiss Alps.  In the early 1800’s 
the major peaks of the Alps were conquered.  Thereafter, tourists began 
climbing and the whole field of Alpine guides was created.  At the end of 
the 1800’s Africa’s Kilimanjaro was summited while close to home the 
Grand Teton in Wyoming was conquered. 








entered his village the elder inquired of his journey.  He recounted his 
experiences and what he had learned each brother, how Mother Earth 
had sheltered him on a high ledge and how Father Sky had warmed 
his soul. 
 
“You are no longer a boy,” said the elder, “but a young man.  Father 
Sky has given you a new name, for you shall be known as Morning 
Arrow.” 
 
Then the young man told of his experience with the Brother Eagle.  
“Yes,” said the elder, “Brother Eagle is like those who are waiting to 
help you on your journey into manhood.  And some day soon you will 
become as Brother Eagle, a grown man, and you will help those who 
come after on their journey to manhood.” 
 
Tonight we have someone who, once a boy, has become a young 
man.  He has journeyed through the world of Cub Scouting and has 
earned his Arrow of Light, an award that he will wear on his uniform 
through his scouting life.  As he crosses into Boy Scouting, he will have 
leaders who will carry him on their backs until he learns to soar on his 
own.  Someday in the near future as he comes closer to manhood, he 
will reach the rank of Eagle Scout, with experiences along the way that 
will make him strong, reverent, kind, full of hope and joy, and a leader 
among those he serves.  Let us Honor him now. 
 
 
 
 
 
By Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge ticket, WE7-590-3-08 







predators, and their young who were at risk were surrounded by the 
adults.  They moved together knowing that part of their strength was 
their numbers.  “Now I know why the Brother Buffalo is thought of for 
being so strong, for they stay together and become mighty” said the 
boy.   


 
For many hours the boy traveled until he came to the edge of the 
mountains.  There upon the rocks stood the big horn sheep.  The boy 
crept up toward the big ram, but the sheep would always jump upon 
the rocks above and keep his distance.  Upward they climbed, Brother 
Ram always in the lead.  They climbed until the sun slipped beyond the 
mountains and the boy found himself on a ledge high above the plains 
in the distance.  “Now I know why Brother Ram is so respected, for he 
is wise enough to always stay away from danger, and keep himself 
protected from things that may bring him harm” said the boy. 
 
As the light slipped away, the boy wrapped himself in the skin and fell 
asleep.  The air was cold and fresh, and dreams filled his head of his 
different brothers and what they had taught him.  His sleep was broken 
as the darkness was replaced by a firry red sky.  He filled his lungs 
with cold crisp air and watched as the sun began to rise on the thin line 
of the plain.  With hills on either side of the sun, it appeared that the 
rising sun rested on a great arrow, an arrow full of fire and light.  A 
great warmth filled his heart and he felt cold no more. 
 
He was ready to climb down to make his return when a curious thing 
caught his eye.  High above him on the mountain he saw Brother 
Eagle soaring on the morning winds.  He would return to the nest and 
push the young eaglets out into the air.  They would start to fly, but 
tumble through the air until Eagle would swoop down and catch the 
youth on his back.  Up to the nest they would go to start the process 
again.  Each time the eaglet would fly further before being rescued, 
until finally the boy saw the youth return to the nest without assistance.   
 
Down the mountain the boy descended and across the plains he hiked 
following the smoke rising from the morning fires of his village. As he 







Arrow of Light Ceremony  
On Eagle’s Wings 


 
Many years ago a young boy lived with his village on the edge of the 
plains, where the foothills started to break up the land. He had reached 
the age where he was ready to cross into the realm of young men.  He 
approached the elder and asked what he needed to do to become a 
man. 
 
“You must journey by yourself and learn from our brothers of the field, 
from Mother Earth and Father Sky.  They will teach you what you need 
to know, and if you learn you will gain their wisdom.” 
 
With that challenge from the elder, the boy took a skin and wrapped 
provisions in it and headed out into the wilderness.  He walked for 
many lengths until he came to a meadow where he found Brother 
Coyote hunting for rabbits.  He was cunning and quiet as he made his 
way through the tall grasses.  Once he surprised a hare who took off 
running.  The boy thought it curious that Coyote didn’t run after his 
prey, simply laid down and rolled in the grass.  The rabbit feeling 
secure stopped running and began to nibble the grass leaves.  Coyote 
began to sneak around coming up far behind the rabbit until in one 
quick pounce the rabbit was his.  Coyote used his energy wisely and 
out thought his prey.  “Now I know why they call him the trickster” said 
the boy.   
 
Further on his journey the boy met Brother Fox who was in search of 
field mice.  He stood very still and listened intently.  Suddenly he 
jumped into the grass and come up with a mouse.  The boy watched 
Fox repeat this process many times.  Fox was crafty enough to be 
patient and use his ears to find his prey.  He did not waste his energy 
running around.  “Now I know why they call him sly and crafty” said the 
boy.   
 
As the boy traveled on he met a small herd of bison.  They moved on 
without care and fear.  Their mammoth size made them safe from 








As a brother Bobcat we learn all about the Cub Scouts, with its 
oath and law, the handshake and the salute.  We learn the 
responsibility that we have to God, our country and to ourselves.  
Bobcat is the beginning of our Cub Scout trail. 
 
Brother Wolf is our next experience.  A wolf is a family member, 
one who always takes care of the others in the pack.  Akela is the 
leader of the pack and watches over the family.  Together they are 
strong and able to accomplish many great tasks.  Great fun is had 
by sharing experiences with the group. 
 
The Native Americans thought of the bear as a close relative, since 
he was very much like them when he stood on two feet.  The bear 
is strong, one of the mightiest beast in all the land.  As a bear we 
learn to stand tall as we learn of the earth, of our country and learn 
skills that we will use for the rest of our lives.   
 
Now we are Webelos, no longer associated with the animals of the 
earth, but with a very special group.  What does Webelos mean?  It 
stands for “We Be Loyal Scouts”.  As a Webelos we earn badges in 
science, fitness, athletics, citizenship, and in scholarship.  We learn 
the beginnings of the Boy Scout program, including the motto, 
slogan, oath and the scout law.  More important, we learn what 
they mean and how we can make them part of our life.  Tonight we 
have a young man who has learned these things on his long 
journey through the Cub Scouting trail.  Together we will repeat the 
twelve points of the Scout Law. 
 
Tonight he has earned a special award, the Arrow of Light, which is 
the highest award that can be earned in Cub Scouting.  This is the 
only award from Cub Scouting that will be worn on the Boy Scout 
uniform.  It lets everyone know of the accomplishment and the 
knowledge he has gained as a young man.  We will ask him now to 
bring his parents forward. 


             


            By Eric Christiansen, WE7-590-3-08 







ARROW OF LIGHT—OUR BROTHERS, THE ANIMALS 
 


The Native Americans teach us many things about the world we 
live in.  We learn of their love for Mother Earth and its relationship 
to Father Sky, and the order of the many creatures that pass 
through either on wing, foot, belly or slide through her waters.   
 
The Ute people tell us of their brother, the beaver who carried fire 
from the east on its flat tail, and presented it to the peoples of the 
west.  His sacrifice is noted because the fire burned all the fur off 
his tail and it has never grown back. 
 
The coyote is the trickster, the one who uses its wits rather than its 
brawn to win.  He taught the people to use wisdom in their dealings 
with the earth, so it would always share its bounty.  With the 
example of the trickster the hunter was able to take the rabbit by 
making it believe that he had no interest in it.  Man learned how to 
conserve energy by watching the example of the coyote. 
 
The buffalo bore a man child from its blood who taught the people 
how to hunt the mighty beast. This knowledge saved them from 
famine, gave them furs for blankets and bedding, and skins for 
lodges.  In gratitude the young man was given the chief’s daughter 
in marriage.  The young man’s wife broke his spell by referring to 
the buffalo calf, which was what he truly was.  He jumped on his 
horse and raced from the village.  As he sped away he was once 
again transformed into the buffalo, never to return.  Yet his legacy 
was set, for the Ute people were now able to live and survive from 
Mother Earth, with food, raiment and shelter supplied by their 
brother the Bison.   
 
In Cub Scouting we have many brothers, and we all share a single 
goal, to learn to become better young men, to learn and live by the 
points of the Scout Law, and to become future leaders of our 
families and in our communities.   
 








seeds in fertile soil, has reached for the light above and tried to 
incorporate the ideals of Scouting into his life.  The evidence is in the 
award he is receiving, the Arrow of Light Award.  His path to this 
award has given him the opportunity to give service, experience the 
sciences, the arts, the outdoors, academics, sports activities and 
family life.  Through the principles of Scouting and the Scout Law, he 
is developing character that will be evident to all who meet him 
through out his life.  This is why we have the honor of presenting the 
Arrow of Light, the highest award given in Cub Scouting to 
_____________. 
 
 
 
*Note—If available, have such things as pine cones, pine nuts and 
acorns as props. 
 
By Eric Christiansen, Wood Badge ticket, WE7-590-3-08 







Just as when a disease sweeps through a forest and the weak trees 
are taken, the Cub Scouts who are strong can survive.  In preparation 
for the Boy Scouts, the Webelos learn the Scout promise.  In it they 
pledge to stay “physically strong, mentally awake, and morally 
straight.”  Staying true to this pledge will protect them from the many 
physical, mental and moral diseases that may be flung their way.   
 
In a major draught, it is the trees with deep roots that survive, and the 
Scouts that have deep moral and ethical roots are unaffected by the 
draughts that may hit society.   
 
Fire storms come and devastate vast stands of trees.  Many of these 
fires seem unstoppable and enormous amounts of time and 
resources are committed to fight them.  Those trees with substantial 
fire breaks around them are able to escape the flames.  As a 
Webelos Scout, the young men learn the Scout Law, which is, “A 
Scout is Trustworthy, Loyal, Helpful, Friendly, Courteous, Kind, 
Obedient, Cheerful, Thrifty, Brave, Clean and Reverent.”  Living by 
the Scout Law is that fire break that can protect the young men from 
the fire storms of the world.  Living by the standards of the Scout Law 
creates strength of character that sets a young man apart from 
others, a strength that shines through and is visible in every aspect of 
his life. 
 
And what is to keep the young men from falling over in the strong 
winds of opposition?  What is it that keeps a tree standing tall when 
buffeted by harsh winds?  It is his deep spiritual roots.  Belief and 
loyalty to God is one of the major principles of Scouting.  As long as 
the Scout has fed his roots of spirituality and allowed them to grow 
deep, he will be able to withstand all the winds the world may throw at 
him.  The smile on his face and the light in his eyes will be just a few 
of the outward signs of his spiritual roots.  The true sign will be in the 
life he lives. 
 
Today we have with us a young man who is doing those things to 
create a life that is like the tall majestic trees.  He has planted his 







ARROW OF LIGHT CERIMOMY 
TALL TREES 


 
 
There are few things more beautiful than a tall majestic tree.  As 
scouts, we enjoy the outdoors and the chance to be in the woods. 
 
When we look at where these trees came from, their seeds seem 
very small.  The mighty oak tree starts from the acorn.  The giant 
evergreens come from a small seed inside the pinecones.  If the 
seeds find good soil and the right amount of moisture, they will sprout 
and start to reach for the sky.  But not all seeds that start to grow will 
become majestic trees.   
 
Some may sprout but never find sun to give them strength because 
they are over shadowed by the canopy of growth around them.  Some 
may start to grow but be taken out by disease, drought or fast moving 
fire.  Others may never be tested sufficiently, only to be brought down 
later on by a strong wind it could not withstand.  This is very evident 
as you hike in certain areas such as Vancouver Island in Canada, or 
as close as the High Uinta mountains at our front door.  Many tall and 
beautiful trees lie on their sides, for when you look at their roots, you 
discover that the seed tried to sprout where the soil was thin and the 
roots were forced to spread out shallow over a hard rocky surface.  
When the strong winds came, there were no deep roots to support 
the tree and it tumbled to the ground. 
 
A young Cub Scout is like the acorn or the pine nut, full of potential 
and ready to be planted.  And just like those seeds, they need fertile 
soil to grow in.  The scouting program is that rich soil that can offer 
them the chance to grow.  Unfortunately, some boys may be 
overshadowed by older, larger boys who hide them from the light.  
Many boys look up to older boys who may be the wrong role models.  
Following the wrong example can keep them from ever growing to 
their full capabilities.   
 








(Beating drum) 
Tonight we have such a young man in our midst, who has spent 
the last year in the Webelos den.  Each month he has learned 
new skills and gained new knowledge.  He has learned about the 
government of city, state and nation.  He has worked on what it 
means to be a good family member.  He has worked on becoming 
physically fit and taking care of his body.  He has worked on skills 
in communication, scholarship, and showmanship.  He has spent 
time outdoors and leaned about nature and geology.  He has 
learned how to safely build a fire and cook over it.  The activity 
badge pins he has received over these past months represent the 
things he has accomplished on this journey of skills and 
knowledge.  Tonight he is ready to move on to the next step, on to 
the Boy Scout level.  And as evidence of his advancement is his 
qualification for the highest achievement possible in Cub 
Scouting, the Arrow of Light Award.  It is the only patch from Cub 
Scouting that he will wear on his Boy Scout uniform, and as a 
knot on his adult leader’s uniform.   
 
Just before we call up your parents and award you this 
achievement, I want to pass you the talking wing and let you 
describe your journey of this past year. 
 
 
 
 
Eric Christiansen 
WE7-590-3-08 
 
*Note—my talking wing is a goose wing wrapped at the bottom 
with fringed buckskin with pony beads.  You can also use a series 
of long craft feathers wrapped at the bottom.  Have someone in 
the background drum the assembly drum.  When it comes to the 
second part of the ceremony, replace the “he”s with the name of 
the Arrow of Light recipient.   







 
The next elder was the medicine man.  He was taught the way of 
the herb and the root.  He learned the method working with 
wounds and bringing comfort to the ailing and afflicted.  He 
learned to bind his own wounds for the times he might be on a 
solitary journey.  It was a moon of great discovery. 
 
The next moons brought many new skills and knowledge.  He 
learned to fish, to find edible foods in the woods and desert, and 
how to find and collect water when it was scarce.  He learned to 
compose and sing songs.  The poet taught him to bring forth his 
words and how to tell stories.  He learned to find, gather and mix 
pigments to decorate and tell stories through his paintings.  He 
made things with leather and wood and decorated them.  He had 
learned to swim across the small waters and learned to run longer 
distances without stopping.  He also spent time observing the 
councils of the elders and learned the politics that governed the 
village.  He learned how to communicate with the travelers and 
neighboring tribes, and how to trade for their goods. 
 
(Beating drum) 
At the turn of the four seasons, one evening Little Beaver once 
again heard the sounds of the assembly drums as the village 
gathered around the camp fire.  This time was different for he was 
called forward to stand among the elders.  They spoke with 
admiration of the year they had spent with Little Beaver as he was 
passing from childhood into young manhood.  He was now ready 
to move on to the next level, and start training to become a brave.  
Since his name was that of a child, he was now given his new 
name of Running Fox, for during the past year he had become 
fast and strong, cunning and smart as the fox.  And then for the 
first time, something new happened, for they passed the wing to 
young Running Fox and asked him to describe his journey to the 
village. 
 







ARROW OF LIGHT CEREMONY 
THE TALKING WING 


 
(Beating drum) 
Little Beaver heard the assembly drums and knew the elders 
needed to speak.  As the village gathered around, the elders took 
their turn to speak as they held the talking wing.  Only the one 
holding the wing was aloud to speak, and everyone listened 
quietly and respectfully to him.   
 
Little Beaver longed for the day when he might hold the wing and 
have the chance to say something of importance.  Yet this night 
was different, for this night the elders called Little Beaver forward.  
This was his year to learn from the elders and the braves.  Each 
moon Little Beaver would learn skills from those who were the 
masters of the village. 
 
For the next days Little Beaver worked with the arrow maker.  
They searched the hills for the stone that would slice into sharp 
pieces when pounded.  They searched for the shoots and 
branches for the shafts of the arrows.  For many hours they 
worked the stones to shape them into sharp points.  He learned to 
use fire to shape, straighten and harden the arrow shafts.  He 
learned how to split feathers and attach them to make the arrows 
fly straight and true.  By the next moon, though not a master, he 
had become knowledgeable in the craft. 
 
Next Little Beaver worked with the tracker.  He learned to identify 
the shape of the tracks from the smallest to the largest animal.  
He learned to tell how fresh the track was and to find their scent 
and sign.  He learned to find their holes, dens and bedding 
grounds.  He observed their habits of travel, grazing or hunting.  
He learned of their social structure and family life.  At the 
changing of the moon, Little Beaver had gained new knowledge. 





